
INTERNATIONAL  JOINT  COMMISSION 

HEARING AND ARGUMENT 
IN THE MATTER OF THE 

MEASUREMENT  AND  APPORTIONMENT OF THE 
WATERS OF THE ST. MARY AND MILK 

RIVERS AND THEIR TRIBUTARIES 
IN THE 

UNITED STATES  AND  CANADA 

Under  Article VI of the  treaty of 
January 11, 1909, between  the 
United  States  and  Great  Britain 

ST. PAUL, MINN., MAY 24 TO 28, 1916 

WASHINGTON 
GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICX 

1916 



INTERNATIONAL JOINT COMMISSION.

CANADA..

CHARLES A. MAGRATH, CHAmKAN.
HENRY A. PO\VELL, 1\.. C.
1'. B. lliGNAULT, K. C.

LAwRENCE J. BUBPi:I:, Sccreltiii':""

2

UNITED STATEs.

OBADIAH G.~RDNER, CRATRKA..
JAMES A. TAWNEY.
R. B. GLEKN.

WHITEHEAD KL1JT1'Z, Secrelarg.



MEASURENENT AND APPORTTOXME~T OF THE  WATERS OF THE 
ST, MARY AND MILK RIVERS. 

INTERNATIONAL JOINT COXMISSION, 
St. P a d ,  Minn., Monday,  May $4, 1915. 

The  International  Joint Commission,  pursuant  to  public notice, 
met  in  the  Federal  Building  at St. Paul, Minn., at  10 o’clock  a.  m., 
Monday,  May 24,1915, for the  purpose of considering  Article VI  of 
the  treaty of January 11, 1909, between the  United  States  and  Great 
Britain,  in respect to  the  division  and  use of the  waters of the St. 
Mary  and  Milk  Rivers. 

Present : Obadiah  Gardner,  Charles A. Magrath,  James A. Tawney, 
Henry A. Powell, R. B. Glenn, P. B. Mignault;  Whitehead  Kluttz 
and  Lawrence J. Burpee, secretaries. 

Mr. GARDNER. Gentlemen,  as  chairman of the  American section 
of the  International  Joint  Commission  it  has  occurred  to me this 
morning  that we are  holding  this  meeting  in  the  great  State of Min- 
nesota,  and also in  the  city of St. Paul,  which 1s quite  a  factor. I 
understand,  in  the social,  political,  and  economic  life of the  State. 
As we have a representatlre  on  this  commission  who is a  distin- 
guished  son of the  State of Minnesota, I am  going  to  call  upon  him 
to preside  at  this  meeting  in  recognition of our appreciation of his 
worth  as a man  and as a  member of this commission. Mr. Tawney, 
will you  kindly  take  the  chair? 

Mr. TAWNEY. Mr.  Chairman  and  gentlemen,  on  behalf of the  State 
of Minnesota I wish to acknowledge  the  courtesy  extended to  the 
State by  the  chairman  in  calling  upon me to  preside  at  this  im- 
portant  special session of the  Tnternational  Joint  Commission. I 
will  not  take  up  any of pour  time  at  present  in  making  a  statement, 
further  than  to call  upon  the  secretary of the  American section of 
the commission to  read  the notice  which  was sent  ont  on our side of 
the  line  and  the  secretary of the  Canadian section of the  commission 
to  read  the  notice  which v a s  cent out  from  the  Canadian  side  calling 
for this session of the  commission.  We will then  proceed to  obtain 
the  aDpearances of those  who are nresent for the respective  interests, 
both  in  the ‘CJnited States  and  in  Canada. 

(The notices  were therellpon  read by the secretaries,  and  are 
copied  into  the  record  in  full, as follows:) 

WAEIIIINGTON, D. C., February 1.9. 101.5. 
DEAR SCR: By direction of the Internntionnl Joint Comnlission I h n w  the 

honor to uotify you thnt the comnlission mill meet in  St. Poul. Minn..  on Mon- 
day, May 24, 1915, for the purpose of considering the following article of the 
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4 ST. MARY  AND MILK RIVERS, 

treaty of January 11, 1909, hetween  the  United  States and Great  Britain,  in re 
spect  to  the  division  and  use of the  waters of the Milk and  St.  Mnry  Rivers: 

“ARTICLE VI. 

“The  high  contracting  parties  agree  that  the St. Mnry  and Milk Rivers  and 
their  tributaries  (in  the 8t:lte of Alontm:l and the  Provinces of Alberta nnd 

, hlskntchewun)  are  to be treitted as oue  stream  for  the  purposes of irrigation 
tlnd power. and  the  waters  thereof  shall be npportioned  equ;llly between the 
two  countries,  hut  in nulking such  equal  :i~~~)orl:ionnlent  more  than  half nlny bo 
t:Iliell fron1 one river m d  less t h m  half  from  the  other by either  country, so as 

virion of such w:rters during the irrigation season, between the 1st of April and 
to  nfforcl a more hene1ici:al use to each. I t  is further  ngreed that in the di- 

81st of October. inclusive, annu:lllg, the  United  States is entitled  to n prior a p  
propriation. of 500 cubic feet  per second of the walers of the M i l k  Itiyer. or so 
much of such  amount ns constitutes  three-fourths of i ts  n:ltur:ll flow. :111d th:it 
C;lnudn is eutitleci to :I prior ap1)ropri;htion of 500 cubic feet  per second of the 
flow of St.  Mnry  €liver, or so much of such  amount as constitutes  three-fourths 
of its  ntlturul flow. 

“The chmnel of the Milk River  in Cnnndn may he used a t  the convenie~lce 
of the  United  States for the conveyance. while 1)nssing through C;tn:tdi:ln terri- 
tory. of waters  diverted  from  the  St. Mtlry River.  The  provisions of Article I1 
of this  treilty  shall  apply  to :any injury  resulting  to  property  in  Cmadn from the 
conreynnce of such  waters  through  the M i l k  Itircr. 

“ The  niensurement tlnd apportionnlelit of the  wnter  to be used hy each coun- 
. try  shall  from  time  to  tinre be made  jointly by the properly  constituted reclnnut- 

tion offlcers of the  United  Strltes and the  properly  constituted  irrigntion ofiicers 
of His M2Ijesty under  the  direction of the  Iuternntional Joiut Colnnrission.” 

rcpportionment of the  wnters of the Milk i\Ild St. Mary  ltivers  must be nirltle 
Under  this  article ( V I )  of the  trenty. you will note  that  the  measurement rind 

jointly  under  the  direction of the lntern~~tionnl  Joint Conrnrission. Before  en- 
tering upon the  discharge of this  duty  the commission deems i t  necessrlry to 
henr  all piwties in  interest upon the  various  questions involved in  respect 
thereto.  The  session a t  St. Paul. the  place  suggested by the  two  Governnlents 
as most convenient  for  all concerned, is for the  purpose of hearing  the  repre- 
sentntires of the  United  States  ond C:knada. the  Stxte of Mont:lna, the I’roviuces 
of Alberta  and Sas1rntchew:ln. :Ind any  others on either or hoth  sides of the 

propription by the  respective  countries.  their beneficial use, and  any  and  nll 
boundnry  in  respect  to  the  equal  apportionment of these  waters.  the  prior np- 

other questions  involved i n  the  interpret:ltion of mid article of &?id treaty, as 
affecting  the  rights  and  interests of a11 concerned in  both countries. 

You are  respectfully  requested  to  notify  any  local  interests you may think 
should he represented at   th is  hearing. 

I inclose for your information a copy of a report  made  to  the commission by a 
comndttee,  consisting of Colunlissioners Unrdner  and I’onell. reliltire to certnin 
physical  and  legal  nspects of this  nratter.  The  sessions will  he held in the.E’ed- 
era1  Building a t  St. Paul, Minn., beginning at 10 a. In. 

Very  respectfully, 
WHITEHEAD KLUTTZ, Hecretaru. 

OTTAWA, CANADA. 
NOTICE. 

MEASUREMENT  AND  APPORTIONMENT OF THY: WATERS OF THE ST. MARY  AND 3III.K 
RIVERS AND  THEIR TRIUUTARTES I N   T H E  STATE OF MONTANA AND THE PROVINCES 
OF ALBERTA AKD  SASKATCHEWAN. 

Whereas  Article VI of the trenty  hetween  the  Unite0  States  and Great 
Britnin.  signed  January 31, 1909, proyitletl for the  measurement ant1 nppor- 
tionluent of the  waters of the St. 1Ztu.y and Milk Rivers  hetween the United 
States and Canrrda, under the direction of the International  .Joint  Conunission ; 
and  it is desirable that all parties  intercstetl shoultl he heart1 with  respect  to 
the  construction of the  nrtide. both in regml  to  the precise  wilters  which are 
to  he clivitled and  the  amounts  thereof  that  should  be  apportioned  to the 
United  States  and  to  Canada, respeetively- 



ST. MARY AND MILE RIVERS. 5 

24th day of May, A. D. 1915, in  the Federal Building, at  the  city of St. €’nul, 
Notice is hereby  given that  the  International  Joint Commission will, on the 

in  the ,State of Minnesota,  hear all parties  that  may  be  interested  in  the  above 
matter. 

LAWRRNCE J. RURPRE. 

W HITEHRAD Rr.r:ma, 
Ottnwn, Canada, 

Wnshington. n. C., 
Becretaries, Internntionnl Joiwt Commis8iOn. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I would suggest to  the  secretary of the  American 
section of the commissim  that, he read  the  report of Mews.   Poml l ’  
and  Gnrdner  that nccompnnied the notice  sent  out on the L~merican 
side, in order  that  it  may form a part of the record. 

(The  secretary of the  American  section  thereupon  read  the  report 
referred  to,  which is copied into th,e record in full, as follows:) 

OCTOBER 6, 1914. 
The IN1’XRNATION.U~ JOINT ~hMhiTSSTO?? : 

cornwittee  to loolc into tho  matter of the div\sion of the nliI!r and St. Mary 
We. the untlcrsigned, mcmbws of the commission, having heen appointed a 

Ricrrs, hcf to  report as follows: 
Raving tlecitlod thnt I t  was rwessary to  visit  the  locality  where  these  waters 

are  and  to  personally  invcstigato  nlatters, we went  to  southern  Alberta  and  the 
State of Montana  in  the month of July last.  We first spent n few ( l n F  at 
Calgnry looking  into  reports which hac1 h r m  prepnred hp the  irrigation  branch 
of the  department of the  interior, in charge of Mr.  Peters.  Raving  ohtained 
from  him the ncces!:ary data, we exnminetl the  operation of the  irrigation 
system of the C:\nnclinn I’acifir Ihilway Co. to  the eastward of Cnlgtlry. nfter 
which  we proceeded to  Lethbrirlge, and there Inspected the  operation of the 

motored clown through  southern Alhertrt to  the lakes which are  the source Of 
irrigation cunnls which tap the  wnters of the  St. Mnry River. We  next 

the  St.  Mary  River,  in  the  State of Montana;  inspecting on t h e  way the Irri- 
kation  system of the  Cmndian Pacific Itailwny in southern  Alherta,  which USRS 
the waters of the St. Mary River:  anti also the  construction of the canal  which 
is heinp  hnilt by the  United  States  Government  to carry its share of the  waters 
of the  St. Mary Ricer  to  the Milk River;  and  the  construction of the  storage 
reservoirs  being  built by t?le same Government In the  State of Montana. 

The  task of dividing the waters of the  two  rivers devolves  upon the com- 

trip was  to consitler what was necessary to  be done in order  to  perform the 
mission by the  terms of the  treaty  of 1909, and  the  primary  object of our 

duty  thus  assigned to  the commission. 
The  irrigation is epsentlal to the  development and well-being of both  south- 

ern Alberta, in Canada,  and  the valley of the Milk River,  in Moutnna. The 
nrerls on the United  States  side of the line  have heen recognized by its Gov- 
ernmrnt  and  the  works now in process of constructinn will  involve an ex- 
pnrl i ture  on the part of that  Government of somewhere  hetween $10,000.ooO . 
and $15,000,000. It appears  to your committee  thnt  the  present is an oppor- 

nection  with  the work devolving  upon it. 
tune  time  for the conlmission to  consitler certain difficulties that arise in ron- 

In  the first plnce there are certain difficulties of construction of  the treaty 
which  must  he  settled  before the work of the  division of the  waters cnn be 

- This  article  proritles for the  equal  apportionment of the combined waters of 
nnclertalren. These  grow  out of the wording of Article  VI of the  treaty. 

the  two  rivers, ant1 the commission is not  limited to an npportionment in  moiety 
of! the  maters of either  river.  The  article provides,  however, that in the  divi- 
sion of the  waters the United  States is entitled  to a prior  approprintion of 500 

prior  appropriation of 500 second-feet  in the  waters of the  St. Mary River,  the 
second-feet in  the  waters of the Milk River, and that  Canada is entitletl  to a 
qun1ific:ltion in  each  case  being  in  the  following words: “ o r  so much of such 
amount as constitutes  three-fourths of its natural flow.” 

entitltxl to an absolute  preference  in  the  respective  rivers  up  to 500 second- 

where  such  three-fourths exceeded 500 second-feet. Other  constructions sug- 
feet;and then, in addition,  wcre also entitled  to  three-fourths of the flow 

gest themselves, and your  committee  are of the opinion that   the  first step to 

The opinion  prevailed aniong some  interestetl  that  the  two  countries  were , 
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be  taken by the commission is to  hxve a hearing of the parties  interested,  with 

Article VI. 
a view of determining  the  correct  construction  to be plftced upon the words of 

In  addition  to  the above, a cliliiculty is  likdy  to  arise  in connection with  the 
storage of the  waters of these  rivers. At the  time of your committee’s visit 
there was not 500 second-feet of flow in  the  St.  Mary  River.  During  freshet 
season the flow of both  rivers  is  quite  large,  and  the  storage  facilities  which 
a re  being  provided by the  United  States  Government will impound n large 
percentage of the  freshet  waters  for  use  during  the  dry  season  when  it is neces- 
sary  to  resort  to  irrigation  in  both  cnuntries.  The  division of this freshet 
wnter will be a difficult matter  and  one which your  committee  thinks  should be 
settled by this commission as soon as possible,  especially in view of the fact 
that  large  expenditures  are  being lnatle by the United  States  Government  and . 
that  a survey is being  made by the  Canadian  Governmeut  with a view of pro- 
viding  storage  facilities  in  Canadian  territory. 

of the Milk and  St.  Mary  Rivers  are  to ix measured  for  thc  purposes of appor- 
tionment.  Tour  comnlittee is also of the opinion thnt  inasmuch  that  under 
the  treaty  both  countries  are interestcxl  in the  waters o€ both rivers it is essen- 
tial,  in  order  to  secure an equitttble tlivision o €  the  waters of these  rivers, that 
the c1istril)ution should be unt1t.r the supervision of a joint  board  consisting of 
two conlpetent  persons,  one  to  be  appointed by the  United  States  and  one by 
Canada. 

In  submitting  this  report  we rn:ly say  that  we  have  not touched  upon all 
matters which  may be subjects of controvwsy  or upon  which clif€erences of 
opinion may be entertained. We have merely touched upon certain  salieut 
features which call  for  consitleration by the cornnlission in  the  near  future. 

There  are  other  problems involved, such as the  point at which  thc  waters’ 

Dated  this  6th  day of Octoher, 1914. 

€1. A. POWELL. 
0. G.4ItDN‘EB. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Gentle~nen,  heretofore  all  hearings of the  Interna- 
tional  Joint Commission  have been initiated  upon  the  motion of 
either  one  or  both of the  two  Governments,  or  upon  the  initiative 
of the people in  either or both  countries,  and  these  hearings  pro- 
ceeded upon  the  stated issues thnt were clearly  set  forth  in  the  plend- 
ings  that were  submitted by the  parties  under  the  rules of the com- 
mission.  This hearing, as you know,  will have to proceed, and has 
thus far proceeded,  upon the  initiative of the commission itself,  with- 
out  any  stated issues. 

Before we proceed with  the  hearing  the  next  step  will be to  have 
those  present  representing  tho  interests on both  sides of the  line 
enter  their  appearances, so thxt  the commission may  know  and  the 
record  may  show  for  whom  they  appear.  We  will  begin  with  the 
representatives of the  two Governments-the Government of the 
TTnited States  and  the  Government of the Dominion of Canada- 
then  the  Provinces,  and  then  those  who aTe representing  private 
interests on either  side of tho  line. 

(The  following  appe:mnces  were  announced :) 
For  the  United States Government: 
Mr.  Manton M. Wyvell, connsel for  the TJnited States,  Washington. 
Mr.  Morris  Bien, counsel, I’Leclamation Service,  Department of tho 

Mr. IV. .J. Egleston, counsel for  the  Reclamation  Service of Mon- 

Mr. Ti‘. IT. Newell, Reclamation  Service,  Department of the  Inte- 

Mr. R. M. Conner,  Reclamation  Service,  Department of the  Inte- 

Interior.  Washington. 

tana,  Grand Falls, Mont. 

rior,  Washinpt~on. 

rior, WaPhington. 
. Mr. N. C. Grover, Geological Snrvey,  Washington. 

Mr. G. C .  Stevens,  Geological  Snrvey,  Washington. 
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For the  Dominion of Canada: 
C. S. Machnes,  K. C., counsel for the Dominion  Government, 

Mr. W. J. Stewart, chief hydrographer,  Ottawa. 
Mr. E. F. Drake,  superintendent of irrigation;  Ottawa. 
Mr. F. H. Peters,  commissioner of irrigation,  Calgary. 
Mr. R. J. Bnrley,  irrigat,ion  engineer?  Calgary. 
Mr. Alfred  Spreckley,  irrigation  englneer,  Ottawa. 
For the  State of Montana: 
Mr. D. M. Kelly,  attorney  general,  Helena,  hlont. 
Mr. A. W. Mahon,  State  engineer,  Helena,  Mont. 
For  the  Province of Alberta: 
Mr. J. D. Hunt, counsel for  the  Province of Alberta. 
Mr. J. Stocks,  deput  minister of public works, Edmonton,  Alberta. 
For the  Province 9 9 Saskatchewan : 
Mr. A. F. Mantle,  deputy  minlster of agriculture,  Regina, Sas- 

katchewan. 
For the  Water  Users’  Association of the  Lower  Milk  River: Mr. 

W. B. Sands,  Chinook,  Mont. 
For the  Upper  Milk  River  Water  Users’  Association: Mr. Henry 

O’Hanlon,  Chinook,  Mont. 
For the  Western  Canada  Irrigation Association:  Mr. W. Pearce, 

Calgary. 
For the  Cypress I-Iills Water Users’  Association : Mr. R. J. Burley, 

Calgary. 
For the  Great  Northern  Railroad: Mr. E. C .  Lindley, counsel, St. 

Paul,  Minn.; Mr. K. Budd,  assistant  to  the  president, St. Paul, 
Minn.; Mr. E. C. Leedy, St. Paul,  Minn. 

Helena,  Mont.; Mr. G. A. Walker, counsel, Calgary,  Alberta; Mr. 
J.. S. Dennis,  assistant to  the  president,  Calgary,  Alberta. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Gentlemen of the  bar of the  United  States  and 
Canada,  and  citizens of bot,h  countries, the  chair  has  already  indi- 
cated  that  this  hearing  .proceeds  upon a motion of the commission 
itself  without  any  stated issues. The commission has  had  no  oppor- 
tunity of conferring,  revious  to  this  time,  with  respect  to  the  mode 
of procedure. Thus &r, although  the  matters  that  have been heard 
and  determined  by  the commission have been  of very  great  im- 

ortance  to  the  people of both  countries  and  to  their respect.ivo 
overnments,  the  judgments of the commission have been in  every 

instance  except  one  unanimous. It has been the effort of the com- 
mission to afford the people of both  countries  every possible oppor- 
tunity for conference  among themselves, with a view to  reaching a 
common understanding  with  reference to any  matters of difference 
that  might  exist between them or between the  Governments.  Inas- 
much ns the commission has  not  itself  considered  the  exact mode of 
procedure, i t  is unable at  this  time  to  state  just  what  the  procedure 
should be. It has been  suggested that it might be advisable  and  would 
conduce  probably  to a more  satisfactory  result  in  the end if the com- 
mission  should nom adjourn  until  to-morrow  morning a t  half  past 
10 o’clock. This is suggested  especially in view of the  fgct  that  there 
is another  matter  pending  before  the commission  which i t  desires to 
consider in executive  session this  afternoon  with respeci to  the  hear- 
ing of two  other cases that  must  be  heard somewhere  in the  State 

Ottawa. 

For  the  Canadian  Pacific  Railway Co.: Mr. M. S. Gunn, counsel, * 
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of Maine  respecting  the  obstruction  and  diversion of the  waters of 
the St. Croix  River  that  mark  the  boundary between the  United 
States  and  the  Province of  New Brunswiclr. I f   that  is agreeable to 
the gentlemen  present,  and  all of my associates,  we will  adjourn  until 
half  past 10 to-morrow  morning. 

I t  1s suggested  by  my  colleagues  that  possibly  there  may be some 
one  present  who  desires to be heard  to-day  in  order  that  he  may  get 
away,  having business  elsewhere that  requires  his  attention,  and if 
that  is the case  we will  take  a recess until  this  afternoon,  say,  at 3 
o’clock. Otherwise we will  adjourn  until  half  past  10  to-morrow 
morning. I f  there  are  any  gentlemen  here  representing  either  the 
Government  or  private  interests  who  desire  to be heard  this  after- 
noon, we might proceed to  hear  them,  although it might be probahly 
a little  out of the  order of procedure  that  may  be  ultimately  decided 
upon  by  the commission.  Nobody answering, I take it for  granted 
that you gentlemen  have  all come prepared  to  remain a t  St. Pad-  
I know the citizens of St. Paul will be glad  to  have you-and  we will 
now  adjourn  until  half  past  10 o’cloclr to-morrow  morning. 

(The commission thereupon  adjourned  until  to-morrow,  Tuesday, 
May 25, 1915, a t  10.30 o’clock a. m.) 

TUESDAY, MAY 25, 1915. 
Pursuant  to  the  adjournment,  the commission  met a t  10.30  o’clock 

a. m., all  the  members  being  present,  and  Mr.  Tawney  presiding. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Gentlemen, the commission stated  yesterday  thnt 

the object of this special  session is to  hear  the  parties  in  interest 
in  both  countries  with  respect  to  the  measurement  and  apportion- 
ment of the  waters of the St. Mary  and  Milk  Rivers between the  two 
countries for  irrigation  and power  ’purposes. This  hearing  having 
been initiated  by  the commission itself, it is natural  for those ap- 
pearing to expect  the commission to  indicate  in  advance  the pltm 
of roccdure. 

8 y  the  express  terms of the  treaty of January 11, 1909, it is made 
the  duty of the commission to  direct  the  properly  constituted  recla- 
mation officers of the  Government of the  United  States  and  the 
properly  constituted  irrigation  officers of His Majesty to measure 
and  apportion  the  waters of the St. Mary  and  Milk  Rivers  an3 
their  tributaries  in  Montana,  Alberta,  and  Saskatchewan  equally 
between  these  two  countries  upon the basis of beneficial use. Before 
directing  these officers  of the respective  Governments  in  the  matter 
of the  apportionment of these  waters, we have deemed it not  only 
advisable,  but in the  interest of continuing  that  friendly  and  verv 
cordial  relation  that  has  always  existed between the  Dominion of 
Canada  and  the  United  States,  to  obtain  the views of both of the 
Federal  Governments,  the  Provinces,  and  the  State of Montana, as 
well as  the .views of private  interests  in  both  countries  as  to  how 
these  waters  should m their  judgment be equitably  apportioned 
under  the  treaty  and  thereby best promote  the  interests of the people 
in  both  countries. We have,  therefore,  concluded  in  the  interest of 
orderly  procedure  to  suggest  that we first hear  the  representatives 
of the  two  Federal  Governments,  then  the  representatives of the 
Provinces of Saskatchewan  aad  Alberta and the State of Montana, 
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and, thereafter,  hear  the  representatives of private  interests  on  both 
sides of the line. 

Of  course,  anyone  appearing  who  may  desire  to  supplement any 
statement he may make a t  the  outset  will be given an opportun!ty 
to  do SO or to reply to any  statement  that  may he made  to  whlch 
he  deems a reply necessary. 

It is also suggested that we first ascertain  whether or not  the  rep- 
resentatives of the  Federal  Governments  are  prepared to  submit 
at  the  outset  an  agreed  statement of the  facts  bearing upon tho 
measurement  and  the  apportionment of the  waters  in  question;  that 
is, as to the  time  the  measurenlents of the  waters of the  St.  Mary 
and  Milk  Rivers  and  their  tributaries  in  Alberta,  Saskatchewan and 
Montana  have been continucd,  the  places of location at  which thew 
measurements  have been made, and  with  what  result  as  to  the ques- 
tion of the flow of the  waters of these two rivers  and  their  trihu- 
taries; also the  areas  or  approximate  areas of lands on both  sides of 
the  line  and  their  approximate  location  to  the  two  rivers  involved 
that may be irrigated by the  diversion of the  waters of these  rivers, 
including  their  tributaries  in  Alberta,  Saskatchewan,  and  Montana. 

If  there is no  agreement  between  the  representatives of the  two 
Federal  Governments  with  respect  to  these  questions,  the commis- 
sion will be very  glad to  hear  their views and also to hear or  receive 
any  suggestions  that  they  have  to  make as to how  best ascertain  the 
facts  upon  which  the commission is to  determine  these  important 
uestions of fact so far  as  they  bear  upon  the question of the bene- 

Zcial use and  prior  appropriation of the  waters of these  two  rivers. 
There  are doubtless  many  other  questions  that  will  arise  in  the 

course of the  hearing,  and it is not  the  desire of the commission to 
foreclose  any  interest  upon  either  side  here  represented  from the 
consideration of any question that may be  deemed important,  and 
which, it may be also  thought,  has or will  have some bearing  upon 
the  judgment of the commission in respect to the measurement and 
np  ortionment of these  waters. 

&ow, with  this  statement of the  purposes of the  hearing  and  the 
general  outline of the  plan of procedure we will  hear  the  parties in 
interest  in  this  order:  First,  the  representatives of the  Government 
of the  United  States,  then  the  representatives of the  Dominion .of 
Canada,  and  the  Provinces of Alberta  and  Saskatchewan  and  the 
State of Montana,  and  then  we  will  hear  the  private  interests  that  are 
re resented in  both  countries. ? might  add,  gentlemen,  that  thus  far  the  International  Joint Com- 
mission has  approached  the  consideration of almost  every  question 
that has been submitted to it, not as partisans  or  litigants or contest- 
ants  but  more  in  that  spirit of friendship  and  cordiality  that  should 
and has always  existed between  these two  countries,  and we are  very 

lad  to say that  that  has been the  spirit  in which  those  appearing 
fefore  the commission have  always  considered  and  conducted  them- 
selves  throughout  the  hearing,  as  the  result of which  thus far  the 
decisions of the commission have been always  unanimous  and  in  every 
instance, SO far   as  we knoy, entirely  satisfactory to the  Governments 
that  created  the commlsslon, and also to  thew respective  people. 
Although  we  recognize  the  importance of this  matter  that is now 
under  consideration  and  we  also  realize  how  vitally it affects  the 
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interests  and  the  welfare of the  people  on  both  sides of the  line,  never- 
theless the commission indulges  the  hope  that  this  hearing may be 
conducted  along  the  same  lines  and  with  the  same  spirit of  conces 
sion  and  compromise  that  has  heretofore  characterized its work. 

Now, Mr. Wyrell, you  may proceed. 
Mr. WYVELL. Members of the commission, I think jt well, perhaps, 

that  a statement of the  physical  facts  and  conditions as they  appear 
to the  Reclamation  Service of the TJnited States  should be made  first. 
However, I have  prepared  a 17ery brief  statement of the position of 
.the  United  States  Government  with a very  brief  suggestion  added as 
to  the  work of the commission,  which I will  present if you  wish. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Mr.  Wyvell,  has  there been prepared  any  agreement 
as to  any of the  physical  facts  that  are  involved  in  this  dispute? 

Mr.  WYVELL.  Some  agreements  have been made. For instance, 
back  in 1911 or 1912 agreed  points of measurement  were  selected  by 
the  two  Governments. As you  will  recall,  a  letter  was  addressed to 
you by the  Reclamation  Service on that  subject  in 191.2. The data, 
vnfortunately,  has  not heen entirely  agreed  upon,  but a substantiil 
agreement was  made,  as I understand I t ,  at  a conference of the  engl- 
neers  held  yesterday;  that is, with req:wd to  certain  data which our 
Government  deems  important  in  thls  investigation.  Other  data, 
which it is clnimed may he important,  can  not lue determined defi- 
riitely at  this time.  Would it not be the best thing t,o have Mr. Newell 
make  his  statement first, thcn a l l o ~  the commission or Mr.  MacInneu 
to ask him any questions that  they  may see fit to ask, and  then, if 
r~ecessnry. I will supplement  that  with a further  statement.  If  that 
meets  with  the  approval of the commission, I suggest  that it be done. 

Mr. TAWNEY. It is  suggested that  that would be satisfactory,  pro- 
vided the  statement is confined  exclusively to  the  physical  facts  at 
the  present  time  rather  t,hau  to  any  argument  that moy lie based upon 
the  facts. 

Mr. WYVELI,. There  is  no  argument, as I understand  the state- 
ment.  However,  necessarily  this  is  a  subject  concerning  which  opin- 
ion  must be expressed  with  regard  to  conditions. I n  other  words,  Mr. 
Newell has  not been on the  ground all t he  time,  and  in  making  his 
statement he must rely upon  his own observations  supplemented by 
the  reports  which  the  depavtment received both  from  its  own  agents 
and  agents  on  the  part of the Dominion of Canada,  as well as  from 
information  which  he  has  gathered  generally.  This  is  not a subject 
which  will  lend  itself  to  a  bare  statement of facts  like  a  court case, 
as your  honors  will  readily  appreciate. It is a big  subject  and  one 
upcn  which  opinions  must be expressed in some pwticulars. 

Mr. TATVNEY. We  will  hear  Mr. Newell. 

STATENEEJT OF F. E. NEWELL,  COWSUETING ENGINEER OF THE 
UNITED  STATES  RECLAMATION  SERVICE. 

Mr. ‘rli\vNnT. Before you begin  your  statement,  Mr. Newell, let 

Mr. NEWELI,. At present, I am  consulting  engineer of the  United 

Mr. TAWNEY. How long  have you been engaged in  that  capacity! 
Mr. NEWF:LL. Since December, 1914. 

me ask yon what is y o ~ w  present  position? 

States  Reclamation Ser-vice. 
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Mr. TAWNEY. Prior to  that  time,  what were  your  duties? 
Mr. NEWEU. From 1907 to 1915 I was  Director  for  the  United 

States  Reclamation  Service  and  prior  to  that,  from 1902 to 1907, chief 
engineer.  Incidentally, I may  add  that I was  designated  on  the  part 
of the  Government  to  consider  the  preliminaries  to  drawing up what 
is now article 6 of this  treaty, so that I have  had  a  considerable  per- 
sonal  knowledge,  not  only of the  geography  but of the  negotiations 
and discussions  which  have  led up  to  article 6 of +he present  treaty. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I desired  that  information  to  appear  in  the  record 
preceding  your  statement. 

Mr. NEWELL. We  are here in accordance  with  the  notification  from 
the  secretary of this  International  Joint Commission, dated  Feb- 
ruary 20,  1915, to  the effect that  the commission  deems it necessary 
to hear  all  parties  in  interest  before  entering  upon  the  discharge 
of the  duty  imposed  upon it by the  last clause of article 6 of the 
treaty of January 11,1909. This clause states  that- 

The mcasurenlent and agportionlncnt of tile water to be usetl by each country 
shall from time  to  time hc, nmle jointly by the prol)cbrIg conr:titutetl recl:l~nation 
officers of the  United  States and the ~ ) r o ~ ) e r l y  constil utcd irrigation ofIicers of 
His Majesty under the  direction of the 1ntern:ttioilnl Joint Conimission. 

Importance of action:  The  time  will soon arise  when  the  United 
States will be  ready  to  divert from St. Mary  River,  Mont.,  water 
which  otherwise  would flow into  Canada,  and  by  means of a  canal 
now approaching  completion  carry some of this  water across the 
watershed to Milk  R,ioer to [low easterly  through R portion of 
Canada  to  lands  in  the  lower  valley of Milk  Rivcr  in  Montana. The 
tctal ccst of the propoiecl wor!cs, of which this  dirersicn is an es- 
sential  part, is about $8,000,000 to  irrigate  nearly 220,000 acres  of 
arid  and  semiarid  land. Of this  estimated cost of  $8,000,000 about 
one-half, o r  $4,000,000, has been expended. It will  not be necessary 
to conlplete a11 o f  the propc~sed works, however,  before  water  can  be * 

used,  as  the  works  already  partly  completed  will begin to  deliver 
water  before  all  portions  are finished. It is  probable  that some 
water may, be  turned  into  the  canal  for  irrigation prrrposes possibly 
late  this  year  or  early  in 1916. In view of this concliljon i t  now ap- 
pears  desirable for the  International  Joint Commission to  take 
formal  action  in  accordance  with  Article VI of the  trcaty  with  Great 
Britain,  signed  at  Wnshington  danuary 11, 1909,  prciclaimed May 
13, 1910. 

Physical  conditions: I would  like to  explain  here  in a somewhat 
elementary  fashion  the  physical  conditions so that  the record  will  be 
intelligent to a11 who  may be interested. I n  order  to  explain the 
necessity for  this  article  in  the  treaty, it is necessary to make  clear 
the  principal  physical or geographic  cc~ntliticns. The  Milk  River, 
which flows in a general  easterly coursc not  far  from  the  international 
boundary between the TJnitcd States and Canada, receives its wnter 
supply from occasional storms or  showers falling  1qm1  a  rolling or 
undulating  country. It does not  havc at its sonrce  any  notable 
mountains,  such  as  furnish to many  other  streams  a  relatively  stcady 
flow. The  upper course of the river lies mainly  to  the  north o-f the 
boundary.  After  continuing  for  about' 210 miles in Canada,  daring 
which it falls  about 1,475 feet,  or 7 feet  per mile, the river makes a 
turn  to  the southeast,  crossing  the  boundary,  and  then  continues  in n 

0 
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general  easterly  course,  flowing  through  the  principal  valley of 
northern  Montana,  most of the  water, or perhaps 60 per  cent,  arlsing 
in  the  United  States as measured at  the  point  where  it passes the 
eastern  crossing.  Many  small  irrigation  canals  and  ditches  have 
been built to take  the  water  from  Milk  River  and  its  tributaries,  some 
of them  being in  Canada,  but  the  greater  number  in  the  United 
States.  The  water supply is so crratic,  however,  and  the  State  laws 
governing its appwpriation so incomplete, that  the development of 
agriculture  by  irrigation  has been halting  and  unsatisfactory. 

Lying  to  the west of the  headwaters of Milk  River  is  the  main 
range of the Rocky  Mountains  and  the  high  peaks now included 
within  the  Glacier  National  Park.  Large  torrential  streams  issue 
toward  the  east  from  these  mountains. It is  obvious that  under 
ordinary  conditions  these  streams  should  unite  and  continue  flowing 
toward  the  east t o  what  is now the  channel of Milk  River. The ex- 
planation as to  why  the  streams  do  not  thus  continue  down  the 
eastern  slope of the  Great  Plains is probably to be found  in  the  fact 
that  during recent  geologic times  the  glaciers corning from  the  north 
left a great  deposit of clay,  gravel,  and  bowlders,  resulting  in  an 
intercepting  ridge  which  has  forced  the  waters  from  the  high  moun- 
tains  to  turn  abruptly  northward  forming St. Mary  River,  which in 
turn discharges  into  the  Belly  and  then  into  the  Saskatchewan or  
Hudson Bay drainage. 

The project now under  construction  by  the  Reclamation  Service 
of the  United  States  Government  may be pictured as an  attempt  to 
turn  easterly some of these  waters  into  what,  in  former  geologic 
times,  may  have been their  proper  course, or, to put it in  another 
way, to  enlarge  the  catchment  area of Milk  River  by  restoring  to it 
some of the  mountain  drainage  area  from  which it is cut off by  the 
clay  and  bowlder  hills  which now constitute its upper  catchment 
area. 

There is little  if  any  irrigation  directly from St. Mary  River  in 
the  United States-possibly  one or two  small canals-but shortly 
after  passing  to  the  north  across  the  boundary  there  is one large 
canal now  owned  by the  Canadian  Pacific  Railway Co. which  diverts 
water  toward  the  east  and  also some smaller  irrigation  ditches. 

On  the  headwaters of St. Mary  River  in  the  United  States  are 
opportunities  for  storage of water,  but  after  entering  Canada  the con- 
ditions  for  storage on the  main  stream  nre.not a: favorable.  There 
are,  however, a number of depressions or basins  whlch  may be filled hy 
canals  diverting  water  from  the  rircr.  The  filling of these is limited 
by  the  capacity of the  canals  which  may be built,  whereas  on  the ‘I 

main  river  in  the TJnited States,  as  for  example  in  the St. Mary 
Lake,  the  eritire flow may be held,  but  in  Canada  only  that  portion 
can be caught  which  can be taken  out of the  river  by  canals  the 
capacity of which is far less than t,he flow during  the brief  high-water 
season. 

I n  the case of Milk  River  the  condition is reversed in  that  there 
are  few,  if  any, good reservoir  sites on the  headwaters,  but  lower 
down  in  Montana  there  are  opportunities  for  storage  such as may be 
utilized  in  holding  the floods. 

The  peculiar  interrelation of these  two  streams is such  that  the 
best development of the  agricultural  lands  both  in  Canada  and  the 
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United  States  depends  upon  an effective  cooperation  by  which the 
waters of the  two  rivers  may be stored or regulated. I n  the  interest, 
therefore, of the largest  development  and use  of the  arid  lands,  as 
well as of international  comity,  the trea.t,y has been negotiated, the 
underlying  thought  being of equal  division of the  water of the  two 
streams  passing  the  boundary,  not as separate  entities,  but  considered 
as one. It was  early seen that a simple  rule of this  kind could be 
readily explained  and  popularly  understood,  and  in  spite of minor 
objections  would  undoubtedly meet with  general  approral. 

Quantity of water: I n  defining the  quantity of water I should  like 
to  insert  in  the  testimony a definition  as to  what  units we  use. I n  0 
speaking of the flow  of these  rivers we describe  them in cubic  feet 
per  second;  that is, 1 foot  deep  moving at the  rate of 1 foot a second, 
but when we speak of storage we use a difierent  quantity, a quantity 
which  would  corer 1 acre 1 foot  in  depth.  An  acre  contains 43,560 
square  feet,  and,  therefore,  an  acre-foot  would be  43,560 cubic  feet. 
Now, there is a simple  relation between  these two,  in  that a cubic  foot 
per second  flowing for one  day, or 86,400 seconds,  would deliver 
86,400 cubic  feet,  which is  nearly  twice  an  acre-foot; a cubit  foot 
per second  flowing for 24 hours  equals 1.98 acre-feet, so that,  ronghly 
speaking,  you  can  multiply  the cubic feet  per second  by two  and 
get  the  acre-feet  per  day.  There is a third  unit  which  may be in- 
cluded  in  this  discussion,  and  that is the miner's  inch,  which  engineers 
have  agreed in general to abandon  except  as i t  is embodied in  State 
laws  and uses. Forty  to 50 miner's  inches are e,quivalent to 1 cubic 
foot  per second. 

The  two rivers, the St. Mary  and  Milk,  are  widely  'contrasted in 
the  quantity of water  dischnried  throughout  the  y&r,  and  also in 
the  time  and  character of the floods, the St. Mary  River  receiving 
water  from  the  melted snow and ice in  the  high  mountains.in  the 
form of a comparatively  regular  June flood, the flow  of the  stream 
ificreasing  through  Mag,  culminating  in  June,  and  dropping off dur- 
ing  July  and  August  with considerable  regularity. We  have  certain 
hydrographs or diagrams  showing for a number of years  the  charac- 
teristic  behavior of these  rivers. 

The  milk  River,  on  the  contrary, receives its water  from  rainfall 
on  the  rolling  plains or low hills  and  has  no  regularly  recurring 
spring flood comparable  to  that of the  rivers  from  the  high moun- 
tains. The floods when  they  do  occur  near  the  boundary  are of short 
duration,  rising to a thousand  cubic  feet  per second or more, and 

uickly  dropping off. Frequently  in  April,  there  has been a flood 
%ne to  the  general  melting of the snow  by the so-called  Chinook  winds. 
During  June, when St. Mary  and  similar  rivers  are ifi flood, the 

The suddenness  with  which  the occasional  floods  occur prevents 
economical  use of the water. A t  such  times  when  water is available 
it is freely  used  and  an excess turned  to  the fields. The floods, if 
of  unusual volume, may  injure or destroy  the  dams  and  headworks 
and  thus  cripple  the cnnals, so that even during  this  time of plenty 
not enough can be tnrned into the  distribution systems. The con- 
ditions  in  the  lower Milk River  Valley, because of lack of regulation, 
have been very  unfortnnnte  in  that  in  low  water  there is none to be 
had,  and  in floods frequently the headworks  are  washed  out. 

. Milk  River is often  at a low stage. 
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, Historical : The peculiar  conditions above noted of the  headwaters 
of Milk  River  being  cut  off  from  the  high  mountains  were  early 
known.  Exsminations were made  by  various  engineers to  ascertain 
whether  the  Milk  River  could be extended  westerly and connected up 
with  streams  from  the  mountains. I n  particular, Mr. E. S. Nettleton 
in  September,.1891,  made  a  reconnoissance  over the proposed  route, 
the  result  being  published  in  Senate  Document No. 41, Par t  2, Fifty- 
second  Congress,  first  session, in  which  he  states: “ No part  of the 
river  in  the  United  States receives water  draining off the  Canadian 
soil, and  the  diversion of this  water  for beneficial uses in  Montana 
rightfully belon s to  the  United  States.”  These  explorations of 
Nettleton  and su % sequent  engineers  shows  the  existence of a  practi- 
cable  project,  but  the difliculties and costs  were  then  underestimated. 
Later  surveys  demonstrated  that  water  could be taken  out of St.  
Mary  River or Lake,  carried  along  and  across  the  divide,  and  either 
dro.pped into  the  North  Fork of Milk  River or carried  on  southerly 
into  drainage  lines  which did not  enter  Canada.  Subsequent  estl- 
mates based on  the cost of the proposed  structures for   an  “al l  U. S. 
line ” show that  the  work is possible from  an  engineering  standpoint, 
but is relatively  more  expensive  than  the  alterations now proposed; 
that  is, keeping  the St. Mary  River  water  in  the  United  States  and 
not  turning  it  into  Canada. 

About  the  same  time  that  these  early  investigations  and  discussions 
were  goin  on, the  Canadian  Government  made  an  agreement or 
grant to t a e  Canadian  Northwest  Irrigation Co. conveying to this 
company, it is  understood,  about 600,000 acres of land  contingent on 
its reclamation. In’  order to provide  necessary  water the  company 
was  allowed  to  take  from St. Mary  River 500 second-feet of Iow- 
water  discharge  and 2,000 second-feet of the flood discharge. Sub- 
sequently  this  company  transjerred  these  rights  to  the  Alberta  Ruil- 
way  &.Irrigation Co., and  in  turn these became the  property of the 
Canadian  Pacific  Ritilway.  The  Alberta  Railway & Irrigation Co. 
canal,  locally  known as the  Canadian  Pacific  Railway C0.k Leth- 
bridge  system,  heads  about 5 miles north of the  internaticnal  boun- 
dary  and  has a  capacity  claimed  to be 1,000 cubic feet  per second. 
A large  area of land has been brought  under  cultivation  and  crops 
obtained  from  probably  over 80,000 acres. 

I n  the  meantime  the  growing  demand  for  water  in  the  Milk 
Xiver  Valley  in  Montana  and  the  development of the scheme for 
obtaining  more  water  from St. Mary  River,  have  aroused  great  in- 
terest  in  the  subject,  especially when it was  learned  that  water could 
be diverted  from St. Mar River  and  kept on the  south  side of the 
boundary. It was  quick 1y y appreciated  that, a s  before  stated,  the 
best result for both  countries could come, not  from  strife  over  ,the 
water  supply  but  by a broad,  mutually beneficial and  constructive 
policy  by  which  both  countries  might  obtain  the  largest possible 
use of the water. At  the same  time this  interest  was  st~mulated by 
the  fact  that on the  Canadian  side a canal was built  in 1904 from 
Milk  River,  which.  in  the  opinion of the people in  the lower  Milk 
River  Valley,  threatened  their  water  supply,  and  an  urpent  request 
was  made  upon  the  United  States  Government  and  its  departments 
to take  steps to  prevent  what  the  people of the lower  Milk  River 
Valley  regarded as an invasion of their vested  rights. A s  a result 

e 
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of that  discussion, in 1904 and 1905 various  drafts of treaties  were 
considered,  and on March 24,1908, I was  designated officially to assist 
in the,preparation of these drafts, which, as before  stated,  have pre- 
sumably been used in  the  preparation of Article VI. 

From  what  has been stated above, it is apparent  that  Article VI  of 
the  treaty  was based upon a desire on the  part of all  parties  concerned 
to fairly  and amicably  settle  what  threatened a t  one time to develop 
into a difficult situation,  and  to  do  this  by  means of some relatively 
simple  rules whose application  might  be  worked  out  in  detail in 
future  to meet the  conditions  as  they arose. The question of absolute 
or relative  equities  was  thought  to be so involved that it would be 
practically  impossible'  to  adjust  all of these  under  the  apparently 
lrreconcilable  conditions  which had developed.  Recourse  was then 
had  to  the  idea of equality as  the most  practical  solution of these 
equities. 

Equality of flow: The idea  discussed.in framing  the  treaty wps 
that  all of the  waters  which  cross  the  international  boundary m 
the  drainage  basin of the  Milk  River  and St. Mary  River  shall  be 
apportioned  equally  for use  between the  two  countries,  treating  these 
as belonging  to  one  stream,  and  then  to  give  to  esch  country in the 
aggregate  each  year  an  equat  amount of the  united flow irrespective 
of the  locality  where  this occurs. This conception,  as  above  stated, 
is easily  grasped,  and  while  many difficulties may be encountered in 
practical  operation,  yet  adherence to  this conceptlon of equality  will 
serve  as  the  final  test. 

Annual  equality:  The  period  within  which  the  waters  shall be 
apportioned  equally  between  the  two  countries is not  stated  in  the 
treaty,  but  from a reading of the  entire  article  it  is  apparent  that 
this  equality  relates  to  the  annual  discharge  and  not  to  daily  or 
monthly  aggregates.  Thus,  in  making  the  division one country  may 
.receive during  any one day  or  month or during  the flood season a 
larger  quantity of water  than  the  other  country,  but  later  in  the 
year  the  equality  can be restored so that at  the  end of the year the 
amount of water  chargeable to each  country  will  practically balance, 
and " -  each  year  will be treated  independently  on  the  basis of the 
beneficial use. 

More  than  half  from  one  river:  The  volume of St. Marv  River is 
several  times  that of Milk  River  where it crosses the  boundary,  and 
jn  studying  the  data  available  when  framing  the  treety  it  was  appar- 
cnt  that it would  not be  possible to  apportion  the  water  equally 
between the  two  countries  unless  more  than  half  should he taken 
from one  river  and less than  half  from  the  other  river  by  either 
country.  Therefore a  clause was inserted  in  order  that  there  might 
be no  possibility of a misunderstanding  on  this  point. 

Beneficial use:  The  object of the  treaty  is ohuiously to  secure 
beneficial use  of the  waters of these  two  streams for the  purposes of 
irrigation  and power. I may  add  that  it  is  nrt  with  the idea of re- 
pressing  either  country,  but  with  the  idea of stimulating  the  develop- 
ment of each  country  to  the  highest possible point.  This  object  has 
not been emphasized in  proportion  to  its  importance.  but it is specifi- 
cally  mentioned  in  connection  mit'h  t,he  way in which the  water mag 
be apportioned,  the  rigid  application of any  rule  being  subject  to 
the consideration of the  needs of each  country. The  apportionment 
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is thus  to  be  made  at  all  times  and  in  such  way  as  to afford  a  more 
beneficial use to each  country  than  would be possible if one-half of 
the  water of each river were given  to  each  country. 

Priority:  The next, important  matter  after  agreement  upon bene- 
ficial use and  equality  is  that of priority. It was  recognized. that  
because of the use of water  in  Canada  from St. Mary  River  there 
had  grown  up  under  western  conceptions  a  certain  priority  which 
entitled  the  lands  then  irrigated  to  first  call on the  availahle  water 
supply.  The  same  condition  existed  in  the  Milk  River  Valley in 
Montana,  where  early beneficial  use gives  these  lands  precedence 
over  others  which  might be irrigated  later.  This  is in  accordance 
with  the  rule  which  prevails  generally  throughout  the  arid  regions 
and which  have been incorporated  in  the  irrigation  act of January 
37, 1902, to  the effect that '( First in  time is first in  right, nnd that 
beneficial use is  the basis, the measure, and  the  limit of this. right.'' 
The  treaty  limits  the  extent of this  priority  in each case, as  has been 
gtated. to 500 cubic  feet  per  second. 

As this  matter of priorities  was  found to involve  innumerable  and 
complicated  questions of equity,  the  simple  solution  was  sought in 
the  agreement  in  Article V I  of the  treaty  ('That  in  the division of 
such  waters  during  the  irrigation season  hetween the 1st of April 
and  the 31st of October,  inclusive,  annually, the  United  States is 
entitled  to  a  prior  appropriation of 500 cubic  feet  per second of the 
waters of Milk  River "-at that  time  that was our nearest  estimate of 
the  amount of water  which  was  needed  to fill those priorities-" or 
so much of such  amount  as  constitutes  three-fourths of its natural 
flow "--in other  words,  when the  river  dropped below 500 cubic  feet 
per second, as  it  frequently  did, it was  not  desired  to  cut off all  the 
canals  in  Canada,  but  to  permit  Canada  to  take  one-fourth of the 
diminished  amount  and  the  United  States three-fourths-'' and 
Canada  is  entitled  to  a  prior  appropriation of 500 cubic  feet per 
second of the flow  of St. Mary  River, or so much of such  amount  as 
constitutes  three-fourths of its natural flow." 

To put  the  situation  in  another  way,  while  adherence is given 
. primarily  to  the  theory of equally  dividing  the  combined flow each 

year,  yet i t  was recognized that  an equal  division of each  separate 
river would  not  resnlt  in  the  greatest benefit, as one  country  might 
be deprired uf water  which i t  could  beneficially use a t  a  certain  time 
or place  and  without  corresponding  gain to  the  other  country. If 
the  Canadian  canals,  for  example,  are  better  situated  to use a t  some 
seasons  more than  half of the St. Mary  River  water  they  should  be 
permitted  to  take  more  than  this  half,  and  the  United  States  in  turn 
receive  more  than  half of the  Milk  River  water if it develops, as it 
probably ~. . . will,  that  a  larger beneficial  use can  be  enjoyed  by  such 
division. 

Three-auarter  rule:  The flow  of St. Marv  River  during  the  winter 
season is  jess  than 500 cubic  feet  per  secoid,  but  at  thax  time  there 
is little or no use of the  water  in  Canada,  and  the  Canadinn  canals 
are  practically  dry.  There is little  probability of there  being  any 
demand in the  near  future for this  winter  water  in  Canada. 

A t  or before the  beginning of the  irrigation se:lson St. Mary River 
usnally  rises  rapidly  to  a  discharge of from one thomand  to  several 
thousand  second-feet  and  falls  more  slowly  during  the  latter  part of 
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the irrigation season. It rarely  remains  for  any  considerable time 
a t  or near  the 500 second-feet  stage. It was  appreciated  that  little 
difficulty would result in assigning to Canada  a  prior  right to 500 
cubic  feet  per second. In the case of Milk  River  the  conditions are 
different. 

B4illr River  rarely  carries  during  any Considerable period as much 
as 500 cubic  feet  per second of water  across the  eastern  boundary. 
At irregular  intervals  there  are floods which  reach  to  a  thousand 
second-feet or more,  but  these  subside  rapidly. The claims to  the 
water of Milk  River  in  the  United  States  aggregate f a r  more than 
600 cubic  feet  per second, while those in  Canada  are  relatively small, 
As in  the case of St. Mary River,  the  number of days  during  which 
the  river is a t  or near 500 cnbic feet  per second are  few,  but  there are 
many  days  when  there  might be controgersy  regarding  the cliversion 
of the  relatively  small  amount of the  natural flow available for 
lands  in  Canada  and  the  United  States.  Whenever  at  rare  interval9 
there is an  amount of over 500 cubic  feet  per second, the  United 
States is entitled  to  a  prior  appropriation of 500 cubic  feet  per sec- 
ond,  and  during  the  remainder of the  year  (or  practically  most of 
the  time)  when  there is less than 500 cubic  feet  per  second,  then the 
United  States  may  have  three-fourths of the  natural flow. 

The  words  “natural flov? ” in  this connection are used  advisedly, 
because of the recognition that  during most of the  irrigation  season 
there  will be  less than 500 second-feet naturally  in  Milk  River,  and 
to  supply  the  lands  to be irrigated in  Milk  River  Valley  there  will 
be diverted a large  amount of water  from St. Mary  River  or St. Mary 
storage  reservoir. I f ,  therefore,  Milk  River,  under  natural con- 
ditions,  will be carrying 400 second-feet, the  United  States  would he 
entitled  to 300 second-feet of this  natural flow. As the flow  of Milk 
River  increases,  the  three-fourths  amount  would  gradually  increase 
until,  for  example,  the  natnral flow becomes 667 second-feet. Then 
the  United  States  will be entitIed to have 500 second-feet. 

Use of channel:  The  equal  division of waters  and  recognition of 
beneficial use, priority, etc.,  would be  of little  practical  advantage to 
the  United  States unless this were  coupled  with  the use of the  natural 
channel of Milk  River  in conve ing a  portion of the  half of the 
water  belonging  to  the  United  Jtntes.  That  is  to  say,  that  while 
we could carry  this  water  entirely  south of the  boundary,  yet, a s  
before  stated,  the cost  would  be  very  large, and  therefore  for economy 
and efficient use  we wish to  obtain use  of the  natural  channel of 
Milk  River. No valid  objection  has heen raised to such use as  tha 
channel  is  capable of carrying  a  considerable volume of water,  and, 
in fact, does  carry  during t h  floods a thousand or more  second-feet, 

The question .has been raised as to  the effect on  the  channel of a 
Eteady  flow of several  hundred  second-feet  such  as  would be derived 
from the St. Mary  Reservoir,  particularly  as  to  whether  this flow 
would  cause an erosion or disturbance of natural  conditions  such 
as have  not  prevailed  during  the  times of the  short  sudden floods. 
That is to  say,  when  the  treaty was negctiated  it was seen that while 
a short,  quick flood might  not  erode  the banlss i t  mas argued  thnt a 
continued flow might  chnnge  the  natural  conditions. To meet this 
point,  which  was believed to be somewhat  theoretical,  the  eneral 
provision  was  made  that  any  injury  resulting  to  property  in  8anado 

11398-15”2 
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&om the coiiveyance of such  waters  from St. Mary  River thvoug& 
Milk  River  should be met  by the  prorisions’of  article 2 of the. treaty: 

Methods of apportionment : The  treaty  provides  that  the measurd- 
lhent  and  apportionment of the  water  to be  used by each countrj 
shall  from  time  to  time be made  jointly by the  properly  constituted 
&kclamation officers of the  United  States  and  the  prQperly  consti- 
Wed  irrigation officers of His Ma:esty under  the  direction  of  the 
knternational  tJoint Commission. :‘he most  important  step  to be 
bken  in  the  near  fntare,  therefore, is for  tho  International Joint 
Commission to assume the  direction of the measurement and  appor- 
tionment of the  waters  to be used. hant ic ipa t ion  of such  actioii 
tke reclamaticin officers of the  United  States  hare  arranged  with 
the water  resources  branch of the  United  States Geological  Survey 
c”0 continue  and  amplify  themeasurements  which  have been carried 
en more or less continuously  since 1902. The  Canadian  irrigatioh 
aEcers,  notably  Mr. F. 1-1. Peters,  commissioner of irrigation,  have 
cooperated  in  this  work,  and Mr. Peters  has  already  published in 
liis annual  reports some of the  important  data  for recent ymrs 
There  is  little,  if  any,  change  to be desired  in  the  present  system  other 
than  that  the  joint commission shall assulne the  direction as re- 

uired  by  the  treaty  and  give  the  result  the  proper  recognition  from 
&e standpoint of the  treatfy  obligations. We need more  river  sta- 
tions,  particularly  on  those  tributaries  which  lie  to  tho  east of the 
wstern  crossing of Milk  River  and  which flow from  Canada  int,o  the 
Flnited  States. 

Mr. TAWNEY. When  were  those  measurements  that  you mere just 
apea king  of  begun ? 

Mr. NEWELL. I think  they were  begun  on  the  four  internationdl 
stations  about 1911 or 1912. Mr.  Peters cn.n correct me, if 1 am 
mist‘ ‘1 1 {en. 

n1r. MACINKES. When  the  stations were brought  together, you 
mean ? 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes, sir. 
Waterwasted : I n  carrying  out  the  apportionnlent  which  would 

riare tnken  plice  during  the  past  years  had  the proposed  action  been 
completed, it has been found  that  neither  country coilld have  used 
a;ll the  water.  During  the  days of high floods it is  not  practicable to 
&old all  the  water  in  storage  reservoirs  or  divert all of the iioods. 
Some of it must go to waste,  and  while it is possible to  apportion 
&is quantity  between  the  two  countries,  yet  the object of the  treaty 
‘was to deal  not  with  the  water  which  must  necessarily be wasted, 
because of its  erratic occurrence, Enit rather  with tlhe water  which 
could be  used as set forth  in  the lnst clause. I n  making  the  appor- 
e,ionnlent, therefore, the  operation i s  to  :I certain  extent,  simplified 
by being confined to a consideration of the  water  which  may  be used 
either by  direct  diversion or hy storage.  On  thc  other  hand,  it 
should  not  be assnmed that because one country is not  prepared  to 
ase  one-half of the  water  therefore  the  other  country  must  be de- 
prived of the USE of any portion which otherwise mould be wasted. 

Waters  occurring below boundarv  line:  There flow into St. Mary 
Riyer,  in  Canada, and into  the Milk  River.  in  the  United  States, 
RUmerOuS tributaries  vhich  do  not  head  in  the  other  country;  that 

to say, along St. Mary  River,  after it passes the  internationd 
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boundary,  there  are  numerous  tributaries  which receive all of their 
water  from  Canadian soil. and  thus  do  not cross the  boundary. It 
was  obviously  not  the  intention of the  treaty  to consider  these  streams 
in  the  equal  apportionment  nor  make  any  charge to either  country 
for the  water  which.  although  tributary  to St. Mary  and  Milk  Rivers, 
does not  pass  over  the  international  boundary,  nor  would  pass  if  not 
divided. In   the same  way, to a greater  extent,  along  Milk  River 
there  %re  numerous  shorter  streams  coming  from  the  north  which 
rarely, if  ever,  receive  water  from  Canadian  soil, p d  on the  south 
there  are  streams which  lie  wholly  in  Montana,  and  which,  coming 
from  the  south,  enter  Milk  River  but  do  not  in  any way affect the 
international  waters. The  waters  thus  contributed  to  Milk  River 
are obviously  not to be taken  into  consideration  in  the  apportionment 

This  point  should be clearlv  established RS questions  may  arise in  
the  practical  operations  and  applications of the measurements of river 
flow. 

Administrative  methods:  Under  the  terms of Article VI of the 
treaty, as above note.d, there is to be an equal  apportionment of the 
waters used by the  two  countries. I n  order  to  arrive  at  this  appor- 
tionment it, is necessary to  have  complete  facts  day by day as to  the 
amount of mater used and  available  for use in the  rivers  and  their 
tributaries,  especially at  the  points  where  they  cross  the  interna- 
tional  boundary,  and  to  have  an  aqreement  on a .few fundamentals 
which  are  not  always  susceptible of exact  determination. 

The system  when fullv developed must  necessarily I:e quite com- 
plicated,  and  to be eff'ectively carried  ont  must  have  the  nndi- 
vided  attention of experts  thoronghly  acquainted  with  all of the 
limitations. At present, however, it   is essential to consider  only a 
few of the  larger  fncts,  and for the  time  being lav aside  minor  modi- 
fications  which will later  enter  into  the  practical  application of any 
rules  which  mag  be  laid  down. 

The commission has asked for t'he  views of the  representatives 
of the  two  countries,  and  in  that  connection I would  state.  in  closing, 
that  in  my  opinion  the  action of the  International  Joint Commission 

First. Under  the  last  clause of Article VI to call  upon the respec- 
tive  Governments  to  designate  their  properlv  constituted officials. 

Second. That  when  those  properly  constituted officials have  thus 
been designated,  the  International  Joint Commission  recognize them 
as their executive officers. 

Thirtl. ~ h ~ ~ t  these  men be called upon for a report on the 
measurements  and  quantities  3lrwdy  measured  and  ;Igwed  qmn, 

.~ ancl for such  facts cc;ncerning the use of the  water  as are mlttters 
of public  knowledge  and  record. 

Fourth.  That, when  this  has been determined  upon,  they also make 
recommendations for more  measurement  stations  and  more dah,  
which must be accumulated  in  the  near  future  in  order to cnable 
executive  action. 

Fifth.  That  at  the sane time  they  make an estimate  or  budget of 
the amount of money required  to  carry  on  this  work of river meas- 
urement,  which obviously must be somewhat  expensive, and for mnk- 
ing  any  further  surveys  which  may be required  to  determine  the 
boundaries  of  irrigated  lands  and  proposed canals. 

shollld he- 
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Sixth.  That  they be authorized  by  the  International  Joint Com- 
mission, as their  representatives,  to  continue  measurements at   the 
points  which  are  agreed  upon,  and  that  they  then receive,  consider, 
and  act  upon  the  instructions of the  International  Joint Commission 
with  regard  to  the  apportionment of the  water. 

From  our  standpoint  there  is need of more  complete  data  and  lcss 
necessity in  the  immediate  future of any  apportionment,  particularly 
of the  large flow of St. Mary  River.  We  anticipate  that  for a 
number of years‘ there  will be ample  supply of water for  all con- 
cerned, and  that  during  the  present decade or  generation  there  may 
arise no qucstions w h ~ c h  can  not be ansvwed by prnctical,  well- 
informed  men  designated  as  the  executive officers  of this commission. 

Mr. GLENN. I did not  want  to  interrupt you  while you were t a l k -  
ing, Mr. Wewell, hut,  speaking  in  regard  to  those  tributaries  arising 
south of the  boundary  line  in  Mont:u~:~  and  north of the  boundnry 
line  in  Alberta, yon say  that  they do not flow into  the  United  Strltes 

. or into  Canada. You say  that those  could not possibly he tnlien into 
consideration. The  language of Article VI  is  as  follows: 

their  tributaries ( in  the State of Jlontana ant1 the Provinces of Alberta aud 
The high contracting  parties agree that  the  St. Mary  nnd Milk Rivers  and 

G;1skatchewan) are  to be treated as one stre:un for  the  gurpose of irrigation 
and power. 

.Ihew is no proriso there  saying  that  that sh:dl not apply  to 
rivers  that  arise  south or north  in  any way. It would  look to me as 
if all  tributaries were to be taken  into  consideration.  Whcre  did yo11 
get  our  construction of that? 

? d m .  NEWELL. Our  understanding of the  treaty as a whole is that 
it relates  to  the  boundary  waters  and  the  qncstions  which  have  arisen 
concerning  the  boundary  waters.  There  has  never bcen any  question 
arising  concerning  waters  which do not cross the  boundnry,  and  all 
the  ncgctiations  which  led up  to  Article V I  of this  treaty hnve COII- 
sidcrcd  only  those waters which flow acrose the honntlary or which 
would  have flowed across  the  boundary if not  interrupted. 

r ,  

Mr.  MACINNES.  Thxt, of course,  would be purely  controversial. 
Mr. NEWELL. Article VI  states: 
The high  contracting  parties  agree  that  the  St. Mary and Milk Rivers and 

their  tributaries (in the  State of Jlonttuia and the  Provinces of Alberta and . 
Sns1;atchewan). 

I read  that  as  qualifying  those  waters  which  arise  in  and  pass  from 
one  into  the  other of these States  or Provinces. The meaning of 
that  parenthetical  clause  is  to  limit  and confine the  waters to the 
boundary  streams. Of  course, I apologize for  stating  matters  which 
map be in  controversy. 

Mr. POWELL. I n  other  words,  to  boil it down, you say that  the 
Milk  River  means a portion of the Mill: River: the St. Mary River 
means a portion of that  river,  and  the  word “ tributaries”  means 
some trihtaries  and  not  all of them? 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes;  those  which  are of international  character. 
Mr. POWELL. Within  the  four  corners of the  treaty,  what  wonld 

you call  our  attention  to  which  would  warrant a limitation of that 
kind Z 

Mr. NEWELL. First, the  treaty  itself,  its  whole  context; and, sec- 
ondly,  to  this  limiting clause, ‘‘In  the  State of Montana  and  the 
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Provinces of Alberta  and  Saskatchewan,”  believing a‘s I do  that 
that  limits  this  to  the  waters  which  arise  on one side of the  boundary 
and would  pass across to  the  other. 

Mr. POWELL. That  may be  conceded on  the  other  side. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. Do I uderstand  that  you  make an  argument, Mr. 

Nemell,.upon  the  fact  that these  rivers  would be boundary  waters? 
I think  the  definition of “ boundary  waters ” would be against  that. 

Mr. NEWELL. T was  not  attempting  to  make  an  argument. I will 
leave the  argument  to  our  legal  brethren,  and I will  merely  answer 
the question  about the  treaty. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Mr. Newell, where  are  these four measurement sta- 
tions  located ? 

Mr. NEWELL. As I recall  them,  the  first is on  the St. Mary  River 
as  near  as possible to  the  international  boundary,  and  for con- 
venience, I think,  immediately below the  boundary  and  above  the 
head of the  Lethbridge  Canal.  The second is on the  North Fork of 
Milk  River  near  where i t  passes over  the  boundary  toward  the  north. 
The  third  is on the  South Fork of the  Milk  River  where it passes 
north  into  Canada.  The  fourth is on  the  eastern  crossing of the 
Milk  River, comin from  Canada  into  the  United  States. 

Mr. TAWNEY.  T a ere  are  no  measurement  stations  on  any of the 
tributaries,  then,  to  the St. Mary  River  in  Alberta or tributaries  to 
the  Milk  River  in  Canada? 

Mr. NEWELL. I n  addition  to  those  four  the  Canadians  have  a num- 
ber of stations  to  the  north  and we have  a  number  of  stations to  the 
south  on  tributaries,  but I was  not  referring  to those in our dis- 
cussions. 

Mr. POWELL. We can  get a list of those,  can we not? 
Mr. NEWELL. Yes, sir. I may  say  that  the  engineers  have  been 

meeting  and  have been checking up  their figures. We  have  prac- 
tically  agreed  upon  the  geographic  facts  which  are  shown  upon  these 
maps  that  are  presented  to you and upon  the  river flow which has 
been published  in  part by the  United States Geological Survey and 
in the  reports of the  Canadian  Government  prepared  by Mr. Peters. 

Mr. TAWXWY. Are you acquainted  with  the  extent of land  areas on 
either or both  sides of the  line  that is available for irrigation by the 
waters of these two  rivers? 

Mr. NEWELL. I n  a general may, yes;  and specifically in some 
instances  very well acquainted. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Have you  any  maps  here  that would indicate  the 
extent of those  areas? 

Mr. NewmL. We  have  not. The  areas  which may be irrigated  far 
excee,d the  extent of the  water  supply, so that  such a map wonld be 
largely a map of the  entire  valley  and  the  uplands of the  Milk  River. 
There has been brought  into  irrigation  at one time  and  another  and 
provided  with a small  amount of water an area far in  excess  of what 
may be provided  wit,h a steady flow. There  are now  claimed to be 
irrigated  many  thousands  or  hundreds of thousands of acres for 
which  there  is no dependable supplv of water. 

Mr. TAWNEY. If  that  is  the case, how do you explain your state- 
ment  that  there would be no  controversy  between  either  the  Govern- 
ments or the people for pcssihly a generation  over  the  question of tho 
quantity of the  water  that would  be  needed for irrigation  purposes? 
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Mr. NEWELL. That  point  related to  the diversion of water  from St, 
Mary  over  into  Milk  Kiver--that is to say, we are bniltling a canal 
froril St. Mary  River  to  Milk  ltiver  with  an  ultin~nte  capacity of 
about 800 cubic feet per sec~:nd. It wilLbe  completed  in  the  near 
future  to  about  half  capacity. We are completing  on  Sherbourn 
Lake a reservoir which will  help  furnish  the  water.  The flow of St, 
Mary  River  and  the  diversions  from  that  river  are so large  that 
well-informed,  practical  men  representing  your  co~nmission  could 
undonbtedly  pernut to be diverted  and  tunled over t h roqh  this 
canal  all  the  water  which  may Le rledccl for  many  years  without  the 
question of scarcity of  supply  from  the St. Mary  Eiver coming  up. 
Of course, if you apply  that  to  the question of the  lower  Milk  River 
Valley,  controversies  have  already  arisen  there  between the citizens 
and we hope  to  allay some of those  controrersies  by  the  building o i  
canals  in  the  lower valleys, but we will  not succeed in  satisfying all 
demands. 

Mr. POWELL. You were  speaking, Mr. Newell, of making  the flow 
uniform. 

Mr. NEWELL. The theory of an executive  board of two men or 
possibly  more  was  worked out, because it was  known that  the division 
pr  apportionment  must be made  from da.y to  day,  not  with a knowl- 
edge of what  will  happen  in  the  future  but  with a knowledge of what 
has  happened  in  the  past  and what are  the  conditions  as  reported  by 
telegraph or telephone as  to  the need of water  in  one  part of the 
country  and  the excess in  another  part, so there  must be a continual 
exercise of judgment tis to whether  the  waters  should be stored  here 
or diverted  there. In  drafting  the  treaty we saw no  way of meeting 
that  condition  except  by  having  an  impartial  board  appointed  under 
your  direction  to  administer  daily,  according  to  the best  lmowledge, 
$he distribution of that  water. 

Mr. POWELL. Taking  the  average season,  how many  applications 
would  there be for  the  irrigation  water1 

Mr. NEWELL. Do you  mean from  individual  farms? 
Mr. POWELL. Yes. 
Mr. NEWELL. I think  the  applications  would come rather  from 

companies. 
Mr. POWELL. Say we have  a  tract of land of 160 acres. How many 

times  during  an  ordinary season  would it be  requisite to  irrigate 
that  land? 

Mr. NEWELL. Under  dry-weather  conditions some of it, especially 
if it were  being seeded,  would demand  water  every 10 or 20 days, but 
under  normal  conditions a single  irrigation  might suffice. I f  a  warm 
wind came  on, there  would be an immediate call to  get some water 
down  to  that  particular  tract. 
, Mr. POWELL. The  effect of a complete  storage  system wo~lld be to 
increase the efficiency of the  stream  for  irrigation  from 10 to 20 times9 

Mr. NEWELL. It might  readily  do  that.  The  idea of a  storage sys- 
tem is similar  to  that of having money in  the bank-you may not 
need it, but  if  water is there on call a farmer  may proceed  on a 
reasonable  degree  of  assurance, if he  can  get  the  water  down  from 
his reservoir to  the  land  in time. 

Mr. POWELL. There are so many questions  running  into  each  other 
in this, and they  all seem  interrelated--I would  like to know if it 
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mould not be very  advisable,  indeed, to  have a joint  control of the 
storage  in some way  looking  to  the  conservation of the  mater ip t b  
district. 

Mr. NEWELL. -4s 1 Imderstnnd  it, th:lt is  practically  what  would 
,take  place  under  this  arrangement. TJnder your direction  water  witj 
the  apportioned, for csnmple, to be stored  in  the  early spring or l a b  
winter  in  th?  reservoirs  available, because  rjtherwise the  wntw wad# 
go to waste. During  the  sprina floods the  water  would be a p p o ~ ;  
tioneci LIS noted,  there  presumahy  being  enough for  summer  pur- 
poses. Late  in  the season  when the  dry  weather comes n7e assum@ 
,the  reservoirs  are full, and  then will be a. qnestion as to t n r n i r ~ ~  t b  
water  out of the  reservoirs  to  secure  the  largest beneficial use. T h 3  
if a sudden  storm comes, that could be provided for. It will rcqulrg 
men of skill  and  experience to take  charge of such  apportionment, 
,&cause it may  take a meek or 10 dags for  the  mater  to  get  from the 
reservoir at  St. Marps Lnke down to  the  lands  that need it below, 
There is storage  capacitv  on  the  Milk  River,  but  it  is a  question af 
the economics of buildi,nng reservoirs  on  that  river.  We  are  building 
bne or two,  but I am afraid  that  in  other places the soil is not  very 
well suited for  holding  water. 

Mr. POWELL. If that  be the.case, yon could, during  the  pressure d 
the flood season, take  the  waters  which  would  otherwise  go to \vast? 
and store  them  down  there,  and  take  your  quantity  in  that way. 

Mr. NEWELL. We may  take a portion.  and d e  probably shall. If 8 
sudden flood comes, say to 5,000 second-feet, and  drops off. and wb 
have a capacitv of only BOO second-feet, we can  only  have  the c a n 4  
full during a few hours,  and  the  rest above 500 second-feet  will go t9 
waste. On  the  Milk  River we have  not been able to deduce  any rule 
from  the  experience  in  the  past.  There  may come a flood in  Februar; 
and  perhaps  there  may be almost  no  water  during  the  remamder Q! 
.the vear, or ,one for a few  days onIy. 

Mr. WYVELL. I might  say here that we have  no  objection on t b  
part of the  United  Btates  to Mr. MncTnnes asking Mr. Newell any 
question relating  to sngineeri,nq, but  -if  he  purposes  to ask him an.. 
quection relating  to  the  legal aspect of the, case we would  prefer th& 
,a statement be made by me ?s to  thc  United  States view on this 
pttrticular phase of that  questlqn. We ape handicapped  to some ex- 
.bn$,  coming, as we  do, on the  invitation of the commission and nat; 
having  an?  orderly  proceeding  laid  down,  and  if a legal  discussiql 

going  to be indulged in I would  prefer  .that  our  views on th 
question  from .the legal stnndpoint be laid down. That does  not, f 
,Course, refer  to any question  which the commissioner may  ask, b 
,if Mr. Newell i$.to be examined on the  legal  aspects it might be  w'e 

:@bates .standpwnt. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Would ,this be satisfactory: To have  the  stateme@ 

( p n  behalf of the Government of the Unit.ed States completed,. a d  
then call Mr. N ~ e l l  for  examinatiop by the .representatives .of elthw 
@pvernment ? 

&fr.:MAcxNNm. - 1  would-suggest  a,combination of the  two  metho 
Jc certainly do not propose t o  ask Mr, ,New$ as to any questions?$ 
law, gr to  argue any question of law w$h ' h w ,  because I would C~P- 
talnly get beaten. I do nqt  mind argum"ng quwtlonp o€ law with .p 

,for the benefit pf the record t o  have an expression from tl1c 
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lawyer,  but I do  not  care  to  argue  them  with a layman. I would  con- 
fine  any  questions I am  going  to  put  to Mr.  Newell to questions of 
fact. I would  prefer,  if  my  friend is agreeable, to ask  him a few 
questions  on  certain  facts  which were mentioned  during his state- 
ment. I think  that would be of advantage  on a  subsequent  reading of 
the  record, so that  there  may be no  misunderstanding  as  to  certain 
facts. I do  not propose, a t  present at  any  rate,  to  embark  on any 
discussion as  to  the  negotiations  lcading  to  the  treaty. 

Mr. TAWNEY. It is the desire of the commission to first ascertain 
as f a r  as possible the  facts  that  are  material  and  which  bear  upon 
the  legal  questions  that  may  hereafter  arise. If that  statement of 
Mr. MacInnes,  representing  the  Dominion  Government, is satisfac- 
tory, we will  proceed to  interrqgate  Mr. Newell as  to  the  facts. 

Mr. WYVELL. There is no  objection  to  that. 
Mr.  GLENN. I think we could  save a good  deal of time  if we could 

first ascertain  how  much difference there is between the views of the 
parties  on  this question. Perhaps  Mr.  MacInnes  can say if he agrees 
with some of the  propositions  laid  down  by  Mr.  Wyvell. 

Mr.  MACINNES. I will  continue  my  examination of Mr. Newell: 
.To Mr. Newell.] Mr.  Newell,  you have  referred  to  the  works of the 
eclamation  Service  both  as  they  exist at   the present  time  and as 

they  are  contemplated  and  also  as  to  certain works-by works I 
would  understand  can 1s and  the  like,  and  also  to  certain  reservoim 
at the  headwaters of t R e St. Marys  River  and  on  the  Milk River-I 
should be grateful  if you  would  supplement  that a little to  make 
it clear to  our side  what  the  existing  works  are  and  what  ae con- 
templated, so far   as  canals  are concerned. 

Mr. NEWELL. The  existing  works  built  in  the  east  consist of what 
we call  the  Dodson  Dam,  on  lower  Milk  River,  located a t  about the 
middle of its course,  with a  canal  on the  north  side known as  North 
Canal  and a canal  on  the  south  side  known  as  South  Canal;  also 
nearer  the  lower  end of the  river is a second dam,  known  as  the 
Vandalia,  with  canals  leading  on  the  north  and  south sides. There 
is contemplated a third  dam  for  what we call the  Chinook system-, 
higher up the  river  above  the  Dodson.  These  three  dams  in suc- 
eession along  the river’s  course are  to  distribute  water  on  the  north 
and  south sides. To  supply these  canals  with  water,  in  addition to 
the flood waters of Milk  River, we are  building  in St. Marys  River 
Basin,  and  there  is  approachin  completion a stora e dam  at.Sher- 
:bourn  Lake,  on  Swift  Current 8 reek,  a. tributary of E t. Marys  River, 
the  capacity of which  will be 75,000 acre-feet.  There is contemplated 
in the  future a dam  at  the  outlet of the  lower St. Marys  Lake  whicb 
will  create a reservoir of about 124,000 acre-feet. I n  the official re- 

orts you  will find a number of references to storage  in St. Marys 
Eake. In   ou r  first ideas we were  very  ambitious  and  contemplated 
a high  dam,  but  later  on,  and  in view of the experience  gained,  we 
have been a little more  ca.utious about  planning a high  dam  on  the 
gravel  and  sand and clays which  occur a t  the  outlet of St. Marys 
Lake, so that me are  still  somewhat  uncertain as to  the  capacity. . We 
may build a reservoir on the lower St. Marys  Lake.  We  propose  to 
utilize  the 75,000 acre-feet  in  Sherbourn  Lake  and  probably  the 
124,000 in St. Marys  Lake,  making  in  the  future,  perhaps  within. 10 
years,  prttctically FO0,OOO wre-feet  storage. 

L 
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Mr. POWELL. The first is accessory to the second. Instead of allow- 
ing the  waters  to flow down  the  stream,  you  divert  them  by  means of 
a canal  into  the lake. 

Mr. NEWELL. No; we close the  outlet of Sherbourn  Lake  and close 
the  outlet of lower St. Mary  Lake.  The  water  from  Sherbourn L a b  
will  naturally flow down  Swift  Current  Creek  and  enter  the  diverg- 
ing  canal we are  building  along  the St. Mary  River  and across the 
divide  into  the  head of Milk  River. 

Mr. MACINNES.  That is a  storage  capacity  on  the St. Mary River 
part of about 200,000 acre-feet. 

Mr.  NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr.  MACINNEB.  The size  of your  canal I understand to  be 850 

second-feet 1 
Mr.  NEWELL.  Yes ; that is the  design ; but we are  building  the 

structures  about  half  size  with  the idea of enlarging  them  as  the 
country develops. 

425 second-feet 8 
Mr.  MACINNEB. So that  at  present it is  completed  to  the  extent of 

Mr. NEWELL.  About  one-half. 
Mr. MACINNES. And  that,  putting  that  into  the  quantitv of acre- 

feet,  would be about 25,500 acre-feet  a  month,  while  the  canal  ha8 
a capacity of 425 second-feet. 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes;  practically  that; 25,000 is a good  round num- 

Mr. MACINNES.  And  when it is completed to  the  full  extent of the 
850 second-feet the  quantity  would be about 50,000 acre-feet a 
month? 

. ber. 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr. MACINNES. I understood  you to  say  yesterday  that  the num- 

ber of months  would be four months. Is that  r ight? 
Mr.  NEWELL. That is the  irrigation season, and  the  amount of 

water delivered  through  that  would  depend on the  dam  in  the  lower 
river  and also upon  the  question as to whether we build any sub- 
sidiary  reservoirs  down  on  the  lower  river.  We are building  what 
we call the Nelson Reservoir  on  the  Milk  River,  which  may be en- 
larged  and  into  which we may  deliver some of this  water  diverted 
from St. Mary  River, so as  to  have i t  near the  land,  ready for use' 
when  called  upon. 

Mr. MACINNES. Which  were  the  four  months  you  spoke o? during 
3hich you  would carry the  water across! 

Mr. NEWELL.  Presumably we would  begin in  June  and  continue 
through July, August,  and  September. 

Mr.  MACTNNES. So that  then  your  total  requirement  for  that  canal, 
subject  to  what you have  just  said  about  building  the  Nelson  Dam, 
would be about 200,000 acre-feet. 

Mr.  NEWELL.  Approximately  that,  under  this  assumption. 
Mr. MACINNES.  As  to  the  reservoirs  in  the  lower  Milk  River  Val- 

ley,  how many have  been  constructed  and  what  are  the  possibilities 
there '1 

Mr. NEWELL. I n  the  lower  Milk  River  Valley,  the  one we have 
hepun  constructing,  the  Nelson, is under  way,  and  there  are  otllers 
desiqned. 

Mr. MACIXNES.  What is the  capacity of the Nelson Reservoir? : 
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Mr. NI~WEI~I,. I think it is Y ~ , ( W  :~CL'C!- feet. 
Mr. MacTNxm. What could it I:<? nlatle to  hold? 
Mr.  X\'EW~.:LL. Tf thr p:rc.und shows th:It, it is capable of holding 

water  economically,  the 1v.01-I< can Le rni~ecl, 8 ~ 1 ~ 1  possibly the  capac- 
ity could be increased  to !%,@OO :tcre--feet. 

Mr. MACTSSES. I ~lntlerstoc~cl  from  your repcrt  that it might be 
increased to 141.000 acre-feet. 

Mr. Kewe~r;. We  made  many  different  assumptions  as we explored 
the  ground. 

Mr. Mac:Ixx~w. It is contemplated  to  make it how much? 
Mr. N e r n ~ ~ r , .  V7e will finish i t  up  to 25,000 acre-feet  and  gradually 

enlarge  it  on  the basis of experience  gained  in  the loss of water, and 
we map  dtimately  mise  it  to 125,000 acre-feet,. 

Mr. MAG~IATII. Where  is  the  Nelson  site? 
Mr. NEWELL. The Nelson site,  which  is called in some of our early 

reports  Mud  Lake, is :Ilmost immediately  north of and  adjacent to 
what is called the  Bowdoin  Lake. 

Mr. MACINNER. What is the possible capacity of the  Bowdoin? 
Mr. NEWELT,. If we complete  the  Nelson  Reservoir,  probably  that 

will take  the place of the I3owdoin. I n  other words, there will not be 
enough  w&r  to fill both of these in  ordinary  years, so that one  takes 
the place of the  other. 

Mr. MACIXNES. What is the  storage of the  Dodson? 
Mr. NEWELL. The Dodson  storage  and  that  at  Vandalia  we  merely 

Mr. MACINNES. What  about  the  Chain of Lakes  site? 
Mr. l \ ; l a m ~ r , ~ .  That  is  up  the  river from the works proposed and 

below the  internatioml  boundary,  where  the  Milk  River crosses a t  
the  eastern crossing. It is in  a  valley,  parallel  with  the  river,  the  out- 
let of which we. have  explored  and  found  to consist largely of sand, 
and it is  very  doubtful,  under  present  knowledge,  that we will at- 
tempt  to place a  dam  there; it is  possible, although  not  verv probable. 
,Mr. MACINNES. What would you say the  capacity  would  be  there? 
Mr. NEWELL. From 150,000 to 250,000 acre-feet if the  dam  site L 

.Mr. M . ~ ~ N N E L S .  What would be the  capacity of the  Bowdoin ifl 

Mr. ~ E W E L L .  That would be 100,000 acre-feet or so; but, as I hwve 

Mr. MACINXEB. Under your present  .scheme P 
Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr. MACINXES. n u t  it could be ,taken  up as an engineering powie 

bility ? 
Mr. NEWELL. There wonld  not  be  water  enough? as I say,  to  build 

both. The  capacity of canals  that  could  be  built 1s limited as to tIw 
inlet, so that one  would  take  .the place of the  other. 

'Mr. MACINNES. What is the  lowest  point on the  Milk  River  where 
.you divert  the  mater8 

Mr. NEWELL. ?17e divert  the  water  lnst  at  the  Vandalia  site. 
Mr. MACINNES. How far above the  mouth is that?  
Mr. WEWELI,. Abont 40 miles, I think, above the mouth of the river. 
Mr. MACTNNES. What is the mean  annual flow in  acre-feet .of .h 

dams;  they  are  diversion  dame,  not  storage. 

h n d  feasible. 

.caore-feet ? 

" ~ d ,  it is taken up bv the Nelson  site.instead. 

Milk River between 'Vandalia m d  the,mouth? 
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Mr. NEWELL. That I can  not say; I am  not  sure  whether we made 
measurements  at  that  point. I think  there is nothing below Hins- 
dale. 

Mr. MACIENES. I understood  that  our  engineers  had it figured 
out  from  your  details  that  the  mean flow would be about 70,000 acre- 
feet  during  the  year. 

Mr. NEWELL. I can  not  speak as to  that; I do not  remember  seeing 
any  figures for that. 

Mr. MACINNES. You  figured  on the  Milk  River  down  to  Van- 
d a h  ? 

Mr. NEWELL. That is our lowest  point of dicersion  at  the  present 
time. 

Mr., MACINNBS. What will be the  method of sending  the  water 
from  the St. Mary  River  down  .to the lower  Milk River?  What 
percentage, for instance,  will be sent  down  each  month! 

Mr. NEWELL. That must  denend on climatic conditions. The  
theory I have  had  personally  is  that we would  have  the  storage filled 
in St. Mary  by  the  time the. irrigation  season begins. If the  Milk 
River  at  other  times  happens  to be in flood or there is good  precipii 
tation, we will  not  turn over any  water  until possibly August or 
September. 

Mr. MBCINNES. You will not  send any water  from  the St. Mary 
River  down ? 

Mr. ,NEWELL There will be no need of it, because there  will  be  no 
irrigation  required,  assuming  it is raining and the  Milk  River is in 
flood. 

Mr. MACINNES. What  ill be the  condition of your  reservoirs in 
the lower  Milk  River  Valley? 

Mr. NEWELL. We  would  endeavor  to fill them  during  the  winter 
floods or the occasional floods that may come during  the  fall  and 
early sprin . 

Mr. MAC f NNES. Would you  fill them  with  Milk  River  water? 
Mr. NEWELL. AS far  as practicable. If it were a dry season and 

the lower  river  lands  were  demanding  water, we would  probably turn 
water  out  to meet these local demands at  any  time  they  were  made. 
I f ,  however, a sudden flood or rainstorm  should come, we would 
immediately  shut  the  gates  and  hold  back  the  water  until i.t was 
demanded. 

Mr. MACINNES. How  are  the  requirements of irrigable  land  in h e  

Mr. NEWELL. That  is exceedingly  irregular. Of course,  we Can 
have some averages,  but  in  that case averages  are deceptive,  because 
no one  year  approaches  an  average condition. I n  some years therg 
is ft large  demand  for  water  to  get  the  crops  started  in April and 
May,  while  in  other  years  there is ample  rainfall  and  the  greatest 
demand  is  later  on  in  the  year. I do not  carry  in  mind  the  averages 
as  to  the  demand,  but I want  to  emphasize  here  that  conclusions 
based  on  the  averages of river flow and  demand for water  are  fa&- 
cious, because we never  have  an  average  year,  and  each  year must 
%e judged  according  to its conditions  and  not  accordmg to averap .  

Mr. MACINNES. Taking  the  duty of water  at  a  certain figure, 
what  would vou say  the  duty of water is for  these  lands in. the loww 
Milk  River Valley? 

. .  

' lower  Milk  River  Valley  divided  according  to  months? 



28 ST. MARY AND MILK HIVERS. 

Mr. NEWELL. The people of the  valley  have  asserted  that if they 
could be sure of 1 foot of water  during a season  they  could  raise a 
good  crop. 

Mr. MACINNEB.  That is! 1 acre-foot S 
Mr. NEWELL. One  acre-foot  per acre. Our experience is, however, 

that when we have  an  ample  supply  there is a very  insistent  demand 
for double that  amount. I n  other  words,  while a man  theoretically 
could  get  along  with it, practically  they  need 1, 2, and 3 acre-feet to 
meet  the exigencies. 

Mr. MACINNES. But  to  give more than is required  for  the  land is 
very  bad  practice, is it not? 

Mr.  NEWELL.  Bad  practice,  and  often  injurious. 
Mr. MACINNES.  Your  reports  set  that  forth  very  fully  from  time 

to time. I, 

Mr.  NEWELL.  And  very  emphatically. 
Mr.  GLENN. It drowns  the  land. 
Mr.  NEWELL. It not  only  drowns  the  land  and  makes it heavy  and 

sour, but it brings  alkali  to  the  surface,  and  until  that  is  washed 
out  again  the  land is practically useless. 

Mr. MACINNEB. Take one  foot  and a half  per  acre  foot  during  the 
irrigation  season  in  this  district,  as well as you can  form  an  opinion 
from  the  information you  have,  would  a  foot and  a  half  to  be . 
divided  up  during  the  irrigation  months be sufficient? 

Mr.  NEWELL. I think it would  be  very  unwise to  adopt  any  rule 
or to  consider it in  that way,  because that is a  demand  not  based on 
averages  but  on  actual need, and we must  make  provision so that we 
would  have  perhaps 25 or 30 per  cent  more  in  a  month of drought. 
I want  to  warn  the  gentlemen  present  that  any of these averages  are 
very  fallacious  and  very  misleading. 

Mr. POWELL. You think  that  the  matter  must  be  dealt  with for 
each  individual  year ? 

Mr. NEWELL. No year  will  ever  occur  in  which you will  use  an 
average amount of water. 

Mr.  MACINNES. I was  speaking of what  the  land  would  require 
on an average : how much of that one  foot  and a half  would  be 
taken  during  May,  June,  July,  and  August? 

Mr. NEWELL. Practically  the  greater  part of it might be used in 
one  irrigation if it  were a very  dry year. 

Mr. MACINNES.  What  do  the  records  say  as  to  that? 
Mr. NEWFLL. The  records vary from 25 to 40 per cent. 
Mr. MACINNES.  In  a  month? 
Mr. NEWFLL. I n  any one mcnth. 
Mr. MACIXXES. I suppose  a  table  could  be  prepared as to  that 

from past experiences. 
Mr.  NEWELL.  We  have  prepared  tables, working on averages  for 

.different  years,  but  in  preparing  these we have always been ex- 
tremely  careful  to  note  that  it  would be very  fallacious if it were 
attempted to adopt  these ns a rule. 

Mr. MACINXIEL I see that was the way  apparently  in  which  the 
difficulty  between the  United  States  and Mexico with regard to an 
equitable distribution of the  waters of the Rio Grnnde for irrigation 
purposes was  arranged. 
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Mr. NEWELL. I am  very gIad you  brought that  out, because each 
proposition of this kind has  different  conditions  and  results  and  one 
p a y  be misled by comparing  one  with  the  other. 

Mr.  MACINNES. I appreciate  that. 
Mr. NEWELL. Mexico is a dry  country  and  there is no  liability of 

rainfall  during  the  irrigation season, so that  there we could adopt B 
somewhat  arbitrary  rule because we knew there would be no rain 
during  these  months,  and we worked  out a rule  which we hope  will 
be adequ:lte. We  also  provided so that we could give  them  more in 
one  month  than  this  ratio. 

Mr. MACIXNES. One  can  quite  understand that  any  average might 
not necessarily be the proportion necessary in any  particular  venr, 
but I understood you had  prepared  percentages  from  past  experi- 
ences. 

Mr. NEWELL. I do  not  understand  that we have  prepared such 
percentages for the  semiarid  regions  where  there is likely to be 
rain. 

Mr. MACINXES. Of course it could  be  deduced from the figures 
which  are  arailable. 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes; it could be. 
' Mr. MACINXES. This  water of the  Milk  River is used of course 

unon  the  lands  in  the  lower  MiIk  River  Vallev t 
&Mr. NEWFLL. Yes. 
Mr. MacIxNEs. The  water  in  the  lower  Milk  River  Valley is not 

taken  anywhere  else? 
14,. NEWELL. No ; i t  is used in the  comparatively  narrow  tract of 

land on both  sides of the  river. 
Mr. MACIXNES. You told 11s that  the  irrigable  area  which  is  to be 

irrigated  with  the part 0.f the  waters of the St. Mary River m d e r  
~ C J W  scheme and  with  all  these  waters of the  Milk  River  Valley is 
npproximatelv 220.000 acres. 

Mr. NEWFLL. That  is our present plan. 
Mr. MACIXKES. Do you suggest  in  any way-becanse i t  mould be 

news to me if i t  is so-that that  amount could be increased? 
Mr. NEWELL. I doubt  whether we could get  enough  water t o  in- 

crease it nntahly,  unless we get a very  greatly  increased  duty from 
economy of water  in  its use. 

Mr. MACINNES. Apart  altogether  from  that,  where could you get 
the  land? 

Mr. NEWFLL. There is plenty of land along the  river. 
Mr. MACINNES. Plenty of land; yes. But where is the land that 

could  he  irrigated?-hecanse,  accordmg to yonr report, I nnderstood 
you had investigated  that,  and it is stated  that  your  irrigable  area 
is 21 0,000 acres. 

Mr. NEWELL. r e s ;   t h a t  is the land we have covered under the 
present  compil  a t' ion. 

Mr. MAZCTYSES. Bllite so; hut where.  if a t  all, is there  any  addi- 
tional land that could be added to  the  irrigable  area. 

Mr. NEWFLL. T3v extending  the  canals on the  present  grade  farther 
easterlv  to  corer  hiaher  and  hirher  ground. 

Mr. MACINNES. Which  would  involve, of course,  higher  and  higher 
expense? 
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Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr. I~ACINXES. But  in  your  reports up to  date it is not  suggested 

that  there will be a larger  amount  thgn 219.000 acres. 
Mr. NEWELL. That is limited  by  the economic conditions  and the 

water. 
Mr. MACINNEB. You  spoke  about  the  existing  water  appropria- 

tions  in  Montana;  those  were  made up, as I remember, in  yonr  re- 
port,  by  the  requirements of certain  companies  on the  Milk  River, 
and some on  the  tributaries of the  Milk  River,  and  my  understandina 
is that  an  agreement mas made between the  Reclamation  Service an8 
those  companies  under  which you undertook  to  provide  the  water 
for  their projects. 

Mr. NQWELL. Yes;  there is an  agreement  with  the  larger  irrigating 
canal  companies. 

Mr. MACINNES.  Xeading  from  your  seventh  annual  report,  thnt 
agreement  appears  to  hare been dated  8th  May, 1908. Is that  cwrect? 

Mr. NEWELL. I think  that is correct. 
Mr.  MACINNEB.  And  the  details  with  regard  to  these  companies 

and  their  requirements  are, I presume,  correctly  set  out in  that 
Seventh  Annual  Report of the  Reclamation  Service a t  pages 108 and 
109 ? 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr.  MA(.TXKES.  I)enling  with  the  Milk River-are there  any  claim- 

ants  outside of these  projects  which you  took  over? 
Mr. NEWELL. Yeq;  there  are  claimants.  The  agreement  with the 

company  included  only  the  principal  large  canals  with  which me 
probably  would  have  dealings.  We  did  not  refer to  any of the  in- 
dividuals  directly or  indirectly affected. 

Mr. MACIXXES. What  do you mean by “affected”?  These  indi- 
vidmls would be taking  from  the  canal  svstem? 

Mr. NEWXLL. Not  necessarily;  they  might  take  directly  from the 
river. 

Mr. MAC~NXES. What  other  claimants  are  there  on  the  Milk  River 
proper,  outside of the  Reclamation  Service,  that  have  to be  considered 
in  this  matter? 

Mr. NEWELL.  There  are  first,  any  claimants  who  may  have  built 
shorter  canals  and who have  never  pnt  the  matter  on  record  thnt 
these  canals  have been built.  They  would  claim  under  Montan:t 
laws  as  having  completed  and  put  the  water t o  use. There  are 
others  who  have filcd under  Montana  law,  and of whom we have 
record. That is, the  United  States  has  claimed m y  additional 
water  which  is  not  already  claimed by these  prior  appropri  a t‘ Ions. 

Mr. MACINNES.  You  put  in a  general  claim? 
Mr. NEWELL. Yes;  and  there  are  constmtly  being received in  the 

General  Land Office additional  applications f o r  desert  lands whosz 
requirenlents  depend on diverting  water  from  the  river or its tribu- 
taries, so that  the  matter is an  extremely  complicated one. We  have 
endeavored so far  as we can t o  ascertain  the  aggregate of theso, 
claims  and we have  them  in 10 large volumes. It is almost  impos- 
sible to tell where  these  claims  begin or end. 

Mr. MACINNES.  From  what  was said at  Washington, I understooti 
that  what  was  contained  in  these 10 large volumes was  with  regard 
to the feeders. 
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Mr. NEWEU. Both  the  feeders  and  the  river  itself.  The diver- 
sion of water  from  the  feeders wodd. ta.lce it out of the  main river 
to a corresponding  extent. 

M.r. MACINNES. Prom  the  memorandum  sent  to  us by Mr. Conner, 
I gather  that  what  had  to be considered  outside o t  your  project 
amounted  to 500 acre-feet  only on the  Milk  Xiver  proper;  can you 
tell us as  to  that? 

Mr. NEWELL. No. 
Mr. MACINNES. While it may  have  the  appearance of being  in- 

volved  in  great possibilities, as a matter of ract  there is no serious 
probability on tne  Milk  lilver prc;per of any  claim  other  than your 

Mr.  NEWELL  We  have  endeavored to  ascertain  and consolidato 
the  larger  claims  and  let  the  smaller  ones  take  care o t  themselves6 

Mr. MACINNES. You  are  not  troubling  with  the  smaller clalmsY- 
Mr. NEWELL. We  are  not now considering  them. 
Mr. M A C ~ N E S .  Can  any  one  give. us an  estlmate of what  they 

amount  to1 
Mr. NEWELL. 'I have  no  doubt  that Mr. Conner  could; I am  in- 

formed it is about 15 second-feet outside  the  large canals. 
Mr. MACIBNEY. You  spoke  as  to  gauglng  stations  and you men- 

tioned  four new stations  which  have been erected. 'I'hose are, af 
course, exclusive of stations  which  had been erected in  both aoult- 
tries  at  different  points  on  the  river  system? 

Mr. NEWELL. k es; those are  the ones in  which we were  particularly 
interested  and  to  which I have  given  most  thought. 

Mr. MACINKES. You seem to  lay some stress  on these four  stations 
in 1912; are yo'u aware of the  manner  in  which  they  were  estab- 
lished P 

OWXI. 

Mr. KKWELL. I do  not recollect of any  particilar  manner. 
Mr. MACiNNES. It appears  from  the  correspondence  on  the  mat- 

tar-I would  like to l<now if you  have  any  doubt  on  the  subject- 
that  with  regard  to these four  stations  established  in 1918, these 
four  stations  are  as  follow~s:  One on St. Marys  Iiirer, one on  thz 
Nmth  Arm of the  Milk  River,  one  on the South  Fork of the  Milk 
River,  and  one  on  the  Eastern  Crossing of the  Milk  liiver. At  all 
of these  points,  with  the  exception of the  Eastern  Crossing of the 
Milk  River,  there  was  already  in existence I understand  a  &uging 
station by each  country,  the  stations  being  within  a'short dlstance 
of each  other. 

Mr. NEWELL. I do  not  recall  that,  but we were  particularly  inter- 
ested  in  getting a nleasurement at  these  points  where  the  river 
crossed  the  boundary. 

Mr. &L\cAxxm. And  there was  :drcady  in  existence  a  station by 
each  country on its own side of the  boundary,  within a short dis- 
tance of the  other  statim? 

Mr. NEWELL. That may be so. I do  not  recall it. 
Mr. MACINNES. I have  here a letter  from Mr. George Otis  Smith, 

whom I understand is the  head of the  United  States  Geological  Sur- 
vey, and  writing  to Mr. Peters,  January, 1912, which seems to be the 
commencement of this  matter,  he  says: 

cooperative urmngenlent for t-he mnintenrlnce of n single  station to take the 
As the r~~corcls of the  two  stations  are  practically  the  same, I believe  that II 

place of the two sht.ions would lead to t l t e  advantage of your department and 
the United States Geological Survey. * 
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The same  situation  existed  with  regard to the second station, on the 
North  Branch  and  South  Branch of the  Milk  River.  The  only  sta- 
tion  that could in  any way be called a new station  was  the  one a t  the 
eastern  crossing of the  Milk,  on  which  there  was  already a Canadian 
gauging  station. So that seems to  have been the  state of facts  under 
which  these  four new stations were  created. I did  not lsnow whether 
you were  seeking  to  suggest  that  these  were  the  only  four joint sta- 
tions  that  would be necessary, or that  they  had been erected for some 
new purpose  or  something of that kind. I did not  quite follow the 
intent of your  evidence on that. 

Mr. NEWELL. What I said  was  concerned  with  these  four  stations; 
but,  in  addition, I think  the  International  Joir?t Commission slloulll 
establish  other  stations,  particularly  stations  on  the  rivers  which 
flow from  Canada  into  the  United  States,  such as the  Frenchman 
Miver and  others, so that we will have  a  complete  record of the 
water  which  does  pass  over  the  boundary. 

Mr. M-ACINNES. I n  tiny event,’ regardless of any  question between 
us,  you think  there  should be these  stations  which 1 have  referred to? 

Mr. NEWELL. Certainly ; I regBrd  these as of the  utmost  impor- 
tance. Of course, others  could be established at  other points. 

Mr. &IAC~NNES. I n  any  event,  the  station  on  the  eastern  crossing 
of the  Milk  River  would be desirable  for  measuring  the flow, or the 
amount of water  let  into  the  Milk  River or the St. Mary  in tile 
United  States? 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes; we should  have a continuous  record  from  the 
time  the  water  enters  the  canal  in  the  United  States  until  it  returns 
into  the  Milk  River  Valley in Montana, so as  to Itnow what  has be- 
come of the water. 

Mr. I’mvELL. Is there  much  variation in the  precipitation from 
year  to  year? 

Mr. NEWELL. A great  variation, as in  the case of all  semiarid  coun- 
tries. The  range  from  year  to  year  is  extraordinary, so that  in some 

ears  there  may be almost  complete  drought  and.  in  other  years 3 

Eeavy rainfall,  and  the  appearance of the  vegetatlon  would be like 
that  in a humid  country. , 

Mr. POWELL. What references  have  you  on  that  question? 
Mr. NEWELL. It is published in  the meteorological  records of both 

countries,  and we appeal  to  that. It is there  in  tabular  form,  and me 
did  not  attempt  to collect any adclitionnl information  from  that col- 
lected by the  Governments themselves. 

Mr. MACINNES.  What  rights  has  the  Iteclamation  Service  acquired 
in  the St. Mary and Milk Rivers  and  their  tributaries  in  the  State of 
Montana?  Have  these  rights been acqnired  in  accordance  with  the 
provisions of the  State  water  laws? I n  the  first place, tell me, where 
are  these  filings  made,  and how long  do you think  these  rights  will be 
protected  by  the  State of Montana  against  subsequent  applications? 
Mr. NEWELL. These  are  involved  legal  questions and I would ask 

that Mr. Bien  may  answer  them, because they  appertain  to  the  legal 
situation. 

Mr. MAGINNES. Quite so. O n  the  question of fact  as  to  what 
water  rights  you  hare acquired I refer to the  Seventh  Annual  Report 
of the  Keclamation  Service,  and I see that I have  here  an  extract 
which it may be more  convenient to put stmioht in thp  record if you 
mill be  good  enough to look at it and see that it is correct. 

e 
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Mr. NEWELL. So far as I can  recall,  that  is  a  correct  extract from 
the  report, but I have  not  seen it for some years; I believe it is sub- 
stantially what is contained in  the  report.  The  following is the 
report  referred  to: 

I n  the  seventh  annnnl  report, p:~ges 108 :lnd 109, this  feature  "Atljustment of 
water  rights " is  considered at Icngtll anf l  tllc following excerpts :~ rc  nliltle. 

At the time  authority mns given,  in hfarch, 1908, for construction work on 
this project it was understood tha t  a general  adjutlication of the  rights of all 
private canals would be necessary in  ortler to  tletcrlnine  the  order o f  their 
priorities,  hut  more espccitrlly to estitblish the n t l l o n n t  of water  to which each 
ditch was entitletl. I n  order to avoid the c~xprnsr and delay that n.ouIt1 neces- 
sarily  result from an ntljudication of thesc rights by snits at 1:11v, as \vel1 as 
to  expetlite  the construction of the Dodson system, cert:rin :lrticlrs of n#rccItl(~IIt 
were drawn under date of May 28, 1908, betweeen vtlrious privclte cnn:tl ( : O ~ I -  . 
panies  in  the  vicinity of ( X i n o o k  ant1 Harlem, partics of tlltl first pnrt, the 
LTpper and, Lower Milk River Water Users' Associ:Itions, p:trtics of the second 
part, ancl the  United  States,  party of tikc third  part. T l h  agrcclnellt pro-;irles 
in cffect that as soon : ~ s  an atlequntc supply of wxter sh:lll be provitletl i n  the 
channel of Milk River from St. Mary Itiver or c.lstwhcre tlK? owntTs o f  the 
various  private cnn:rls will execute :tr~cl tleliver to the TJrtitetl St:ltcs con~cy:~t~ec?  
of their present water rights, cl:uns, tlitchcs. reservoirs. :1t1(1 struct1uc.s cwvtxring 
lands  in the Milk River Valley susceptible ot' irrig:ttion frolu the proposed 
Covernrncrlt irrigfttion  systems. * * * The :tgrm*llwnt f'nrtlwr proYitlw tlt:lt 
the present nppropriations of the ditch  owners shnll be nle:lsurtvl by tlte mnsi- 
mum  caparitics of their  ditches as estinmtctl ill the fol1owin.L: t:!ble, and t11:;t 
the  acreage  hitherto  irrigntetl  sl~all  be  considered those S ~ I O W I I  011 tho tfll)lc. 
______~ "" ~ ~ "" . ~ ~ .  ~ ~~ ~ . ~ "" ". 

I 

Company. capw,il ('an:'] y. 1 1rrjgote<]. 
". . "" . . ~ _ _ _  " . - 

Fort Balknap  Canal & Irrigation Co.. 
19 1,400 
73  ~ 7,820 Naw Harlem Irrigslion Co.. 

Paradise Valley Ditch & Irrigation ('0.. ............................................ 
130 , 10,900 

Cooks Irrigation Co.. ............................................................... . x  ' 2,700 
Matthewson Uitrh Co.. ............................................................. 28 1 715 
West Fork Ditch (10.. .............................................................. 13 ! '800 Fort Belknap  Indian  Canal.. ....................................................... 11!5 .......... 

: , I  c.-/L. ! .4cria. 
............................................... 

Winters,  Anderson  Ditch Lo. ....................................................... 1!4 I 440 
........................................................ 

."--I_ 

Total ......................................................................... 
450 I 25,755 .~ ~ ~ ~ . 

Of that  total  quantity of 450 second-feet  the  first  four  and  the  last- 
named  ditch  only  draw  water  directly  from  Milk  River;  the  others, 
in a  total  quantity of 91 second-feet,  draw  from  tributaries,  leaving 
359 second-feet  only, as prior  appropriations  from Milk Kiver. 

Mr. MACINNES. What can you tell us, Mr. Newell,  with  regard to 
the  situation of the  tributaries of the  Milk River to  the  east:  Battle 
Creek,  Lodge  Creek,  and  Frenchman  Creek? 

Mr. NEWELL. What I can  tell you there is wholly from hearsay, 
because I have  not  personally been over  these  streams  to  any  con- 
siderable  extent.  That  question  might be asked  of  Mr. Comer or 
some of our  men  who  have  been  there. 

Mr. MACINNES.  What  can you tell  us  as  to  claims.on  these  tribu- 
taries  other  than  the  one by the  Reclamation  Servlce? IS that a 
matter I had  better  ask Mr. Conner about? 

Mr. NEWELL. I think so ; I have  not  gone  into  that  question,  per- 
sonally. 

Mr. MACINNEB. One of your suggestions was that  the officials 
appointed by the  Government should make  recommendations far 

ll:S98-1"3 
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more  measuring  stations. Is that  a  matter which  would  not be dealt 
with now  before  this  commission ? 

Mr.  NEWELL. My thought in Asking that  suggestion  was  this: The 
executive  work of, the  International  Joint  Commission  in  this  matter 
it, involved  and  difficult. It depends  largely  on  individual  judgment 
and experience, and  that  as soon as these men are  appointed  they 
naturally  will  have  more  or less  knowledge of it, but  they  will  desire 
to have  more  knowledge  still,  and  their  recommendations, from my 
standpoint,  would be more  vduable  to  the  commission  than  any we 
could  agree  upon  here  at  present,  although  that  is  not  an  important 
recommendation ; it is  simply  in  the  course of the  ordinary  procedure. 

Mr. MACINNES. I suppose  they  could go on  record  here  as  to  what 
they  thought it wise to  recommend. 

Mr. NEWELL. We could do that on  both sides.  We arc  doing  this 
largely  on  hearsay,  because no one of us has been over  the  entire  situa- 
tion  very  fully. 

Mr. MACIBNES. Is  it suggested  on  your  side that new gauging  sta- 
tions  or  the  now-existing  gauging  stations  should be made  joint B 

Mr. NEWELL. I think  they  should be made  joint, especially those  at 
the international  boundary. 

Mr. MACINNES. What  about  the  other  points! 
Mr.  NEWELL. For myself I think we could  safely  say  that  the 

measurements  made by the  Canadian  authorities  on  their  side  would 
be accepted by us in  the same way that  the measm'ements  made  on  our 
side  would be unreservedly  accepted by them. Of course, that is 
simply a suggestion of mine. 

Mr.  MmlNpJEs. *knd it mould be subject,  in  the  emnt of dispute, 
to verification in  the  proper  manner? 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr .   Mac1n .x~~ .  Tlmt is your  present view, is it? 
Mr. NEWELL. That  is my present view. 
Mr. MAC~NKES.  Although, if it were  thought  wise  to  have  any 

tidditional  joint  stations, so that  there  might be no possibility of dis- 
pute,  you  would  not object Z 

Mr. NEWELL. Not at  all;  that would  be, as I understand it, left 
wholly  to  the  International  Joint  Commission. 

Mr. MACINNES. You made  a  suggestion,  Mr.  Newell,  in  the closing 
part of your  statement, as to a survey of irrigable  land ; what is in- 
tended  to be covered  by that i! 

Mr.  NEWELL.  Simply  to  supplement  the  information,  which we 
have now in  rather a general  form,  and  to  answer  that  question  which 
was brought  up  by  one of the commissioners,  as  to  what we knew 
about  the flow  of the  rivers,  the  lands  which  would be irrigated,  and 
other  information. I suggest  our  present  information  on  that  should 
be collated  and  amplified by the  agents of the commission from  time 
to time, as necessity  arose. 

Mr. MACINNES. I would think  that  might  involve  large  expense. 
Could  both sides put  in  the  information  they  have  already,  and  then 
it could be decided  by  the  commission, or other  competent  body, as to 
whether  any  additional  work  and  expense  was necessary. 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes;  that is my  idea;  namely,  that' these representa- 
tives of the  commission  would  gather  together all this  information, 
each from  his own  country,  and  then, if it were  deemed  necessary to  

s 
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supplement it, to  prepare a budget  for  that  expenditure,  and  the 
International  Joint  Commission  would  then see to it that  that work 
was  done if they  considered it necessary. 

Mr. MACINNES.  But first to  collate  existing  information,  rather 
than  to  go  out  and  get new information,  which  might  be  in existence 
already. 

Mr. NEWELL.  Oh,  certainly, it is  assumed  they  would  not  repeat 
any  result  already  available. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  On  that  point, I may  say  that we shall be able to  
give  to  the  commission a very  large  amount of information,  but  you 
might,  perhaps,  have a different view of the  subject as to  what is 
required. 

Mr.  NEWELL.  Undoubtedly, men will  hdve a different view of it. 

Mr.  WYYELL.  Mr.  Newell, you spoke of several  reservoirs  in  the 
lower  Milk  River  Valley ; you  mean that most of them  are  within  the 
range of possihility ? 

Questioned  by Mr. WYVELL: 

Mr.  NEWELL.  They  are  within  the  range of possibility. 
Mr. WYVEI,L. As to  the  actual  plans  which  will  in  all  probability 

be consnlnnltlted, only  one  reservoir will be built? 
Mr.  NEWELL.  Under  the  present  plans; yes. I might  explain for 

the  record,  that  up  to  the  last  year  the  reclamation  fund  has  been 
at  the  disposal of the  Secretary of the  Interior,  and  he could  make 
his  plans  reaching  forward indefinitely. But  under recent  legisla- 
tion  the  reclamation  fund  is  made  available  only  by  annual  action of 
Congress, so that  the  Secretary of the  Interior  can  plan  ahead  only 
for one year  at  a  time,  and  therefore  his  intention  may be, or the 
intention of the  authorities  may be, changed  from  year  to  year  by 
action of Congress  or  by  a  change of the  executive  itself. 

Mr. TAWXEY. That relates  only  to  the  appropriation of the money 
available for reclamation  purposes; it does  not  change  the  law  with 
respect to the  Secretary of the  Interior  authorizin the work. 

Mr.  NEWELL. The  Secretary  recommends it to  8ongress  and  Con- 
gress  authorizes it. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I know,  but  he  makes  an  estimate of the  amount of 
money  he  will  need for the  next fiscal year and  Congress gives or 
withholds  the  amonnt  estimated  for.  The  authority  under  the  re- 
quirements of the  law  vested  in  the  Secretary of the  Interior  to 
make  plans  is  not affected at  all  by  this  change  in  the  matter of 
making  the  money  available for  carrying  out  the  plans,  as I under- 
stand it. 

I 

Mr.  NEWELL. That is  correct. 
Mr.  WYVELL. What  reservoir  is  planned  to be constructed  in  the 

Mr. NEWELL. The so-called  Nelson Reservoir is the one  which is 

Mr. WYVELL. How much  storage  will  that  provide? 
Mr. NEWELL. 25,000 acre-feet. 
Mr.  WYVELL. And  the  extension  to 75,000 or 100,000 will  not  take 

immediate  future? 

being  konstructed now. 

.” 

place for how long? 
Mr. NEWELL.  Depending  upon  the success. I f   the  present reser- 

voir holds  water,  and  the soil is found  to be of such a character a8 
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to justify it, we can  greatly  increase  the  storage  during  the  next 
5 or 10 years. 

Mr.  WYVELL. I n  other words,  ypu are planning to give  the  reser- 
voir a practical  test  with  its  capacity of about 25,000 acre-feet  before 
extending it ? 

Mr. NEWELL.  Yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. And  the question of expansion  will  depend  upon 

Mr. NEWELL.  Yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. Mr.  Maclnnes  brought  out  something  about the canal 

which  will  permit some 400 second-feet to be diverted  from  the St. 
Mary  to  the Millr Eiver, and I \\-ish you woultl explain  in  detail,  with 
such  knowledge as you  have,  about  what  proportion  would  actually 
be passed during  the  irrigation season, bearing  in  mind  your  sug- 
gestion  that it would be dependent  largely  on  the  physical  conditions 
of the  district. 

Mr. NEWELL. The theory  that I have  had,  and  which  would be put 
into  practical effect by the  representatives of the commission,  would 
be to  begin to feed into  the  Milk  River  Valley  as  early  in  the  year 
as possible enough  water to fill the  lower  Nelson  Reservoir,  if it was 
not filled by  the  Milk  River floods. Then,  as  the season  advances, 
if it is wet there would be little  water  passed  over  the  divide. I n  a 
dry season in  the  lower  valley  prohnbly  the  canal  would be run  to 
nearly its full  capacity,  subject  to  fluctuation  in  accordance  with the 
rainfall  and  the  demands of the  farmers  in  irrigating  their  crops 
and  in  wetting  the  ground  for  the plow. 

Mr. MAGRATII. When  would  you  anticipate to  open that canal, in 

the success with  which  the  reservoir  holds  the  water. 

~ 

the  spring? 
- 

Mr. NEWELL. It deaends  on  when  the snow is off of the  mound, 
but I suppose we coufd begin to  get  water  over  possible in  Muarch or  
in  April.  If it is an open  winter we could  possibly run even  earlier 
than that. 

Mr. WYVELL. So that  in  the course of four  months 400 second-feet 
would  not be passing  all  the  time? 

Mr. NEWELL. That  would be a very  exceptional  condition, of run- 
ning  the  canal  full  steadily. My thought  would be that it would  run 
full  for a few  days a week, and  then it could be reduced  and  increased 
again. 

Mr. VC'YVELL. If the person  who  had  control of the  letting of the 
water  into  the  canal received word  from  the  Milk  River  Valley in 
the  summer  that  there  had been  a rainfall he would stop the canal 
immediately. 

Mr. NEWELL. Immediately ; yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. And if there hac1 been a small  rainfall  you  could 

stop it to a smaller  extent. I n  other  words,  you  would  work  the 
thing  on a practical  basis  as  the  needs of the  country  to be irrigated 
demanded, so that while the  capacity  would be 25,000 acre-feet  per 
month  for  four  months  there  would  not, of course, arise  any  such 
contingency  which  would  require  that 400 second-feet to flow. 

Mr. NEWELL. I have  not  imagined  any such contingency. It is 
imaginable,  but  our  experience  in  handling  canals  shows  that we 
very  rarely  have  full flow. 

Mr. WYVELL. Will you please  explain in  your own  words  again 
the  condition  in  the lower  Milk  River  Valley  with  regard to  the 
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amount of land  to be irrigated?  Mr.  MacInnes seems to suggest that  
there were only some 200,000 acres of land  that could  possibly be 
irrigated. As a matter of fact,  there  are man)’ millions of acres of 
land  in  the  valley,  are  there  not? 

Mr. NEWELL. The possibilities are  large,  and  the  demand  may 
exceed the  water  supply  probably  available, as  shown  by  practical 
experience,. Ry these  dams across the  river  and  extension of canals 
the  irrigated  area  may be continued  almost  indefinitely  as  water is 
made  available  and as the  lands  are used. While  we  have said 
225,000 acres, that  is merely an expression of opinion,  and  there  will 
be a large  amount of land  which ma.y ultimately be irrigated. 

Mr. MAGRATIX. Are you  speaking of lands  within  the  Milk River 
Valley Z 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr.  MAGRATH. What  is  the  length of the  valley? 
Mr. NEWELL. My recollection is that it is about 300 miles. 
Mr.  MAGRATH.  And  how  wide? 
Mr. NE~ELI , .  It averages  from 2 to 5 miles, roughly. 
Mr. WTVELL. Is the  population  actually  increasing  in  that  country? 

Assuming  that  the  price of farm  lands would  rise, it would be pos- 
sible to  irrigate some of these  other  lands a t  a  profit,  based  upon the 
future  value of the  land. 

Mr. NEWELT,. That  has been our  theory. We consider that  as  land 
values and  stock  values  increase  there  will be improvement,  and  there 
will be methods of irrigation  adopted  which  to-day we regard as 
impracticable. That is the  history of a country of that  kind. 

Mr. WyvE:Lr,. I n  other words:  you first  irrigate  the  lands  which 
are easiest and cheapest to  irrigate? 

Mr. NEWELL.  Yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. And  then as a second proposition  you  take  the  lands 

Mr. NEWELL. That  is  substantially it. 
Mr. W r v ~ r . ~ , .  I want  to  make it clear to  the commission about 

these  reservoirs  in  the  lower  Milk  River  Valley ; it is not  contem- 
plated  building :my more  reservoirs  until  after  the Nelson Reservoir 
has been given a fair  trial, even a t  its suggested  capacity. 

Mr. NEWELL. We rnust demonstrate its success a t  25,000 feet,  and 
then we mnst go to Congress and ask for money to  enlarge it to. say, 
125,000 feet. That will  probnbly be a matter of a number of years, 
because nw must show the  importance  to  the  country  and  then con- 
vince Congress  that  the  expenditure  should  be  made  in  that  par- 
ticular place. 

Mr. WYVETJ,. And  the  present  developments of the  country  would 
not  warrant  the  establishment of any  reservoir  other  than  the  Nelson 
Reservoir  within  the  next  10  years. 

which  are  more difficult to  irrigate? 

Mr. NEWELL. Not  in  the  near  future. 
Mr. MAcIr\.r\iE:s. ITave you a map  showing  the  irrigable  area of 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
(Map  produced.) 
Mr. n’~rer ,~.  11s 1 understand it, the bnly  suggestion  that the 

Reclamation  Service llas to offer the commission at this  time,  with 
regard to  intern:ltion:ll gauging  stations, is that  they be established 

220,000 acres ? 
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on three of the  important  tributaries  that flow from  Saskatchewan 
to the St. Mary. 

Mr. NEWELL. That is my theory. 
Mr. W~var,r, .  That  is  the  only  suggestion  you  have  to  make? 
Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I f  any  gentleman  representing  the  State of Mon- 

tana  or  the  Provinces of Sask:ktchecv:tn and  Alberta, or if any gen- 
tlemen  representing  private  interests  desire to ask Mr. Newell any 
questions  bearing  on  this  matter,  he  will be rcacly to answer  them 
now. 

Mr. KELLY (attorney general of Montana). For tho  inform' 'L t '  ion 
of the comnlission, I would like  to  have Mr. Newell enlarge  upon  the 
proposition of the economic rec1:un:ttion of 1;1ntl :1s it no\v exists, 21s it 
has esistctl, say, for tlle last 10 or 20 y e w s ,  a 1 d  :IS it nlny esisl 10 or 
20 yeu.s hence. In o t h r  \vo~&,  Mr. M:~c111nes, representing  tho 
Can:Ldi:m (iovernrnent, brought oL!t the idea th:lt from the ecouomic 
standpoint nom it \vas IjossitWe only to irrigahe about 220,000 acres 
in the  Milk River Valluy. I would suggt:st that  Mr. Newel1 s h o ~ l d  
enlarge  upon  that fro111 the  standpoint  that 20 years ago wh:Lt \vas 
considered out of the question is now being done, a d  that 20 years 
or 40 years  in  the  future it is possible t h t  I t  will be just as economic 
to  irrigate  the  entire  Milk  Iiiver Valley as it would be  now to irri- 
gate  this  quantity  which  has been mentioned. 

I would state  that when the  reclamation  act  was  passed  in 1902 
we  had  pretty clearly in  mind  that it would  not  pay to irrigate  land 
a t  a higher  cost  than $20 an acre. Since  that our ideas  have 
expanded,  and we have  actually  built canals-not in  Montana,  but 
in States  to  the west-tllat h v e  cost upward of $100 an acre. What  
may happen  in  the  next 10 or 20 years we are sufficiently optimistic 
to  form  our own  conclusions upon; h t t  with  the  increased  population 
and increased  value of 1:tncls in the last 10 years, should it continue 
for the  next 10 years, we may argue  that 10 or 20 years hence water 
will be stored and diverted to lands at a cost of several times that 
which  would  be  regarded economically  feasible at   the present  date. 
It is for you,  gentlemen, to use you own imagination  on that;  I do 
not need to  enlarge  upon  that. 

(The commission took recess for luncheon.) 

The commission  reconvencd at  the  expirntion of the recess, all  the 
members being  present. 

Mr. 7 ' a w x ~ ~ .  Gent len~m, we will no\v proceed. If there are any 
others  here wvho desire to :mlc Mr. Newell any  questions  for  the pur- 
pose of eliciting frlrtl1t.r information on this snbject, they will be 
given a n  opportunity to  do so now. I f  not, Mr. Wyvell can proceed. 

Mr. W Y V E I L  I f  t he  commission please, Mr. Kelly, the  attorney 
gene~*nl of I\iIont;rna, has to leave to-night. I ~ v o ~ ~ l c l  suggest  that  he 
be invited  to s t a k  1 1 0 1 ~  what he has to  say on the subject. 

Mr. TAWKEY. Very well, Mr. Kclly, the commission would be glad 
t o  hear you at  this time. 
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OF MONTANA,  HELENA, MONT. 
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Mr. Po~v~m,. Then,  it is  doing away with  the  old common law by 
which the riparian :t1)l)ropri:~tor downstrea~n i s  entitled to the flow 
untlistulhxl in quanlity  and q l d i t y  ! 

Mr. KI.:LLY. Pes, sir. 
Mr. MI(:x~\uJX. What  statllte do you consider in  Montnna  as con- 

stituting a priority? 
Mr. KELJ,Y.  l h e  sttltute defines how  a  location  may  be  made;  that 

is, by  posting  a  location at  the  point of diversion  and  recording it 
and the cununencenlent of construction  withm a certain  number of 
days mC1 the complet,ion of the system  with  reasonable  speed,  as 
well  as the  actual  application of water  to beneficial use. A man  gets 
no right to the water at all,  but  only to  thc use of it. When  he  does 
not use it, it must be allowed to  go  down  the  stream  to  the  other  man. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. The  water  must be applied  to beneficial use? 
Mr. KELLY. Yes; you get  no  right to the  wnter a t  :dl, bu t  rather 

a ri  ht  to use it. I&. P ~ J ~ E I , L .  lit common law, of course, a riparian  proprietor 
would  have  the use for domestic  purposes  and also for purposes of 
watering  his  cattle  aril  all  other  incidental  farm uses. As I under- 
stand you, that is n statutory extension of the common-law right 
vesting  in  the  riparian  proprietor as an antecedent to  the  land? 

Mr. KELLP. Yes. 
Mr. MACINNES. May I ask, Mr. Kelly,  whether  the  laws of Mon- 

tana on the subject of irrigation  are  compiled?  Has  Mr.  Mahon a 

Mr. KELLY. I presume you wodd  find them  in  the  report of the 
State engineer. I will  have a copy of that  report  forwarded  to you. 
You  will  find  them,  however,  in one chapter of the  statutes, so they 
can be referred  to  nnd  incorporated  in  the  record, if  you  desire. 

Mr. TAWKEY. We  have  the  Montana  statutes  here  in  the  library 
in this  building, have we not,  Mr.  Kelly? 

Mr. I<ELLY. I do  not know. I will rnalre an inquiry regarding it. 
Mr. TAWKEY.  The  library of  the coarl; of appeals is here. Is 

Mr. K m L Y .  Ko ; we are in  the  seventh  district. 
Mr. POWELL. I-Iaye you a  publication of them as a consolidation? 
Mr. KICLLY. They  are  in one chal)tcr  in  the  consolidation of the 

Mr. POWELL. Yon hac1 l)etter  send a copy of that  chapter to the 

Mr. KELLY. 1 will al*r:tnge to t l o  that as soon as I get home. 
Mr. MIGKAUJ,T. &Ire. lielly, does y011r statntt. prcvall ogninst an  act 

of Congress ? 
Mr. KELLY. As to  water  rights  within l\iIont-ana it  does;  that is, 

between  private  interests  within  the  State. 
Mr. TAWKEY. I nnderstand, Mr. Belly,  that  the commission has a 

full  set of the  statutes of Montana  in  its oflice at  Ottawa. 
Mr. WYVELL. Mr.  Belly,  you have alreatly  explained  with  great 

clearness the i1nport:mce of the hcneficial use-that is, the  actual 
application of the waters to  the land-and hov  the  administmtivo 
off'cers of Montana  and  the  courts deal with  prsons who claim to 
have beneficial use where it, appe:ws that  they  have  not  actually,  in 
fact,  applied  the  waters.  Will you Irinclly explain  what is generally 
done  in  those  cases? 

copy ? 

Montana  in  the  eighth  circuit '1 

Revised  Ytatlites of 1907. 

secretary  at  Ottawa. I (lo not  think we ha\-e it there. 
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Mr. I*;EI,LY. Of  course,  water  rights between p r i n t e  parties aro 
adjusted by decrees of court hnsed upon  proof.  On a small  stream 
there  might be 15, 20, or 30 diflerent  farmers. Some actually  might 
have  joint  canals  and  others  wonld  have  their  own  individual  canals. 
I n  presenting proof each  sick or  each  individual  interest is repre- 
sented :tnd presents  proof of the  data of the location. In   t he  early 
days of the  history of water  rights we did not  hare  statutes  govern- 
ing  the  acquiring of rights.  The  court  recognized  the  right's of 
priority even before  statutes  were  passed  in  the  Western  States. A 
man  presents proof not only as to  the  date of his appropri a t' ion- 
when he  got  his  canal constructed-but  also as  to  the  amount of 
water which he uses. That is generally based upon  the  acreage 
actually  irrigated,  together  with  physical  conditions,  which  deter- 
mine how many  second-feet of water he  needs  for  his  particular  tract 
of land.  The cowt will  then  enter a decree giving  John  Jones 100 
second-feet of water  or 500 second-feet of water  as of (late of 1865. 
Dick  Smith gets 200 second-feet as of 1875, and so forth  on down. 
Now, then,  the  man  with  the  oldest  right has a right  to use all of the 
water  in  the  stream up to the  amount of his allowance  by the decree 
of court. He  has  the first  right  to  the  water.  Although  he  is  lower 
down  on  the  stream,  he  can  require  the  other  fellow  who came in 
later  to  let  down  water  to  give  him  the  extent of his allowance. 
After a decree is entered  out  there  the  law  authorizes  the  court to 
appoint a water  commissioner for  the season. That commissioner is 
furnished  with  a  copy of the decree and  with  instructions  from  the 
court  to  deliver  the  water to  the  various  parties  according  to  the 
decree. If Rill  Smith  has  the  prior  right  to  the use of 100 inches of 
water and he  is  not  using it this week-he is cutting  his  alfalfa  and 
not  irrigating-he is compelled to  run  that  water  downstream, so 
that  the  other men  may use it. I n  other  words,  he  has  not  any  right 
to the  water by virtue of the  fact  that  he  gets a prior  right  to it in a 
decree, cxcept  :IS to the 1lse of it. A man does not  get  any  right to 
the  wxter a t  all. H e  sinlply has a right to use it, a n d  when  he i s  not 
wing   i t  the other  fellow's  right comes in  according  to  his  date of 
priority ant1 (late of appropriation.  That is the  statute  law in 
Montana. 

Mr. POWFLL. IIrlt : I t  wn1mon law thew is no right of property 
in the mater itself? 

Mr. RI':I,LY. No ; that is  true. 
Mr. M r c s , \ o ~ ~ ~ .  Po11 say i t  W:IS by cnstom first, and then  the CIIS- 

tom was rectrgnized by statute? 
Mr. ICELLY. Yes. The cmrts in  the  early  days  in  Colorado  and 

California recngnizetl that  riparian  rights were not  applicable  in  an 
arid cormtry  where irrigation wts necessary,  and  that  irrigation 
rights  must he recognized. 

Mr. WYVELL. Does the  court  sit i n  equity  in  consitlering  these 
things or with a jnry? 

Mr. RmLxI .  The,y generally  try tllem without a jury.  The  parties 
have  not  a  right to a  jury.  Sometimes a court  may call a jury to  
make sperinl findings n s  to  facts, hut  they are not binding  upon  the 
court. 

Mr. W ~ v e ~ r , .  Assuming  that a man  claims 25 second-feet; that  
some  man  who is later  in  time  and would  be  entitled to  that  water 
if he were  using it claims 15 second-feet;  and  that  they  go  into  court 
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and  the  preponderance of proof is that the man  claiming 25 second- 
feet is using  only 5, the  court  would, of course,  compel him to  give 
up his  right  and  actually  allow  the  water  to flow to  the  next-man? 

Mr.  KELLY.  Yes; :mtl the tlecree would fix his  right not, to 25 
second-feet,  but rather  to 5,  if that were all to apply  to beneficial 
use. The cmwt ~vo111cl give him  just  exactly  what he had applied, 
although  his  record  might show an  appropriation of 25 feet,. If he 
actually does not  tdce  the  water  out ol‘ the  riyer and docs not use it 
on  the  lantl, he does not  acqtlire :my right. 

Mr. 1LII( :NAum. Tho tlccree wonld  give him  the  maxinmm  amount 
which  he  ever  applietl to k)cncficial use? 

Mr. KELLY. Yes, sir.. 
. Mr. WYVELT,. Not  thc  nlasirnnm  amount. 

Mr.  MIGSAULT. I 1lntlerstsrnd Mr. Kelly  to say that if he c’an show 
that  in  the  past lle ha:; applied  a  larger  qllantity,  then  the  decree 
would recognize his right  to  the 1:lrger (plantity. I may be mistaken, 
but  that was my  nnderstanding. 

Mr.  KELLY. If I get your point, a man  might  in 1913 be irrigating 
a section of land. I n  1915 if he did  not p l m t  tllat  land, he mould not 
lose his  water  right hecanse he did nct 11se it  that  particular  year. 
H e  gets as milch water as he has :dual ly  acquilwl  by  applying it t o  
beneficial use. 

Mr. WYVELL. But in the  year  that he is not  applying it to bene- 
ficial w e  he  must allow it  to PO bv to  the  next 13erson. 

Mr. KELLY. Yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. So that  the wortlx “beneficial use,” so to  speak, are 

‘2 ./ 

the  important  consideration  which  the  courts  are  always,  co,nsirlehg. 
Mr.  KELLY. It is  the  test of a man’s water  rights nlways. 
Mr. WYVELL. And  that  is  the  limit of his  rights? 
Mr. KELLY. Yes. 
Mr. MACIKNE~. Mr. Chairman, if I may  in  the same way ask the 

indulgence of the commission, I wonltl like to call Mr.  Mantle,  the 
depnty  minister of agriculture, of the  Province of Saskatchewan. 
The Saskatchewan  Legislatnre is in session at  the  present  time,  the 
minister of agriculture  is on the sick list, and it is  very  important 
that  Mr.  hiantle should return  to  Eeginn  this  afternoon. 

Mr. TAWNEI-. You may call  Mr.  Mantle. 

STATEMENT OF A. F. MANTLE,  DEPUTY  MINISTER OF AGRI- 
CULTURE,  PROVINCE OF SASKATCHEWAN,  REGINA,  SASKATCH- 
EWAN. 

bfr. M,\(.IsxIix M I - .  M;lntle, yon  re the  deputy 111iniste13 o f  agri- 

M r .  M . \ X T L E .  Yes. sir. 
Mr. M.~cIK;~\.I<:s. How long have you heltl that  position? 
Mr. I~,\XTLE. For f i v t  wars. 
M r .  A’L\(-Txxm. I untlerstarltl that you are allthorized to state 

to  the r.omrnission the views of the  Province of Sasl<:~tcllen.un in 
connection  with  the subject matter now before  the cwnunission? 

culture of the  Province of Saskatchewan? 

Mr. AI.\XTI,E. “ c s .  
R h .  R l ~ d x s ~ s s .  Jjrill you \)e, good enough to  state  those views. 
Mr.  &Earj~r,r~ I might say, gentlenlan, that, as no do1ll)t nlost of the 

members of the commission tire aware, in  the  three  prairie  Provinces 
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of Canada  the  right  to  and  the  ownership of the  lands  and  other 
natural resources, including  the  control of the waters, are  not vested 
in  the  provincial  governments  as  they  are  in  the  other  Provinces, 
but  they  are vested in  the  Dominion  Governlnent.  They  have  never 
been  passed  over to  the  provincial  governmcnts.  On  that  account 
the  government of the  Province of Saslcatchewan  has 110 specific 
interest  in  this  matter.  However,  there  are  a number of citizens of 
Saskatchewan  aifected one  way or  the  other, and for  that reason 
the Crovernmcnt, is interest,c.d in  this  matter as in  any  other  that 
affects the  welfare of its citizens. 

Mr. Pon-mL. Is the Dominion right  simply  a  property  right or a 
propclty  right  acconqanietl  by :I legislative right '1 

Mr. PIIBNTL~.:. I thir\lc i t  is simply :I property  right  which  remains 
with  the  Donlinioll bec:~use it  has never been passed over to  the 
I'rovincos. On  that account the  provincial  governnlent of Sasltatche- 
wan is' perfectly well satisfied to leave this case absolutely in  the 
hands of the 1)ominion  counsel  and  the  Donlinion  authorities, so I 
shall  not  have i o  take up  the  time of the conlmission at all beyond 
stating  that  fact,  and also  possibly I nlight be permitted  to  state  the 
further  fact  that  in our judgment it would be to  the  interests of the 
residents of southn-ester11 Saskatchewan,  the resicle!lts dong  the  
Frenchman  River,  Lodge  Creek,  and  Battle  Creek, If this  matter 
could be settled  amicably  within a reasonable  degree of time  in 
order  that  the worlts that  will be  necessary to enable  those  waters t o  
be used to  the  greatest possible advantage  may  be  proceeded  with. 
It is quite possihle that  private  capital would have  to be  secured. 
It is quite possible  also that  provincial  legislation  would  have  to be 
secured. For those  reasons 1 he Saskatchewan  governnlent is inter- 
ested i n  having  the  matter  determined wit.h as little  delay  as possible. 

Mr. TAWNEY. To what  extent  are  the  waters of the  rivers  you  have 
named  being  utilized now for  irrigation  purposes? 

Mr. MAKTLE. I should  have to  refer yon to'the  irrigation oflicials 
of the Dominion Cfovernment. A11 these rights are recorded by 
Government officials and  not  in  any  degree by the  provincial officials. 

Mr. POIYELL. Have you used this technical  term, " prior  appropria- 
tion," in your country ? 

Mr. M A X T L E .  There is no legislation  dealing  with  irrigation  what- 
ever, so that  the  term does not occur in  our  statutes  at  all. 

Mr. WTVELL. Mr.  Mantle, have you ever  personally  visitcd  the 
valleys of the  Frenchman Wiver or Battle  Creek  and  Lodge  Creek? 

Mr. MAXTLE. No; I have not, visited  any of them. 
Mr. WYVELL. From  pcrsonal knowledge,, then, you do  not know 

how  many  acres of l a r d  are  actually Ileing Irrigated  in t.hose valleys, 
a0 you! 

Mr. MANTLE. No ; I do not. 
Mr.  WPVELL. H a r e  you m y  records with you that show tlle  amount 

of land  that is actually  being  irrigated? 
Mr.  MAKTLE. No ; those  records  are  Dominion  (;owrnment ~ ~ c o r t l s ,  

and, I have  no  doubt,  are  available. 
Mr. W ~ V E L L .  You spolrc of some irrigation wor~Bs on tl!e various 

streams.  Have you the  data as to the works controlled by the Do- 
minion  oficials on  those s t r e a m ?  

Mr. &IANTLE. Pes; I belieye a statelrlent  will be made in the course 
of the  hearing  on  that  point. 
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* Mr. WYVELI,. Mr. Chairman, it seems that  after Tyorking several 
hours  the  engineers on the  part of Canada and persons connected 
with  the  Geological S u r ~ e y ,  part~icularly Mr. Stevens,  have been 
able  to  agree  on  certain  data. If the commission  desires, we would 
be glad  to  have Mr. Stevens  furnish  that  data  with  regard  to  stream 
flow which  they  have  agreed on. 

Mr.  TAwNm. Very we,ll; we will  henr Mr. Stevens now. 
Mr. WYVELL. I might  add  that  there  is  other clatn that mav come 

in  later  that  has  not been agreed  upon. 

ST&J!EMENT OF G. C. STEVENS, OF THE  GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, 
WASHINGTON, D. C. 

Mr. WPVELL. Mr.  Stevens,  will  you please give  your  full  name  and 

Mr. STEVENS. My  name is G. C. Stevens,  Washington, D. C. 
Mr. WYVELL. You rzre in  the Geological Survey? 
Mr. STEVENS. I am  in  the Geological Survey. 
Mr. WYVELL. How long  have  you been in the Cieological Survey? 
Mr. STEVENS. Seven  years. 
Mr. WPVELL. Were you in  the  (io\wnment service  before that 

Mr. STEVENS. I was  not. 
Mr. WYVELL. Will you please explain  the  character of the  work 

gou  have been doing  in  the  last seven  years! 
Mr. STEVKNS. My work in  the Geological Survey has been in  what 

is known  as  the  Water  Resources 13ranch of that service. That 
branch  does  the  stream  ganging of that  organization. My vork  there 
has been the  compilation  and  analysis  and  separation of these data 
for  publication  in  the  reports of that service. 

Mr.  WWELL. Kow, Mr.  Stevens, will you in  your  own way explain 
to  the commission the  data  with  regard  to  the flow of the  streams at  
t,he international  stations that you haw been able to agree upon 
with  the  other  engineers Z 

Mr. STEVENS. Gentlemen of the commission, previous  to  coming  to 
this  meeting we had compiled in  our office the stream-flow records 
at  the  various  gauging  stations  that  have been maintained  in  these 
waters  by  our  own  Government  and also those m:Lintaincd by  the 
Dominion of Canada. 

Mr. TAWNIW. Mr.  Stevens,  will you state whether  the  data you have 
there  respecting  t,he  stream flow 1s taken  from  gauge  readings  that 
are  maintained  jointly  by  the  two  Governments,  or  from  gauge 
readings  that are maintained by each  Government  independently of 
the  other, or both! 

address? 

time ? 

Mr. STEVENS. I have  both,  sir. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Will  you  give  the  location of the  gauge  and  state 

whether  or  not it is maintained  jointly  or  independmtly, so that  the 
record  will show what  gxugings  you are referring to! 

Mr.  WYVELL. For the sake of the  record,  unless it is going  to be 
submitted, in  the  form of n blue  print  later,  he  might  give  the 
monthly f l o ~ ,  or ~vould your  honors suggest thnt it would he better 
to  have a  blue print  showing  that  sulmitted? I refer  to  the  figures 
which  make up  the final  averages,  etc. 
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Mr. TAWNEY. He  had  better  give those, arid then we will  deter- 
mine  afterwards  whether or not it is  necessary  to  incumber  the 
records  with  the  blue  prints. 

Mr. STEVENS. As I stated,  previous  to  attending  this  hearing we 
had  compiled these records  from  our  own  publications  and also from 
those  at  hand of the  Canadian  Government.  On  arriving  here we 
found  that  the  engineers from the  other  side  had also  compiled  these 
data,  and so we agreed  upon  a  conference  to discuss them  and see 
where we agreed  and  where we differed. Concerning these  records, 
we found  that we agreed  substanti:dly for the  records  at  stations  at 
which we were  both  interested.  There  were one or  two  stations  at 
which we decided it would be better  to  put a slightly  different 
interpretation  upon  the  records  which  were  compiled. I have  made 
some recomputations for two  stations.  Those  which I have  recom- 
puted since yesterday  are  the  two  stations  near  the  boundary  line on 
the St. Mary  River  and  on  the h4ilk River. 

Mr. MIcNAur,T. What  are  the names of the  stations? 
Mr. STEVENS. The  station  on  the St. Mary  River  has been known 

as the St. Mary  River  at  the  international  boundary  line,  and  it  has 
also been known  as St.  Mary  River  at  IGmball. It is lmown now 
as St. Mary  River  at  Kimball,  and  is  being  operated, I believe, as one 
of the  joint  stations  at  the  present time. The  United  States  had 
maintained  a  record  near  this  point  at  the  station  which  they called 
international  boundary  from  about 1902 to 1912. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Jointly 1: 
Mr. STEVEXS. No ; that WRS an  independent record. For  the  years 

1913 and 1914 the  records  were  obtained  jointly at  the  station  known 
as  Kimball. I n  our conference  yesterday we had  decided  that these 
two  records  at  the  international  boundary  and at  Kimball  should  be 
combined in  order  to  get  the best record possible at  that  point.  We 
included  in  this  combination  the  records  for  the old station;  that, is, 
the one at  the  boundary  line,  from  the  years 1905 to 1908 and  from 
1909 and 1911 to 1914 at  the  Kimball station. 

Mr. MAGRATI-I. Row far  are those stations  apart? 
Mr. STEVENS. Those  stations  are 5 or 6 miles  apart.  The  compnta- 

tions I have  made  for  the  total run-off at  this  station  from  the com- 
bination of records  that we agreed  upon  yesterday gives the  mean  an- 
nual run-off as 720,000 acre-feet. That  is  equivalent to a. mean flow 
for the  year of  990 second-feet. I n  the  same  manner we examined 
the  records  for a station on Milk  River  at  the  eastern  crossing, also 
known as the  Milk  River at the  international  bqundary,  or  Spencer’s 
ranch.  Records  have been obtained a t  this  point  by  the  irrigation 
officials, beginning  in 1909, I believe. During 1913 and 1914 this  sta- 
tion  was  operated  jointly  by  the  two  Governments.  The  records at  
this  point,  however,  were  not  complete  during  the  year,  the  records 
being  lacking  for  the  winter  months, so we decided  to  consider  the 
records  from  the 1st of April  to  the  end of October.  Making  compu- 
tations of the flow for  that  period I have  obtained an average run-off 
in  acre-feet of  88,900. That  is  equivalent  to a mean  flow  of 209  sec- 
ond-feet for that period. 

Mr. TAWNEY. How far  is  the  eastern  gauge,  where  the Milk River 
flows from  Alberta  into  Montana,  from  the other- 

Mr. STEVENS. I am  not  prepared  to  state  that. 
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Mr. TAWNEY. You do  not  know  the  distance? 
Mr. STEVENS. I should  say it is 150 or 200 miles, but I am  not pre- 

pa'red  to  say definitely. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I want  to  know  the  distance  between  the  gauge at 

Milk  RiTer,  where it crosses the  boundary  into  Canada,  and  the  other 
gauge,  where it flows from  Alberta  down  into  Montana. 

Mr. STEVENS. I could  not  state  that distance. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I understood Mr. Newel1 to  say  that  there were  two 

stations  on  the  Milk  River,  one  where  the  Milk  River crosses the 
boundary  into  Alberta  and  another  where  the  Milk  River flows out of 
Canada  down  into  Montana. 

Mr. STEVENS. Yes,  sir. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I want  to  get  the  distance  between those two  stations. 
Mr.  WYVELS,. I think it would be conceded that  there  are  three  in- 

ternational  sta.tions  on  the Milk River. As the  Milk  River flows over 
into  Alberta  it comes over  into  two  forks,  and  there is a gauging  sta- 
tion  in  each one of these forks.  Then  there is still a  third  station  at 
the  eastern crossing. 

Mr.  MBCRATH. I t  was the one at  the  eastern  crossing  that  was just 
mentioned,  was it not? 

Mr. WYVFIL  Yes; I was going  to  ask  Mr.  Stevens, if he  did  not 
have  the  figures for  those two  crossings  where  the  river  goes  into 
Alberta. 

Mr. STEVENS. I h:kve those figures, but I have  not  made  the com- 
putations c m  them since, our conference  yesterday. I can  give  the 
approximate  figures on them, if that is desired. 

Mr. TAWNEY. They  tend to show the  variation, if any,  between 
where the Milk River flows into  Canada  and  where it flows out of 
Canada  into  the TJnited States. 

Mr. STEVENS. I have  tabulated figures for the  South  Fork of Milk 
River nt the  point Imown :IS Croffs Ranch.  That is  in  the  United 
States: a few miles south of the bonndary  line. That, I understand, 
is one of the  joint  stations. 

Mr. W Y V E I ~ L .  May I suggest  that if there  is n possibility of get- 
ting  them  with  more accuracy, with  the idea of getting  still  more 
accurate  information, these  gentlemen  might  confer  further, if it 
meets  with  the  approval of the  commission. I did  think  it well, 
however, that  Mr.  Stevens  should  read  into  the  record  the flow by 
years  upon  which  his  mean flow was based at each of the  two cross- 
ings,  respectively. 

Mr. M l d N m s .  And also  by months. Of  conrse, we can put it 
into  a  tabulated  statement  later. 

Mr. TAM~NEY. If you can  get it in  a  tabulated  statement, it will 
save  much  time. 

Mr.  WYVELL.  Suppose, Mr. Stevens, you give  just  the  years,  then, 
a t  this  time. 

Mr. STEVENS. The first  value  which I gave for the  station  on St. 
Mary  River, 720,000 acre-feet, is based  on  records at  the  station op- 
erated  by  the  United  States  from  September, 1902, to December, 
1908, excluding  January to April, 1903, and  Jhnuary, 1904. 

Mr.  MACINNEB. Did you  make  any  allowance for those months? 
Mr. STEVENS. Those  months  then  were  taken  care of in  the  monthly 

averages for January,  February,  and  March, etc. 
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Mr. MACINNES.  You  made allowance, you'mean? 
Mr. STEVENS. Those  months  would be given  the  same  weight as 

the effect where we do have  records. 
Mr. WYVELL. After you  give  the  year,  would  you  mind  putting 

the amount of the  mean run-off for  that  year,  making  all  your  allow- 
ances ? 

* Mr. STEVENS. The  other  value  which I gave  for  the  Milk  Kiver 
at  Eastern  Crossing is based upon  records for the  months of Sep- 
tember  and  October, 1909, from May to October, 1910, and  April 
to October for  the  years 1911,1912, 1.913, and 1914. 

Mr. TAWXEY. It is  suggested that when you have  your  computa- 
tions made :Ind agreed upon  that you submit  these  groupings for 
the  record, if that can he done. 

Mr. $TIWEPI'S. Yes,  sir. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  Mr.  Stevens,  yon  said  that  those  figures  were 

compiled from  certain  publicntions  from  the  United  States  side  and 
from  the  C;tnadian  side.  What  arc  the oflicial names of those  pub- 
lications? 

Mr. S ~ e v m s .  The  United States publicntions  are  for  the  years 
1902 to  date,  and  are known  as  the TJnited States  Geologicd  Sur- 
vey Water  Supply  Papers. 

Mr.  MACTKNES.  They  are  printed  reports, I presume? 
Mr. STEVEPI'S. Yes,  sir. 
Mr. MACTXNE:;. How often  are  they  published? 
Mr. Smvms.  There is one report  published  for  each  year. 
Mr. MACINPI'ES. For each  calendar  year? 
Mr. STEVENS. For each  calendar  year. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  What  are  the  names of the  Canadian  reports to 

which  you  refer? 
Mr. STEVENS. They  are  the  reports  on  the  progress of stream meas- 

urements. 
Mr. MACIKNES. Do the  publications from the  United  States  side 

contain recorcls of all the  gauging  stations  in  existence  on  the  Milk 
River  system  in  Montana,  as  well.as  the  particular  ones  that  you  have 
referred  to Z 

Mr. STEVENS. Yes;  for  the  stations  maintained  by  the  United 
States  and  Montana. 

Mr.  MACINNES. Do those  publications  contain  records of those sta- 
tions as well as these that you  have  referred  to  just  now? 

Mr. STEVENS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MACINNES.  Have you got a similar  estimate or average of 

Mr. STEVENS. I have  not,  in  the  form  that I gave  for these stations. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  But  have  you  got it in  the  form of averages  for 

Mr. STEVXXS. I have  the  monthly  averages; yes, sir. 
Mr.  MACINNEB.  And  you  can  let  us  have  those,  too? 
Mr. STEVENS. Yes. 
Mr.  MACINNES. If you  would be  good  enough'to  do  that, we could 

then go over it with  the  Canadian  engineers. Has that been done  yet? 
Mr. STEVENS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MACINNEB.  You  have  gone  over  with  them the ones to  which I 

those  stream flows from  those  other  stations! 

the  month  and for the  year Z 

am referring? 
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Mr. STEVENS. Yes,  sir. 
Mr. WITELL. Mr.  Chairman,  Mr.  Conner, of the TJnited States 

Reclarntion  Service,  is here. IIe has  studied  certain  phases of this 
situation. If tho comlilission cttres to  invite him, I would he very 
glad  to ask him some cpstions. 

STATEWENT OF B. M. CONNER, OF THE  UNITED  STATES RECLA-, 
MATION SERVICE, WASHINGTON,  D. C. 

Mr. Wnxm. Mr. ("onnw, will you plense give yo11r full nanlc and 

Mr. CONXEH. I<. &I. Conncr, engineer in the, TTnitetl States Xeclama- 

M I . .  ST,IG\T:SS. lJon- long  have you I ) w n  cmplogecl as such  engineer? 
Mr. CONNEK. I h:t\.e heen with the 12ecd:unation Service since 1904. 
Mr.. WYVELL.  Were you in the (hvernlnent mploy before 19041 
Mr. CONNER. No, sir. 
Mr. W n m , r J .  What h a s  been the  chnrncter of your wo!*k since 

1904 ! 
Mr. CONNER. Preliminary  investigations  in  construction  work  and 

in connection  with  the  locations  and surreys of ditches,  and  the con- 
struction of the St. Mary  Canal,  in 1908 and 1909, and also a project 
for  the  Fort  Peck  irrigation  system,  in  Montana. 

Mr. WYVELL. You  have, I take it, made a study of irrigable  areas 
and such  kindred  matters,  have you not? 

Mr. C O N N E R .  Yes,  sir. 
Mr. Wyver,r,. You  have  personally  visited  the valleys of these two 

rivers,  have you not? 
Mr. CONNER. I have been over the  greater  portion of the  line of the 

St, Mary Canal  from  out  in  the St. Mary  River  to well  over toward 
its  joining  with  the  Milk  River,  and I have been over a portion of 
the  Milk  Eiver  in  the  neighborhood of Dodson, the Nelson Reservoir, 
and  the  Vandalja  irrigation.in  the  eastern end. 

Mr. WYVELL. Will you  kmdly  submit  to  the  commission  in  your 
own way  the  facts  which  you  think  would be of assistance to  them  in 
their  work  in  this  investigation? 

Mr. COXNER. I would  much rather answer  questions. I have  not 
any  particular  speech  made  up  on  that  line.  There  is  only  one  point 
that I thought of that may have been possibIy misconstrued,  and  that 
is the iden of the  irrigahle  area  in  the  Milk  River  Valley  and  the 
application of the  water  that we desire  to  obtain  from  the St. Mary 
River  in  Montana.  This is not a question, as I understand  it,  that 
is of more  vital  importance  to  the  Reclamation  Service  than it is  to 
the  entire  settlers  covering  an  area of perhaps 12,000 or 14,000 square 
miles in  the  Milk  River Valley. Just  at  the  present  time  there  are, I 
conservatively  estimate,  perhaps 200,000 acres of desert  land  entry 
pending  patent  in  the MllIr River  Valley,  depending  upon  the  water 
supply.  An  investigation has been made  to  find if these various 
desert-land  entries  have sufficient water  for  their use. If a sufficient 
supply  could be made  available  at  the  eastern  crossing of the  Milk 
River  into  the TJnited States,  then  the  storage of the flood waters 
upon  the  numerous  tributaries of the  Milk  River  could be carried on 
and a large  area of land  irrigated  on  the benches, or, you might say, 

present  employlncnt ! 

tion Service. 
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in  the valleys of the tributaries. I would  place this land RS being  the 
more  desiralde  land  in  that  part of the  country. A great  portion of 
it is already  settled. That is about  the  only  point  that I had  in  mind. 
If there  are  any  questions  to be asked, I will  endeavor  to  answer  them. 

Mr. Smm You  spoke of 150,000 acres of land  that  are now in 
pr?cess of  patent. Is there  other h n d  there  that  is  patented  and 
1rrlg:ltt.d C 

Mr. CONNER. There is. I figured  out  to-(lay  that  there are about 
8,000,000 acres of land in the Mill; 12iver \#valley. The country is 
becoming  very rapid1.y settled. In the investigation  that v e  have 
just  recently  completed we found  something  like 2,300 :Ippropriations 
upon  the  various  tributaries  to hlill; r\iver within  the [Jnitecl States, 
and of that  number  about 900 were actually using water. Tl’c were 
not  able to determine  the  nlmloer who had actually  patented  land, 
but a large area, 1 should say perhaps two-thirds of them, h:d actnally 
received patents. Of cowse there  was also n large nmnber of reser- 
voirs  in  operation  performing several thomanrl acre faet of wxter 
each gear. 

Mr. SANIIX. Then  the 150,000 acres was pr:lctjically only one-thi1.d 
of the land irrigated on the  tributaries? 

Mr. COKNER. I would not  say, Mr. Sands,  that  they were irrigated. 
They  are  partially  irrigated, or in so far as  water  supply is matle 
available some of the w:tter supply  being  nppropriated se?.c?ral 
times  over. We have  not  any  estimate or any  data availablc. bat I 
would  say that  there  are 300,000 or 400,000 acres of land ac i~~a l ly  in 
the  desert  land  entries. 

Mr. MACINNES. Mr. Comer, you spoke of the tributzwies o f  the 
Milk  River.  Were  these  any of the 1:lrper tributaries,  s~tch as 
Rattle Creek, Lodge  Creek,  or  Frenchmans  Kiver, or n.erc yo11 
speaking of the  feeders? 

Mr. CONNER. I was speaking of all  the  tributaries cf the Milk 
River  within  the  United  States between the eastcwn crossing of the 
Milk  Riyer into the  United States and down to about G l a s g o ~ .  

Mr. MACINNES. NOW,  taking  the  tributaries of the Milk which 
head  in  Canada-that is to  say,  Lodge Creek: I3att)le Creek, and 
Frenchmans  River  and Rock Creek-what did yon find there as to 
the beneficial w e ?  I think  you  gave a menlorandurn  to our dikers 
on th  t oint. 

Mr!&NNER. That  should  not be taken as a court  decree,  but only 
as an idea of the  actual  amount of water  that would be used if it. 
were  available,  depending  upon  the  acreage of land  that  the  various 
farmers  were  actually  trying to irrigate. 

Mr. MACINNEH. Well, what did you find? 
Mr. CONNER. At  Frenchmans  River we found  what we would 

Mr. MACINNEB. You had it in acre-feet,  too,  figured ont?.  
Mr. CONNER. One  second-foot t o  80 acres was our  duty water. 
Mr. MACINNES. What would be your  sum for changing second- 

feet  into  acre-feet? You gave  me  a  certain  number of second-feet. 
Mr. CONNER. There were 374 secsnd-feet. 
Mr. MACINNES. Can you give  that in acre-feet? 
Mr. CONNER. That  would be on the  basis of one  second-foot to 80 

consider  a valid right of 37+ cubic feet. 

acres. That  would be 3,000 acres. 
1139~15----4 
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Mr. MACINNES. Now, then,  would  you  give me the  others? 
Mr. CONNER. The  North  Fork of Milk  River,  which  you  call 

Battle  Creek, 134 second-feet: the west fork,  which  is  called Lodge 
Creek, 184 second-feet. 

Mr. MACINNES. What  are  the figures for  Whitewater? 
Mr. CONNER. Twenty-five  second-feet.  You  asked  about  Rock 

Mr. MACINNES. Did  you  give  us  the  figures  for  Frenchmans 

Mr. CONNER. Yes, s i r ;  374. 
Mr. MAcINNI':~. \j711at is the  total of those in  acre-feet? 
Mr. COXNEIL Those  fern? 
Mr. MAC'INR'ES. I asked you as to all the  tributaries of the Milk 

which  head  in  Canatla. Yon gave  it,  to  our oficers. I thought  you 
had  it  there. 

Mr. C o ~ s a a .  I gave yolw officers the  total  amount. I can  give you 
the  totals  here. It is 203 second-feet. 

Mr. MACINNIS. And in acre-feet,  what is i t ?  
Mr. C o x x ~ n .  Twenty-follr  thonsand  three  hundred  and  sixty. 
Mr. MacTxNm. That is applictzl~le to how  many  acres? 
Mr. COXNER. Sixteen khousand two  hundred  and  forty. 
Mr. &IACIXKE:R. N o w ,  then: do yon know  yonrself about  the geo- 

graphical  sitlintion of the 1:~nrls which  could be irrigated  from the 
palticular  tributaries  that we have  just been discussing? 

Mr. C o s ~ e n .  Not l)ersonally ; only from  the lower portion of Rock 
Creek, of which I have some particular Imomledge. 

Mr. MACINNES. What  additional  acreage  are you suggesting  that 
could be fairly called irrigable on these particular  tributarles  in 
addition  to  the  amount  mentioned ? 

Mr. C o ~ ~ e n .  I would not  want  to  commit  myself. As I understand 
it, there  are  pending,  especially on the  West  Fork, some rather  large 
irrigating  ditches which :\:'e, in process of lreing  constructed, and 
which have  been asked for. 

Mr. MACIN~EY. IVllnt they  ha.^ :tskecl for would not  help us very 
much,  would it? 

Mr. C o x s m .  No;  but  no one in  the chaotic  condition of the  water 
rights  in  Montana could state just  what  the  ultimate  outcome  would 
be if they  had  availaLle  water  sapply. 

Mr. M ~ c I x z u ~ s .  T o  come back to  the  Milk  River  proper.  We  know 
about  the  different ])repositions wllich -were taken  over by the Rec- 
lamation  Service.  Details were given 111 the  extracts  from your 
seventh  annual  report  this  morning.  What  additional  users  are 
there? You gave a memorandrun as to them  also to our officers. 

Creek also. The  amonnt  for  Rock  Creek is ll0Q second-feet. 

River 1 

Mr. CONKER. I do  not  just  get your point. 
Mr. MACINNES. Outside of the  Reclamation  Service  project,  to 

what  extent  did you  find  beneficial use claimed  on the  Milk  River 
proper! I understood you to say that it was 500 acre-feet. 

Mr. CONNER. That diversion  which I spoke of consists of several 
small  pumping schemes for  pumpin$  out of the  river  proper.  They 
could  be  included in  consideration of a matter of this size. 

Mr. MACINNES. Novr, as  to these  other  propositions  that you spoke 
of in  general  language,  what  are  they  and  to  what  extent was there 
beneficial  use 8 
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Mr. CONNER. They  are based  on the  tributaries  entirely. Fifteen 
second-feet is from  the  main  river.  Our  investigations cover the 
numerous  tributaries  over 14,000 square miles. 

Mr. MACTNNES. Have yo11 any fignres  on this  at  all? 
Mr. CoNNlCR. Something  like 1,700 second-feet is actually  being 

Mr. MACINXES. That  is  the  aggregate? 
Mr.  CONNEIL Yes, sir. 
Mr. MACIXNES. What is that  in  acre-feet? 
Mr. C o ~ n . m .   I n  acre-feet  it is about XN,OOO. 
Mr. & I . ~ N N E s .  Now, :IS to  the  irrigable area in  the  Milk  River 

Valley. That question  has !)een dealt  with  from  time  to  time  in  the 
reports of the  lieclamation  Service,  has it not? 

beneficially used. 

Mr. CONNER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MACINNES. I supp(:sc we m a y  takc  those  reports,  or  extracts 

from  thom, as expressing tllc views of the  Reclamation  Service  from 
time to time :IS the  result of their  examination of the  situation,  may 
we 11ot ? 

Mr. C ~ N N I ~ R .  At  the  time of pltblication; YES, sir. 
Mr. MACIN~S.  Yes;  at  the  time of the  different  publications. I 

s1xpposc that those  reports  are  available  here  for  the service of the 
commission ? 

Mr. W Y V E L L .  The  library  at  the  Capitol is  very  complete. 
Mr. MACINNES. I n  whwt publications, Mr. Newell,  does the Recla- 

mation  Service  report  appear? 
Mr. NI(:WELL. It appears  only as the  Annual  Report of the Reclama- 

tion Ser\:ice, of which 13 have hcen issned,  commencing  with 1902. 
Mr. MACINNES.  What  is  the official title of the  publication? 
Mr. NEWELL. The  Annrld  Report of the  Iteclamation  Service. 
Mr. SAKDS. I n  spea l i i~~g of the  irrigable arm in  the  annual  reports 

of  the Reclanlation  Service,  what  particular  limitations, if any, mere 
intended  in  those  figures? 

Mr. CONNER. It does nct, as I understand  it,  include  the  entire 
irrigahle  area  in  the vtllley. I t  is just  that which is expected to be 
covered  by the  Reclamation  Service  canals.  Of course, you may  go 
out  and m:tlre a reconnaissmce,  and  until you have  taken  into con- 
sideration  the  physical  conditions,  the  nurnber of creeks to be crossed, 
the  number of flumes to  be crossed,  etc., you can  not  determine on 
your first estimates  the  actual  area  to be irrigated,  and as the con-. 
struction  work  proceeds those areas are necessarily  changed. 

Mr. SANDS. I n  speaking of the  Milk  River  Valley,  there  might  be 
a confusion  between the  Milk  River  Valley  and  the  Milk  River  Basin. 
Does this  report  deal  with  the  valley  proper or with  the whole basin? 

Mr. CONNER. I n  our  estimates of the  irrigable  areas  published  in 
the  Reclamation  Service  reports we are  dealing  just  with  the  valley, 
an  area of 2 or 3 or 4 miles  in  width.  When we speak of  the  basin 
we mean the  total  drainage  basin,  which  varies  from 50 to 100 miles 
or more. 

Mr. SANDS. That basin  outside of the valley, as I understand  you, 
includes 150,000 acres of land  that is now pending  patent,  and  per- 
haps  twice as much  that  has been patented? 

Mr. CONNER. I would put  that  as  an  estimate only. I would not 
want  to  state it as  an  actual  fact. It would  be  only a rough  estimate 
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from going over the  appropriations of water on the  various tributa- 
ries, of which there ~vere 2,300. 

iMr. S a ~ u s .  There w:ts one question that mas not  brollght out this 
morning,  Mr.  Conner.  The flow from the St. Mary  River  turning 
into  the  Milk  River mould flow several hnndred miles. Would you 
think  it  important  to t : l l x  into  consideration  the  lams of seepage and 
evaporation 1 

Mr. CONSEII. They w o t d ( 1  have  to Le taken  into  consideration  in 
the  amount of water  that worlld he avai1:tble fo r  use. Whenever  the 
point of division  is  tlctelminccl upon our share mould be that  propor- 
tion. For instance, if we hac1 200,000 acrcs of land  and  a  duty of 
mater of an  acre-foot and :1 half, we woultl need 300,OOO acre-feet of 
water,  and  assuming :L loss of 25 per  cent KC would need at  the  point 
of diversion 400,000 :lcre-fe:lt. 

Mr. Sams. Have yo11 macle arly estilnates as to  the  percentage of 
loss that mould be lilwly to occur between the  point  where St. Mary 
R,iver is ttxr-ned into M i l k  River  and  the  point  at use in  the lower 
valley 1 

Mr. ( ' i o~x~m.  I c l o  not t l l in!~ a n ~ 7  eonclusive estimate  has been 
made. It is estimated  that it wonld be large. Our records  show that 
therc is probably a considerable loss at  the present  time  in  the  Milk 
River  Channel. The depletions are not  in  proportion  to  the  drainage 
area,  but we would  not dare commit o~~rselres  to  what  the percentage 
of loss will be between  those two  points. 

Mr. SANDS. What  is  the hysical. condition  in  the Milk River  Val- 
ley  there? Is it a rapidly 2 owing  stream or a  slowly  flowing stream? 
Has  i t  a sandy b:mk or otherwise? 

Mr. CONKER. I am not  in  a  position  to  state  that, Mr. Sands. 
Mr. MACINNER. Mr.  Conner, you spoke of 12,000 square  miles in 

the  Milk  River  Valley. 
Mr. CONNEIL Twel\-tl  thousand or fonrteen  thousand. That is 

practically  the same tlr:tin:tg(: : m : t  that is shown  on our maps-the 
drjinage area in the 1Jnitt.d Statps. 

Mr. M.\CINNES. That is npproximntcly  the same drainage  area  that 
is shown  in  these  maps! 

Mr. Coawm. It checks with our  maps nncl your.maps. Our areas 
read so closely with yours that \ye accepted yours wlthout  any  contro- 

"": I MACINNES. ISOW much of that :Lmount of 12,000 or 14,000 
square  miles  has been leveled overt 

the United  States or any oflicinls of the  United  States. 
Mr. CONNER. I do  not  think  any  part of i t  has been leveled over by 

Mr. MACTXNES. You say no  portion of it has been leveled over? 
Mr.  CONNER. Not that T know o f ;  only the  portion  within  the  Milk 

Mr. MACINNEB.  Then  it is guesswork as to  how much of that conld 

Mr. CONNEK. I t   i s   an  estimate.  About  one-fourth of it. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  But  it  is  an estinlxt,c made  without  any  leveling. 
Mr. CONNER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MACTNNES.  'ralting {-he existing  reclamation scheme in  the 

Milk  River  Valley,  without using ally of the St. Mary  River  water, 
how many  acres are being irrig:tteti :it the  present  time? 

River Valley-the 260,000 acres. 

be irrigated  under  any scheme. 
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Mr. CONNER. DO you  mean  by the  Reclamation  Service  or  the  pri- 
.crate ditches? 

Mr. MACINNEB.  The Xeclamation  Service, a s  I understand it, de- 
livers  the  water  to these  private  ditches. 

Mr. COXNER. They do  not a t  the  present  time,  but  they  may  eventu- 
ally. I should  say  about 27,000 to 30,000 acres-that is, within  the 
Milk  River  project. I h t  that  is  limited on  account of the  lack of 
wilter supply.  On  the  last  day of April of this  year we did  not  have 
sufficient  water to  operate our irrigation  ditch  at  Dodson. 

Mr. MAcINNEs.  What  is  the  masimmn  that you have  irrigated? 
When I say " you " I mem  the  Reclamation  Service  project. 

Mr. CONNICR. J am not  in a  position  to  state  that. I do  not  have 
the figures  with me. 

Mr. MACINNES. Is that shown in  your  report 1 
Mr. CONNER. Yes; it is shown in our annual  reports. 
Mr. Maclxxm H a v e  you a. rongh itlea as to how  much i t   i s?  
Mr. Column. I col~ld  not  state  within  several  thousand. 
Mr. h l s d r s ~ s .  Yo11 s p o l w  ,just now :IS if there  was  a  difference 

between the Bcclnnlation Service and these  privtltc  cnnals,  and yet 
they  are  spoken of as a project. What  is  the exact situation? 

Mr. C,ONXEI:. As I mldcrstnntl the  agrecmcnt we have with  them, 
it becomes effective at  the  time when we take  the St. Mary  water 
over  into  the  Milk  River. I think  Mr. I3ien can  give  you the  exact 
information  on  that  point. 

Mr. MACINKES. I-Enve you any idea  as  to  how  much  water is being 
used in connection  with t,he irrigation of these  acres  which you 
spoke of 1 

Mr. C'OXBER. The number of acre-feet,  do you mean? 
Mr.  MACIMNES. Yes. 
Mr. CONKER. No; I can  not  tell you. 
Mr. SANDS. I n  giving  your  estimates of the  required  amount of 

water  in  Battle  Creek,  Lodge  Creek,  and  Frenchman  River, you 
stated :I ccrnin nImher of cubic fert per second. Did  that contem- 
plate a steady flow? 

Mr. CONNER. That was based on the  assumption of :I steady flow. 
Mr. \Vuver,r,. Mr. ('onner. 1 want to make  clear,  for  the  sake of 

the  record, a statement regrarding the 1'2,000 squarc  milrs. That  is 
d~xinage :area of the M i l k  Rirer Valley from the  eastern  crossing to 
its mouth. 

Mr. ('ONKEIL Yes, sir: :I little over 14,000 square miles. 
Mr. WYVELT,. All of that land  within  that  area is level? 
Mr. CONNEIL. No, sir; it is  not level. 
Mr. WYVEIA I mean it is leyel or rolling? 
Mr. CONNER. Yes; it is level or  rolling. A portion of it in  the val- 

leys or  in t.he various  creeks is susceptible of irrigation.  There are 
about 40 well-defined tributaries  within  that aren. All these tribu- 
taries  hare  'small  areas  coming  into  them, and on  these  areas desert- 
land  entries  have been made. 

Mr. M 7 ~ v ~ 1 , ~ .  You  speak of 40 tributaries.  Most of these  tribu- 
taries  are  from  the  south,  are  they  not? 

Mr. CONNER. They  are  about  equally  divided. 
Mr. WPVELT,. And from these  tribnt:lries  a great  number of canals 

have been built? 
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Mr. CONNER.  Small  diversion  canals ; ycs, sir. 
Mr. WYVELL.  Con  you  estimate wifh reasonable  accuracy the  num- 

ber of small  diversion  canals  from  these  tributaries? 
Mr. C O ~ N I C I I .  I would  not  want to conlmit  myself as to  the  num- 

ber. There  have been about 2,800 appropriations  made  on t,hcse 
various  tributaries.  Quite a  few of them  have  proved  up  their 
land-like sheep men-and abandoned  them,  but  there  were  about 
900 found  to be in  actual use. 

Mr. WYVELL.  You  spoke of from 27,000 to 30,000 acres of land 
upon  which water was being  put  to beneficial use. You mean, of 
course, by that  in its :xtu:ll  sense that  tho water is  actually  being 
placed  upon  the  land  regularly,  do you not?  

Mr. CONNER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. WYVEI~I , ,  Of course the extension of that  farming  area  de- 

pends  upon  several  things.  One, I suppose, is the  amount of water? 
Mr. CONNER.  Making  the  water  supply  available  during  the  dry 

season. 
Mr. WYVELL.  Another is whether or not  settlers  take  up  the  land? 
Mr. CONNICR. The  land is pretty  generally  taken  up  at  the  present 

Mr. WYVELL. You  mean  that  there  is somebody  who is making 

Mr. CONNER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. WYVELL. How is the  land  that is not  being  irrigated  being 

. farmed, so far  as you  know ? 
Mr. CONNER.  The bench land is being  taken  up  under  the  home- 

stead  entries  as  dry  farming  land  in 320 acre  tracts. 
Mr. WYVELL. You believe from  the knowledge  which  you  have 

acquired  from  actual  experience  in  that  country  that  if  the  Govern- 
ment  had  water,  and  conditions  were  favorable, a good  many  more 
acres of land  could be irrigated,  do you not? 

time. 

some  attempt to  utilize it in some way ? 

Mr.  CONNER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. WYVELL. Can you put  an  estimate  upon  that  number? 
Mr. CONNER. No; I would  not  want  to  put  an  estimate  upon it. 

Mr. WYVELL. Of course, from your knowledge and experience  you 

Mr. CONNER. Yes; it would  be  several  years, and  probably it 

Mr. WYVELL. And also  on  account of congressional  legislation, 

Mr. CONNER.  They all affect it. 
Mr. MACINNES. I n  connection  with some estimates  that you  gave, 

Mr. Conner, I would  like to ask  you  another  question. I understand 
all those  would  be  based  upon an examination  that  you  are  making, 
the results of which  you  will show to  us in  Washington  in  several 
books, or rather  permit  our officers to look at  the books. 

It might  be a t  least 1,000,000 acres or more. 

think it would be some time  before  that  could be done? 

would  never  happen  on  account of the  shortage of water. 

etc., upon  which  funds  are  more or less dependent. 

Mr. CONNER.  Yes,  sir. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  Would you have  any  objection to those  books be- 

ing placed at   the service of the commission in its office at  Ottawa, 
Canada ‘1 

Mr. CONNER. That  would not  be  within  my  power  to  grant. I 
do not  think  there would  be  any  question  about it, however. 
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Mr. NEWELL. I think  the  question  would be one of physical  copy. 
inp. 

v 

Mr.  MACINNES. I mean  subject to  the call of the commission or of 
the  Canadian  rqxesentatives of the commission. So I can  under- 
stand  that those books will  be  available? 

Mr. C o x ~ m .  Pes,  sir. 
Mr. & ~ ~ I N N E s .  IIow many books are  there? 
Mr. COXNER. Ten. 
Mr. WYVELI,. Aside  from Mr. Stevens’s work,  which is t o  be com- 

pleted  as so011 as he has opportunity, we can  think of no  more  physical 
facts which we have  to  present,  unless  the commission has  something 
that it would  like  to  ask  our  views  upon. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I think, possibly, we might  hear  the  representatives 
of the  Dominion  Government on the  facts  that I understand  have 
been agreed to. If they  have  any  information  concerning  the  physical 
facts  which  bear  upon  the  question we will  hear  from  them. 

Mr. MACTNNES. I n  the first  place, we may  consider  that  there is 
what  may be termed a “base  map” before  the commission of the 
drainage  basins of the  Milk  River  and  the St. Mary  River,  which 
has been approved of by  both  countries. I presume  that it had 
better be marked. 

(This  map was put  in  and  marked “ Exhibit A.”) 
Mr. TAWNEY. This is admitted by both  countries t o  be a correct 

representation of the  matters  appearing  upon  the  map? 
Mr.  MACINNES. Yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. It is the  most  correct  map  that  can  be  got  at  any 

Mr. POWELL. It is  approximate. 
Mr. WYVELL. The only  reason I speak of that  is unfortunately the 

map  may  require  careful  study  with  the eye, because in  joining  these 
two  maps  together  the  rivers  do  not  always  match,  but  by a little 
extra  effort it can be seen with  the eye. 

Mr. TAWNEY. We  can  take  that  as  being  your  agreement so far  as 
the  map is concerned. 

Mr. WWELL. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Have you blue-print copies that  you could  furnish 

Mr. WYVELL. Yes. 
Mr.  MACINNEB. As regards  stream  measurements, I understand 

it will  be  put  in  that  each  country  accepts  the  record of stream flow 
ublished  by the  other  country,  subject  to discussion and  adjustment 

fetween themselves. If  any differences may  appear it is a matter 
which  may  perhaps  have to  he referred  to  the commission, but I think 
it inay  be  assumed  that  for  the  future,  as  in  the  past,  each  country 
will  accept  the  published  stream  measurements of the  other  country. 

Mr. POWELL. Can you identify  the  reports? 
Mr.  MACINNES. I endeavored to do  that  from  the  last witness. On 

the  United States side  they  will be  called “ Water-supply  papers of 
the Geological  Survey ” and  in  Canada  “Reports of progress of 
stream  measdrements.” 

Mr. POW’F,I,L. It is understood  that  both  are  in  evidence so far as 
they  are  material? 

rate. 

to  the commission? 
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Drake,  the  superintendent of irrigation,  is  familiar  with  the  situa- 
tion as  to  the  applications  and  authorizations  granted to  that com- 
pany,  and  he will p rohb ly  give  evidence on that  point. I am 
merely  mentioning  these  facts :IS showing  the  history of the  matter. 
There  was  Dominion  legislation, and then use was made of that 
legislation  by  this  company, and certain  rights  were  grarlted to it by 
the  Dominion  Government. 

I might  mention,  for  the convenience of the  record,  that  there was 
an :unthorixation to  the  Alberta  Railway LE Irrigation (lo. in May 
of 18!_)9, which was extended  and conso1id:ltecl in 1!10:2. 

Then on the  United  States  side me find that  on  the  17th of June, 
1902, there mas passed--I understand for the first  time, and it is the 
earliest  legislation on the subject-an act of Congress  entitled “,4n 
act  appropriating  the  receipts from the sale and disposal of puhlic 
lands  in  certain  States  and  Territories  for  the  construction of irriga- 
tion  works  and for the  reclamation of arid lands.’’ T h a t  appears 
to  be chapter 161 of the  public  statutes  and  was  approved  on  the 
17th of June, 1902. 

On  the 27th of October, 1002, we  find an  order  in  council of the 
Dominion  Government,  referring  again to the resolution of the  In- 
ternational  Irrigation  Congress, to which  reference had been made  in 
the  previous  order  in  council,  and  stating  that  that  order  in council 
had been passed and communicated to  the XJnited States  Secretary of 
State,  and it refers to the answer of the  Secretary of State,  and it 
says : 
EXTRACT F R O M  A REPORT OF THE COMNITTEE O F  THE HONOKAB1,E THE PllIVY COUiYCIT,, 

APPXOI’BD BY HIS ESCETJZNCY ON THE 27TH OCTOBER, 1902, 

On a report,  dated  15th October, 1002, from  the  minister of the  interior, 
stating  that  the  International  Irrigation Congress, a t   i t s  meeting a t  Albuquerque, 
New Mexico, in  September, 1895, passed a resolution  asking “ for  thc  appoint- 
ment of an  international commission to  act  in  conjunction  with  the  authorities 

or may  hereafter  arise, on  streams of an  international character.” 
of Mesico and Canada i n  :It l judica;rt ing the cwnflicting rights which have  arisen. 

The minister  further  states  that  in  an  order  in council dated  the 8th January, 
1896, and  communicated  to  the  United  States  Secretary of State  through Her 
Majesty’s  ambassador a t  Washington, it was represented  that it mould be in 
the  highest  and best interests of both  countries  that  in  respect of such  streams 
the  suggestion of the  irrigation  congress  should  be  acted upon and the Govern- 
ment of Canada offered to  cooperate by the  appointment of an  international 

lating  the use, for  purposes of irrigation, of the  waters of streams  which  have 
commission or otherwise, a s  might  be  agreed upon, with the  object of regu- 

their  origin  in  one of the countries  named nncl consequently flow through the 
territory of another.  The  answer of the Secretary of State  was  that  he did not 
lack  interest  in  this  important  subject,  yet  from  the  inforn~ation  in his depart- 
ment’s  possession he could only  regret his inability,  agreeably  to  Her  Majesty’s 

ment upon the  subject a t  the present  time. 
ambassador’s  courteous  request,  to give expression  to  the views of his Govern- 

The  minister  submits  that  it  appears now that  under  the  provisions of a n  
act  passed at   the  last  session of Congress, the Governrncnt of the United 

Milk ltiver for the purpose of‘ irrigating  certain  lands  in  Montana. 
States proposes to  divert  the  waters of St.  Mary  River  into the chnnnel of 

The  St.  Mary  River  rises  in  the  St.  Mary  Lakes  in  the  extreme  northwest 
corner of tlle  State of Montana, nnti from  there  runs  due  north,  crossing 

finally forma a junction  with  tlle Belly Iliver  near IJethbritlge, the  waters of 
the  international bountlnrg in range 25, west of the fourth  meridian,  and 

length of the  St. XIwy 1iivc.r is sitn:rtcd in C:III:I(~;I t 1 n d  it is not  until it crosses 
both strc.nnls then flowing to  the  South  Sasktltchewnn  River.  The  greater 

the boundary  line  that the country  adjacent  to  the  river is suituble for settle- 
ment or nvailable for irrigxtion by water Eronl tlle stream. Al,ont (i miles north 
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of the  k~oundary line the  stream  is tnppetl hy the  canal  constructed by the 
(?,anadinn North West  Irrigation Co., and a record has hcen made  against  the 
strenm by thnt company under the. provisions of the  northwest  irriartion  act 
for n l l  available n.:rtcr to  irrimtc large a r w s  sitnntcvl in  the iInmcc!iate vicinity 
of 1,cthhritlge. This company h:rs cntnpletd  the cwnstrnc-tion of the  necessary 

land referred to. and has soltl ronsidcmhle  lnnd  with a wntcr  right  from  the 
cnnnl ant1 snhsitliary works to cwahle this  jvntw  to he utilized i n  the  tract of 

greater  part of tllc xvorlrs constrnctetl at a large rspc~~sc by the Chn:ltlinn North 
cnnnl  in qnestion.  The proposed tliversion o f  the  river mill rcnt l e~  nsPlcss the 

West  Trriention Co..  ant1 its rcvcnucs will be so :I I‘fwtetl thnt it will !?e nnnhle 
to nwct its  o1)limtions. The 1:rntls rwl:rimrd  sinre  tlw  canal was h i l t 5  being 
deprivwl of watw. will  no lonycv he snitnhle for cnltiwtion, and w i l l  hnvv to 
be ahantlnne.tl. T h e  nnmeron$  farmers whosc prospe’ritp seemed an  assnretl 
fnct will lose not only what  they pnirl for their  f:lnns.  hut  also  the money and 
Iahor invested  in hnil(1inqs nntl other  improvemc~nts. 

The ministc.? fnrthcr st:itw th:lt it  hns 1)c~cn contc~iltlccl thxt  the  strflnms (lis- 
charging  into  the  St. Alary River 1)c.twrcm the hcntlu o f  the ITnite‘tl  S1-:lttss nnd 
Clnnnt1i:ln cvnnls furnish  an ample supply for  thc  land  irrimtcltl  in C:lnntla: 
that. however, is  not  t?w case. The whole o f  the w.nta. now flowinq in the 

of T,ethhrirlw nnd the C:ln:ltli:ln cnnnl was constructed  with a capacity Suf i -  
St. M n r g  ltiver is rcquiretl  for  irrigntinq 1 - h r  Inntl.; i l l  the  vicinity of the  town 

cient for cnrrying  this  quantity of water. 

South Fork of Milk River, it \Till flow for a1)ont 150 milw  in  C:~nntln hefore it 
Shonltl the  water o f  St. Mnrg River be tnrnctl  into  either the North or the 

can  he used to  irrignte  Innds in the  United  Stntes.  In  Report No. 254 o f  the  
United  Stntes  Smnte Clommittcv on the Rr’clmnntion of Aritl Jmxls i t  Is stated 
that  the diversion rnnnl is to be continued  to  the  South Fork o f  Milk River, 

point in Canadti from the  South  Fork or from Milk River.” Again, in  the 
“ as it  is not considered prxcticable for the Canadinns to  tlivcrt water at any 

report of the  hydrographer of the 1Jnited States Geological Survey  upon  which 
was hnsed the  reconlmendation of the  Secretnry of the Interior  to  Congress 
it  is  said: 

“If   the   water  is turned  into .eit!rer (-he North or the  South  Fork of Milk 

The valley proper of Milk River in Cnnntln is  comparatively  narrow  and has 
River  it  first fintls its w:lq into  Canatla  before  it  can be used in  the lower basin. 

little  irrignhle  land. so that  any proposition  on a large  scale  must  contrmplate 
using  the  high hen(-h of lands above. RIillr River  in Ctrnacla from  the  junction 
of the  North  and Sonth Forks downstrenm has a vcrg slight fall-not more 
than 2 feet to   the  mile-and a cnnxl of 100 miles or more  in  length would be 
necessary  before thc water could he brought  to the upper benches. It is not, 
therefore, (!onsidered feasible  to  divert  the  waters  from Milk River  into 
Canada.” 

confirm the views expressed  in  the  reports quoted above; on the  contrary,  they 
The minister  represents  that  the  surveys  made  nnder his  direction  do  not 

prove  thnt  the  present  water  supply of Milk River  and  any  additional  amount 
diverted  therein  from  St.  Mary  River  south of the international  boundary  can 
he  taken  nnt  in  Canada at a moderate cost and prevented from flowing again 
into  the  United  States. 

a consitlerntion of what  Canada  may or may  not do to  protect  her  interests: 
The minister  submits  that  action  in  this  matter  should  not  be governed by 

a qnestion of this  kind  should be dealt  with on its  merits as justice  and  equity 

which  the proposed works would cause to  the  Canadian  Northwest  Irrigation 
may  demand. It is hoped that a proper  representation of the  great  injury 

Go. nntl to  the  numerous  farmers  depending upon the company’s canal for  the 
cultivation of their lands will  induce  the  Government of the  United  States 
to  modify their  irrigation  projects,  and  that  with 60,000,000 of acres of public 
lands  awaiting  reclamation by irrigation  the  first  project  taken up shall  not  be 
one  inrolving  such  disastrous consequences to  Canadians. 

The committee  advise  that  the  Governor General be moved to  forward a 

quest thnt be will conm~unicate  to  the  Government of the  United  States  the 
copy of this  minute  to His Majesty’s  ambassador a t  Washington  with a re- 

objections of Canada  to  the proposed irrigation works, and will express the  
hope that  the flow of the  St. Mary River  into  Canatla  shall  not  he  interfered 
with. 

All of which  is  respectfully  submitted for approval. 

Cilerlc of the Privy Coulzcil. 
JOEIN .J. McGm, 

To the 11onor:~ble the 3 I m l s T m  OB THE TE’TICRIOB. 
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Vested rights  to w:lter along the Milk lliver  in C:lu:tda :IS it  would nlake  if  the 
river  were wholly within  the bounclaries of the  nnitetl  stiltes ~IIICI the rights of 
the  citizens of this cwuntry only were  under consider;ttion. 

It is 1)roI)osetl lo (1e:ll with  this  matter in  strict  conforn~ity  with  the laws corl- 
cerning the rights to the use of watc?r as recognizetl by the  courts of the  arid 
regiorl, both 011 this  side of the  intenlation:ll bouutlnrg : ~ n d  011 the  other.  The 
priuciple  luay be st:Itcd in the I;tugu:lge of section 8 of the recl;lnl:ltion :1ct of 
June 17,  l!M ( 3 2  StLtt., 3%) : 

: m l  IJeurfic.i:il nno :;llall he the basis, the me;1surc, : ~ n d  limit of the  right.” 
“Th:lt the right to  use of wlter  shall bc appurtc:u;rnt to tlle 1:tntXs irrigated 

b’ro111 :!II exl1~1il~;Itit)u of t h c t  (ie11eri11 Itel)ort ou 1rrig;ttion :~nd  Canadi;lu  Irri- 
g;ltiou Snri.c~ys. lS!G tlntl lSW, 1,eI)tlrtuleut of the  Interior,  Ottawa,  it  appears 
from thc st:tlen!erlt of J. S. Dennis, irctiug  chief inslmtor of surveys,  in  charge, 

d i v t ~ t i ~ ~ g  c.ert;liu tribuhlries of Nillr River in Canada :~ud carrying the w r t ~ r  into 
that  the C;~il:tdi:ln irrigrtion surrey untlertoolc to  iuvestigate the feasibility of 

Swift  Current Creek Valley, where  c~onsider;ll)le botlies of irrigable I:lnds a re  
locatetl. 

111 ortlt!r to ctrrry out this  project  it w o u l d  be necess;rrg to  tlivert  waters  which 
would otherwise  nuturally flow iuto  the  Iinited  Htatcs  in such way :IS to use 
them upon  irrigu1)le ltt~~ds in Uan:td:\, :L condition  which is precisely analogous 
to  that   con~pl~~iued of in  the rn:ltter of the St. M:lry diversion.  The  project is 
fully wllsitlcrrtl 011 p:tges 1 to 9 of the wid report. 

would be too g r w t  to  warrant the undertaking of such a schelue a t   the  Llresent 
The conclusion reached was that  : “ The  cost of coustruction ;lnd maintenance 

time.” It thas :11)1)e;:rs tll;lt the  Ciluadian  irrigation  survey hac1 in  conteinpla- 
tiou a project  involviug  the  same  principle n s  that now under  consitlerntion by 
this  Goverument ; that the  execution  thereof was not  abandoned  but was merely 

dertaliing at the present  time. 
postponed ou the sole ground that the expense was too great  to  warrant  the un- 

Inilsmuch :IS the  position  taken by the  Reclamation  Service  in this matter  in 

talreu ill the  case of siniilar  rights  within  the TJnited States, both  beiug tretited 
regard to the rights c1;tinletl in can ad:^ appears  to be precisely that  which is 

according  to  the recognized rules of law gorerning the diversion  and  tlppropria- 

for a change  in  the position taken by this Governluent in the matter. 
tion of water  in  arid regions, Mr. Hitchcock  regrets  that  he ciln see no reason 

I am, etc., 
JOHN HAY. 

That  letter is acknowledged. 
Then it would  appear  that  there was :I protest  from  certain  Mon- 

tana  water  users  with  regard  to  the canal of the A. R. & I. Co. on the 
Milk River, and  that was comrnnnicated to the British  ambassador: 

X E M D H h N U U b l .  

canal is now it1 the course of construction in  C:t~~a(Iiau  territory which will 
It IL;IS I m u  rqwescnttvl  to the Uoverunmlt of thc lJllitecl Sttltes that a large 

divert :I large  anlount of watw from M i l k  ILiver into the S:tslcatcllewan I k s i n  ; 
that tlll-the norilia1 flow of hIilB Hiver is now being used by the people of Milk 
River Valley in  Montana,  who  have  built  irrigating canals involving a great 
ex1)entliture of money and have  thereby  reclaimed 80,000 acres of arid lands. 
It is further represented that  this proposed diversion of’ the  waters of Milk 
Wver  in  Uanatlian  territory will cause  great  injury  to  the people of Montana 
by depriving  their reclttimecl lands of the  water  necessary  for  the  purposes of 
irrigation. It is further shown that the waters of Milk River,  which :Ire pro- 
posed to be diverted,  largely  rise  in  the  United  States, liow thence  into  Cknada, 
and return  again  into Montana ; that Milk River rises in an unclulating  country 
east of the Rocky Mountains;  that it does  not  receive  any  drainage from the 
monntains,  but  that  the  supply of water is wholly from rainfall  upon the 
gently  ulldulatiug  country crossed by the  international  boundary ; that  the  prin- 
cipal  tributary  streams of Milk Hiver flow northeast,  converging on the  Cnna- 
dian  side of the  boundary line, and  that  the  river  continues  easterly for about 
100 miles and thence  crosses  into  Montant~; and that  in  the  lower  part of its 
course  the  irrigating  canals  above  mentioned  have been constructed. It is 
further  shown  that  the  water  supply of the  river  fluctuates  greatly;  that  in  the 
early spring  and  after  heavy  rains floods occur;  that  later  in  the  season  the 
flow declines  until  there is barely  enough  water  to  supply  the  urgent  needs of 
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the  lands  reclaimed  and  irrigated;  that  the  diversion of the  water  in  the  upper 
par t  of the  stream  in  Canada will work no injury  during  the  time of floods, but 
that  when  water  is most needed the  taking  out of the  scanty  supply  will  destroy 
the  irrigated  farms  farther down the  stream. 

The  American  interests  which would be  affected  and  the Serious injury 
which ~o111d be done  them by the proposed diversion of the  waters of Milk 
River  have been made  the  subject of a n  appeal by  citixvns of the  United  States 
to  the  Department of State, tint1 the  subject  is  respectfully  brought  to  the  atten- 
tion and consideration of His Majesty’s  Government  in  the hope that  appro- 
priate  means  may  be  taken to avert  the  threatened  injury. 

DEPARTMENT OF Srra.rE, i l t ln~~ 9,  1904. 
This would  indicate  that  the flood water of the 3lilk River would 

be of no  value to  the TJnited States,  but of course that would  depend 
on  the  storage  provided by the  United  States  in  the  lower Milk River 
Valley,  which  would  take  care of a  portion of these  floods? a  portion 
of which was taken  care of hy the dam of the A. R. C“ I. (30. 

A reply  to  this was sent  on  the  8th of July, 1904, ;LS f o l l o ~ s :  
$,;~TIL.\cT pl{oal A ImPnwr 01’ THK COhfm1’TEg or’ TIIIC HONOR.\lILIC TITE PIUVY COUNCIL, 

AITROVED BY THE GOVERR’OR GENERAL O N  ST11 JULY, 1904. 

herewith  from  His  Majesty’s  amhassador at Washington, No. 56, tlzttetl 10th 
The c:ommittee of the  privy councd have l ~ a t l  untler corlxitl(>ratiotl 21 clis1~:ltch 

May, 1904, with refrrenccx to  the  constrac2tion in C:umtlian territory Of a 1:lrge 

the allrgetl injury which will result  from  such  tlirersion by cxusing a shortage 
canal  for  the  diversion of water  from RIillr Rirrr  for  irrigation  purposes and 

of m:ltc~r for  the  irrigation of lantls  from  this  source of supply  in  the  United 
States of America. 

The minister of the interior,  to whom the  said  dispatch was referred, snb- 
nlits  that  the recortls of the Department o f  the Interior  show  that  authority 
has been given to  the C:m:ltlian Northwest  Irrigation 00. to  tlivert  from Milk 

feet prr swond at   the  low-ivvntcr flow of that  stream ant1 1,500 cubic feet  per 
River  for  use on 1:lntls owned or held by the company in C:lnatlrL 500 CllhiC 

scxontl during the high-n.:ltw : ~ n t l  flood stagw of the  rivrr ; also that  authority 
has been grnnttd to anot lm npplicnnt to clivcrt G cubic feet  per second of 
water  from the same sourcc also for  irrigntion  purposes. 

of this  minute  to  His R‘lnjesty’s :mhnss:ulor at W:lshingtou. 
The conlmittee ntlvisr thxt  the Governor Cencrnl be moved to  forward a copy 

All of which is respectfully  submitted for approval. 
JOHN J. MCGEE, 

Clerk of t 7 ~ e  Privu Council. 
To the honorable  the ~ W ~ N I S T E R  017 THE INTERIOR. 

There is a  further  dispatch from Mr. John TIny, dated  30th 
December, 1904 : 

WA~FIINGTON, Decemhcr SO, 1904. 

tions  existing  in  the  State of Montana  antl  the  Provinces of Alberta  and Assini- 
EXCIICL~ENCY: I have  the  honor to bring  anew  to your attention  the condi- 

boia in  rel:~tion  to  irrigable  lands  along  the Milk lliver, n tributary of the 
Missouri  River. 

the  United  States  on  the  eastern  slope of the Rocky Rfountains, between 
Two branches of the filillr River,  called  the North ant1 South Forks,  rise  in 

meridians 113 and 114. The  waters flow first  northenstwartl,  crossing  the in- 

for abont 100 miles,  to  near  longitude 110” 30’ west  from Greenwich, where 
ternational  boundary  line  into  Alberta, antl then  eastward  through  Assiniboia 

they  recross  the  international  bountlary  line antl reenter  the  State of Montana. 

souri  River,  there  are  approximately 1,000 irrigated  farms,  covering 80.000 
On the  lower  course of the Milk River,  in  Montana,  before it enters  the Mis- 

acres,  supplied by water  taken  from  the  river.  During the last year  there 
have been  received at  this  department  from  settlers  numerous  protests in 
relation  to  the  prospective  diversion of the  waters of the Milk River  in  Canadian 

been called  to  the  matter by the  Department of the  Interior of the  United  States. 
territory for purposes of irrigation.  The  attention of this department has also 

Under  date of July 15, 1904, you forward  to me a copy of a n  approved  minute 
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of the  Privy Council of Canada of July 8, 1904, from  which  it  appears  that 
the  Canadian  minister of the  interior  had given authority to the  Canadinn 
Northwest  Irrigation Co. to  divert 600 cubic  feet  per second of the  low-lvater 
flow and 1,500 cubic feet  per second of the  high-water flow of the Milk River, 
and  that  this company is now in a position to cut off the  greater  part of the 
water  supply of the  farms of the Milk River Valley in  Montana.  This  diversion 
would deprive  several  thonsand  citizens of the  United  States of the  means of 
obtaining a living. 

The waters in question rise largely  in  the TJnited States,  and, after flowing 
through  Canada  and  returning  to  the TJnitetl States,  have been appropriated 

. and  put to beneficial use by the  inhabitants of the Milk River Valley long prior 
to  any  diversion of that  river in Canada.  Under the laws antl  customs  which 
have grown up in  the  arid regions, and  which  arc  in  force in Canada, priority 
of nppro1)rintion :Ind use h:ls been recognizetl. If  the Clanatli:ln cnrporation 
he nllonwl to  tlivcrt these w n t c ~ s  to Iantls in  Canatl;l, for every acre of land 
irrigntetl in C:rnadn 1. or 2 acres of agricultural  hutl in the United  States 
may be clestroyetl. Fnr the Uan:ulian (:overnment to  permit  such tliversion of 
the wntel’s of thc ilIilk River  in  Canadian  territory, would therefore  appear  to 
be an :tct 1:lcBing in  friendliness. 

Unitetl St:lt(x heliere i t  possible for  the  two  Governments  to n~nlte an  arrange- 
The enginerrs of the  Reclamation  Service of the Interior  ncpartment of the 

ment wl)erel)y the  rights of the  settlers  within  the clonlnin of the Unitetl States 

built by the  Cnnadi:~n  Northwest  lrrigaion Co. will be provitled. 
will he prcservetl : ~ n t l  at   the  same time tlrc water neccssary to  supply the canal 

The  engineers  report  that the w a t t w  of tlle  St. ilI:rrys Iti\(\r which flow 
northnard  into C:lnadi:rn territory are now being  utilized to only a slnnll extent, 
and they  state  that  it  is practic.al)le to  store t h c w  \v:ltws in  the Unitctl States, 
conduct  them hy a canal on the  southern  side of the  internation:\l I;)onnrlarg 

as to invrense the  ortlinary flow of that river and furnish a supply of water for 
line  to 1-hc head of t h t ?  Milk lliver, ant1 there turn t l m n  into the nfil lr  Rivclr, so 

lands  in the nfillr Itivcr Vnlley within the T!nitcrl St:ltcs. TTIltlcr this :Irrnnge- 
ment  the  prior  rights of thr Cau;ltli:\n wttlws 0 1 1  1-hv St. ilfarys Itiyer  would - be protected by p ( ~ n ~ i t t i n g  i t>:  orclinxrg Llo~r to mlli i n w  to pass into Can:rtli:m 
territory, and a t  the s:me t i ~ u e  the. gre;lt volume o €  flood wat.er which passes 
down that  river  dcstroying proptlrty  long its Ixinbs \ \ o n l c l  he restr:linccl within 

put  to beneficial use in the l o w ~ r  M i l k  River Valley  in the  United Atntes. 
the  United Sl-iltes ; I r l t l  tlivcvtctl to t ! w  h ( w l  wrterr; of the nlillr ltiwr, ant1 be 

The  engineers of the Itecl:uu:\tiou Svrvive h:tve nmtle esalninntions  antl sur- 
veys for the purpose of forlnul;ltillg pI:rns for the diversion of llle St. & l u g s  
River  southward in the  United  States,  to  localities  wl~cre  the  waters conltl be 
utilized  for  irrigation  without turning thcw  into  tlle M i l k  Iliver. Such cliver- 

outlined  above should meet with  the  approval of tho Canadi:m  Government. 
sion would he more expensive,  however, :md n w ~ l t l  be nnnecessarr if the plan 

Owing to  the  critical  situation of the  settlers  in  the Milk River Vnlley, in 
the  State of Montana, and the  desire of the Cl:madi:m North  West  Irrigation Go. 
to  utilize its cnnal as soon as possible, a n  early understanding is import:lnt. I 
have  therefore  the honor to suggest a cwnfercnce het\veen the  relresentatives 
of the  Government of the  United  Si-ates and represcnt:lt,ives of the C:\nntli:in 
Government for the  purpose of reaching  an  agreement  in  respect  to  the dispo- 
sition of the  waters of the Milk and  St.  hfarys  Rivers. 

I have, etc., 
JOHN HAY. 

Then,  an  order  in council of the Donlinion  Government of date 
‘7th June, 1905: 
EXTP,B(’T 1 w ) \ r  .Z 1:ElWRT OF TTIE COMAIITTICIG 01” TFIE PRIVY COTJNCIL APPROVED BY 

TITE GOVEIWOR CIEVERz\I, ON THE 7TH JUXE, 1905. 

dated 2d January, 1905, Erom His Majesty’s ambassador a t  Washington,  trans- 
The  committee of the  Privy Council have  had  under  consideration a dispatch, 

mitting a copy of a letter from the  Secretary of State o f  the  United  States 
relative  to a diversion of water  from Milk River. 

uary, 1906, from His Majesty’s  ambassador at Washington,  transmitting a copy 
The  committee  have also had under  consideration a dispatch,  dated  9th  Jan- 

of a letter from Mr. Charles D. Walcott,  Director of the  United States Reclama- 
tion  Service,  expressing  the  desire  to  obtain  data  respecting  the flow of the 
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of water from  St. RIarys Itiver  to irrigate lnntl chiefly situ:ltctl in tltr lobver 
One of the  projects of the Unitc-tl States  Ileclamation Service is the diversion 

Milk ltivcbr region. Tlte canal for this pnrpow rrr:~y eitttw tlinchargr? into 
Milk Itiver, wlwse natural  channel woultl be utilized  to carry the  water  through 
Canada to w1rct.e it  is to be usetl, or by a more southern  route. 

Fears  have becn expressed th:tt this  diversion mag prejudic.inlly  affect the 
present sc.ttlelrIt>litr; on the Alberl-:I ltailwly & 1rrig:rtion Co.’s lurrcls in Cnnatla, 

expected  in  that  region, and tlw  lnatter  has bren tlrc subject from tirile. to  time 
or the future tleveloImtent, which n u y ,  in t11e m l t u l x l  coursu of tllings, be 

agreenwnt has yet been reached. 
of tliplonrtrtic eschnnges 1)ctwt:w Ottaw:l :~nd IVusl~i~~gton,  bnt no Ijasis of 

Tlw Secrot:~ry of War, ill his  report  for the past y r w .  referring to  the clues- 
tion of juristliction, says : 

ited to t11c n:ltors whose natural  outlet  is h y  tllc River St. Id:l\vrencc to the 
“ TJncler tlre law o P  Congress  creating the (*oIimrission, its  jurisqli(tion  is linl- 

Atlantic Occ:rn. The Cxnatlinn Uoverntne~tt Ir:ts fro111 ihc lwgiuning tlosired 
that  the conxnission slroultl consitlcr a11 qut>:;tions wlticll n ~ a y  ctrise concerning 
the  international  waters Eron~ the  Atlmtic to the l’frcific. T o  enable tlre 
Anlerican ntt1nlI)tw to do this, furlher legislation by Ckmr:ress is nrccss:lr’y. It 
would seem proler to comldy with t,lle wishes of the  Cm:uli:~n Guvrrnxtlcut ill 
this respect.” 

If the  jurisdiction of this contmissioll is cstentlcd :IS ~ i ~ g g c ~ ~ t ~ ~ l ,  t l w  nlattcr 
can be t:Iken up and no  tloubt X O I I I ~  ec1uit;ll)le 111an o C  tlivisiorl o f  tlwser \v:Lt(:rs 
can be suxgested  untler the tlirwtion of the  joint cornnlission. 

Mr. ~\IIGNAUI,T. What  diversicn is r e f e r w ~ l  to in  the tllird pnra- 
graph of that  quotation Z 

Mr. MACINNXS. That is a diversion by the Unitecl States I<c:cl:oila- 
tion Service of water from the St. Marys Rivela. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Does that refer to  the cnnal? 
Mr. MACINSES. Yes;  the United  States Wecl;uuation Seis; ice cnnnl. 

Then, on the 15th of June, 1907, certain  proposds were scxnt forward 
with  regard  to this matter by Mr. Root,  then  Secretary of St:& of 
the  United  States: . 

. ~ J U K E  75, 1907. 
I~CI.:I.I.ENCY: IYith a view to 0riIl::itrg to :I (Irtcwlrinnf io:l t!lc. cJuc.stions so 

long cliscusscltl  re1:~tin:; to the. w e  o f  tlte \vaters of tlw St. Marys Itiver :inti 
the Milk River  which f l o w  across the  forty-nintll  par:~!lcl bowltlary hetween 
tllc  United  Statcs xni1 (l.t~n:tcla, I beg to offer the following suagestiorrs for 
a basis of n treaty  for  the eqnit:lble :t~,~~ortio~ument of those \r : r t (w : 

Britain  that  the  ~vntcrs of tlw Mill< ltiver :tnd t!re St. h1:lrys ltivrr and their 
It is hereby agreed  between the Gov~rntnenl-s of the Ullitctl States a n t 1  Gre:lt 

tributaries slrall be npportionetl in  perpetuity  for  use in  the  t\ro  countries 
according  to  the following stipulations  and agroenlcnts : 

1. TI::lt for the  pnrposes of this ugreenlent the St. Marys ltivcr :inel the  

river systems, shall be treated as though they were the  waterways of a single 
Milk River : tn t l  tlteir  tributaries,  which are now scl)ar:lte tlntl inclepmdent 

drainage  system. 

throughout  the  period from March 1 to  September 30 of each year, both dates 
2. That  the watw available for irrigation from these two river systems 

included,  shall  be  apportioned  to  each of the  two  countries  from day to  day in 
equal  amounts. 

upon  to one-lutlf of the  available  water  during  the  period specified in  para- 
3. That  the  fnilure of either  country  to Pully utilize  the  right hereby agreed 

graph 2 shall  not be regarded as adding  to  or  diminishing  the  rights of the  
other  country. 

4. That  during the period of each  year  not spccificd in  paragraph 2 the 

thc  natural flow of St.  Marys  River,  and  Canada may divert any portion of the 
United  States may divert or hold back in storage  reservoirs  any  portion of 

natural ilow of Milk River,  in  neither case to  interfere  with  existing  rights. 

specified in paragraph ’2 shall  be  determined  in  the following manner:  The 
5. That t h e  apportionment of water  hereby  agreed upon during  the  period 

share to which  the  United  States  is  entitled  shall  be  the total of the follow- 
ing items: 

1 1 3 9 8 - 1 L 6  
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the  natural flow, which  in  the  low-water period is very s n ~ l l .   I t  is fclt that 

of the difliculties which nluy arise from the restriction  tltr~s  phcetl upon the 
the concession asked froln  Cnnatla  in  this regard is a very grest one, in view 

settlers on the b:lnlis o f  tllc river, and of t l rc?  linhility o f  tl:lmnge t o  property 
from  the incre:wetl height of writer, ant1 that  tlrerc is not sulliciertt con1pcnsa- 
tion allowed in  the  treaty for such concession. 

That tlre divinlon of tho w:ttcrs of l l t c  St. IIarys : I I I I ~  JIillr ltivers on the terms 
suggested  in the clraf‘t irwty wonltl, in prnctical  operation, result in  the 
Dominion o f  Cnnndn receiving a less proportion of the  vater   t lml  tltttt to which 
this conntry is eqnit:tbly r~rlitlcd, :IS, nltllou$r thc rights given to the Unitc.tl 
States  over  the waters of St. Ahrgs R i w r  :tre, in ternrs, I ) S I ~ : L J I C C ~  by rights 

equal in volume of constancy of flow to St. ilkirgs Itivcr. 
given to C:ln:rtla with rcqccat to RIillc Iliver, tlre 1;tttor river is by no nxnns 

the  vested  rights created in  Ctmutlx, this cw~ntry slloultl  receive c’onsitlerahly 
That  for these reasons, and in order to  givc a fair nmtsure of I)rotrction  to 

more water  than  the proposed treaty provides for npportioninji t o  it. 
That the Dominion of C:~rrntln is desirous of reaching n settlement of this 

matter and would suggest th:lt, in order to xrrivc :rt :I fair : ~ n d  re:1sorl:lhle :tr- 
rnngenlent, the (:overnnlent of the TJnitetl St:ttcs sllonld :1Iq)oint :I represent:ltive 
to  confer  with :I reyresent~ntive  to be appointed by the  Government of the 
Dominion to  consider 21 hsis  of :tarcement  which may be submitted  to  their 
respective  Governments. 

the sensc of this n~innte. if :~~)prc~vecl, to Iris M:ljcsty’s :tmb:rss;ldor at Wtlsh- 
The conmittee :l(lvise th,lt yo11r ex;cellct~cy 1n:r.v I P  nlorcti  to send :I reply in 

ington nnd to the right honori1ble t,he secretary of state for the colonies for the 
infornlation of His Rhjesty’s Government. 

A11 of which is res1)ectfnlly suhlnitted  for  npproval. 
Itonorwrrn ROIJDHEAU, 

To  the honor:tble the MINISTEE OP TIIE INTYRIOR. 

The  references  to  the  report of the  commission  which  preceded 
this  honorable  commission is on pages 22 and 30 of the re,port of both 
sections of the  International  Waterways  Commission of date  15th 
November, 1906. 

Clerk of the Privy/ Co~cncil. 

I read  from  page 30: 
As questions  involving  the same principles : ~ n d  CiifHculties, liable  to cre:rte 

tries.  i~ffecting  waters 011 or crossing the bouurhry line,  the connnission would 
friction,  hostile  feelings, xnd re1)risuls, :Ire liilble to  arise between the  two coun- 

ciples upon which a11 suc.h qnestions  may be pe:wefullg ~ n d  satisfactorily 
recwrnnlend t ha t  n treaty IIC entered into w1ric.h shall  settle the rules and prin- 

cleternlincil :IS they arise. 
I would  also  call  attention  to  the  authorities  which  are  cited,  with 

approval by all  the  members of that  international  board,  with  regard 
to  the use of such Tiratem. It ma,y be more  convenient  if I read  a  few 
lines : 

The  conmou Inm protects  ri~):~rian  owners  ngninst  permanent  diversions of 
wnter whivh injuriously  affect  their  rights, tmd this law is founded upon prin- 
ciples, not  merely of social  necessity, but of justice  and  right.  While the corn- 
nlon law is not 11 p;rrt of the law of nations, its principles, so far as they  are 
founded  in  justice  and  equity,  ought, where practicnble,  to be applied by nations 
acting  in  their sovereign  capticity. 

I n  other  words,  although  there  may be some  question as to  what 
may be international lam relat,ing to the  waters of a  river  going 
from one country  to  another,,there  can  be  no  doubt as to how  they 
should be dealt  with  under  international  relationship or comity of 
nations. 

Mr. POWELL. Are  there any authorities to  the effect that by the 
common  law of one country,  which is not  part of international  law, 
when  two  countries  enter  into a treaty  with  respect  to a matter 
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which IS the subject of common law, or any law which .is the  same 
on  both  sides, that  is the  basis of the  agreement? 

Mr. MacI;.;P*'E:s. That i s  the  rnle  laid down in cases between the 
different  States of the  Union.  You  are  no  doubt  aware  that  there 
seems to be no  rule  laid  down as to  what is the  international  law 
on  the  snbject ; I mean to say  there  has been no decision on  the 
point as between two  colmtries.  There  is  the  opinion of the  httor- 
ney  General of the  IJnited  States  in one case, and  there is also an- 
other  opinion  by Mr. I'ivarts. ,In  another case, where  the  situation 
was reversed? Mr. Erarts  said:  

proprietors, hut is also cwlltrxry to illat 2;ootl fct.ling a n t 1  11:wmony which ought 
As this i s  IN:( o r 1 1 . v  i r l  tlirtvt o1)jjosit i t ) ) \  io t l lc l  rocogniztvl rights of riparian 

to exist I)c:t\vcwl col:lhorers i l l  J ) ~ I ( * ~ I ' I I I  plIrsuits, tmtl might,  moreover, if  

peuce, I most (xrwst ly  rcyuost, i n  these high intc.rests, that you will  hnve the 
permittctl  to  con(inllt>,  rrsnlt  in  bitter fc\eling a u t 1  possible  breaches of the 

goodness to bring thc n ~ ; ~ L f t v  to t h o  atttllltioll of your Govcrmueut  with a view 
to  procuring a cessation of the mlnoyance ro~rlplainetl of. (1'01. 1, p. 63, Whar- 
ton's Intcrnntiorlal Law Digest.) 

This  was  addressed to  the Mexican  minister,  in  reference to  tho 
matters  complained of. There  the  complaint  was by Mexico against 
the  United  States.  The  appeal of Mr.  Justice  I'iarmon  was on a, 
complaint by the  United  States  against Mexico. 

I may  say  that  that  opinion is not  in  accord  with  the  decisions 
where  the  matter  has come up between two different  States of the 
Union. I can  find  no  case  between  two  countries  where  there has 
been any decision  on the  point. 

Mr. MICNAUL'L'. There could hardly  be a decision of the  courts 
hetween two  countries. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  That is perfectly  true,  but I can  not  find  where 
it has been laid  down  in  any way as an accepted  proposition. 

Mr. &IIGNA~JI,T. It is a matter of arhitration or treaty between two 
countries. 

Mr. MACINNES. Mr. Oppenheim, w h o  is one of the leading writ- 
ers on international lilw, talres the Yiew as laid down  in cases  between 
different Stwta!s of the  Union,  namely,  that  the law as between differ- 
ent  States  is the same ns the law between  different  individual  riparian 
owners. 

I hen, thcre is an  order  in council of the 2d of March: 1908, which 
contnins ille objections  raised Ily the  (hnaclian  Government  as t>o 
wh:tt were  termed  the I2oot proposals,  and  the  suggestion  was  made 
that  the  matter  should he fnrther  taken  up.  Without  going  into  these 
negotiations,  which I an1 not  .prepared to say it would he proper  to 
lay  before this commission, and I do  not  think it shou1d.b: necessary 
so far  as I can see at  the  present  time,  this  treaty,  contalnlng  Article 
VI,  was signed on the  11th of January, 1909, and  ratified  on  the  5th 
of May, 1910. 

r .  

Mr. TAWNEY. Hatified by the  United  States  in  September? 
Mr. Mac:I~~es.. Ratified k)y the  United  States  Senate  in  March, 

1909. H;ltifications  were  exchanged  between the  two  countries  on  the 
5th of May, 1910. The  date of the  treaty is said  to  be  5th of May, 
1910. 

Mr. TAWNEB. The  date of the  treaty is January 11,1909. 
Mr. MIONAULT. It is always  referred  to as of that  date. 
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ah. MACIXNES. Yes; but  the Inst, clause of the  treaty says that  the 
time for it to run shnll he from the  (late of the esclxlngc of ratifica- 
tions. 

Mr. WYrmt. We  of the TJnitcd States haye listened vith  great 
interest  to  the  disc~rssion of the learned counsel for C‘:tn:d;l. We are 
not  apprised of its purpow. We  are not ~ ~ n r n i n d f ~ r l  of thc diplo- 
matic  dimmion  nor  re we unf;~milinr  with all that has tnken plnce. 
If it is the desire of the: cotmsel for Cnnntla 2nd also the desire of the 
commission that  this correspondence  should be pllt in, w e  think it 
shoaltl be done in an orderly w:ly and  that  the whole of thc  corrc- 
spondence  which  either  country  slllmits would be V : I I I I : L I ) I ~  should 
be put in. These discussions on internationnl l a w  :IW no tlonht 1’er.y 
interesting also, but if the le:\r.ncd  connsc?l  on the other side had con- 
sulted  Oppenlleim a little nrore closely lw wonltl h \ - e  fonnd  that 
the  doctrine  he now hys down as from Oppenhei~n mas from some 
little  meeting  in Madrid, Spain, :Ind which W:IS not a t t cndd  by any 
representative of the ITnited States or  Gre:tt Rritnin. Yic would 
also  find that  the cloctrinc so strongly st:Ited I)y Justice llarshall has 
been repeated by the TJnitecl States  Supreme  Court  and  that  other 
eminent  authority has ]:lid down  the  principle  with eqntd empha@s. 

It seems to me that  until  the  purpose of all  this is  made  plain  by 
the counsel for  Canada we ought at least  to know what we are 
driving at. I understood  that  the commission  was about  to  take up 
the  examination of the  engineers on behalf of Canada  when  this 
discussion  arose. If the  commission  desire it, we are  perfectly  willing 
that  this correspondence  should  go  in,  but  all the  correspondence 
should go in between the two countries. 

Mr.  GLENN.  What  Mr. Newell said  about  the  historical  facts  and 
what  Mr.  MacInnes  has  submitted  can  only be  of interest  to  us  from 
an  historical  point of view. 

Mr.  MACINNES. My learned  friend, Mr. Wyvell,  no  doubt  intends 
to be fair,  although  judging  by  the  tone of his remarks one would 
hardly  think so. Mr. Newell  prepared R statement of the  facts 
relating to this  matter,  and I had  not  the  advantage of being  able 
to put my remarks  in  written  form  as  did  Mr. Newell. Mr. Newell 
made  reference  to  certain  historical  facts,  and  he  dealt  with  them 
perfectly  fairly,  and I hope  that I have  done the  same  thing. 

Mr.  GLENN. I think so. 
Mr. MACINNES. I certainly  had  no  intention of doing otherwise. 

It is  not  a  question of formal  proof  on  this,  that, or the  other  thing, 
but it is R question of making  a  statement  on  the  historical  facts 
which  led  up  to  this  treaty,  which  may be of use in  considering  the 
matter. I did  not  think  that  any  exception  would be taken  to  any- 
thing I have said or read. 

Mr. WITELL. There  is  no objection to  Mr. MacInnes’s  statement 
going  in,  but I think it should  go  in  in  an  orderly  way,  and  that  the 
whole correspondence  should go in,  at least that  portion of the 
correspondence  between  the  two  countries  which I, on the  part of 
the  United  States,  would  like  to  have go in, as well as that  part of it 
which Mr. MacInnes,  on  behalf of Canada,  would  like  to have go  in. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I understood  that  the  purpose of counsel for  the 
Dominion of Canada  was  to place the  commission  in possession of 
the  historical  facts  which led up to tho making of this  treaty,  in so far 
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as  Article V I  is concerned, as a n  aid  in  ascertaining  what  the  pur- 
pose of the  Government W:LS at  the time. If there  is  any  further 
official correspondence in t,he State  Department  or  anywhere else 
bearing on the question, it would he clearly  proper  to  have  that  go  in, 
too, as tending to  show what  the  purpose of the  Gosernment was, 
and also  tending to show what  the  conditions JTere that  this par- 
t,iclllnr  provision of the  treaty was to meet and to settle if  possible. 
I have in  mind some  correspondence that pwssed between the  State 
Departnlcnt  and  the  Senate of the  United  States  while  the  treaty 
was  pending  in  the  Senate  bearin? 1lpon this  particular  article of 
the  trenty  for  the  purpose of satisfying  the  Senators  from  the  Statu 
o t  Mont:ln:L. I do  not  recall nl1:at the views of the  State  Department 
were at thnt  time, but I remember  distinctly  that  there  was  an  in- 
terpretation of ,hticle VI by the  Stnte Dep:wtment for the benefit of 
the  representatires of the  State of Montnna  in  the  Senate. I do not 
know  whcther  that  correspondence  is now nrxilable  or  not. 

h l r .  ~ ~ r a ~ v . u r , ~ .  Spe:rlting for myself, T do not  think we should 
refuse  anything  t~hat  would  throw  any possihle light  on  the subject, 
although so f a r  I do  not see how it  is going to  assist  us. I think 
Mr. Wyvell  is  right;  if  part of the correspondence  goes  in, the whole 
should  go  in. 

Mr. MACINNF:~. That is exactly  my vienl. 
Mr. MIGKAIJLT-. So far  as it can  assist us, there is no  objection, that 

I can  imagine,  to  the  whole of it going  in. 
Mr. GLENN. I unclerstood that Mr. Newell read  what  he  called 

an historical review of the case, and  that Mr. MacTnnes was giving 
his  side of it. 

Mr. MACINNES. That  certainly was my  intention.  My  learned 
friend is at  liberty, I suppose, to put  in  any  documents  he  may 
require  in  the case, but,  what vas  in  my  mind,  as (iov. Glenn  has 
atated,  was  to  make  an  historical  statement, as Mr. Newell did yes- 
terday  morning. 

Mr. WYVELL. Mr. Newell's statement %vas with  regard  to  the  physi- 
ea1 and  engineering side, rather  than  the  historical side of the case, 
and,  naturally,  on  the  suggestion of your honor I expected to hear 
the  engineers  on  the  other  side  making  similar  statements.  We  have 
heard  no  response  to  this  invitation  to  meet  the  suggestions  which 
we have  prepared,  and  for  the  present we understood  in  the  ordinary 
way  that  the  physical  facts  from  the  Canadian  point of view would 
be  presented  first. 

Mr. POWELL. The  suggestion is that you  will  be  allowed to  supple- 
ment  what  has been put  in by putting  in  your  side of the  history of 
the record. 

Mr. WyvmL. I have no objection to  this  going  in,  but I wanted 
to be understood  that  when we  come tQ that  point we will  probably 
want t,he  whole  correspondence, or at  least  that  part of it which we 
feel it desirable  should  go  in. 

Mr. TAWNKY. That  part of the correspondence  which  relates di- 
rectly to  the  situation between the  two  Governments in respect to 
these  waters  may be  of assistnnce to t'he  commission. 

Mr. GLESN. I understood  Mr.  MacInnes  to  say  that  he mas put- 
ting  in  the  historical  part of the case, and  thnt  he t y : ~ ~  not mnlsing 
the  statement  for  the  purpose of basing  any  argument  upon  it. 
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Mr. Maclsxrs. I did not  snbmit any  argument  upon  it. 
Mr. (;mxx. And it i h ;  preIimin:l~*~~ t o  the  statclr~cnt wilich he 

intends t o  sulrmlit on the 1):tI.t of tlw engineers. 
A h .  M.zcTsxes. That is cntirclly cor.r*ect. J only intcnt1:xI this 

as :L s t ;~ t c~e r r t ,  o f  hi: : to~-iwl  ft1pt!.<! : t i l t1  1 thot!ght it, :I gootl \v::,Y 
make  it. brcn~lsc thc gronnd h:\s :~li*cndy betw (:o~-cr.c~l. i n  ;pnW:ll 

the  matter  before y m  was by referring to the  pd,ic:lllar t loc!~u~c~!ts.  
My  intcntion is to follow that my putting  in  the pllysicnl facts we 
hare lolowledge of 011 o11r side. 

Mr. WYVELT, .  I have I)ren r:ltht.r expecting  so^: indication of 
purpose on the  part o~f tllc C:lnncli:ln representatives i\s t o  . c ; h t  llrcir 
object  was in  not  limiting the tc&lnony to the pbyic:1l -fncts. If 
there is any pu-pose on the p:"t of the Canaclinn r.cp~*cwntntiws  in 
offering  this  trstilrlony ~ n t l  this col,r,csl)ondcncc, we S~IOI I ! :~  know it. 
We  did  not ask for  it.  I'crhaps  the  gentleman  ~\oultl !)e willing  to 
state  what  it is. 

Mr. MACINNES. It is for the  same plurposc exactly a s  Rh.. Newell's 
statement of this  morning, for tllc  pnrpose of enabling  the conunis- 
sioners to know such portion of the  history of this case as may be 
necessary to ilhuninnte  t,heir consic.lemtion of the pl1ysic:rl facts. 

Mr. GLENK.  Mr.  Wyvell,  if you remember, Mr. Newell re:;d ahuost 
substantially  what Mr. MncPnnes is putting  in, xnd it lool~ccl to me 
as if Mr. MacInncs's s ta t~nl~nt  -,Y:IS on ! l is side :L prescmta! ion or a 
qualification of somc of the facts  whicl~ Mr. Newell ~ : L Y C  in  his 
statement.  After Mr. Newell made his stntclncnt yon followed it 
up  with  certain Pacts, :~nd  I s~ppose AIr. M ; \ c , T I ~ I ~ < Y ~  is p ing to do 
the  same  thing. 

Mr.  WYVELL.  There  are  certain  limitations on us. We  are  not  here 
submitting  anything, so far  I know,  on  the  part of the  United 
States,  hut if it is thought cleslrable a t  this  time we have no objection 
in  calling  the  attention of the commission Lo the  fact  that I thinlr 
has been clearly bro1tght out by Mr. Newell that  the  duties of the 
commission are to apportion  the w:lters to be used, as distinguished 
from  the  waters  that  run  to waste. If the commission thinks,  in  their 
perfprmnnce of these  tlnties, the  historical  side of this  thing should be 
admitted, I am  erfectly  n.illing it shol1lcl go in. 

Mr. GLENN. w e not only have to do that,  but we have  to  constrne 
Article  VI, and anything  throwing  light on that  is  certainly  very 
gratifying  to me. 

Mr. WYVELL. That Iwings up the  point  whether it may be  well for 
the  representatives of the Unit,ed States  to  state  what  their exact  posi- 
tion  is here. The  position of the  United  States Gal-ernment is that 
Article VI-and it is made  clear  here because of the  invitation 'on the 
part of tho commission and  the  desire on the  part of the  representa- 
tives of the  United  States  to  furnish such information as mag be 
valuable  to  the commission. and  not for the  purpose of submitting  any 
issue-thitt Article. VI  deals  with  international  waters only-that is, 
waters  which  originate in one  country  and  which  either flow, or if  not 
interfered  with would flow, across the  boundary  line  into  the  other. 

The first two sentences of the  article  lay  down  certain  general  prin- 
ciples of equality  and  division,  the  object  being  to  secure  a  more bene- 
ficial use of the  international  waters.  These  sentences likewise pro- 
vide the  maximum  amount of water to which  each  country  is  entitled 

terms, :Ldll?iJ'ablJ7 1 1 , ~  M I . .  N e ~ l l .  : ~ r l t l  I thollght t,he Iwt  WIJF to gct 
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whenover in  the  remote  future  the  plans of either  country are de- 
veloped so that  this  maximum  amount  can  actually be applied  to 
beneficial use. 

The  waters  to be divided to  determine  this  maximum  amount  are 
the waters of the St. M:wy Xiver,  which,  originating in  the  United 
States, flow from  the  United  States across the  international  boundary 
or which would cross jt if  not  interfered  with,  together ~ i t h  the 
waters 01 any  tributaries of the St. Mary  which,  originating  in  the 
United  States, flow therefrom across the  boundary,  reaching  the St. 
Mary in  Canada,  and  the  waters of the  Milk PZiver, which,  origi- 
nating  partly  in  the  United  States  and  partly  in  Canada, flow from 
Canacta across the  internntiol~al  boundary at the  point wllere the  Milk 
leaves  Canadian  territory for good, said point  being  known as  the 
eastern crossing, or which  would  would flow across  said  boundary 
if not  interfered  with,  together  with  the  waters of any tributaries of 
the &till< which,  oripinnting  in C'nnnda (Aow either from the  Province 
of Alberta or Saskatchewan, or both,  across the  boundary  line, or 
which  would iiow across i t  if  not  interfered  with,  and  which  tribu- 
taries  empty  into  the .Aililk in  Montana below the  eastern  crossing; 
measurements in the case of each river  or  tributary  to be made  at  the 
boundary  and  each  country to  be charged  with  the  amount of water 
received by it at  the bount1:lr.y and  the :kmount of water  diverted by 
it, which  said  water  otherwise  would flow across the  international 
boundary. 

The  last  paragraph of the  article  charges  the  International  Joint 
Commission  with  the  duty of directing  the  measurement and appor- 
tionment of the  waters  to be used  by  each country,  not  with  the meas- 
urement  and  apportionment of waters  which  necessarily  run  to waste. 

It is il!tlmssit)k to me:w\re xnd apportion  the  joint  waters  eqnally, 
because neither  country  is  in a position to apply to  i~eneficial use the 
maxinlltm  alnollnt \:.hidl the first paragraph alltliorims.  Therefore 
i t  is  submitted th:!t no t lwmlica l  division of Ilnwetl  waters  which 
rtm to w:lstr sho1l!.l  no^.^- be attculptetl, when  all colrcetle that the 
wate1.A car1 nc:t h ,  ill fact, (lividcd ctl:~ally or ap1)liecl to I)eneficial use. 
It is  sllggested.  thcmior*e, thnt tho conmission  direct  the  division of 
the w : ~ t ~ r s  wl1ich are to I)c : ~ ~ i ! ~ a l l y  11~etl  on thc lands,  ratifging  the 
estahlishnlcnt of the present int.ernationa1 nl::asuring st:tt,ions, estah- 
lishing a r ~ y  new o:les I\ 11ic:h it tlecrrls ll!lc<\:<:;>try, :mtl nwcting the 
problems of division :IS tireg ~~011le 1111. 

The prio~. rights n~entionetl i i l  the M ( Y I R ( ~  senttvlw sho~rld, ol' course, 
al\vags bc o1,ser\-ct1. 

Mr. ' P ' A w ~ I ; Y .  Mr. Mdrlnt!~;,  I think  yo^ nlay well proccetl with 
the statenlcrlts of  your er1g.incrl.s now, if p o t 1  h:lr-c :my stat,enlent to 
offer in  regard  to  the  ~)hys~cnl i':lcts that l ~ r e  heen presentetl by the 
Government of the, lrnitetl States. 

The matter  which Mr. Wyvell has presentetl to the colulnission will 
be  considered in connection with  the cpel-tir:n, that it is  incumbent 
q x ) z l  the  conmission t i t  this  time to deciclc, mmely, whether or not 
the  conmission is prescril)etl to t!le limitations nlentionetl.  JTllile 
we are here now we might as well go on with  the  hearing  in  the cb;tse. 

Mr. W Y ~ L I J , .  It ];light be well to ask the reporters  to  write  out 
that portion o f  Mr. MacInncs's  stntement  wllich  refers to th?  papers; 
not necessarily qt!oting from the  papers, herxuse if he gives the refer- 
~ I I W  we can  probably  identify them 
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I wish,  in  the  first  place,  for  the  information of the commission, to 
ask  t,hxt a11 of the 1)>11)(’rs. estrttcls from which were read by Mr. 
Maclnncs or rel’etwc! to l ) ,y  hiln. for t,he infomlation of the commis- 
sion, he printed i l l  tht.il* entircty in  the rwortl. a n t 1  that  in atldition to  
those  papers tJllere E ) e  printcxl with tlxm, first. this st:ttemcnt : 

The :Ict 1 m o n - n  as t l~e  i.eclaIn:~tiorl :act. appropriating- 
Mr. Alii:NLzr:I;r (intc~mlpting). 1s  thnt :I Ftntcincnt lnn(le hg yon, 

Mr. ITyvcll or something  from .r\hich you qnotc? &rl.. W Y V I S L L .  This is I!:V st:ltnnent, to 1)e printed  alongside of the 
stnt,emcnts m : d c ?  11y XIr .  h1:IcTtmcs. 

Tltc act  known :IS t , h  rec*!:tlnntion :~c t  aypropriating  the recttipts 
from  the sale and clispowl of pl~hlic 1:lnrls in certain States and Terri- 
tories to the construction o f  irrigation worlts for the  reclamation of 
arid l:lntls, w : w  : t t l o ! l ? d  ,T1lilc 17. 1902 ( 3 2  Stnt.. 2%). 

While  this nct  n n s  under corlsiclemtion by Concress :I report on 
the question of rec1nrn:ltion of arid lands W M  snbmitted by the  Senate 
Committee on Pnblic Larttis (S. Rept. No. 254, 57th  Cony., 1st sess.), 
which was accompanied by a letter from C. D. W:llcott,  Director 
United St!:ltcs GeologimI S ~ ~ r v e y ,  dated dan11aj-v 25, 1902: presenting 
“ a scriesof  approsirnnte cstin1:ltes of the  possihilities of land reclamtl- 
tion by irrigation,” :inlong which were the  following: 

ST. 31 A R T  I)lVERSION C.\NAL. 

River, in  northern Montann, :rntl cmrying it  across  gravel  ridges  to the Iientl- 
1 ’ 1 ~  Irrol,osetl St. M:wy tliversioll ca11u1 is for taking  wntrr  from St. Mary 

waters of Milk River.  The  engineer’s  estimates of the  quantity of earth and 
rock  to he moved ant1 of the  cost of the  diversion t l c m  ant1 other  structures 
have  not  yet been  completed, but  the incomplete conrpnt:ktions indicate  that  the 

Fork of &[ilk ILircr  will he $686,500 ; to the Soilrh B’ork, $1,173,000. 
prohabllt cost of taking 1,200 cuhic feet per scwml over the divlde to the  North 

T t  is proposed to cwntinnc the  canal  to  the  Sonth Fork, as it is not  considered 
practicable for the  Canatlinns to divert  water  at any point in Canada  from  the 
South Fork or  from Milk River. 

River, if necessary,  in  the  future. 
From the  South Fork Tvnter (’an he talcen over to Cutbnnlc ant1 east to Milk 

mo~rld  have a probahle  value of $25 per acre, or $3,000,000, and would sustain 
There ~voultl be reclaimecl by this canal 120,OOO acres,  all  public  land,  which 

a population of 30,000. 
I ask  also that  the  following  papers  be  printed  in  the  record: 
The  British  nmhassador was advised by the  Secretary of State,  in  his  note 

Council, :qq)rovetl Octohw 97, 1902 (sce 1). 5 S ) ,  hat1 been laill  hefore the 
of December 29, 1902, that  the  matter  contained in the  Report of the  Privy 

Secretary of the  Interior,  to whom the  Director of the  Unitcd  States Geological 
Survey  had  reported, as follows : 

River  easterly  into  thc head of Milk River and urges,  first,  that hy so doing 
“ The corresponrlence relates  to  the proposed diversion of waters of St.  Mary 

property ill Cmada  w o n l t l  he injured,  and, second, that  the  water, if turned 
into 3Iilk River, could he  taken  out  again  in Ctlnntla. 

“ In  rekition  to  the first claim,  the  situation shoultl tle cloarly  horne  in  mind 
that  the Cantrdinn canal  can  utilize only the summer flow of the  river. More- 
over, the  canal  has snst:linecl estensive in,jnric% by the flood of 1902, the head- 
works being  destroyed, so that  the  canal has not  recently been in use. 

‘‘It is proposed hy the engineers of the  Reclanlation  Service to hold the 
flood wIters  in  St. Mary  IAre,  and by so doing  further  destruction of property 
i n  C’:~na(l:r wonltl he :~rcrtetl. Thwe flood waters  are  not of use l o  the Cnnarlian 
rant11 ant1 v : r t ~  not he  ntilized, as the opportunities for storage w e  sitnaterl in 
the TJnitwl States. 

It is not lroposctl to t a k e  n\v:ry from tile (:;lnutli:ul c4ur:ll the  nuter neerlrtl. 

supply its needs. 
but, on the c:ontr:lr.v, it is known that sufficient wrtter will rcnch this  cannl  to 
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1)IVERSION OF XlILK RIVER, MOKT. 

MARCH 14, 1904. 
The  honorable the SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR, 

Washington, D .  C. 
SIR: I have  the  honor  to acknowledge, hg reference  from the department 

dated  March 3, for  report  in  duplicate  and  return of papers, a letter  from  the 
Acting Commissioner of the Oflice of Indian Affairs, dated  February 29, trans- 
mitting a communication  from W. R. Logan,  United  States  Indian  agent,  dated 
February 19, and a letter from Mr. W. R. Sands, dated Fehrunry 7. 

being  constructed  to  divert water  from Milk River, nncl this will injure  the 
This correspondence  calls attention to the  fact  that  the Clanadian cnnal is 

property of the  Government,  particularly  the  irrigation  system  upon  Fort 
Bellrnnp Reservation.  The  matter is one of great  inlportance  to the Govern- 
ment, as well as to  the people of Montana,  and I respectfully recommend that, 
as suggested  in  other  letters, the matter  be  taken  up  through the Department 
of State. 

The papers  referred  to  are  returned  herewith. 
Very respectfully, 

C ~ a s .  D. WALCOTT, Director. 

Mr. MACINNES. I understand  that  my  learned  friend  took  excep- 
tion  to  my  statement of fact,  which I understood  to  be  simply a 
statement of fact  and  not  an  encumbering of the  record  with a lot 
of correspondence. 

Mr. WYVELL. I took  no  exception  whatever  to  anything  that has 
taken place, but  merely  made  the  suggestion  that  the  letters as re- 
ferred to  by Mr. MacInnes be introduced  in  their  entirety  and the 
remainder of the  correspondence be introduced  with  them. I will 
ask that  that  letter be considered. 





WISIIINGTON, April 10, .1908. 
SLR: I have  the  honor  to nckno\vle:lge the receipt of your note, No. 290, of 

yesterday's tlntc, in  which yo11 inform  me that Mr. F. H. Newell has been clesig- 
nated  to meet the  Canadian  rqresentative  to consider the  basis of an agree- 
ment  with  respect  to  the  qurstion of the diversion of the  waters of the Milk and 
St. R'Iarys Rivers. 

I have  just  rewived a colrnnurlication from tlle atlministrator of the Dominion 
of Canada  stating  that Mr. W.  E'. King, (!hit?€ astronomer of the Dominion, has 
been appointed  the  representative of the Cauatlian Government for the same 

fail  to  notify  his-arrival  to you in order that he may meet Mr. Newell as soon 
as possible. 

humble servant, 
I have  tlle'llonor to be, with  tlle  highest  consitleration, sir, your most obedient 

The  Hon. ELII IU ROOT, 

I n  those  last  two  letters i t  mas made  known  that  Mr. Newell would 
be  the  representative of the  United  States  and  that  Mr.  King  would 
be the  representative of Canada. 

Mr. MTWAULT.  We can put  in Mr.  King's  opinion. It would  be 
probably  not  to  the  same effect as  Mr. Newell's. However, I would 
not want to exclude  anything  that is material. 

tain officers were  appointed  on  the  sides of both  Governments,  and 
that  they,  with  the  assistxnce of the  diplomatic  representatives of 
both Governments-Mr. Root, I understand,  as  representing  the 
United  States,  and  Viscount  Bryce,  who I knom personally  had to 
do  with  the  drawing of this  treaty,  and others-reached an agreement 
which is embodied in  Article  VI. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I think  that Mr. Gibbons  had  as  much  to do with it 
as Mr. Bryce. 

JAMES BItYCE. 

Sccrctnry of State. 

Mr. MACINNEB. We now come to  the  point  where we find that cer- , 
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Mr. MACINNES. There  were  varions  gentlemen  interested. Mr. 
Chandler  Anderson  was  also  interest,ed  on  behalf of the  United 
States. Now we have  reached the  point  where  these  definite  negotia- 
tions commence, with  the  result  that you  find  before  you  Article VI. 
Now,  surely it can  not be  evidence  before  yon  as to  what were the 
various  drafts  or  memoranda  passing between the  two  parties which 
resulted  in  this  agreement. . 

Mr. GLENN. You  put  in a good deal of that  yourself, Mr. MacInnes. 
Mr. MACTNNES. Nothing  that I pnt  in  went  beyond  the  date of 

1908, prior  to  the  appointment of these  two  gentlemen. I do  not  feel 
that   i t  is necessary for  my  learned  friend  to  put  in  this  additional 
correspondence,  but  let it go  in,  only  to  that  point, however, be- 
canse anything  snhsequent to  that woald have  to be amplified  by 
these  various  gcntlemcn who drew np  this  draft.  We have to  deal 
not only with  this  matter, hut with  other  similar cases which  may 
come before  this commission. I am not  mnlring a statement  at  ran- 
dom, but I may say perfectly.  candidly  that I do  not  think  there is 
anything  in  these  drafts whic,h wollld assist this  court  to  an  interpre- 
tation  or which wo111tl he pre,jndicbi:11 to Canatla in  its view as com- 
parctl. with  what  might be prejudicial to  any suggestion  which has 
been more  or less tentatively  put  forward  here. TZnt on  the  matter 
of principle I shoultl have  thought  that  drafts  are  not evidence be- 
fore m y  court. 

Mr. TA4\v~m7. Mr. IlilacTnncs, this is nn inquiry on thc  part of the 
commission. I do  not  think  there is any  parallel at all between this 
proceeding  and a proceeding  upon  a  stated issue. The  inqniry of the 
cornmission is for  the  purpose of ohtaining  information  concerning 
the  physical  facts,  and sl1c6 information as can he obtained  concerning 
the  intont of the  high  contracting  parties  in  entering  into  the  agree- 
ment  which  they  hnve  with  respect  to  the  division of the  waters of 
the M i l k  :ml St.  Mary Eirers. T think  that the reprcsmtatives of 
both Gowrnments  can  safely  rely  npon  the  members of the commis- 
sion or cdixens of both rollntries i n  determining  whxt is material  and 
what  is  not  material.  Anything  that  may  throw an37 light  upon  the 
intent of thc  two  Gor-crnnvmts  with  respect to the division of these 
watcrs wo11ld not control, but it might  assist the commission in 
arriving a t  n fair ant1 eq11it:rl)le clctcrmination or jntlgment  as  to 
w h t  the division of the  wntrrs  should be. I do not  think  it  is  mate- 
rial one way or the otller  whether  the  correspondencc goes in or is 
kept  out.  brcanse it is  the  fnnction o-f the commission to  obtain  this 
information by applying  to the C:orernmmts directly. It does not 
seem to Inr  to he n matter over which there could he any  serious con- 
trorcrsv, althollgh mv associates mav  not  agree  with me. 

Mr. MACTNNES. I n  all  respect  to  that  last  proposition, T should  like 
to go on record as  excepting  to  that view. I understood  that  the com- 
mission  would be more  or less under  the  dictation of the Govern- 
ments. 

Mr. TAWNRY. I do not  wish to be  understood a s  saying  that  the 
commission is under  the  dictation of either  Government,  but T say 
that me are  at  liberty  to  obtain  this  information  that  is  contained  in 
tho correspondence preceding the  signing of this tpeaty,  if we  d9em it 
material. It is simply  a  matter. of the convenience of the comrnlss~on 
to have it in  the  record for the  purpose of ascertaining, if possible, 
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the  intent of the  two  Governments  in  making this treaty  with respect 
to an  interpretation of Article VI regarding  a  division of these 
waters. 

Mr. MACINNES. That would  be  entirely  within  the  discretion of 
t.he  commission. 

Mr. TAZ\VNEY. This  is  an  inquiry  and  not a trial  on a  stated issue. 
Mr. POWELL. What is the object of this? 
Mr. W ~ v e r , ~ , .  This  is  for the information of the commission. 
Mr. PowmL. Tha.t  information  must  have some  relevancy. What 

i. the object of i t ?  
Mr. WY\-RT,T,. It TWS started  to  be  introduced  by Mr. MacTnnes, and 

I thought  it was an excellent  chance to  fnrnish  in one  publication  the 
e,ntire correspondence, on this  one  important  matter. I will say that  
my views correspond es:dlv  with those of the  honorable  chairman, 
and it collld hardly be  expected that  the  Government is submitting 
these  things  for  the decision of the commission upon an important 
difference  concerning tlle constlnction of the  treaty, because thnt  must 
comc 111) on  the  request of the two Governments. This is an  inquiry 
on  the  part of the commission to rn:tble it to cnrry out its duty,  and 
the lJnitecl States  is  willing  to  submit  its  entire  correspondence so as 
to grlidc the commission  in t l ~ o  future. The files of the  State De- 
partment ~ I I X  ar:lilnble. Why ~vonld  it  not be a good  plan  to  hare it 
accepted now and  ha,^ i t  completely  published? 

M I . .  GLESN. When Mr. MncTnnes introduced  his  testimony I ob- 
jected on the p l m d  that I clitl not  think  it compctent, and I have  not 
ch:In_rrecl mv mind in  regard  to it. Now, you put  in :t great (leal  more, 
Mr.  Wyrcll, which 1 think i s  absolutely  incompetent. I f  a part of it 
got's in 1 think it, :t11 shorlltl go in,  but whot they say  or  do  will  not 
control 11s. 

Mr. WY\TI,L.  ‘That is t,rno for- t,he  purpose, of carrying  out a divi- 
sion of water. to  be llsecl by each colmtry, but i t  can hardly  be as- 
sumed that we w o ~ ~ l t l  sulmit -For :x clrcision-that without  request of 
either Govcmment the commission is going to decide an  important 
dif€t:rence of opinion  rega.rding  the  treaty. 

Mr. POWEI,T,. N7e have t,o t:lke the  treat,y.  We  have  no  power  to 
refrarne  the  treaty any nlore than we could  reframe an act of Parlia- 
ment. 

Mr. TAWNBP. Does this correspondence  corer  the  consideration of 
this question  preceding  the rrutlring of this  treaty? 

Mr. WYVELL. Yes, sir;  it is merely to complete the record. Mr. 
MacInnes  read  the first par t  of it. 

Mr. MA~TNNICS. T absolutely  challenge that  statement. 
Mr. ~VYVELL. I think  the  record  will  bear me out  in rny statement 

that  he  referred to the  drafts  submitted  by  Secretary  Root  and  that 
he  read  from  them. 

Mr. ~ I A ~ T X K E R .  Excuse me. I did nothing of the  kind. I gave  the 
date when the  proposal was made. I did  not  read any part of i t   or  
refer  to  any  part of it which  would  lend  any color to one side or the 
&her. 

I would  like to  reply  to  what Mr. Glenn  has  said. H e  knows  per- 
fectly well as a lawyer  that  there is an absolute  distinction  between 
evidence  showing  the  position  in  which  the  parties  were  when  they 
made  a  contract  and  evidence as to  the  drafts  which passed  between 
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thetn. The correspondence  which I put  in I am  milling  should  go 
out  except  the dates. It deals  only wit,h matters of history. Nom 
we are  denling  with a \vholly  different  rrlnttrr. My learned f r i e n d  is 
seeking to put  in here, to influence the  minds of the commission, per- 
haps,  drafts nnerpI:~ir~etI by Mr. ( feorge Gibbons,  Mr.  Bryce, Mr. 
Root, :md other  eminent  gmtlerrlcn  connected  with  the  matter. 

MY. GI,I~:XX. M I * .  RI:lcInnes, you r e ~ d  certain  things  with regard t o  
the privy council,  etc. 

Mr. M A ~ N K E S .  1’erft:ctly true; lnlt I did  not  rmd  from  any pro- 
posals or :my dmft  treaty. 

M I - .  GLELVN. I clo not  think  he is. 
Mr. M A ( t T N s w .  This is the  point wc? are now discussing, as to 

Mr. (;LESS. H e  is Iwding from letters. 
Mr. MI\cIxxIi:s. So ; he is rending  frorn  va,rions  drafts. 
Mr. MT(:NATJLT. I would say  that  they  would  not influence me, 

because if  there is an  eletnentarp rule in  the  jurisprudence of both 
countries it is  that  drafts of an  act of Parliament OK* of  tln act of Con- 
gress,  the  reports of a commission, for  instance,  which  led  up  to  the 
passmg of an  act of 1’:~rIi;tlncnk OI* an :d, of Congress, am i r re lennt  
as evidence. 

Mr. WYvmr,. If your honor plcase, with all due  deference to  your 
honor’s jatlg~ncnt ant1 that of the conllnis:jion, I think one of the first 
principles  laid  down  by  the early English  writers  is  this  proposition, 
that  while  yon  may  not  introduce  evidence to  contradict a written 
instrument, mheee the words a.re ambiguoYs, parol  evidence  to ex- 
plain it must be taken  and  considered. 

w h e t l ~ r  my lear~letl frientl sllol~lcl or shol~ld not pnl; in draft,s. 

Mr. Mroxaux,~. That  is a different  rule. 
Mr. nTYvmrJ. I : I I ~  submitting t,his for t l ~ e  inforulation of the com- 

mission and m e ~ d y  to complete the record which is now partially 
before you. It consists of mrious  rnenwranda  which pnssed  between 
Dr. King  and Mr. Newell. 

Mr. Powmr,. Are there many of them? 
Mr. T;CrYvT:r,IJ. There are possibly eight  or ten. 
Mr. MrmAxrI,T. Perhaps yon might ~ ~ x d  them, and then we can see 

whether  they  should  go  in or not. 
Mr. GLENN. Why put in so much  incompetent  testimony,  gentle- 

men? For diplomatic  rcasons,  let it go  in,  but it would  not go in 
before a court. 

Mr. WYVELL. For the  information 0-f the commission, considering 
the  Alaskan  boundary  situation,  in  which  Great  Britain W:LS inter- 
ested, I note  the  following : 

It is to  be  noted in  this case that  the United St:ttes arhifrat.nrs placed great 
reliance upon circunlstancaes surrounding the signing of tho  treaty they were 
called upon to  interpret, as well as upon the official Innps usetl by the countries 

pretation by all parties concerned. 
in  interest, and a long course of dealing which constitutetl a pr:wtical inter- 

Mr. MIGNAULT. That is another  principle. 
Mr. POWELL. That  is a contemporaneous  interpretation  which 

stands by itself. 
Mr. MrGNAmT. 1 do not  want  to exclnde  anything, Mr. Wyvell. 

I would  rather  that you have  full  latitude to put  in  everything you 
desire. 
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depletc the wrtcr slllqjly of  on(> i l ~ t ~ . I . l l : l t i o n : l 1  stre:r~n for the knef l t  of another, 
Leaving aside \\h:lt :lplw:trs to be n w r y  wrions qncstion of undertaking  to 

yonr prnl)~~s:~I  is 1h:tt (';11!:\(!:1 1vIinqnish its  rigllt  to t l w  tliffero~lce  between 
what it i s  c.onnlrittctl to s ~ ~ ! ) p I y  an(1 ollt.-half of t l ~ e  flow of the river, and 
shnll fnrtlwr provitlv : m t l  1i~:Iil:t:~in lor yell, for a11 time, i t  c;ln:ll system,  over 
100 n1ilc.s in length, I)cillg t i l t ,  C ! I > I I I I I I J ~  of' the l l i l l r  I:ivcr, for the  tr:lnsportation 
of the :l1:wn!It yon \voul(l \vith(lr:t\v froln St .hI:~rys River. 

in  Canada, as previonsly rtL'twc.d to, aut1 w o u l d  Ilintler the  nntural tlcvc:lopm?nt 
The witht1raw:~l f'ronl St. Jh rys  ltiver wonltl seriously affect rested  interests 

of the country, while t l l e  passagre of :I I:wgc I~otlg of matt,r tlown the Milk 
River Channc:I might (wrry with  it  sorions conseqn~n~e!:. 

Nevertheless,  in  the intcwW,s of friendly coopcmttion brtn.cen tlte  two eonn- 
tries, Cnn:ttl:l is I n o s t  tlcsirous of rc:rching :I settletneut o f  tllis  qnestion, ant1 to 
that entl  will he milling to rcwtle to some est tv~t  from the position  which it is 
believed shc is cntitlctl to txke :IS to her rights,  both on St. nlarys a n t 1  Milk 
Rivers. I accorcliugly suhmit.  for your consitler:ltion tho following proposal : 

at the ( l a m  site of St. hl:lrys reservoir, for s l o r : ~ ~ ( ~  dnrillg  the months of Janu- 
That  the Uniterl States sllall be entitletl t o  all the \v\-nter of St. M : w p  Iliver 

ary,  February,  March, Novenll)er, and Decwnhrr in each year. 
That Unnatl:r shall be (Jntit-let1 to tlivcrt 5rmn the natnrnl flow of St. Marys 

River 1,400 cubic feet per second during  the  remaining  months. 
That  the  excess flow of St. ilIarys River  (luring  the  Inst-mentioned period, 

above 1,400  second-feet, shall he divided cqu:llly hetween  the  two  countries. 
That  the Unitetl States sllall he entitlet1 to all the  water of Milk River  during 

the  months of January, Febru:wy, March,  August,  Septentber, October, Noretn- 
ber, and December of each  year. 

That  Canada  shall be c%titletl to divert from the  nntural flow of Milk River 
to the present  capacity of the Cnnndinn  mill^ River C:xn:11, agreed upon as  being 
330 second-feet, tlnring  tho  months of April, Mag, June,  and Ju ly  in each year, 
subject  to  the  rights of appropriation frolrl 1he Milk River  within  the  territory 
of the  United  States, as existing at the  (late of the Cnn:ldi:ul Co.'s appropri- 

the courts of Montana. 
ation on RIil!r Itiver (2311 Oct., 1902), :lntl nov 1)eing jutlicially  tletermined in  

That  the  natural flow in the Milk Hirer  during the months of April,  MHY, 
June,  and  July  in  each yc:lr in excess of the  tlrnoul~t of 330 second-feet, together 
with 1 1 1 ~  illllonllt reqIlir(v1 :IS : ~ l ) o v c .  fly the  :l~)~)rolIri:~tions  in  the  lower valley, 
shall he divided  equally between the two  countries. 

for  the  transportation from St. Rfarys River of the  waters  therrof to which they 
That the  United  States  may use the  channel of hfilk River  throngh  Canada 

are  entitletl  under  thc  foregoing provisions, hut shall be responsible for the 
proper control of the  waters so trnnsported. 

Yours, very  truly, lv. F. ICING. 

M A Y  9, 1908. 
Dr. W .  F. KING, 

Chief Astronomer,  Ottawa, Cantrda. 

to look over the hydrographic  (lata  in connection with your metnorandum of 
M Y  D I C A ~ ~  DR. ICrrvc: Since you left  here on itfay S I have been endeavoring 

May 1. The thing  that  strikes me first  in looking over our figures is that  the 
prnl)osition you make woultl deprive us of storage  in  St.  Marys 1,:tkes during 
serernl years of low-water flow. I can  not at present  discuss  this  matter  or 
make a counter  proposition  in  the  form of a ~ne~norandum,  but hope to do so 
ancl to  take up with you in  correspondence a number of the  details as oppor- 
tunity offers. I am writing to you at this tinw to keep the  matter alire and  to 
let you know that I am considering these details. 

Very  truly,  yours, 
F. H. NEWELL, Director. 

Thnrrxxox AkSTl:oNoMIC.kL Ol?sERvATORY, 
T)ICI~. \~WMENT OF THE INTERIOR, 

O t t n w n ,  Ctrnadn, -18th M a y ,  1908. 
F. €1. Nl:WII:I.L, Esq., 

Director, United Stcites Reclanmtion Scruice, 
Washinyton, D .  C. 

DEAR MR. NE\~EI,L: I beg to  acknowledge  receipt of your  letter of the 9th 

deprive you of storage  in  St.  Mary  Lakes  in  low-water  years. 
instant,  in  which you point  out  that  the  plan of division I suggested would 
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You would in ury event get the wl~ole of the wilrtor flow of St. Mary River, 

slzlre of the total flow of the year would be tlimirlished relatively  to ours, but 
whatever  that woultl be. It is no doubt true  that i l l  low-water  years your 

the  contrary  would hagpen in  high-water  seasons, when our share would not 
be increased above t h e  average nmowlt :IS much :IS yours would be. I should 
think  some pclrt of the  variation nlight I,(! obviated by beeping water in 
storage. 

I shall be plat1 lo I~cztr f rom you on th is point when it is convellient for you. 
Yours, very  truly, 

\V. b'. KING, Chief Astronomer. 

&IAY 25, 1908. 
Dr. W .  14'. KING, 

Chief Astronower, Ottawa, Cmada. 

storage  in St .  M:ry River. I a111 en:le:lrorin,g to  have  the  details  computed, 
M Y  UEAB DR. K I N G :  Your letter of May 13 Ivas been received, regarding 

so that I can  discuss the mattcr  more  intelligcntly  with you, but so f a r  the 
results (lo not appear favorable. 

I am trying  to n~alie arrnngemeilts so that I can  suggest a definite  time to 

by the  papers our Congrcss has uot yet  adjourned antl I am still  submerged 
you when we c a n n  meet on the PI.. >lory River, bu t  you  hnvc probnbly noticed 

in  the t1et:lils in  which you found me engaged. 
truly,  y(JUrS, 

11'. H. NEWELL, Directov. 

OCTOBER 15,  1908. 

Mary-illilk ltiver matter, I IIOW inclose c.ert;lin colnments which I hope yon 
3 1 ~  1)~c.w Dl<. K I N O :  ILt~l'wri~~g to  your tnemoranduul of lllay 1, on the  St. 

will consider antl sent1 >I reply to me a t  Washington, so that I C:LII take up the 
details whcr~ I roturn to the city in  1)ec:cml)cr. 

Very truly,  yours, 
F. H. NEWELL. 

MEIIOB.\NI)IJM E'O11 COI\"MIJ)J~I~.~~TION I:Y DR. \V. F. K I N G  ON ST. ICAlLY-MIIX RIVER MAT- 
( 1 ,  lE118, OCTOBER 15,  1'308, 1N EIWLY TO 131s ME&IOR.\NDUbZ DE' MAY 1, 1808. 

The following  notes htlvc been prepared to  review  the  fundanlentals  and to 
facilitate clisc.ussion lextlirlg to 3 clearer untlerstantling of the  problems  pre- 
sented by the  internatiorial fwl-urcts of the St. Mtwy and Milk Rivers In 
northern I\lont:llm ant1 southern  Alberta. 

PlIYSIC~\J ,  COI\I)I'I'lONS. 

St. Nary ltiver  rises in the United Stat,es  and Ilows uorth  into  Canada. 
On its headwvnters in h1ont:lna are  natural  lakes, whose utility as storage  reser- 

stored f low c:m be  diverted by :L cari:ll now under  construction by the  United 
voirs can be increased a t  relatively snlall cost. hIuch of the natural  and 

the  eastern  portion of 1-he I%l:~ckf'ret Irltlian  1teserv;ltiou or farther east. 
States  antl t ; l lw l  enst to or  cross the hentluxtcm of Mill< River to land  in 

About 3 miles  north of the  intrrrlational  border, a canal  built  under  author- 
ity of the Canatlitm  Governlnent diverts most of the  low-water flow to  irrigate 
lands rmar Lethbridge  in  Alberta.  This  canal is being  gradually  enlarged from 
a capacity of ahout 385 c2nl)ic feet per second. I t  can be used not only to 
irrigate 1:1nds directly  but  also  to  take water to natural  lxtsins or storage 
reservoirs  within  or near the  irrigahle areas. 

Milk River rises in footllills east of the  head of St. Mary  Iliver. It flows 
northeasterly  into  Cant~da, : w t l  after continuing  in uarrow valleys  in a general 
way  parallel  with the boundary for about 150 miles, turns southerly  and  crosses 
back into Bfontana,  finally entering Missouri River. It has few, if any, economi- 
cal storage  sites,  and  its flow is relatively s111all t ~ n d  irregular. All of its avail- 
able  summer flow was early  appropriated and put  to beneficial use in  irrigation 
under  the  laws of the  State of Montana. 

northerly  to  the  vicinity of Lethbriclge, but this  canal has not been ust? and its 
The Canadians  have  also  built,  in 1904, a canal  to take water from this river 

headworks  were  washed  out i n  the floods of May, 1908. 
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l ' i ~ l K ~ ~ l l ~ l . l X  ~;OYEl~iYl iVG 1 ) I S ' ~ i t f I ~ U ' l ' I ~ ) ~  01,' \V.\'I'I*:~:. 

legislation : I n d  jntliciul prowwlings o €  :wit1 co11ntrir:s. ITntlrr it,  first  in  time 
The doctrine of priority of appropriation h:~s 1 ) c ~ ~ ~  gerrc~r:~llg rccognizetl in  the 

gives first in  right, If L h t .  rivers  nndor  co~~siclor;~tion \vc?1*e entircly in either 
country  this princ.iplplt, wonltl untlou1)tedly govern, but  it h:~s :~lso hecn heltl that 
each  country  being  indepcntlent may not recogrlixe : I n y  swvitntle  in  the  waters 
which  occnr  in  that  country  in  favor of t h c  otller. C:rn:lda, in  the  opinion of 

the  waters of Mi lk  E v e r  to :I coqmr:ltion, :Ilthongh thost. wntcrs ~ c r e  : ~ I r m l y  
citizens of Montan:l, has I ) c v n  the  aggressor in  granting or attempting to  grant 

appropriated  antl used untlcr the lams of tllc St:rte. A mass nwAilrg to  protest 
against  the  construction of the Canatlian Milk ltirer Canal was held ut Chinook, 
Mont., on FeBru:lry 13, 190.2. 

of these  principles  shall preclonlinat-e, n a ~ ~ o l y ,  priority of w e ,  or intlependcnce 
The decision of the  matters  at  issne  hinges nxiinly on the  qnestion as to  which 

of foreign  claims.  The  first  necessitates a full and  mntually beneficial agree- 

but will  involve large  antl possibly unnecessary  expenditures on the part of exch . 
ment,  necessarily  sorne\vl~at cornp1ic:ttetl. The sccond  needs no furlht~r treaty, 

country. 
1NI)XPENL)ENT ACTION. 

The United  States will probably he most bonefitect in  its  future  growth by 
absolute  independence  in handlirlg the  water which arises or occurs in its  terri- 

sion  will be expensive.  They are nlreaily under way, however, and  public  senti- 
tory.  The  first  outlay will be large, as the works for  water  storage  and  diver- 

returns.  Their  full development will  ultinlntely  result  unfavorably  to  Canadian 
ment  seems  to  be  in  favor of their  future  extension  regardless of immediate 

interests  in  years of low water supply. For these  reasons, viz, first,  to  secure 
greater economy in  construction  and  operation,  and, second, to  promote comity 
with  Canada,  an  attempt  has been made  to  bring  about  an  amicable  and  mutu- 
ally beneficial arrnngememt to he confirnied by treaty  with  Great  Britain. 

HIS'IWILT OF NEGOTI.\TIONS. 

Rates to  take active  measures  to  protect  their interests in the waters of Milk 
The protest of citizens E'e1)rnary 13,  1904, to  the  President of the United 

River, Mont., was  referred by Hon. John  Hay,  Secretary of State,  to the 
Department of the  Interior,  and  was  reported  upon by the. Director of the 
Geological Survey at that  time  in  charge of the  Reclamation Service. It was 
then  urged  (Mar. 12, 1904) that every possible means  he  taken  to  secure an 
equitable  settlement of the question. 

approved  minute of the  Privy Council of Canada of July 8, 1904, stating that 
On July 15,  1904, the  British  ambassador  transmitted a note  covering an 

the Canadian  minister  had  allotted 1,500 second-feet of Milk River flood waters 
and 500 second-feet of low-water flow. 

On August 31, 1904, Mr. F. II. Newell, then Chief Engineer of the  United 
States  Reclamation  Service,  visited  Lethbritlge  and  other  points in Canada, 
discussing  the  physical  situation  with Mr. E. T. Ganlt, president of the Cana- 

Mary and Milk Rivers. 
d i m  Northwestern  Irrigation Co., who  were  building  the  canals  from  St. 

About  October 10,  1904, a suitable  note  was  addressed by the  Secretary of 
State  to  the  British  ambassador  to  the  end  that  every possihle means be taken 
to  secure  an  equitable  settlement. 

On December 30, 1904, Secretary of State  John Hay addressed a note to the 
British  ambassador,  Sir R. M. Durnnrl, calling  attentton  to  the  conditions 
existing  and  suggesting a  conferonce of representatives. 
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IJRAI*'T I ' l ~ W A I ~ l C l )  El' P. 11. Xfi~I~lCLI~.  

I>~cc:~nrn~sn 29, IOOS. 

shall  be tlivitletl equally  in quantity as nc:Irly as pr:rctirahlc bci\rccm tlle two 
That the watcrs of each st r (?a~n flowing across the  internntional  boundary 

countries;  that is to say, the waters of St. hltlry lliver  and  its  tributaries 
crossing  tho  interu:ltional honnd:lry shnll be monsnretl :IS they (TOSS the hound- 
ary alltl :tn eqnnl :umnunt apportionctl  to each country, due allowance  being 
made for tho qntintjty storetl :ll)ove the point of nlwsurc!lnellt.mt in  reservoir or 
reservoirs  constructed hy the United States; also the waters of the north  and 

United States iuto  Cnnadn,' ant1 the m a i n  Milk Itiver ant1 its tributaries 
south 1)r:inrhes of Milk Ilivcr  shall he Incwsuretl where  they cross froin  the 

being  nmle  for auy water  diverted or stored  in  either  country  before  reaching 
measured where they cross from Can:rda into  the  United  States, allowttnce 

We points of measurement. 
Inasmuch as the  water of the  rivers  have  widely  different  values at dif- 

ferent  times of the  year, and have especial value  during  the  irrigating season, 
this latter shall be taken as including  the  time  from  April 1 to  September 30. 
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A priority  to  the  right  to  the  use of a portion of the  water of St. Mary River 
shall  be recognized as aygertaining  to  Canada  to  the  amount of 400 second-feet, 

of St. Mttrg River at the  international  boundary  being  less  than  double  this 
the :rnmunt now put  to beneficial usc;  and,  thus  in  the ercnt of the  natural flow 

an~oullt--nun~ely, 800 secolltl-fcet-ttlerl the  United  States  shall w:live for the 
time  being  its  claim  to  the full eqnalily of the  natural flow during  the  irrigating 
season as above defined, :Inti shall pcwnit a full flow of 400 second-feet to pass 
the houndary, providing  this is furuished by the stream in  its n:ltur:tl condi- 
tion;  that  is to say, water  sl~nll not  he allowed to  increasc  in any reservoir or 
reservoirs  constructed by the  lJnitetl  States,  but  the  entire mktural flow shall 
be allowed to p : w  without  storage or diversion throng11 tllc  reservoirs  without 
accnn~ul:~tion  therein  until lllr. stream yirltls a t  t h c t  intw1ultion:ll boundary 
400 sccorltl-feet, but  the [Juitcd Sttrtes  does not :\ssunle m y  obligation  to  main- 
taiu  this  priority of 400 secontl-feet by lneaus of water previonsly stored. 

On t!le Milk River, t d s o ,  tllert. shxll btx rcw)gliisetl :ts esiutin:: tl  priority i n  
the  United  States  to :nr extent of 359 secwntl-ft:ct o f  the 11ntura1 1 1 o \ v  of Milk 
River, : ~ u t l  tllis :nlIolirlt of' f l i t :  uatnr:ll fioiv shxll I)(+ :tlIo~vcttI t o  pass from Canatla 
into t,hc Unit.ed St:ltes  witllout t l i~~~inut ion  of the nutur:rl tlo\v of the  stream 
during  the  irrigatinx :;c:IsoIl whw  the  river :1n11 its tri1)lit:tric.s git~ltls  this 
qu:!utity or a less  amount. ( A t ~ ~ a t l a  :Issuules IW (11)Iig:~tion to su1q)ly any' n:ttural 
deilciencg in  Milk Itivt.r to nmintain 359 scvcrntl-feet, bnt s11:tIl tlivort 110 water 
when the f l o w  falls below this :unonnt. . 
be permitted  to  divert  water  in  excess of the  priorities to :IIA :Inmulit not es- 

Aftcr  the  priorities :tbore described  hxve Ileen provided for e:~ch country shttll 

ceeding  one-half the 1latur:Ll  flow o €  the  streams.  In conlputing this one-half 
the  priorities :\hove described  shall be iuclutled;  thnt  is  to say, the 400 second- 
feet  in Milk ltiver  shall  form :x portio11 of the one-h:llf of the  river :rllotted to 
C;tnad;l, ant1 the 359 secoutl-feet, or :IS ~ ~ l u c h  thereof :IS is obt:xin:rble from the 
n;ttnr:ll flow sli;lll be considered :IS part of the one-half of Milk River  \mtcrs. 

year of supplying  the bt1ltlnce f r o u  storage  to lnake the  qu:rutities  esnctlg  equal. 
Neither courltry, however,  assumes  responsibility in case of tleficiericy in  any 

Uurillg the  winter  nlonths, or llonirrigtiting se:lson----that is  to say, from Octo- 
ber 1 of cwh year to Nhrch 31 of each ye;1r"the United  States may store in 
reservoir or reservoirs  all of the  water ol,t:linable 011 the he:lclw;Iters of St. 
Mary Itiver,  providiug  th;tt  the :tggregilte of said  stornge  shall  not exceed  one- 
half  tlle  totxl :unlunl flow of the  river. 

the no1lirrig:rtirlg season  all of the  maters of nIilB Kiver, 1roviding that  the  total 
111 the s:tnle \wg C::unatla ~n;ry store on the  hcadwilters of Milk 1:irer (luring 

unmult (toes not cxc.eer1 oiIe-hIf the  natural flow of the strcwnl. I n  case of 
excws of one-hulf, the reservoirs on either  stre;rm shxll be operatetl  to  release 
sufficient w:tter to  equalize  the tot:ll dnring  the year. 

In  considertrtion for  this eqa:rl division C:tn:tti;~ will perrnit  the 1:nited States 
to send down through  the ch:lnllel of  Millc River  undiminished  in qu:untity the 
water  which  nlay h;lve bccn stored 119 the  1Jnited  States in i ts  own territory. 

The  United  States sl1:111 inalte  cornpens:~tion to  the  owners of Inutl along Milk 
Itiver in Can:I(h for :Ictunl tlanruges resulting  from  the eonveg:lnce of stored 
wxter  tllrough  the  cha~nwl of Millc River,  due  to  wnshing :rw;~y of 1:tnd or tliifi- 
culties  iu  crossing  the  stream  Said da~n:~gcs s h d l  be ascert:linccl by mtking 
an ap[lr:lis:il of the v:~lue of the  lowlands which rnny be  :Ifft'ected along  the 

the conlplction of the stor:lge : 1 n d  diversion worlrs in the United States :tnd the 
course of the  stre;lnl within six mouths  from  the signing of the trenty.  After 

turning clown of w:tter through Milk Itiver,  then  another v:tlutltion shall be 
n1:Iclt: of the lwttonl lmtls,  :~nd on the b:1sis of NAY decrease  in  value  over  the 
first valuation  the Uuitetl States shrlll nuke  intlemnity  to  the owners of the land. 

DRAFT RECEIVED FROM M R .  GIBBONS WIT11 H I S  LISTTER OF DECICMBER 31, 1'308. 

AwrIcm VI. It is agreed  th:rt  for  the  use of irrigation  the  St. Mary and Milk 
Rivers  (in  the  State of Mont:Ina and  the  Province of Alberta)  and  their  tribu- 
taries nrc to he tre:lted R S  one stream, nncl the tot:rl amount  that can be diverted 
from  the  two for such purpose is to  be  distributed so that  each  country  shall 

taken  from  one  stream  and  less  from  the  other by each  country, so as to afford 
have  the  right  to one-half of the whole, but  in  the  distribution  more  may ba 

a more beneficial use to each. 
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appropriation of 360 second-feet of the flow of St. Mary River during the irriga- 
It is agreed  that there  exists 011 the  part of Caurtda the right to 11 prior 

tiou seas011 between the 1st of April and the 31st of October, inclusive,  allnually, 
and  that  there  exists a similar  right on the  part of the  United  States  to a prior 
appropriation of 360 second-feet of the flow of Milk River  during  the  said irri- 

the 1Jnited St;ltw  for  the conve~mce,  while  passing  through C;llladian terri- 
The cllaurlel of .the hIillr Ilirer iu C>anada may be use& :It the convenience of 

tory, of the w:lterx of St. Mary ltirer  stored  iu  the  Vnited  Stxtes.  The  provi- 
sious of Article 11 of this treaty s1i:tll :~pply  to ally injury  resulting  to  property 
in C:ln:ld:t  fro111 the c:onveg:lnce through  the Milk River of the  waters from the 
St. Alary River. 

to titno IN? m m l e  joilltlx by the 1m)~~crI.v const,itutrtl  ~cc~la~n:ttion ofliccrs of the 
Thct ~ I I ( ' ~ I S I I ~ ( . I ~ ~ P I I ~  of  1-lw w:ttvr so 10 I w  usrtl by c~rcil cwnt ry  sllall from time 

United Statcis : t r l t l  thc: propc?rlg collstitgic~tl  irrigation otKc.c\rs of C:tr1~1(1a under 
the tlireet-iolr o f  tllr  111tc~1xttio1~1  Joint Conlulission of tlle Unitrtl States and 
C:muc!a. 

received  by Sir (ieorge  Gibbons  from  Mr.  Chandler  Anderson. 

gation  season. 

Mr. MACINNIN. My inforlnation as to  this  draft is that it was one 

Mr. WYVBLL. No; it was just  the reverse. 
Mr. MAUINNES. Somebody  IS J)ut a statement at the  top  there, 

but  my  information is that it was to  Mr.  Gibbons  by  Mr.  Anderson. 
Mr. WTVELL. The  information  that I have  is  that it was  sent by 

Mr. Gibhons  to  Mr.  Anderson  in :L letter  dated December 31, 1908. 
Mr. Mlc:Nnur,rr. Could  that be cleared LIP in :my way? 
Mr. WYVELL. Well,  that  is my infovmxtion from  Mr.  Anderson. 
Mr. MICKAULT. Are  these copies  certified'! 
Mr.  WY~ELI,. No ; they art: not  certified. 
Mr. MIc;\.i\uL.l.. It is not  that I r:iisc any question, bat  there  may 

be a misapprehension. So f a r  as it corxld he used, it would be very 
material  to  know  whether it was a draft by Mr.  Gibbons  or a draft  
by  Mr.  Chandler  Anderson. 

Mr. 7VwEr,L. My information is that it wts a draft received  by 
Mr. Anclers,on from Mr. (iibbons.  However, it does not  make  very 
much difference, I think. It was a n  expression of views between the 
two at the time. I wish nlso to introduce a. draft  submitted  by Mr. 
Anderson  early  in  January, 1909. Unfortnnately, it is not  dated. 

Mr. MACINNES. This  me, I submit,  can  not go on the  records of 
the commission until it has been  verified. It has never been seen on 
our  side  at  all. 

Mr. TT'Yvmr,. I f   i t  is understood  that we can  submit  these  later, 
I can get them  in a little  better  shape. TJp to  this  time I am abso- 
lutely cert:lin as to  the passage of the correspondence. From  this 
point  on,  owing  to  the absence of dates  on  these  drafts,  there is some 
uncertainty. 

Mr. MACINKES. I know my learned  friend  intends  to be entirely 
fair .   He h a s  already put  in  certain  drafts.  This  draft  is  from  an 
original  draft  and,  therefore, it could  not be subsequent to  the ones 
he  has  already  put in. 

Mr. WYVELL. I have  not  put  in  any  original  drafts by Mr. Ander- 
son, I think. I said an  original  draft by Mr. Gibbons. 

Mr. MACINNES. I wish to make it perfectly  clear to the, commis- 
sion  that I am  not  seeking  in  any  way  to  take  advantage for Canada 
in the exclusion of anythmg. I do not  know  that  this  hurts or helps 
one country  more  than  another,  but I would  like to know  where it 
came from. 
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Mr. MICNAULT. Under  those  circnmstances, it might Le nlore  regn- 

Mr. TAWKEY. To wh:Lt does it relate? 
Mr. W Y m r , r , .  To this  pnrt of the t ~ ~ ~ t y .  Mr. Anderson  has B 

record of severd  drafts, which I carefully looked orer before  coming 
from  Washington. Thew? drafts werc copied and  sent  to me, and 
they,  unfortunately, hear no dnte; and the  drafts  in his office  bear no 
date.  There  is  no  doubt  about nnytllir>g domn to this  point. 

Mr. M I G N A V I , T .  Is there arly e-t~iclcilct? tht t  these drafts by Mr. 
Chandler.  ,$ndcrson were conlrunnie:~tc.tl to Mr. (icorge  Gibbons? 

Mr. 'IV~ver,r , .  Yes; they lwre  in conference a t  the tlme. 
Rlr. M~xaur ,~ . .  Mr. .inclc,r.son may 11:l.m m:de a tentative  draft 

a n d  not submitted it. € l e  may have  kept it a~nong his papers. That 
wo111d, of course,  not 1 ) c  nl:~terinl. II:\.en supposing you could make 
this evidence,  unless the c1r:Lft llas Iwen  hancled over to the  other  side 
it  certainly  should  not be used. 

Mr. W r m r d r J .  I am wry frank t,o s:ly that I can  not  speak  definitely 
8s to  the  exact  manner in which  these  two  days'  negotiations oc- 
curred. I only  know  that  those were draft  treaties  passing haclr- 
ward and forward, those  three,  and I obtained  this  information 
from  Mr.  Anderson. 

Mr. M r G N A u r x .  O f  course, we will xdmit that it woald be mere 
hearsay. We have no information  that  these  drafts  were passed  on. 

Mr. G r , m N .  Can y611 show, Mr. Wyvell, as a matter of fact,  that 
this  particnlnr  draft \\Thich I hold  in  my  hand was given to  the  other 
side Z 

Mr. WYVEI,L, The  two  other  pnpers whicll I am to  submit  later, I 
think,  will  definitely  establish  that f::ct. 

Mr. MIcm,\ur,T. I presnme, Mr. Wyvell, that  if these drafts  are 
different from Article VI of the  treaty, it is nss~tmed  that  they were 
not  accepted  by  the  other  side? 

Mr. W Y V I C I L  There wcre changes  made, of course,  before it was 
finally  accepted. 

Mr. MTGNAUTX.  That is the  tronble  with  drafts of a n  agreement, 
and  that is the reason  why the  agreement done is evidence of what 
the  parties  intended. A clrnft of an agreement  is  no evidence. 

Mr. WYVELL. I assume that yon gentlemen will give  them such con- 
sideration as you deem proper. 

Mr. MICNAULT. Yes; we mill allow them  to go in with that  under- 
standing. 

JkIr. WYVELL. There are also  two  undated drafts of treaties  sub- 
mitted hetween Janrlnry 1 and  J:lnmry 9,1909, reading,  respectively, 
as  follo-tvs : 

Mn. GIBBON'S'S DRAFT.  

lar  to  have certified  copirs. 

Milk Rivers  (in  the State of Montana  and  the  Province of Alberta) and  their 
ARTJCJZ VI. It is agreed  that for the  use  for  irrigation the  St. Mary aud 

trihntaries are to be treated as one  stream, and the total amount  that  can  be 
divertctl from the  two for such  purpose is to  he  distributed so that each 
country shall have  the  right  to one-half of the whole, hut  in  the  distrihution 
more  may be taken from one stream and less  from  the  other by each  country 
so as to afford a more beneficial use to  each. 

It is agreed  that  there  exists on the par t  of Canada  the  right to a prior 
appropriation of 360 second-feet of the flow of St. Mary  River  during  the 
irrigation  season  between the 1st of April and the 31st of October,  inclusive, 
nnnually,  and  that  there exists a similar  right on the  part of the United  States 
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to a ~ r i o r  cuwroprintiou of 360 second-feet of the flow of lliil; River during the 
said  irrigation  season. 

T’he channel of the Mil lr  River in Canada may he used at   the  convcnicnce of 

of the  wntrrs of St. Mary River storotl in  the T!nitc:d States. The provisions of 
the TJnited S1:itrs for the conveyance, while  passing  through Chnac1i:ln territory, 

Article I1 of this tretltp shall apply to any  injnly  reselting  to  prolwrty  in 
Canarla  from  the conveyance through  the !31ilic ILivcr of thc n : ~ t r r s  from  the 
St. Mary River. 

The  nmrsurenmlt of ‘the  water SO to  tbc 11srtl hy r a v h  country shall from time 

the  Unitrd  States  antl  the  proprrly  conntitntrtl  irrigntion ofkcrs  o f  Canada 
to tirne he nlacle jointly by the  properly  constitntctl recl:lnlntion ofliccrs of 

under the (tirevtion of the Interl1;Itional Joint Con~n~ission of thr Tnitwl States 
and Canadtt. 

ol:I(:IN2<r.  miwr ( 2 .  P. A .  

A w n c ~ r x  VI. It is ngrectl th:tt rach country sh:lll 11:1vt> the c.scltlsivc> ri;:ltt t l )  

one-half of the natural flow of thc St. &Iary nut1 Milk 1livc.r::  :jrul their h*il)u- 
taries,  the :rmount thereof to he tleter~ninetl a t   the  points of stor:rg:cb :1nt1 tliver- 
sion r m l  at the bountlary by ~nrasureinents m:l(le Jointly hg t l ~ c  properly con- 
stitutetl rrcltunation and irrigation officcrs on either aitle of the ho:lntlary ; and 
the ch:~nuel of M i l k  River in Can:rtla mng hc nsel nt the con-;cnicwcv o f  the 
Unite(] States for  the corlvcyance, withont  intcrfrrcncc, while p:rssin~ throw‘h 
Cannt1i:rn territory, of the waters o €  either  river sttareti in t l ~ e  l - r l i l t v l  Stnt.rq 
and constituting any part of its one-half share. 

to  property in Canntln from the  convrymce thror~gh the Nilk Itirer 01’ the 
The  provisions of Article I1 o f  this treaty sh;;ll aiqjly to :III:: il1jur.v rcw:l! h g  

waters helonging to the ITnitctl States. 
It is further  agreed  thxt there exists on thr  [a:trt of tile  Unitwl Ci:ltes tllcb 

right to :I prior nlq)ropri:!tion of  4 I O  feet o f  the  wttural flow of the F.x iws  of tl1e 
Milk River  during  the  irrigation se:lson h e t w c o ~  April 1 nntl t‘, !It<’I?!liCY 3 ) ,  
annually, ant1 that  there exists during  the S ~ I I I P  scnson a ri;:l;i on 11:c ;::!rt 

the  maters of the  St. Mary River,  and tluring tlw Iwriotl a h o ~ c .  I I I P I ~ ~  i o w t i  such 
of Canatla  to a prior  appropriation of nn  equal anwunt of th<t !;;ltllr:\I flow of’ 

prior approprintions shall not he suhject  to  reduction by the (Jther country. 
(Mr. Wyvell  introduced :dso three  telegrams from George C. Gib- 

bons to  Chandler P. Anderson,  dated  Jannary 9, 1909, and two  tele- 
grams from Mr. Anderson  to Mr. Gibbons,  dated  January 9 and 
January 10, 1909, respectively, all of which are copied into the 
secord  in full,  as follows:) 

Cco. C. Gi,bbons to CILcmdlel’ P. Sndcrson. 

OTTAWA, ONTARIO, J U I L ~ M I ’ U  9 ,  1.W9. 
CIIANI)l.RlI E’. A NIIEIISON, 

Mills Iiuiltliirg, 85 Wall  Rtl‘cct, N c w  York Citll: 
Home  authorities  suggest  the following vh:~ngc~s, all of which I thinlr YOU 

can  concur  in  to  hring  treaty  \vithin  constitution : 
Article 1: Instead of “ tlrtl  in1r:lhitnnt:; of tilt, Unitetl Stntes  antl  Canada ” 

‘‘ both  countries ” say “ hnth of the high contrac.tiri:: parties.” 
read  “the  suhjects of or ritieens of the high contracting  parties.”  Instead of 

the  high  contracting  parties.” 
Article 2, last  p:iragraph : Instead of “ neither Government ” say “ neither of 

and  Canada.” 
Article 3: I n  name o f  commission strike  out  the words “ of the  United  States 

Article 6 :  Say “Provinces of Alherta and Snskntchewan”;  change  name of 

stead of “other  r ivers” say “ the St. Marps River.” 
the commission, leaving  out  the words “ of the  United  States  and  Canada ” ; in- 

Artlcle 7 :  After  the words “ United Kingdom appointed hy ” put  in “ His 
Majesty on the recommendation of the Governor  in Council.” 

Article 8 : At the end  instead of “ the  two  Governments ” say ” the  high con- 
tracting parties,” and later  instead of “ between the  two  Governments ” say 
‘‘ between them.” 

11398-15--”7 
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Article 9, second line : Say “ differences arising  between  them ” instead of 
“ between the  United  States  and  the Dominion of Canada ” ; after  the  words 

Canada.” 
“ common frontier ” put  in “ between the  United  States  and  the Dominion of 

Article 10, in  first  line:  Instead of “ United  States  and Dominion of Canada ” 
say “ between the high contracting  parties.”  They  suggest  that  the  nrticle of 
The Hague Convention is wrongly stated.  Should  be 45, sections 4 to 6. 

Article 11: Instead of ‘‘ Secretary of S ta te”  say “Governor  General of the 
Dominion of Canada.” 

Article 13 : Instead of “ The Governments of the  United  States  and  the  United 

“ arrangement. 
Kingdom ” sa;, “ betweeu  the  high  contracting  pxrties ” ; change “ accord ” to 

Article 14 : Instead of “After  its  date ” insert ‘‘ dating from {late of exclunge 
of ratifications.” 

imn1edi:ttely. 
Exoect to  hxve this afternoon  full  confirmation of whole, and will wire you 

GEO. C .  GImom, Ridcau Club. 

Ccorgc G. Gibbom to  Chandler P. Altderdolt. 
BRANTFORD, ONTABIO, Jamary,  10, 1909. 

CHANDLER P. ANDERSOPT, 
Metropolitan Club, Washington, D. G. 

by article 2. You can  rely will never hear of contention  again. 
Distinctly  understood all right to object  Minnesota waived save as protected 

GEO. C. GIBBONS. 
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Chandler 1’. Andcrson to Ceoryc G .  Gibbons. 

JANUARY 10,  1909. 
GEORGE C. GIBBONS, 

London, Ontnrto. Canada: 

2, relying  npon your assurance that objection to diversion in Minnesota will 
Have accepted a11 nmcndments ant1 decided  to sign without change in  article 

not  be further urged. 
CHAXUI,ER P. ANDERSON. 

Many thanks. 
GEO. C. GIIZI~ONS. 

Mr. WYYEIJ, .  ‘l’llat conlplctes the docu1nentary  evidence  which we 
have  with  relation  to  the  signing of the  treaty. 

STATEMENT OF MR. R. J. BURLEY,  IRRIGATION  BRANCH,  INTE- 
RIOR  DEPARTMENT,  CANADA. 

(Mr. It. J. I)urley, irrigation  engitmr, \\.as then  examined by Mr. 
MacInnes.) 

Mr.  MACINNER.  Will you  tell us exactly, Mr. Burley, what  position 
you  hold in  the service of the, I>orninion Government? 

I Mr. Bmray. 1 a m  irrigatio,; ciigiwer in  the ernploy of the  depart- 
ment of the  interior of (‘nnada. 

Mr. MAGINNER.  Wonld yo11 state ho\v long you have  held  that posi- 
tion  and  what h~ been your connection  with  the  subject  matter of 
this case ’1 

Mr. BURLEY. 1 h a v e  been in the employ of the  department of the 
interior since July, 1902, up  to  the  present  time. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Is the  Cypress Hills Water Users’  Association an 
incorporated  body ? 

Mr. BURLEY. I think  not. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. Who conlposes i t  ‘1 
Mr. B m t r a Y .  It is c(Pmpo:jed  of a body of farmers  who  subscribe SO 

much per year  and  have  annual  meetings  in  their  own  interests. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. How long has it existed? 
Mr. 13unLr:Y. It has recently hcld its  third  annual meeting. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. Docs it issue reports ? 
Mr. BURLRY. So far, no. It is hoped they  will be included  in the 

Western  Canada  Irrigation  Association  report; it is a subsidiary 
body to the  Western  Canada  Irrigation Association. 

Mr.  MACINNEB.  Your  headquarters  are at  Calgary? 
Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. MAcI~~~NES.  You have  knowledge of the St. Mary River  and 

Mr. BURLEP. I have. I have been over both streams practically 

Mr. MACINNES. And I understand you have  prepared a summary 

the Milk River  situation? 

from  source  to mouth. 

of what  you  consider to be the  geographical  sltuation? 
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Mr. BURLEY. I have. 
Mr. MACIXXE~S. You are a civil  engineer! 
Mr. BURLEY. I am. 
Mr. MAC;INNES. You ;we a  member of the Cumtdian  Society of 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. MAC‘INNES. And a graduate of what  university? 
Mr. BURLEY. I am :I graduate  in  the  faculty of science, Toronto 

University. 
Mr. RIACINNEH. Will you give  thc  comnission  the benefit of your 

study of the  important  geographical  features  affecting  the  drainage 
basin of the St. Mary  River  and  the  Milk  River? 

Civil Engineers ? 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 

The St. Mary River rises in  north\\-estern  Montana  on  the  eastern . 
slope of the  main  range of the Rockics, in  a  region of perpetual  snow 
and ice. The  stream flows out of the  Blackfoot  glacier  (probably  the 
largest  in  the Rocky Mountains  within  the  IJnited  States)  and is 
joined by at  least a dozen lesser stlmrrls uniting  within  a  short dis- 
tance of their sources and flowing into  the  Upper St. Mary  Lake. 
Below  this,  separated  by  a  narrow  strip of land,  lies  the  Lower St. 
Mary  Lake,  the  total lerlgth of the  two  being  about 22 miles. 

The  river flowing  out of the  north  end of the  lower  lake is joined 
about 2 miles  down by Swift  Current Creek,  a  stream of about  the 
same size, rising  to  the  north  in  the  Grinnell  and  other  glaciers  and 
flowing  out of small  nlountain lakes. Some 4 miles below this  Ken- 
nedy  Crcek flows in from the west and near the  international  line 
Boundary Creek flows in  from  the  north. 

With  the  exception of 13onndar:y Creek on the west side and  Rolph, 
Pinepound,  and Potholc Creeks on the east  side, this  river  rises  in  the 
main range of the I<ocl<ics. \\here  the  precipitation  and run-off are 
high, and  alttlougil tlw tlr:~in:tge  are:^ in  Montana,  tributary  to  the 
stream,  is  compxlxtiwly snlnll practically all  the  water comes from 
this source  and, as :1 consequence, the  stream,  while  snbject  to  great 
fluctuation  during the stmlncr, has :1 fairly  constant flow during  the 

Milk 1” 
winter, and during  the  irrigation season it never  dries up, as does 

\Iver. 
Lying in the mollntains, the catclllnent  area  receives a heavy  rain 

and snow fall, averaging a h 1 t  fiO inches  per  annum,  and  the run-off 
is correspondingly lnrg.e, averaging X ) $  inches  per  annum at  the  inter- 
national  boundary  during :I period of  11 years for  which  records are 
available, so that  although  the  drainage  area  above  this  point is only 
452 square miles, the  average  annual run-off’ is  over 735,000 acre-feet, 
forming  more  than  three-fourths of the combined flows of the two 
river systems at  their  last crossings of the  boundary. 

This river has a comparat,ively rapid  fall  throughout its course, 
especially  between the St. Mary  Lakes  and the Alberta  Railway & 
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Irrigation Co.'s intake,  the  elevation of the  water  level of the  river 
at  variol~s points being :ts follpws: 

. ~ ........ "I- /" 

............................. 
13.5 367 28.4 

l9:; I $;! 
22.3 

34.0 466 13.7 
9.8 

:ro. n , 264 8.3 

I n  the  upper  part of the  stream d l e y  the  banks  are,  as a general 
rule,  gently  sloping on the west side of the  river,  while a number of 
cut  banks of clay  and  snntlstcne are  found on the  east  side  down to  
th'e crossing of the  United  States  Reclamation  Service  siphon  west 
of Spider  Lake,  where a valley  extends  eastward  into  the  drainage 
basin of Rolph or Willow  Creek.  Below this  point  almost  to  the 
intake of the  Alberta  Kailway & Irrigation Co.'s canal  the  valley 
banks  are  high  and  in  many  places  precipitous,  especially  through 
township 1 in Canada,  but  from  this  point  to  about  the  center of 
township 4 the valley is  wider  and  the  slope of the  banks  much  more 
gentle. I h m  here on  the  stream fiows for some distance  in a  deep, 
narrow  canyon,  with  almost  perpendicular  banks of clay  with  layers 
of sandstone,  and l o ~ e r  clown while the valley is wider  there  are 
numerous  clay  and  sandstone  cut  banks  which  effectually  preclude 
the  possibility of diversion  for  irrigation  purposes,  and,  if  reasonable 
cost is a consideration,  there  would  appear  to be no feasible  scheme 
for  the  diversion of water from this  river  for use on  the bench lands 
at  any  point  mnch below the  south  boundary of the Blood Indian 
Reserve. 

The bed of the  stream  from the St.  Mary Lakes to  the canyon in 
township 4 is collzprised of gravel  and  bowlders,  and  the  banks of sand 
and  gravel  almost  entirely.  This bed formation is characteristic of 
the  stream,  althongh  there is more roclc and  the bowlders are  larger 
in  the lower  reaches,  while the  water is more turbid, affected probably 
by  the  clay  banks  along  this  portion of its course. 

I n  the upper  part of the  stream  where  the  grade  is  high  there  are 
several  channels, in places, separated  by  gravel  banks,  but  lower 
down  this  characteristic is lost and  the  stream  appears to  be confined 
to one channel  and  within well-defined  banks. 

Forestation  along  the  stream  valley is practically  absent  north of 
the  mouth of Swift  Current Creek,  and  while  there is a sparse 
growth of aspen,  willow,  and  poplar  above  this  point, it is not  present 
In snfficient quantity  to  be  commercially  valuable. 

The  principal  tributaries of this  river  are  Swift  Current Creek, 
already  mentioned,  Kennedy  Creek,  and  Lee  Creek. 

Kennedy  Creek,  flowing  in  from  the west is similar  to  the  Swift 
Current  in  many ways, and  although  smaller  forms  quite  an  impor- 
tant  addition  to  the flow  of the  river. It rises in the  mountains be- 
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tween  the  head of the  Swift  Current  and Chief  Mountain,  and, 
although  the  catchment  area is small,  the run-off per  square  mile is 
large. 

Lee Creek riscs on  the  north slope of Chief  Mountain, crosses the 
international  boundary sonlc clista11c.e to the wcst of the St. Mary, 
and  after flowing some 15 miles through  Canaciim  territory  joins 
the  stream  east of Cardston. It has a 1:~rge flow (Itwing the  spring 
and  early  summer,  hut during tlle rern:rincler of the year the flow 
drops off rapidly  until, during the  winter  months, there is scarcely 
more  than  enough  to supply the tlo~rlestic  neetls of the  settlers  along 
it and  the  municipal rcq1tirernclnts of the tmvn of Cardston. 

The  tributaries on the east  side of‘ the river, viz, I h l p h  or Willow 
Creek,  Pinepound Croek, and 1’c:thole Creek, ~-ising :IS they do in 
the  foothills or on the Milk Xiver if<itlgc? :Ire ~lnin~port:lnt ant1 can 
not be depended upon to supply even the tlomcstic neetls of the resi- 
dents  along  them. 

Boundary Creek, rising  in the foothills betmeen Lce Creclr and  the 
river  and flowing in on the west side  immediately  south of the 
boundary,  is  similar to those  lust  mentioned,  and the same remarks 
apply  to  it. 

MITX BlVEC UH.\INI(:E l:?LSJS. 

Milk  River  heads  from  springs  scnttered  through  the  rolling  foot- 
hills on the  east  side of St. Mary Lake and  liiver.  This  tract of hilly 
country is shown  upon  the TJnlted States  Government  maps as “St. 
Mary  Ridge,”  and  forms  the  divide between waters flowing to  
Hudson  Bay  and  those  flowing  to  the Gulf of Mexico vi.a the Mis- 
souri  River. 

The  catchment  area of Milk  River is a very  large one, covering 
about 2” of latitude,  but  for  the most part  cut off from  the  mountain 
areas.  On  this  account it does  not receive  a constant  supply  from 
permanent  bodies of snow and ice, and  in consequence the volume of 
the  stream is subject  to  sudden  fluctuations,  governed  largely by 
precipitation  over  its  widely  extended  drainage  basin. 

There  are  three  principal  branches.  The  North Fork flows north- 
easterly  and crosses the  international  boundary  in  range 23, west 
of the  fourth  meridian,  very  nearly  in  longitude 113” west. The 
Middle and  South Forks unite,  and  under  the title of “ South Fork,” 
with  a  northeasterly  direction, flow across the  international  boundary 
in range 20, 19 miles  east of the crossing  by the  North Fork. 
In Canada  the  North  Bmnch  continues its northeasterly  direction 

to a  greatest  distance of nearly 14 miles  due  north of the  boundary, 
when it turns  sharply  south  and  joins  the  South  Branch  near  the 
middle of township 2, range 18. From  the  junction  the  stream flows 
easterly  on a course  generally  parallel to  the  international  boundary, 
which it finally  crosses close to the  east  boundary of range 5, west of 
the  fourth  meridian, 90 miles  east of the  crossing of the South 
Branch.  At  no place is the  main  stream  more  than 11 miles north 
of the  international  boundary,  and t.he average is about 7.  

From its final  crossing, in  range 5, Milk River flows in  general 
direction 60 miles  southeasterly  to  Havre,  in  Montana,  a  point  near 
the  junction of the main  line  and  Great  Falls  branch of the  Great 
Northern  Railway.  From  here  on the general  direction is easterly, 
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bearing  gradually  toward  the  south.  The  length  from  final  crossing 
of the  boundary  to  the  junction  with  the  Missouri  River is, in  general 
directicm, al~out; 246 miles,  and the  distance of the  said confluence due 
south of the  international  boundary  very  nearly 70 miles. 

The  length of the  stream fiowing in Canada  from  the  North  Branch 
crossing to the final crossing is, follcwing  the  sinnosities of the 
stream, 215 miles, ancl from  the  South  Branch crossing to   the find 
crossing  about 177 miles. 

Along the North  and  South  Branches  there are no flats of magni- 
tude and the banks are,  for  the  most  part,  comparatively low but 
steep  and  the  valleys  narrow. 

tc’ronl the  junction of the  two  branches  to  Pendant  d’Oreille, 
section 21, township 2 ,  range 8, the  river  valley is, .in  general, 
narrow ancl treeless, with low banlrs, having comparatively gentle 
slopes, but bclow Pendant d’Oreille, as f a r  down  as  the  mouth of 
Lost  River,  the  banks  are  very high and  steep  and  the  drainage 
a r w  bark 01‘ the river is comlxmecl principally of “bad lands.” The 
valley  itself is na rmx ,  wooded? nntl deeply cut by  freshet  channels 
from  the clay  and  sandstone  format’ion a h 7 e .  The bed of the  river 
along  this  portion is compose,cl of qnicksand  and  shifts  greatly  at 
high  stages. It is probable  that  the  increased flow caused  by  the 
discharge of the St. Mary diversion  canal will cause a great  deal 
of scour  both in  the bed and  banks. 

From  the  mouth of Lost  River  to  Havre  the  formation of the 
river  banks  and ralley is similar to the  last-mentioned  portion  with 
the difference that  the “bad lands ” are less  pronounced  and  the 
banks  lower  and less  steep. The valley is somewhat  wide, as a general 
rule,  but  the  land is very  poor  and  the  vegetation  scant,  nothing  in . 
the  way of forestation  being seen. 

Below Havre,  however,  the  character of the ~7alley  changes com- 
pletely, the  hills becGme lower, the slopes  gentle,  and  the  valley 
itself  ranges  from 1 to 4 miles in  width,  containing some  first-class 
agricultural land, which  under  irrigation  gives  very good results  in 
the  growth of alfalfa,  garden  stuff,  and cereals. Trees reappear, 
and  from  Havre  to  the  mouth of the  stream  there is a  considerable 
growth of large  poplar, willows,  etc. 

The  river bed remalns  unchanged  and is composed of quicksand 
with occasional gravelly  rapids. The  fall is small  and  the  current 
in low water  sluggish,  while  the  banks  in  most places are  liable to  
overflow in flood water. 

Between  Chinook and  Malta  the  average  width of the  wlley is 
about 3 miles,  and it is, in  general, composed of very fIat land, 
ranging  from  sandy  loam  to (‘ gumbo,” which  gives  favorable  results 
under  irrigation.  From  Malta  around  the  big  bend  to a point  north- 
east of Sac0  the  valley  narrows  again,  and  while  not so narrow as 
above  Havre,  resembles that  stretch of stream  In some  respects. Be- 
low this  the valley  widens agtlin and leaves some very  fine  flats on 
either  side  clear  to  the  mouth of the  river. . 

Milk  Eiver  in Montan:t is fed  by  numerous  tributaries from both 
north  and  south between Havre  and  the  mouth,  those on the  north 
rising between the  Cypress Hills, Old-Man-on-His-Back  Plateau, 
Boundary  Plateau,  and  Wood  Monntnin, TThile those  from  the  soath 
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bc?t\vcm I,WO and 7,000 fcet.  :>p1)rorimately. The greater  part of 
this whole area, hower-er, miyllt be nppropri:ltely  described ::s rolling 
prairie : r n t i  fo:rthiII country. l'lre outstanding  topograpllical  fea- 
tilres forming the  limits  of.the ba:.;in are t,he foothills of the Rockies 
i n  thv ItI;lcItfeet I:esc:r\-c, the M i l k  Eiyer  ridge,  extending  north- 
eastuxrtl  frorn t , h ~ j ~ ~  into C:~natln: the Cypress H ~ l l s  ant1 Wood Moun- 
tain on tllc north, :mtl the Sn.tvtglwj: hills, the  Rear P:LW and  Little 
Itoclry Mol:ntairls on tlle solrtl~. I<ot\rw:l there  limits  can be folmd 
:Ilnlc;st ;111 \.arietics of prairie co:!nt,l,y fr(!i!l level plains to steep, 
1)roken. ( * l a y  cliffs  \vitho!it  \.rgetntion,  hilt, :is :t general rille, the  area 
is c,stl.ctuc!y roI\i~;g ~ ~ ~ ~ ( I  is bmkm by I ~ I ~ I ~ C ~ O ~ , I S  w:\tcwo\lrses  which 
l l a v c  high tliscllnrges (111r iny  the: flmhct sc:lson l)iit :\re tlry for  ten 
or elo1,en ~ ~ ~ o n t h s  a year. Sprinys, ;~ l thovg~l  n~!n1erous, :we, as a 
rule, small 111)(1 h a \  e I)ut  littlc efFect, on the flow of the  nnin  tlrain-. 
age c1r:lnrwl::. 

Two ren1:lrk:!hle depressions  occur  in  what \-vonltl otherwise  appear 
to be t'hc c:ltc*hrnent area trilmtary  to  Milk  River, one in  townships 
3, 4, 5 ,  and (i, ranges 4 to 12, west of the  fourth  meridian,  and  the 
other  in  the  large  tract  east of Battle  Creek  (North  Fork of Milk 
River)  and  south of the  Frenchm:~n  Eiver.  The  first  depression, 
forming thc   t h inage  area of I'nbowki  Lalre, is  at its lowest  point 
some 27 feet  lower  than  the bed of Milk  Kiver  to  the  south of it, and 
in  the case of the ,second the b a r h  of the  Frenchman  River on the 
north  and  east sides  and  the  boundary  and  Old-Man-On  His-Back 
Plateaus  on  the  south  and west, form a large  shallow  basin  full of 
small  lakes and sloughs  which  have  no  outlets to  the  stream  channels 
around  them. 

Mr. "LCINXES. There  is a difference  between Mr. Conner's figures 
and  yours. Mr. Comer's figures  were for a certain  period of years. 

Mr. DDELEY. Yes. 
Mr. GLEBN. What was the  amount? 
Mr. RUIILEY. Fifteen  thousand  acre-feet  is  the difference in  the 

two arnolmts. 
Mr. MACTNXES. Y(;u give the  catchment  area as 20,000 square miles. 

Mr. Conner  said 12,000 or 14,000 square miles. 
Mr. ]BIJI:LIW. Mr. Conner  referred  to  the  catchment  area  in  Mon- 

tana  solely;  mine is the  total i n  Canada :IS well as in  Montana. 
Mr. POWELL. M r .  Burley, the circumstances are  such  t,hat you are 

apparently  better  acyIaintcd  with  the \\.hole  question  there than 
anyone connected with  the Canadian side. 

Mr. BIXLICI-. I believe T :Im as fully  acquainted  with  the  country 
and  conditions :IS anyone. 

Mr. POWELL. I n  the first place, will yon tell u s  how many  gather- 
ing  grounds  there  are  in  the Milk River  and St. Mary  ltiver  systems? 

Mr. Bunr,x~. I (io not  think I understand  your  question. 
Mr. POWELL. I see on  this map here  that you have  different  catch 

basins ; the  map  divides the, territory  into four or five catch  basins; 
the  red  lines  determine  the  catch basins. 

Mr. BURLEY. That was done for a certain  purpose. Take  the whole 
catchment  basin of the St. Mary  River  and it would be outlined by 
this  drainage  area  line on the  map. 

Mr. I'owm,~,. The  only  tlirersion  that could be made of the  waters 
of that  systetm is by means of this proposed  canal? 
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Mr. BURLEY. Two proposed  canals, our Canadian c:ud and the 

Mr. POWXLL. The only  diversion  in  the  IJnited  States  territory  is 

Mr. TZulmcY. There was no  diversion  proposed. 
Mr. I'on'mr,. That is not  in contempl :t t '  10n now. 
Mr. BIJI~LEY. Th:tt i s  not  in conten1pl;ltion n o w ,  as I Ilnderstand. 
Mr. Powmr,. The point J wish to gct is that these  tributaries  that 

enter  the  St.  N:uy R i Y w  h I o w  the proposed present point of diver- 
sion  by the cnnnl  can not by :my possiMity hr l1ro11ght into 1Tnited 
5,t:ttes territory, can tlley ? 

Mr. 32r!r,tr.:r. Yes; two of then1 (*an. Thc Swiftcurrent Creel< and 
Wennctly Creek are in t , e~ :~p ted  by that c ~ t n l .  
. Mr. I'owmr,. 13ut t lw proposition is to  clirert  the  waters of the 
Swiftctlrrmt irlt,o St. 3 I z r . y ~  Idre .  

Mr. BtiItLE\r. I untler-stand that is the  proposition. I rcally can 
not say what  the  Reclamation  Service  plans  are. 

Mr. POWELL. Put  i t  this way: All  the  tributaries of the St. Mary 
that  enter  St. Mary Rivm helow the confluence of the  Swift  Current 
Creek and St,. I)iIary,Jtirer:  there  are  no olhcrs that  can be diverted 
into  United  States  territory? 

Mr. I ~ U J ~ L E Y .  The St. Mary 12iver watcrshed you are  speaking  of? 
Mr. POWELL. Yes. 
Mr. RUIILEY. Well, if yell except  Kennedy  Creek  there  are  not  any. 
Mr. POWELL. Then,  in  any  allotment or apportionment we might 

make,  assuming  they  are  waters we have to  apportion,  all  the  tribu- 
taries of the St. Mary  River  that  enter  the St. Mary  River below this 
particular confluence must be allotted to Canada? 

United  States  Reclamation  Service  canal. 

by  means of this proposed  canal  from the St. Mary  system. 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. POWELL. The  other  catch  basin is what you call the Milk 

Mr. BURLEY. There is a catch  basin  included  in  that  which is a 
Xiver  system ? 

sink;  there is no  outlet for it. 
Mr. POWELL. You speak of the vallev of the  Milk  River a,nd 

below a certain  port,io<of  sandy  territory  you  say it was  good  land, 
and you said that  the  breadth was from 1 mile to 4 miles? 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. POWELL. Are  the  limits of that valley-I am  not  speaking 

about  the  general  catch basin-are the  limits of that  valley well 
defined ? 

" 

Mr. BURLEY. They  are  very well  defined,  indeed. 
Mr. POWELL. Are  they  well defined, so f a r  as the elevation of the 

country is concerned, or how are  they  defined? 
Mr. BURLEY. They  are defined by  steep  valley  banks  rising up to  

the bench land.  They  lie as perfectly level  pieces of land,  and  the 
valley  banks  pitch up from these to  the bench lands  on  the  river 
banks. 

Mr. POWELL. Then,  unless  you  get a  much  higher  head of water 
than you  would hare  by  nature  or by the  ordinary  dams  that  are con- 
templated  to be built, the limit of the  irrigable  land  would  be  to  this 
valley  you  have  spoken of! 

Mr. BURLEY. I believe so. 
Mr. FOWEI,L. What would be the.area of that  valley? 
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Mr. BURLEP. I personally  thinlr  that  the  United  States  Reclama- 
tion  Service  have covered all  the  irrigable  ltmd;  that  is,  irrigable 
from  the economic standpoint. 

Mr. POWELL. The reason I ask you is this, that  Senator  Gardner 
and myself  met Mr. Savage, the engineer who l ~ a d  charge of t,he 
worlrs on the ground,  and who seems to  Le a very  competent  man 
indeed,  and it was thought the a1)solute limit of irrignble  land  there 
was 220,000 acres. That  is  the impression  created  on  my  mind. 

Mr. I ~ ~ J M X Y .  I would  not say t,hat  the  absolute  limit  is  that,  but 
the  rest of tllc l and  was eo tliridetl  into slnnll areas and  scattered 
over  such ;1 1:trge \)asin  that it, is  not econonlically  possible to  bring 
it  under an irrign tion system. 

Mr. P~WFLI,. You think it is  not an irrigable  scheme? 
A b .  BUILIA:Y. ’1h::t is 111y idea. 
Mr. MACINNEA. What do you say with rcg:trd to the  irrigable  area 

in Milk Itiver Valley  and the tributaries of the  Milk  Kiver  which 
start or head  in  Canacla; what  do you estimate  that  to  be? 

Mr. BUXLIW. I thinlr Mr. Conner’s  fignres are reliable. What Mr. 
Conner  gave was in  regard to the.beneficia1 use at  the  present time. 
The  remarks I made with regard to  the  area  being  scattered apply 
more  to the tributaries  than to the  main  valley of the  Milk  River. 
While  there  are  irrigable  lands  in  these  valleys, it is  doubtful  whether 
it will  ever pay anyone to develop  them  on  account of the smallness 
of the  areas  at any one place, much further  than  they  are  at  present 
developed. 

Mr.  MACINNEB.  What  further development  would  there  be of land 
on  what you might  call  the  Canadian  tributaries of the  Milk  River8 

Mr. BTTRLEY. What  further  area of land? 
Mr.  MACINNES. Yes. 
Mr. BURLEY. To put it at  the  outside  figure, I should  say  from 

Mr. MACINNES.  What would the  total  amount of such  irrigable 

Mr. BURLEY. Including  both  sides of the  line? 
Mr. MACINNES.  On  the  American  side  only. 
Mr. BURLEY. That  would  be from 20,000 to 30,000 acre-feet  addi- 

tional  to  what Mr. Conner  gave  this  afternoon  as beneficially used. 
Mr. MACINNEB. And  what did he  give? 
Mr. BURLEY. I thing  i t  was 24,360 acre-feet. 
Mr. MACINNES. And you  say  the  total  would be what? 
Mr. BURLEY. Between 45,000 and 55,000 acre-feet  possible  exteq- 

Mr. MCINNES.  Including  what Mr. Conner  gave? 
Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
(The commission adjourned  until 10 o’clock to-morrow  morning.) 

10,000 to 15,000 acres  would be possible. 

area on  these tributaries call for in  acre-feet 8 

sion. That  would be the  extreme  limit  for  the  irrigable area. 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 26, 1915. 
Pursuant to the  adjournment  the commission  met at  10 o’clock 

a. m., all  the  members  being  present  and Mr. Tawney  presiding. 
Mr. TAWNEY.  Gentlemen, we will  proceed now with  the  hearing. 
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STATEMENT OF R. J. BUBLEY, OF CALGARY, REPRESENTING THE 
CYPRESS HILLS Wdf‘J!EIR USERS’ A8SOCIATIOB”Continued. 

Mr. MncIxxes. Mr. Burley,  can yon give to  the commission in 
convenient form  informa(ion as to  the  existing  stream-gauging  sta- 
tions  in  Canada  and  the  United  States? 

Mr. BURLET. I h a ~ e  it here  for  Canada,  Mr. Madones, and the 
joint  stations,  the ones in the TJrlited States,  are  plotted on the  map, 
but  they are provisional only; that is, they  are  subject  to  correction 
by  the  United  States  authorities. 

Mr. Macllu~es. Then I understand  that you have a map  there? 
Mr. I~URI~EY. Yes? sir. 
Mr. MA(:TNNES. Let me see it: will you?  We will pnt  this  in, sub- 

(The  map  just abo17e referred to  was marked “ Exhibit 3.”) 
Mr. MACINNES. This shows the  gauging  stations  in  Canada  and also 

the  gauging  stations  in  the  Unlted  States. I see that  the different  sta- 
tions  are nnmbert\d, and down below you have  a  memorandum of 
certain  dates.  What  are  those  dates? 

Mr. IZumEY. Those  are  the  dates of establishment  and  the  dates 
that   the records  are  available to. 

Mr. MACINNES. You  also  have  attached  to  this  plan  a  summary, or 
schedule, rather, of the  principal  stream-gauging  stations  in  the  Cana- 

ject to any  correction  that you may have. 

d i m  portions. 
Mr. ETJJ:LEY. Yes;  including  the  joint  gauging  stations. 
Mr. MACINNXS. I see also that  as  to  the  United  States  situation 

the  stations  are  shown on the  plan,  but  there is not  a  separate  sched- 
ule attached. 

Mr. BUI~LEY. There is not, a  separate schedule. They  are  subject 
to correction 117 the TJnited States  authorities. I think  they  are cor-’ 
rect. so far :IS our informnation allows 11s to  say so. 

Mr. MacTNms. Did yon have ncwss to  the official reports? 
Mr. BU~LEY. T o  the official stream measurement reports of the 

Mr. MAchxes. Prom  what source  did you put  them  on? 
Mr. RURLEY. From  that source-from the official stream  measure- 

ment  reports of the United  States Geological Survey.  This is the 
drainage  map  which I promised  yesterday to hand  in. 

Mr. MACIxxm. The  map  marked  “Exhibit li,” 1 understand, we 
take  as  Ieing  approved by both  conntries. Ts that correct, Mr. 
Newell 1 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes, sir;  that is the one that we have  agreed  upon. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. That  map is approved by both  countries? 
Mr. MACINNES. Speaking  for  Canada, yes. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. But  as  to  the  United  States? 
Mr. NEWELL. Yes; i t  contains  all  the  information we have. 
Mr. MIGINAULT. We  can  take  that  map  as  an official map which is 

accepted  by  both sides, then. 
Mr. MACINNES. Mr.  Burley, it was said  by one of the witnesses 

in behalf of the  United  States  that  certain  water  would be wasted 
in  the  lower  Milk  River  Valley. I think Mr. Newell said  something 
about it. What  have you to  say as  to  that? 

Mr. RURLEY. As far   as   that  wasted  water is concerned in  the 
lower Milk River  Valley, I think Mr. Conner  stated  that  there were 

United  States Geological Survey. 
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200,000 or 300,000 acres  irrigable. I f   tha t  is the case, it seems to 
me that  that  water will be utilized  eventually  upon  the  irrigation 
of that  other Ian([, so that  there will not be any  waste  water  going 
into  the lower Milk  River  Valley. 

Mr. W Y V E L L .  Mr.  Burley,  you  are  familiar  with  the  actnal  condi- 
tions of irrigation  along  the St. Mary  Canal,  are you not--the Cana- 
dian  canal ? 

Mr. Ru~:zer. The  Alberta  Railway  irrigation  canal? 
Mr. WYVELI,. Yes. 
Mr. BURLEY. I would  hardly  say  that I am  familiar  with  it. I 

have been over the system. That is about as  far   as  I would care 
to go. 

Mr. WYVELL. Do you I m o w  how  much  water  per  acre is used 
upon  the  lands  for  irrigation  purposes  in  the  Canadian  project 1 

Mr. I~TJKI~EY. We have been carrying on wperiments  regarding 
that. I n  the scason of 1913 that 'came to  an  average of abont 1.3 
acre-feet  per  acre,  and  in 1014 to about 1.81 acre-feet  per acre. 

Mr. WYVELL. A little above an acre and a third? 
Mr. RTJRLEY. One  is a little above an  acre-foot and a third  and t,he 

other is a n  acre and three-qnarters. 
Mr. WYVELL. These  lands  lie  where,  principally?  Where  the 

water is :~ctually  being used P 
Mr. BURLEY. They  lie  near  Coaldale,  on  the  Canadian  Pacific 

Railway's  Crows Nest branch,  in  the  vicinity of Lethhridge,  on  the 
same  railroad,  and  in  the  vicinity of Magrath  and  Stirling. 

Mr. WPVELL. As I understand it, you take  the  water  to  irrigate 
these  lands  through one main  canal. Is that  correct? 

Mr. BURLEY. That is correct at  the  present  time. 
Mr. WITELL. That  is, there is only  one  canal  which  taps  the St. 

Mary  River of much  importance? 
Mr. BURLEY. Yes;  that is true. 
Mr. WYVELT,. Have you figures showing  the  amount of water  taken 

by  that  canal  in  the  last  few  years? 
Mr. BUIILEY. They  are  in  our  stream-measurement  reports.  The 

data is published in those  reports. 
Mr. WYVELL. If my  memory  serves me rightly,  in  the last two or 

three  years yon hare  taken  during  irrigation seasons from 117,000 
to 120,000 acre-feet. 

Mr. BURLEY. I think your figures  are  a  little  out. 
Mr. WYVELL. Is there  anyone  here  who  can  supply  those  figures 

later ? 
Mr. I~URLEY. We are  turning  in  the  stream  measurements  report 

as  an  exhibit  to  the commission, and those  figures are  contained  in 
that  report so far  as we  have  them. 

Mr. WYVELL. That  report  has  not been put  in  yet 1 
Mr. BURLEY. I think  not. I do not know whether we have  copies 

of that  with us or not. 
Mr. WYVELL. Then,  assuming  you  take 120,000 acre-feet  in  a  year, 

YQU would  not  be  actually  applying  to  the  land  over  eighty-odd 

Mr. BURLEY. I would  prefer  not t o  make a direct  statement,  as I 
am  not completely  familiar  with  the  system. Mr. Peters  will prob- 
ably give you that  information. 

. thousand. Is that correct? 
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Mr. WWELL. Now, the  farthest westerly tributary of the St. Ma 
River  which flows from  the  United  States  into  Canada is a branc T 
of  Lee  Creek, is it not? 

Mr. BURLEY. It is Lee  Creek, I think. 
Mr. WYVELL. Well, it has  two  or  three  prongs1 
Mr. RURLEY. Yes; it has  several  branches. 
Mr. WYVELL. That is fed by the  water from- 
Mr. BUBLEY. It rises,  as I stated  yesterday,  in  the  slope of Chief 

Mr.  WYVELL. Pour  plan  does  not  show  any  measurement  station 

Mr. I~URLEY. Yes; I think it does. 
Mr.  MACINNES. Yes; i t  is No. 5 on " Exhibit B." 
Mr. WYVELL. It does  show No. 5 ,  but  at a distance of about  how 

far  from  the  mountain? You can  look at  the  map,  Mr.  Burley. 
Perhaps  that will  assist you. 

Mountain. 

in  that  river, does it Z 

Mr. BUHLEY. It is about 10 miles due  north of the  boundary. 
Mr. WYVELL. Between the  point on the  boundary  and  the  point  at 

Mr. Bu1wc:Y. Oh, yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. I n  what  proportion  does it receive water,  compared 

with  the p i n t   a t  the Ineaslu.errlent station? 
Mr. BURLEY. I could not  state  that. It runs  through a foothill 

country. 
Mr. WYVELL. You  can  not  tell  with  any  reasonable  accuracy the 

amount of water  which  passes over the  boundary  from these  records? 
Mr. BURLEY. No, s i r ;  I can  not. 
Mr.  WYVELL. Is there  any  irrigation between the  boundary  and 

the  point  where Tree Creelr e~nptie,s  into  the St. Mary  River  along 
Lee  Creek? 

the  measurement  station, does it receive any  water? 

Mr. I~UI~LEY. Yes ; there is one. 
Mr. WYVELL. Nom many acres? 
Mr. BURLEY. seventy acres. There is also  a municipal  water 

supply,.  taking  water  from  Lee  Creek, at  the  town of Cardston. 
Mr. WYVELL. NowN? with  regard  to  Boundary Creek. The  head- 

waters of Boundary  Creek  are  likewise  in  the  United  States,  are  they 
not ? 

Mr. BUKLEY. They  are. 
Mr. WYVELL. You do not  maintain  any  measurement  station on 

Mr. BURLEY. We  have one ; yes. 
Mr.  Wyve~r,. I (10 not see that shown  here on the  map. 
Mr. RURI,EY. It is probably  not  shown.  Some of the  small  and 

Mr.  WYVELL.  Are  you  familiar  with  the  amount of water  which 

Mr.  RURLXY.  Yes;  in a way,  as f a r  as our  stream  measurements go. 
Mr. WYVELL. How  much do you think it contr~butes,  with  as  rea- 

Mr. BURLEY. I am  mistaken. I have  not  the  figures  for  that. 

d. WYVELL. That  information  can  come in later,  can it? 
Mr. BURLEY. Yes, sir. 

Boundary  Creek  at all? 

unimportant ones are not  shown. 

Boundary  Creek  contributes  to St. Mary  River? 

sonable  accuracy as you  can state? 

The  are  in  the  stream measurement  reports,  however. 
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Mr. WYVELL. Are yon  familiar  with  the  headwaters of Boundary 
Creek? I mean as  to  the  amount of water  which it receives from 
the  watershed  in  Montana. 

Mr. BURLEY. I have been over the  headwaters of Boundary  Creek, 
but I would  not  care to conlrnit  myself  on the  amount of water  re- 
ceived, as it is a very  hard  thing  to  do,  and I do  not  think  any  engi- 
neer  can do it with  any  degree of accuracy. 

Mr. WYVELL. Rolph Creek,  which flows into  the St. Mary  River 
from  the east,  arises where’! 

Mr. BURLEY. It arises  a  mile or so south of the  boundary. 
Mr. WITELL. I do  not  suppose it receives any  water of any conse- 

Mr. I~URLEY. Not Yery rnnch. 
Mr.  WYVELL. It extends  only  a  mile  in  the  State of Montana? 
Mr. I<URLI~;Y. I woultl not  say that. It is about  a  mile  directly 

south of the  boundary,  but it runs along  parallel to  the  boundary 
for R little greater  distance. 

Mr. WYVXLL. Yon refer  in  your  statement of the  drainage  are& 
in  Montana ns I)eing comparatively  small. You mean, of course, 
from the  drainage area in  Montana  as  compared  to  the  total flow? 

quence in  the  United  States, does it 1 

Mr. BURLXY. Yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. Yon spoke  yesterday of the  length of St. Mary 

River  in  the  United  States  and  gave it as something  like 200 miles. 
You mean, of course, by following  the  stream? 

Mr. BURLEY. I do  not  think I gave  that  statement. 
Mr. Wuve~r, .  Excnse  me? I meant  the  Milk  River  in  Canada. 
Mr. IIURLRY. Two hundred  and  fifteen miles. 
Mr. WTVELL. That is following  all  the  bends of the  river? 
Mr. BURLRY. That is correct. 
Mr. WYVF~LL. Suppose you take  Milk  River  and  follow  all  the 

bends  from  the  eastern  crossing  to  Nashua. Do you  know  how  many 
miles you would get there? 

Mr. BURLEY. You will  have to ask some of the  gentlemen  from  the 
United  States. 

Mr. WYVELL. You would get over  a  thousand,  would  you not? 
Mr. BIJRLXY. I would  not  commit myself a t  all. 
Mr.  WYVICLL.  Measuring  in  a  straight  line  from  the  point a t  the 

western  crossing of Milk  River  you  would  have  about 110  miles. 
Mr. BURLEY. About 110 miles;  that is from  the  crossing of the 

North  Branch  to  where  it  leaves  Canada  along  the  boundary  line. 
Mr. WYVELL.  Some of my associates desire  to  ask  Mr.  Burley  some 

questions  about  conditions  lower  down  the  Milk River. 
Mr. MACINNER.  Perhaps before they do so, there  is a question I 

would  like  to  ask  Mr.  Rurley.  Mr.  Burley, you referred  to  stream 
measuremenh reports. I have  here  the official reports  entitled  “Re- 
ports of progress of stream  measurements  for  the  calendar  year 1909, 
1910,  1911,  1912, and 1913.” Will you  tell  me  whether  those  are  the 
ones you were  referring to! 

Mr. BURLEY. Those  are  the  reports  that I referred to. 
(The  reports  just  referred  to  were  marked  “Exhibits C, D, E, 

Mr. MACINNEB. Do they  comprise  all  the official reports on the 
F, and G.”). 

Canadian side ‘i 
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Mr. B u I : ~ Y .  They  comprise  all  the oAicial reports on stream meas- 
urements so far  as puldishecl. 

Mr. \VYVELL. Mr. nurley, are yo11 s1Aiciently familiar  with  the 
subject  to  state  as  to  whether  the  numxnt of water  taken  through 
your  main  canal  from  the St. Mary  Riwr  was  larger  in 1914 than 
i t  was, say,  in 1909, or smaller? 

Mr. DUI:I,EY. XpeaI.:ing oflhand, I think  it is larger. 
Rfr. J ~ T Y V I ' : ~ , ~ , .  1Iow tlocs i t  comparc with 1908; tlj:kt is, 1914 with 

10082 
Mr. BGKLEY. 1nfo1nl:ltion for the  ycar 1008, 1 am afraid 1 can 

not give you. Our. reoorcls do not  extend  hack as far as that. 
Air. W Y Y I ~ , .  7'al ;e  t,hc yo:u' 1913 ;Ind cornpare it with  the  year 

1910. 
Air. BUKLEY. The A .  R. 1. Cnntll tlischarge for 1913 mas 118,468 

and for 1910 it w a s  146,999. 
Mr. WYVELL. And  for 1911 I have the figures  here as 117,950, 

which were taken  from  your report.;. If there is any  correction. 
you  can  look it up.  To  make  the  record  complete,  you may state  the 
figures for 1912. 

Mr. BURLEY.  103,995. 
Mr. WYVRLL. The records for 1014 have not been published,  have 

they ? 
Mr. BUKLEY. They have not been guhlished. I think  they  are 

completed. 
Mr. MACINNZS.  Mr.  Burley,  you  said  that  those  reports  were all 

that  hnd been  published. Are  there  any  other  reports  not  published 
which  would be  of assistance to the commission ? 

Mr. BXJRLEY. Yes. The 1914 information  is  not  published, and 
I could  not  say thrtt it is in its final  form,  although I think it is. 

Mr. MAcIxN:~. That will he available  for  the commission. 
Mr. BURLEY. That  will he available  for  the commission. If they 

wish, we can turn it in to  them :IS a n  exhibit. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  Then Mr. Newcll mas good enough to say yester- 

day  that  the ropor.ts of the Rec1:unntion Service  would be avail- 
able. Mr. Burley, I understand  that yon rcnd  through  the  reports of 
the  Reclamation  Service ? 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes ; I have. 
Mr. l\.Z~c.I~n.es. I would like  any  references  that you can  give us 

in  them to the  irrigable area of land to be dealt  with hy the Iteclama- 
tion Service. Have you got  that  in a form  where it can be. put  in 
conveniently for  the commission ? 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes ; I can  read it as extracts  from  the  report. 
Mr. SANDS. We  do  not  object  to  them  reading  those  extracts  into 

the  record,  if  the commission understands  that  they  refer only to  
the  Reclamation  Service  ditches  and  not  to d l  the  ditches  in the 
valley. That is my  understanding of it. Just  so the commission is 
not confnsed in  the  matter is all. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Those  contain  information  only  in so far as  the 
Reclamation  Service  ditches  are  constructed  undei-  the  reclamution 
act of the Federal  Government of the  United States? 

Mr. MACINNES.  The  reports  will  speak for themselves, of course. 
The simply go in  showing  what  they  have  dealt  with. d. SANDS. That is true if  the commission so understands it. 
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Mr. TAWNEP. We understand  that the Reclamation  Service  does 
not  represent  completely  the  entire  reclamation  works  in  the State 
of  Montana.  There  are some independent  reclamation  works. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Can we not  have  a  statement  giving  a  complete 
description,  say, of the whole  works? 

Mr. BIEN. That  could be prepared  later. We would  have  to con- 
sult  the figures of the  United  States census. 

Mr. TAWNEY. With  the  understanding  that  that  will  be  supple- 
mented  by  additional  information, I can see no  objection  to  having 
this  information  furnished  at  this  time. 

Mr. BIACINNES. Will yon now  give  us  those  extracts, Mr. Burley? 
Mr. GLENN. Tf these  books are  all  to be put  in,  what is the necessity 

Mr. MACINNES. So as  to  relieve  the commission from  having to 

Mr. GLENN. You just  want  to  refer  to  certain  pages? 
Mr.  MACINPI’ES. To furnish  the  pages  and  indicate  very  briefly to 

Mr. MIGXAULT. Following  that  idea, Mr. MacInnes,  perhaps the 

Mr. MACIXXES. Quite so. If Mr.  Rurley  will  kindly  do  that. 
Mr. DURLEY. On  page 214 of the  First  Annual  Report of the Rec- 

lamation  Service of the  United  States  there is the  following  para- 

of having  the  extracts  from  them? 

read  all  the volume. 

the commission what  is  in  them, so it will  save yon time  and  labor. 

witness  might  refer  to  the  page  and to  the volume. 

graph- 
Mr. MTGNAULT. Let me understand  this.  Are  these volumes going 

in  as exhibits? 
v u  

Mr. TAWKEY. No. I did  not so understand  Mr.  MacInnes. 
Mr. M A ~ ~ ~ N N E S .  That would be reallv  a  matter  for  the commission 

to decide. It is  not  intended to put  inYa  lot of material  which  would 
haye to  be reprinted  as  a  part of your report,  but  at  the  same  time 
it  wonld seem to be desirable to have  copies in  the  archives, so to 
speak, of the commission. I understand  from  Mr. Newel1 that it is 
quite ensy to get  these  copies  now. At  some time later it might  be 
more difficult. My suggestion is that  they  should  go  in  in  the  way 
of a reference,  but  not be printed. 

Mr. D r m .  The volumes are  available  in  Washington,  a  full set, 
and I 1:elieve i t  is  possible to  furnish  the commission  a full  set,  al- 
thorlgh  one or  two of the  earlier volumes  m?y he difficult to get. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Let  this be the  understanding or arrangement,  that 
the  Reclamation  Service  furnish  the commission, if possible, with a 
complete set;  that if it  is impossible to  furnish a  complete  set that  
as many volumes as can he obtained he furnished,  and  that  the  wit- 
ness now refer to  the pages  and  volumes of the  different  reports  that 
are deemed materinl to the  subject  matter of the  hearing. 

Mr. MACINKES. That  is  it, exactly. 
hlr. GLEXE. I f  we have to  deal  with  this  thing  in  the  future  ought 

we not to have  a  complete  set in  Washington  and  also a complete  set 
in  Ottawa? 

Mr. TAWXEY, Certainly;  one  complete set at  Washington  and  one 
complete  set a t  Ottawa. 

Mr. ~ I E S .  We  can  get  them. For those  volumes that we  can not 
furnish we can  make copies of the  relevant  matter. 

11398-15-8 
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Mr. BUHLEY. On  page 214 of the First Annual  Eeport of the 
Reclamation  Service of the United States, 1902, the  following  para- 
graph is found : 

in  elevation, from where  it trusses the  international line  and enters  the United 
The Milk River is bounded by high cliffs on either side, 200 feet more or less 

States for the  last  time  down  to  Yantic, 10 miles east of Havre.  At  the  latter 
point  the valley brorttlens, and t l ~ e  relative  heights of the bluffs decrease, and 
there is to be found  here  opportunity  for  diversion  to  the  agricultural  lands 

study of this will show the extent of land that  can he reclaimed,  and  the gen- 
of the  lower M i l k  River Valley. A map of this  vicinity is being rntLde, and a 

era1 locations, grades, and  sizes of the cliversion canals. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Is the  map  in  that  volume? Mr. Bien  can  probably 

state  whether it is or not. 
Mr. BIEN. No; it is not. It is in separate  plates.  Therc is a 

separate book that goes with  this  report. 
Mr. BURLEY. On  page 344 of the Scconcl Annual  Report of the 

Reclamation  Service, 1902-3, of the  United  States,  the  following is 
found : 

Survey8 in lower M i l k  12iver Pal1cy.-The greatest  tunonut of fielcl work 
during 1903 has been clone in  the section that it is prolwwed to  reclaim. Two 
divisions are here noted also,  based  on  two  selmrate  diversion  schemes  from 
ItIillr River. This stream, after crossing  the  international  line  into  the  United 
States  for the last  time,  wntinnes  in a (leer) valley for EO miles or more  to a 

decrease, and the  valley  broadens. 
point a short  distance below Havre. Here the  relative  heights o €  the hills 

macle on the north  side of the  river. A line was  first  run on a grade of onc- 
Ten miles below Havre, or near  Yantic, x survey for :I diversion  canal was 

hnlf foot to the mile  to sre of' the bt.nches lower down the river could be  reached. 
This WLIS found  to be impossible owing  to  the  slight fall of the  river. The locx- 
tion is along  sidchill  most of the  way and construction would be expensive. 

be  served  and  another lower l ine  wts t h ( ~ ~ ( ~ f t i ~ t :  7'un n l v l  contouretl on a scnlu 
Prom tllirs survey  it was found that  only the hottoln lnn(1s of  the valley coultl 

of 500 feet tu  the  inch. From this mrwy wtirnat-es of t I l c  cost o f  construction 
can  be  made. 

That is all I wish to  introduce,  excepting one thing. On page 135 
of the Tenth  Annual lteport of the  Reclamation  Service of the 
United  States, 1910-1911, is  found  this  reference: 

Irrigable  area  in  project, 207,600 acres. 
That  irrigable  area has varied  from yew to year through  the re- 

ports,  but  for  the  last few years i t   has been constant for 219,557 
acres. 

Mr. MAGIENES.  With  referencc  to  Exhibit B, Mr. Burley,  the  plan 
of gauging  stations,  where is the point of intake of the A. R. & I. 
Canal  on  the St. Mary  River? 

Mr. BURLEY. It  is on the St. Mary  River  near  liimball. I can give 
you the  exact  section, if you  wish? 

Mr. MACINNES. Is it near  this  gauging  station No. 412 
Mr. BURLEY. It is about  between  three-quarters of a mile  and  a 

,nile  below it. 
Mr. MACINNES. In the evidence  reference h a s  also been made to   an 

A. R. & I. intake on the  Milk  River. I just  want to make it clear in 
the  record.  There are two intake!: of the A .  11. & I. system? 

Mr. BURLEY. One  is on Milk  River  and  one is on St. Mary  River. 
There is only one on  the St. Mary  River. 

Mr. POWELL. Do these  intakes apply to  the same canal or to  differ- 
ent  canals ? 
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Mr. BURLEY. They  are  separate  canals,  but  they  can  be  extended 
and joined up. 

Mr. MACINNES. I see marked  here  on  Exhibit B Hinsdale,  where 
there  is  a  station  numbered 15, and  Vandalia.  Mr. Newel1 informed 
us yesterday  that  the  lowest  point of diversion  by  the  United  States 
Reclamation  Service  on  Milk  River was at  Vandalia. Do you  know 
the  distance between Vandalia  and  Hinsdale? 

Mr. BURLEY. I should  say i t  is between 6 and 8 miles. 
Mr. MAUINKES. I n   m y  event, I see that  Vandalia is lower  down 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. MACINNES. Can you  tell  the commission, Mr. Burley,  what 

would  be the comparison in  thc  yearly now of water  on  the St. Mary 
River below the  point of the  intake on the A. It. & I. Canal,  which I 
understand  to be the  only  point of intake, up to the  mouth  and be- 
tween the  waters of the  Milk  River below Hinsdale or Vandalia, up 
to  the  mouth of that  river? 

the  river  than  Hinsdale. 

Mr. IZURLEY. The  total  flow? 
Mr. MACINNES.  Yes;  the  total flow of the one river below that 

point  up  to  its  month  and  the  total flow of the  other  river below that 
point  up  to  its  mouth. 

Mr. BURLEY. They  are  approximately equal. 
Mr. WYVELL. Now, Mr.  Burley,  speaking of the  application of 

water  to  the  land  through  this  Alberta  Canal; of course, 80,000 acres 
do  not receive water  in  any  given  year,  do  they,  from  this  canal? 

Mr. BURLEY. Yon are now referring  to  the  irrigation  project? 
Mr. WYVELL. The  irrigation  project  which  is  fed  by  the one canal 

in  the St. Mary  River.  During  the  years 1910 and 1913, of which 
we have  records,  in no one ycar  was  water  applied to  80,000 acres, 
was i t ?  

Mr. BURLIW. Yon have  reference  to  the  irrigation  factor  upon  the 
tract ? 

Mr. WYVELL. Yes. 
Mr. BuRrm-. No ; I should  say  not. 
Mr. WYVELL. As a  matter of fact,  water was not  applied  to  over 

Mr. BURLEY. That is not  true. 
Mr. WYVELL. At  what would  you put  the  maximum  amount  for 

any one year? 
Mr. BURLEY. The average  amount  would  probably  be  in  the  neigh- 

borhood of 50,000 acres. 
Mr. WWELL. The average  amount,  you  think,  would be 50,000 

acres ? 
Mr. BURLEY. Approximately;  that is, the  land  on  which  water is 

actually  put  during  any one year. That  is  not  the  irrigable  area. 
Mr. WYVELL. I am  speaking of the  actual  application of the  water 

from  the  canal  to  the  land. You say  the  average  amount is 50,000 
acres ? 

30,000 acres; is that  true? 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. FJTYVEI,L. About how much of that 50,000 acres is crops  and 

how  much is pasture? 
Mr. BIJRLEY. I could not  tell you. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. Are we to  take  all  the  dots  as  measurement  stations 

on  Exhibit B ? 
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Mr. MACINNEB. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MIQNAULT. The  Canadian ones are  red  and  the  United  States 

Mr. MACINNES. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MIQNAULT. Well, some are  numbered  and  some  are  not. 
Mr. BURLEY. The reason is that some are merely  check  stations. 

We check our  results at  the  larger  stations,  and  they  are  not  taken 
into  consideration  in  this  matter. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Are we to  understand  that  the  numbered  stations 
are  the ones for  which you have  records? 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes. We have  records for  the  others,  but  we  do  not 
consider  them  good  enough  to be very  useful  to  the commission. 

Mr. BIEN. Mr. Burley, I understood you to  say  esterday  that  only 
two  comparatively  small  areas  could be irrigated P rom  the  main  Milk 
River above the  present  plants of the  Reclamation  Service. 

Mr. BURLEY. Possibly I should  make an  explanation  there. I un- 
derstand  that the Fort  Belknap  is  to be included  in  the  reclamation 
system. I f  I am  mistaken, I withdraw  my  other  statement. 

Mr. BIEN. It is very  probable. I may  say  that  the  Fort  Belknap 
is one of the  canals  for  which we have a contract. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  When  you  speak of Fort  Belknap,  that is not 
the  Fort  Belknap  Indian  Canal? 

Mr. BIEN. No; it is one of the  old  canals. 
Mr.  MACINNES. The  Indian one is sometimes  spoken of as Fort  

Belkna is it not? 
Mr. !?IEN. Yes. I understand  that  the  Port  Belknap  Canal of 

which we speak is independent of the  canal on the  Indian  reservation 
begun  in 1890. Then,  in  addition  to  that,  what  is  your  idea,  Mr. 
Burley, of the  possibility of taking  water from Milk  River  at a 
higher  elevation  and  bringing  it up to some of the bench lands? 

ones  green ? 

Mr. BURLEY. At  what  point? 
Mr. BIEN. Well,  from  any  point  that you may  know of or  may 

have seen. 
Mr. BURLEY. It is B possibility;  but I do  not  think  that it is an 

economic possibility  to  take it out above Hevre on  those large  flats 
that  lie to  the  north of Havre. 

Mr. BIEN. That is, a t  this  time? 
Mr. BURLEY. Well, at this  time,  and,  if I may use my  imagination, 

for B good  many  years. 
Mr. BIEN.  Do you  know the difference that  has been developed i n  

the  last 10 years, we mill  say, as  to  the value of crops  and  the  value 
of lands  in  northern  hlontann 8 

Mr. BURLEY. I can  not  speak  with  any  authority  regarding  north- 
ern  Montana; no. 

Mr. BTEN. If ,   for  example,  in  the  next 20 years  the  value of crops 
and  the  value of land  are doubled, as  they  have in the  last five or 
eight  years,  would you think it would be possible to  build a canal 
here  up on the  main  river? 

Mr. BURLEY. I do  not  think so ; not  for bench land. 
Mr. BIEN. What  do  yo^ think of pumping? 
Mr. BURLEY. I do  not  consider  that  pumping is a very  feasible 

proposition  for some years  to come. In our  country we do  not con- 
sider it so, and I think  Montana is comparable, so far as the  value 
of land  and  water  rights is concerned. 
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Mr. BIEN. What  do you think of the  future development, say, in 
15 or 20 years! 

Mr. BURLEP. There is a possibility, but it is a very  expensive 
proposition  and  would  require  land  values  up  to  probably $100 or 
$150 an acre. 

Mr. BIEN. What is your  idea of increasing  the  area  by  extending 
the  existing  canals,  both of private  ownership  and of the Govern- 
ment ? 

Mr. BURLEY. Extending  the  existing  canals or the  plans  for 
canals ! 

Mr. TAWNEY. I n  Canada or  Montana? 
Mr. BIEN. I am  speaking now entirely of the  Milk  River in Mon- 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Below the  eastern  crossing1 
Mr. BIEN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. BURLEY. There is a slight  increase possible, if  they  care  to 

go to the expense of extending  large  canals  along  the  river  valley 
over a long  distance  for  comparatively  small  areas of land  which  are 
scattered. 

tana. 

Mr. BIEN. What  do you  mean  by “small  scattered  areas ” ?  
Mr. BURLEY. I mean that  there  will be an area of say 100 or 159 

acres and  then  the  river  will  cut  back  and  leave  that  area  separated 
by a piece of unirrigable  land. 

Mr. BIEN. Did you  ever  follow the route of those  canals? 
Mr. BURLEP. As well as I could, I did ; but I have  not  followed 

Mr. BIEN. You  think it is only in small  tracts of one or two  hun- 

Mr. BURLEY. I think  that  is  true; yes. 
Mr. BIEN. Have you studied  the  topographic  map  toward the 

ends of these  canals  that  are  planned? 
Mr. BURLEY. I have seen  them. I have  not s t d i e d  them to n 

great extent; no. 
Mr. BIEN. I wondered  what  basis  you  had for dift’ering from  the 

result of our investigations. 
Mr. BURLEY. I do not  think I did  differ  materially. I said  that 

the  irrigable  land  was  contained  in  the valley. I think  your  re- 
ports bear me out  in  that. 

Mr. B E N .  What do you say  about  the  possibility of putting  in a 
diversion clam  below Vandalia  on  the  Milk  River? 

Mr. BURLEY. What would be the object of it? 
Mr. BIEN. To take  in  more  land. 
Mr. BURLICIT. I should  have  thought  the  present  canals of the  north 

and  south sides  would  cover all  the  land  that could be irrigated 
there. 

Mr. BIEN. It is your  idea  that  the  Vandalia  canals  could be ex- 
tended  down  as far  as  the  Missouri  River! 

Mr. BURLEY. I understand  that  that  is  the  plan. It is shown on 
the  plan  that I have, a t  least. 

Mr. BIEN. Do you  know the  capacity of the  canal  toward  the 
end  for  the  last 5 or 10 miles! 

Mr. BURLEY. I do not. 
Mr. BIEN. I may state  for  the record that  those  canals come down 

to a very  small  capacity  near  the  end,  for  the  reason that  at  the 

the location  stakes. 

dred  acres  that could be reachedl 
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present  time we regard  the extension to  full  capacity  as too  ex,- 
pensive for  present  conditions. I mas trying to bring  out  what 
might  be  the  future possibilities  when  land  crops become more 
valuable. There is another  question I want  to  get a t  and  that is  
about  the  irrigable  lands  on  the  tributaries of the  main  Milk  in 
Montana,  both  north  and  south of the  main  river. 

Mr. MACINNEB. Tributaries of the  main Milk? Those  are  not 
Canadian  tributaries. 

Mr. BIEN. What would you say, Mr. Burley,  as  to  the possibility 
of increasing  the  area by allowing  the use of all  the  water  occurring 
in the  tributaries  in  Montana on lands  along  the  tributaries? 

Mr. BURLEY. I think it is  very possible. 
Mr. BIEN. Have you a q  idea  as  to  what  increase  that  would  make 

Mr. BURLEY. That  is a very  large  area, 14,000 square miles. 
Mr. BIEN. Of course, we know that  all of that  is not  irrigable. 

But  the question is pointed to  this  fact,  that  the  Reclamation  Service 
might  do  on  the  Milk  River  what it has  done  in  other places, that  
is, exchange  water. We could give  the  lands  in  the lower  valley, 
the  river valley  proper,  water  from St. Mary, for instance,  and allow 
the people  on the  tributaries  to  take  the  water  which  really belonged 
down below in  the  main valley. I wondered  if  you  had  given  any 
consideration to  that  point. 

Mr. BURLEY. I have  not. 
Mr. BIEN. Have you any  idea  as  to how much that  might increase 

Mr. BURLEY. You  mean  as to  the  ultimate  increase? 
Mr. BIEN. Yes. 
Mr. BURLEY. No; I have  not  any  idea. 
Mr. BIEN. Have you  any  idea as  to  the flow of those  tributaries 

that  I speak of in  Montana-that is, north  and  south of the  river 
above ? 

Mr. BURLEY. I have an idea  how  the flow comes, but  as  to  the  quan- 
tit of it I believe there is no  information  available. hr. BIEN. You  spoke of B large  amount of waste  wat,er a t  the 
mouth of Milk  River  in  Montana. 

Mr. BURLEY. Mr. Newel1 spoke of that or Mr. Connor  did. 
Mr. BIEX. Have you  ever  considered at  what  periods of the  year 

Mr. BURLEY. I have. 
Mr. BIEN. Have you  any  idea of what  the  waste  water flow in 

in irrigable  area ? 

the  irrigable  headwaters? 

that flow occurs? 

April has been in some years or in  any year! 
. Mr. BURLEY. Yes;  at  the  Hinsdale  station. 

Hinsdale  in 191.2, in  April,  was? 

United  States Geoldgical Survey  reports. 

Mr. BIEN. Do you  know what  the  amount of water flowing a t  

Mr. BURLEY. An  average of 12,900 second-feet,  according to  the 

Mr. BIEN. What would that be in acre-feet 1 
Mr. BURLEY. Seven  hundred  and  thirty  thousand. 
Mr. BIEN. Let  us suppose, for instance, that  200,000 acres  were 

actually  in  irrigation.  What  amount of water  would  you  say  would 
be used in  that  month! 
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Mr. BURLEY. I would  not  attempt  to  utilize it in  that way.  Prob- 
ably  they  would  not use any  water  during  that  month  on  he  land, 
but it could be reservoired  and  held  in  that  way. 

Mr. BIEN. That was  the  point  that I wanted  to  bring  out,  that  if 
that were  stored it would  add  further  to  the  irrigable  area. 

Mr. BURLEY. Exactly  if  the  area  was  there  to  irrigate. 
Mr. BIEN. Of  course, if we were  willing  to  invest  large  sums 

of money  per acre, do you  think  there  would be any  limit  to  the 
amount of land  that could  be irrigated? 

Mr. BURLEY. If you put  no  limit  on our expenditures  there is no 
limit  to  irrigation. 

Mr. UIEN. As Mr. Newel1 has  stated, we have  doubled in  the  last 
few  years  the  limit of area  that we could  afford  to  cover,  because of 
the  increase  in prices.  Now,  do  you understand  that  any of the 
annual  reports of the  Reclamation  Service show the  irrigable  areas 
outside of the  reclamation  projects? 

Mr. BURLEY. Only  in so far  as  reference  is  made  to  certain defined 
systems. 

Mr. BIEN. Have you  any idea what  the  private  irrigation  area is 
in  Milk  River  in  Montana? 

Mr. BURLEY. I have  an idea from  a  statement  that  was  made  in  the 
lJnited  States Geological  water-supply  papers  for 1906 on  the  Mis- 
souri  River  drainage basin. It was  not  thought  that  there  were 
over 50,000 acres at   the outside  that  could  be  depended  upon  to  any 
extent. 

Mr. BIEN. Do you  understand  that  that  is  included  in  the 220,000 
of the  project 

Mr. RURLEY. I should  say  that it was  exclusive of that. 
Mr. BIEN. Do you  know  how  much of that  is  in  Milk  River  Valley 

Mr. BURLEY. I estimate  that  about 30,000 acres, in  round  numbers. 
Mr. BIEN. I believe that  is correct.  You  spoke of the  intake of the 

A. R. & I. Co. on  Milk  River  in  Canads.  Has  any  water been 
diverted  there  from  the  Milk  River? 

Mr. BURLEY. Speaking  from  personal  knowledge, I can  not  say, 
but I believe that  mater  was  diverted  there  in 1904. 

Mr. BIEN. Has  any been diverted  since? 
Mr. BURLEY. I could  not  make  a definite statement. 
Mr. BIEN. Have you  ever  examined the  intake? 
Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. BIEN. What is its  present  condition? 
Mr. BURLEY. It is  not  in  good Condition. 
Mr. BIEN. Could it divert  any  water  now? 
Mr. BURLEY. No. 
Mr. BIEN. Do  you know whether it was in  operation  for  more  than 

Mr. BURLEY. I could  not  state  that. 
Mr. SANDS. Regarding  the  Canadian  canal  from  Milk  River,  mas 

Mr. BURLEY. It was. 
Mr. SANDS. I n  1904, do  you think? 
Mr. BURLEY. What  do you mean  by taking  water  out on the  land? 
Mr. SANDS. So as  to  distribute  water  out  on  the  land. 

itself,  the old canal? 

one year? 

that  canal  ever finished so it would  take  water  out  upon  the land? 



120 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS. 

Mr. BURLEY. I think  not. I believe there were  some  reasons for 
not  doing so. 

Mr. SANDS. The  water  you  speak of as having  run  in  the  ditch 
ran for only  a  mile or  two? 

Mr. BURLEY. I believe it ran the  length of the  ditch,  for  test 
purposes. 

Mr. SANDS. But  the  ditch  was  not  continued to the  point  where 
it would go over the  ridge? 

Mr. RURLEY. Yes; I understand i t  carried  over  the  ridge SO that  
i t  could be used in  the reservoirs. I am  not  malting this as a. sworn 
statement. It is merely my  understanding,  and It is subject to 
correction. 

Mr. SANDS. What is the size of that  canal,  if you  know,  Mr. 
Rurley?  What is its  capacity? 

Mr. BURLEY. I belieye the  capacity  was 330 second-feet. 

would be practicable to  carry  water  into  the  canal or not? 

* 

. Mr. SANDS. Have you examined it with  reference to whether it 

Mr. BURLEY. At  the  present  time,  do yon mean? 
Mr. SANDS. Well, z t  any  time. In order  words,  was  the  formation 

such as would  warrant you RS an  engineer  in  saying  that  that  mould 
carry  -water ? 

Mr. BURLEY. It will  not  carry  water  now,  but it could be prepared 
to carry  water  at  a  small expense. 

Mr. SANDS. You  thinlr it wonld  be  practicable to  carry  water  in 
there ? 

Mr. BURLEY. I thinlr so ; yes. 
Mr. SANDS. I n  yonr statement that you  made  yesterday  you  said 

that  three-fourths of the  entire flow of the  two  streams,  that is Milk 
River  and St. Mary  River,  arose  in  the St. Mary  Basin  in  Montana. 
Is th:lt true? 

Mr. BURLEY. That is approximately  correct,  in  round  fiqwes. 
Mr. SANDS. Then,  one-fourth of the  water of the  Milk  River  would 

Mr. BURLEY. I beg vonr pardon. 
Mr. SANDS. Three-fourths  arise in the  basin of the St. Mary  River 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. And  one-fourth  arise in the basin of the  Milk  River 

Mr. RURLEY. Yes:  that is true. 
Mr.  SAND^. What  proportion of that  one-fourth  arise  in  the  United 

Mr. RrmmY. Subject to correction, T shonld  say 80 per  cent. 
Mr. SANDS. Then,  practically  all of the St. Mary  water  arise  in  the 

Mr. RURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. And 50 per cent of the  Milk  River  that flows across the 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes;  that is  correct; at the eastern  crossing. 
Mr. SANDS. Then, it is trne, is i t  not, that  the TJnited States  fur- 

Mr. BURLEY. At those  points ; yes. 

arise  in  the  basin of the Milk River  Vallev,  would i t   not? 

in  Montana 8 

Valley.  which is in  both  countries. Is that  true? 

Stn tes ? 

United  States? 

international  bonndary  arise  in  the  United  States? 

nishes  nearly  all of the  mater  for  these  two  streams? 
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Mr. SANDS. Then,  there is also a drainage  basin  flowing  into  the 
Milk River  which flows across the  internatlonal  boundary,  known as 
Lodge  Creek,  Battle  Creek,  and  Frenchman  River? 

Mr. BURLEY. There is. 
Mr. SANDS. What  quantity of water  do  they  furnish;  that is, in 

proportion  to  the  total flow  of Milk  River? 
Mr. I3URLEY. They  are  considerably  in excess of the  total flow of 

Milk  River  at  eastern  crossing. 
Mr. SANDS. Then!  you would say  tRat  the  waters of Milk  River 

flowing  across the  lnternational boundary-all of them-would be 
slightly  greater  from  Canada  than  from  the  United  States ; is that 
true 0 

Mr. BURLEY. Of  the  Milk  River  watersheds? 
Mr. SANDS. Yes. 
Mr. BURLEY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SANDS. Would it be safe  to  say  that 40 per  cent of the wat,ers 

that flow across the  international  boundary  line  into  the  Milk  River 
arise  in  the TTnited States?  You  said 80 per  cent of the  upper  basin. 

Mr. BURLEY. About 35 per  cent  would be the  correct  figure for the 
water  arising  in  the  United  States. 

Mr. SAKDS. Then, 35 per  cent of the flow  of Milk  River  crossing 
the  international  boundary  rises  in  the  United  States  and  the  other 
65 per  cent  rises  in  Canada. I am  speaking  now  only of the  inter- 
national  waters,  these  that cross the  boundary. 

Mr. BURLEY. And you are  including  the  tributaries? 
Mr. SANDS. Yes. Is  that  your  estimate? 
Mr. BURLEY. That is my  estimate. 
Mr. SANDS. Then,  if  three-fourths of the  water  from  the St. Mary 

River  and 35 per  cent of the  waters of the  Milk  River  rise  in  the 
United  States,  approximately,  what  would be the  proportion of the 
water  furnished  by  the  United  States for the  two  systems  flowing 
across the  international  boundary? It mould  be about  seven-eighths, 
nearly,  would it not? 

Mr. BURLEY. I think it would  be  practically less than  that. I 
think  about 80 per  cent,  but I am  not  sure. 

Mr. SANDS. The  United  States  furnishes  about 80 per cent. 
Mr. BURLEY. I can  work it out  in a  moment.  Approximately it is 

between 75 and 80 per  cent. 
Mr. BIEN. Have you any  definite  figures on which  you  make  that 

estimate of 35 per  cent? 
Mr. BURLEY. I have  not. I t  is really  deduction  from  the “ Streams 

measurement  report.” 
Mr. BIEN. And you never  computed it except in that  way? 
Mr. BURLEI-. No. 
Mr. BIEN. I would  like  if  you would compute it now and find if 

Mr. BURLEY. It works to a little  over 64 per  cent  in  Canada. 
Mr. BIEN. How  much of that  is  the  estimate as to  the possible 

flow and  not based on  measurements? 
Mr. BURLEY. It is all based on  1rm.-jurwlents,  but it is practically 

all estimated  as to the mean  annual flow. It is based  on the results 
we  have,  but  our  results are incomplete, as you  know. 

35 per  cent  is  as  near  as  the  present  record  would go. 
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. Mr. BIEN. Your  present  estimate  is  that 36 per  cent  rises in  the 
United  States  from  the  figures you have at  present? 

Mr.  BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr.  BIEN. That is, the  tributaries  coming  from  Canada  or  rising 

in the  United  States  and  going  into  Canada ; I mean  the  waters  that 
would cross the  boundary or do  cross  the  boundary. 

Mr.  BURLEY.  Yes; and taking  the  Milk  River  at  its  eastern  cross- 
‘ng and  the  crossing of the five eastern  tributaries. 

Mr. SANDS. Then  what you computed  was that  the percentage. of 
water that rises in  the  IJnited  States  in  the  two  systems flowing 
across  the  international  boundary- 

Mr.  CONNER. It would  save  time to  say that  to  the  estimate of 80 
per  cent checked with  the  United  States  figures to  within 1 per  cent. 

Mr. SANDS. Then I may  understand you that of the  waters in 
controversy 80 per  cent are  furnished  by  the  United  States  and 20 
per  cent  by  Canada? 

Mr.  BURLEY.  According to our best  estimate, yes. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  The  phrase  has been used ‘(furnished  by  the 

United  States,”  or  “furnished  by  Canada.”  Has  that  any  reference 
to any  storage  proposition  in  either  country or has  that reference  to 
water  rising  naturally? 
Mr. SANDS. Rising  in  the  United  States. 
Mr. MACINNES. Or in  Canada. It may be clear to  us  here, but for 

the  purposes of the  record it would be well to state  whether  “fur- 
nishes ” includes  any  storage  proposition. 

Mr. SANDS. We  are  speaking of the  total flow. 
Mr. MACINNEB.  The  waters  rising  under  natural  conditions  in 

either  country? 
Mr. SANDS. Yes. Going  to  the  duty of water,  Mr.  Burley,  what 

would  you  say  with  reference  to  the loss from  seepage  and  evapora- 
tion  through  a  stream 250 miles long; would it be greater or less 
than  the loss on a  shorter  stream? 

Mr.  BURLEY. I should  certainly  say  it would  be greater. 
Mr. SANDS. Yes;  but it would  make  a  difference  whether  the  stream 

bed  was of a  sandy or rocky  character? 
Mr.  BURLEY.  By (( rocky”  what do you  mean;  do you mean  a 

gravel  or  clay bed with  rocks? 
Mr. SANDS. I will  put it in a  concrete  form. What would  you  say 

with respect to  the  relative loss from  seepage  and  evaporation  in  the 
St. Mary  as  compared  with  the  Milk  River?  Would it be much 
greater  in  the  Milk  River  than  in  the St. Mary? 

Mr.  BURLEY. That would be my  opinion; yes. 
Mr. SANDS. The St. Mary is a swift stream! 
Mr. BURLEY. Very  swift. 
Mr. SANDS. And the  Milk  River is a  very  sluggish  stream? 
Mr.  BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. And  that would  be  a  strong  clement in  determining 

Mr.  BURLEY. I think not. 
Mr. SANDS. You think  the question of the  velocity of th?  stream 

would not  have  anything to do with  seepage  and  evaporation? 
Mr. BURLEY. I think it depends  on  your  wetted  perimeter. 

the  question of seepage  and  evaporation? 
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Mr. %NIX On  that  theory  the  stream  with  a  great  fall  would 
have 3 less loss, woulcl it not,  than one which had  a very  sluggish 
flow ? 

Mr. BURLZY. Yes;  but  not  for  the  reason you  give. The reason it 
would  have a greater  loss  woldd be because it would be a larger  cross- 
sectional  area and would  wet  more  ground  in  the case of a sluggish 
stream for the  same  amount of water,  and  therefore  it  would  have a 
greater loss, but  not  for  any  reason so far  as  the velocity of the  stream 
is concerned. 

Mr. SANDS. Would you he able  to  state  in  percentage  what  would 
be the  approximate  loss  from  seepage  and  evaporation on 400 or 800 
cubic  feet  per  second  turned  into  the  Milk  River a t  a point  where we 
contemplate  turning  water  into  the Milk River  to  the  point  where it is 
to be  used below at Chinook and  Malta  and  Vandalia? 

Mr. BURLEY. I would not make  any  statement  regarding  that,  but 
we have  considered it and we have  arrived  at  no  definite  results. 

Mr. SANDS. Would you approsimate it a t  nearly 25 per  cent S 
Mr. 13unmY. I hare done so. 
Mr. SANDS. Speaking of the  development of the  irrigation  system 

in  Canada on Lodge  Creek, are tllt1i.e :\ny irrigation  systems in that 
creek ? 

Mr. BURLEY. There  are. 
Mr. SANDS. How many  in  Canada? 
Mr. BURLEY. Mr. Peters  will  give  them  in  detail. 
Mr. SAKDS. You have been over that  comtry ! 
Mr. BTJRLEY. I have been  over it all. 
Mr. S a s ~ s .  Would you not  think i t  to the  best  interests of both 

countries  that  the  waters of Battle  Creek,  for  instance,  where  there 
is  a  large  usage  on  the  part of Canada, be used entirely or almost 
entirely  by  the  Canadians, we will  say,  and  the  waters of Lodge 
Creek be used  by the  people of the TJnited States mho have  develop- 
ments on that  stream; would you not  think  that  would be a  feasible 
way to  handle  the  matter,  rather  than  to  divide  the  water  equally? 

Mr. BURLEY. No ; I do  not  think it would be a fair  proposition from 
our  standpoint. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. May I ask  what  is  the  object of this  question? 
I am  somewhat in  the  dark  about it. We  are  dealing  with  Article VI 
of the  treaty.  Perhaps yon can  tell me what  contention you are  to 
base  on this  line of questioning? 

Mr. SANDS. The  purpose of my question  was to suggest  that  in a 
division of the  waters of each  stream it mould not be  necessary to 
divide  them  equally at  any place,  and I was  suggesting  that  perhaps it 
might be possible to deliver  nearly  all  the  waters of the  Battle  Creek 
to  the  Canadians  and  all or nearly  all  the  waters of Lodge  Creek  to 
the Americans, and  that it would  be to  the beneficial interests of both 
parties  to  do  that. 

Mr. MIQNAULT. I wanted  to see the  object of the  questions;  thank 
you. 

Mr. SANDS. The  treaty  provides  t'hat one party  may use more of 
one  stream  than  the  other. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. I know. 
Mr. SANDS. I was  trying  to  get  that  before  the commission. 



124 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS, 

Mr. WYVELL.  I would  suggest  that Mr. Rurley  should  give as much 
detail  as  he  can  as  to  the  irrigation systems  on  each  one of these 
creeks  and  then  draw his conclusions. 

Mr. MACINNES. Mr. Peters  will  give  full  evidence on that  point; he 
is much  more  familiar  with  it. 

Mr. TAWNEY. We  should  avoid 'as far  as possible the  duplication 
of testimony. 

Mr. Sams.   The reason 'I wanted  to  get  the  evidence  from this 
gentleman  was  that T thought  he  had  a  broader  knowledge  than Mr. 
Peters. 

Mr. WYVELL. I mould  suggest  that Mr. Sands  should  get  all  the 
information  he  can  from  this witness. 

Mr. TAWNEY. We  are  not  restricting Mr. Sands in any  way. 
Mr. WYVELL. This  gentleman has a very  general  knowledge of the 

conditions. 
Mr.  MACINNES. I have  no objection to  the  testimony of Mr. Bur- 

ley continuing  to  the  extent  that  may seem to  help  the  commission, 
but  he will be followed  by  another  witness  who  has  fuller  knowledge 
on  this oint. 

Mr. 8 ANDS. I have  in  my  mind a scheme for  the  division of this 
water  which I think would be very  practicable. I t  is  not  a conlplete 
echeme, bu t  a  partial  scheme,  and  it is a  scheme  which  might  be 
worked out for  the  division of the  water  to  the best advantage of all 
parties  concerned. If Mr.  Peters  is  better  informed  as  to  the  general 
conditions I will leave it to Mr. Peters. 

Mr. MACINNES.  Take it up  with Mr. Burley  to  any  extent  you 
wish. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Proceed, Mr. Sands. 
Mr. SANDS. You  have been over  the  irrigation  systems  in  Canada 

on Lodge  Creek  and  you know something  about how many  ditches 
there  are? 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. About how much water is diverted in Canada from 

Lodge  Creek? 
Mr. RURLEY. There  are  approximately 7,000 acres under  the  exist- 

in  system  in  course of construction. 
%r. SANDS. Do yo11 know  how  much is  appropriated from Lodge 

Creek  to  the  United  States? 
Mr. BURLEY. I have some  idea. 
Mr. SANDS. Give it to us. 
Mr.  BURLEY.  West Pork Canal  is  in  fairly  good  condition  and I 

believe that  irrigates 800 acres. But, I do not believe they  have  ever 
done so recently. The  reservoir  is  in  bad  repair.  The  North  Chinook 
Irrigation Association has a large scheme under  construction  with a 
reservoir  and I believe they  contemplate  the  irrigation of something 
in  the  neighborhood of 10,000 acres;  that  is  subject to correction, I 
am merely stating  what I have rend. 

Mr. SANDS. When  were yon over that  system? 
Mr. BUHLEY. I n  1913. 
Mr. SANDS. It was not completed then? 
Mr. BURLEY. No. 
Mr. SANDS. They  had  the old reservoir? 
Mr. BURLEY. They  have a reservoir  which,  in my opinion,  will 

not be of very  much use. It is shallow  and covers a large  area J the 
evaporation  and  seepage would about  balance  all  the  water  they get. 
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Mr. SANDS. You  have  not seen it in  working  order? 
Mr. BURLEY. No. 
Mr. SANDS. Coming to  Battle Creek,  how  many  appropriators  are 

Mr. BURLEY. I n  Battle  Creek 9,3,59 acres. I can  give  you  Lodge 

Mr. SANDS. I n   t h e  United  States  what of the  irrigation from 

there  in  Canada  from  that  creek? 

Creek  exactly  now; 7,433 acres of Lodge  Creek  in  Canada. 

Battle  Creek? 
.> 

Mr. BURLEY. So far  as schemes that  are  in  working  order  are con- 
cerned  they  are  few  and  small. I would  not  care  to  give a statement 
HS to  the  area. 

Mr. SANDS. Are  you  familiar  with  the  Dowen  and  Buckley  people? 
Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. How  much do they  irrigate? 
Mr.  BURLEY.  Not  one  single  acre a t  present. Their  dam is de- 

Mr. SANDS. When  were you there? 
Mr. 

stroyed  and  their  ditch  is  not  in  good  condition. 

Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 

BURLEY. I n  1914. 
SANDS. Were you there  before or after  the  irrigation season! 
BURLEY. During  the  irrigation season. 
SANDS. How  about  the  Roketa  ditch? 
BURLEY. I can  not  say as to  what  they are doing now. 
SANDS. You do.not know  whether it is in  operation or not? 
BURLEY. No. 
SANDS. Farther  down  the  vallev, do you know of any  ditches 

taken  out of Battle  Creek? 
“ l  Y 

Mr. BURLEY. I know of  some, but I can  not  tell whose they are. 
Mr. SANDS. Do you know of any  pumping p!ant along  there? 
Mr. DURLEY. I do ; I was thinking of pumping  plants. 
Mr. SANDS. Do  you  know how much  they  irrigate  from  these 

Mr. BURLEY. I should  estimate,  possibly at  the  outside  figure, 500 

Mr. SANDS. Do you  know of any  other  canals  farther  down the 

Mr. DURLEY. Mathewson  and Cook. 
Mr. SAKDS. What  area do they  irrigate? 
Mr. MACINNES. Is that  not  taken over  by the  irrigation  service? 
Mr. SANDS. No. 
Mr. MACIXNES. They are  included  in  the evidence put  in yesterday. 
“I. SAX’DS. Yes;  but I want to  correct  that  statement.  The  water 

rights  are  not  taken  over by the  United  States  Reclamation  Service 
at  all. 

Mr. MACINXES. I understood that  the  water is to be  supplied 
from  the  Reclamation  Service  system. 

Mr. SANDS. Only  such  additinnnl  service  as  may  be  required. 
Mr. MACIX’NES. I understood  there  was  an  agreement to  that  

Mr. SARDS. Such  additionnl  water ns may be required only. 
Mr. MACTX’XES. But still they  might come, although  they might 

pumping  plants? 

acres. 

stream ? 

effect. 

not come at once. 
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Mr. SANDS. They  would  not come at once, but I wish to  establish 
the  fact  that  there  are  systems  in  the  Battle  Creek  which we now 
utilize. 

Mr. BURLEY. I can  not  add  anything  to  the  Reclamation  Service 
report  as  to  the  area. 

Mr. SAKDS. If you  have it, state  what is the area of the  land 
covered by the Cook Canal. 

Mr. MACIKNES. May I suggest  to  the commission this is evidence 
in  regard  to  projects now in existence, and while we are milling that 
Mr. Burley  should  give  evidence  on  the  subject, it seems to  me that 
it is not  the best  evidence the commission  could  get. I f  witnesses 
from  the  United  States,  who  have  full lcnowledge  of the  matter, 
would  give to  the commission the evidence  they  have, it would  be 
the best  evidence  available. We  are  only  getting  second-hand  evi- 
dence from  Mr.  Burley on this  point,  however  willing  he is to  give it. 

Mr. SANDS. My  purpose is to  draw  ont  from this witness,  who 
seems to have  a  broad  knowledge of the whole subject,  the  possible 
plan  that  the commission may  adopt or that  the  parties who  have 
the  division to  make  may  adopt. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Have you not some other  witness on our  side of the 
line who is more  familiar  from  personal  knowledge  with  the  situa- 
tion  with  respect to  the  plan yon have  in  mind? 

Mr. S m w .  Yes, s i r ;  we have. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Would it not be better  to  get  as  the best  evidence 

evidence from someone who  has  personal lcnowledge and  who is inti- 
mately  acquamted  with  the  situation? 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, s i r ;  we can  do  that.  We  have  pnt  in  considerable 
evidence, and we did  not  know we could put  in  any more. 

Mr. TAWNEY. You can  put  in  all  the evidence  you have  bearing on 
the  matter.  The commission will  not e,xclude any  material  evidence 
as  to  the  facts  bearing on these  waters. It has  occurred  to me that 
if you have  any  witness  who is Pamiliar yith  the  situation  on our 
side, with respect to  the plan that you suggest you have in mind for 
t,he distribution of these  waters, it may be better  to  call  that  witness 
t,han to hear Mr. B L W ~ C ~ ,  who is not  familiar  with  the  situation on 
our  side of the line. 

Mr. SAXDS. Then, Mr. Rurley,  going  to  the  Frenchman,  what  de- 
velopment  have  you in  Canada  from  that  stream? 

Mr. BURLEY. Eleven  thousand five hundred  and  ninety-four acres. 
Mr. SANDS. What would  you  say of the  irrigation of that 11,000 

Mr. BURLEY. No, sir. 
Mr. SANDS. What  proportion of it would  you think  was  irrigated 

on an  average  every  year Z 
Mr. BURLICY. a s  I have  stated  before,  that 11,000 acres  includes 

systems  under  construction  which  under  our  laws  are  in  perfectly 
good standing, and a t  a rough  estimate I should  say  that 40 per  cent 
possibly  were  using  water. 

Mr. SANDS. And  your  estimates of Battle  Creek  were  based  on  the 
same  lines ? 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes; I stated that before I gave my evidence. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Ts the source of this  stream in the  United  States or 

acres ; is it irrigated  every  year? 

in  Canada? 



ST. MARY AND LMILK RIVERS. 127 

Mr. SANDS. The  Frenchman Creek  rises in  Canada  and flows across 
the  line  to  meet  the  Milk  River. [To Mr. Burley.] From your 
knowledge, Mr. Burley, of the  streams  that cross the  international 
boundary  line, wo111d you not  think it more  feasible that a larger 
proportion of the  Frenchman  and  Battle  Creek  be  given  to  the 
Canadians,  and  a  larger  proportion of the  Milk  River,  where it 
crosses the  Canadian  line,  and of the  West Fork, to  the Americans, 
to the  advantage of both  parties Z 

Mr. BtrRLEI-. You say “ a larger  proportion?” 
Mr. SAKDS. That is to say, more than  one-half. 
Mr. BURLEY. A larger  proportion of Battle  Creek  and  the  Prench- 

man  River  to  Canada,  and n larger  proportion of Lodge  Creek  to 
the  United  States? 

Mr. SANDS. Lodge Creel; and  the  Milk  River. I mean larger  than 
is fixed by  the  treaty. I n  other  words,  change  the  proportion as to 
these  streams. 

Mr. I~CRLEY. I still  think  that is not a question for me to answer. 
It seems to me that  is a qucstion for  the commission to answer. 

Mr. SANDS. I was asking vou if you did  not  think it would be to 
the  mutual  ad.rantage of both  parties  that  this  could be done that 
way,  speaking  from  your  gcneral lrnowledge of the  situation. 

Mr. BURLW. I think your statement is probably  correct ; speaking 
offhand, yes. 

Mr. &IacI~ms.  Mr. Sands,  you  used  the  term  “West Fork” just 
now;  that is the same  as  Lodge  Creek? 

Mr. SanrrJs. Yes. 
Mr. POWELL. T t  would be well, Mr.  Smcls, if you  should  put in 

your  contention  in  respect  to  that,  point, so that we nlight  have it 
before us on the record. 

Mr. HANDS. 1 will do so later. I may  say  that  the plan is not 
definitely fixed, but  only  in  a  general way. That is the  way I think 
the  plan  could be  worked  out. 

Mr. TAWNKP. For my own information,  and  in order to get a 
grasp of the  situation  in  my  mind  clearly,  are you prepared  to  state 
bow many  tributaries of the St. Mary  River  there  are  that rise 
wholly in  Canada  and do not cross the  boundary? 

Mr. BURLEY. And  do  not cross the  boundary a t  all? 
Mr. TAWNEY. Yes;  from  the  boundary  line to the confluence of 

the St. Mary-the whole  upper section of the St. Mary. 
Mr. BURLEY. There  are two, including  their  branches. 
Mr. TAWNEY. What are their. names? 
Mr. 15nnLEy. Pinepound  and  Pothole Creeks. 
Mr. T A ~ N E Y .  They  are  the  only  trjbutaries of the St. Mary  River 

that  are  wholly  in  Canada? 
Mr. BURLEY. I would  not s21y that;  there  may  be  small coulees, 

but  they  are  the  only  streams  that  are  named;  they  are  the  only 
streams of any consequence. 

Mr. TAWNEY. What is the  distance  from  the  boundary  line  to  the 
confluence of the St. Mary liirer  and  the  Belly  River? 

Mr. BURLEY. You do  not  mean  following  the  river? 
Mr. TAWNEY. No; approximately. 
Mr. BURLEY. About 40 milcs. 
Mr. TAWNEY. And  there  are  only  two  tributaries of any conse- 

quence, and  they  are those  you  named‘? 
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Mr. BTJRLEY. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Do you  know  how much  water,  approximately,  they 

Mr. BURLEY. Possibly 6,000 acre-feet. 
Mr. POWELL. Throughout  the  whole  year? 
Mr. BURLEY. Yes; that is the  yearly flow. There  are  streams 

which  have  a  spring  run-off;  they  rush  off  when  the  snow  melts 
and  they  run  down  all  in  a  bunch. 

Mr. TAWNEY. How  many  tributaries  are  there  to  the  North  and 
South  Forks of the  Milk  River  before  that crosses the  line  that  are 
wholly in  Montana? 

Mr. BURLEY. The  Middle  and  South  Forks of the  Milk  River rise 
wholly  in  Montana. 

Mr. TAWNEY. And  these  forks  both  cross  the  boundary  and  unite 
and  form  the  Milk  Ril-er in Canada? 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. It is not  the  Milk  River  before  the  waters of these 

Mr. RURLEY. It is called the  North  and  South  Branches of the 

Mr. TAWNEY. And  they  join  in  Canada? 
Mr. BUKLEY. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Bow  many  tributaries  are  there  in  Canada of the 

Milk  River,  and  what  amount of water  do  they  contribute  to  the 
Milk  River  in  Canada? 

contribute  to  the St. Mary  River? 

two  forks  reach  Canada '1 

Milk  River  until  they join. 

Mr. POWELL. That is, you  say,  wholly in  Canada? 
Mr. TAWNEY. Wholly in Canada  and  do  not come across the line. 
Mr.  BURLEY.  There  are  only  two  or  three  small coulees. 
Mr. TAWNEY. That OCCIXI- wholly in  Canada? 
Mr.  MACINNER.  That is, up to  the e,astern  crossing? 
Mr. RURLEY. Up to the  eastern  crossing. 
Mr. TAWNEY. J mean from where the  Middle  Fork  and  the  Sonth 

Fork cross the line to  the  eastern  point  where  the  Milk  River crosses 
back  again  from  Canada  into  Montana. 

Mr. BTJRLEY. That  is  what I understood by your question. 
Mr. TAWNEP. And  there  are no tributaries? 
Mr. BURLEY. No  tributaries of any  importance  rising  whollg  in 

Canada. 
Mr. TAWNEY. How  mnny  tributaries  are  there of the  Milk  River 

wholly  in  Montnna solrth of the  hundary  and between the  boundary 
and  the confluence of these rivers? 

Mr. BURLEY. Including  northern  and  southern  tribntaries? 
Mr. TAWXEY. All tributaries  that  are solely in  Montana. 
Mr. BURLEI-. I think you n ~ a y  almost  say  they  are  innumerable. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Has any  gentleman on either  side  any  estimate of 

the  quantity of water  which  is  contributed  to  the  Milk  River by these 
tributaries which xre wholly in  Montana? 

Mr. SANDS. The  State  reports will  show something,  but  not  very 
much. 

Mr. WYVELL. There  has been no complete  measurement. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I know  there  has been no complete  measurement, 

but I thought  there  might be an  approximate  estimate. I want to 
get  for  my own  satisfaction  the  relative  amount of tributary  waters 
that  rise wholly in  each  country. 
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Mr.  CONNER.  The  amount of water  tributary  to  the Milk River, 
wholly in  the  United  States, from the  eastern crossing of the  Milk 
into  the  United  States  to  the  junction of the  Milk  Rrver  with  the 
Missouri,  amounts to  525,000 acre-feet. 

Mr. SANDS. I t  would be impossible to compute that, bccxusc the 
flow is so irregular  in  all these streams. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I mean  the  average flow. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  Where  did  these  fimres come from.  Mr.  Comer, 

that you gave? 
" 

Mr.  CONNER. I will  have  to  correct  that  statement, I am  in  error. 
It is 420,000 acre-feet  and  not 525,000, as I stated. 

Mr. MACINNEB.  Where are these  figures estimated  from! 
Mr.  CONNER. My estimate of the run-off at  the  mouth is 650,000 

Mr. BURLEY. Does that  include  the  northern  tributaries rising 
acre-feet,  and  they  are  based  on  that. 

in  Canada? 
Mr.  CONNER. No ; I left  them out. 
Mr.  MACINNEB. How much  did  vou  take  out for  them? 
Mr. CONNER. A total of 230,000"acre-feet. 
Mr. MACINNEB.  How much  did  you  allow on the same  basis for 

Mr. CONNER. f would  not  be able to  give  any  estimate of what is 

Mr. MACINNEB.  These figures which you have  given  include  the 

Mr.  CONNER.  That is what  the  chairman asked. 
Mr. MACINNES. No. 
Mr. TAWNEY. What I desired  was the  amount of water  contributed 

to the  Milk  River  by  the  tributaries  wholly  in  Montana,  from  the 
eastern  crossing  to  the  junction of the  Missouri  and  Milk  Rivers. 

the  Milk  River  roper  without  any of these  tributaries? 

in the  river  itself. 

Milk  River  and these tributaries? 

Mr. CONNER. That  is  what I say. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  But  he  says  that  that  includes  the  water  which 

is flowing in  the  Milk  River. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I did  not  understand  that.  What I wanted to  get 

at  was  the  amount of water  that  was  contributed  to  the  Milk  River 
in  Montana by the  tributaries  that  are solely in  that  State. 

Mr.  CONNER. I think  Mr.  MacInnes is trying  to  separate  the  water 
that is in  the  river itself from  that of its  tributaries. 

Mr.  MACINNEB. Yes. 
Mr. CONNER.  That is impossible. I think Mr.  Tawney's  question 

is that  he  wanted  to h o w  the  amount of wnt,er contributed  to the  
Milk  River by the  drainage  area  within  the  United  States,  after  the 
river crosses to  the  United  States. 

Mr. TAWNEY. That was  the  purpose of my inquiry,  but you exclude 
the  water  that comes from  thedrainage  area  in  Canada,  in  the bed of 
the  Milk  River. 

Mr.  CONNER.  That is my understanding. 
Mr.  WYVELL.  And 420,000 feet  is  your best  estimate! 
Mr. CONNER.  Yes; I assume 230,000 for Canadian  territory and a 

total of 650,000 at  the  mouth,  leaving 420,000 from  the  drainage  area 
within  the  United  States. 

Mr. WWELL. You mean  by that 420,000 acre-feet of water  which 
never  asses out of the  State of Montana  until it reaches the  Missouri 
River. i? 

11398-15"-9 
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Mr. CONHER. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. I wanted to ask one  question further of Mr.  Burley. 

Mr.  Burley,  in  giving  your  estimate of the flow of the Milk  River 
at  Hinsdale in 1912, you said  the run-off  mas what? 

I Mr. BURLEY. The  total run-off 8 
Mr. SANDS. Yes ; for 1912. 
Mr. BURLEY. About 1,211,000. 
Mr. SANDS. Do you  know  what it was  for 19132 
Mr. BUHLEY. I could not  tell you offhand. 
Mr. SANDS. I have  the  report  here  and it shows  only 356,000 for 

Mr. BURLEY. That  is approximately  correct. 
the  next  year. 

( Mr. SANDS. And  that is fairly suggeslive, I suppose, of the  char- 
acter of the  river,  namely,  that it is  very variable-very large some- 
times  and  small  at others. 
' Mr. BURLEY. That is quite  correct. 

Mr. SANDS. The  figures  that  you  gave  us  for 1912 were  due to a 
very  large  and  unusual flood in 1912, were  they not? 

Mr. BURLEY. It is not  the  usual  quantity  in  the  annual floods; it 
has occurred  before,  however, and it is likely  to  occur at  any  time  on 
t'he  Milk  River. 

, Mr. SANDS. Have you  any  figures  which show as high a figure a s  
that for  any  other  year! 

r Mr. BURLEY. No ; because the  records  do  not  extend back of 1906. 
Mr. SANDS. It was  practically  four  times as high  in 1912 as  in 19132 
Mr. BURLEY. Yes; assuming  that  your  figures  are  correct. . 
Mr. SANDS. In the  practical  irrigation of lands  on a stream  as 

variable as the  Milk  River, would  you say it would  require a larger 
os a smaller  quantity of water to properly  serve  the  people  to  irrigate 
from it? I n  other  words,  could  the snnle use be made of acre-feet in 
u stream as variable  as  Milk River as could be made  on a stream  like 
the St. Mary1 

Mr. BURLEY. It could by the  construction of resorvoirs, by which 
you  could  flatten  out  the  stream ilow and average it up over the year. 

Mr. SANDS. But  vithout these  reservoirs it would not be as service- 
able 'G 

Mr. BURLEY. Certainly  not. 
Mr. SANDS. When you speak of an acre-foot of water  from  the St. 

Mary  and  from  the  Milk  River  without  reservoirs,  the  water  from 
the St. Mary  per  acre-foot  would  be f a r  more  serviceable  than the 
water  from  the  Milk  River? 

. Mr. BURLEY. Without  reservoirs,,yes;  although  the St. Mary  River 
is subject  to  similar floods to those found  in  the  Milk  River. 

Mr. BIEN. Are  they  not  much  more  rcgular  on  the St. Mary  River? 
Mr. BURLEY. The difference is not SO great ; the flood is not so pro- 

Mr. BTEN. Is them as much  difference from  year  to  year? 
Mr. BURLEY. No ; there is not. 

Mr. BURLEI-. Yes ; it is more dependable. 
Mr. SANDS. Spca!ring of the duty of water,  over  what  period of 

Mr. BURLEY. The irrikation season. 
Mr. SANDS. What do you term  the  irrigation season 

nounced. 

I Mr. &EN. The St. M:~ry  River is more regrllav. 

time  do you  base your estimates! 
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Mr. BURLEY. I n  Canada, from the 1st of May to the 30th of Sep- 

Mr. BIEN. Is that established  by law? 
Mr. BURLEY. It is  established by regulations  under the law. 

Questioned  by  Mr. WYVELL: 
Mr. WYVELL. Mr.  Burley,  in  speaking of the irrigation  plans of 

the  Dominion  Government  on  Lodge  Creek, you mentioned 7,433 
acres  as  being  within  the  plan? 

tember. 

Mr. BUKLEY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. WYVELL. You do not  mean  that  that  number of acres has 

Mr. BURLEY. No. 
Mr. WYVELL. About  how  many of those  acres in  the  largest  year 

Mr. BURLEY. Libout 40 per  cent  did, 1 stated. 
Mr. WYVELL.  Last  year, 1914, about  what  percentage received 

water ? 
Mr. BURLEY. I might  explain  here  that  that  is a new country on 

our  side of the line,  and  that  these schemes are  in process of con- 
struction, so that  for  that reason  they  are  in a position to  take only 
40 per  cent of the  mater  which  they  will  eventually  put  to efficient 
use. 

Mr.  WYVELL.  Did 40 per ccnt of 7,433 acres nctnally  receive  water 
last  year? 

Mr. BURLEY. I can  not  say ; I was not  there. 
Mr. WYVELL. With  reference to  Battle  Creek,  you  spoke of m 

acreage of 9,359 acres  which  might receive, under  your  plan,  water 
from  Battle  Creek,  but lol l  do not  intend  to  say  that 9,359 acres  has 
ever  yet received water. 

Mr. BURLEY. It is in the  same  condition  as  Lodge  Creek,  excepting 
that  the  percentage  actually  taken is somewhat  higher. 

Mr. WYVELL. And on Frenchman  Creek, you spoke of ,ll,OOO acres 
which were within  the  plans of the  Dominion  Government? 

Mr. BURLEY. Not  within  the  plans of the  Dominion  Government. 
Mr. WWELL. Well, that  may receive water for irrigation above the 

international  boundary;  what  percentage of this  land  actually  re- 
ceived water  last  year? 

actually received any  watcr for the  purpose of irrigation  yet? 

actually receive water  from  the  irrigation? 

Mr. BURLEY. I stated 40 per  cent. 
Mr. WYVELL. With  reference  to  Rock  Creek,  have you any  irriga- 

Mr. BURLEY. No. 
Mr. WYVELL. H a r e  you any contemplated  on  Rock  Creek? 
Mr. BURLEY. Not  'at  the prea;cnt time. 
Mr. WYVELL. Giving your opinion  entirely  impartially  for the 

enlightenment of all of us, what would be your  opinion  as to the best 
method,  looking  purely  from  the  standpoint of producing  the  best 
results,  regardless of where  the  land  is, of the  water of Rock  Creek; 
would it give  better  results  in  the  United  States  than  in  Canada? 

tion  plans  on  that  creek? 

Mr.  RURLEY.  Most  decidedly. 
Mr. WYVELL. With reference to Frenchman  Creek,  where  could 

the  water  produce,  in  your  opinion,  the  best  results from the  stand- 
point of growing  crops? 

Mr. BURLEY. I n  Canada. 
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Mr. WYVELL. What  percentage of the  total flow  of Frenchman 

Mr. BURLEY. That me need  now or will  need? 
Mr. WWELL. That  you  need  now. 
Mr. BURLEY. I suppose 15 per  cent at  the  present  time  would fill 

Mr. TAWNEY. What percentage  do you  consider  necessary to  the 

Mr. WYVELL. I was  just  about  to  ask  that  question. 
Mr. RURLEY.  Speaking  offhand, I think  frcm  about 75 to 80 per 

cent. , k %  

Mr. WYVELL. You had  better  limit  this  to  the  irrigation season. 
Mr. BURLEY. I am  speaking of our irrigation season. 
Mr. WWELL. And you think you  could use eventually 75 per  cent? 
Mr. BURLEY. From 75 per  cent  to 80 per  cent. 
Mr. WYVEU. What percentage of the  water of Frenchman  River, 

from  such  knowledge as you hare, could prodnce  the best results  in 
Canada  and  what  percentage  would  produce  the best results  in  the 
United  States; could  you  say that  or  am I drawing  the  distinction 

Creek  do you think you  need in  Canada? 

the  land  that is irrigated. 

complete  development of the  land  on  your  side? 

too  fine? 
Mr. BURLEY. It is rather a difficult question, Mr. Wsvell; I have 

not  got  these  data  right  with me. 
Mr. WYVELL. We will  suspend  that  question,  then; I may  want t o  

take  it up later.  With  reference to Battle  Creek,  speaking  entirely 
impartially  and  with a desire to  furnish  such  information as you 
think would  be  helpful,  where could the  water be  best  employed 
from  the  standpoint of best  use to  the land-in Canada or in  the 
United  States? 

Mr. BITRLEY. The  larger  area, I should say, was in  Canada,  exclud- 
ing.  as  Mr.  Sands  has  pointed  out,  that  these  people  on  the  lower 
Battle  Creek  still  hold  their  water  rights. If we could  exclude  these, 
the greater use could be made in Canada,  and I understand  these 
were to be included  in the  Reclamation Service. 

Mr. WYVELL. For such  plans  as you have  in  operation,  what  per- 
centage of water  do you need during  the  irrigation season from 
Battle  Creek? 

Mr.  RURLEY. I am  not  prepared  to  answer  that  offhand; I probably 
would he wrong. 

Mr.  WYVELL. I want  to  ask you as to a  second thought  sugqested 
by Mr. Tawneg,  as to  what  percentage you think you will need 
when  your  plans are fully consummated? 

Mr. BURLEY. That is in  the  same  category; I can  not  speak off- 

Mr. WYVELL. And I snpnose  you  can  not  speak  any  more  definitely 

Mr. BURLEY. No; I could hand  in a written  statement to  the com- 

Mr. WYVELL. Will you  be good enourh  to  get  that? 
Mr. BURLEY. I f  you  will hand me the questions I will  furnish the 

answer. 
Mr. WYVELL. Is it  not  true  that  the floods which  supply a great 

portion of the  water to  the  Milk  River  system, below the eastern 
crossing, come very  suddenly ! I am  nct  speaking of months, because 

hand. 

with  regard  to  Lodge  Creek? 

mission. 
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I understand  they  do  not  come  the  same  months, but a large per- 
centage of water inkhe Milk  River below the  eastern  crossing from 
the  tributaries exclusively in  Montana comes as a result of a  sudden 
flood, do  they  not,  like  the 1912 flood? 

Mr. BURLEY. Very  often; yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. You could  almost  say that  will  occur  annually? 
Mr. BURLEY. It depends  on  your definition of the word '' sudden "; 

Mr.  WYVELL.  The flow will  extend  over one month? 
Mr.  BURLEY.  Possibly. 
Mr.  WWELL.  And  that  month  is  liable  to be what? 
Mr.  BURLEY.  February,  April,  June,  or possibly  September. 
Mr. WYVELL. More  often  in  one of these  months  than  in one of 

Mr.  BURLEY. I should  say  that I do  not know of a February flood. 
Mr.  WYVELL. But you  have  known of a  September flood and of an 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Before we take recess I desire  to  ask  Mr. Newel1 if 

he  has  with  him a map  showing  the  elevation of the  water of the 
Milk  River ? 

Mr. NEWELL. I think we have a hydrograph  showing  the elevation. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I would  suggest  that  Exhibits  A  and  B  ought  to be 

presented to  the commission in  duplicate if you  can ; one for the office 
at  Ottawa  and one for the office a t  Washington. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. A copy  should be sent  to  each of the  commissioners. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  That  will be done. Mr. Burley  spoke of the  stream- 

flow record for 1914 which had been completed  and  which  had  not 
been printed. I have  here,  and I shall  put  in:  the  complete  stream 
flows on  the  Canadian side. 

it will probably  extend  over one or two  months. 

the  other  months1 

April flood ? 

(The commission  took recess for  luncheon  until 2 p. m.) 

AFTER RECESS. 

The commission  reconvened at  the  expiration of the recess, all  the 
members  being  present. 

Mr.  NEWELL.  Mr.  Chairman,  in  response to the request of the com- 
mission, I have some prints of diagrams, copies of which  will be sent 
to  the commission. The first  shows  the  relative flow in  the St. Mary 
and  Milk  Rivers  for  the  years 1909,  1910, 1911, 1912, 1913, and 1914, 
explaining  the  variation  in  quantity of water  as  measured on the St. 
Mary  at  the  international  boundary  and  on  the  Milk  River  at  the 
point  where it,  passes the  eastern  boundary,  and also some similar 
diagrams  from  the  Milk  River  at  Havre for the  years 1908 to 1913, 
inclusive. 

Mr. TAWNEY. The  diagrams  show  on  the  left-hand  side  the  number 
of cubic  feet  per second! 

Mr. NEWELL.  Yes, sir ; and  give a t  the t'op the  years  and  months. 
Mr. TAWNEY. The  year  in which  these varlous  results  were 

obtained ? 
Mr. NEWELL. They  are  to  show  graphically  and  to  bring  to  the  eye 

the  facts  supplied  in  the  water-supply  papers  and  other  reports he- 
fore you. 
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(These  papers  were filed as  Exhibit I.) 
Mr. ~MBCINNES. From what  materials  are  these  hydrographs corn- 

piled ! 
Mr. NEWELL. From  the  printed  reports of the  United  States Geo- 

logical  Survey  and  papers,  and  also  in  the  reports of progress of 
streams  measured. I think  the figures  which  were  contained in  Mr. 
Peters’s  report  practically  agree  with  them. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  They  are based on  the figures  as  contained  in  these 
reports  without  change. 

Mr. NEWELL. Without  change. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  Are  there  any  estimates  made as to  any of these 

Mr. NEWELL. They  simply show graphically  the  figures  given  in 
months,  do  you  know1 

these  reports. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  And  where  there  are  no  figures a  space is left? 
Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr.  MACINNES. I had  intended  to proceed  now with  the  physical 

features of the case, but  perhaps I may be  allowed to  proceed  a little 
out of order.  There  was some discnssion yesterday  afternoon, when 
the  the  Attorney  General  for  Montana  was here: as to  the  Montana 
law,  and I understand we hare in the  court  room  an  eminent  Mon- 
tana counsel, Mr.  Gnnn. I would  like to  be  allowed to  call  him  to 
identify  the  laws of the  State of Montana  and  the  State  law  relating 
to  the  matter. 

I 

STATEMENT OF M. S. GUNN,  COUNSEL,  HELENA,  MONT. 

(Mr. M. S. Gnnn  (counsel of Helena,  Mont.)  was  called  and ques- 

Mr.  MACINNES.  You  are a member of the  bar of the  State of Mon- 

Mr.  GUNN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MACINNES. Horn long have you been a member of that bar B 
Mr.  GUNN. For  25 years. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  You  are  familiar  with  the  irrigation  laws of that  

Mr. GUNN.  Yes,  sir. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  Can yon tell the commission, for its information 

where  they  will  find  the  legislation so far as contxined in  the  statutes 
of the  State of Montana  relating  to  irrigation. 

Mr.  GUNN.  The  statutory  law on the subject of water  rights is 
contained  in  the  Revised  Code of Montana of 1907, two  large 
volumes. But  the sections relating  to  water  rights  are also published 
in pamphlet  form.  They  will be found in  this book entitled “ Min- 
ing Laws” at  page 83. There  is  there  printed  the  section  relating  to 
the  statutory  method of acqltiring a water  right.  That is the  only 
publication  in  pamphlet  form I know of, of the  laws of Montana re- 
lating  to  water  rights. 

tioned by Mr.  MacInnes.) 

tana 1 

State 1 

(Book marlred “ Exhibit ,J.”) 
Mr.  MACINNES.  Can you refer  the cornmission to  any decision of 

weight  which  will  elucidate  the  irrigation laws, both as based on 
common  law  and  on  the  provisions of the  legislation? 

Mr. GUNN. I would  respectfully  refer  the  Commission to  the case 
of Bailey (1). Tintingcr (45 Mont., 155), and also pnblished in the 
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Pacific  Reporter,  volnme 122. n t  pRge 575. I n  that, decision is a 
construction  and  interpretation of the  st’atutc law of the  State  relat- 
ing  to  the  water  rights,  and also nn historical review of the  water- 
rights Inw of Montana.  This decision has  never been reversed. Thc 
supreme  court,  in  this  decision,  recognizes  that  there  are  two 
methods of acquiring  a  water  right, one is the  statutory  method,  and 
the  other is the  method  which  was  followed  before  the  adoption of 
the  statute.  The  method  followed  before  the  adoption of the  statute 
was  merely the  direrging  and  using of the  water,  and  the  right  dated 
from  the commencement of the  work  for  the  purpose of making  the 
diversion. The  statute  authorizes  a  notice of appropriation to  be 
filed with  the  county clerlr ant1 recorder of the  connty  in  which  the 
water  ,right  is  situated  and  provides  that work must be  commenced 
within 40 days  and  that  when  the  work is commenced within 
thxt  period it shall be  prosecuted  diligently. The  right  dates  from 
the  date of the notice  instead of the  date of the commencement of the 
work.  There is the  further  distinction,  that  where  the  appropriation 
is made  in  accordance  with  the  statute,  the  right  obtained  before  the 
possession is taken of the  water.  That is, the  right to  the I I W  of 
the  mater is complete  when the  method of appropriation  has been 
completed,  whereas,  under the  other  method,  the  right is not com- 
plete  until  there  has been actual  diversion of the  water  and  the appli- 

. cation  to  a beneficial use. The  supreme  court  has  said  that  the  st,atu- 
tory  method  is  cumulative  and  that  the  other  method of acquiring R 
right  will  obtain.  The  constitution of the  State declares that tht? 
use of water  in  Montana is a  public use, and we recognize  a right to 
the use  of the  water  as  distinguished  from  ownership of the corp1;s 
of the  water. 

Mr. MACINNES. I s  there  any  other decision on the  subject t o  which 
you would  like to  refer! 

Mr.  GUNN.  There is a decision in  the case of Conrow v. Huffein 
(48 Mont., 437). I n   t h a t  case the  supreme  court of the  State  an- 
nounced that in the absence of proof as to the  quantity of water 
required to successfully irrigate  an  acre of ground,  the  court  would 
assume,  as  a  standard, 1 inch  per  acre,  and  the  statute to  which I 
have  referred  provides  that 3.00 inches are  the equivalent of 24 cubic 
feet  per second. I n  this decision in  Bailey v. Tintinger  there is a 
reference  to  the  earlier  decisions of the  supreme  court of the  Terri- 
tory  and of the  State  on  the subject. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Has  the  legislature of your  State or the  supreme 
court of your State defined,  either  by  statute or by  decision, just 
what is comprehended  in  the  term  “beneficial use ” 1  

Mr.  GUNN. No; not  that I know of. The  constitution  uses the 
term “ beneficial use.” 

Mr. TAWNEY. Has it or  has it not  any  technical  signification  in 
respect to  the use of water for irrigation  purposes? 

Mr. GUNN. No. The beneficial use is any use that is beneficial; 
that is, any use that  tends  to  the  welfare of the people or  the de- 
velopment of the State. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Is it not a fact  that  the  State of Oregon,  by  statute, 
has defined the  term “ beneficial  use ” or rather fixed by  the  statute 
the  relative  value of the use by  prescribing  that  first  in  importance 
it shall  be  for  domestic  purposes  and  irrigation of crops,  and  then 
for  the  irrigation of the  land? 
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Mr. GUNN. That  may be, but I am  not  certain.  The  question 
which arose in  Montana a number of years ago, as  to  the  right to 
acquire  by  condemnation  water  appropriated for irrigation, for a 
municipal  supply,  was  decided  that  the  right  to  supply a munici- 
pality was a right  superior  to  the  right for irrigation, and that 
,rights  appropriated for irrigation  could be taken for the beneficial 
. w e  of a city. 

Mr. TAWNEY. The use for  the  municipality  was  regarded as higher 
than  the  right for irrigation  purposes? 

Mr. GUNN. Yes. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. The common law is the same. 
Mr. GUNN. I may  say fnrther, if any  member of the  commission 

cares  to  pursue  the  subject,  that  the  doctrine of riparian  rights  is 
discussed  in  the case of Smith 7). Dennis, 23 or 25 Montana, I forget 
which. .The case is also referred  to  in 50 L. R. A. (Lawyers'  Re- 
ports  Annotated). 

Mr. TAWNEY. I have  heard  gentlemen  from  the  West,  who  are 
familiar  with  the  law, use the  term '' water  duty "-have you  any 
knowledge of whether or not  that is  a  technical  term,  and if so what 
does it mean? 

Mr. GUNN. I have  not. I presume it means that  the  duty would 
be  performed by n certain  quantity of water, as, for instance,  the 
Supreme Court of Montana  assumed that 1 inch of water  would per- . 
form  the  duty of irrigating 1 acre of land. 

Mr. TAWNEY. That is  whst I want  to get on the  record  for my 
own information. I had  a  vague  idea of what  it  meant,  but I was  not 
mre.  

Mr. POWELL. It means  power of irrigation. 
Mr. GUNN. Power of water  to  perform  this  function of beneficial 

Mr. MIGNAULT. What is exactly,  according  to  your  law, prior ap- 

Mr. GUNN. It is  really  what  the  words  signify. It is the one first, 

use. 

propriation  as  applied  to  water? 

in  time  is first in  right,  and  the one first in  time  has  the  prior ap- 
propriation. 

Mr. TAWNEY. H e  is protected  in  the exercise of that  right  as 
against  anyone else, either  above or below him on the  same  stream? 

Mr. GUNN. Yes;  subsequent  appropriators;  that is, later  in  dah. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. The question IS, must  he  have  applied  the  water 

to beneficial  use in  order  to  have  title  in  the  water  which  he  has  ap- 
propriated D 

Mr. GUXN. That is  discussed in  Forty-fifth  Montana,  Bailey v. 
Tintinger. In   tha t  case the suprenw court decides that unless the 
appropriation is made  in the method  provided by the  statute  that  the 
appropriation is not  con~plcie until it is applied to beneficial use;  but 
where  the  statutory  method is followed that,  then,  the  right  to  the 
use of the water is complcte i~cfore possession of the  water  is  taken 
or before  it  is a ~ q ~ l i e d  t<> I~enefici:~l l ~ e ,  recc.gnizing the  right of ap- 
proprintion  for sale as wclI :IS fo r  irrigntion and other purposes. I 
might nlso atltl that  the sl;ttllte declwcs that  this notice of appro- 
printio:1 provided for by Ihe statute shall be primn facie evidence of 
the  facts  stated, so that !;.here there  is notice nf appropriation  and 
that notice is ~~rocluccd in  evidcnce it is prilniL facie cvitlence of the 
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facts  required  to be stated  in  the notice. But we have  no  record title 
of a water right in Montana;  it  all  depends  on  oral  testimony, even 
though  the  appsopriation  is  what we term a statutory  appropriation, 
except, as I say,  that  the notice is prima  facie evidence. 

Mr.  MIGNAULT. I f  I give  notice  for  an  appropriation of 100 second- 
feet,  would  they  give me a title  without  my  being  able  to show that 
I have  actually used the  water? 

Mr. GUNN. I f  you give  notice of appropriation of 100 second-feet, 
then,  under  the  statute you must commence the work of making  that 
appropriation  available, I think,  within 40 days.  Then, you must 
pursue  that  work  with  reasonable  diligence,  which is determined by 
the  conditions  existing,  until you have  completed your means of 
diversion;  and  if,  as a matter of fact,  the  ditch or the means you are 
using  to clivert the  water is less than 100 feet  per second, ;your right 
is  limited  to  the  quantity you could  carry  in  your  ditch  without re- 
gard  to  what you have  declared in  your notice. I n  other  words,  the 
right is always  limited  to  the  means of diversion of the  quantity as 
measured  by the  capacity of the  ditch or other  means  through  which 
the  diversion is made. 

Mr. POWELL. I do not  quite  understand  the  principle  upon  which 
your  court bases this right. Is it an extension of the common-law 
right of user  by the  riparian  proprietor  for  domestic  and  farm pur- 

oees, or is it a right,  as  in  the case of abandoned  property  which 
gelongs  to  nobody,  where  the  man whose priority of  possession is 
prior  in  right? Is it based on that, or is it a combination? 

Mr. GUNN. It is a right  which  originated  in  the  mining  regions 
of California.  For  conducting  their  mining  operations.  they  found 
it  necessary to  take  water  from  the  streams,  and  custom  was  held 
there,  which  was  crystallized  afterwards  into  statntory  form. 

Mr. POWELL. It is rather  an :lpplication  cf the  old  principle, such 
as the  principle  on  which  the  courts  decided  that  bonds  payable to  
bearer  were  negotiable as a promissory note. 

Mr. GUNN. That  may be. 
Mr. POWELL. At  any  rate, it is recognized in  the courts. 
Mr. GUNN. Yes, and it was recognized  by the  courts  before  there 

was any  statutory  law  in  Montana on the subject. In   the case of 
Smith 'u. Dennis, it was declared, if I remember aright,  that  the 
doctrine of riparian  rights  should  not  obtain  in  Montana  except  to 
the  extent  that  is consistent  with  this  right of appropriation,  which 
was  recognized. 

Mr. POWELL. It is :L case of the  riparian  ownership. 
Mr. GUNN. Not  necessarily,  because the  water can be sppropriat,ed 

Mr. POWELL. Ar. absolute appropriaticn? 
Mr. GUNN. Yes;  the  constitution recognizes that. 

Mr. WY~ELL. P o u  represent one of the  water  associations here! 
Mr. (:TJNN. No: I am here associated with Mr. Walker  for  the 

Canadian  Pacific  Kailwav Co. 
Mr. M.wn,\w. Whew RI'C tllcstx rights recorded  against  streams in 

Montana ? 
Mr. GUNN. I n  the office of the  county  clerk  and re,corder in the 

county  in w11ich the  approprintion is mncle-khat is, the notice of 

for sale. 

Questioned by Mr. W J I V ~ L :  
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apI)ropri:Ltion-and thut j, the  only  provision  there  is  for  recording 
any  paper  affecting water rights. 

Mr. TAWXEY. T lmdrrstand  that notice of appropriation  does  not 
in itself  secure the person  giving  the  notice  the  right of. appro- 
priation: it must he follomed by  the Rctual appropriation, m order 
to give the  party  the  right. 

Mr. GUNN. Yes;  nnd  the  statute  limits  the  time  within  which  the 
work  must be  Commenced. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I f  it is not Commenced within  that  time? 
Mr. GUNN. The notice is of no effect whatever. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I s  not  that,  in effect, the common law? 
Mr. GUNN. No; the difference  between the  statute  and  the common 

law is that  under  the common law  the  rights  dated  from  the com- 
mencement of work  and  by  the  doctrine of relation  back,  the  date 
of the  appropriation  is fixed as of the  date  when  the first work is done, 
whereas,  under  the  statute,  by  virtue of the  doctrine of relation  back, 
t,he date  is fixed as of the  date of filing  the  notice,  although  the  work 
of making  thc  appropriation  available  is  not commenced for 40 days. 

Mr. POWELL. And  if 9011 did  not  do  anything  within 40 days 
i t  lapses? 

Mr. GUNN. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Under  the common law,  the  right of expropriation 

extends  only  in  the  event  and  to  the  extent  to  which  the  applicant 
or  the  party makes it possible to  appropriate  the  mater  for  the use 
for which it is meant. 

Mr. GUNN. Yes. 
Mr. POWELL. Another  point,  which  depends on another  question 

th:lt  came up before us-does this  right give an absolute right  to  the 
water, or is it only a right  to  the  water when it is passing  over  the 
property,  like  the  interest  in a fox or animal f e r @  natura, which 
simply  attachcs  to  the  land. I n  fact, in the  Province of Ontario, 
they  held  that a fox was  land. I s  it an absolute right  in  the  water 
so that  they could follow that water, or is it simply a right to  take 
the  water a s  it is passing  over  certain  property? 

Mr. GUNN. It is a right  to  the use of the  water  as  distinguished 
from  any  ownership  in  the  corpus of the mater'  itself. The use of 
water  is  declared  to hc a public use and  the lam  recognizes  a  property 
right  in  the use of the  water as distinguished  from  the  water  itself. 

Mr. POWELL. You  have  struck  the  origin of the  law; it is in  the 
constitution ; it vests the  proprietorship  in  the  Commonwealth,  and 
then  the  Commonwealth  lets  the  first  occupant  take it. Suppose 
there  are  two  States  occupying  relatively  the  position of upper  and 
lower  riparian'omners.  How  would it he  in  that  case?  Would the 
granting or the  acquisition of the  title  to  water  in  the  superior  State 
be recognized in  the  inferior  State? 

Mr. GTJWX. That very  question  was  before the  Supreme  Court of 
the  United  States  in  the case of Kansas v. Colorado (206 U. S.), 
and  there  is a very  interesting discussion on  the  doctrine. I n   t h a t  
case the  Federal  court  assumed  jurisdiction,  and  proceeded  upon  the 

rinciple  that  there  should be equality of rights in the  water  as 
Eetween two  neighboring  States. 

Mr. POWELL. Has the  superior  State  the right as  easement  over 
the  lands below to  have  that  water  pass  from it down  over  the  in- 
ferior  State. 
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3fr. GUNK.  That question is discussed in  that case. In Colorado 
they  recognized  the  right of appropriation, as we do in  Montana. 
The  Arkansas  River flows from  Colorado  into  Kansas. I 

Mr. Pon’ELrA. My  Wyvell  made a statement  yesterday  mith  regard 
to  the common law,  and I want to see what view the  courts of the 
TJnited States  have  taken  on  the  question as between the  States. 
We  will  go  further,  we  will  supplement  that  with  the  reverse case. 
Has the  inferior  State,  being a riparian  proprietor,  the  right  to 
cornpel the  superior  State,  being n riparian  proprietor,  to pass the 
water  down  to it? 

Mr.  GUNN.  Yes;  subject  to a reasonable  use;  and the Supreme 
Court of the  United  States  declared  that  there  should he equality. 
as nearly  as possihle, in  the use  of the  water betmeen two  States. 

Mr. POWELL. That,  then, is the law of the whole  Republic? 
Mr.  GUNN. As I understand it, as declared  in  that case. 
Mr. MACINNES.  Regardless of the  amount of water  which  map 

Mr.  GUNN.  Yes ; as I understand it. 
Questioned  by Mr. SAKDS : 

Mr. SANDS. Do I understand  from  you that the  r ight  to the use 
of water  might  exist  in  the  State of Montana,  without  any  record 
whatever I, 

take its rise in  the  upper  State as compared  with  the  lower  State? 

Mr. GUNN. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. The record is simply  prima  facie  evidence? 
Mr.  GUNN. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. But  not  perfect evidence. 
Mr. GUNN.  The  statute declares it  shall be prima  facie  evidence 

of the  facts  required  to be stated  in  the  notice,  and, of course, it is 
subject  to  rebuttal  by  testimony.  As  a  matter of fact,  the  right of 
appropriation is dependent  entirely  upon  oral  testimony. 

Mr. SANDS. There  are  two  existing  methods of acquiring  a  right, 
one  by  actual  user  and  the  other  by  posting  notice  and  proceeding 
with  the work. 

Mr.  GUNN.  One is the  statutory  method  and  the  other is the  method 
before  the  statute. 

Mr. SANDS. I n  speaking of the domestic rights you say it was  de- 
termined  in one case that domestic rights  are  higher  than  rights of 
irrigation;  and  do I understand  that  an  irrigation  right  might  not 
be acquired, say, the  day  before  a  domestic  right,  and  maintained? 

Mr.  GUNN. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. And  in  order  to  get  that  right  they could  be  con- 

demned,  but  the  rights  COLI^^ be appropriated  just  the  same  on  dif- 
ferent  days,  could  they  not? 

Mr.  GUNN.  The  statutes of Montana  declare  that  property  devoted 
to a  public use can be taken for necessary  public use, and  the consti- 
tution recognizes that  the use of water is a public use, and  the 
supreme  court  held  that,  nothwithstanding  the use  of water  for 
irrigation  as a  public use, that  the  city of Helena  could proceed by 
condemnation to acquire  rights  in  water,  where  the  water  had been 
appropriated  for  irrigation,  for a municipal  supply  for  the  city, 
proceeding  upon  the  assumption  that  the use for  the whole  com- 
munity  was  a  more  necessary  public use than  the use for irrig a t’ ion 
alone. 
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Mr. SANDS. But  the  right of appropriation is equal, so far  as 

Mr. GUNN. I understand so. 
domestic rights and  irrigation  rights  are  concerned? 

EXAMINATION OF E. F. DRAKE. 

(Mr. E. F. Drake,  superintendent of irrigation  for  the  Dominion 
Government,  Ottawa,  Canada,  questioned  by Mr. MacInnes.) 

Mr. MACINNES. Mr.  Drake, will yon state to the commission your 
official position, how long you have  held it, and  for how many  years 
you have  had  knowledge of the  subject  matter now  before  the com- 
mission. 

Mr. DRAKE. I am  known as the  superintendent of irrigation  for 
the  Dominion  Government,  and I have  held  that  position  since 1912, 
although I have been in  the civil  service of Canada  and  in  the  employ 
of the Dominion  Government  for 27 years  and  have been connected 
with  the  irrigation  branch of the  department of the  interior  for  the 
last 8 years, in  fact sinc,e early  in 1907. I may  say  that  the  irriga- 
tion  branch  was  not  established  as a separate  branch of the  depart- 
ment of the  interior  until 1912. Up to  that  time it was  dealt  with 
departmentally  as  part of another  branch of the  department. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  The  irrigation  statutes of the  Dominion of Canada 
are before the commission, Mr.  Drake,  and  will you state,  as  briefly 
as you can, the  substance of t'hese statutes  and  the  procedure  for ob- 
taining  irrigation  rights  in  Canada. 

Mr. DRAKE. I have  prepared a brief  synopsis of them  all,  and a 
fuller  statement  can be furnished  to  the commission  if  required. The 
statement is as  follows : 

WATER RIGHTS. 

The procedure for. the acquisition of water  rights  under  the 

1. The  filing by the  applicant of a memorial  describing  the pro- 

( a )  The name,  residence, and financial  standing of the  applicant. 
( b )  The source of water  supply,  the  proposed  point or points of 

diversion,  and  the  nature  and  extent of the proposed  works. 
( e )  The  quantity of water  required,  the use to  which  the  water is 

to  be  put,  and  in  the case of an  irrigation  project,  the  character  and 
location of the  lands  and  the  approximate  area  to be irrigated. 

2. The filing of general  plans  showing  in a preliminary  way  the 
nature of the proposed  works and  detailed  plans of structures, etc. 

3. If the  provisions of the  law  hare been complied  with,  the  me- 
morial  and  plans  are  recorded  in  the office of the commissioner of 
irrigation  and  duplicates  are  forwarded  to  the  department of the 
interior a t  Ottawa  for record. Each  application is given  priority 
in  accordange  with  the  date of the  filing of its  memorial  and  plans 
with  the  commissioner,  and is protected  in  its  priority so long  as 
it complies  with  the  requirements of the law. 
4. Authorization  for  the  construction of the works is then issued 

by the  minister of the  interior,  and a period of time is fixed in such 
authorization  within  which  the  works  shall be  completed. 

5. The  works  are inspected  periodically  dnring  construction,  and 
when  completed, or when the  period  for  construction has expired, 

Canadian  law  is,  briefly: 

posed  project  and  setting  forth : 
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a final  inspection is made for the  purpose of determining  whether 
the  works  have been constructed in  accordance  with  the  plans  and 
that  they  are sufficient for the purpose. 

6. The commissioner of irrigation is required to certif to the  
satisfactory  completion of the  works  (if  such is the  factr,  and a 
license is then issued to  the  applicant.  This license authorizes  the 
diversion  and use of a stated  quantity of water  for a prescribed  use 
on a  described tract of land  and is cencellable only for abandonment 
or nonuse. The  water is made  appurtenant  to  the described land 
and  may  not be otherwise used or disposed  of. 

. 7. If  an  applicant for water  rights desires t o  use his  uncompleted 
works  prior  to  the  issue of a water license the  minister of the  in- 
terior  may  authorize  him  to  do so, but  the  applicant  then becomes 
subject  to  all  the  provisions of the  law  applicable  to licenses. 

8. Under  Canadian  law  power is vested in  the  minister of the  in- 
terior  to define the  “duty of water,”  or  the  quantity of water  re- 
quired  to  irrigate a given  unit of land. The present “ duty of water )’ 
is about 2 acre-feet of water  for 1 acre of land. 

There  will be filed as  exhibits  schedules of water  rights  on  the 
St. Mary  and  Milk  Rivers  and  their  tributaries  in  Canada.  All  of 
these  rights  have been acquired  and  are  maintained  in good standing 
in  accordance  with  the  provisions of the  irrigation act. 

IRRIGATION PROJECT OF THE ALnEwrA R i t l L w A Y  & IRRIGATION GO. 

The  original  company, of which the  Alberta  Bailway 65 Irrig a t‘ 1on 
Co. is  the  legal successor, was incorporated  in 1893 under  the  name 
of the  “Alberta  Irrigation Co.,” and  in  April, 1893,. prior  to  the 
enactment of any  general  law  governing  the  granting of- water  rights 
for  irrigation purposes, the  Canadian  Government  granted  permis- 
sion to  the  company  to  construct a  system of works  for  the  irrigation 
of certain  lands  in  the  vicinity of Lethbridge,  in  what is now the 
southern  part of the  Province of Alberta.  The  company did not, 
however,  avail  itself of this permission. 

The  irrigation  act  was  drafted  in 1893 and  introduced  in  the  form 
of a bill  in  the  Parliament of that year. It was,  however,  not  enacted 
into  law  until 23d July, 1894 (chap. 30, 57-58 Victoria). 

Surveys  made  by  the  Canadian  Government  during 1894 and subse- 
quent  years  demonstrated  the  feasibility of irrigating a considerahle 
tract of arid  land in southern  Alberta  from  the St. Mary  and  Milk 
Rivers  and  certain  other  streams,  but  no  active  steps were taken 
for  the  construction of works,  although a reservation of 500 second- 
feet  from  low  water  and 1,000 second-feet of water, high water  from. 
St. Mary  River  was  made  by  the  Government,  by  order  in  council 
dated 21st September, 1897, to  safeguard  the  future development of 
this  district  by  means of irrigation. 

On 31st of January, 1899, the  Alberta  Irrigation Ca. applied to 
the  Canadian  Government,  in  accordance  with  the  provisions of the 
irrigation  act,  for permission to  divert  from St. Marys  River on the 
southeast  quarter of section 36, township 1, range 25, west of the 
fourth  meridian, the t d a l  low-water flow available for diversion 
from  that  stream,  and a further  quantity  during  high-water stage, 
sufficient to ma,ke 2,000 cubic-feet  per second during  that stage. T h e  
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water  was  to be used on  a tract of some 500,000 acres of land de- 
scribed  in  the  memorial. 

This  memorial  was filed with  the  commissioner of irrigation on the 
7th  February, 1899. 

On 3d May, 1899, authorization  was  granted to the company for 
the  construction of its works,  and  a  perlod of 10 years  was  granted 
for the completion of the  said  works. 

By  order  in council of 22d May, 1899, the  water  reserved  in ac- 
cordance  with  the  provisions of the  order of 21st September, 1897, 
was granted  to  the  Alberta  Irrigation Co. as part of the  quantity 
applied  for  by its memorial of 31st January, 1899. 

As the  company's  plans  were  developed it enlarged  the scope of 
its proposed  works  and filed separate  memorials  and  plans  covering 
the use of water  from  other sources of supply  than those  comprised 
in  the  original  application,  and finally, on 9th  September, 1902, it 
filed an amended  memorial  and  plans  comprising  all of those pre- 
viously submitted. 

Authorization  for  the  construction of the works, as  shown  in the 
amended  application,  was  granted  on 23d  October, 1902, and a period 
of 15 years  was  granted for the  construction of the  works. 

The following  is a schedule of the several applications  submitted 
by  the  company: 
. ~~~~ .... . ~ . ..................... 

1 I 

31 Jan., 1899 St. Mary River  Total flow nt low :j May, 1x99 

." - ___ ". . " ~~ ~ 

......... ...... 
wat.er 2,nno sec- 
ond-feet hiqb io- 1 
fa1 llow. 

13 Mar., 1000.. ...... .do.. ........... .! 8 June, 1001) Ripp Coiilec.. .......... 
Do.. ............ 
Do.. ............ 
Do 
Do.. ............ 

.............. 
gept., 19nz ......... 

.......... ........... 
Nine Mile Coulee. 
Pothole Creek.. 

do.. 5 Jnne, 

19 June, ...... d o . .  ............ Pinepound Creek.. 
.do . .do.. ................ Middle Coulee.. ......... 

do.. .I 15 June, 

Milk River.. ........ 000 second-feet low 
1,500 second-feet 
hirh. 

Rol 11 Creek.. ...... Total flow ........... 

........ ............ 

llelly River.. ....... PO0 second-feet.. .... 
,23 oct., 

MillCreek Ridge.. ...... do..  ............ 
Roservoirs.. ........ Total  capacity.. .... 

1900 
1900 

1!?00 
..... 

19nz I 

10 years from 3 May, 
1899. 

Do. 
DO. 
DO. 
D O .  

15 years. 

1 Including  and  amalgamating all previous  applications  and memorials. 

There  are filed herewith  for  record  purposes copies of the  several 
authorizations  referred  to above. 

The  company  has  displayed  reasonable diligence in  the  construc- 
tion of its works  and  has  in  all respects  complied with  the  require- 
ments of the  law.  On  5th  October, 1911, the  properties of the com- 
pany,  then  known  as  the  Alberta  Railway & Irrigation Co., were 
acquired  by  the  Canadian  Pacific  Kailwa Co. On  that  date  the 
former  company  had  expended $1,106,583. T 5 on the  construction of 
works,  exclusive of annual  expenditure  for  maintenance  and  opera- 
tion. 

There  are 173,600 acres of land  irrigable  from  the  constructed 
works and  the  extensions now under  way,  and  a  much  larger  area 
can be  served  by  reasonably  economical  enlargements or extensions. 
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The capacity of the  canal  is 1,200 square  feet,  except  the  Rolph 

The  total  mileage of main  canals  is  about 200 miles. 
The  company has actually  operated its canal  system,  in  part,  dur- 

ing  the  past 15 years  and has received a permit to supply  and use 
water  in  advance of the issue of a license. 

I am  filing  with  this  memorandum or record copies of the  several 
authorizations  that  have been referred to, and they are as follows: 

Creek flume, which is now under reconstruction. 

EXTIIAC1’ FROM -4 REPORT OF T H E  COMMITTEE OF THE IIONORABLE THE PRIVY COUNCIL, 
APPROVED DY HIS EXCB:LI,ENCY ON TIIE 22D MAY, 1890.  

under the  authority of an  order  in council, dated 21st Septeniber, 1897, a quan- 
On a report  dated 2  May, 1899, from  the minister of the  interior,  stating  that 

tity of water  equal  to 500 cubic feet  per secontl during  the  low-water  stage 
of the  St. Marys River  in the district of Alberta  and 1,000, cubic feet  per 
second during  the  high-water  stage of the  said  river  were  reserved  for a period 
not  exceeding 10 years  from  the 21st September, 1897, in  order that any  person 
or company  who  in  the  meantime  might  undertake  to  construct  works  for  the 
irrigation of a certain  tract of 1:rncl in the vicinity of the  St. Marys River con- 
taining  an  area of 250,000 acres  might be assured of obtaining a  sufflcient 
quantity of water  to  irrigate  the  same. 

That the Alberta  Irrigation Co. have  applied  to  the  minister of the  interior 
for  permission,  under  the  provisions of the  northwest  irrigntion  act, to con- 

600,000 acres of land  in  the  district of Alberta,  including  the  greater  portion 
struct a canal  to  divert  water  from  the  St.  Marys  River  to  irrigate  about 

of the  trnct  referred  to  in the order  in council of the 21st September, 1897. 
The  minister recommends that  provided the company is duly  authorized  to 

construct  the  canal the qunntity of water  reserved by the  order  in council of 
the  21st of September, 1897, and as much  more as is reouired  to  irrigate  the 
tract of land  described  in 
tion Co. 

The  committee  submit 
approval. 

their  application  be  grnnted to the  Alberta  Irriga- 

the  above  recommendation  for  your excellency’s 

JOHN J. MCGEE, - Clerk of tlw Privg Council. 

MEMORANDUM. 

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOB, 
Ottowa, Jd May, 1899. 

The  undersigned, in accordance  with the provisions of subsection 2 of sec- 
tion 15 of an act  to  amend  aud  consolidate  the  northwest  irrigation  acts of 
1894 and 1895, hereby  authorizes the construction, as soon as the  necessary 
right of way  therefor has been acquired, of the  irrigation worlrs as shown by 
the memorial  and  plans  submitted by the  Alberta  Irrigation Co., in  connection 
with  their  application for permission  to  divert  water  from St. hlarys River  on 

meridian, for irrigation  and  power purposes, no change or variation  therefrom 
the  southeast  quarter of section 36, township 1, rallge 25, west of the  fourth 

applied for,  the  works  to be completed within 10 years  from this date. 
being  deemed necessary nor any  protests f i l e d  against  granting the rights 

Deputy of the Minister of the Intovior. 

S. M. (3. 

JAS. A. SMART, 

Noted in regr. 1, fol. 85 and  in schedule. 

A1’TIIOI:IZATiON MEMORANDUM. 

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTESIOB, 
Ottawct, 8th June, 1900. 

The undersigned,  in  accordance  with  the  provisions of subsection 2 of section 
15 of an  act  to  amend  and  consolidate the northwest  irrigation act.* of 1894 
and 1896, hereby  authorizes  the  construction, a s  soon as the  necessary right of 
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way  therefor  has been acquired, of the  irrigation  works as shown by the me- 

Lethbridge,  Alberta, N. W. T., in connection with  their  application for permis- 
moria1 and  plan  submitted by the Cnn:ldian Northwest  Irrigation Go., of 

sion  to  divert  water  from  Etzi-kom or  Kipps C,oulee on the  northeast quarter of 
section 8, township 6, range 19, and on the  southwest  quarter oP section 30, 
township 6. range 17, west of the  fourth  meridian, for irrigation  and power pur- 
poses, no change  or  variation  therefrom being  deemed necessary  nor  any pro- 
tests filed against  granting  the  rights  applied for, the  works  to  be contpleted 
within 10 years  from  the 3d day of May, 1899. 

JAB. A. SNART, 
Deputy of tho  :lIinister of tihe Interior. 

AlJTEIOUIZATIOl'T MEMORAhDUM. 

DEYARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, 
Ottawa,  15th  June, 1900. 

The  undersigned,  in  accordance  with  the  provisions of subsection 2 of sec- 
tion 15 of ;rn act  to  anlend  and  consolinate  the  northwest  irrigation  acts of 18W 

of wily therefor has been acquired. of the  irrigation  works as shown by the 
and 1S95, hereby  authorizes  the  constrnction, as soon as the necessary  right 

nienlorial  and plnn snhmitted by the  Canadian  Northwest  Irrigation Co., of 
Letllbridge.  Alberta. S. W .  T . ,  in connection with  their  application  for per- 
ntimion  to  divert  water  from  Pothole  Creek  and its tributaries on the  north- 
west  quarter of sectian 23, township 9, range 22, west of the  fourth  meridian, 
for irrigiltion  and power purposes. no  change  or  variation  therefrom  being 
deemed necessary  nor  ally  protests filed against  granting the rights  applied  for 
the works to be completed within 10 years  from  the 3d day of i%y, 1899. 

Depusl.]) of the Uinister of the Interior. 
JAS. A.  SVART, 

AUTHOKIZATION MEBIORAKDUM. 

DEPARTMENT OB THE INTERIOB, 
Otlazon, 5th  June, 1900. 

The  nnilersigned,  in  accordance  with  the  provisions of subsection 2 of sec- 
tion 15 o f  an nct to atncntl nntl consolitlate the  northwest  irrigation  acts of 
1S94 a r l t l  180.5, hcrchy nuthorixw the  construrtion, as soon as the  necessary right 
of way therefor has been acquiretl, of thc  irrigation  works as shown by the 
n~emorial ant1  pl:tns submitted by the Cnnntlinn Northwest  Irrigation Co. of 

sinn  to  tlivert  waters froin Nine Mile Coulee  on the  southeast  quarter of sec- 
I,ethhritlge, Albertn, N. W .  T., in connection with  their  application €or permis- 

tion 5 ant1 the  northeast  quarter of section 27, township 6, range 21, west of the 
fonrth tneritlian, for  irrigation and power  purposes, no change or variation 

rights ap1)lied for, the works to  be completed within 10 years  from  the 3d day 
therefroln  heing,tlewecl necessary nor  any  protests filed against  granting  the 

of IvrttsT, 1 8 ~ .  
JAS. A. SWART, 

Deputu of the Minister 01 the  interior. 

AUTIlOBIZATION  MEMORANDUM. 

DKPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, 
Otlazoa, 5th  June, 1900. 

The untlersignetl, in nccortlnnce with  the  provisions of subsection 3 of sec- 

1994 ant1 7895, hereby  authorizes  the  construction,  as soon as the  necessary  right 
tion 15 o f  an  nct  to ament1 and  consolidate  the  northwest  irrigation  acts of 

of v;ny thrrefor has been acquired, of the  irrigntion works as shown by the 
1nemori:ll ant1 pl:m suhtnittetl hy the C:tnxdian North~vest  Irrigation Go. of 
Lethhritlge,  dlberta, in  connection with  their  application for permission to  
divert  wnter from bliddle Coulee  on the  southeast  quarter of section 5, town- 
ship 6, range 20, west of the  fourth  meridian, for irrigation  and  power pur- 
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poses,  no  change or variation  therefrom  being deemed necessary  nor  any  protests 
filed against  granting  the  rights  applied  for,  the  works to he  completed within 
10 years  from  the 3d day of May, 1 S N .  

JAS. A. SMART, 
Deputy of the  Minister of the  Interior. 

AUTIIORIZATION MEMORANDUM. 

DEPARTNENT OF THE INTERIOR, 
Ottawa,  19th June, 1900. 

tion 15 of an act  to  amend ant1 corlsolidnte the  northwest  irrigation  acts of 
The  undersigned,  in accortln~~ce with  the  provisions of subsection 2 of sec- 

IS94 and 1805, hereby  authorizes  the  construction, as acquired, of the  irrigation 
works as shown by the memorirll and  plan  submitted by the  Canadian  North- 
west  Irrigation Co.,  of Lethbritlge,  Alberta, N. W .  T., in connection with  their 
application  for  permission  to  divert  water  from  Pinepound  Creek  (or  Spring 
Coulee)  and  its  brnnches on the northeast  qnnrter of section 17, township 4, 
rnnge 23, west of the  fourth  meridian,  for  irrigation  and power purposes, no 
change  or  vnrintion  therefrom being  deemed necessary,  nor  any  protests filed 

years  from  the 3d of May, 1899. 
ngnirlst granting the rights nppliecl for, the works  to  be completed within 10 

Jas. A. SMART, 
Deputy of the  illinister of the Interior. 

AUTHORIZATION  MEMORANDUM. 

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, 
Ottaaon, 29d October, 1908. 

The  Canadian  Northwest  Irrigation Co. having f l 1 t . d  the necessnry memorials 
nntl plans, also a general mhp (1:ttetl 9th  September, 1902, and  having complied 
with a l l  the  provisions of the  nortllmst  irrigxtion  act, 1595, relating  to  appli- 
cntions fof the  right  to  tlivert  water, is I1ereby nnthorizetl  to  construct, as soon 

shown by said  mfworials, p l a ~ ~ s ,  nnd general map, necessary for the proper 
n s  such  right of way as is required  therefor has been obtained,  the  works as 

diversion  and utiliz;ltion for  irrigation  and power purposes, :mtl is also 
authorized  to so divert  and  utilize: 

(1) All of the  water  supply  in  the  various  reservoirs  shown as such upon 
the said general map;  

( 2 )  Five  hundred  cubic  feet of mater  per second from  Belly  River; 
( 3 )  All  of the  total low-wnter flow of the  St.  Mary  River  and a further 

amount of water  during  high-water st:iges of the  stream sufficient to  make 
2,000 cubic  feet  per second during  thnt  stage; 

(4) Five  Inmlretl  cubic  feet of water  per second from Milk River,  including 

IJer second (luring  high  water  antl flood stages; 
the flow of nll its  branches  (luring l o w  water, and 1,500 cubic feet of water 

or Itolph Creek nnd all their  branches; 
( 5 )  All the  ar:lilable  water  snpl)ly of the  North and South Forks of Willow 

and a l l  its  branches; 
(6 )  All the  available  water snpply of Pineponntl  Crcek  (or  Spring  Coulee) 

(S)  All the avai1al)le twter snpply of Nine  Mile Coulee antl  all its branches; 
(7) All  the  avnilnhle  mnter  supply of Pothole  Creek  and all its branches; 

(10) All the  available  wtlter  supply of I~Ctzilron~ or Kipps Coulee and all its 
(9)  All the  available  water  supply of '3lidclle Coulee and  all  its  branches; 

branches ; 
(11) All the  available  water  supply of the various  unnamed  water  courses 

portion of Milk River Iliclge; 
which  run  in  an  easterly  direction  carrying  the  waters  out of the  eastern 

as such  unnamed  watercourses,  rivers,  creeks,  and coulees, and  points of diver- 
sion  therefrom  are  shown on said  general mnp, no change or variation  there- 
fronl  being deemed necessary,  and  consideration of the  protest filed against 
grtmting  the  rights  applied  for  having been refused by the  minister. The works 
to  he completed within 15 years  from  the  date  hereof,  subject  to the provisions 
of the  northwest  irrigation  act  and the regulations  made  therewith. 

JAS. A. SMART, 
Deputy of t l tc  .lfiui.vter of the Interior. 

11395-15-10 
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Mr. M A ~ N X M .  \\riLh regard  to obher authorixatio~~s or :Lk)t)!ica- 

tions for use on  the St. Marys  and  on  the  Milk  Itiver, L nnderstnnd 
that Mr. Peters, who is  familiar  with  the  details of this  matter,  has 
schedules  which  he  will pnt  in for the use of the commission. Have 
you examined  these  sclledules, and can  you inform  the  commission. 
whether  these  applications  are  in  good  standing,  under  the  irrigation 
laws of Canada? 

Mr. DRAKE. Yes;  they are all in good  standing. Our practice is 
to make  periodical  inspections  in  order  to  satisfy  ourselves that  ap- 
plicants  for  water  rights  are  displaying  reasonahle  diligence  in  the 
construction of works,  and if we find they arc not  doing so nnd are 
not  able  to give any  satisfactory  reason for that,  our policy is to  
cancel water  rights. I might  make  this qu:dification,  llowcver, that 
in  a new country  such  as  that  it is n(:t vonsitlered to be good policy 
to  insist  upon  the  continuous  construction, as in :L new country  they 
have  many  other  things to  do  in  addition  to  the  construction of irri- 
gation  works;  they  have  to  maintain  their  families  and  break  their 
land,  and  fence it, and put up  buildings,  and sometimes they  are 
handicapped  for  want of time  and money. We, therefore, show them 
some  consideration. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  But  that is done in a  regular  manner, is i t? 
Mr. DRAKE. I n  a  very  regular  manner. It is the  practice of the 

Government  with  respect  to  authorizing  the  construction of small 
irrigation works,  to fix a time  limit of one year os two  years,  and a t  
the  expiration of that  time we grant  an extension for reasons,  but 
unless we do  grant  extensions  the works no  longer  are  in  good 
standing. 

Mr. & ~ A G ~ X . N E S .  Reference mas made in tllc earlier  part of the 
proceedings  to four  joint  gauging  stations  which  have been estab- 
lished, one on  the St. Mary River and three 011 the  Milk  River. 
I made  certain  statements to the Commission with  regard to  that, 
and I w o t l l d  like to hetw from yo~t :IS head of thc irrigation clepart- 
ment  what  is  the  history of the  estal)lishwent of these stations in 191%. 

Mr. DUKE. Before 1912 the  irrigation  branch  maintained a n u n -  
ber of stl.eanl-measurement; stations  in  the St. Mary  River and Milk 
River  watersheds  and  elsewhere  thro1~gll(jllt Can:&, as p r t  of the 
system for  determining the yumtities of n-nter available  for  dis- 
posal  under  the  irrigation act. We  had a station  on  the St. Mary 
River a short  distance n o ~ t h  of the  international  boundary,  and  the 
United  States  Keclnmation  Service or the Geological Survey, I am 
not  sure  which, hat1 n station ,just south of the  international  boundary. 
They were only  separated  by a few miles. Then we had  stations 
which  had been erected  about 1908'or 1909 on  both  the  south  branch 
and  the  north  branch of Milk  River snci another  at  the  eastern 
crossing. I think  the question of the  establishment of joint  stations 
came up  in  the  form of a  letter  from  the  head of the  United  States 
Geological Surrey,  suggesting  that these two stations  then  main- 
tained on the  St.  Mary  River be discontinued, and that one joint 
station be established,  the  records of which  would  be available to 
bath countries. 1T7e agreed to  (lo that  and in turn suggested to  the 
United  States  authorities  the  advisability of extending  them  to 
include  the Milk River  and its branches.  They  agreed  with  us  and 
in  turn ment a little  further  and  suggested  that it would  be a good 
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idea  to  establish  similar  stations on all  interllational  streams,  that is 
as far  as  the  matter  has gone. It was agreed between us  that  these 
four stations  should be erected at  points  mutually  agreed  upon,  and 
that  suitable  guages,  approved  by  both  Governments,  should  be 
established,  and  that  the cost should be borne  equally  by  the  two 
Governments  and  the  records should be  available  equally to  both 
of them.  We  carried  out  that  arrangement. We constructed  the 
stations,  shared  the  cost,  and  both  Governments  are  operating  them. 

Mr. MACINNER. With  reference  to  the scheclules I mentioned  t,hat 
Mr.  Peters was going  to  put  in, I see that  there  are also  some  schednles 
of applications  on  the  tributaries of the  Milk  River, as well as on 
the St. Mary  River  and  the  Milk  River.  What is the  standing of the 
applications of the  tributaries s21own on the  schedules? 

btr. I>RAKE. The  applications  hare been made in  conforfhity  with 
the  provisions of the law, and  the  applications  are  in  good  standing. 

Mr. WYVELL. Do you mciln those that  are east of the eastei-n cross- 
ing? 

Mr. M A C ~ N W .  I was  referring  to  the  applications  for  water on 
tributaries of the  Milk  River  in  Canada. 

Mr. T A W N ~ Y .  This forenoon I coulcl not  ascertain  that  there were 
an.v tributaries of the  Milk  River  in  Canada of any consequencc. 

Mr. MACINNES. Moving  from west to  east,  there  is first of all Lodge 
Creek,  as it is  known  in Chnnda, and \Vest Fork, as it is known In 
the  United  States;  then  thcre  is  Battle Creek, :IS it is known  in Can-  
ad>), or North  Fork, as it  is known in the  United  States;  then  there 
is Frenchman  Biver  and  Whitewater  Crcek  and  Rock  Creek. 

These  are  the tributaries which flow in  and  join  the  Milk  River 
below the  boundary  line,  and it, was stated  in evidence  to-day that 
the flow of these  tributaries  from  Canada  into  the  United  States 
amounted  in  an  average  yew  to  something  like 190,000 acre-feet, or 
somewhere in  the neighborhood of twice as much as  the flow of the 
whole Milk River proper, its it leaves Canada at castern  crossing. 

Mr. DRAKE. I may  say  that in addition  to  the  recorded  applica- 
tions  for  water  schedules,  all of which are to be submitted,  the Cana- 
dian  Government  has  refused  a  good  many  applications for waters 
on  these  tributary  streams,  Frenchman  niver,  Lodge  Creek,  and 
Battle  Creek, because  of the insufficiency of mater  and of the  provi- 
sions of the  waterways  treaty. 

Mr. TAWNEY. You  stated a moment  ago  the  aggregate of the ~ p -  
plications  on t,he St. Marys  River,  but I did not  catch the aggregate 
number. 

Mr. DRAKE. My  statement  referred  only to the  applications of the 
Alberta  Railway & Irrigation Co. 

Mr. TAWNEY. What is the  aggregate of these  applications? 
Mr. DRAKE. It is a matter  that 1s very difficult to compute. The 

applications call for the total low-water flow of St. Mar River 
and  enough of the  high-water flow to make i t  2,000 second- P eet. 

Mr. TAWNEY. That  application  has been granted? 
Mr. DRAKE. That application has been granted. 
Mr. TAWZU’EY. When was it granted? 
Mr. DRAKE. On  the 3d of Mag, 1899. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Subsequent to  the  making of this  treaty in January? 
Mr. DRAKE. No; in 1899, prior  to  the  making of this  treaty. I n  
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addition  to  that  there is the  total flow  of a  number of small streams, 
and we have  no  very  accurate  knowledge of what  that  total flow 
amounts  to,  but  that  is  not a considerable  quantity of  water-500 
second-feet of water  from  the  Belly  River, 500 second-feet of the 
low-water flow of Milk  River, and enough of the  high-water flow to 
make it 1,500 second-feet. The  grant  from St. Mary River  was 
authorized  on  the 3d of May, 1899; the  other  principal  rants  from 
Belly  River  and  Milk  River were made  on  the  83d of Octo % er, 1902. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Belly  River is not a tributary of the St Mary 
River  or of the  Milk  River? 

Mr. DRAKE. No ; i t  flows parallel  to  the St. Mary  River. 
Mr. M A ~ N N X ~ .  The Belly  River  application is not  appearing  in 

the schedule  Mr.  Peters  is  putting  in, because it has  nothing  to do 
with  this  matter. 

Mr. DRAKE. Absolutely  nothing  to do with it. 
Mr. SANDS. We object to  the use  of the  word  “grant”  there be- 

cause we think it carries a wrong  impression. Mr. Drake used the 
term “ grant ” in  1899. It is  only  an  application  which is equivalent 
t o  a notice in our territory  and  the  term “ grant, ” ought  not to  be 
used. 

Mr. DRAKE. Perhaps I may  be  permitted  to  explain  that. I do 
not know that  the word “grant”  is the  proper  word,  and  yet it 
does seem to me to  convey the idea. The  applicant  for  water  rights 
has rights  from  the  day on which  that  application is first recog- 
nized by the  Government  and  from  the  date  that  the  applicant is 
authorized  to  construct  his work. Granting  authorization  to  a coni- 
pany or to  an  individual  to  construct  irrigation  works  ‘implies  that 
the  Government has satisfied  itself that its plans  are  reasonable  and 
that  he can  apply  water  to beneficial use, and it specifies the  period 
of time  within  which  he  must  complete  his  work. I f  he  complies 
with  that one  condition  and  displays  reasonable  diligence  in  the 
construction of his work, his right exists. Our lam recognizes his 
right as existing  from  the  date  on  which  authorization  was  given 
to  him  to  construct  his  work. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Have you  any  data  showing  the  actual  amount of 
water  applied  under  these  permits, as you  call  them, to  the  Alberta 
Railway & Irrigation Co.? 

Mr. DRAKE. No, sir;  I have not  very  accurate  information. Mr. 
Burley  gave  evidence on that  point  this  morning  and  he  has n 
better  knowledge of the  facts  than I have. 

Mr. MACINNES. I think it would  be  better  if we put  in  here  with 
Mr. Drake’s  evidence  a  schedule of these  applications. I had  in- 
tended  to  put  them  in  with  Mr.  Peters’s  evidence because it is all 
relating  to  the  same  subject  matter. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Do  they shorn the  amount of actual  applications 
for water! 

Mr. MACINNES. Yes. [To Mr. Drake:]  Will  you  state  what  these 
schedules are ? 

Mr. DRAKE. There is a schedule  showing all  the  water  rights  ap- 
plied for by  various  parties on the St. Mary  River  and its tributaries 
111 Canada. 

(Schedule filed as  Exhibit K.) 
Mr. MACINNEB. Up to  what  date is this schedule  made? 
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Mr. DRAKE. This schedule' is complete up  to  the  24th of December, 

There  is  another  schedule  showing  the  water  rights  in  the  Milk 

(Schedule filed as Exhibit  K2. 
A  schedule  showing the  water  rights  in  the  Lodge  Creek  drainage 

basin filed as  Exhibit K3. 
A schedule  showing the  Battle  Creek  drainage  basin filed as Ex- 

hibit K4. 
A schedule  showing  the  Frenchman  River  drainage  basin filed 

as  Exhibit K5.) 
Mr. TAWNEY. Mr. Burley  probably covered the question in acre- 

feet,  but I would like to lmow this:  The  two  Governments  have 
recognized  a prior  appropriation of the  water of these  two  rivers, 
500 second-feet.  Now,  according to  your  testimony it would ap- 
pear  that  there  had been a prior  appropriation a t  the  time of the 
making of this  treaty of somethin  in  the  neighborhood of 3,000 
second-feet. I want  to know  whet gh er  that  number of second-feet 
of water  has  actually been applied to  the  irrigation of land  in 
Canada,  taken  from  these  two  rivers,  prior  to  the  making of this 
treaty ? 

1914. 

River  drainage  basin  up  to  the  same  date. 

Mr. DRAKE. No; it has not. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Can you give  us  the  number of culnic second-feet of 

water  that  was  actually  applied  prior to  January 11, 1909, the  date 
of this  treaty,  or  the  date  it  was  promulgated? I want  to  get  out 
the  actual  appropriation of water at  the  time when the  prior  appro- 
priation  was  recognized  by  both  Governments of both  countries 
to be  fixed at  500 second-feet. 

Mr. DRAKE. No, sir;  I can  not gin? you that  information,  and, so 
far   as  I am  aware, it can  not be obtained. The  appropriators whose 
interests  were  to be protected  in  this case was  a  company  which  had 
very  elaborate  plans  for  the  development of a very  large  district, 
and  which  required a very  considerable  period of time  within  which 
to  develop its plans  and to construct its works. As I said R moment 
ago,  the  company was granted 15 years  from  October, 1902, within 
which to construct  its  works,  and  under our law it mas entitled  to 
protect+  during  the whole of that  time,  and it has also been granted 
permission to  divert  and use water  through  its  uncompleted  works 
at  any  period  during  construction, in order  that it might  develop 
the  country  as  rapidly  as possible. But the  time  has  not  yet  arrived 
when it becomes the  duty of the  Government  to  determine  just  what 
the  capacity of the  canal  system  is  and  what  are  the  lands that should 
be irrigated  from it. That  must be  done  before the license is giren 
to  the  company,  but  the  period  for  granting  the license has  not  yet 
arrived,  and  therefore we have  not  done  that. - 

Mr. MACINNER.  You  might  ekplain  to  Mr.  Tawney  what  was  the 
capacity of the  works of the A. R. & I. Co. on the St. Marys  River 
and at the  Milk  River,  respectively, at t h c k  (late of the  treaty. 

Mr. DRAKE. At  the  date of the  treaty,  in 1910, I say,  subject to 
correction,  that  the  carrying  capacity of the h. R. & I. Co. Canal  in 
1910 was  about 800 second-feet. That would also  apply  to  the  year 
1909. There  are officers here mho ought to be able  to  give  that  infor- 
mation  more  definitely  than I can. 
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Mr. TAWNEY. Officers of the  irrigation  company? . 
Mr. DRAKE. No ; our  own officers. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  And  the  Milk  River? 
Mr. DRAKE. The capacity of the Mill: River  Canal \vas: I believe, 

either 340 or 350 second-feet. 
Mr.  MACINNER.  Reference  has been made  about  the  water  running 

into  the  Milk  R’iver  Canal;  what  information  can yon give us as to 
that?  

Mr. DRAKE. Such  information  as I have 011 that  point is, of course, 
from hearsay. I did not see the  water  running. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  Do you know it from  your  oficial  knowledge? 
Mr. DRAKE. I know officially that  water  was  run  through  that 

canal  in one  year-that it was  carried over the divide. That  was a 
point  that was  questioned this morning-that i t  was carried over the 
divide to the  end of the canal. 

Mr. MACINNES.  Row  far oyer the  divide? 
Mr. DRAKE. I think  approxilnately 20 miles  from  the  point of 

Mr. BIEN. Do you Imom  how nluch  there, was? 
Mr. DRAKE. I do  not  know  whethcr  the  canal was run to  its full 

capacity  or  not,  or  whetller  there was suficient  mater in  the  river  at 
the time. 

As part of Exhibit I<, part K G ,  I file a  brief  record of the  appli- 
cation for  water  submitted by Messrs. F. W. Elmore  and N. D. Mac- 
Intosh, of Grand  Forks,  British Columbia,  who  wanted to  irrigate 
a tract of land  in  the Wrenchman  Valley, ccmprising 20,960 acres, of 
which  they  claimed  that 15,167 acres  could be irrigated.  The  Cana- 
dian  Government  declined  to  sell  the  land  and  declined  to  grant  a 
water  right on the  ground of insufficiency of water  in  that  stream 
for that  purpose. That  was  in  April, 1910. I have  here also  a plan 
showing  the  tract of land  which  these  gentlemen  purposed  irrigating. 

(Plan filed as  part of Exhibit KG.) 
Mr.  MACINNES.  On  the  first  page of this  Exhibit IC6 the  letters 

“ H ” and ‘‘ I? ” are used under the word “ low.” What  do “ H ” and 
“ F ” stand  for? 

intake. 

Mr. DRAKE.  High  water  and floods. 
Mr.  GLENN.  Are  these  applications  in  good  standing? 
Mr. DRAKE. They  are  all  applications  in good standing. 
Mr.  GLENN.  And  you  are  putting  in now an  application  which  has 

Mr. MACINNER. Would you state,  Mr.  Drake,  why it was  refused? 
Mr. DRAKE. I stated  that  the  Government  had  refused  to  grant 

some mater  rights  that  had been applied  for, because  of the insuffi- 
ciency of the  water  supply,  and  this is evidence of that  fact. 

Mr.  CONNER.  Mr.  MacInnes  made  the  statement  that  the flow across 
the  boundary of the  tributaries  ea& of the  eastern  crossing of the 
Milk  R,iver  was 190,000 acre-feet, or practically  twice  that of the 
eastern  crossing of the  Milk  River. I do  not  like  to  have  that  state- 
ment  go  in  without it being  more closely  verified. I think  the fig- 
ures  would be very close to 125,000 acre-feet for  Battle Creek,  Lodge 
Creek,  Whitewater,  and  Eock  Creek, as against 105,000 at   the  
boundary  line, of which about 90,000 rises in  the  United  States 
territory. 

been  ref  used. 
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Mr. MACINNES. The figures  which I stated were  those  given to 
me  by our engineer. 

Mr. CONNER. That  might be the  total  run-out  at  the  lower  gaug- 
ing station-at the  point of crossing the  boundary; I think  that is 
an  error. 

Mr. MACINNES. I am  informed  the  figures  are  taken  at  existing 
stations  which  are  approximately  at  the  boundary. 

Mr. CONNER. I should  like to  have  that looked  into. 
Mr. WYVELL. With  regnrd  to  the  statement  from  which he read, 

if Mr.  MacInnes  is  to  call  any  more  witnesses  we  might  reserve  the 
privilege of loolring i t  over  and  possibly  asking a few  questions in 
the  morning.  Mr.  Drake,  did  yon  have  any  personal  conversation 
with  anyone .in the  Reclamation  Service or the Geological  Survey 
with rcoard to the  establishment of the four joint  measurement 
stations!’ 

Mr. DRAKE. No. 
Mr. WYVELL. What you have said, then, is derived  from the official 

Mr. DRAKE. Entirely  from  the official records. 
Mr. WWEIZ. Have  you  got those  official records  here  and  the cor- 

respondence that  passed? 
Mr. DRAKE. I think so. I am  not  absolutely  sure,  but I think 

we have. 
Mr. WYVELL. I wonder if I could  have the  privilege of looking a t  

them  before me leave St. Paul?  
Mr. DRAKE. Certainly. I may  say  that I think  the  original  letter 

was  from Mr. Walcott,  and  subsequently  there  was some  correspond- 
ence  with Mr. Lamb,  the Geological Survey  representative. 

Mr. Wyvmr,. The  unfortunate  part of it is that our man, Mr. 
Grover, mho was  with  the  Geological  Survey,  has  been  there  but a 
short  time,  and we have  not  got  that  correspondence  here  with us. 
We  thought we might  like  to see it. Mr. Drake,  did  you  take  any 
records of the  actual  amount of mater  that passed  through  your 
canal prior to 19101 

records  and  from  what  you  have  heard  others  say, I suppose? 

Mr. DRAKE. Through  the A. X. si I Co.’s canal ? 
Mr. WYVELL. Yes:  prior  to 1910. 
Mr. .DRAKE. I can  not s a y  of my  own  knowledge,  but the  facts  are 

all  there  in  the  reports of stream  measurements, and I believe that 
that  very  point  was  referred  to  this  morning. 

Mr. Wyvmr,. You have  no  desire  to  make  any  change from the 
testimony of Mr. Burley,  have you? 

Mr. DRAKE. None  whatever. Mr. Burley  has a more  detailed 
knowledge of the  physical  facts  than I have. 

Mr. WYVELL. I wanted  to  get  into  the  record  in some way or other 
the  maximnm  amount  that  your  canal  had  carried  in  any  given  year, 
in addition  to  the  records t,h:lt we had in before. 

Mr. DRAKE. I f  you  wish to  ha.\-e that placed in  the  record, Mr. 
Wyvell, I am satisfied that  in one of the later reports  there is a 
statement  showing  the  maximnm  quantity of water  that was carried 
through  that  canal  as shown by a gauge rod a t  the  point of intake. 

Mr. WYVELL. That is already  in  evidence? 
Mr. DRAKE.  It is, but I will look it up and show it to you. 
Mr. WTVELL. Can you  look i t  up quickly  now ? 
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Mr. DRAKE. I do not believe I can. 
Mr. WYVELL. Never  mind,  then ; we will put it in  later. I wish  one 

of your  men  would  look  up  the  amount of flow through  the  canal  in 
the  year 1914, which  has  not been published,  and  the  maximum 
amount  that  the  canal of the  irrigation  company  carried  during  that 
year. 

Mr. SANDS. You  say, Mr. Drake,  that  the  laws of Canada  provide 
for cancellation of this  application for nonuse8 

Mr. DRAKE. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. Upon  what  evidence or conditions  is  that  applic a t’ ion 

Mr. DRAKE.  Upon  the  evidence of officers of the  Department of the 

Mr. SANDS. To what  effect? 
Mr. DRAKE.  To  the effect that  the works  have been abandoned or 

that  they  have  not been used for a  definite period of time, and  that  no 
reasonable  excuse  for  such  nonuse  has been given. 

canceled ? 

Interior. 

Mr. SANDS. Is   that  a fised  period or R variable  period? 
Mr. DRAKE. h variable  period. 
Mr. SANDS. Pou use the  word  “canceled.”  You  assume  that  the 

Mr. DRAKE. Yes. 
Mr. S.\NDS. I n  the  use of the  term  “grant,” you  say  that  the  right 

Mr. DRAKE. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. I s  it a  right  to  water or a  right  to  acquire  the  use of 

Mr. DRAKE. It is  a  right  to  acquire a right  to use  water. I think 

Mr. SANDS. Then  the  term is not  complete.  When  you say 

%r. DRAKE.  Subject  only  to  fnlfillment by the  applicant of certain 

Mr. SANDS. I n  other  words, it is a  conditional  right? 
Mr. DRAKE. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. Do you  know of any specific instance  in  which  the 

right.was canceled for nonuse;  and if so, what  was  the  approsimnte 
time  that  the  Government saw fit to  cancel? 

Mr. DRAKE. I can  not  give you a definite  answer to  that question. I 
know of a  great  many cases in  which  applications  for  water  rights, 
or actual  grants of the  right to  use water,  have been canceled for non- 
use, but I can  not at the  moment  recall n particular case so as  to  give 
you the  length of time  that  elapsed between the last use of the  works 
and  the  date of cancellation. 

Mr. SANDS.  Would it be three or four  years, or such a matter 8 
Mr. DRAKE. It might he. 
Mr. SANDS.  I t  might be less? 
Mr. DRAKE. It might be less, even. The nlatter Is in  the  discretion 

of the  minister of the  interior  acting  upon  the  advice of his  sub- 
ordinates. 

Mr. Smm. I n  speaking of the  Milk  River  Canal  in  Canada  you 
say you did  not see the  water flow there  yourself ‘1 

Mr. DRAKE. No ; I did  not see it. 

right  has  previously  existed? 

has  been granted! 

water 1 

that would be explicit. 

(( ranted ” it is  not  a  complete  granted  right. 

conditions  which  he  wholly controls. 
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Mr. SANDS. Did  you see any  evidence of its flowing there?  Did 

Mr. DRAKE. As a matter of fact, .I have  never seen the  intake of 

Mr. SANDS. Did you see the  canal  at  any  time  shortly  after it car- 

Mr.  DRAKE. No. 
Mr. SANDS. And you  speak  wholly  from  hearsay  with  regard  to  the 

matter ? 
Mr. DRAKE. From  that,  and  from evidence  available  on  the official 

files of the  department. 
Mr. SANDS. Was that evidence  simply  for  the  purpose of acquiring 

the  right or showin that it could be run  through  the  ditch, or was 
it for  the  purpose o P making a beneficial use of the  water? 

Mr.  DRAKE. I do not  think I quite  got  the  first  part of your ques- 
tion. 

Mr. SANDS. When  the  water  was  run  through  that  ditch,  was it 
run  through  there  for  the  purpose of demonstrating  that it could be 
run  through  the  ditch, or for  the  purpose of using it beneficially upon 
the  land ? 

Mr. DRAKE. I think when the  water  was  first put  through  the 
ditch it was run  through  for  the  purpose of showing  that  the  ditch 
had been properly  constructed  and  would  carry  water. I do  not 
know  whether  any  water  was ever run  through it for t.he purpose of 
actually  applying it to beneficial  use upon  any  particular  tract of 
land. 

Mr. SANDS. Have you  anyone  here  who  would know the  facts  in 
that case. 

Mr.  DRAKE. I think  perhaps Mr. Peters  might know that. 
Mr.  MAORATH.  The  water  was  run  through  the  canal  for  the  pur- 

pose of testing it, Mr. Sands. It was not applied  to  any beneficial use. 
Mr. SANDS. Mr.  Drake,  are  there  any  rights  from  either  Milk  River 

or St. Mary  River  that  had  actually been completed  and  granted, if I 
may use the  term? 

Mr. DRAKE. Yes. There  are some, and  they  are  shown  in those 
schedules. 

you  make  any  examination? 

that canal. 

ried  this  water? 

STATEMENT OF J. S. DENNIS, ASSISTANT TO THE  PRESIDENT 
OF THE  CANADIAN  PACIFIC  RAILWAY CO. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  Mr.  Dennis, I understand  t,hat you are  assistant  to 

Mr. DENNIS.  Pes. 
Mr. MACINNES. You are also the  head nf one of the  denartments of 

the  president of the  Canadian  Pacific  Railway Co. 

that  railway? 
Mr. DENNIS. Yes. 
Mr. MACINNES.  What  is  the  oficial  designation of that?  
Mr.  DENNIS.  The  department of natur,al  resources. 
Mr. MACIXXES. What Imowledge have  you of the works,  opera- 

tions, and  undertakings of the  Alberta  Itailway & Irrigation (30.1 
Mr. DENNIS.  The  irrigation system of the  Alberta  Railway & Irri- 

gation Co. is now owned by the (’anadinn I’xcific Railway (30. and 
1s operated in connection with other  irrigation projects under  the 

v 
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department of natur:ll  resources, of which I am  the  head. I have 
some personal  knowledke of that system, because I made  the first 
surveys  for it. I have heen over it frequently  since  during its period 
of constrnction  and  operation,  and  have  had to deal  with  any  matters 
of appropriation for its extension or betterment,  operation,  and 
maintenance. 

Mr. MACINNICR. Will yon stnte to the commissi6n in  your  own 
language  the  value of water for irrigation  purposes  to  Canada  in 
this  district? 

Mr. DEKNIS. When  the  preliminary  surveys  for  that  canal  system 
were made- 

Mr. MAGI~ATFI. By whom, Mr. Dennis? 
Mr. DENNIS. By myself. 
Mr. MAGRATEL Not for  the  Canadian  Pacific  Railway clo. though. 
Mr. DENNIS. No. At  that  time I was an official of the  Dominion 

Government  administering  the  irrigation  act.  Preliminary  surveys 
mere made  in  that  district  in 1894 to  indicate  the  possibility of get- 
ting  water  from  the St. Mary  River  out  onto  a  large  area of land 
south  and  east of Lethbridge, because it was felt  that  without  water 
which  could be applied  to  the  land  through  the  principle of irrigation 
there  was  little or no possibility of colonizing that  area.  At  that 
time  the  department of the  interior  was  carrying  on  a  series of gen- 
eral  surveys  throughout  southern  Alberta, or as  it  then was  a portion 
of the  Northwest  Territories,  to  indicate  what  the  available  water 
supply veas for  irrigation  and  where  it  could be used. This  was one 
of the  canals  that mas located as a result of those  preliminary  sur- 
vevs. The  construction of the  canal  was  subsequently  taken up by 
the  Alherta  Railway & Irrigation Co. and  carried to completion. 
Subsequently, and  within  comparatively  recent  time,  the  railway  lines 
and  the coal mines  and  this  irrigation  project  belonging  to  the 
Alberta  Railway & Irrigation Co. were  all  acquired  by  the  Canadian 
Pacific  Railway Co. 

Mr. WITELL. Is the  year  that  they  were  acquired  in  the  record? 
Mr. DENNIS. Yes;  it  is in  the record. It was in 1911. Since  that 

date  the  actual  administration of this system has been under the irri- 
gation  branch of the  department of natural resources, of which I am 
the head. The prinzary  object was l o  get  the  mater  from  the :tvailable 
source  out  onto  the  lznd to permit of that  district  being colonized. 
That  was the  primary  object  that  the  Government  had-  in  making 
the  preliminary  suryeys,  and  was  no  doubt  the  cbject  that  the  Alberta 
Railway & Irrigation Co. had  in  constructing  the system. It is the 
object that we  now have in' view in  maintaining  and  operating  the 
system and  in possibly  extending it-colonization. 
Mr. J l . ~ c T ~ s ~ s .  Is there any other  point on which you have  infor- 

mation  whidl yo11 thinlt wnr~lcl he of :tssistance to  the commission, 
Mr. Ilennis. from your previous and present Imowledge of the matter? 

Mr. T)msrs. 111 that  particular  district? 
Mr. MAGTKSES.  I menn in  the  district  which  can be irrigated  from 

the matcrs of either of these  rivers or their  tributaries? 
Mr.  DENNIS. I n   t h a t  portion of southern  Alberta  the  same  condi- 

tion exists as  exists  in  many  other  portions of the  semiarid west. 
There is, of course,  a very much  larger  area of land  suitable for 
colonization and  cultivation if there  was  an  available  water  supply 
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to irrigate it. The extension of irrigation  in  that  portion of Alberta 
is limited by the  awilalde  water  supply.  We  have  under  contempla- 
tion at   the present  time  an  extension of the A .  R. & I. system,  as it is 
called, for taking  water  from  the St. Mary  River  to  irrigate  an  addi- ' 

tional 15,000 acres of land  in a district called the Tnher district. 
which  lies  to  the  east of the xrea served 1 1 ~ 7  the  present  canal  system. 
That  district  has been supplied  for  many  years by farmers  who  took 
u p  their  land as homeste:lders, lmt  after  a  series of years of effort 
t,hey have  not  had  very  much sllcc'ess in  raising  crops  by  dry  farming, 
and passing I1ac1;war.d and  forward  to  Lethbridge  through  the irrl- 
gated  district  they see large :weas of dfa l fa  ant1 other  successful 
crops, and   haw desirod to  have  the 11. R. & I. system  extended to 
jrrigat,e  their  district.  They  petitioned us to extent1 it, and w e  have 
been considering  the  mattcr of providing  that  extension.  The diffi- 
culty  that arose was that we h a d  :It the  time no provincial  enactment 
under  which  these  people  could  constitute lhernselves  a district or  
municipality, so that  they  codd issue  bonds to  pay  for  the system or 
charge  all  the  farms  with  the cost, but  that difficulty was overcome 
at  the session of 011r prox-irlcinl legislature  this  spring,  when  an 
irrigation  district act was p~sss"J. TJnder tllc  provisions of that act 
these  people  have now petitioned  to he organized  into  a  district,  and 
are asking us to  extend  the LZ. R. & I. system to  supply  this 18,000 
acres  within  their  district. T17c al'e disposed to do so, providing 
there is no  question of bhere being w n t c r  nwi1:~l)le. That is a matter 
that is at  present  being loolceed into I:y ol1r engimering  force  in con- 
junction  with  the  engineering force o f  the  tlepartment of the  interior. 

There  are  other  large  districts  south of there, also lying to the 
east of the  district  which is served by the A. It. A! I. system, that  are 
very  suitable  for  colonization,  provided  there was water  available for 
irrigation.  The  only  way of obtaining  water  for  those  districts is 
from  the St. Mary  River,  the Milk River, or  from  the  tributaries of 
the St. Mary  River to  the west, or the Belly River. The question 
of providing  an  additional  supply  from  the  Belly  River  has been 
given some consideration by the. Gorernlnent, and has, I think, been 
already  referred  to  in  the  evidence  given here. That  portion of 
southern  Alberta  is  in  much  the same shape  from  the  standpoint of 
the  climate  or soil that  the lower M;lk  Kivcr  Valley  is in  Montana, 
and  its  ult,imate  development,  intensive devclloplnent, will be very 
largely clepenntlent upon  nllat  amonnt of water  can be supplied  for 
irrigation of the  land.  The  matter of the  supply of water  from  the 
Milk  River  to  this  district  swved  hy  the A .  R. & I. Canal  from  the 
St. Mnry  River was dealt  with  at  the  time  that I was also a Govern- 
ment  oficinl  and  administering  the  northwest  irrigation  act,  and 
that  canal  was  originally  located,  not k y  ]ne personally,  but by 
engineers  working  under  lny  instructions, f o l s  the  purpose of proving 
that it was possible to  divert  water from the Milk K v e r  on the  south 
side of the  Milk  River ridge and 1)ring it  nro~uld  the  eastern  end 
of that  ridge  and  serve  the  portion of the same area of country  that 
is served  by  the A. R. & I. Canal  from  the St. Mary  River. It was 
done  with  the  designed pnrpose of diverting from the  Milk  River 
the  water  put  into  the Milk Kiver  from  the St. Mary  River,  which 
would be taken  away f r o n ~  0 1 1 1 '  headgate 011 tllc St. Mary  River, 
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It was  at  that  time  contemplated  that  the  reclamation  project on 
the  south  side of the  line  intended  to  divert  the  water of the St. 
Mary  River  and  deprive  our  canal of the  water  right  that it had  in 
the St. Mary  River  and  carry  this  water  throngh  the  Milk  River 
down  to  the  lower  Milk  River  project. It had been stated, I think 
I am  correct  in  saying,  in some of the  reports of the  Reclamation 
Bureau,  that  the  water  put  into  the  Milk  River could  not be taken 
out  on  the  Canadian side. We were naturally  anxious  to  prove 
whether  that was so or  not,  and we sent some of our engineers 
there  to look the  situation over. We finally  located  a  canal to  take 
the  water  out of the  Milk  River  and  bring it around  the  east  end 
of the  ridge  and  put  it  into a part of the same  area that was  served 
by  the St. Mary  coming  around  the west end of the  ridge.  The 
snrveys  indicated  that  the  canal could be built,  and  the  Alberta 
Railway & Irrigation Co. took  the  matter  up  and  built  the  canal 
and  ran  the  mater  from  the  Milk  River over the  divide  and  proved 
that  water  put  into  the  Milk  River  from  the St. Mary  River  could 
be diverted  on  the C h a d i a n  side of the line. That  was the pur- 
pose of the  coqstruction of that  canal,  and I think I was  personally 
responsible for  suggesting  that it should be  located  and  constructed. 

Mr. MACINNEB. Then  water  diverted  in  that  way could  be put  into 
reservoirs  and  taken  from  there on to  the St. Mary  River  land? 

Mr. DENNIS. Yes. 
Mr.  MACINNES. So that  that  possibility  can be  considered in  any 

division  and  apportionment of the  waters  that  the commission may 
make? 

Mr. DENNIS. Certainly. We  are  prepared  to  put  the  Milk  River 
canal  in  service at  any time. I t  will  require some slight  expenditure 
to put it in  shape  to  carry  water  at  the  head  gates  and  one or two 
washouts  along  its  location,  but  a  comparatively  slight  expenditure 
would put  the  Milk  River  canal  in  a  shape  to-day  to  carry  water 
over the  height of land. 

Mr.  GARDNER. What was  the  capacity of that  canal,  approxi- 
ma tel  y 8 

Mr. DENNIS. I am  not  positive  as t o  what its carrying  capacity 

Mr.  MACINNES.  The  previous  evidence was that it was 350 second- 

Mr. DENNIS. It was  about 300 second-feet. 
Mr.  MACINNER.  That  canal  on  Milk  River  conld,  therefore,  take 

up to its  capacity  anv  portion of the  water of the  Milk  River or of 
the St. Mary  River  which  was  allowed  to flow past it. 

Mr. DENNIS. Yes ; by  some expenditure  to  put it in good  shape. 

STATEMENT OF F. H. PETERS,  COMMISSIONER OF IRRIGATION, 
DOMINION OF CANADA,  CALGARY,  CANADA. 

WaR. 

feet. 

Mr. MACINNEB.  Mr.  Peters,  will you state your official position 
and how  long you have  held  that  position,  and also your knowledge 
of the  matter now  before this commission! 

Mr. PETERS. My  position is that of commissioner of irrigation 
and chief enpineer for the  irrigation  branch of the  department of the 
interior. I have  held  that  position  since  the  spring of 1911. My 
connection  with  this  matter commenced in  the  spring of 1909, when 



ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS. 151 

1 was  employed in  the  Milk  River  Valley  in  Canada  making  hydro- 
graphic  surveys  and  in  the  summer of the  following  year, 1910, 
making a report  to  the  Canadian  Government  on  the  treaty  which 
was  then contemplated. 

Mr. MACINNES. You are a civil  engineer  by  profession? 
Mr. PETERS. Yes. 
Mr.  MACINNES. I understand  that you have  material  to  submit 

to the commission as to  the  irrigable  areas in Canada,  together  with 
a  map, a summary,  and  an  explanation: 

Mr. PETERS. This is a statement  with  reference  to  the  areas of 
land  which  can be irrigated  from  the St. Mary  and  Milk  Rivers in 
Canada. 

A number  of  private  canals  have been constructed in  Canada 
diverting  water  from  both  the St. Mary  River  and  Milk  River,  but 
one of the  largest  areas  which  can be watered  from  the St. Mary 
system is the block of land  lying  under  the  Alberta  Railway & Irri- 
gation C‘o.:s canal  system and  comprising some 212,000 acres, of 
which  about 156,600 can be watered  from  the  works  already con- 
structed. In addition  to  this  area  there  are 37,000 acres, of which 
17,000 are  irrigable  in  the  tract  under  the  Taber  extension,  which 
has been contoured,  and  through which canals  and  structures  have 
been  located  with a view to early  construction  by  the  company, 
making  a  total of almost 174,000 acres *of ifrigable  land  under  the 
present  system. 

I would  like to  explain  in  this connection just how the  irrigable 
areas  have been determined. I n  connection  with  the 156,600 acres 
under  the  Alberta  Kailwny cC: Irrigation C,o.’s canals,  these  works 
hare been constructed  and  the  lands  for  which  they  are  constructed 
to  irrigate  are  peculiarly  smooth  on  tho  surface,  and  the  canals  are 
in existence: so that  this fignre of 156,600 is a very  definite  figure. 
The  lands  have also been leveled  over, so that  there is, no  question 
about  where  the water can be run. As regards the  further area of 
17,00C~ acres  under  the  Taher  extension,  this  land  has  had  canals 
located  to it and  through it: and  the  land has all been very  carefully 
contoured  under  as close methads as are ever  used  to. determine 
actrial irriga!,le n u t  res in  sections of land, so that  this  area of 
17,000 acres is also de ’ 2 ned  absolutely  and  very  accurately. 

This  land lies in a district  witah  elevations  ranging  from 3,600 to 
2,500 feet  above sea level and  is  for  the most part of such a nature 
as to  give  favorable results under  irrigation.  The  climatie  condi- 
tions  are  favorable  far  the use of water,  and  the  growing season is 
long  enough  to  insure  the  maturing of most  cereals, sugar beets, and 
garden stuff, while it has been demonstrated  that  three  cuttings of 
a l fdfa  can be secured  per season. The  rainfall is comparatively 
light, the  average  at  Lethbridge for 12 years  being 16 inches,  while 
in  yews of minimum  precipitation  very  light  yields  are  the  rule 
where  irrigation is not  practiced. 

A further  large area of irrigable  land  lies  in  the  Blood  Indian 
Reserve,  but  unfortunntely  no  detailed  surveys  are  available  to  show 
what,  area  can be watered  from  the St. Mary  and  Belly  Rivers. An  
e.slimate  made  by the Dominion  Government  in 1914 shows  that  some 
87,000 acres of land  can be irrigated  within  the  boundary of the 
Indian Reserve. 
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With  reference  to  this  area of 87,000 acres of irrigahle  land 1 
would state  that  the  land  has  not all been  leveled  over, but  sufficient 
preliminary levels have been run  to show Tvhere the  water  can be 
talten  out of the  St. hl:wy Birer,  and  Government  township  maps 
delineate  the high areas-that  is,  where there  are hills-and  we have 
been a\)le in this w:\y to estilmte the area of land  that could  be  com- 
manded by the  canal;  that is, over  which the  water could be run. 
Then!  in  order  to  get  this definite area of irrigable  land,  the  net 
irrig:Me  land, we h:lvc taken 40 per cent of this commanded  area, 
and this  gives us this  net  irrigablc  area of 87,000  :tcr.es. I would 
state nlso--and this  refers  to  figures  which  will be  qnoted  later- 
that  in  using  this  figure to  show what  portion of the  coln~nancled area 
the  net  irrigable are:] would be it was a matter of judgment by our 
field engineers, and? in orcler to makc sure  that  their  judgment was a 
good  judgment,  we  took similal:. areas  that have been dcveloped under 
the large Canadian  Pacific  Railway  tracts  in  their  western  and  east- 
ern sections  and  the  tract  on  the  Southern  Allwta  Land Co., where 

. we have  similar  country  and h a w  canals located showing the com- 
manded  acreage,  and  later  than  this  land  has all  been carefully con- 
toured  showing alnsolutely definitely the  net  irrigable acreage. The 
result of these  studies  has been to shorn that  the perbentage  under 

. these  schemes c f  net, irrignble hncl to commantlecl land is 40 per cent. 
I am cpoting this to show that, in so far  as  our  judgment  is con- 
cerned, x(’ fcel t h i~ t  I 110 cstinmte of net irrignl)le 2 1 . e ~  is a very 
conservative one. 

Mr. MACIR’NER. Mr. Peters, have you got  your  map  there  to  place 
before the commission while you are making your statement? 

(The  map  referred  to W:IS thereupon  presented  to  the commission 
and explained  by Mr. Feters.) 

Mr. TAWNICY. Are  the  tracts 2 and 3 which  you  have  indicated  on 
the  map as containing 150,000 acres in  the  aggregate  under  irriga- 
tion at the present time! 

Mr. PETERS. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEP. I understood you to say  that  only  about  one-half 

were under  irrigation. 
Mr. PETERS. About  one-half is being  actually  irrigated. 
Mr. TAWNEY. About 75,000 acres are now actually  irrigated by 

Mr. PETERS. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. That consumes  how much  water?  Can you give us 

Mr. PETERS. It would  consume about 2 acre-feet  per acre. 
Mr. POWELL. That is 150,000 acre-feet? 
Mr. PETERS. Yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. You have  never  let 150,000 acre-feet  through your 

Mr. MACINNES.  There were 170,500 acre-feet  last  year. 
Mr. TAWNEY. This would be an average of about 500 second-feet, 

Mr. PETERS. It is nearer 600 second-feet for the five months of 

Mr. MACINNEB. Y O U  might now proceed with your statement,  Mr. 

the water. from  the St. Mary  River? 

any idea of the  acre-feet or cubic  feet  per  second? 

canal,  have  you,  in  recent  years? 

I understand you to  say! 

1914, the  irrigation season. 

Peters. 
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Mr. P m E R 8 .  To  the  eastward of the  tract  at  present served by the 
Alberta  Railway & Irrigation Co.’s system  lies  a large  area of land 
well adapted  to  irrigation  ranging  in  elevation  from 3,100 feet t o  
9,500 feet  above sea level and  having  an even  smaller  average 
precipitation  than  the  lands  around  Lethbridge.  Surveys  conducted 
during  the season of  1914 have  demonstrated it to be practicable to  
irrigate  at a  reasonable cost some 364,000 acres of this  area,  while 
over 1,000,000 acres  will  be  commanded  by  the  canals, as projected. 

With  reference  to  those 364,000 acres of irrigable  land, I would 
state  that  surveys  have been conducted  and levels have been run  over 
the whole of this tract. 

Mr.  MACINNES. That is identified  on the  map  as  east of Leth- 
bridge. 

Mr. POWELL. We  should  have  this  map  marked  in some  way. 
(The map was  thereupon  marked “ Exhibit I&” and  the  smaller 

map  accompanying it “ Exhibit TJ1.”) 
Mr. TAWNEY. The  land  that you  were speaking of, Mr.  Peters, is 

the  larger  tract  lying  due  east of tracts 2 and 3 and  located  in  the 
vicinity of Lethbridge.  The  tract  that you are now  speaking of 
comprises tracts 4 and 5 lying  due ea.st of tracts 2 and 3 in  the  vicinity 
of Lethbridge. 

Mr. PETERS. This  tract of 364,000 acres  refers to tracts 5, 6, 7, and 
8 as shown on Exhibit  L.  With resilect to t,his  area,  surveys  have 
been executed  over  all of it   and levels have been run over  all of the 
land  which  has  allowed us to make a complete  contour  plan  with 
contours at  intervals of 25 feet,  vertical  intervals. In  addition  to 
this,  the  main  supply  canals  have been located on the  gronnd,  and 
this  has allowed us to measure  accurately  the  areas of land  that 
can be commanded  by  the  water.  This  has  allowed us to  take  out  all 
the  high  areas  which  can  not be commanded  by the  water.  Then  our 
field engineers  have gQne into  this  area of land  township  by  town- 
ship and  made  and  estimation of the  percentage  that should be 
taken of the commanded  area to  get  the  net  irrigable  area,  and I 
would call attention  to  the  fact  that  this is shown to be about 36 per 
cent,  which,  from  the  study  that I previously  gave as evidence, we 
think  shows  that  this  estimation is a very  conservative one. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Thirty-six  per  cent is the  net  area of irrigable  land? 
Mr. PETERS. Yes. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. You have  ascertained  that  the  percentage of land 

Mr. PETERS. Yes;  that 1s the  net  irrigable  land; 36 per  cent of 

Mr. GLENN. Is that  on  both  sides, or on the  Canadian  side  only? 
Mr.  PETKIIR.  This  refers  particularly to the  surveys  that we have 

made. I am trying  to  indicate  the  degree of accuracy that we  went 
to  in  finding out; what  these areas are so that  there can  be  no ques- 
tion  about  this. I simply  want to give  you  the  information  that 
will  show that these  areas are accrlrate  areas. 

Above the  present  canal  at  a  point below where it enters  Pinepound 
Creek  there  is  an  area of aborlt 33,300 acres, of which 14,700 acres 
are  irrigable  and  can be watered  from  the  high-level  canals  located 
during the season of 1914. 

that could  be actually  irrigated  would be 36? 

the commanded  area of land. 

Mr. POWELL. What  number  is  that  tract  on  the map! 
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Mr. PETERS. This  refers  to  tract No. 1 on Exhibit L. I wo$d say 
with  reference  to  this  tract  that  the  irrigable  land was determined in  
the same  way  as for the  othe,r  tracts of land  under  the  Government 
surveys. 

One  point  should be noted,  and  that is that  the  greater  part of 
these  lands is irrigable  from  either  the  St.  Mary or the  Milk  River, 
through  the  canal  systems  constructed or located. 

The  appended  schedule gives  a synopsis of the  irrigable  lands  lying 
under  present  canal  systems  and possible  extensions. 

The  private schemes in  the St. Mary  Basin  in  Montana  are  negli- 
gible, so far  as is known,  but  on  the  Canadian  side  there  are several, 
m  addition  to  those of the  Alberta  Railway & Irrigation Co. 

The  first  important  diversion  from  Milk  River is in  township 2, 
range 17, west of the  fourth  meridian,  where  the  Alberta  Railway 6i 
Irrigation Co.'s old works still  are.  At  present  they  are  in  poor  shape 
and  have  not been used for  a  number of years,  but a comparatively 
small  expenditure  would  put  them  in  order,  when  they  could be used 
for the  irrigation of lands  lying  to  the  north  and  east of the  Milk 
River  Ridge. I n  fact,  practically  all  the  lands  irrigable  from  the 
St. Mary  Canal  can be watered  from  this system. 

North of the  boundary  there  are some 26 schemes on Battle  Creek 
irrigating 9,359 acres, 25 on Lodge  Creek irrigating 7,453 acres, 
and 40 on  Frenchman  River  irrigating 11,594 acres, all  in good 
standing  and  constructing  their  works  with  due diligence. I n  addi- 
tion  to these there  are some 31 schemes, comprising  over 3,000 acres 
of irrigable  land  at  present  held  in  abeyance  pending  a  settlement 
of the  treaty  conditions,  and  three  applications  for  large  systems  have 
been refused on the same  account. 

The  following  tables  give  a  conservative estimahe of the  irrigable 
areas  along  these  tributaries  in  Canada,  including  the  lands  already 
under  private  schemes,  which  could  be  watered  at  a low  cost per 
acre : 

Irvigublo ureas. 

Frenclllnan River watershed : Acres. 
Already 31,594 
Sixty-mile flat_-----______-_____-__------------_--------_-----_- 8,000 
Valley between Sixty-mile and Seventy-mile fiats - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  4,000 
Seventy-milc Aat____--_____-__________________________--_------- 7,000 
Seventy-mile Hat to bountlary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5, OOO 

Total ______________-___________________I_______--_---------- 15,433 
A much  larger  area  from  Battle  and  Lodge  Creeks  can be 

watered  by  building  systems  to  cover  the  bench  lands  lying  in  the 
townships  immediately  north of the  boundary,  but  these  have  not 
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been included because it is considered that  there  is  not  enough  water 
available to  justify  the  large  expenditnres necessary to  construct 
adequate  works,  and  only  the  easily  irrigated  lands  are,  therefore, 
estimated on. 

I would  note  that of the 19,000 acres  stated  as  irrigated in the 
Frenchman  River  there  are  included  in  this  a tract  of 13,157 irri- 
gable  acres  which  is  shown  on  the  application of Elmore &i Mc- 
Intosh,  put  in  by Mr. Drake. 

Mr.  GLENN. That  has  not been acted upon? 
Mr. PETERS. No, sir. 
Mr. MACINNES.  Why  was  that  not  acted u  on,  Mr. Peters? Can 

you tell us in answer  to  Mr. Glenn’s question. B 
Mr.  GLEXN.  That is in evidence. It was  on  account of the  treaty. 

I just  wanted  to  know  whether  that  was  the  same  tract  that  he  was 
referring  to. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Before you  leave that  point, Mr. Peters, ,I would. 
like  to  ask how much  water is available for  irrigation  purposes in 
the  Lodge  Creek  watershed,  the  Battle  Creek  watershed,  and  the 
Frenchman  River  watershed  in  Canada?  How  much  water  in  Can- 
ada  in these  watershed.s is available  for  irrigating  lands  in  Canada? 

Mr. PETERS. I could  only  refer  to our records of stream  measure- 
ments  to  answer  that question. 

Mr. TAWNEY. You  have  not  that  data? 
Mr. PETERS. I have  not it in  my head. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I wish  you  would put it in your statement  here  for 

Mr. MACINNES. I think  Mr.  Rurley can answer  that  question now. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I want to know, Mr. Burley,  the  amount of water 

available  for  irrigation  in  Canada  in  the  watersheds of .Lodge 
Creek,  Battle  Creek,  and  Frenchman  River. 

the  sake of the record. 

Mr. BKJRLEY. I can  give you our estimate, Mr. Tawney. 
Mr. TAWKEY. That  is all I want. 
Mr. I~URIZY.  On  the  Lodge  Creek we estimate a mean  annual flow 

Mr. WYVELL. Is that  past  the  boundary? 
Mr. BUIILEY. That is up  to  the  boundary  line;  that  is  on  Canadian. 

territory. On Battle  Creek, 47,300 acre-feet; on Frenchman  River, 
76,600 acre-feet;  on  Whitewater  Creek, 8,400 acre-feet;  and on Rock 
Creek, 19,000 acre-feet;  the total of those  figures  being 190,600 acre- 
feet. 

cf 39,300 acre  feet. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Where  are  Whitewater  Creek  and  Rock  Creek? 
Mr. PETERS. Just  west of the  Frenchman  River. 
Mr. TAWNEY. The estimate  which you gave  for  Whitewater  and 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MACINNES. You will  observe that  the  total of those  figures 

amount  to  something  over 190,000 acre-feet,  which is in accordance 
with  the  statements  that I have  made  to  the commission earlier. 

Mr. WYVELL. For the  sake of the  record, I would  like to say that 
1 am  not  certain  that  our men  have  agreed  to  these figures. 

Mr. TAWXEY. I understand  that.  This is their estimate. It is not 
an agreed  statement. 

Mr. MACINNEB. Mr. Burley  frankly  stated  thnt. 

Rock  Creeks are above the  boundary  in  Canada ? 

11398-16”-ll 
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Mr. POWEEL. If yon are  a  few  thousand RCWS out,  gentlemen, ih 
is  not  going  to affect this question  very seriously one w\.nv or the 
other. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Mr. Peters, can ~ 7 0 1 1  give a summary of the water 
available  in St. Mary  and  Milk  Rivers  and  their  tributary  water- 
sheds, just as you hare given the  summary  there of the acres that are 
irrigable  land ? 

Mr. & h C r N N E S .  1 will hare  that  put  in for you. 
Mr. PETERS. Our estimate of the  average flow of the St. Mary 

River a t  the  boundary is 735,000 acre-feet. 
Mr. TAWNEY. That is water  that is arailablc for  irrigating a l l  the 

lands  that you have  mentioned in  the wmmnrp on  the St. Mary 
watershed, is it? 

Mr. PETERS. Yes, sir. It is the  tctnl flow o f  t,hc river :it the  bound- 
ary.   If  some of it  is  taken  out  by  the TJnitrcl States  canal.  it  would 
not be available  by our canal. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I mean in  a  state of nature. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. Is that  an  average  annual  flow? 
Mr. PETERS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. The average  covers  how  many  years? 
Mr. PETERS. From  about 1902. The  water  supply a,vailable at   the 

intake of the A. R. & I. Canal on the  Milk  River  in Canada- 
Mr. MACINNES.  While you are  discussing St. Mary  River,  tell  the 

chairman  the  amount  available a t  the  intake of the A. R. & I. Canal 
o t  St. Mary. I understood it  to be approximately  the snme as at   the 
boundary. Tell the  chairman  how far the  intake of the A. R. b I. 
Co.’s canal is above this  boundary. 

Mr. PETERS. I modd say that hetween the  bmndary  and  the  intake 
of the A. R. & I. Co.’s canal  the  awretion to the. flow is very, very 
small : for a l l  practical  purposes it is negligible. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. there  any  trihtnries between the  two  points, 
Mr.  Peters? 

Mr. PETERS. No, sir: not of any consequence. 
Mr. TAWNEY. The  tributaries to the St. M a r y  nbove Rimball  and 

the  mouth of the St. Mary contribnte how much to the  waters of the 
St. Mary available  for  irrigatinq  trncts Nos. 2 and 3? 

Mr. PETERS. At  the  present  time we do  not  consider  any  diversion 
from  the St. Mary River. 

Mr. TATVNEY. I means how much, if anv,  water is contributed  to the 
St. Mary  River between Kimball  and  the  month of the St. Mary 
River  in  Canada  which  could be w e d  for  irrigation.  That is, in 
addition t o  the  water  at  the  bomdary  and  Kimball. 

Mr.  PETERS. The accretion to  the flow is abont 72,000 acre-feet from 
Kimball  to  the  mouth of the  river.  The bnllr of  it, I think, could 
he  used for irrigation. 

Mr. TAWNEY.  The flow of the St. Mary  River  hetween  the  bound- 
;iry and  Kimball,  which  is at  the  intake,  von sav is how  manv  acre- 
feet ? 

Mr. PETERR. T say it is prncticnllv  negligible  lwtween the boundary 
and IZimbnll. 

Mr. T a w m r .   T h a t  is the accretion,  but  what is the nct11n.l flow? 
Mr. PETERS. 735,000 acwfeet. 
Mr. TAXIWEIT. So there is no  appreciable  accretion hetween that 

flow at  the  boundary  and  Kimball  at  the  point of the  intake? 
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Mr. PETERS. No, sir. 
Mr. TAWNEY. What is the accretion  between  Kimball  and  the 

mouth of the St. Mary  River  that would  be  available for  irrigation 
purposes? 

Mr. PETERS. The accretion  is 72,000 acre-feet,  but I am  not  pre- 
pared  to say that it is  available for irrigation. It is in  the  river,  but 
it  may  not be possible to  take it out of the  river  and place it on the 
land, hecause the  river  is  cut  down  very  deep  in  the  prairie  from 
below liimball. 

Mr. TATVNEY. Now give us a  similar  summary  for  the  watersheds 
of  the  Milk  River of the  water  available  in  these  several  watersheds 
that you have  mentioned  for  irrigation  purposes. 

Mr. PETERS. The average  annual flow  of the  Milk  River  at  the 
A. R. & I. Co. intake  is  ahout 104,000 acre-feet. The  average  annual 
flow  of the  Milk  River at  the  extern crossing, I would  state, is be- 
tween 120,000 and 140,000 acre-feet. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Now, what  is  the  water  available  in  the  Lodge  Creek 
watershed ? 

Mr. PETERS. Approximately 39,000 acre-feet. 
Mr. TAWNEY. What is the  amount  avnilable  in  the  Battle  Creek 

Mr. PETERS. Approximately 47,000 acre-feet. 
Mr. TAWNEY. And  the  Frenchman  River  watershed? 
Mr. PETERS. Approximately 7G?000 acre-feet. 
Mr. TAWNEY. And  in  the  two  other  streams  t>hat you have  men- 

tioned-Whitewater and Rock Creeks? 
Mr. PETERS. Whitewwter,  approximately 8,000; Rock  Creek, ap- 

proximately 19,000; and on these  tributaries  these  measurements  are 
with  reference  to  their  respective  crossings of the  boundary. 

Mr. TAWNEY. C,ould you sum  that  up  and give us the  total,  to  be 
put  in  the  record  for  the  information of the commission? 

Mr. PETERS. I can  not  summarize it any  more  than it is in  this 
record,  except  to  ive  you the  total. 

Mr. TAWNRY. #hat is what I want,  the  total  in St. Mary  and  the 
total  in  the  Milk  River. 

Mr. PETERS. Together or separately? 
Mr. TAWNEY. Separately. 
Mr. PETERS. The  totals  for  the St. Mary  are 735,000 a t  Kimball. 

The  total  at  the  mouth  would  be 807,000 acre-feet. The  total of the 
flow of the  Milk  River  at its eastern  crossing,  plus the flow  of the 
northern  tributaries  at  their respective  crossings, is from 310,000 
acre-feet  to 330,000 acre-feet. I n  giving  the flow  of the  Milk  River 
I ave it as  from 120,000 to 140,000 acre-feet. Br. POWELL. Now, see if we can  not  get  the  data complete. Can 
you  give us the  measurements of the several  streams  to  the  south a t  
their confluence with  the  southern  bank of the  Milk  River? 

watershed? 

Mr. PETERS. I can  give you our estimate of certain of them. 
Mr. POWELL. That  information is not  complete? 
Mr. PETERS. No, sir. 
Mr. POWELL. Can you give u s  the flow of the  Milk  River a t  the 

different confluences of these  northern  tributaries on the  Milk  River? 
Mr. PETERS. I can give you the flow of the  Milk  River at  the  gag- 

in stations at  Havre,  Hinsdale,  and  Malta. 
!hr. SANDS. That is all  in  the record. 
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Mr.  MACINNES. I do  not  think it is. 
Mr. SANDS. The  irrigation  papers were put  in  the record. 
Mr. PETERS. The  total  average flow  of the  Milk  River at  Havre, 

Mont., is 210,000 acre-feet. The  total  average flow  of the Milk 
River at Hinsdale,  in  Montana, is 622,000 acre-feet. 

Mr. POWELL. Those  are  all you have? 
Mr. PETERS. Those  are  all  that I have at  hand. 
Mr.  MACINNES. You had t,he  accretion to  the flow between Hins- 

Mr. PETERR. Between  Hinsdale  and  the  mouth our estimate of the 

Mr.  MACINNES.  What  is  the  total flow for  the  Milk  River? 
Mr.  PErms.  The  total flow of the  Milk  River  at its mouth is 

704,000 acre-feet. 
Mr.  MACINNES. Does that  include  the  average  amount  diverted, of 

which, of course, you would  not  have  a record-the average  amount 
diverted  in  the  Unlted  States  from  the  Milk  River above Hinsdale or 
Vandalia,  which  is  said  to be the  last  point of diversion? 

Mr. PETERS. No, s i r ;  I believe thnt is simply  the  natural flow 
of the  stream  as  measurd,  and  to  get  the  total,  if certairt  waters 
had  not been diverted  by  canals, a certain  amount  should be added 
to  that. 

Mr. MACINNES. I n  t,he  cwe of the St. Mary  River  it  was a gross 
amount,  including  everything?  There  were  no  diversions  in  the fig- 
ures  that you gave us as to St. Mary? It was  the  natural flow? 

dale  and  Vandalia  and  the  mouth of the  river. 

accretion to  the flow is 72,000 acre-feet. 

Mr. PETERS. Yes, sir. 
Mr.  MACINNER. As to  the  Milk,  that  is  not  the case. It is the 

Mr. PETERS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. BIEN. Mr. Peters,  your  discharge  for  the St. Mary  River 

at   i ts  mouth, does that  include or exclude the diversions of the St. 
Mary  Canal  in  Canada?  That is,  do  you  make  allowance for  any 
diversions of the A. R. & I. Co. canal? 

figures less certain  diversions ? 

Mr. PETERS. Yes. 
Mr. BIEN. Then  that  has been added  to  the  total  measured? I n a t  

I mean is, if  yon measure  the St. Mary  at its mouth  you  will  not  in- 
clude  any  diversions of the A. R. & I. Co.? 

Mr. PETERS. No; hnt if my recollection is  correct  the  figure that 
I gave  is  the  total  natural flow, making  allowance  for  the  diversion 
of the A. R. CG I. CO. 

Mr.  MACINNES. But is it all  Milk  River  water? 
Mr. PETERS. Well,  he  was  speaking of the St. Mary for the 

moment. 
Mr. POWELL. You  foreshadow  two  contentions,  one of which will 

be put  forward by one side and one by the  other.  The  contention 
is that you  should simply take  into  consideration  the  waters  that 
pass  the  boundary  line;  secondly,  that  you  should  take  in  all  the 
waters  that  are  known as the  Milk  River  and  the  tributaries of the 
Milk  River  and  the St. Mary  River  and  the  tributaries of the St. 
Mary  River. We have  all  the  data  with respect  to  the  former; we 
have  not  complete  data  with  respect  to  the  latter; is that  going to 
be  supplied ? 
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Mr. WYVELL. As I understand it, we are  here  to  prwent  such  dnta 
as we have. Such  data as we  have  not  presented  will be presented, 
I would  suggest,  by  our  engineer, Mr. Stevens,  in  tabulated  form. 

Mr.  GLENN. How about  your  contention  yesterday  that  any  water 
south  of  the  boundary,  that  did  not go into  Canada  at  all,  ought  not 
be  counted 1 

Mr.  WWELL.  That is the  ouinion of the  United  States  Govern- 
ment, of course. 

Mr. GLENN. Mr. MacTnnes takes  the  other  position, I understand. 
Mr. WYVELL. I have  not h e a d  him  state  mything officiallv. 
Mr. GLENN.  Then  we  have  the  contention of oneiide  and"not of 

the  other. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. We are not concerned so much now with  your 

contention; we want  the  facts,  and it seems to mc it would be ex- 
tremely  simple  to  give us the facts. 

Mr. WYVELL. The  engineers  are  naturally  interested  in  the accu- 
racy  and  permanency of their records,  and  they (lo not  like  to sub- 
mit  in  an of€icial report  records  which  they could not  stand  behind; 
and,  in  justice  to  our  engineers,  that  fact  ought to  be borne  in  mind 
that when  they do present  a  record  here it has  the  force of their 
official position  behind it. Therefore  they  want  to  have it as  accurate 
as possible. Our engineers  have been working,  and  the difficulties of 
the  situation  are  not, I think,  appreciated  entirely. I know that  our 
men are  competent  and  that  they  have heen working  at  this  thing 
steadily since April. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Speaking  for  myself, we hare a  series of questions 
regarding  the  areas  and  the  waters of thesc  areas  that  are  available 
in  Canada;  it would be the same data on the  south  side of the 
boundary. 

Mr. WYVELL. It is  impossible to get that.  There  are 500 or GOO 
streams,  and it is  impossible  to  get  such  data. It wonld cost prob- 
ably  several  hundred  thousand  dollars. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Give us the. best information  you  have. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Have  there been any  surveys of irrigable  areas  in 

Montana  south of the  boundary between the confluence of the  Milk 
and Missouri  Rivers? 

Mr. WYVELL. There  have been very  few  surveys of irrigable  land 
and  practically  no  measurements of water, because the  water  in  the 
southern  tributaries comes in  such  an  erratic  fashion  that it has  had 
practically  no  value  for  irrigation. It occ1ws in  very  short,  sudden 
storms,  and  there  are  very few, if  any,  reservoirs,  and so we have 
considered that waste  water. For that reason we have  made  very 
few  measwements of these  tributaries or of the  waters  which  escape 
out of the  month of the  Milk  River,  as  that  mater  is  wasted  and is 
of no  practical use to anyone. F o r  that reason we can  not  give you 
in  such  simple  form as you desire  information  comparable  to  that 
obtained of the  streams  to  the  north.  Thwe is such  a  large  number 
of these  little  tributaries  to  the  Milk, :IS has been stated, some of 
which  may  not flow for sevcral  years in succession, that it does not 
seem possible with  the  funds available  to..attempt  to  make  measure- 
ments. 

Mr. Tamm~. It would  not be considered as  water  available for 
irriga  tion  purposes. 
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Mr. NEWELL. It has  not  up  to  the  present  time,  and  no one has 
attempted  to use it. We are  not  planning  any  reservoirs  now  to  catch 
that water. 

Mr. TAWNEY. The only tributaries of the  Milk  River  that  the Rec- 
lamation  Service  has  given  to  the commission are  the  tributaries  on 
the west  near  the  source of the  Milk  R'ioer  and  the  tributaries of the 
Milk  River  south of the  eastern  crossing  in  Montana. 

Mr. NEWELL. Those  are  the  only  rivers we have  measured on behalf 
of the  Reclamation  Service,  the  main  Milk  River. 

Mr. TAWNEY. South of the  eastern  crossing? 
Mr. NEWELL. East of the  eastern crossing. We  have  not  measured 

the  tributaries  to  the  south because of their  erratic  character;  we 
have  only  measured a few of the  tributaries  in  the  north. 

Mr. TAWNEP. Has anyone  given  an  estimate of the  waters  tribu- 
tary  to  the Milk  River;  that is, that  enter  the  Milk  River  after it 
leaves the  boundary  south?  Has  anyone  given  an  estimate here' of 
the  amount of water  available for irrigation  purposes  in  these 
tributaries? 

Mr. NEWELL. There  has been an  estimate of the  amount of water 
that flows from  the  drainage  area,  but  not the amount  available,  and 
we are  distinguishing  simply between these  two.  On  the  amount 
of water  that escapes at  the  mouth of the  Milk  River  only a small 
proportion of that would  be  available for  irrigation, because it occurs 
a t  times  and  in  such  manner  as  not  to  be  either  susceptible to storage 
or diversion to  the  land. 

Mr. MAGRATH. Why not susceptible for  storage? 
Mr. NEWELL. Because we do  not  have  the  storage  points below the 

points  where  the  water crosses. The  site  may be at  the  headwaters 
and  the  water  may  occur  lower  down. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Yon could get it by  taking  the difference  between 
the flow of the  Milk  River  at  the  eastern  crossing  and  the flow a t  tho 
mouth ? 

Mr. NEWELL. That  difference  would  represent the amount that is 
wasted. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Would it not  represent  the  amount  added  to the 
Milk  River by tributaries  east of the  eastern  crossing? 

Mr. NEWELL. Minus  what  has been diverted. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. Would it not  be possible to base a calculation on 

data of that  nature? 
Mr. NEWELL. Calculations  could be  made,  but  the  point I want to 

make is that  up  to  the  present  time we have  regarded  that  as of no 
practical  value, because, although we may  find 500 second-feet there 
some year,  that  water  could  not  be used a t  present. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Could you give us any data  showing  what you 
would  calculate  to  be  the  total flow of the  Milk  River  at these  difler- 
ent oints-the eastern  crossing  and  at  its  mouth? d. NEWELL. That  has  already been stated. 

Mr. MIONAULT. I suppose  there is no difficulty as to that.  Would 
the difference  represent the  amount  added  to  the  Milk  River  by  trib- 
utaries  east of the  eastern  crossing? 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. But  that  difference, or the  accretion between the 

eastern  crossing  and  the  mouth of the  Milk  River,  would  not repre- 
sent the water available for  irrigation  purposes? 

." 
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Mr. NEWELL. No; and  that   is  a point I want  to emphasize. 
Mr. POWELL. And  that would  apply,  although  in a  less  degree, to 

Mr. NEWELL. That is a point  to emphasize. 
Mr. POWELL. I f  we have  that  uncertain  factor in the one case, we 

Mr. NEWELL. But to a less degree. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. What  degree? 
Mr. POWELL. I n  onc  case It is all  prairie  land,  without  any  bush, SO 

to speak,  and  the  water  runs off i t  much  more  rapidly  than it does 
coming  down  from  the  mountains,  where  there is a gradual  melting 
of the snow. I suppose  that is the cause of it. But  surely we can 
get  at  that  very easily, as Mr. Mignault  has  pointed  out,  by meas- 
uring  at  the  eastern  crossing  and  measuring  at  the  mouth  and  get- 
ting  the difference  between the  two ; add  the  amount  withdrawn  by 

our  irrigation  canal  and  you  have it, except  in so far  as  the  amount 
%st in  the  sand.' 

Mr. NEWELL. There is another  consideration,  and  that  is  the re- 
turned  water.  You  divert  by  the  canals  and a portion comes  back. 

Mr. POWELL, What percentage  do you  allow for  returned  water? 
Mr. NEIVEU. Different  estimates  have been  made, from 25 to 30 

per cent. 
Mr. MIQNAULT. It seems to me you  have  everything  required  to 

make  the  calculation  which  the commission  desires to  have made. 
Mr. NEWELL. We  have  submitted  all  the  figures  we  have,  but 

as to  the  value of these  they  have f a r  less value  than  similar  figures 
for the St. Mary, because the St. Mary  has a steady flow. 

Mr. POWELL. That is true,  but it is for us  to  make  the  deductions 
to base our  judgment on. 

Mr. CONNER. I wish to correct Mr. Newell's statement. H e  said 
the stream  measurements  on  our  side  had been submitted.  On Mon- 
day we discovered that  there  was a  difference  between Lhe figures 
we  had compiled and those  compiled by the  Cnnadian  engineers. We 
had a  conference, and as a result of that conference we agreed  upon 
some  changes,  which  changes  changed  our  result. Mr. Stevens  has 
changed  the  blue  print,  but we have  not  the  facilities  here  for  mak- 
ing  the  blue  prints  to  submit  to  the commission. The  data which 
Mr. Peters  has  submitted is based on the  former  report  and  not  as 
the  result of our conference. We  desire  to  submit,  and we shall  have 
sent  to  the commission as soon as we can  make  them,  copies of thc 
results  which  the  Canadian  engineers  and  the  American  engineers 
agreed  to,  and  which  will  somewhat  correct Mr. Powell's  criticism of 
our  not  getting  together. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  You  stated  there is some  difference. "hat does it 
amount  to? I understood  there  was  only a  question as  to  one or two 
months. 

Mr. CONNER.  There is a  difference as  to one or  two  years,  but  they 
affect the  details  considerably,  and we have  for 1914 the  measurements 
which  gave us a longer  period  and a better  average. 

Mr. MACINNES.  Can you go into  that  with our engineers  to-night? 
Mr. CONNER. We  have  already gone into it and corrected it and 

Mr. TAWNEY. Could you not  put  that  into the record  and  after- 

the  measurements  given  in  regard  to  the St. Mary   Eve r?  

should  have it in  the  other. 

have  put it in  pencil  form. 

wards  have  pour  blue  prints  made? 
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Mr. CONNER. That  could  be  done. 
Mr. TAWNEY. In that  way  the  accurate  facts  would go into  the rec: 

ord and  you  could  cite  the  blue  prints  in evidence of the correctness 
of the  facts. 

Mr. CONNER. It was my  expectation  that Mr. Peters  would use 
these  figures in his report  instead of the  larger figures  he has used. 

Mr. PETERS. I would  like  to  complete the  estimates I was  giving of 
these  stream flows, by adding,  that  to  get our estimate of the  annual 
flow  of Milk  River  at  its  mouth  there  should be added  the  canal 
diversions  estimated a t  38,000 acre  feet,  making  the  total  average  an- 
nun1 flow of the  Milk  River  at its mouth 732,000 acre  feet. I would 
further  add  that our estimate of the  amount of water  available for 
irrigation  in St. Mary  River  has been  based on estimates a t  Kimball 
and  amounts  to 735,000 acre  feet. I would  add also that  our  estimate 
of the  amount of water  available for irrigation on the  Milk  River  has 
been  based on the  measurements  made  at  Hinsdale,  and  amounts  to 
660,000 acre  feet. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Do you mean  on  Milk  River  available  in  Canada? 
Mr. PETERS. No, si r ;  I say  available for  irrigation. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Available for irrigation  in  Canada or for  irrigation 

in the  United  States m d  Canada? 
Mr. PETERS. Canada  and  the  United  States. As these  remarks 

have been made  by  Mr.  Conner  since I started  to  give  my evidence, 
I should  like  to  point  out  that I do  not  consider that  we could  do 
exactly as he  said, because my  understanding is that we  agreed  upon 
certain  figures,  and  there were certain figures  ivhich  we agreed  not 
to consider, so that it will  not be  possible for us to  submit  stream- 
flow measurements for  the whole  year,  which me agreed  upon.  The 
estimates I have  submitted  to  the commission are  estimates of the  total 
annual flow which  comprise  certain  figures  that  there is a difference 
of  opinion  about, or about  which  we  have  had  no discussion with 
the IJ. S. Reclamation  Service  engineers.  We  have  not  agreed on all 
the figures, we have agreed on a certain  number,  and  others we have 
simply, as I understand.  not  considered a t  all. 

Mr. GLENN. Is the difference  between you much8 
Mr. PETERS. I do not  think  the differences are  very  great. 
Mr. POWELL. I f  they  are  not  very  great,  why  not  throw  them off 

your side  if  the  other  side does not wish to throw  them off theirs. 
Mr. PETERS. I f  they  throw  them off their side I would  be  better 

satisfied. 
Mr. CONNER. I n  the  preparation of the mstp I checked up  the  drain- 

age  areas  and  found some discrepancies,  but for the  sake of having  the 
thing Fettled I accepted their figures. I do not  feel  like  giving awav 
everything  and  getting  nothing back. 

Mr. PETERS. I want  to  complete  this  testimony by saying  that a 
tabulation  has been inserted  which  shows  the  total  irrigable  area of 
the  various  tracts of irrig:khlc land,  the numbers re-€erring  to a large 
map p u t  in as Exhibit TA. 

Mr. i&(:Txh-Ies. With  regartl  to  the reservoirs  existing  or possible 
you have some information to give to the commission. Do I un- 
derytnnd that  the  sites of snch  reservoirs are marked on a smaller 
map  recently  put  before  the commission as Exhibit L28 Will you 
put  information in with  regard  to  these  reservoirs  in  the may  of a 
statement, or a schedule, or both ? 
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Mr. PETERE. I shall  read  this  statement  with  reference to  the pos- 
sibilities of reservoir  construction  in  Canada : 

On  the  Cinadian  side of the  boundary  little  development  has,  as 
yet,  taken  place  in  the  reservoirs  available beyond the  survey of the 
sites,  but  with  the  extension of the  irrigation  systems  in  operation 
it is only a matter of a few  years  before  further  construction  must 
be carried on. 

Information  available  as  to  the  sites  subsidiary  to  the St. Mary 
and Milk River  systems  shows  that  the  total  capacity of the reser- 
voirs at  present developed  by surveys is 516,000 acre-feet.  Estimates 
available  respecting  the cost per  acre-feet of developing  these  sites 
are  shown  in  the  schedule  included  in  this  statement. 

The area of land  in  Canada is in excess of the  amount  that  the 
combined flow of these  two  streams  would  irrigate. It is  necessary 
to  conserve the flood waters of the  streams  at  times  when  the com- 
bined flow is in excess of the  required  amount. To  provide for this, 
a number of reservoirs  have been surveyed  and  linked  up  with  the 
canals.  Some of these  reservoirs  are  available  from  either of the 
systems of canals  described  while  others  can  only  be  connected  with 
one  system. 

THE MARY LAKES RESERVOIR SITE. 

This reservoir  site  is  situated  in  township 1, ranges 24 and 25, 
west of the  fourth  meridian.  At  the  present  time it is a lake  with 
a  water  surface of 390 acres. The  banks rise  abruptly  on  the  south 
side  and  part of the  north  side,  while on the west they  have a gradual 
slope. Embankments  would  have to be constructed  across  the  east 
and  part of the  north  side  in  order  to  impound  the  water 32 feet 
above its present level. 

I n  raismg  the  water level 32 feet  the  area of the  water  surface 
would be increased to 975 acres and a  capacity of  20,000 acre-feet 
provided. 

The  reservoir  would be supplied  by  the  canal  from  the St. Mary 
River  and would  discharge  Into  Rolph  Creek  and  thence to  the 
Taylorville  Reservoir. The  water  stored  would be available to irri- 
gate  tracts 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5. 

THE TAYLORVILLE RESERVOIR SITE. 

This reservoir site is situated  in  township 1, range 24 west  of the 
fourth  meridian,  in  the  valley of Rolph  Creek.  There is a lake  at 

' the  present  time  having a water  surface of 181.9 acres. I n  order to 
convert  this  site  into  a  reservoir it would  be  necessary to  construct 
four  embankments  rarying  from TOO t'o 1,800 feet  in  length  and 
averaging 46 feet  in  height. By so doing x reservoir  would  be  cre- 
ated  havnig  a  capacity of 42,836 acre-feet  and n water  surface of 
3,721.9 acres. Thus a large  area of land  wodd be  flooded which is 
being  used  mostly for  pasture  and  hay meadow. 

The  reserroir wonld be filled from the  Mary  Lakes  Reservoir  and 
would  discharge  into  Rolph  Creek  and  thence  to  Lumpy  Butte  Reser- 
voir.  The  storage  water  would be Ilsetl on tracts 1, 2, 3, 4. and 5. 

Tm: LUMPY INJ'I"I'F: RT.'ST'.I;\OIT~ SITE. 

This  reservoir  site  is  situated  in  township 3, range 24 west  of the 
fourth  meridian. It consists a t  present of two  hkes which  can  be 
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connected  by a canal. A dam would h:rve to be constructed  across  thc 
lower  end  of  each  lake,  thus forming two  separate  bodies of water. 
At the  present  time  the combined water  surface of the  two  lakes  is 
356 acres.  When filled the  water  surface  would be  1,151  acres and 
the  capacity 12,475 acre-feet. 

This  reservoir wo111d be filled by  a  canal  diverting  the  water from 
the  Taylorville  Reservoir,  which  canal  would be 4 miles  long. The 
reservoir would discharge  into  the  present  system of canals  oper- 
ated by the  Alberta  Railway L! Irrigation Co., and  the  water  would 
be available  to  irrigate  lands  in  all of the  tracts  with  the  exception 
of No, 8. 

THE CHIN LAKE RESERVOIR SITE. 

The  Chin  Lake  is  situated  in  township  8,  range  18, west of the 
fourth  meridian.  The  Lilberta  Railway & Irrigation Co. proposes 
using it for  a  reservoir  to  store  water  to  irrigate some 17,000 acres 
known  as  the  Taber  extension of their  system.  The  water  is  im- 

ounded  to  a  depth of 22 feet,  giving  a  capacity of 32,000 acre-feet. 
f t  is proposed to increase  the  present  depth of water by 40 feet,  which 
it is  estimated  will  increase  the  present  capacity  to 80,000 acre-feet. 
To do  this it is  necessary  to  construct  an  embankment  across each end 
of the  lake.  The  water  stored  in  this  reservoir would be used to  irri- 
gate  tract 4 and  part of tract 5. It would be supplied  from  the  canals 
already  constructed. 

SHANKS LAKE RESERVOlIt SITI?. 

This  reservoir  site  is  situated  in  township 1, ranges 20 and 21, west 
of' the  fourth  meridian.  At  present  Shanks  Lake  has  a  water  surface 
of 1,214 acres. I n  order  to  convert it into  a  reservoir it is necessary 
to  build  embankments  across  several low dmws  leading  away from 
the  lake.  These  embankments  would be five in number,  with  an 
average  length of some 1,400 feet  and  varying  from 30 to GO feet  in 
height. It is proposed to raise the present  level of the  lake 50 feet. 
This would  create  a  reservoir  with  a  capacity of 95,958 acre-feet. 
When  filled,  the  reservoir  would  have  a  water  surface of 4,455 acres. 

The  reservoir  would be  filled by diverting  water  out of the Milk 
River.  The c a r d  t,o do  this  would be 12 miles in  length,  constructed 
for  the  most  part  along  the  steep  side  hill of the  Milk  River. I t  
would be drained back into  the  Milk  River  by  an  excavated  canal  two 
miles  long and by a natmal  water  course  the  remaining  distance. 
The  water  in  the  reservoir would be available  to  irrigate  all of the 
tracts  with  the  exception of tract 1. 

VERDIG'BIB TdAIIE RESERVOIR 81TE. 

This reservoir  site is situated  in  townships 3 and 4, ranges  15  and 
16, west of the  fourth  meridian,  in  t.he  Verdigris Coulee, and  at  the 
present  time is the bed of a  dry lake. I t  is  proposed to  erect  a dam 
a t  the  southeastern  end,  which would impound  the  water  to  a  depth 
of  35 feet.  This would  give a  reservoir  with  a  capacity of ap- 

rosimately 100,000 acre-feet,  and  surface  area of some 2,700 acres. 
ft  could  be  filled from either of the  systems of canals  investigated, 



ST. MARY AND ;MILK RIVERS. 172 

and would discharge  out of the  southeastern  end  through a cut 30 
feet deep. The  water  would be  used to  irrigate  tracts 6 and 7. 

MILK RIVER RESERVOIR SITE. 

This  reservoir site is situated  in  township 5, ranges 19 and 20, west 
of the  fourth  meridian. It is formed  by  the bed of a dry  lake  and 
a widening of Kipp Coulee. These  two  units  would  be connected 
by a cut  through  the  height of land between  them. It is proposed to  
impound the water  by  constructing a dam across  a  narrow section of 
the coulee. The  water  thus  impounded  would  have a maximum 
depth of 40 feet. By  raising  the  water  to  this level 1,215 acres of land 
would  be flooded in  Kipp Coulee, which at  the  present  time is used 
€or pasture. The  land flooded around  the old lake  bottom is very 
small  while the  bottom of the  lake is useless. The reservoir  would 
have  an  area of 2,122.7 acres and a capacity of 47,364 acre-feet. 

The reservoir  could  be filled from  cither  svstem  and  the  water 
could  be  used to  irrigate  all  the  tracts  except Nos. 1 and 8. 

THE RAYMOND RESERVOIR SITE. 

This  reservoir  site is situated  in  township 5, ranges 10, 20, and 21, 
west of the  fourth  meridian. I t  is a long  narrow  valley  which 
drains  through a  coulee a t  a point  in  the  middle of the  north side. 
I n  order  to  convert it into a reservoir i t  would  be  necessary to  build 
a dam  across  this coulee and  two emloankments,  one  across the  east 
end  and  another  at a low point  on  the  north side. It is proposed t o  
impound  the  water  to a maximurn  depth of 40 feet,  which  would 
create a reservoir  with a capacity of  13,346 acre-feet  and a  superficial 
area of 782 acres. Practically  all  this flooded area is being used for 
pasture  at  the  present time. 

The  unit cost of the  Raymond  Reservoir  is  found  to be higher  than 
the others,  hut  owing  to  the  situation of this  reservoir  in  relation to 
the  land  to be irrigated  the reservoired  water  is  worth  considerably 
more  and  the  unit  cost as shown in  the schedule is not  thought  to be 
prohibitive. 

THE GRUNTON RESERVOIR SITE. 

This reservoir  site is situated  in  townships 4 and 5,  ranges 17 and 
18, west of the  fourth  meridian. It would  be  formed  by  placing a 
dam below the  southeast  end of Tyrrell  Lake. 

The  surveys for  this  reservoir  site  are  not  complete,  but  the 
estimated  capacity is 67,000 acre-feet. 

This reservoir  would be  used to  irrigate  tracts 6 and 7. I n  all 
probability  the  water  stored  in  this  reservoir  would  have  to be 
diverted  through  the  Verdigris  Lake  Reservoir  to  the  land. 

NORTH TRIBUTARIES OF MILK RIVER, 

On  the  tributaries  in  Saskatchewan  and  eastern  Alberta  the  nature 
of the  run-off is such as  to render  reservoiring a necessity  if full 
advantage is to be taken of the  water  supply in this district,  as 
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probably 75 per cent of the  total run-off in  these  streams  occurs 
during one  month in the year. It will  be  readily seen that  without 
storage  systems it  will  be  impossible to utilize  the flow during  this 
period  by  direct  irrigation,  and  during  the  remainder of the  year 
the  supply is very  small. 

Surveys  were  undertaken  during  the  past  two seasons and  three 
sites  have been  developed  along  the  tributaries of Milk  River. One, 
Cypress  Lake  Reservoir,  to  supply  Battle  Creek  and  Frenchman 
Rivers; one, on  Middle  Creek,  to  supply  this  stream  and  the  lower 
par t  of Lodge  Creek;  and one on  the lower  Frenchman  River in 
township 5, range 16, west  of the  third  meridian,  to  store  water  for 
the  large  flats  lying  immediately below it in  the  river valley. 

THE CYI'IIESS LAKE RESERVOIR SlTE. 

The Cypress  Lake  Reservoir  site is situated  in  township 6, ranges 
26 and 27, west of the  third  meridian,  and  has a flooded area of 5,525 
acres  and a capacity of 126,625 acre-feet,  the  estimated cost of con- 
struction  being $3.80 per  acre-foot. 

THE MIDDLE CRREH RESERVOIR SITE. 

The Middle  Creek  Reservoir  site  lies  in  t'ownship 5, range 30, west 
of the  third  meridian,  and  range 1, west of the  fourth  meridian, 
with a flooded area of 1,325 acres and a capacity of 21,826 acre-feet. 
The cost is estimated at $3.04 per  acre-foot. 

Fifty Mile  Reservoir site is in  township 5 ,  range 16, west of the 
third  meridian,  and was surveyed  during  the  past season and is 
situated  in  the  valley of the  Frenchnmn  River at  B point most fnvor- 
able for  the  irrigation of the fine valley  flats  commencing some 10 
miles below it. The  situation is a w r y  good  one for a reservoir, the 
capacity is ample  to  store enough water to  irrigate  all  the  flats  lying 
below it on  the  river,  and a favorable  location for u dam was found 
where a wasteway can he constructed  away from the  embankment a t  
a low cost. The  total  length of the  dam will be 3:350 feet and its 
maximum  height 61.5 feet,  giving a flooded area of about 3,500 acres 
and a capacity of approximat,ely 80,000 acre-feet. The darn  would 
reqnire  about 780,000 cubic yards of earth  and 24,868 cubic  vards of 
rock  for  riprap to give this capacity,  while n reservoir of 49,000 acre- 
feet  capacity  would need  a d ~ m  containing 430,000 cubic yards of 
earth and 19,000  cnbio yards of rock. It is estimated  that  the cost 
of construction of this  reservoir  would be between $4 and $5 per 
acre-foot of water  stored, so that it will be seen that  this is a com- 
paratively  cheap  development. 

Mr. 'PAwNEY. Have you an estimate of the cost of these  improve- 
ments ! 

Mr. PETERS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Is that  part  of the  report? 
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Mr. PETERS. No, but it can  be  put  in. 
Mr. TAWNEY. It would be well to  have  the  estimated cost of the 

Mr. MACINNES. You have a memorandum  as  to  that  irrigable  area 

Mr. PETERS. Yes. 
Mr. GLENN. What does it matter  to us whether it costs a  thousand 

dollars  or a million  dollars. 
Mr. MACINNES. Mr. Peters's  figures  give  the  number of acres and 

the cost of irrigating  per acre. I agree  with  Gov.  Glenn  that it 
may  have  nothing  to  do  with it. 

Mr. TAWNEY. It will be  valuable  information as to  whether it is 
an economic  proposition or not. 

Mr. PETERS. The following is the  detail of cost and number of 
acres  referred  to: 

improvements or construction of these  sites. 

and  the cost. 

SCHEDULE OF RESERVOIR SITES. 

The following  schedule shows the  essential  particulars of the 
various  reservoir  sites,  including  the  St.  Mary  River  Reservoir  site 
above  Kimball,  which  has  not yet been accurately  surveyed. 

Schedule showing reservoir capacities i l z  Milk awl  St. :Ilary River zoatersheds in 
Alberta and Saskatclmwan. 

Name. 

ship. 

Mnrv Lakes.. ................ 1 1 " 

Tavlorville.1.. ............... 
St.*Mary River ............... 
Lum y Butte ............ 
Chin Et&e.. .. : : : ............ 
Shanks Lake.. ............... 
Verdigris Lake. .  ............. 
Milk River ................... 

1 
1 
3 
8 

3 8 4  
1 

5 ................... 
BNntOn. 4 & 5 
Raymond. 5 

Fifty Mile.. .................. 5 

C press Lake ................. 6 
d d d l e  Vree!.. ................ 5 

Total area.. .................... 

.................... 

1 

lange. 

24,25 
24 
25 
24 
18 

15,16 
19 ,a  

17,18 

16 

26.27 

m , 2 1  

20.21 

30,1 

4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 

4 
4 

3 

3 
3,4 

.............. 

- e  

I 

" 

..  
- 

'lood- 
d area 

in 
Bcres. 

- 
975 

3,722 

1,151 

4,455 
2.700 
2,123 

...... 

._,___ 

782 ...... 
3,500 

5,525 
1,325 

...... 

Capau- 
ity in 
acre- 
feet. 

20, OW 
42.830 
37.000 
12,473 
80 no0 

Loo. oon 
95,958 

47.364 

67.000 
13.346 

80, no0 

(26,625 
21,826 - 
144,428 

cost 
acre- 
root. 
per Remarks. 

"I 
$5.94 
3. e2 

6.41 

3.20  not fully developed. 
2.66 
2.71 

13.05 
3.00 

4&00 } Surveyed. 
3.80 
5. 00 

3.04 

....... 
. BR Used by A. R. & I. Co.: 

....... 

Mr. TAWNEY. Mr.  Newell, how does that  compare  with  the cost in 
the  United  States? 

Mr. NEWFLL. As I have  listened  to Mr. Peters  reading  the  figures 
they seemed to  run  about  the  same as  ours. Of course, I am sup- 
posing  they  are  nearly  all  earth  structures;  no  masonry  about them. 

Mr. PETERS. They  are  earth  dams  that we have  estimated on. 
Mr. NEWELL. They  ran  about  the  same cost tts ours, I should judge. 
Mr. M A ~ N N E S .   T h a t  is a  summary of the cost of the reservoirs. 

I understand  you also have  an  estimate of the cost of irrigating the 
irrigable area shown on the  map. 
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Mr. PETERS. Yes, I have  that,  and I present it as  follows: 
I h t n  n g  to cost of ivrignble arena in Canada. 

Acres. 

167,456 
20,000 

123. wo 29.146 

35,232 84.m 
87. non 
89.622 

11.fl9.1 
24, on0 

8.000 
9,359 

7,433 
8, om 

871 
204 

704,917 
3,840 

-1- 

I: 
A. R.  I .  tract.. .................................................................... $13.00 
Milk and  St. Mary River project.. ................................................. 19.00 
. . __do . .  ........................................................................... 21.00 .... do ............................................................................. 

27.00 .... do ............................................................................. 25.00 .... do ............................................................................. 22.00 

31.00 
Blood Indian Reserve .............................................................. 18.00 
Frenchman River.. ................................................................ 5.00 
.... do ............................................................................. 10.00 
Battlc Creek.. ..................................................................... 5.00 .... d o . .  ........................................................................... 12.00 
Lodge Creek.. ..................................................................... 5.00 

Milk River, small schemes.. 4 . 0 0  
do . .  15.00 

St.  Mary, small schemes.. ......................................................... 5.00 

................................................................................... 

.... ........................................................................... ....................................................... 

Add  to get old  total  used in memo. prepared  irrigation areas 

Mr. MACTNNE~. Reference is nlnde in  Article VI of the  treaty  to 
water  powers. VITould you kindly  inform  the commission of any- 
thing yo~1 may know of the  applicability of any of the  waters in 
question to power 1 

Mr. PETERS. I woldd  state,  in  the  first  place,  that  neither  the St. 
Mary River  nor  the Milk River  can be considered  as  important  power- 
producing  streams, because there is no  natural  head of water  that 
can be developed for water-power  purposes,  and,  secondly,  in so f a r  
as  Canada  is  concerned,  the  appropriation  for  irrigation  water  takes 
precedence  over  any  appropriation  for  water  power, so that as irri- 
gation  requires  that  the  winter flow of the  streams  be  stored  for 
summer use this means that the power development  can  only  be sum- 
mer-power  development,  and  therefore  not o-€ the  greatest value. 
I n  order to  give  some idea of what  the  possibilities  might be in  the 
future I would  state, first, with  regard  to  the St. Mary River in 
Canada  that  in  the first 10 miles  measured  along  the  meander of the 
stream  in its course in  Chnada  the  stream  has a fall of about  21  feet 
to  the mile, or a total  fall in its course of  210 feet, and it is possible 
that  in  this  stretch  and above the  point  where  the  water  would be 
diverted by the A. 1% & I. there  might be  developed  a dam  which 
would  create a head of 80 feet.  Under  certain  conditions  there 
would be an  average flow of about 1,100 second-feet  coming  down the 
St. Mary River  which  could be utilized at  this  dam.  This  would 
mean a development of about 100 horsepower for each  foot of head 
created, so that it is possible that  about 8,000 horsepower  might  be 
developed  on this  river  during  the sumrher  months. 

With reference  to  the l\iIilk River  in  Canada I would say that  in 
the first 46 miles of its course from  the  upper  crossing  and  while 
running  through  Canada  the  fall is from 8 feet to 12 feet  per  mile; 
in  the  next 66 miles  there is a full of from 5 feet  to 7 feet  per mile, 
and  in  the  next  10 miles there is a fall of 144 feet to  the mile. This 
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length of the  river is the only part of the  river  that  in  all  probability 
could  ever  have  any  power  tlereloped  on it. 

Mr. MICNAULT. Where is that precisely! 
Mr. PETERS. That is carrying it down to  Writing-On-Stone,  which 

Mr. POWELL. Is that  in  American  territory? 
Mr. PETERS. That is in  Canadian  territory. I am  making  no  refer- 

ence to American  territory. 
Mr. TAWKEY. I n  this  last  stretch of 10 miles  you  have  mentioned, 

i t  would be the only  place  water  power  would be available? 
Mr. PETERS. No, sir. I was  going  on  to  state  that it is possible that 

in  this  general  stretch  thcre  might be  developed in one or  two com- 
bined  heads 75 feet of head  for  water-power  purposes.  And  under 
the  same  conditions  which wonld  allow of a  natural flow of 1,100 
second-feet  down the St. Mary  River,  there  might be a natural flow, 
including  water  turned  into  the  Milk  River  from  the St. Mary 
River  by  the  United  States, of about  the  same  amount,  which,  with 
the same  reckoning,  would  show :L possible development of 7,500 
horsepower during  the  summer  months. 

I may  say  that  at  the  prcscnt  time it would  not be  possible to de- 
velop the  power economically on  either of these  rivers because of 
the cost of development  and  the  lack of a  market.  But  the  estimates 
quoted  have been given  more  to  suggest  what  may  take  place in  the 
future when water-power  development has a  much  greater  value  and 
when further developments  may  allow of the  utilization of this  water 
power,  which  would  not  be  possible a t  present. 

Mr. POWELL. The Milk  Riyer \t.oud be entirely  out of the question 
as a  power source. The  United  States would  require  the  water  upon 
it to be used intermittently so that it would be practically  imposslble 
to  run  any power. 

Mr. PETERS. I should  say  that,  in  my  judgment,  in so far  as pos- 
sible  they  will  get  a  constant flow running  through  there;  my  figures 
are only  estimates t o  give you an  idea of what  may  happen ; they  are 
not  perfect. 

Mr. MACINNES. I would  call  on Mr. Burley  to  put  in a diagram, 
which  Mr.  Wyvell  can  consider  this  evening,  and If he wishes to he 
can  put  questions  on it in  the  morning. 

is  about 25 miles  east of Milk  River. 

TESTZMONY OF R. J. BURLEY-Recalled. 

Mr. MACINNES. You  gave us in  your  earlier evidence information 
on a  diagram  as  to  the  existing  gauging  stations  in  the  United  States 
and  Canada? . 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MACINNES.  I understand you have  also  prepared  a  map or 

diagram  showing  certain  gauging  stations  which you would  recom- 
mend  to  the commission to be established for  the  purpose of carrying 
into effect Article VI of the  treaty? 

Mr. BURLEY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MACINNES. Would you explain this map, which will go in as 

(Map filed as Exhibit M.) 
Exhibit M ? 
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Mr. BURLEY. This  map is self-explanatory  with  the  notes  around it, 
which  show  location of the  gauging  stations  which we consider  would 
be  necessary-if the commission  would see fit to recommend them- 
either  on all international basis or on the basis of each  country  carry- 
ing on  their  own  measurement  and  exchanging  their  records. 

Mr. TAWNEY. This  might  be  very  important  as  an  index of what 
the cornrnission might do. It might be well for  the  other  side  to see 
these stations and go over  them and me can get  their  idea  as  to  what 
changes,  if  any,  should  be  made. 
Mr. WYVELL. This is quite  important; we will  look  over  them. 
(The commission then  took recess a t  half-past 5 o’clock until 10 

o’clock to-morrow,  Thursday  morning.) 
TIIURSDAY, MAY 27, 1915. 

Pursuant  to  adjournment,  the commission met a t  10 o’clock  a. m,, 
all members  being  present, Mr. Tawney  acting  as  chairman. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  The  last  exhibit  put  in  yesterday, Mr. Chairman, 
was  Exhibit M. It shows  suggested  additional  gauging  stations 
both  in  Canada  and  the  United  States. I call the  particular  atten- 
tion of the commission to  this  exhibit  for  this reason, that it deals 
not only  with  the  situation  in  the  past,  but also ccmtains suggestions 
on behalf of Canada  with  reference to the  direction  which is to be 
given  by  this commission as to the measurement and  apportionment 
of the  water,  Under  that  language,  ((measurement  and  apportion- 
ment,” it is, of course, quite  clear that  there  has  to be measurement 
for two purposes-first, to  ascertain  the  total  quantity of that  which 
is to  be  dealt  with  under  Article VI, and,  seccndly, to ascertain  the 
different  parts  which  are  going  to be delivered to each  country to 
make up  the  total  share  to vr7h1ch each  country is entitled. I wish 
to make myself quite  clear  on that  point, because it seems to me it 
will affect  some additional evidence. That exhibit is intended to 
cover the whole situaticn  in  that respect,  namely, that  the commis- 
sion  can  measure all the waters involred and also provide sufficient 
stations  for  the  delivery of the  share of each  country  after  the  total 
amount  involved  has been ascertained. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Where  should  the  water be  delivered8 
Mr.  MACINNES.  The  water  should be delivered,  as I understand it, 

a t  such  place  as  each  country  may  desire  as  to  obtain  the  most bene- 
ficial use. 

Mr. MICNAULT. Do you take it that  the commission should say 
where  the  water should be delivered ‘1 

Mr. MACINR’ES. I presume  they  will  decide,  Mr.  Mignault,  as to 
where it should be delivered,  if  there is any conflict  between the  two 
countries as to where  they  desire  their  share  to be  delivered ; but I 
fancy  that  there  will he no difficulty there,  for  each  country  will come 
forward  and  say  where it wants its particular  share  delivered. If 
that fits in  with  the  desire of the  other  country,  there  will be no diffi- 
culty. I f  there  should be, then it will be for  the commission to  har- 
monize  any  difficulties as to  the places of delivery. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. That is to  say  that  each  country, bein entitled to 
one-half of the waters,  can say where its half  will be deErered? 

Mr. MACINNES.  Quite so, Mr.  Mignault;  and  that share to which 
each  country is entitled  will  not  necessarily  be  delivered  all a t  one 
place. It may be delivered  in a number of places. For  instance, so 
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as  to  make  this  quite  clear,  there seems to  have been an  assumption 
that  everything  must be divided  simply  by a rule of actual  division 
a t  each  particular  place;  but, of course, there  must be borne  in  mind 
also the provision of the  treaty  that  more  than  half may be taken 
from one  river,  and so forth.  That  is not a contingent  matter be- 
tween the  two  countries. , It will  facilitate  both  getting  their respec- 
tive  shares a t   the  places  where it is of the  most beneficial use. It is 
possible that  after  the  quantity  has been ascertained it may be made 
as  much  by  geographical  division  and  by a division of time  as  by a 
division of quantity. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. What  do you understand  by a  division of time? 
Mr. MACINNES. It might be this, that  it may  give the beneficial 

use to  both  countries of all the  water of one river  during  not  merely 
a particular  day  but  during a particular set of months,  during,  for 
instance,  the  winter season on  the  one  side  and  during  the season 
specified in  the  treaty of April  to October. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. That is, one  country  can  have  more  than  half of 
one  river  and  the  other  may  have a compensating  quantity  from  the 
other  river. Is that your idea 1: 

Mr.  MACINNES. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Do the  representatives of both  countries  agree  upon 

the  number of locations of the  stations on this map? 
Mr. MACINNES. That  I do  not  know, because that was put  in last 

ni  ht. 
%r. TAWNEY. The  map v a s  taken  away  last  evening  with  the 

understanding  that  you  would  go  over it and  ascertain  whether it 
would  meet  with  the  approval of both sides. 

Mr. MACINNES. I will  say  this, it may  be possible that some of 
those  stations  may  not be  necessary  on the suggestion  which  was 
made that  certain  parts of the  waters  were  to be  excluded. So far  
as  that is concerned,  our view is  absolutely  clear that it is  not a 
question of what  one  individual  or  what one party  may do or may 
possibly  even  desire,  but it is a question of what  the  treaty  says,  and 
if  the  language is perfectly  clear it is not for either of us to  raise 
an objection or ask  that  certain  parts  be  not  dealt  with, because 
what  we  have  before  us  in  certain  language.  Further  than  that,  if 
the  certain  language is before  us it is not a  question of any evidence. 
I am  not  putting  in  any evidence as  to  what  that  language  means 
because-I do  not  wish  to  get  into  any  argument,  but  simply  to 
answer  the question-one  of the clearest  rules of interpretation is, 
of course, that it is not allowable t,o interpret  that  which  requires 
no  interpretation. 

Mr. POWELL. Do you not  think you had  better.  reserve this matter 
for  argument ? 

Mr. TAWNEY. Mr. Newell in  the close of his statement  suggested 
that  the commission  proceed with  the  measurement of the-Gaters 
as  indicated  in  the  treaty  and its immediate  direction.  My  thought 
was  that we might get the views of the  two  Governments so as  to 
aid us somewhat,  probably, in  determining  the  location of these 
stations,  and  the  number  that  would be necessary. For that reason 
I wanted  to know whether  the  representatives of both  Governments 
agreed  upon  the  location  and  number of stations  indicated  on this 
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map. If you  have  not, of course,  we will  simply  accept  them  as 
the views of the  Government of the  Dominion of Canada. 

Mr. MACINNES.  Speaking for Canada,  we  have  put  that  exhibit 
forward.  That is satisfactory to us and  that  is  what we suggest. 

Mr. TAWNEY. It is simply the views of Canada  as  to  the  location 
and  number of gauging  stations  in  Canada  that  are necessary to  
secure  a  proper  measurement of the  waters  under  the  treaty. 

Mr. WYVELL. Mr. Newel1 and I went 017er the  map  and it is per- 
fectly  agreeable  to  us  to  establish  additional  international  stations 
at  the  three  most  important  tributaries  which fiow through  Saskat- 
chewan  down to  the  Milk  River  at  the  international  boundary, 
namely,  on  Frenchman  River,  Lodge  Creek,  and  Battle Creek. 
Whitewater  Creek  and Rock Creek  being  less  important, I do not 
think we have  decided  that  the necessity of the expense for  main- 
taining  those  stations is apparent.  We  are  likewise  willing  to  main- 
tain  national  stations  wherever else on  the  Milk  River we think 
such  stations  would  serve  any  useful  purpose.  We are already 
maintaining  stations at Hinsdale  and ISavre. I think I will  let 
Mr. N e ~ e l l  finish the  statement as to  the places  where we are  willing 
to  maintain our own  stations  on our own  territory. 

Mr. YOWELL. Can  not we dispose of our  witnesses now, and  take 
this  mater  up  later? 

Mr. TAWNEY. We will  receive the  map  as evidence of the wish 
of thc  Canadian  Gorernment  with  respect  to  the  location  and num- 
ber of gauging  stations.  Mr.  Wyvell, do you  desire to examine  Mr. 
Peters Z 

’ Mr. W Y V K L L .  Ycs; I have  one  or  two  questions  that T would  like 
to ask him.  Mr.  Pcters, yon said about  half of the  certain  area  that 
was covered or was  fed  by  the  Alberta  Eailway 8s Irrigation  Canal 
was irrigated. Do you nlean  on an average  about 75,000 acres 
actually receives water frorn this  canal, or do you  mean that as the 
total  amount  that ever  receives any  water  from  the  canal? 

Mr. PETEIIS. I mean that if you t:&e a period of, say, three  years, 
the  amount of land that  is  irrigated would be about ’75,000 acres. 

Mr. WYVELL. Are you  familiar  with  the  conditions of that  land 
last  year;  that is, in  19142 

Mr. PETERS. I n  a  general  way ; yes. 
Mr. WYVELL.  About how many  acres of land  actually received 

water  last  year,  to  the best of your  knowledge? 
Mr. h”E.RS. I could only answer somewhere  between 50,000 and 

70,000 acres. 
Mr. WYVELL. Is i t  not :I fact, Mr. Peters,  that  canals  were  kept 

unusually  full  last pe:1r“thc smaller  canids that  take  water  from  this 
main canal? 

Mr. PETERS. Not t o  my  knowledge. 
Mr. WYVELL. Were  you  there a t   a l l?  
Mr. PETEHS. I keep a general  track of all these  things. I did not 

see that very  often. 1 saw it about  twice  during  the season with  my 
own eyes. 

Mr. WYVELL. Now, about  how  much of this 50,000 to 70,000 acres 
was  actually  cropped  last  year? 

Mr. PETERS. Of  the  part  that I have  stated  was  irrigated? 
Mr. WYVELL. The  part   that  you stated received water;  that is, 

water  was  actually  applied  for  the  purpose of irrigation. 
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Mr. PETERS. Well, it was  all  under  crop. 
Mr. WYVELL. No pasture a t  all? 
Mr. I’Emns. Some of it might  have  had  hay  cut off of it and  then 

Mr. BIEN. Was that  natural  hay  or  hay  that was planted? 
Mr. PETERS. Timothy  hay. 
Mr. UIEN. And  from  the 50,000 to 70,000 acres  there were crops 

Mr. PETERS. I believe so. 
Mr. W Y V E L L .  I notice  your  tables show a certain  number of acre- 

feet flowing through  the  Alberta  Railway & Irrigation C0.k canal. 
Have you information  sllowing  the  number of acre-feet  going 
through  it by  months last year 8 

pastured  later. 

taken off? 

Mr. PETERS. I have  not  that  information  at  hand. 
Mr. J ~ Y V E L L .  Can you look i t   up? I will  not  take  time  to  have 

you  do so now. Can you  look it up  and  hand me a statement of it 
before the close of the day! 

Mr. PETIixts. I think so. I)o you want  the  information for 19141 
Mr. WYVELL. For  1914;  res. 
Mr. M A C ~ N N E S .  Mr. li’oters, have you got there ready  to  p“t  in 

Mr. Pm~ns. I think  Mr.  Bnrley  has  them. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  Mr.  Chairman,  Mr.  Peters  has  here  an  abstract of 

the  stream flow records  which  have been put  in before, and also 
hydrographs  showing  the  same  information  in  chart  form,  which  he 
will  explain  to  the commission. 

(The  abstract of stream flow records  above  referred to  was  marked ‘< Rshlbit N.”) 
Mr.  MACINNES. Mr. I’etors, from  what  point  to  what  point  do 

these  measurements  corer ‘1 
Mr. I’ETEXR. The summary of stream  mensuremenis  corers the 

whole of the St. Mary  Eiver from its crossing  the  boundary  to its 
month, and  they cover the whole of the Milk River  during its course 
through  Canada.  They  corer  the ~ n e t ~ s u r e ~ n ~ n t s  of the  north  tribu- 
taries of the  Milk  River from near  their  source  to  near  the  crossing 
of the  international  boundnry. 

The  hydrographs  which  are  being snbmittecl  show the  daily flow 
of the St. Mary  River at ICimball and  the  daily flow of the  Milk 
River a t  Hinsdale,  Mont. 

now an al,stract of strenm flows :1nd hydrographs? 

Mr. GARDNER. For  what  period of time ‘1 
Mr. PETERS. For  the  period of time  from 1908 to 1913. They 

cover the whole  year in so f a r  as we haye  records  availalde from our 
public  records  and  from  the  public  records of the  United  States 
Geological  Survey. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Those  records  include  the  years 1908 and 19132 
They cover a period of six  years? 

Mr. PEmns. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MLCTNNES. The  Canadian  engineers have also prepared  for 

the use of the commission a map which is the  same  as  the  previous 
maps,  showing  the  drainage  areas,  which I think was marked “Ex- 
hibit A.” I suggest  that  this  map bc marked “ Exhibit  Al.” It 
contains  the  same  material as Exhibit A and also the  additional 
material as to  the  average flow in the  different  branch  areas,  as 
shown by the  records  which  have been put  in. In other  words, it is 
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the  same  map  with  certain  additional  material  in  a  more  convenient 
form. 

Mr. SANDS. Mr. Peters, does the  water  that  is  taken across from 
the  St.  Mary flow down  the valley of the St. Mary  where It is  used 
an  the  land ? 

Mr. PETERS. I do  not  understand your question. 
Mr. SANDS. I s  the  irrigated  land  from St. Mary  River  in  the 

Mr. PETERS. A small  part of it, I think. 
Mr. SANDS. About  what  part? 
Mr. PETERS. I could  not say, but a very  small  part. 
Mr. SANDS. And t,he rest of it is in  the valley of what? 
Mr. PETERS. I t  is in  the  watershed of Pakowki  Lake. 
Mr. SANDS. The  watershed of the  land  contemplated for irrigation 

in  the  Canadian  Milk  River  Canal-what  basin or watershed  is 
that   in?  

Mr. PETERS. That is a part of the  same  land  that it is contemplated 
to  irrigate  from  the St. Mary  River. 

Mr. SANDS. Is any of it in  the  basin of the  Milk  River  Valley? 
Mr. PETERS. Yes. 
Mr. SAXDS. How  much? 
Mr. PETERS. I do  not  think I can  answer  that question. 
Mr. SANDS. I t  is a wry  small  area,  is it not? 
Mr. PETERS. I believe it is  a  very small area. 
Mr. SANDS. It would  not exceed a section of land,  would it? 
Mr. PETXRS. Yes ; I think  it would. 
Mr. SANDS. You  could  not  give  a  nearer  approximation  than  that, 

could  you 1 
Mr. PETERS. Without  looking at  our  map I would  not  like  to  give 

you an  estimate  in acres. 
Mr. SANDS. Could you look at  your. nlap  and  tell  us? I wish to 

use it a  little  later  and  that is the  reason I ask for  the  information. 
Just an approximation is all I ask. 

valley of the St. Mary  River? 

Mr. PETERS. Twenty-two  thousand acres. 

STATEMENT. OF MORRIS BIEW, OF THE  UNITED  STATES  RECLA- 
MATION SERVICE, WASHINGTON, D. C. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  Mr.  Bien,  can  you  tell us what  water  rights  the 
Reclamation  Service has acquired on the St. Mary  and  Milk  Rivers 
and  their  tributaries  in  the  State of Montana? 

Mr. BIEN. 1 can  not  give  you  the  exact  amounts. I did not  look 
that  up  before I came  here,  but I can  put  in  evidence  the  dates of 
the notices of appropriation  and  the  amounts. I know that  the 
question  has come up several  times on the  Milk  River  side  in con- 
nection  with  private claims, and our first  claim of appropriation 011 
the  Milk  River  was  in  November, 1903. That was  under  the  usual 
law  relating  to  water  rights  in  Montana,  which  required  the  posting 
of n notice at  the  point of diversion,  the  filing  in  the  county  records 
within 20 days  and  the  beginnin of work  within 40 days  thereafter. 
The  work  really  had  begun be K ore  the  notice  was  posted,  because 
we had  done  a  great deal in  the  way of surveying  and  making  in- 
vestigations. 
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Mr.  MACINNES.  Was  that  in one or more  than one county? 
Mr. BIEE. I am  not  sure  about  the counties. Mr. Sands would 

probably know. 
Mr. MACIKNES.  Can you  give us  in convenient form  for  the corn- 

mission  a summary ? 
Mr. BIEN. Yes; I can  give  you  the copies of the  original  notices 

and  everything  relating to them. I would  like  to  mention further 
that  after  that  time  the  State,  in 1905, passed a law  giving  special 
privileges, or you might  say  making  special  arrangements,  for 
appropriations  by  the  United  States,  recognizing  the  fact  that  its 
work was very  large  in  extent  cnd  in  quantity,  and  that it would  not 
be feasible  to  do  very  much in the way of construction in the  first 
40 or 60 days, so that a law  was  passed  providing  that  the  United 
States could hold  the  waters so claimed for  three years. 

Mr. MACINNES.  Can you give us a reference to  that  law? 
Mr. BIEN. It is section 4846 of the  Montana Code. It  vas passed 

in 1905-1 do  not remember the  exact date-and it is conspicuous 
by its absence from  this compiled  pamphlet  that  Mr.  Gunn  left 
yesterday. I presume it was  omitted in this  publication,  which 
was  for  mining  men  and  private  individuals, because they  would 
not be particularly  interested  in  the  rights  which  the  United  States 
had.  We  can  supply  that  section  later.  After  this  law was passe:i 
further  claims  were filed, and  the  right  has been carefully  kept 
alive all the  time  by  filing  in  accordance  with  the  law  after  the 
three  years  had  expired. 

Mr. MACINNES.  You  simply  go  on  making  further  filings, even 
though  the  work is not  done? 

Mr. RIEN. Yes; that is quite a common  practice. 
Mr. MACINNES. What  do you  mean  by ‘‘ a common practice ” ?  

There  are  not  any  other  reclamation  services  in  Montana,  are  there? 
Mr. BIEN. Yes; we have  three  other  projects,.  perhaps  four, in 

Montana.  There is one consisting of two  rather  independent  units. 
Mr. MACINNES.  They  have  nothing  to do with  this  matter? 
Mr. BIEN. No ; I am  speaking  only of the  Milk  River  project. I n  

speaking of a  common practice, I was  referring  to  the  practice of 
private  individuals. In order  to  keep  alive  their  rights, in case they 
can  not proceed strictly  with  the  law,  they revive. 

Mr. MACINNES.  What  would  happen,  then, Mr. Bien, as to sub- 
sequent  applications  by  other  parties? 

Mr. BIEN. IJnder  the  law of Montana  the  rights acquired  by  such 
a notice as I speak of relates  back to the  date of posting if the 
law is complied  with,  that is, if reasonable  diligence is followed in 
putting  the  water  to a  beneficial use. The  law  expressly  makes 
that  statement,  and, as far  as  the  Reclamation  Service  work is con- 
cerned,  there  can  not be any  question  about  the  intelligent  prose- 
cution of the work, because I think we have  averaged  a  half a 
million  dollars or more  a  year,  sometimes  a  great  deal  more. 

Mr. MACINNES. You say that  if  any  individual or canal  association 
came in subsequently  and  built  their worlrs before  you  had  completed 
yours, that  you  would rank  ahead of them? 

Mr. BIEN.  Yes. We  have macle protests in  a  number of cases 
where  applications of that  kind were  made, and we have  adopted  the 
practice of not  interfering  with or urging a protest  against  a  small 
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canal,  such  as  would irrigate an  individual  entry of two or three 
hundred acres. 

Mr. MACINNES. What  do you  sap  your  filings  cover;  all  the  waters 
and  all  the  tributaries? 

Mr. BIEN. All the  maters of the  Milk  River  and its tributaries, 
with  diversions  at  these  points  where we are  building  our  diversion 
canals. 

Mr. MACINNES. That  blanket  application  or  filing  by  you, you say, 
is :1 governing  one  until  your  work  is  completed? 

Mr. BJEN. Yes,  unless it can be shown  that  the  Government has 
not  proceeded  with  due  diligence. 

Mr. MACINNES. Reference  was  made in  the evidence to  the irri- 
gable  value of what  arc called the  southern  tributaries of the  Milk 
River-that  is, in  the TJnited States-as contrasted  with  the  northern 
tributaries of the  Milk  River  in  Frenchman  River. Is there  any 
difference in  their  irrigable  values? 

Mr. B ~ N .  It is a  very difficult thing  to  say  what  are  the  compara- 
tive  irrigable  values of two or three  streams,  unless  they  vary  greatly 
in  their  regimen ; but I should  say,  from  such  knowledge as I have 
of those  streams, that  they  are  approximately  the same. They  both 
de end  upon  rainfall,  and  much less upon snows. 

fur. MACINNER. Yes, that  is  what I had been informed;  that the 
values  are  about  the same.  Reference has been made in the evidence 
to  the  North  Chinook  Irrigation Association  project  on  Lodge  Creek 
or t,he West  Fork. W h a t  can you tell us about  that,  and  what is its 
present  standing ? 

Mr. &EN. I think I understand  your  question  to  refer  to  a con- 
tract  which  the  IJnited  States  has  made  with  a  number of private 
ditches  on Milk River. 

Mr. MACIKNES. No; I was  not  referring  to  that.  That  contract 
refers  to  all of the  canal associations,  does it not? 

Mr. BIEN. All  on  the  main  river  but  a  few  smaller ones. 
Mr. MACINNES. I was  making  special  reference to the  standing of 

the  North  Chinook  Irrigation  Association,  which I do  not  understand 
to  be  one of those. 

Mr. BIEN. Mr. Sands  can t,ell  you about  that. I do  not  lmow of 
that  particular system. 

Mr. MACINNES. Do yon know  anything  about  the  project, or 
whether its application is in good standing? 

Mr. BIICN. No, sir;  I have  simply seen references to it, but I have 
never  had occasion to  investigate its standing  that I can  recall. 

Mr. MACTNNES. Has the  Beclamation  Service  taken it into account, 
or  has-it been dealt  with  in  any  way? 

Mr. BIEN. I can  not  tell  you  that. It is  not at all  impossible  that 
I hare signed  some  letters  in  regard  to it among the hundreds of 
others  that I have  signed,  but I do  not  recall  any of the  facts,  and 
I am  pretty sure that Mr. Sands can  give you a11 of them. 

Mr. MACIKNES. The  attorney  general of Montana  told  us  that  the 
State  enginecr of Montana  would  place  at  our  disposal  a  Govern- 
ment  publication  called  Sixth  Biennial  Report of the  Montana  State 
Engineer. I see in  that  report il is stated  that  the office-that is, his 
office, the  State engineer's oflice-endeavored to  make a compilation 
of all  the  resords  in a11 the  counties  in thc? State of Montana,  and an 
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abstract of such  filings  or  decrees is  published  in  that  report. Mr. 
Conner,  who is one of yo11r engineers, T understand,  went  through 
thnt  report  anti gnvo 11s a  summary of the  records  relating  to  the 
tributaries of Milk  ltiver  which hencl in  Cnnncla, namely, Lodge 
Creek, Battle  Creek,  Whitewater C,reek, Itocls Creek,  and  Frenchman 
River.  Have  yoa  got  that  summary  there ? 

Mr. Ssxns. I have it here. 
Mr. M A ~ N X E S .  I can rend what  Mr.  Conner  gave 11s. It was this: 

Rock Creels, 13,300 acre-feet  per  annum. 
Mr. SANDS. Pardon me,  we would  not  object to yon reading  this 

into  the  record  if it is understood  thnt it does  not  inclutle  the  tribu- 
taries of those  streams. 

Mr. MACINNES. It was  given to 11s by  Mr.  Conner  as  covering  cer- 
tain  things. I do  not  want  to  suggest  for  a  minute  thnt it covers 
anything else. 

Mr. SANDS. But it might leave  a  wrong  impression. That state- 
ment  simply covered the  stream  filing  itself, ant1 not  the  tributaries 
to  those  streams. 

Mr. MACINNES. I think it would  only  complicate the  record  by 
further  discussing  the  matter,  Mr.  Sands.  Perhaps Mr. Conner 
can  tell us what it covers. 

Mr. CONNER. I think Mr. Sands is in  error.  The  list  included 
the  total  tribntaries  to  the  main  tributary of the  river,  like,  say, 
Rock  Creek. It also  included  the coulees and  tributaries  to Rock 
Creek  which  formed one branch anrl basin to  the  Milk  River,  and 
the  appropriation  examined \vas the  total  appropriation  within 
Rock  Creek  Basin  tributary to  the  Milk  River  in  the  United  States 
and  not  in  Canada. 

Mr. MACINNES. That is what I thought. It covers  each of these 
creeks and its basin. It states  “Rock  Creek, 13,300 acre-feet  per 
annum ; Frenchman  River, 4,500 acre-feet  per  annum  in  the  United 
States.”  The  figure  given  is 13,500 acre-feet  per  annum,  but  a  side 
note  shows  that of that  amount 9,000 acre-feet  per  annum  are  refer- 
able  to  Canada. It continues, “ Whitewater  Creek, 3,000 acre-feet; 
Battle  Creek, 1,600 acre  feet;  Lodge  Creek, 2,200 acre  feet,”  making 
a  total of 24,600 acre-feet  recorded  on the  tribntaries of the  Milk 
River  which  head  in  Canada. I asked  you that question,  Mr.  Bien, 
because I thought  that  memorandum  had been prepared  by Mr. 
Conner,  but  as  he  has  given it to us direct, it is just  as  satisfactory. 

Mr. R i m .  I have  not  any  personal  knowledge of those  details. 
Mr. C ~ N N E R .  Mr. Maclnnes, I wish to correct a wrong  impres- 

sion! perhaps. You stated  that  the  report  that I made mas based 
upon the report of the  State  engineer;  that is, in your remark I in- 
ferred  that.  My  report  was based upon  investigations  by  the  Recla- 5 

mation  Service  engineers in  the field, who made a careful  table. 
Mr. T ~ I E N .  I nnderstand  that  that  is  the summar>y of those 10 

large vol~~nles  that  you have been speaking of. T thmk  the  details 
are all contained  in  those volumes. 

Mr. CONNER. That is correct. 
Mr. MACINNER. Then,  Mr.  Conner,  those 10 large volurnes in your 

inrestigation  rover  not  merely  anything  that is of record in  the  dif- 
ferent conntiep in  the  State of Montana,  but also what  is i n  actuar 
use on  the  land ‘1 
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Mr. CONNER. The object of this  investigation  was  to  form  a  basis 
for adjudication of the  water  rights  on  the  tributaries of Milk River 
in  the TJnited States. I n  order  to do that,  during  the seasons of 
1911 and 1912 and  the  spring of 1913 two  or  three  assistant  engi- 
neers  in  the  Reclamation  Service  made  this  careful  survey,  first 
taking t?x record of the  appropriations  from  the  county  records 
and  then  going  into  the field and  examining on the  ground,  taking 
photographs of the  improvements  and  making  maps of the  irrigable 
area  and  canals  and  ditches as constructed,  to  determine  upon  the 
amount of water p u t  to beneficial use in  these  various  tributaries. 

Mr.  MACINNER.  Then you have  covered  the whole situation as far' 
as you can. 

Mr. CONNER. Thele was a board of three  men, one man  from  the 
Land Of€ice, one from the Geological Survey,  and one from  the 
Reclamation Se,rvicc. That shonld not be talcen as an  adjudication 
of the  mater  rights, by :my mcans, but would form a basis for  R 
court decision or assist in a court decision with  regard to which  one 
had  the first and best right  to  the  small  amount of water  available. 

Mr. MACINNER.  In  the same sumrnxrv which  you  gave  us in these 
10  volumes  there is a  statement  that on the  Milk  River  proper  in 
the  United  States  there arc 600 acre-feet  per  annum. 

Mr. CONNER. Not  including  the  large  private  canals. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  And  they  are connected with or covered by  the 

United  States  Reclamation  Service  projects,  are  they  not? 
Mr. CONNER. In part. 
Mr. MACINNES.  When you say  "in  part,"  explain  that, so there 

may be no  misunderstanding. 
Mr. COXNER. The location of the  upper  Milk  River  canal,  known 

as the  Chinook  Canal,  will  not cover the  entire  area  that is now 
served  by  these  present  private  canals. I think  about 11,000 acres 
will be outside of the  limits of our  irrigable  area  within  the  reclama- 
tion  system. 

Mr. MAGIXNES. About 11,000 acres will be outside of what? 
Mr.  CONNER.  Outside of our  canals. 
Mr.  MBCINNES.  Outside of the  Milk  River  project? 
Mr. CONNER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. MACINNRS. How much  water  is  required  for those! 
Mr. C ~ K N E R .   T h a t  takes  prnctically  all of the  Fort  Belknap sys- 

tem,  and I think  their  appropriation is 130  second-feet. I should  say 
that  would be about 90-second feet. 

Mr. M.1c1n.m~. Where  can  the  water  for  that  acreage be obtained? 
Mr. CONSRR. At the  present  time  it is obtained  from  the  normal 

Mr. MACINNES. Can it be  served  from  your  canal?  And if not, 

Mr. CONPI'ER. That canal  heads  above  our  Chinook Canal. 
Mr. I~IEN. And our canal is not  constructed  yet. I may sag that 

they  get  that 90 second-eet  only  when  it  is  in  the  river. 
Mr. M A G ~ S I W .  I remembrr  noticing  that  there  is  a decree in  favor 

of what is called  the Tnciiaa agency ditch  for 125  second-feet, but 
there is also  information  given  in some  official  document that only 
62 second-feet are used or can be used. Is that  con"ct, Mr. Conner? 

run-off of Milk  River, 

what is the difficulty? 

Mr. COSNER. By  the  Indian  Service! 
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Mr. MACINNES. Yes. 
Mr. CONNEII. I would  not  say  what  has been used  by the  Indian 

Service,  but  the  court  decree  in  that  matter, I think,  Mr.  Bien  can  ex- 
plain  better  than I. That is a point of law. . 

Mr. MACINNES. Will you  kindly  explain  that,  Mr.  Bien? 
Mr. RIEN. The  Supreme  Court of the  United  States  in  that case 

recognized the  right of that  Indian  canal  to  the  full  extent claimed, 
and based the decision upon  their  riparian  rights.  Just  what will 
be the  result  when  the  matter  is  finally  worked  out  no  one  can  tell, 
because if  that decree  were enforced  precisely as it is  drawn  most of 
the  private  ditches  that  have been in use there  for 30 years  or  there- 
abouts  would lose all  their  water. I think  something  will  have  to 
be done in case there  is  ever  an  attempt  to  enforce  that decree. As 
it stands,  the  situation is precisely as it was  before the decree was 
entered-that is, the  Indian  canal  takes a very  small  proportion of 
what is recognized in the decree, and  probably  will  never  increase 
as  long  as  that is Indian land-I should  say, because the  Indians 
are not  using  the  waters  for  irrigation.  The  canal does not cover 
nearly  as  much  land  as  would be irrigated  by  that  amount of water- 
125  second-feet.  Of the  small  area  that could  be  reached from  the 
canal  the  Indians  are  using  but a very  small  proportion, sufficient 
for only 1,200 or 1,500 acres,  if I am  not  mistaken. It is a very 
small  amount. This 125  second-feet  should irrigate  something  in 
the  neighborhood of  10,000 acres. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  That  125  second-feet  was  included  in  that  extract 
from  your  seventh  annual  report,  making  up a total of  450 second- 
feet  appropriations  on  the  Milk  River  and its tributaries  said  to be 
in existence  prior  to  the  treaty? 

Mr. BIEN. I should  think  not, because that decision was very  much 
later. 

Mr. MACINNES.  What. is the  date of that  decision? 
Mr. BIEN. I can  not  give you the  date. It is my  impression that 

the decision w a s  after  that report. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  The  exhibit  is  there.  My recollection is  clear  that 

the  Indian agency is included for 125  second-feet. 
Mr. BIEN. Well, then it was  afterwards.  Of course, I do  not 

deny  what  the  report  says. I f  it allowed the  Indian  canal 125 
second-foot, i t  must  doubtless  have been written  after  the decision, 
because we never  assumed that  the  canal would  have that  right  until 
the  Supreme  Court of the  United  States  said so. 

Mr.  MACINXES. I find that  the  Fort  Belknap  Indian  Canal  is  in- 
cluded  in  the list referred  to  in  the  Seventh  Annual  Report of the 
Reclamation  Service. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I understood you to say,  Mr.  Bien,  that 125 second- 
feet  would  irrigate 10,000 acres. 

Mr. BIEX. It depends  very  much  upon  what is known as the  duty 
of water. A second-foot  will irrigate,  in  countries  where i t   i s  ap- 
plied  with  reasonable  care, 100  acres. That would be equivalent  to 
12,500. If that  amount of water  were  available  anywhere  in  southern 
California  it  would  probably irrigate 40,000 or 50,000 acres. I n  
southern  California  they  irrigate from 300 to 500 acres with 1 
second-foot. I n  Montana  and  in  States  similarly  situated 70 to 80 
acres  per  second-foot is a good  duty of water. It all  depends  upon 
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the  amount of care  with  which it is used. In  some States  the  law 
fixes 70 acres  to  the  second-foot  as  the  minirnnm  allowance,  as  in 
Wyoming or Idaho,  for instance. I think  the  State of Montana  does 
not  have  such  a provision. n u t  70 acres to the  second-foot  is  not 
unusually  good  practice  in  that  northern  country.  Eighty acres is  
more  nearly  what is right. 

Mr. BURLEY. I want  to ask you a question, Mr. Bien,  regarding 
yonr statement  relative  to  the  duty of water.  While it is quite  true 
that  in  Montana  they  take 80 acres to  the  second-foot of water, 
t,hat does not  represent  a  continuous flow in  the  irrigation senson, 
does it? 

Mr. BIEN. It is  only  during  the  irrig' A t '  Ion season. 
Mr. BURLEY. Does that  represent  a  regular flow over  the  irriga- 

tion  season ? 
Mr. BIEN. It varies  from  month  to  month. Of course the  better 

way of expressing it is  by the  acre-foot. 
Mr. BURLEY. Then,  really,  the 80 acres to  the second-foot  is  the 

irrigating  head? It is  not  merely  the  duty of water? 
Mr. BIEN. It is so spoken of in some of the laws. It is quite 

commonly  referred  to  in  that  way. We, in our own reports,  always 
use  the  acre-foot,  which  is, of course, the difference  between a spigot 
running  continuously  and  a  bucket of water,  and, of course, a  bucket 
is  what  you  would  want  to use in  measuring  the  irrigation wat.er. 

Mr. BURLEY. Supposing  you  had 500 cubic feet  per  second ; while 
it might  irrigate 10,000 acres as an  irrigating  head, it would  be 
practicable,  used  during  an  irrigation  season of five months of con- 
tinuous flow, to  irrigate a very  much  larger  area  than tha t?  

Mr. BIEN. Yes. The 500 second-feet, to  do its best duty,  should, 
of course,  be stored  in  the  stream  when  water  is  the  least used on 
the  land. 

Mr. SANDS. You  stated, Mr. Conner,  that  a  certain  area  was irri- 
gated;  that  water was  appropriated for a  certain  area,  is  that  true? 

Mr. CONNER. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. Did  that  include  the possible appropriation of the 

men living  in  thnt  vicinity for more land? 
Mr. CONNER. The  amount  given  is  the  amount of water  that has 

been put  to beneficial use, including  the  Rock  Creek  canal  system, 
and is based  not on what  they  have  appropriated  but  what,  in  the 
opinion of the  engineers,  they  have  actually  irrigated. 

Mr. SANDS. I n  other  words,  the figures  you gave  were for the 
completed  appropriation. 

Mr. CONXER. Yes. 
Mr. SANDS. And  not for the  contemplated  appropriation8 
Mr. CONNER. No. 
Mr. MACINNES. AS the  commission  is  aware,  the  reports of the 

Reclamation  Service  are  before it, and I understand a copy  is  on 
file in  the offices  of both sections of the  commission. I do  not  wish 
to  weary  the  commission by reading  a  number of extracts  from  these 
reports,  but  the  engineers  have  prepared a summary of the  material 
contained  in these reports  which we think  will be of assistance to the 
commission. I have it  here,  and I would  ask  the  other  side if they 
would be good  enough to look it over and see whether  there is any 
inaccuracy  in  it. It might be filed, although it is  in  the  nature of a 
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summary of the  facts. It is part of the evidence  already  in,  and I 
want  to be sure  it is accurate. 

(Filed  as  Exhibit 0.) 
Mr. SANDS. It seems to me it would  be  properly  a  part of the brief 

of counsel on  the  otherside. 
Mr. TAWNEY. It is  immaterial; it can  go  in  one  way or the other. 
Mr. SANDS. We have  not  had  an  opportunity of examining it. 
Mr. MACINSES.  Before  closing  the  Canadian case, I would  like 

the commission to  hear  what, is to  be said by  other  Canadian  interests. 
They  have  no  evidence a t  all,  but  they  would  like  to  make a state- 
ment,  and I might  ask  Mr. I’earce to  come forward. 

TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM PEARCE. 

(Mr.  William  Pearce, of Calgary,  Alberta,  appeared  and  was ques- 

Mr.  MACINNEB. Mr. Pearce, you live  in  Calgary? 
Mr. PEARCE. I do. 
Mr. MACINNES. Would you tell  the commission what is your  knowl- 

edge of the  land  in  Canada to be affected by  the  waters  in  question, 
and also  tell us with  regard  to  this  irrigation  project  and  undertak- 
ing  in  Canada.  What experience  have  you had? 

Mr. PEARCE. I first got acquainted  with  southern  Alberta  in 1883 
and 1884, and I have  lived  continuously  in  Alberta up  to date. Be- 
fore  going  to  Alberta a t  all I had  familiarized myself to some extent 
with  irrigation  conditions  in  Colorado  and  in  California,  and I im- 
mediately,  in  looking  over  the  situation  there, came to  the conclu- 
sion  that  irrigation mas advisable in  southern  Alberta,  and I com- 
menced to advocate it, and  have  continued to  advocate irrigation ever 
since. I have been actively  interested  in  most of the  irrigation  propo- 
sitions  that  hare been carried on in  southern  Alberta,  and I took  a 
very  active  interest  in  the  Alberta  Railway & Irrigation  project  ever 
since its inception. I am  an official and  represent  here  the Western 
Canadian  Irrigation Association,  and I am also an official  of what is 
knon7n as  the  Cypress  Hills  Water  Association. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  The  first of these is in  Alberta  and  the second is in 
Saskatchewan 8 

Mr. PEARCE. Yes. 
Mr. MAGRATII. You arc a pioneer, are yon not,  in  irrigation  in 

Canada Z 
Mr. PEARCE. Well, so far   as  it would  apply  to  the  Provinces of 

Saskatche\van and  Alberta I am,  but I think  there  are some ahead 
of me  in  British  Columbia. I was the first Government official to 
call  attention to  the  advisability of irrigation,  and I have  repeatedly 
called attention  to  it  until I got  the  movement on. I had  very con- 
siderable to do with  the  drawing  up of the first irrigation  act  that 
was  passed by the  Parliament of Canada  in 1894. I have been over 
all  the  lands covered  by the  Alberta  irrigation. 

tioned by Mr.  MacInnes.) 

Mr.  MACINNES. I n  wha t  capacity were you over  these lands? 
Mr. I’E~UXX. I was  connected with  the  administration  branch of 

the  department of the  interior of Canada  from  February, 1882, until 
about 1902. I then  was  transferred  from  the  administration  branch 
to  the  surveys  branch  until I left  the service of the  Government in 
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1904. T o  render a large  portion of southern  Alberta a t  all fit for 
settlement  more or  less irrigation  is  required,  the  more  that  it  is pos- 
sible to do  the  better  for  the  country. I f  the  waters of the St. Mary 
River  were  available  to  the  extent  to  which  they could be  profitably 
used in  Canada, we could  utilize  the  whole of them  to  advantage; 
that  is, it would  be  possible to  take  the  water  out of the St. Mary 
River  and  profitably  apply it to  land.  The  uncertainty  as  to  how 
much  water  we  are  going  to  have  out of the St. Mary  River is acting 
as a handicap  or  detriment  on  any  further  extension of irrigation, 
not  only  from  the St. Mary  River  but also in  the  Cypress Hills 
district. 

Mr. MACINNES. The Cypress  Hills affect the Canadian  tributaries 
of the  Milk8 

Mr. PEARCE. Yes;  they  are  the  ones  that  have been mentioned, 
chiefly the  Frenchman,  Lodge  Creek,  and  Battle  Creek. Mr. Peters 
in  his evidence  yesterday  stated  that  there  was a very large  irrigable 
area  on  what is known as the Blood  Indian Reserve. If the  canal 
could  be put  in  the location he showed, as possible from the result of 
levels, I would  estimate that between that  canal  to  the St. Mary  River 
on  the  east  and  to  the  Belly  River  on  the  north  at  least 50 per  cent 
of that  area could  be  economically  irrigated. It is splendidly  adapted 
for  irrigation,  most of it is a gentle  slope; it is not  hummocky or land 
that it is hard  to  get  water  onto.  The  water  could be brought  down 
and  applied  to  the whole of it, and so far  as  the soil is concerned it is 
excellent. 

Mr. MACINNES. Excuse  me;  you  say 50 per  cent of the commanded 
area;  what  percentage did Mr. Peters  give? 

Mr. PEARCE. Thirty-six  per  cent. 
Mr. M A ~ N N E S .  And you  put  the  percentage  higher  than Mr. 

Mr. PEARCE. Yes. 
Mr. MACINNEB. What is the commanded area? 
Mr. PEARCE. I did not  figure  that  out.  He showed  from levels 

where  his  canal  could be  located, and I state  that  at  least 50 per  cent 
of the area  between that  and  the  rivers  mentioned could be economi- 
cally  and  profitably  irrigated.  The  quality of the soil is as good as 
any we have  in  the  Province,  and  from  the  results  obtained  in  growing 
alfalfa in the  neighborhood of Lethbridge it would be a great  alfalfa 
proposition as well as  with  regard  to  anything else you  might  grow 
there. I am  not as familiar  with the Cypress Hills territory,  although 
I have been over it. I have  not  given it the  study  that I have  to  the 
other. I speak  from  information received from  others  with  respect to 
that. In all  that  country,  unless  irrigation is carried on  extensively, the 
possibilities  will be very  much  less  than  with  irrigation. My theory 
of irrigation  in  that  country  has been that  the  products of irrigation 
should be devoted  largely,  if  not  altogether, to forage.  We  have  an 
immense wea of that  country  that  is  only  suitable  for  summer pas- 
ture, and I want  to  supplement  that by winter  feed, so as to make an 
attempt to  reach the  maximum  possibilities of the country  through 
production. 

Mr. MacIraes. What  is  the  position of the  Province  in  which you 
live  with  regard  to  irrigation? 

Peters ? 
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Mr. PEARCE. The  Province of Alberta  has  introduced  legislation 
last session to  enable  the  formation of local  irrigation  organizations, 
one of which is formed  at  Taber,  and  several  others  are  spoken of. 

Mr. MAGINNEY. By whom is the  land  there  owned  to  which  this 
water  from  the St. 'Mary River  or  Milk  River  could  be  applied? 

Mr. PEARCE. The  Indian reserve is controlled  by the  Government; 
the  rest, I think, is in  the hands of private  individuals now. 

Mr. MACINNES. So that  i t  would be those  individuals  in  the Prov- 
ince of Alberta  who  would be interested? 

Mr. PEARCE. Yes. 
Mr. MACINNES. What is the object of the association  which  you 

&r. PEAKCE. To further  irrigation  and  to  educate  people  up  to it. 
Mr. MACINNEB. The suggestion was thrown  out  here by counsel for 

the  United  States  that  any  determination of the  rights of the respec- 
tive  countries to  this  water  might  stand  until  the  water could  be 
actually  applied  to  the  land  by  either  country.  What  would  you 
say  as  to  that? 

Mr. PEARCE. As far as we are concerned in  Alberta, we could  not 
get anybody  to  put  any  money  into  the  venture  unless  he 'was sure of 
his  title  to  the  water. I refer now to  any  irrigation  venture.  The 
t.itle to  the  water is the  vital  part  to  any  irrigation scheme, and  with- 
out  that  title you could  not  raise  any money at  all. 

Mr. GLENN. And I suppose the sooner they know  how  we are  going 
to  divide it the  better it will  be? 

Mr. PEARCE. Yes. 
Mr. MAGRATII. 'The irrigation development in  the  Canadian  West 

i s  de  endent  altogether  upon  private  enterprise,  and  in  that  respect 
it di 8 ers  from  the  Reclamation  Service  in  the  United  States? 

Mr. PEARCE. Yes;  there is no  Government  irrigation  at  all  with us. 
The  Alberta  government did a little,  diverting a portion of the High 
River  down  the  Little  Bow,  for  the  purpose of furnishing  the  settlers 
dong  that  with  water  for domestic purposes. Outside of that every 
bit of irrigation  has been attributable  to  private  enterprise. 

Mr. MACINNES. Referring  back  to  the  figures of the Blood  Reserve 
I see that  the commanded  area is stated  by Mr. Peters  as 238,900 
acres, of which  he  places  the  irrigable  area a t  87,000 acres, or about 
36 per  cent,  and  you  place it a t  50 per  cent. 

re  resent  here? 

Mr. PEARCE. Yes. 
Mr. MACINNES. That  would  make 119,000 acres  as  compared  with 

Mr. Peters's 87,000 acres. 
Mr. PEARCE. Yes ; that is the  area  which  lies to  the  east,  which  slopes 

toward  the  Belly  River  on  the  north  and  the St. Mary R,iver  on the 
cast. Possibly  there  may  have been in his computation  something 
on the  other  slope,  but it would  not be very  much.  However, that 
is a matter you  could  check. 

Mr. MAORATH. I would  like  to  get some idea as to  the values 
brought  about  by  irrigation. I mean  the  increased  value to  land 
through  irrigation. 

Mr. PEARCE. Well, I think you could  place it easily a t  10 to 1 ; 
I would  place it personally at 20 to 1. In   t he  case of land that is 
used for farming  purposes,  one  acre is equivalent to 10 acres of the 
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nonirrigated  area,  and  that  applies  to  a  very  large  percentage of 
southern  Alberta. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Is there  any  dry  farming  in  that  locality ? 
Mr. PEARCE. There  is some dry  farming there. 
Mr. GLENN. What  is  the  land  worth  there where  there  is no irri- 

Mr. PEARCE. I do  not  think  there  is  any  market for it, that  is  to 

Mr.  GLENN.  Where  it  has been irrigated how does it sell? 
Mr. PEARCE. They  are  selling it as high as $.a0 an acre,  and  they 

just  furnish  the  water  and  then  there 1s water  rental  in  addition. 
Mr.  BIEN.  What  is  the  valuc of land  that  has been irrigated  and 

brought  up  to a good  state of production? 
Mr. PEARCE. I can  not  answer  that  question because I am  not 

familiar  with  the  sales of land. 
Mr.  MAGRATH. That  is  what I wanted  to  get  at, because Mr. Newel1 

makes a statement  as  to  the  increased  value  that  will  go on from  time 
to time  in  irrigated  districts. 

Mr. PEARCE. Well if the  products  would go  on increasing in value, 
I have seen the  statement worked out  in  figures  that some of the 
alfalfa  land  in  the neighborhood of Lethbridge would stand a value 
of over $100 an acre  and  still be profitable for  the  investor, but I 
suppose  these  are  really  the most valuable  lands we have  under 
irrigation. 

Mr. Wnmr,. You spolcc of some canal  that Mr. Peters  had  spoken 
about-I  believe i t  was the  extension of a canal-would you be good 
enough  to  take one of the  maps  and  point out where that is? 

Mr. PEARCE. It is on the  Blood 1ncli:tn Reserve. The  proposition 
was to  take it out of St. Marys River below the  diversion of the 
Alberta  Railway & Irrigation Co. on the  West Fork, and  bring it 
out  to west of the St. Marys River on to  the Blood Indian Reserve ; 
then  to  carry it northerly  to  the  east of the  Belly  Buttes  and  irrigate 
the  country  lying betwecn the  main canal and  the St. Marys  River 
on the  east,  and  Belly  River on the  north. 

Mr. WYVELL. The  land which it was  suggested that  water  might 
reach is now Government  land. 

Mr. PEARCE. Yes. 
Mr. WYvmL. It is  true,  is it not,  Mr.  Pearce,  that  the  Government 

has given in  Alberta,  and  which  is now appropriated by the  Canadian 
Pacific  Railway Co., the  land which  is best  susceptible to  irrigation, 
is not  that  true? 

Mr. PEARCE. No, I think  the Blood Indian Reserve, that  portion 
of it  lying  in  that  district,  is  the finest land  in  the whole district, 

Mr. WYVELL. I refer  to  those  lands  which  can be irrigated  at  the 
cheapest  cost. 

Mr. PEARCE. I do not  think so. The  railway  company  dug  out a 
canal  to  irrigate  their own land. 

Mr.  WYVELL. That  land was granted  to  them by the  Government, 
was it not Z 

Mr. PEARCE. It was given to  the  Alberta  Railway & Irrigation Go. 
as a subsidy for the  construction of their  railway line. 

Mr. WYVELL. Mr.  Peters mould know  more  about  the  conditions 
of irrigation  and  the  plans of the  Government  than you  would. 

gation ? 

say,  land  that  requires  irrigation  and has none. 
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Mr. PEARCE. I do not know. 
Mr. WYVELL. I will  put it this  way;  he is the best man  qualified 

Mr. PEARCE. What is the  statement 1 
Mr. WYVELL. Mr.  Peters  is  the best man qualified to know' of the 

plans of the  Government  and  the  susceptibility of the  plans  to irri- 
gation,  that  you  know  of, is he  not 1 

Mr. PEARCE. €€e onght  to  know a good  deal  more  about  what  the 
plans of the  Government are. I n  fact, I do not know what  they  are. 

Mr. WYVELL. I read  the  following  from  his  statement : 
A further lxrge area of irrignhlo 1:1nd lies in t l w  rilootl 1ntli:m Reserve, but 

unfortunately 110 tlctniletl surveys are : ~ ~ ~ ~ i l i l b I t .  to show what area could be 
watered from the St. Mary a n t 1  13elly Rivers. An estimate  mnde by the Do- 
minion Governnient, 3034, shows some 57,000 wros of  land coulcl be irrigated 
witl~in the boundary of the Indian reserve. 

1 call  particular  attention  to  that part of his  statement  which  says 
that  no  detailed  surveys  are  available  to show what  area  can be 
watered  from  the St. Mary  and  Belly  Rivers. You know of nothing, 
Mr.  Pearce,  to  contradict  that  statementy 

Mr. PEARCE. I wderstoocl  snfficient  survey  had been made  to  show 
where  the  canal  would lie. hut  no  detailed  statement of the  land 
lying between that canal.  My  estimate  would be 50 per cent. 

Mr. WYVELL. Mr. Peters is competent to ltnom what  the  plans of 
the  Government  are  better  than you. 

Mr. PEARCE. I am  accepting  his  statement as to  the  surveys  that 
have bcen made to show  whcre the  water  could be taken. 

Mr. WYVE~L. He goes iurther than  that.  He  states  that  no  sur- 
veys are  available  to show what  area  can be  watered. 

Mr. PEARCE. Of  course, that is a detailed  survey;  but  he  had sur- 
veys to show  where  the  main  canal  could be  located. 

Mr. WYVELI;. But  not  what area. could be watered. 
Mr. PEARCE. At  all events, I have  given  an  estimate  as  to  per- 

to make a statement  with  regard  to  the  situation, is he  not. 

centage. 
TESTIMONY OF JOHN D. HUNT. 

(Mr. John D. Hunt, of Calgary,  Alberta,  counsel for the  govern- 
ment of Alberta, was then  examined.) 

Questioned  by  Mr.  MACINNES : 
Mr. MAGINNEB. Will you state  to the commission the interests 

which  you  represent  in  this  matter  and  the views which  they  hold 
and desire  to  have  presented to  the commission1 

Mr. HUNT. I was instructed  to  attend  here on  behalf of the  govern- 
ment of the  Province of Alberh,  and while I had  no  instructions to  
take  part  to  any  great  extent  in  the proceedings I was to  appear 
more  as a listener,  to  obtain  information  from  the evidence presented 
to the commission. There  are  certain  facts  that are well  known  in 
the  Province of Alberta  in  connection  with  this  irrigation scheme, 
and  these  have been dwelt  upon or referred  to  more or less by some 
of the  gentlemen  who  have  already spoken. m i l e  we have  immense 
areas of land as yet  unsettled  in  the  Province of Alberta, in the 
north  and  northwest  more  particularly,  still  attention is more nnd 
more  being  drawn  to  the  conditions  in  the  south of the  Province. 
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Our  Federal Government  in  Canada is perhaps  not so paternal  as 
that of the  United  States,  and  outside of putting on  engineers  and 
experts  and  preparing  data  they  do  nothing  toward  furthering  the 
extension of irrigation  in  the  country.  They  put  up  a  proposition 
and  give  you  the figures and  say,  “There is  a  certain  proposition.” 
We have  to  depend  entirely  upon  private  capital for the develop- 
ment. On this  side of the  line, I understand,  the  development ‘is 
largely  in  the  hands of the  Reclamation  Service of the ’United States 
Government.  Therefore,  in  accordance  with  the  provisions of an  act 
passed at  the  last session of the  Alberta  Legislature,  any  number of 
farmers,  by  presenting  a  petition  to  the local government,  can  obtain 
practically  a  charter  as  an  irrigation  district.  They  are  then  in  the 
position of a  mnnicipalitg-they  have  a charter;  they  can  organize, 
elect their officers, get  their engineers’ estimates,  and  then  prepare  to 
float  bonds to  have  the  scheme  carried  out.  These  bonds  must  go 
on  the  market,  and, of course, the  first  question is the  security  and 
the  permanence of the  water supply. We sa of course, that we have 
Article VI of this  treaty  with  the  United  gates  regarding  the  Milk 
River by which  a  system of cooperation  can be carried  out  that  will 
be  satisfactory  to  both  countries,.and it is  only  recently  that  there 
was even rumor of any difference m  the  interpretation of that  treaty. 

But you can see, gentlemen, I think,  that  hundreds  and  tholwmds 
of farmers  throughont  our  Province,  and I may  say  a  large  per- 
centage of whom  have come across to  11s from  this  side of the line- 
unfortunately  they  can  not  take  their  interests  in  the  water on this 
side of the  line  with  them  or we would  have  most of the  water of the 
Milk  River  now.  These men are  interested  as  individuals  in  the 
financial  end of it : they  have  no  Government  to come to  their assist- 
ance in  providing  rrscrroirs  and  supplying  irrigation systems, so 
that  they  have  to go on  the money markets of the w d d ,  which  is 
not a satisfactory  place  to  go  at  the  present  time,  to  get money.  And 
knowing  what  the  gentlemen of this commission  can do toward  set- 
tling  any indefiniteness, we think  that  the commission  can  measure 
up  to  the  responsibility  placed  upon  them  and  that  there will  be no 
difficulty. Everything is so clearly  expressed in  the  treaty,  together 
with  such a wideness of discretion  given to the  commission,  that 
there  should be no  difficulty in  giving  such a definite reply  to  men 
who  purchase  irrigation  bonds  that we should  have  no difficulty  on 
our  side  in  going on with our irrigation  works. 

I have  said  a  little  bit  more  than I intended  to  say,  but  from  the 
provincial  standpoint it is our view that  the sooner we get  some- 
thing definite to  go upon  the  better we shall get along.  We  have  no 
quarrel  and we have  no  contention  with  regard  to  the  water.  An 
equitable  distribution is right.  We  like  to  work  on  shares,  but we 
do not  like  to  work  t,he  way  the boy said  he  was  working  for  the 
old man ; he  was  working  the  old  man’s  farm  on  shares,  but  the old 
man  got  all  the shares. What we want is a  fair  share; we have  no 
cbjectlon  to our friends  on  this  side of the  line  getting  their  fair  share; 
we have  no objection to our friends  here  using  our  milk-cellar  door 
to slide  down  if  they  will  only be kind  to us. We  have  nothing to 
complain of up  to  date,  and we hope we will  have  nothing  to com- 
plain of in  the  future. 

Mr. MACINNES.  From  what you  stated  to  the  commission I gather 
that  the  situation a,s between the  Province  and  the  citizens of the 
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Province  and  the  Dominion  Government is this:  That  the beneficial 
interest  in  this  matter  rests  with  the  Province  and  its  citizens? y d  
the  administration  with  regard  to  the  water  rests  with  the  Domlnlon 
Government. 
. Mr. HUNT. That  is correct. 
Mr.  MACINNES. So that,  assuming  that  your  rights  to  the  water 

under  the  treaty  have been settled  by  this  commisslon, you say  your 
citizens  would  apply to the  Dominlon  Government  under  the  Do- 
minion  irrigation  act. 

Mr. HUNT. Yes;  for  organization we would  apply  to  the  Dominion 
Government. 

Mr.  MACINNES. So that  the  interest of the Dominion  Government 
is, so to  speak, on behalf of the  citizens of the  Province. 

Mr. HUNT. Yes ; as trustees. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  The  Dominion  Government does not  get  any 

money  out of i t ;  you  do  not  pay  fees  to the Dominion  Government. 
Mr. HUNT. No. 
Mr. WYVELL. The  irrigation  rojects  to-day  in 'Alberta have been 

worked out, entirely  by  the C. J. R., have  they  not?  The  practical 
application of the  water  to  the  land  has been entirely  under  the 
control of the  interests now owned  by  the  Canadian Pacific Railway 
Co,, is not  that  a  fact? 

Mr. HUNT. They  have  very extensive irrigation  interests. 
Mr. WYVELL. I say  that  they  are  the  only  ones  that  are  using  the 

Mr. HUNT. So far  as I know. 
Mr. WYVELL. Have  you  ever been in  this  irrigation  district? 
Mr. HUNT. I have been through  portions of it. 
Mr. WYVELL. Have you ever seen this  canal of the  Canadian Pacific 

Mr. HUNT. Yes. 
Mr. Wwem. When  did you last see it 'G 
Mr. HUNT. Last  summer, I think. 
Mr. WYVELL. Were  you  in  Lethbridge  and  Sterling  last  summer? 
Mr. HUNT. Yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. Do you  know of any  particular  company or indi- 

viduals  who  are  actually  preparing  to  take  any  water  from  the 
St. Mary  River  which  are  distinct from the  interests of the  Canadian 
Pacific  Railwa Co.? 

Mr. HUNT. $here is a  company  which  already  has  made  applica- 
tion since our act  was  passed. Our  legislature  adjourned  on  the 
21st of April,  and we have  only  had since then  to  get  an  application 
in,  and  there  is  one  application  in now. 

water of the St. Mary  River  on  the  land. 

Railway Co. ? 

Mr. WITELL. What  application  is  that? 
Mr. HUNT. The  Taber. 
Mr.  WWELL. That  was  the  application spoken of by Mr. Dennis? 
Mr. HUNT. Yes. 
Mr. WITELL. He said  that  application  asked some 18,000 acres of 

Mr. HUNT. Yes. 
Mr. WYVELL.  And  that  would  be served, of course,  by this canal. 
Mr. HUNT. By  an extension of it. 
Mr.  WWELL. Tapping  this canal about  at  what  point? 

land? 

11 39%" Fi-13 
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Mr. HUNT. I do  not  know  where  they  propose  the  intake ; I have 

Mr. $*ELL. It does not  contemplate  any new intake ; they  are 

Mr. HUNT. Yes. 
Mr. MACINNEB. May it please  the  commission, that  is  the evidence 

which we desire to present  to  the commission,  subject to  this,  the 
stream flow records on the  United  States  side  are  to  go  in. 

Mr. WYVELL. Mr. Grover  was  obliged  to  leave  town  last  night, 
and  Mr.  Stevens  has  that  matter  entered. As I understand it, 
Mr.  Conner  and Mr. Peters  and some of his  assistants  agreed  upon 
certain  mean  measurements  based  on  certain  actual  measurements 
made  to cover various of these  districts.  There was read  into  the 
record  by  Mr.  Stevens  the  actual  records of the flow at  the  eastern 
Milk  River  crossing  and  at  the St. Mary  River  crossing.  These 
measurements  were  agreed  upon  between  the  two  Governments. 
There were further measurements  which  were  agreed  upon,  which 
have  not been tabulated,  which  have  not been  checked up,  and which 
we do  not  think  can be put  in  with sufficient  accuracy at  this  hearing. 
I think Mr. Peters  being  asked  questions  by  the commission brought 
out  these  facts  before he intended to, because there  was  an  understand- 
ing  that  he  and Mr. Stevens  intended  to  put  in  the  same  facts.  But 
t.he  facts  they  intended to  put  in differed to  some extent  from  those 
actually  put  in  by  Mr.  Peters.  Within  the  course of three weeks 
they  can be  checked and  submitted to  each  member of the commis- 
sion.  They  can  then be put  in as accurate  measurements. 

Mr.  MACINNES. Mr. Wyvell  has  misunderstood me. I was  refer- 
ring to the  printed  records  and  not t? any  extracts  taken  from  them. 
I want  the  Unlted  States  records  relatmg to the  stream  measurements. 

Mr. WWELL. We  have not the copies  here, but  three  sets of them 
will be sent to  the commission. 

Mr. TAWNEY. What  is  the  title of the  publication? 
Mr. WYVELL. Water Supply Papers of the Geolo ical Survey. 

We will see that copies  are  sent to  Washington  and  to  8ttawa. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Have you any  additional  facts, Mr. Wyvell! 
Mr. WYVELL. Mr. Hewell will supply a detailed  report  showing 

certain  irrigable  tracts on our side,  similar  to  those  supplied  by  the 
Canadian  side. 

Mr. TAWNET. The question was raised  yesterday  morning  with 
regard to  having  any  information  thus  far  obtained of the  irrigable 
lands  south of the  boundary  corresponding  to  the  evidence  presented 
by the  Canadian  side. 

Mr. WYVELL. The evidence  to be put  in by Mr. Newel1 will refer to  
certain  details  in  that connection, 

Mr. NEWELL. This  exhibit  which I will file calls  attention  to  the 
existence, so far as we know, of about 2,332 appropriations  by  indi- 
viduals or private  parties  south of the  line. 

Mr. MACINNES. Is that  a  memorandum  made  by  yourself, or are 
you referring  to some other  document? 

Mr. NEWELL. It is  an  exhibit  which I will  insert,  and it is  a com- 
pilation  by  ourselves. It is a  summary of the 10 volumes we have 
collated  containing  the  several  hundred or several  thousand  applica- 
tions  for  water  by  individuals,  but  which we do  not  have  in  form 

seen the  lans. 

going  to  tap  this canal. 
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comparable  to  that  which  obtains  in  Canada  by  having  the official 
data  in  any one  place. As I understand it, on  the  Canadian  side  all 
these  matters  are of record,  but  on  our  side of the line,  under  the 
existing  system,  there is no  one  place  in  which you  could  find  these 
applications  for  water.  Some  have been printed  in  the  annual  re- 
port of the  State  engineer  at  Montana,  which is submitted,  and in 
addition we have  tried  to  give  information  in 10 volumes, of which 
this is a  condensed statement, of these  several  hundred  men, or sev- 
eral  thousand  men,  who  are  not  represented  at  all  before  this com- 
mission. It seemed  wise to call attention  to  the  fact  that  these  claims 
exist,  and  also  to  explain  why  we  have  not been able  to  prepare a 
map of the so-called  irrigable  lands, because no  one  man or no one 
body of men  know  where  these  lands  are  located or the  varied  rights 
which  now  exist  and  which  may be established  in the  future, because 
we  have no system of recording  these  in  Montana.  Out of these 
2,332 appropriators,  at  least 888 carry  an  appropriation of 2,040 
second-feet, or about  the  total flow  of the  river  in  ordinary years. I 
want  to  emphasize  the  fact  that  the  Government or the  Reclamation 
Service  in  interested  primarily  in  this  system  along  the  river,  for 
which  maps  have been filed, and  it  is only  indirectly  interested  in  all 
this  great  mass of irrigated  lands  which  lie on the  tributaries  and  to 
which i t  does not propose to  furnish  water nor to  interfere  in  any 
way  with  the  proper use  of water  by  the  individuals.  We  might  have 
submitted, of course, a great  mass of data  bearing  on  these,  but  our 
conception  has been, as I stated at  the  beginning,  that  what  you  gen- 
tlemen  are  concerned  in  is  the  measurement  and  apportionment of 
the  water  to be used, to he measured from  time  to  time  by your 
authorized  agents,  and we are  prepared  to  furnish  your  agents,  when- 
ever  they  wish, or to  furnish  the commission with  these  data  which 
relate  to  past  conditions.  But you are concerned, as I understand, 
only  with  the  conditions  as  the occur at  the time. T o  illustrate, 
while  these  figures of average i P OR of what  has  taken  place  in  the 
past have interest, they can hardly be used for guidance from day 
t o  day  any  more  than if you  were to buy a horse, or  cattle, or sheep. 
It is interesting  to  know how many  animals  there  are  in  the  country 
and  what  the  prices  have been, but  the  judgment  which  must be 
exercised from  day  to  day  is  not based  on the  history of the  past so 
much as on  these  measurements  made from  time  to  time by  author- 
ized  agents,  who  must use these  measurements as  they come in and 
apportion  the  water. I emphasize that  fact because  we have  had a 
great  deal of stress  laid  upon  average flows, which  really  show  noth- 
In except that  the  water flowed in  that  way  at  that  articular time. 

%r. POWELL. Might  not  the  record  for a number o $ears give  you 
a fair  idea of the  apportioning of the  waters  in di erent  periods, 
and  might we  not  then,  whenever our actual  division is to be  made, 
apportion  the  water  on  the  basis of these  percentages? 

Mr. NEWELL. That  is a point your agents  must  work  out. 
Mr. POWELL. Do you not  agree  with  that? 
Mr. NEWELL. Well,  merely as  an  indication.  The  average flow of 

the  Milk  River  at  Hinsdale is about  half a  million  acre-feet  per 
annum. In  1912 it flowed over. At  the  beginning of 1913 your 
agents,  if  they  had  existed at   that  time,  would  have  said : " We  had so 
many  acre-feet  last year." And  the  spring  started  in  with a large 
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flood, but  they could not lmow that  the  rest of the  year  would be 
dry,  and  if.they based their  idea on averages  they  would  have been 
wholly  misled, because for  the  remainder of that  year, 1913, the river 
was  practically  dry. 

Mr. POWELL. There is an idea  latent  in  my  mind,  which  was rati- 
fied  by Mr. Sands,  that if we could  by some  possibility let  Providence 
be the  dispenser of the water-take a certain  district  say  and  offset 
it against  another  district,  on  the  basis of the  general  average for 
years.  Then we could  probably  have  only one station  where it would 
be  necessary to make an  artificial  division  to  balance  the  whole ac- 
count,  and  that possibly  would  be  on the  St.  Mary  River. If that 
could  be  worked  out, and it is about  the  only  way I see of working 
it O u t ,  I think  the  data  respecting  averages  would be very  important 
indeed. 

Mr. NEWELL. The condition of the St. Mary River is, I grant,  the 
principal  key of the  situation.  We  have also these  other  tributaries' 
which, of course,  involve many  complications. And  Providence  has 
this advantage over us, or o\rer your  agents,  namely,  that  Providence 
can  not be criticised  while  your  agents will be susceptible to  very 
definite  attack. 

Mr. GLENN. And while these, measurements  may  afford  some  guide, 
yet  they  can  not be taken as a definite  guide. 

Mr. NEWELL. That is the  point I want  to emphasize. I wish to 
utter a caution  against  there  being  any  great  weight  put  upon  these 
averages. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Have we no other  guide  in  this  matter  from  past 
experience '2 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes, we have  the  guide of all  others,  and  the  one 
that  in  my  mind is the  largest  factor  in  apportioning  these 
waters,  and  that  is  the  practical  experience of the  two  men  who 
must meet these  conditions as business  men  would, from day  to  day, 
using  their  jndgment 011 the  data  which come to  them  during  the 
time  their decision rnllst be reached,  and  that  overshadows all past 
experience in  this  matter. 

Mr. POWELL. I f  you go to work to apportion  these  waters at  the 
different  places  in accordnnce with  these  statistics  that :Ire given, 
there  will he involved in the job more than  any mortil1 man  can ac- 
complish;  that is my view. But if, on the  other hand, yo11 can  offset 
a certain section of the  territory  on  the bnsis of the  relative  produc- 
tion  in  times  gone  by,  which  will be tolerably  correct for every year- 
because hydrometric  conditions  in  that  territory can  not  change  tre- 
mendously from  year  to  year,  relative  to  other  portions of the  terri- 
tory-then you  have  an  auomatic  system  that  will worlc itself  out, 
and  the only particular  data which  would have  to be  considered by 
the men  who are  making  the  apportionment  wonld be at  the  proper 
place on the St. Mary  River. I f   that  can  be  accomplished that  is 
one way of ridding ourselves of the difficulty, and  that is about the 
only way I see that a satisfactory  disposition  can be made. You can 
not, do it from  day  to  day.  How  are  you  going  to do to-day ! YOU 
have to have  telegraphic or telephonic  communications  all  along the 
river.  You  would have to know  how the  river  was  in each particu- 
lar  district to  carry  that out. The  factors  that  enter  into  this corn- 
plicated  problem  make it a  most perplexing one. 
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Mr. NEWELL. That  is  exactly  it,  and  it  must be  solved as  business 
men  will  solve it in  their  own  daily business,  namely, all  these men 
must exercise their  judgment.  The  hydrometric  conditions  are 
fairly  steady  on  the St. Mary  River  but  they  are of the  highest  raria- 
bility  on  the  Milk  River.  There  are  large  freshets  in  certain  years 
running  to  almost a dry  river  in  other  years. I thinlr I have  made 
that  clear  enough so that you may  appreciate  the  difficidties of t.he 
situation.  The  only  point 1 wish to raise in connection  with  the 
map of proposed  river  stations  is  that we are  agreed  there  shonld be 
more  river  stations,  and  the  only one that would  not be worth  the 
cost  mould be the  proposed one a t  the  mouth of the  Milk  River,.which 
simply shows the  mater  wasted.  We believe we must  have rz point 
of measurement at  the lowest point of divergence  on the  Milk River, 
but below that it seems to  be an academic  question to know  how 
much  mater is actually  wasted at  the  mouth. 

Mr. TAWNEY. If  the  irrigation  projects now contemplated  in  the 
two  countries  were  completed,  what  do you estimate  the  waste 
water  then  would be, or would there be any  waste? 

Mr. NEWELL. There would be waste  water  in all the  years of large 
flood,  especially  on the  Milk  River. For example,  if we take 1912 as 
typical of Milk  River,  there  was 1,200,000 acre-feet of flood, and 
there is no  probability  that  when  the  systems  develop  they could  use 
even  half of that, because it occurred at  a time  when  all  the  reservoirs 
would  have been full,  and most of that would  have  gone to waste 
anyway.  Nor  could  you use the average,  because  reservoir  systems 
and  irrigation  systems  can  not be built, as a rule,  on  what is the 
average flow, unless the  stream is very  steady. If  the  river  dropped 
down, as it did  in some years, to less than 200,000 acre-feet,  the  most 
of that  occurred during  the  June flood when it was  raining,  and  they 
did not  want  much  water on the  ground, you  can see that even then 
it would  not  pay  to  attempt  to  utilize  all  that  water. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Could you deduct  from  the  low-water flow  of the 
St. Mary  River  the 400 second-feet or the 800 second-feet  which it is 
proposed to divert  from  that  river  into  the  Milk  River,  and  state 
what  the  average  low-water flow of the St. Mary  River  would be! 

Mr. NEWELL. I would  have to  trust   to memory to  do  that. 
Mr. CONNER. The low-water flow occurs during  the  winter season. 

The low-water flow gets  along in September  down  to 200 second-feet 
or 300 second-feet, but  during  the  irrigation season it seldom falls 
less than 500 second-feet, and  during  June it gets  up to 3,000 or 
4,000 second-feet. 

Mr. NEWELL. Of  these  appropriations  for  Milk  River  which  are 
regarded as d i d ,  the  total of these  represent 5,170 second-feet. 
That  is all  valid  appropriation,  and  appropriations  which we do  not 
regard as valid  run as high  as 20,000 second-feet. I n  other  words, 
from  ten to twenty  times  the flow  of the  river  has been preempted. 
That  incongruity is explained  by  this:  These  appropriations  are 
valid  only for the  time  there  happens  to he water  at a particular 
point,  and we are  apt to get into  that  curious  position  the  Supreme 
Court  did  in  allocating 125 second-feet to  this  Indian reserve  when 
the  actual  fact is it rarely  if  ever  could be got  there. It is a valid 
claim, it is true,  but you  can not  take  the  water  unless it is there, 
and  for a  good part of the  year it is  not  there.  We  have  that dis- 
cordance  between  the  statements  which we present t o  you on  paper, 



198 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS. 

and  the  facts  as  you will  find them  when  you come to  distribute  the 
water  from  time  to time. 

Mr. WYVELL. I n  making  plans for  reservoirs  and  other necessar 
plans,  what  basis  with  reference  to  the flow  of the  river  is  used? 
It  the  average flow, the low flow, or the  high flow Z 

Mr. NEWELL. I n  the case of a  river  subject  to  a  steady  regime  like 
the St. Mary  River we can  take  something below the  average flow. 
I n  the case of a  very  erratic  stream,  such  as  the  Milk  River, we will 
depend  very  largely  upon  what  you  may  call  the  average  low-water 
flow, and  study  the  months  in  which  that occurs. If it occurs in  the 
spring  months we could consider a larger  amount  than if it occurred 
in  the  late  fall. 

Mr. MAGRATH.  Would  not  your  reservoir  capacity  be  a  factor? 
Mr.  NEWELL.  Very  largely. 
Mr. TAWNEY. There  has been very  little  said  as  to  what  the effect 

of the  reservoir  system of the St. Mary  River  will  have  upon  regu- 
lating  the flow  of the St. Mary  and  the  Milk  Rivers. 

Mr. NEWELL. The  theory I have  had  and I have  presented it in 
the  paper is, that  the effect of the  reservoirs  would  be  to  smooth  out 
and  take off the  top of the  peak flood of June on  the St. Mary. My 
theory is that  during  the  minter  and  the  spring  when  the  Canadian 
canal would  not  wish  the  water, we would  fill up  the  reservoir above, 
and  during  late  summer,  when  the  Canadian  canal  might  need  all 
the  water  in  the St. Mary  River,  there  probably  would  be  no ques- 
tion  raised  but  that it should  have  all  the  water.  The  spring floods 
could  supply  all  the  storage we contemplate,  and leave R considerable 
excess. That  will be sent  down to  supply  the  lands  which  the  Govern- 
ment  proposes  to  irrigate  and  will  not  help  directly or indirectly  the 
lands  which  are  not  within  the  Government  project  and  which  aggre- 
gate  many  times those  which we propose  to  irrigate. 

Mr.  MIQNAULT. Has it not been stated  on  behalf of the  Reclama- 
tion  Service of the  United  States  that  the St. Mary  reservoir  would 
merely suffice to  store  the  United  States’  share  in  the  waters of the 
St. Mary  River? 

Mr. NEWELL. That is what I have  contended,  and  as  a  matter of 
history  in  negotiating  the  treaty  there  were  many  propositions  made 
that we should  store  more  water  than  Canada,  and I think we con- 
sistently  claimed  that  that  would be impracticable.  Of. course, we 
do  not  know now what is the  ractical  limit of storage; it is largely 
dependent  on  the  condition o B the  foundations for the  dams. 

Mr. MICNAULT. The  water  stored  in  the St. Mary  Lakes  would 
be ample  to  suppl  the  wants of Canada? 

Mr. NEWELL. &ter we have filled the  storage  reservoirs,  the 
amount  that  would  be  left  would  be  ample for six  months. I n  other 
words, our divergence for  storage  would  not  interfere  with  the  needs 
of the  Canadian  canal  at  that  time of the  year. 

Mr. WYVELL. I n  other  words, we would  only  store  water  that 
would  necessarily run to waste. . Mr.  NEWELL. That  is  the effect of it. There  is onk little  explana- 
tion I would  like  to  make. I n  Mr.  Gunn’s  statement  he  referred to  
the decision of the  courts of Montana  which  awarded  an  inch  to  an 
acre, and  several  have  asked me what  that  meant. It referred  to  a 
miner’s  inch or the  one-fortieth  part of a cubic foot  per second, and 
the effect of that decision, if it were literally construed-it was  made 
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by the  court  with  knowledge  that  the  rirer  did  not flow steadily-if 
they  were  entitled  to a miner’s  inch  per  acre  continuously for 90 
days, it wodd col-er that  land  to a depth of 44 feet, or if they  used 
it during  the  irrigation season of 120 days, a miner’s  inch to the  acre 
would cover that  land 6 feet in  depth.  Rut, as a matter of fact,  they 
could  only  get  the  water  when  the  river is flowing, and  therefore the 
miner’s  inch  to  the acre  would  not cover the  land  to  that  depth. 

POWELL. What, if any,  is  the  amount  that you have  in con- 
templation as the  maximum user for   a l l  your  developments  in  Mon- 
tana,  give  it  in  acre-feet? 

Mr. NEWELL. We  have  published  the  fact  that we plan  to  irrigate 
220,000 acres, and  that is both by the  annual flow  of Milk River,  and 
supplemented by storage  in  St.  Mary  River. 

Mr. POWELL. That is the tot,al  consumption? 
Mr. NEWELL. Yes;  and we have figured that  in  ordinary  years 

that  should be covered to a  depth of 1 foot. That was  simply  based 
on  our  present  knowled e. 

Mr. WYVELL. That, o P course, is  in  addition  to  what yon now  re- 
ceive ? 

Mr. POWELL. You are  not receiving it now. 
Mr. WYVELL. No; but  an  acre-foot  additional. 
Mr. MAGRATH. What  limit of value  have  you put  per  acre  in  your 

development  scheme ? 
Mr. NEWELL. We  have  not  put any. I n  many of the  earlier  reports, 

which  have  been  introduced  in evidence, we have  made  statements 
which  were the best we could  give at   the time, but  as we get  older 
and  get  more  experience we are less likely to  prophesy. 

I want  also  to  correct one impression  which  may  have been left 
on the  commission  and  to  which Mr. Bien  calls  my  attention,  namely, 
that our plans for divertin  in  the St. Mary  River  are  not  limited 
to  the  amount  to be store$  but  that  when  water  increased  in St. 
Mary we plan  to  divert  not  only  stored  water  but some of the  un- 
regulated flow. 

Mr. M ~ O R A T H .  The  statement  you  made  in  the  early  part of the 
proceedings  was to the effect that  your  expenditure  would  be 
$8,000,000 in  irrigating 220,000 acres,  which  would amount  to  between 
$30 and $40 per acre. That  is the  limit of your  expenditure  per 
acre at  present? 

Mr. NEWELL. That is what we  have  placed  before  Congress. I 
wish to  present  to  the  commission  the  following  statement : 

(Statement filed as  Exhibit P.) 

0 

&IILK RIVER WATER  RIGHTS. 

UNITED STATES RECLAMATION SEXVICE, 
nEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, 

Xay 27, 1916. 

tributaries in the State of JIo~~tnna. 
The following data relate to the rights of use of w:\ter of Jl i lk River and its 

General Land  Office of the United States,  the Reclamation Service. and the Geo- 
These dntn hare been collected by three n~en, representing, respc~tively,  the 

logical Survey. Their report is drlted April 6, 1915, and is signed by  Herman 

and  Charles \V. Wells for the Qtmeral Imul Office. In preparing these data and 
Stahler for the Geologicnl Survey, It. SI. Comer for the Recltlmntion Service, 

ant engineers of the Reclamation Service: said investigations were conducted 
conclnsions reference was made to the results of investigations matle  by assist- 

during the years 1911 aud 1912 and covered all water appropriations and all 
patented :ind claimed  lands, the latter being homesteads and desert-land flling8, 
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cmbrttced within  the dr:Iinage  hxsiu of the  Nilk  River Valley from Antelolw 
Creek on the  east,  the  Canadian  bonndnry on the  north,  and  the  watershed of the 
Milk River drainage  basin on the south and west. 

Access was also  had to  the  Water-Supply  Papers of the  United  States Geo- 
logical Survey  and  the  Canndinn  water-supply  records. The latter  were  pre- 
pared by V. €1. Peters,  ron~rnissioner of irrigation. 

TENTATlVE ADJUDICATION OF T H E  APPROPRIATIONS ON THE TRIBUTARIES. 

The  relwrt on the  priv:lte  water-supply  appropriations made by the  assistant 
engineers above referred to appear  to  have been bnsed upon  a very  careful field 
examination of each  initiated  water  right.  In e x h  case  where  improvements 
of any  considerable  extent  were  made, 1)hotogr:rphs were t:llren of the  principsl 
structnres, and a plane-table  survey  made  showing  the  extent and location of 
the  principal  ditches.  and  their  relation  to  the legal subdivisions of the  land. 
These  reports consist of 3-.3(iS single-spxced typewritten ~ ~ g e s ,  and cover  over 
2,000 desert-land  entries :1w1 water  Itppropriations. 111 so fa r  as possible the 
owner of the 1:111d or water  right  was  interviewed by the  assistant  engineer 
regi\rding  the  extent ant1 time of beueficial use of the  wnter.  In  many cases 
the drainaxe :\rea  aboye  the  point of pro]wse~l  diversion  mas nleas~~red  and  the 
nmount of ])robable r n r ~ ~ t f '  conipnted. In case of primping schemes, the size of 

derived. 
the punlp : ~ n d  anlonut o f  thtl lift n q s  :Iscert:lined R I I ~  the maximum  capacity 

B'rom 21 stndy of the nlwve rocords ;I c:trefr:l estimate  has been made of the 
amount of water that call be clainled to have  bwn heneficitllly used from  the 
Milk River  mcbits  tributaries from rights  initiated prior to  the  appropriation 
made by the  Ileclanl:~tion Service, Norenlber 2, 1903, and  also  the  amount  that 
can be c1:rimetl to hare Fern beneficially  used from rights iuitiated  subsequent  to 
that  date.  The :rmount required has been talrei1 a s  1 second-foot to  each 80 

the tot:ll area in  the 1:md entry. I t  was impossible from the data available  to 
wres  of the  land for whicll lv?neficinl m e  has beell made, and is not bnsed uporr 

obtain  the  total area to which the :~ppro])riirtions  were  appurtenant, as the 
descriptions of the 1;rnd were  not  iu  all  cases given. It was obseryed,  however, 
that  in 11 large  prqmtion of the cases  where  water filings were  made  for 

thought  necessary to acqnire title to  the  land. In some localities, moreover, 
desert-land  entries only s w h  irrigation had been undertaken as the entryman 
it was  apparent  thxt :ts soon a s  patent was secured from the  Government,  the 
lands  were consolidated with  the  holdings o f  large  stockmen atul irrigation 
operations  abandoned. 

In  arriving  at  an  equitable  nrderstarlding a s  to the  amount of w:rter appro- 
priated  and  the  rights consummntefl by heneflcinl nse, the attempt has been 

streams.  those  rights  hal-e been recognized a s  being valkd and  alive as :I court. 
macle to :Ismule the attitude wllich would be tnlcell by a court  adjudicating the 

using  the s:lme evidence.  would so recogntze. 
WATBR SUPPLY. 

River above Glwsgow, Mont., which 1)lnce is below a11 tlirersion 011 the river. 
A studr was also m:~(le of the plohable rllwoff of r:~ch  tributary o f  the JIlllc 

Also of the possible demands for water that might  be  made upon each of said 
tribntnries. tnk.ing into consic1er;~tinn the val id  rights i t  recognized ns existing. 

The  Ck~)l~)gic~al  Survey  has  nlnintnined  gauging  sta,tions on Milk Eirer. which 
were consi(1crtvI i l l  :unalyzing the  possibilities :IS to thc :Inrount of wnter in the 
river, the rr(~ords of said  stations  being as follows : 

MILK IZIVER AT CANADIAN 130UNDA4RY 

[Rtation locatod near Goldstone, Mont.. T. 37 N., R .  9 E. Drainage  area,  2,448 square nri1er.l 
~. ~ .~ 

Yoar. Mar. Apr. 
__ I Way. 

1911.. ............... 
1912.. ....................... 
1913 ......................... 56,172 32,5%3 
1914.. ....................... 20,100 I 10,300 

- - 

___- 
Total. __.  __.__ 13,751 
Mean.. ............... 

__- 

June. Aug. July. 

. ~ ~ 

"" __ ~ 

20,707 7,133 14,112 

8,093 6,948 

-116 1,631 6,010 
5,214 11,068 19,041 
3,665 

-" 
53,851 16,420 33,789 
13,500 4,100 8,400 
-______ 

Sept. 1 Oct. ~ Nov. I Total. I 
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MILK  RIVER. 

[Stations  in  SE. f sec. 5, T. 32 N., R. 16 E.. at  Ilavre. Mont. Drainage area, 5,050 square miles.] 
"" 

Aug. 

~- - 

Total. 

" 

205, OOO 
277,000 
82,200 

148,000 
427,000 
306,000 
165,000 
17,100 
76,700 

294,000 
254,000 
235,000 
105 000 
l8l:oOo 
219,000 

' 166,000 

zoo: 000 if 158 OM) 

__ 

Oct. 1 Nov. 1 Dec. July. Sept. 

- 
1898. 
1899. 
uno. 
1901. 
. l u o Z .  
1903. 

1905. 
1804. 

1908. 
1907. 
1908. 
190 .  
1910. 
t9 l l .  
1912. 

-__ I -  

(3::bP; } 

{ y;;; } 

............. 

.... 26,400 

............ 

. . '. I( 
36,200 

. _ _ _  38,000 

._. . 3,045 

.... .... 14,450 

.... 

._.. 96,400 
13,000 .... 

.... 21,800 

.... 

.... 

......... {$A; }80,600 
n1,zoo 61,900  55,900 

:Eo )26,800 9,160 
12,200  39,800 1 32,900 

I 10,300 
14,800 
2,640 

11,300 

6,950 
12, ooa 
2,460 

1,720 
23,200 
23,200 

307 
1,290 

320 
3,790 

10,900 
11,100 
...... 
7,070 
4,740 

5,920 

3,150 
7,800 
4,520 

3,330 
17  700 
9:  760 

178 

167 

7,380 
7,560 

3,140 

39,500 
536 

4,370 

082 

.lo, 080 

........ 

- 
6, 
__ 

5,410  5,950  6,950 

11,400 { ijl& } . _____  

19,000  17,800  18,500 
5,040  4,760 _ _ _ _ _ _ _  
8,480  6,840  9,040 
1,170  2,080  1,540 

92 30 ....... 

5,780  11,300 ....... 

...................... 

10,900 11,100 
5.030 4,310  3,690 

....... 
4,530 { i:jo }.. .... 
1,280  2,040  1,540 

17,300  5,770  2,460 
6,400  5,750 ....... 

5,630 1 7,320 

55,600 

17:600 20:300  130: 000 
25,600 99,000 44,200 
11,700 10,300  6,130 
19,600 25,600 23,400 
85,700 28,100 14,500 

72 ooo 28 zoo 48 wn 
6,210 

24,400 
32,400 
22,600 

940 

7,070 
19,  200 

11,100 1913 ..... 1 ........ 3,710  3,780 { l:ito 
05,500  90,900 44  900 
-____ 
6,600 6,100  6:loo 

Total.. 443 300 613 000 630 700  687  300 
Mean.. 1 34:  100 I 41:  700 1 40: 600 I 43:OOO 

22,500 
20,100 

14,887 
7,200 

___ 
NORTH FORK OF MILK  RIVER. 

[Station a t  sec. 3, T. 83 N., R. 19 E., near Chiuodr, Mont. Drainage area, 1,430 square miles.] 

972 

1,110 

11,400 

65,900 

107,  000 
Q, 160 

61,  000 

26,200 
40,800 
99,100 
39,900 

1905 ............. ) 2,930 { "& 
lW6....]{28$l 1 3,670 

9,830 
1907.. ... !{:-& 
1908.. ...l(2'$2 1,840  3,810 1808. .... 1'840 

20,400 68,400 

} 3,560 12,900 
1910.. ... 21,681 3,460 915 
1912.. 

63,300 189,000 Total. .I 37  954 
4,210  20:300 ma.. ... /''9;040 

2,980 4,870 xm. 1,170 
7,560 79  700 

.... . . . . . . .  
-___- 

M , 9 l u l . : l  7:900 7 , m  22,000 

2,210 

3,900  42,200 

2,930 ........ 
1,190 

45n 
......... 

73 

26,  000 
590 
21 

28,300 

......... 

" 

3,  100 

1,730  2,340 

....... 
....... 

7,620 
................ 714 

381 4,600 

,. .............. 137 
873 17,800 24,200 

791  161 ........ 
4,580 3 , W  501 
1,5W 164 3,550 

84,000 36,600 4,061 
__" 

9,300 450 4,100 

-I-!--"-- 
7,281  9 044 1 (io9 

800 I 1:100 1 '710 I 460,450 
51,200 

1 I I 

MILK RIVER. 

[Station  in S. W .  f sec. 17 T. ,  30 N., It. 30 E . ,  at Malta.  Drainage area, 11,200.1 

I I I I I I I I 
1902. . ...I.. ..... .I. 18, loo I 1-8 ................ 

8,630 
............... 

404,000 10,900 

28,800 
833 

........ 4,370 

280,ooO 922 

224 OOO 17,400 

293  000 
6,070 M7:000 

5,290  354:000 

12,300 511:oeO 
G, 190 230  000 3,070 

........ ........ 

........ 
31 126,000 ....... 

........ 

8,510 
11,100  17,800 
11,600 

............... 

........................ 
105  000 
194:OOO 

67 600 63  000 

1,610 240 476 32:8M)  34:700 

383,000 85:500 95:200 
595 9 780 247  000 

32:W 113:oOO  115:000 
9,880 3,090 1,480 7 800 23 600 10 900 

330:oOO 75:600  42:800 

21 100 la2 000 8 240 

,$;3& 22,400 }M, 400 -" 
211,000 769,000  503,150 
110,000 69,900 45,700 

........ 
25,100 
1,040 
4,  000 w, 500 

54 300 

56,100 

19,600 
32 

15,800 
17,300 

237  000 
~ 21:500 

19: 100 

" 

1903..... 

............. m 16,  485 1905. .... 15,670 I'M. .... 49,100 

............ 1907. 

1909.. ........... 
1911 .....I 16,270 
1912.. .. .I.. ...... 

won. .  
1810.. 111,120 

........... 

... 

............... 
3,770 

8,180 7,860 
1,940 

11,900  7,020 
5,070 4,750 ....... 

5,240 
13,  000 
2,964 

............... 
103 Mw) 

5,100 2,420 

24  100 
8 : w  1 2 : m  

8,570 1 . .  ......I 252,000 1913.. 

I 9,000 I 13,500 I 7,700 
109,000 164,000 92,000 72,500  14,923  3,339,000 

6,500 1 3,700 1 304,000 
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MILK RIVER-Continued. 

[Rtation in T. 30, N. R .  36 E., JIinsdale, Mont.] 

1908.. . ...... 
1909.. 
1910.. .. 
1911 .... 
1912.. 
1913.. . ...... 

......... 
64,900 11d,OOO 
34,600 4,540 
37,900 29,300 

768,000  198,000 
&& ]so, 

}117,OOO 21,408 
221 000 135,000 

33,400 25,700 
102,000 37,  100 
41,800 28,200 

3:750 429 

Aug. Sept. 

- "" 
7,010 4,280 

27 800 4,380 
1:590  386 
3,900 20G,000 

54,000 20,100 
5,210 2,950 
" 

99 500 237 200 
16:600  39:500 

Oct. I NOV. I Dec. 1 Total. 

4,110 
6,770 

86,700 
127 

1 1-24 
16,900 

L 2,580 
.14,800 
19,  100 

{ ::;& }... .... 164,000 
................ 576 OOO 

13  100 3,070 470:oM) 
164  184 207'000 

15:800 ........ 1,210,ooO 
} ............... 353,000 

7:900 1 1:600 7 5 0 0 : ~  

"" 

39 600 3 254 2 980 ooo 
I I 

f 
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Month. 

1909. 

ay ............................. 
July.. 
June 
August.. ........................ 

p i 1  ............................ 
............................. ........................... 

Dry rest of year. 

5 

755 
50 

151 
47 

3.5 
4 

25 
12 
0 

1910. 
March.. ............................................ 
A ril. ........................... 34 . 5  ............................. .5 0 
June ............................. 0 

0 23 August .......................... 0 0 July ............................. 0 

March ........................... 172  27 

ay ............................. 630 77 
June ............................. 227 5.4 

apy 

___- ___- 
1911. 

P I . .  .......................... 8.4 19 

July ............................. 45 
August.. ........................ 21 
September ....................... I 488 

35 

7 
1.8 

Total. .................... .I. ........ _I.. ....... 
1912. 

A rll ............................ 
610 July 

342 

89 SeDtember ....................... 490 August .......................... 
99 June 

aB,y ............................. 700 ............................. ............................. 
21 
17 
2.8 .a 
6 
3.4 

. Total.. .................... I--\. ........ 

Mean. 

4.68 

190 
14.9 

54.2 
10.4 

170 
15.1 

0 
0 
1.74 

.05 

___ __ 
1 75 

13 

4 43 
5 40 

7 141.7 
68 

8 421 

........ 
======= 

118 
175 
421 
138 
104 

2.7 - 

Run-off. Remarks. 

278 
916 ' secdnd-feet. 3,330 

1 feet M d i m r n ,  755 11,300 
Total run-off 23700 acre- 

640 1 

10,500 Estimated 
898 

3 
0 

107 
0 

1,350 
140 

3,370 
1,550 

320 
180 

7,400 

1 For 9 days. : For 5 days. 8 For 4 days. 4 For 18 days. 0 For 4 days. 6 For 9 days. For 26 days. 

Beaver Creek overflow. 

[Seven day8 in excess of 14 second-feet in July, 1903. Discharge, July 8-27, 1,860 acre- 
fee t  ; Bug. 3-8, 24 ncre-feet.] 

Second-feet. 
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Month. I mum. 1 Maxi- 

/- I. 
March 14-31 

2 A d l .  ......................................................... 315 

June. .......................................................... 956 
July. .......................................................... 57 
August.. ...................................................... 0 1  

1909. .................................................... 
dy 0 ........................................................... 

Total. ....................................................................... 

0 75.6 Mmh ................................................................... 
12,415 .(. ......... 

4,700 ' .......... Total ........................................................................ 
7 0 10 April.. ........................................................ 4 , z  

_________- _ _ _ ~ "  
1910. 

I__-__- 

___________ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~  
1912. 

A ril17-30 ..................................................... 26  325 
d y . . .  

134 0 800 July.. 

4,140 149 
16 400 266  19 1,lM ........................................................ 

June. .......................................................... 
1% 0 920 August 

14 xw) 

41,740 Total.. ................................................................................ 
1,080 18.2 1.0 108 September. 

8 2 4 0  
70.4 

7: 690 
4:lm ......................................................... ........................................................ .................................................... ~ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

station,  was as follows, in acre-feet : 
This shows that the run-off from Beaver  Creek  basin, above the gaugirlg 

1 Lower. 1 Overflow. i Total. 
~~~~ 

............................................................... ................................................................ 1905 
144,200 29:700 114:W 1906.. .............................................................. 
27 500 14 2M) 12 850 1904. 
27:W 23'310  4'570 

1908 (no discharge). 
1909... ............................................................. 23  700 12  410 36,110 1910 ................................................................ ll:K@ 4:7W 16 200 
1911.. .............................................................. 14  300 6,000 20'300 
1912.. .............................................................. 

4,700 Mean ................................................................................. 
77:lW 41,740 35:410 "- 

for the stream  are as follows : 
Rock Creek  has R drainage area of 1,480 square miles, and the  gauging  records 

Rock Cvcelc below Rock Cveek Canal. 

Date. 

1905. 

July 24. 
July 5.. 14 

Aug. 12.. ....................... 
......................... ......................... 

1907. .......................... 
Apr. !23... Apr. 16 

A$'. %... ....................... 
May 28.. 

ay 21.. 

JUne 17 .......................... 
July 9.. ......................... 
July 31.. ........................ 
Aug.  21.. ....................... 
OCt. 21.. ........................ 

....................... 
........................ ........................ 

1,310 

1:390 

219 
664 

217 
31 

0 
1 

1.5 

3 1370 

1910. 

No discharge  recorded. 

Flood 1 W  maximum 18 Mx) second-feet SQo8: Apr. 49 

920 acn.-bt. 'Tdtal, 58,000 &e-feei. 
acre-feet. h a y  13 800acrtheet. June 43,260acre-feet; h l y  

.Canal dry. 
Canal  large flow.. ... .' 
Canal284 
Canal 326 

A ril to Se tember, 177 OOO Bore 
Canal dry ............ ket. Maxrmum 5,520' second- 
Canahdry ............. leet. OS above li3,Mx) acre-feet in 
Canal  3  second-feet ... April. 
Canal 3 second-leet ... 
Canal 1+ second-feet .., 

............. ............. 
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Rock  Creek below Rock  Creek  CanadGontinued. 

Uonth. 1 Maxi- 1 Mini- 1 Mean, 
mum.  mum. Run-on. 

1912. ..................................................... 2 A ri l l930  

34,120 Total 

7,990 
1,400 23.5 8 216 September.. ................................................... 130 1 2,400 August ......................................................... 3.800 58.5 10 364 July ............................................................ 1,'lSo 52.8 30 114 June 19-30 ...................................................... 

272 114 740 
ay 1-27.. ..................................................... 13,400 

6,470 
251 40 I, 750 

~ ~ - _ _ _  
................................................................................... ~ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  ~ _ _ _ ~ _ _ _  

1913. 
A ril. .......................................................... 9,. ........................................................... 
June. .......................................................... 
July.. ......................................................... 
August ......................................................... 
September. .................................................... 

2,220 

129 
15 

288 
22 
8 

0 
0 

12 
1 

3 
2 

Total.. ............................................ .......I.. ....... .I.. ...... ..I -___ 

216 
2.10 

12, Boo 
24.5 1,460 

133 

74.7 4,590 
2. 93 
8.32 512 

174 

.......... 19,769 
~- 

Mean for the 6 years, 48,140  acre-feet. 

Recognized water  rights for diversion of tributaries. 

Creek. 1 No. 

Cherry Creek .................... 

7 Whfte Creek.. .................. 6 Frenchman.. ................... 5 Rock Creek ..................... 4 b ear Creek.. .................... 3 Lime Creek.. ................... 2 No .............................. 1 

Martin 
White  Water Creek.. 

Big  Cottonwood ................. 10 
Woody  Island  Coulee.. ......... 11 
DodSon Creek. .................. 12 
Mud Creek.. .................... 13 
Eureka Coulee.. ................ 14 
Savoy Creek.. .................. 15 
Wayne Creek.. ................. 16 
Thirty Mile  Creek and  Foggy.. . 17 

Coal Creek.. 19 
Fifteen Mile Creek.. 18 

North  Fork Milk River.. ....... 20 
West  Fork Milk River.. ........ 21 
Red Rock  Coulee.. ............. 22 
MiIk River in Canada.. 24 
Milk River 23 

Big Sandy. ..................... 25 
Beaver Creek .................... 26 
Bulhook Creek. ................. 27 

Clear  Creek 29 
Hox Elder.. 28 

Black Creek ..................... 30 
Six Mile Coulee.. ............... 31 
Snake.. ......................... 32 
White  Bear.. ................... 33 
Peoples.. ....................... 34 
Alkali Cree'; ..................... 35 
Beaver  and Larb.. .............. 36 
IIay and Buffalo Co ............. 37 
Antelope ........................ 38 
Brazil ........................... 39 
Willow .......................... 40 

........... .......................... 

............ .................... 

...................... ......... 

.................... ...................... 

Total.. 
" 

....................... 
I 

__ 
Prior 
3 x o v  
,1903. 

2a ...... 
4 
6 

l l O &  

25 
E? 

:h 
27 
2 

4% 
54 
29 

109 
5 

...... 

...... 
3 
31 

4 

1 75 
18 
3 

...... 

2 
21 
41  

79 

54 
8 

11 
18 

10 
11 

1 

...... 

~ 

1,010* 

- 
After 

1903. 
Jov. 2, 

7 

51 

sq 
Y 

? 

8 
1 4 1  

12 
0 
3 

1 

23 
4 

...... 

...... 
51 
89 
8 
3 

1341 
...... 

& 
?? 
17 

23 
63 

...... 

P+ 
...... 

1) 
- 2 

560 
- 

&a. 
164 
38 

160 
104 

1,480 
2,340 

220 
650 
63 

790 
190 

168 
120 
50 

203 
135 
230 
6a 

1,390 
45 

665 
375 

1,660 
120 

127 
120 
78 
65 

347 
228 
828 

2, 120 
430 

110 
76 

120 
425 

20.230 

9 

I, 140 

2,540 

70 

I_ 

square 
Per 

mile. 

Acre-feet 
22.0 
22.0 
22.0 
22.0 
25.1 

25.1 
25.1 

25.1 
25.1 

25.1 
25.1 

21.9 
21.9 

21.9 
21.9 

21.9 
21. f 
21. f 
21. c 
39.4 
21. I 
21. I 
19. e 
40.4 
19. B 
19.6 
19. e 
21.9 
21.5 

21. Q 
21.9 

21. Q 
21. Q 

21. s 
21. Y 
25.1 

22. c 
22  a 
22. a 
22. a 

......... 

- 

U n - O f f .  
Total 

h e - f e e t .  
3,600 

3,500 
800 

37,100 
2,300 

58,800 
5,500 

16,300 

4,800 
1,600 

19,800 
3,700 
2.600 
1,100 

3,000 
4,400 

:: z 
1,000 

51,200 
25 ,  
8, ZOO 

13, OOO ........ 
32,500 
2,400 

2,800 
1,400 

?E 
1,400 
7,600 

18,100 
5 ,  aon 

53,200 
9,400 

2,400 
1,700 

10.500 
2, A00 
- 
........ 

- 
eneflcial 
Prior 

US%. 
- 
b e - f e e t .  

300 

500 
800 

13,300 
13,500 
1,200 
3, OOo 

3,200 
900 

5, 100 
300 

6,500 
3,500 

13,100 
600 

1,600 

........ 

........ 

........ 

........ 
2, 
3,700 

500 

21, ooo 
2B.2o.l 

400 
11,ooo 
5,400 

300 
500 

9,500 

6,500 
1. ooo 
2.200 
1,300 
1,300 

........ 

........ 

1,200 ........ - 
........ 
__ 

'robable 
excem 
run-off. - 
lcre-feet. 

3,300 
SM 

!;E 
E% 
4,300 

13.300 
1,600 
3, 

3,400 
16,600 

........ 
1, 100 ........ ........ ......... 

700 
Loo0 

49,600 
22,800 

12,500 
4,580 . 

11,500 

1,m 

......... 

......... 

......... ......... 
1,400 

900 

11,600 
5, CmJ 

51: 000 
8  400 

400 
1 400 

10,400 

......... 

1: 100 

......... 

Nine, thousand in C,anada; .3,500 in United  States. 
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WATER RTGH'PS AND DIVERSIONS ON MAIN STREAM. 

the  larger  canals  the  amount of valid  rights  total 15 second-feet, which is di- 
The  appropriations on the  main  river  have been  considered, and  outside of 

verted by means of pumps,  The  following  larger  canals  take  out of the Milk 
River  and  the  North Fork, and  have  rights  to the amount  shown : 

Second-feet. 
Miscellaneous____-__-----____------_--_-----_--------------------------_- 15 
Fort  Belknap Agency ditch '125 
Fort  Belknap  Canal ________________________________________----------- 130 
Matheson ditch____-________---_____-----_------------_--------------- 28 
Paradise Canal-_-_________-_-_"---------___-_-----------------_------- 19 
Cook Canal_______-______-_______________--_-------_--__-----___-------------- 50 
New Harlen~__-___-____-____-_________________--------_--------------- 75 
Winter Cy: Andersoll_________-______~___--_--------_------_----_-------  12 

454 
The  amount of 125 second-feet or more  was decreed to  the  Fort  Relknap  In- 

dians by the  court  in  the  case  Winters v. United  States (207 U. s., 564). 
The  remaining 314 second-feet of the  lnrger  canals is diverted  in  the  vicinity 

of Chinook, and  the  land covered by these  canals  will become a part of the Milk 

feet combined capacity. 
River  reclamation  project  under  the  two proposed  Chinook canals of 550 second- 

and flows northerly  into Canadtr, m t l  thence  easterly  for 179 miles, when it 
Milk River  rises  in  the  United  States  in  the  Blackfoot  Indian  Reservation 

again  enters  the  United  States. The Geological Survey  states  in  Water  Supply 
Paper No. 326, page 111 : 

"An irrigation compnny in  southern .4lberta, Canada,  has been granted'  an 
appropriation of 500 second-feet of the low-"water flow and 1,200 second-feet of 

constructed,  but no water has been diverted." 
the  high-water flow, and a e:rn:ll of 330 second-feet capacity  has been partially 

This  right is understood io  he valid, m t l  it  is believed that  eventually  but a 
very  small  supply  can  be  expected  from Milk River at  the  international  boun- 
dary,  and  it has been entirely elirninntecl in  this consicleration as a n  available 
water supply. 

Frenchman  Creek,  tributary No. ti, has a total drtlinage  basin of 2,340 square 

Canadian  water  rights on this crrelr amount  to 75 second-feet. This may  be 
miles, the  upper  portion  amounting t o  2,110 square  miles  in  Canada.  The  valid 

materially  increased  in  the  future,  but  it is now taken  at  that  figure  from in- 
formation  found  in  Canatlinn  water-supply  papers. 

In  this investigation 2,332 appropriations,  amounting  to 56,378 second-feet (not 
including  Canada  rights),  have been  considered. Of these, 888 have been  held to 
have  valid rights carrying 2,048 second-feet. The  totnl  appropriations on the 
river  and  its  tributaries  prior  to  and  including November 2, 1903, are  as follows : 

Second-feet. 
Tributary  appropriations _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _  1,020 

Miscellaneous river rights_-__________-____"--___"..___-_---~.---_--_---------- 15 
Fort  Relknap  Indian  ditch ____--______-____--_____________________---- 125 

Reclamation  Service  rights, Nov. 2, 1903 : 
Chinook North  and  South  Canals - - - -____-________________________ 850 
Dotlson North  Canal _-_-_____--_____-_-_____________________----- 200 
Dotlson South  Cmal  (this  canal  supplies Nelson reservoir,  which  has 

a capacity of 133,000 acre-feet;  the  distributing  ditches  from  this 
reservoir  have a capacity of 600 second-feet) ______c_______-_____ 900 

Vandalia  South Canal-___---__-_-__---_---_--------_------------- 300 

Frenchman  Creek Canals-", . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  75 
Canadian  Irrigation Co., direct  irrigation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  500 
Canadian  Irrigation Co., flood flow -_-___________-________________ 1,500 
Appropriations  on  tributaries,  initiated  subsequent  to Nov. 2, 1903, 

in  United States------_-----------_"__---_"-------------_--_--- 580 

- 

In  Canada: 

1 Or more. 
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gauging  stations  on Milk River a t  Malta  and Hinsdale  for the  period 1909 to 
Diagrams  have been prepared showing  the hydrometric conditions at the 

1913, inclusive. Each of these  stations is below the points of diversion of all 
valid  rights,  excepting  the pumpirlg plants of 15 second-feet and  the  Vandalia 
ditch of the Reclamation Service. 

It should  be  understood  that  the run-off at Hinsdale is considered  to  rep- 
resent the whole discharge recorded of the  river  from  the  area  in  Canada  and 

The heavy flood in  September, 1911, washed  out  the  greater  portion of the 
the  United  States,  and does  not inc>lutle the  amount  diverted  at  higher points. 

small  storage  reservoirs  constructed on the tributaries  and  these  were  not 
replaced  in 1912, and  but. a few, if any,  in 1913. The  years 1909 and 1912 were 

years  until  the  heavy  rain  and consequent flood in  September, 1911. The  total 
wet  years  in Milk River  Valley,  and 1910 and 1911 were  exceptionally  dry 

valid  rights  to  and  including November, 2, 1903, on  the  tributary  and  main 
river  in  the  United  States  and  Canada  amount  to 5,170 secontl-feet. The 
feeder  canal  to the Nelson Reservoir is included  in  the 5,170 second-feet, and 
it has a capacity of 900 second-feet. 

CONCLUSIONS. 

1. Above Dodson, the  water  requirements  under  valid  rights  initiated  prior 
to November 2, 1903, on the following-named  creeks  tributary  to Milk River, 
exceed the probable  mean  annual run-off : Muti, Savoy, Wayne,  Thirty Mile, 
Foggy,  Upper  Beaver,  Box  Elder,  Clcnr,  and  Snake.  The  remaining  tribu- 
taries above  Dodson afford a surplus over the  requirements  under  such  prior 
rights at flood periods  for a few days only. 

of flood waters  and it is probable  that  the  construction of small  reservoirs 
2. Between Dodson and  Hinstlnle  Beaver  and lloclr Creeks afford a surplus 

with rights to flood waters  on  thcse  streams could be allowed. Rights  for  such 

November 2, 1903, amouIlting  to 15 second-feet  on  Rock Creek  antl 6 second- 
reservoirs would be  junior  to  existing  valid  rights  initiated  subsequent to 

feet on Beaver  Creek  and  would  relate only to flood waters  occurring  when "" .~ - 
Milk River  is  also  in flood. 

in  excess of valid rights initiated  prior  to November 2, 1903. 
Other  tributaries  between Dodson antl  Hinsdale  afford only short ilood flows 

gation  season,  but  afford a small  amount of flood run-off in  excess of present 
3. Below Hinsdale the tributaries  are  dry  during the greater  part of the irri- 

beneficial use. I t  is possible that  small  reservoirs could be  utilized  to  ad- 
vantage on some of these  streams. 

subsequent to November 2, 1903, do not  afford a reliable source of water  supply 
4. Rights  for  direct  diversion  from  the  tributaries of Milk River  initiated 

for irrigation.  Such  rights, if accompanied by opportunity  for  storage  from 
floods, in the amount of one  acre-foot of watcr  per  acre of land  to be reclaimed, 
may  in some cases  afford a fairly  reliable  water supply. All such  cases  should 
be  scrutinized  with  care  to  detcwnine  whether sufficient excess flood water  to 
warrant  favorable  consideration is available. 

5. On Milk River,  from Goldstone to  Vandalia,  there is not sufficient water 
during  the  irrigation  season  to  supply the Reclamation  Service  canals after 
satisfying  valid  rights  initiated  prior  to November 2, 1903. 

irrigation use. Below Dodson there is an  apparent surplus of flood waters  in 
Above Dodson there is no surplus flood water  that can be made  available for 

most  years,  but it is believed that it would  be  impracticable,  in  view of the 
known  condition of run-off, to  conserve  such  water for irrigation  in  the Milk 
River  Basin. 

Mr. MACINNEB. Not  having  had an opportunity of reading over 
our  memorandum (Exhibit P) ,  but in connection with  what  you 

lave  stated  just  now,  you  spoke  in connection with  the  Milk  kiver 
as  to  irrigation  rights  and  irrigable  lands;  the  two  things are differ- 
ent. 

Mr. NEWELL. Of course the  irrigated  lands are limited by  the  water 
which  may be available from these  rights.  The  irrigable  lands,  lands 
which  may be irrigated if there is water  enough, are indefinite. 

I 
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Mr. MACINNEB. But you  spoke of the  two  together.  As  to  irriga- 
tion  rights,  that  is  the  right  to  take  water,  that is a matter  which can 
be discovered  by an  investigation of the record or by an examinat.ion 
of the  lands  to find out  where these rights could be put  to beneficial 
USe. 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr. MACINNEB. And I understand  that  your  Reclamation  Service, 

although  not  directly  interested,  as  you  say,  has  investigated  that 
situation. 

Mr. NEWELL. We  have  endeavored  to, yes. 
Mr. MACINNEB. And  the  result of that  has been given  to  the com- 

mission. 
Mr. NEWELL. I n  this condensed  form,  which  is filed as Exhibit P, 

which  relates  to  the 10 volumes  which  are at their disposal. 
Mr. MACIN,NES. And I understood  in  that connection, that  while 

there  are  a  large  number of irrigation  rights  recorded,  that  the 
amount  put  to  practical  use or beneficial  use  does not  in  any  way 
correspond to  that. 

Mr. NEWELL. That  is correct. 
Mr. MACINNES. Then  as  to  irrigable  lands, or lands  which  can be 

irrigated,  while  there  may be a  certain  doubt  as  to  the  percentage of 
the  area  which  can  be  commanded,  still  an  estimate  can be made,  can 
it not?  

Mr. NEWELL.  Yes ; an  estimate  can be made. 
Mr. MACINNEY. And so far as  the  Milk  River  Valley  is  concerned, 

you have  made that  estimate  in  the  reports of your  Reclamation 
Service? 

Mr. NEWELL.  We  have  endeavored to. 
Mr. MACINNER. And  you  have  put  that  irrigable  area a,t 220,000 

acres. 
Mr. NEWELL. That is the  portion  the  Reclamation Service  proposes 

to  deal  with. 
Mr. MACINKES. And  that  irrigable  area  can, I presume, be shown 

on  a  map for the use of the commission in  the same  way as has been 
done on the  Canadian side. 

Mr. NEWELL. We  have  submitted  that  map,  showing  the  lands we 
propose  to  irrigate;  that  is  one of the  exhibits. 

Mr. MACINNEB. You  can  show  the  irrigable  area  in  that  district. 
Mr. NEWELL. That shows the 220,000 acres. 
Mr. MACINNEB. As to anything  outside of your  estimate,  could you 

not shorn to  the  commission  what is called technically  the posslbIe 
commanding  area  and  the  roportion of that which  may be irrigated. 

Mr. NEWELL. I doubt i P we have  information at the  present  time 
to  do  it.  We confined our work to  the  lands we are  reasonably  sure 
of reaching,  but  outside of that it is  speculative  as  to  what  may be 
done. 

Mr. MACINNEB. At  the same  time  you  have  further  gone  over  all 
of that  land  and  have 10 volumes  here as a  result of your investi- 
gation. 

Mr. NEWELL. What  lands  do you refer  to? 
Mr. MACINNES. You have 10 volumes that  have been carefully ex- 

amined and is it not possible to show to  the commission where  these 
lands  are ? 
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Mr. NEWELL. I should  think so, perhaps. 
Mr. BIEN. A good  deal of that  land  is  not  surreyed,  and it would 

be almost  impossible  to  lo(-ate i t  on a map. I n  a great  many cases 
the  surveys  show  only  the  lands,  but  not  their  relation to  the publlc 
lands  surreyed. The, area is so small in each  inclividml case, one 
or two  thousand  acres,  and  sometimes  only 20 or 30 acres, that  it 
would be a mere  dot  on  the  map. 

Mr. MACIXXES. Still, you have  investigated  the  situation thora 
oughly Z 

Mr. B I E N .  Well,  with  snficient  thoroughness to  gain these  broad 
impressions. As to  whether a map conld  be prepared we have  not 
yet  thought it worth  the  labor, 1)nt something of the  kind  could be 
prepareti, T suppose. 

Mr. MACTNNRS. And Mr. C'onner h w  given 11s a  schedule of the 
amount of water  which  is  being  put to beneficial use outside of your 
area. 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes; so far  as  he could ascertain it. 
Mr.  MACINNEB. So that  the commission has on record  your  estimate 

as to the  land  that cordd be irrigated  under your system,  and also 
these 10 volumes  which  have been referred to. 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes. 
Mr. MACINNER. And  which show what is being done. 
Mr. NEWRIA.  Yes. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  You  spoke,  Mr. Newell, as to  the commission being 

guided  in  dealing  with  the  matter  simply on present  conditions;  how 
would it be possible in  that view to make  any  large  development 
in a country  where  there was that possibility of uncertainty? 

Mr. NEWELL. The largest  element of uncertainty is the  natural 
condition.  There is not, as I see it, very  much  future  development 
that can  be  very  safely  entered into  for a number of years, until we 
know  more  about the  extent of the  present  development. I do  not 
view it   that  yon can  have  any  great  degree of certainty,  even if the 
conlmission shonlcl endeavor to  decide some of these questions, be- 
cause their decision,  based  on the  present  knowledge,  might  not fit 
the  conditions  as  developed  by  the  future  measurements  made from 
time  to  time. 

Mr. MACINNES. Yes;  hut  anything  outside of the  area.commanded 
by your  service is small  and  scattered, is it not? 

Mr. NEWELL. Yes;  but  in  the  aggregate  quite  large. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  The  situation  is  not  the  same  as  demonstrated  on 

the  Canadian side. 
Mr. NEWELL. No; your  conditions  are, I should  say,  quite  different. 

On  the St. Mary  River  you could make a  reasonable  certainty based 
on  the  steady flow  of the  river  in  the  past,  but  on  the  other  streams 
any  large  developments  are  quite  problematic. 
Mr. MACINNES.  And  you  can see by  the  map  showing  the  irrigable 

areas  in  Canada  that  there  are possibilities there of irrigation devel- 
opment  on a lar e scale. 

Mr. NEWELL. %here  are  possibilities, yes. 
Mr. MACINNES.  How  could it be  expected that  capital could be 

obtained for  this development  if the  right was left  unsettled. 
Mr. NEWELL. I do  not see how  capital  could  be  obtained  under  any 

of these  conditions. I suppose  they  would go on  the  idea  that  no 
11 398-1 5-14 



210 ST. MARY AND M I I X  RIVERS. 

great  irrigation  development will take place for a  great  many  years 
in  any of the  arid regions. 

Mr. MACINNES.  But  without  the  right  to  take  water, even if it 
is uncertain, it is obviously  impossible to  obtain financial support? 

Mr. NEWELL.  Yes;  and I doubt  very  much  whether  the  action of 
the commission  would  strengthen  the  ability  to  obtain  capital. 

Mr. MACINNES. Would not  the  situation be improved  by  removing 
the  uncertainty as to  water  and  leaving  the  only  uncertainty  as  to 
le a1 conditions? 

%r. NEWELL. The  natural  conditions will overshadow the  legal 
conditions,  as  in  the case of the  Supreme  Court  allotting 125 second- 
feet  to  an  Indian reserve,  where there  was  not  that  much  amount of 
water. That would  not  reduce  the  great  uncertainty  as t o  where 
they  would  get  the  water. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  Rut still as  to  natural  conditions we have a pretty 
good  guide  from  the  record of past years. 

Mr. NEWELL. That is a point  that I would  seriously question. 
The  records of past  years show  only what  happened  in  past  years, 
and it is only  a  very  doubtful  inference  that  they  will  show  what 
will  happen  next  year or the  year  after. 

Mr. TAWNEY. If the  uncertainty  with  regard  to  the  division of 
this  water  might  retard,  or  is  retarding,  irrigation  developments  in 
either  country,  can you explain  why those interested  have  never 
brought  the  matter  to  the  attention of the commission at  all?  This 
treaty  was  negotiated some years  ago,  and since the  cpmmission  was 
created  there  never was a  request that  the  eommmlon  should act. 
This  action  was  taken  on  the  motion of the commission  itself. If 
this  uncertainty  is  retarding  development  in  either  country,  those 
who  are  interested  in  the  development  have  not  gone to  the  trouble 
of having  that  uncertainty  removed  by  having  the  commission pro- 
ceed under  the  treaty  for  the  measurement  and  apportionment of 
these  waters. 

Mr. MACINNES. The matter is now before the  commission,  and 
you are  going  to  deal  with it, and  if  your decision and  your  dealing 
with  the  matter  throws it back into a state of uncertainty  then  the 
position of the  Canadian  interests  would be jeopardized. 

.WTER RECESR. 

THURSDAY, MAY 27, 1915. 
The commission  reconvened at  the  expiration of the recess, all  the 

members  being  present. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I understand  that  the  representatives of the  two 

Governments  desire  to  put in a  little  more  testimony. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  When  the  commission arose at  the noon  hour, 

Mr. Chairman, Mr. Newell  had put  in  Exhibit P. That  is nom 
being  examined  by  our engineers. I do  not know whether  there  will 
be any  questions  to  be  asked on that,  but we will let  you  know as 
early i s  possible. 

The onlv  other  matter  that I wish to  mention  is  this:  That Mr. 
Newell in"his  statement  which  he  read  made  reference  to  what  he 
thought  was  the  understanding of Canada  with  regard to getting 
storage  before  the  treaty  was  made. H e  also made  a  similar  state- 
ment in  his  opening  remarks,  which you may  remember,  as to  what 
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he  thought  was  being covered  by the  treaty,  to which, of course, at  
the  time I at once  took  objection, because anything  that is in  any 
man’s  mind  is  not  evidence  before  any  court or any commission. 

My  learned  friend  was  not  there,  but I spoke to  Mr. Newell and 
suggested  that  rather  than h;tve appear upon your record  a  state- 
ment  by  him of what  he  thought and an objection  on  our  side, that  
is to  say,  that  granted  he  thought  that,  we  in  Canada  all  thought 
the opposite, that  all of that  should be stricken out, because it is 
not  proper  eridence  before  any  tribunal,  and Mr. Newell entirely 
agreed  with me. 

Mr. SANDS. I think  there  might be an objection. Mr. MacInnes’s 
thought  may  be  different  from  the  thought of Mr. Newell regarding 
this  treaty before it was enacted. His thought as to  what  the  under- 
standing was would be probably  proper  in  the  record. 

Mr. TAWNEY. The  statement of Mr.  MacInnes is to  the effect that  
he  has  had a conversation  with  Mr. Newell respecting  certain  mat- 
ters mentioned during  this  morning’s session which  the  two  gentle- 
men  have  agreed  should be eliminated  from  the  record. As I un- 
derstand it, it is between them  to  say  what  should or should  not  be 
stricken  out. 

Mr. WYVELL. From Mr. Newell’s testimony,  certainly. 
Mr. GLENN. It is not  what  they  think is the  construction of the 

treaty ; it is what we think. 
Mr, NEWELL. I am  perfectly  willing  to  have  stricken  out  all  ref- 

erence to  what I thought  at  the time. I endeavored  not t o  commit 
either  side,  but  simply  to  state  what  were  my  impressions,  and, if 
there is any  objection  to it, I see no  reason  why it should  not be 
stricken  out, because the  papers  introduced cover  very clearly  what 
we had  in  mind,  and  my  intention  in  stating  that  was  merely  to 
prove  those  papers. 

Mr. SANDS. Mr. Newell  was the  man  who was delegated to  draw 
this  treaty. 

Mr. TAWNEY. We  are  not  striking  out  what Mr. Newell said in 
his  opening  statement,  but  only  the  statement  that  he  made  here 
with  reference to  what  he knew at  the  time or prior to  the  time O P  
making  this  treaty.  The  impressions or thoughts  that  he  may  have 
had  individually is all  that I understand  will be stricken  out. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. It does not  make  any  difference, because it could 
not influence the  construction of the  treaty. 

Mr. MACINNEY. It forms a part of the  record,  and it seems  em- 
barrassing  in  the  future to hnre  it  there. Obviously it ought  not  to 
be there. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Is  there  any  private or corporate  interest  on  either 
side of the  line  that  desires to  present  any  facts? 

Mr. SANDS. I mould like to present some facts  in  behalf of the 
eople of the lower  Milk  River  Valley. I would  like first to  recall br. Peters  for some information  that  he  was  to  give us. 

STATEMENT OF F. H. PETERS,  COMMISSIONER OF IRRIGATION, 
CALGARY-Continued, 

Mr. SANDS. Mr. Peters, I asked you to  tell  us  what  part of the 
watershed of the St. Mary could be  irrigated from the A. R. & I. 
Canal. 
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Mr. PETERS. Approximately 27,000 acres. 
Mr. SANDS. Is any  part of that now irrigated? 
Mr. PETERS. Yes;  a  small  part of it. 
Mr. SANDS. About how much? 
Mr. PETERS. Perhaps 2,000 acres. 
Mr. SANDS. Now, what  part o f  the watershed of the  Milk  River 

Mr. Pmmts. Twenty-two tholwxnd  acres, approximately. 
Mr. SANDS. Has any  portion o f  that been irrigated? 
Mr. Pmms. No. 

Valley  can be irrigated  from  the  Milk  River  Canal? 

STATEMENT OF W. B. SANDS, OF CHINOOK,  MONT.,  REPRESENT- 
ING  THE  WATER  USERS OF THE MILK RIVER VALLEY IN 
MONTANA. 

Mr. SANDS. My  name  is W. U. Sands. I represent  the  water  users 
of the Milk Iiiver  Valley,  in’  Montana. I am  an  attorney  and  have 
resided in  the  Milk River Valley fo r  the past 25 years  and at Chinook 
for the. past 20 years.  Before that I resided  most of the  time  at  Har- 
lem,  where I condlletetl a store. For two years of that  time I was in 
the  University of Minnesota  and f o ~ r  months  in D d u t h ;  otherwise 
I have been at  Dululh 311 the time.  While in  the  university I took  a 
short coltrse in  engineering, tts well as a  law  course  later. 

I am  financially  interested in  all of the  canals  that  are  taking  the 
water  out of Milk  Biver,  that  is,  the Fort Belknap,  the  Paradise,  and 
the  Harlem  Canals. I am also interested  in  and  own  land  under  the 
Havre  Irrigation Co.’s Canal,  which  takes  water  from  Beaver  Creek 
south  from  Havre ; in  the Cook Irrigation Co. Canal,  which  takes 
water  from  Battle  Creek;  in  a  rivate  canal  taking  water  from 
Snake  Creek,  which is a stream  &wing  in  from  the  south;  and  in 
the  Rock  Creek  Canal,  which  is  near  Hinsdale. 

I mention  this  to  show  that I am,  or at least. ought  to be, con- 
versant with  the  situation  along  almost  the  entire  valley of the  Milk 
River, a s  Havre ie situated at   the extareme  west and  Hinsdale  at 
almost  the  extreme  east  end. I should  also  say  that I am interested 
in  land owned  by  a corporation a t  Woodbridge,  near  Bowdoin  Lake, 
which  will be irrigated  from  the  reclamation  project.  During the 
past  10  years I have  resided  on  my  ranch  adjoining  the  town site of 
Chinook,  the house on which  is  situated  within a few  feet of the 
bank of Lodge  Creek,  or,  as we call it,  West  Fork, so that I have 
been conversant  with  its flow. I have  taken a personal  interest  in 
irrigation,  and,  situated as I am a t  my home,  where I can  observe 
the  irrigation of the  lands  on  my  ranch, I perhaps  have  an  uncom- 
mon  amount of knowledge for  an  attorney of the  actual  irrigation of 
land.  Furthermore, it is a sort of recreation  for me to  shoulder  a 
shovel and  go  out  after office hours  and  assist  in  or  direct  irrigation. 
So I may  say  that I have some  knowledge of the  duty of water. 

I was  United  States commissioner for  12  years  and as such  was 
very  familiar  with  the  conduct  and  practice of the  land office in  re- 
gard  to  entries  and final proof. As an  attorney I have  also pre- 
pared many-I mag  say  quite  a large percentage-of the  water-rlght 
filings in  the  Milk  River valley. I have  also been interested  in  nearly 
all of the  legal  controversies  respecting  the  water rights there. For- 
tunately, we have  not  had  very  many. I have also been very closely 
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identified  with  the  irrigation  work  in  the  valley. I n  'the  very early 
history of the  irrigation congresses I attended  several of them  and 
hare been delegated to go to  Washington  on  four occasions to  pre- 
sent  matters  concerning irrigation and  land  nlatters  to  the  depart- 
ment, and to the  President. At at  least one of those  enterprises I took 
up  this question of this  treaty  and discussed the  matter  very  fnlly 
with the, ttepaltments  and  the  President. At  another  time I was 
there ant1 took up  t,he matter very thorougldv  with  the  President as - 
to  the  all-American  canal. I pres~~rne onr conference  had  mnch to 
do  with  the  setting  aside of :I million  dollars for the  purpose of con- 
strllct,ing  an  all-American  irrig:ttion cnnnl. l i t  that  time T believe 
the C:ln:tdinns hat1 constructed, 0 1 '  were thout  to  construct,  the  Cana- 
dian canal ont of Milk  River. I wonltl  say 1)artly in  reply to  the 
ge~ltlen~en  wl~o reprekented the Canadian I'arific that while he seemed 
1-0 tl~inlr it was impossible for  11s to constnlct  thc  all-American (:anal, 
I believe that if i t  had been necessary to do so that  President Roose- 
vclt wonltl have insisted npon  the  c~onstrr~ctjon of sllch n canal. H e  
a t  least  ytated to me that he wo111(1, and I aln-xys had great confidence 
in what  hc said, Rlthough there are ~wople who sometimes  question 
his veracity. 

At  all events, T may say in this c-onnec*tion that I have been over 
the  territory  south of the  Swectg~-ass  Hills!  and I believe it  is  thor- 
oughly  feasible to h d d  an a1l-Ame1.ican c.nnrll if i t  should be neces- 
sary to do so. It strikes me. however, that  it  wo111cl be folly  on  the 
par t  of the  people of Canada  or  the people of the  United  States  to 
undertake  any such thing. It would cost us a great deal of money to 
do so, and  it wo111d serve no  useful purpose, except that  it  would be 
able to  irrigate a yery l a ~ g e  area of land  south of the Smeetgrass 
Hills,  and  very  desirable  land, too. Rut :k t  the  present  time it is 
not  desirahle  to  do so if me can  acquire R right  to  take  it  through 
Canada,  and  that w n s  the  purpose of this  treaty, as w e  understood it.. 

I n  the past 25 years I haL:.e been over the  greater  part of, or nearly 
all of, the territory comprising  the Milk River Basin in the TJnited 
States. I h a w  also been in Canada, to the  Milk  River  Canal  and 
as  far as Lethbridge,  along  the  lines of the canal. I was there  at . one time  with  Mr. S Z I V : ~ , ~ ,  Mr.  Magratb,  and  Mr.  Grmslcy.  We 
happened  to be there  at the same time  they  were,  and  went on to 
Canada.  At  that  time  the  treaty, I believe, was nnder  consideration. 
I hare nlso been over verV many of the tributaries,  and  know con- 
siderable about  the  irrigation of the*slnall  ditches  throughout  this 
entire  territory. I wonld s:ly th:rt i t  ww111cl be impossible to  deter- 
mine  what is the f - l o w  of these  streams, because  these streams  rise 
very snddenly  and  fall  very  suddenly.  Very  many of them  are  only 
dry coulees. The water flows for only a few hours, so it wonld  be 
practically  impossible  to  tlctermine  what  the flow is. Tllis is one 
reason w l ~ y  we supposetl that n o  account  whatever w o 1 1 1 d  be taken 
of the flow of water  in :my o f  the  tributary  streams  in  the  Milk  River 
that  did  not flow throilgh  Canada.  This mould he, :is T said, so 
practically  impossible  thnt we never conceived that  there c-o~ld be 
any Idea of attempting to mens~~re  the st~*eams in  the TTnitetl States 
or determine  what  their flow was. It has lwcn snggested that you 
could  measure  the  streams 2.t their nlouths, h i t  to  determine  what 
their flow is yon mo111d have to Imon- what is taken  out above, for  in 
time  the  tributary  streams co111cl take  all  the  water  that flows in. 
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Therefore,  if 'the interpretation of the  treaty  as contended for by 
my  Canadian  friend  should be  accepted, it would  require  the  deter- 
mination of the  quantity of water  that flows through  these  small 
tributary  ditches,  hundreds of them. It would  be  impossible. 

As I said  before, I was  thoroughly  familiar  with  the  correspond- 
ence. As the  secretary of the  Upper  Milk  River  Water  Users' Asso- 
ciation I was in  touch  with  the  Reclamation  Service a t  all  times. I 
was  secretary of that association  from  the  time it was  organized  in 
1895 or 1896 until  two  years ago. 

Mr. TAWNEY. You say you have  lived  out  there  for  twenty-odd 
years 1 

Mr. SANDS. Twenty-five years. 
Mr. TAWNEY. And  that you arc familiar  with  the  situation  in  the 

valley of the  Milk  River  and  the  valley of St. Mary  River on both 
sides of the  line? 

Mr. SANDS. I am  not  familiar  with  the  valley of the St. Mary 
River. 

Mr. TAWNEY. During  that  time was  there  any  controversy between 
the people of Canada  and  the  United  States  in  respect to the use  of 
these  waters? 

Mr. SANDS. I would  say there was. 
Mr. TAWNEY. What  was  the  nature of the controversy  and  what 

was  the  cause of it? 
Mr. SANDS. We learned  that  a  canal  was  being  taken out of the 

Milk  River  near  the  crossing of what we call  the  narrow  gauge,  the 
Lethbridge  line.  We  sent n man up there  to  make  an  investigation, 
and  upon  his  return  he  told us of this canal. 

Mr. TAWNEY. When  was  that? 
Mr. SANDS. That was  in 1903 or 1904. Upon  learning of that we 

made  representations  to  the  State  Department. I think I wrote  a 
letter  to  the  Indian  agent  at  Port  Belknap to come and meet us. 

Mr. TAWNEY. What  amount of water  was  supposed to  have been 
diverted  by  that  canal ? 

Mr. SANDS. I was  there, I think,  in 1905, perhaps as late  as 1906, 
and  at  that  time  the  canal  had never  delivered any  water,  as I then 
understood it, across the  divide;  perhaps  just  enough  to  show  that 
the  ditch would  run. 

Mr. TAWNEY. So there was  practically  no  diversion at  a11 from 
Milk  River '2 

Mr. SANDS. There  had been AO diversion. 
Mr. TAWNEY. U p  to that  time  what  amount of water  was  being 

diverted  from  the  United  States  side of the  line? 
Mr. SANDS. We were irrigating  about 27,000 acres in  the  vicinity of 

Chinook  and  Harlem  from  the  waters of the  Milk  River.  The  Indian 
Canal  was  diverting  something  like 50 or 60 cubic feet  per second 
and  covering  perhaps some 8,000 acres. 

Mr. TAWNEY. So far  as  the  waters of the  Milk  River were  con- 
cerned,  there  was  practically  no  controversy between the people of 
Canada  and  the  people of the  United  States  prior  to  the  making of 
this  treaty ? 

Mr. SANDS. Not  that I know  of. 
Mr. TAWNEY. If there  was  any  controversy  prior  to  that  time, it 

was  with  respect to  the  diversion  and use of the  water of the St. Mary 
River  and  not of the  Milk  River! 
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Mr. SANDS. Pes, sir. There  was a controversy  which you might 
say did not reach us. We took  no  part  in it, but we knew of the 
controversy  respecting  the St. Mary. 

Mr. TAWNEY. But, so f a r  as the  Milk  River  was concerned, there 
was  no  controversy  between the people of the  IJnited  States  and  the 
people of Canada  prior  to  the  making of this  treaty? 

Mr. SANDS. No, sir. 
Mr. WYVELL. Well, 1904 was  spoken  of,  you h o w ,  by Mr. 

Dennis- 
Mr. TAWXEY (interposing). Mr. Sands  said  they h::tl informtion 

that  there was a ditch or a diversion  canal  on  the Milk Itirer,  and 
on  investigation in  1906 it was found  that  there was practically no 
water  being  diverted.  Then I asked  him  whether tllet-c.: wits any 
controversy  with  respect  to  the  waters of the  Milk I6iver, m d  he 
answered, '( No." 

Mr. SAXDS. I will snpplement that by saying  that  after  the  exami- 
nation  made  by  Mr.  Evart  and myself in 1905 we  untlerstood  from 
an  examination of the  ditch  that it was  impracticable t c  carry water 
through  that  ditch, because of the  fact  that  it  passes along  gravel 
beds, and  from my knowledge of ditch  construction I felt  that it would 
not  carry  water  without a very  large  expenditlire of  mclney in  addi- 
tion to what  had  already been expended, and while we knew it 
would be impossible to  take  out  i'hat  water, we did not think it was 
likely that  they would  do so. 

Mr. TAWNEP. My only purpose  in  asking  these questjjons  was with 
a view to locating,  if possible, the  fact, first, of any contlwversy be- 
tween the people of the  two  countries  and,  secondly, tlte  cause of 
such  controversy. I wanted to find out  whether  the wnlers diverted 
from  the  Milk  River  prior to the  making of this  treaty v:we a source 
of controversy  between the people of the  two  countries or whether 
it was confined to  the  maters of the St. Mary. 

Mr. SANDS. We  understood  that it was  almost  wholly  confined to 
the  waters of the St. Mary  River. We understood  that  the  purpose 
of this  treaty  was t,o divide  the St. Mary  water. 

Mr. MACINNES. Excuse me. Is it, of any  advantage to have  this 
on  the record ? Certain  things  are  understood. 

Mr. TAWNEY. The  understJanding as to  what  the  p~~rpose of the 
treaty is is not  material  or  competcnt. It is rather a, matter  for 
argument. 

Mr. SANDS. Without  wishing to argue  the  matter, I would  like 
to  say  that I think  the  contract  was  lnade for us, and  our  under- 
standing of the  terms of the  treaty  ought  to be an  important part 
in the  consideration of this question. 

Mr. MIONAULT. If there was no  controversy, how could there be 
a contract  made  for you! You said  that  there was no  controversy 
on  the  subject. 

Mr. SANDS. The  controversy w : ~  as to the St. Mary  waters and the 
bringing of it through  the  canal.  The  understanding of the people 
in   the Milk  River  Valley  before  the  treaty was enacted  and  up  to 
within a very  few  months  was  that  the  treaty  related  only  to  such 
waters as flow across the  international  boundary, and it came with 
great  surprise  that  the  Canadians  expected to  include in a division 
any  portion of the  waters  which  arise in the TJnited States and do 
not flow across the line. 
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it.  There  would be times  when  there  would be shortage;  there  would 
he now. 

The  Frenchman is used  very largely  by  the  Canadians; we  use it 
very  little;  Battle  Creek is used very  largely  by  the  Canadians,  and 
we  use it very  little,  except  upon  the  land  in  the  lower  end of the 
stream,  which  can be reached from  the St. Marys  Canal  system.  On 
the  other  hand,  Lodge  Creek, as it is called  now, is used quite  ex- 
tensively  by the  Americans,  while  not  nearly  as  good rz stream,  the 
Canadians  have no ditches  there of any consequence, only  one 
small one. 

It would be proper  to  let  the  Americans  haye  that  and  to  dis- 
courage, as far  as possible, the  building of canals  upon that  stream 
by Clanndians. The  water, of course,  from the St. Mary could  be 
held  back in cases where  it floods ; in  the  Milk  River  Valley it could 
be turned  over, if the  Canadians  wanted  that  in  their  canals,  through 
the  Alberta  Railway & Irrigation Co. canal. The mater,  as I regard 
it, that flows through  the  Canadian  territory  there,  if we would turn 
it in, I do  not  think  there  would be any  controversy  over it. So that 
by the  establishment of one station  that is for  the  daily use along 
the  railway  there,  perhaps,  would be  sufficient for  present  purposes. 
You would want a telephone  system  along  the whole  line, so that 
you could  keep in  touch  with  the  stations at   the east  crossing  and a t  
‘the west  crossing. But  for  the  present  purpose,  there  being  no tele- 
phone  line  to  the  east  crossing  within 25 or 30 miles and  there  being 
no  telephones  to  the west  crossing  within  possil)ly  the  same  distance, 
or even farther? I ~voulcl suggest  that if n gauging  station be put  at 
the  crossing of the  railway  for  temporary  purposes you  would  have 
telegraphic  communication  through  it. 

Mr. TAWNEY. How far would that be from  the  boundary? 
Mr. SANDS. Eight  or  ten  miles;  but it would be about  the  middle of 

the place,  where the  stream crosses from  the west to  the east. As 
was suggested by Mr. Newell, it seems to me it  would  serve  no  nseful 
purpose for  this coinmission to tie the  hands of these  two  men at  
the  present  time.  The  two  men  on  the  ground  can  determine how 
that  water can  he  divided far  better  than  any  six men sitting here, 
who  have  no  experience  in  iyrigation and who  are  not  familiar  with 
the  physical  conditions. 

Mr. Tan.n.m. I f  these  two  men  w1*e  to  report  to  the commission 
and  the commission  were to adopt  their  report  and  make  the  appor- 
tionment as they  recommended, would there be any  objection to  that? 

Mr. SANDS. No, sir. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Under  the  treaty  no  two  men  can  decide it. It is 

the commission who  have  power to make  the  apportionment. If  
two men: working  under  the  direction of the commission, made a 
recommendation to the commission, anti the recommendation  was 
adopted by the commission and  the commission gave  them  instruc- 
tions to go out  and  make  the  apportionment  as directed, that would 
be carrying  out  your  idea of having  two  practical  men  in  charge. 

Mr. SANDS. Only,  the  difference  would be that  they would report 
what  they  had  done  instead of what  they  were  going  to do. This 
has to be done  every  day. 

Mr. TAWNET. That statement  has been made  uite  frequently,  and 
I may be more  obtuse than  the  rest of you,  but s: do not  understand 
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the necessity for  these  changes  from  day  to  day  in  the  division of 
these  waters. 

Mr. SANDS. I can  illustrate. For  instance,  on the  14th of this 
month  the  water  in  the  Battle  Creek  was  very  short;  there  was  not 
enough  there ; nobody had  all  he  wanted.  On  that  day  there  was  a 
heavy  rain,  and  there  was  then  plenty  and  more  than  plenty  for 
everybody  upon  that  fork.  On  the  other  hand,  the  Milk  River  water . 
did not come down, or, a t  all  events,  there  was  not a large quantity 
in  Milk  'River,  which  was  ilso  nearly  dry.  There  are  canals  above 
which  would  take  naturally  from  the  Milk  River.  The  canals below 
the  mouth of North  Fork could  take  all of their  water  from  the 
supply  that came from  the  North Fork, which  was  more  than  the 
people of the  North  Fork could  possibly use, so that  the  North  Fork 
supplied  the  canals below, and  the  Belknap  Canal  would  have  all 
the  Milk  River  water. A few  days  after  that,  perhaps,  the  Milk 
River  would be high  and  the  North  Pork low, and we could see how 
the people  on the  North  Fork could  take the water  and  the  Milk 
River  people  would  get  their  supply  from  the  Milk  River  water. 
Every  day  there  would need to be  a  change,  and  if  you  wait  for  the 
commission to see what  should  be  done  you  might  as  well  have  no 
treaty  and  no commission. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I do  not  think  such a thing  is  contemplated  either  by 
the  treaty or by the commission. 

Mr. POWELL. We  could  not move out  to  Montana  and  stay  there  all 
the time. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Whoever  the  men  may be who are  directed  by  the 
commission, of course, they  would be given  discretion  by  the com- 
mission to  adjust these  matters  from  day  to  day  as  they  may arise, 
but  they  would  have  to be under  joint  direction of the commissiqn. 
The people living on  these  waters  do  not need to  apprehend  any dlf- 
ficulty  about the commission making  any fixed or fast  rule  with 
regard  to  the  division of water  that would  not be sufficiently elastic 
to  meet any  condition  that  may  arise from day  to  day. 

Mr. MACINNEB. 1 would  call  attention to the  fact  that  the tele- 
phones  and  telegraphs  are  shown  on  the  gauging  stations  map  which 
we put  in. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Proceed,  Mr.  Sands. 
Mr. SANDS. As I said  before, for  the  present a t  least, 1 do  not be- 

lieve  there need  be, in most  seasons and  nearly  every season, any 
controversy  over  the  water;  no  great  controversy,  anyway.  My 
knowledge of irrigation  is  that  if  land is irrigated  early  in  the sea- 
son, when we nearly  always  have  mater  in  the  Milk  River  Valley 
from the running off of snow, fo! the irrigation of grain crops, and 
then  save  the  later  water  for  the  irrigation of alfalfa fields, and use 
a little intelligence in  that  way, we need not suffer. As development 
increases and  more  land  is  brought  in,  greater  care  will  have  to be 
used in  the  distribution of the  water,  but  at  present it does  not seem 
to me that  there  should be very  much  trouble  if  people  will  only try 
to  be fair. 

Mr. POWELL. tJust  in  line  with  what you are  saying,  Senator  Gard- 
ner  and I were up there. We  heard  the  statement  made  that  the 
farmers  were  very  backward,,or  rather  that  they  delayed  as  long  as 
possible, trusting  to  the  rain, from incurring  the  expense of making 
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drafts  upon  the system, tlnd in  this way  they  injured  the crops, 
whereas if they  had  applied  in  the  early  stage  and  got  water the 
safety of the  crops would be assured. Is that  in  line  with  what  you 
are speaking of2 

Mr. SANDS. That is possible; it is  true  to a certain  extent. I think 
that  greater  care  should be  used in  irrigation,  and  people could work 
more  land  with  the  same  umonnt of water  if  they  applied  more  care 
to it. I think  that is probably  true on both  sides of the line. I n  
regard  to  the law, Mr.  Kelly  made  a  statement,  all of which I did 
not  hear,  and Mr. Gnnn  made  a  statement,  also,  and I hesitate  very 
much  to  differ from them 011 t,he cps t ion  of law  which  they sub- 
mitted,  but,  at  least, I can  give  my  views of it. 

I investigated  the  question  thoroughly of riparian  rights  and  hare 
made an exhaustive  treatise, of it a fern years  ago, m d  I would say 
that  the  doctrine of riparian  rights does exist  in  that  State  according 
to  the  supreme  court of Montana decision. True,  it is in a modified 
form, modified to  this  estent : The  riparim ownel*ship in common 
law  belongs l o  the owner w l m  owns  land  along  the course of the 
stream.  The  supreme  court of 01113  State  said  that  the  riparian owner 
is one mho lives in the valley, and  that  water  for  irrigation  may  not 
be taken  out of the ~:11Iev so long as that valley  hncl is requiring 
irrigation. I n  other \vortls, the  valley  lands  are  the  riparian owner's 
nnd are entitled to the first right. I do not see how that question 
could  arise here-I do  not Imo1v why it was introduced here-but 
that is, :IS I understand  it,  the h w ,  and I will  furnish you with  the 
proof  if  you  require it on that point. 

Mr. POWELL. I will trike the  illustration of a man  having 100 acres 
fronting on the I-iver and running bnck to  the  hills, nnd the  hill  land 
would  be  considered  riparian  land  by  yonr  courts. 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir.. 
Mr. POWET,L. And i n  common law, i f  he sold off the  front 100 feet, 

Mr. Q.INI)S. That is my  mderstanding of it. 
Mr. I.'o\v~r,r,. So that  they modified the common law  by  saying  that 

llilr. SANM That is it. 
Mr. P o ~ v m r , .  I h t  i t  t i~pe1~lu npon the Imd that c:In  be served  by 

Mr. S n ~ n q .  -Yes, sir: in the valley. 
R h o .  POT VET,^,. They hnve wvertecl to  cm~rnon sense. 
Mr.. S.\SI)S. Whetllrr  right o r  w~*ong. the  court  held  that,  and it 

becomes importnnt  in t l~is  case in the view which I suppose  counsel 
on  the  other  side entertwin in  this  respect:  Both  these  lands  in  the 
Milk Ri\-rr T':lllep, w h i c h  are irrigated  from  that  stream, wotlld be 
entitleti  to :1 right  to  tllat wntcr, so that the 92.000 ttcres stated by 
MY.  Peters on the ('a11adi:m side that is riparian and can he irrigated 
is :111 thnt they could rspect from that  stream  mtil it11 the  lands  in 
the v:~l]ey : t ~ e  served. 7 ' 1 1 ~  snnIc: thing \vo11.lcl be true of the St. Marys. 
Tie  spolre of only ;I \ X I I T  sn1:Ill :IW:I tlr:lt could Ite in* ip ted   and  which 
j s  r i p r i m  to  the St. RS:?I.~S stw:m. 

the  front wonld  be  ripnri:ln  land  and  the  back w o ~ ~ l d  not? 

it does not  depend on the  mere  frontage? 

that water? 

%ria. n h ~ , i L : t ; I ~ .  The I n w  in C':tnat?:l is tlifferent. 
;ill.. SA SI)^. T do not in lo^ what  the law is  in  Canada.  nor do I 

lcno\y  \yh:rt tllc p111-1)os~ \~:w i n  introdncing t h a t  matter.  for T can 
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not see how it would  have a bearing  on  this case. The case I refer 
’ to  is  the case of Smith v. Dennis,  which  was  quoted  by  Mr.  Gunn 
yesterday,  but it does  not  uphold  this  contention. It is 60 Pacific 
Reports, 398. It is a Montanw decision. 

There is also one other  thing which I myself  deem unimportant, 
but so long as there  are no  ple:ldings in  this case, and we do  not 
know what  the  issues  are,  and  Mr. MacTnnes has dwelt  on  the ques- 
tion, I wish also to submit. this  other  feature. I refer to Bailey v. 
Tintinger,  which  is a Montana case and was  cited  by  Mr.  Gunn, and 
which is to be found  in volume 192 of the Pacific  Iieports,  page 275. 
As the  time  is  short I will  only read  the  syllabi : 

may be lost by :iI~ndorrment or nwuFel’ for an nnre:lson:ihle time. 
h right obtained under the shtute pmviding for the :~ppropri:~tion of w:tter 

The  conrts h a w  decided. that nn unreasonable  time  would be 10 
years,  which is the  statute of limitations  in  our  country,  and  they 
have also  gone further  to say that  the  period  nlay be  much less, even 
as low as thl-ee  years. I suggest  this  for  the  pmpose of applying it 
in this case. Water  was  taken  ont of the  Milk  Rirer  Canal  in 1904” 
over 10 p a r s  ago. Assuming, if  yo11 please, that it was  taken  out 
for a beneficial  use, which  probably  the  testimony would refute,  then 
the beneficial purpose  was si111pl~7 to show that  they could take it, and 
they  had  no  other  desire. But assunling it was for  a. beneficial pur- 
pose, the  right would  have heen lost by this  time on account of non- 
user, according to  our  Supreme  Court decision. That  has reference 
to  t.he Milk Ri\-er  water site. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Is that  the  canal you spoke of :I little  while  ago 
which  you  investigated  in loo&? 

Mr. SANIS. Yes; and someone testified that no water  has been run 
there since 1904. So that  if  Mr. MacTnnes is attempting  to base any 
argument  in  equity  upon  his  rights, or upon nn established  water 
Tight, I feel that he  must  have  lost  that  right, if he  is  going  to  rely 
upon  Montana law, as he seemed to  indicate  t,hat  he  would. 

I wish  also to call  attention to the  fact  that  Mr.  Peters  read a great 
many  statements  about  what  they  could  irrigate  in  Canada. NOW, 
I know that  the  Governnlent of the  United  States  has  refused  many 
land  patents  in  the  Milk  River  basin, for  the reason that  there was 
not sufficient water  to  apply  to  the  land,  and  therefore it could not 
be taken  out  under  the  desert-land  act. I have  no  doubt it is  true 
that  there  are  large  areas of land  in  Canada  that could  very  properly 
he irrigated, especially a t  some  time  in  the  fnture. I do  not see that 
there need be any  contention on the  part of anybody  about  these 
features of the case. There  is  land  in  Canada  that  can be irrigated, 
and  there is certainly  land  on  our  side of the line that can be irri- 
gated,  and we can  give  specified areas  if necessary. 

The qnestion of whether we had  appropriated water. for all  that 
land hecomes important.  The  gentlemen  representing  Canada  used 
the  word  “grant ”; they  say  that  the  right  was  “granted”  at a 
certain  date.  That  would  correspond  in  our  law  to  the  time  when 
the notice  was  filed  claiming it, and wc have filed  notices that would 
f a r  exceed the flow  of the  Milk  River  itself  and all the  tributaries of 
the  Milk  River.  You can examine  our  records,  and  you  will  find 
t,hat  that  is  certainly  true. I do  not  say ill1 of the flow at flood season, 
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but all of the norlt1:d flow, and fa r  more than  the  normal flow, 
because the  normal flow i n  the  irrigation season is sometimes  very 
short. 

Mr. 1’01v~:r~~. IIotv does that affect the case before  us? 
Mr.  Snxns. I do  not see how it affects the case at  all,  but it was 

brought up by  the  other side. 
Mr. POWELL. I have been waiting  patiently  for some days  to find 

out  how it bears  on  the case. 
Mr. SANDS. I do  not  know,  but so long  as  they  offered  that  testi- 

mony, and  without  giving  their  purpose  in  offering it, I am suggest- 
ing  that  the Silme conditions  exist on our  side of the line. I quote 
again  from  the case of Bailey Q, Tintinger: 

to persons or corporntiolrs l ~ a v i n g  :I title to or possession of agricultural  lands. 
‘l’l~o ac t  of 1870 linlitcl(1 1I1e riglrt to tl1)t)ropriate w1ter for irri,cation  purposes 

The provision was omitted frorn tht. nc+s of 1895 and 1897, and under the 
decisions the  npproprintor I 1 w t l  not be the owner or in  possession of the land 
nor make n valid npprqwirttion for irrigation pnrposes. Our Constitution,  article 
3, paragraph 16, provitlcs that the use of rill water  appropriated,  or that may 
hereafter be approprintrtl,. for sale, rent:rI, distribution,  or  other beneficial pur- 
pose, shnll be llelrl to be n public use. 

I n  other  words, our Constitution  provides  that  there  must  be a 
beneficial use. I suggest  this  in  order  to  give  the  record of that 
canal  out of Milk  River  which  has been referred  to so frequently. 
I f  they  ever  made $1 1)eneficial use the  Constitution  provides  that it 
must be slw~vn. No l)eneficii11 use was ever made from  that  canal, 
;tnd thcref(:rr, for this I W I S C ~  I claim no right was acquired. 

Mr. POWELL. That canal was in  Canada. 
Mr. SANDS. Yes. 
Mr. POWELL. Your  legislation  has a territorial  limitation;  no 

State or Federal  authority  presumably  can  legislate  beyond its bounds. 
Mr. SANDS. I do  not  think  it  can. 
Mr. POWELL. And  that would  he determined  by  the  Canadian  law 

and not  by  your law. 
Mr. SANDS. Yes; 1)nl; there  are  no  pleadings  in  this case, and I 

sssume that because Mr.  MacInnes  introduced it he was  trying to 
attempt  to show a close relation between the  two laws-that by 
equity  they  had  acquired that  right. 

On  the  19th of this  month  Mr.  Jones,  who is an  expert  at  measur- 
ihg water,  and  who has measured  water  for  several  years  for  the 
Reclamation  Service, was appointed  to  examine  the  ditches  in  Canada 
in  the Battle Creek  and  West Fork or,Lodge Creek. H e  made a re- 
port  which I would  like to  submit for your  information. I do not 
know that it would  conflict with  the  other  testimony,  but it is our 
view  of the  present  conditions  there. 

Mr. TAWNEY. You  can put it in  the  record. 
(Statement  submitted by Mr. Sands :) 

REPORT ON DIVERSIONS FROM RATTLE  CREEK,  LoDQE  CREEK, AND FRENCHMAN 
CREEK IN CANADA. 

RATTLE CREEK. 

Badger’s ditch.-Age, an old ditch. Area  under  the  ditch, 80 acres.  Capacity, 
3 to 5 second-feet. Condition,  probably  only  used  during -dry sensons : the 
dam was  out  and the ditch  overgrown  with  grass.  Not  important. 

tended in 1914. Area under  ditch, under old branch  not over 640 acres;  under 
Mash and Sterling ditch.-Age, built  in 1910 or 1911, but enlarged  and ex- 



ST. MARY AND  MILK RIVERS. 228 

new  branch  perhaps 1,000 acres  cnn be irrigated,  hut so far it has not been 
nsetl. Mostly hay  land.  Capacity,  probably  actually  carries  about 15 to 20 
second-feet; possible capacity of main  ditch, 30 second-feet; of old branch, 
20 second-feet; of new  branch, 20 second-feet. Old branch  leads  to a reser- 
voir covering 100 acres  with a 15-foot clam, giving a depth of 12  feet at the 
dam.  Probable  capacity of reservoir 100 acres, 5 feet  deep  or 500 acre-feet. 
The  reservoir  was  built  last  year ani1 has not  hecn filled. Condition, good; 
used  somewhat  this  year. 

3 second-feet. Condition, fa i r ;  used a little this year. Not important. 
Nash's ditcl1.-Age, old. Area  under  ditch,  not over 40 acres.  Capacity, 

feet. Not  visitetl personally.  Information  from Mr. Richardson. 
Thomas's ditch.-Age, old. Area  under  ditch, 180 acres.  Capacity, 3 second- 

Area  under  ditch, 50 per  cent of 2,000 acres.  Capacity,  probably  uses  about 
McKinnon and Reser.-Age, old ditch  enlarged  and  repaired  last  year. 

10 to 15 second-feet. Can  carry 30 second-feet. Ditch  can  empty  into a 
reservoir  covering  160  acres  with a 12  foot  dam. glving an average  depth of 
4 feet or a capacity of 640 acre-feet. 

Richardson's ditch.-Age, old. Area  under  ditch. 2,000 acres;  probably  irri- 

dition,  fair. 
gates  50  per  cent.  Capacity,  uses G second-feet:  can  run 10 second-feet. Con- 

Wilks Bras.' ditch.-Age, not  yet completed. Area  under  ditch, 50 per  cent 
of 400 acres.  Capacity, 10 second-feet ; probably will not  use  over 5 second-feet 
ordinarily. 

Frank Flcnwu's ditch,.-Age, 4 years.  Area  under  ditch, 200 acres.  Capacity, 
not  over 5 second-feet. Not  visited.  Information  from Mr. Richardson. 

Wilson  ditch-Age,  old ditch.  Area  under  ditch, 160 acres.  Capacity, 3 sec- 
ond-feet.  Not visited.  Information  from Mr. Richardson. 

Gaff's ditch.-Age, 15 years.  Area, 3,OOO acres.  Capacity. 20 second-feet; 
probably ardinarily  carries  ahont 10 second-feet.  Condition. very good. 

A.larsha7l and Gaff .ditch.-Marshnll and Gaff take  water  out  through  the 

has 500 acres. of which 300 have been irrigated;  for G:~ff's area, see description 
same  ditch  and  then  use  separate  ditches below. Age, 15 years.  Area,  Mnrshall 

of Gaff's  ditch.  Capacity,  oery  high if necessary. as it is an old slough used 

maximum  was 17 second-feet.  Condition. good. 
a s  n ditch; prol)ably ordinarily does not  run  over 20 sccond-feet;  in 1913 the 

Pattmson'n ditcit.--Age, not com1)leted. Are:r. 50 Iler ccnt of three sections. 
Capacity, 10 second-feet. 

Lintlner's &itch.-Age, 18 years. A2rea. 300 :ICES of hay I:rn(l. Capacity, 10 
second-feet:  can  use 15 second-feet. Condition, good. 

Spanglcr's  ditch (f?wm RattIc Greek).-Age, rather old. Area, 50 per  cent of 
400 acres.  Capncity,  about 3 feet:  can prohnbly run 5. Not seen. Tnforma- 
tion  from Mr. Richardson. 

Not  seen. Information  from Mr. Richnrdson. Sot  important. 
Cheesrnnn ditch.-Age, old. Area,  not  very much.  Capacity, 3 second-feet. 

LODGE CREEK. 

This  creek  was not visited  for lnck of time. All information WRS obtained 
from Mr. Richardson. Mr. Nash, nnd the  Battle Creek postmaster. Most of the  

water.  Middle Fork supplies most of the  water  during  the  irrigation  season  and 
ditches  are smnll, a s  the  creek is dry a large  part of the year  except for flood 

most of the  ditches  take  water  from it. 

300 acres. 
Dan Harnmond's ditch.-Age, new. Capacity,  unknown.  Area, 20 per  cent of 

R. 8. Penchu.-Age, new. Area. 100 acres. 
Mike Lynch.-Nothing known.  Rather  small. 

McKinnon Bros.-Flood system for hay  land. Aren, 600 acres. 
William Oregg.-Age, 4 years.  Area, 160 acres. 

Xpangles Co. ditch.-Age, new. Area, 1,OOO acres. Will develop a storage 

Joan ditch.-Age, 3 years.  Area,  three-fourths section. 
Wright's ditch.-Flood system for hay land.  Area, 500 acres. 

Henrfj lCfcCam ditch.-Age, 3 or 4 years.  Area, 160 acres. 
Anderson ditch.-Small and  not  important.  Capacity  and  area  not known. 
All of these  ditches,  except  Spangler's  and Anderson's, take  water from Middle 

reservoir. 

Fork of Lodge  Creek. 
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C;luadiiru report.  The bmks are  high rind diversions are  dificnlt, so there  are 
This creek w:ls not visitetl :~nt l   uost  of the inform:Ition was obtained  frorn the 

very few  ditches,  according to Mr. ILichnrdson. 
Above the mouth of 1~;lirweIl Creek there itre 393 :teres under proposed or con- 

structed  ditches. I 

b % h w / ( /  (6 I)af/ ditc.k.--Age, 4 or 5 years. Area. 3,581 acres.  Capacity,  ditch 
had a maximum dischirrge of 16 second-feet in 1913, but will probably  carry 
30 secollil-feet, if necessilry. The company :11so h:~s :I system of smnll reservoirs. 

IWos. :~nct estencletl by Duucm rP: Watson. Age, 4 or 5 years.  Area,  Morrison 
Jlorri.rutb Uros. trrztl D u t ~ ~ ~ t b  d Watson.-This ditch is taken  out by Morrison 

in 3918 the  nlasinltult flow WIS !) second-feet. hut  the  ditch will probably  carry 
Bros.. 1,595 :1cres ; r)unc:un rP: Watsoll, 935 :teres;  total, 2,530 acres. Capacity. 

25 second-feet. 
Besides these tllere itre two slllall (lit-ches above Stroug & D;ly irrignting 200 

;I (‘res. 
SCiV1,laI .\RT. 

H.\‘PTLI: CRLCI:K. 

present,  antl most of this is hay I:ul1d. 
Area, 7,290 acres. Of this prob;lbly not  over one-half is :tctn:llly irrigated  at 

of nbout 99 sec.ond-feet; but if filled to overtlowing they would have a combined 
CapacitU.--The ditches, when completed,  will ordin;trily hare  (I  conlbined flow 

capticity of at   least  176 second-feet. The  two nlilin reservoirs  have a combined 
capacity of :Ibout 1,140 acre-feet.  Other sn1:Ill reservoirs  might  bring the total 
to 1,500 :]ere-feet.  At  present tlle total flow during  June and July.  except  after 
rains, is t:llren hy two  ditches, Lincler’s a11d ( h f f  Z hhrshnll’s. 

LODGE CREEK. 

dre:i, 3,260 acres. Most of this is raw  hay 1:11ld, and the irrig:ltioll is largely 

GafJUVit!/.--?\Tot known. 1’rob:lbly trbout 40 second-feet. 
flood irrigation. 

IWENCl~. \ fAN ~ W C E K .  
Area, 5,700 tteres. l’lris is p ~ ~ o l ~ ~ l ) l y  very close to correct, :IS the estimate is 

UaItucity, 55 st.colltl-f(:rt. l’robably 1110re ( x u  l w  tlivrrtetl by filling ditches to 
mtitle by the Cauaclian irrigation oflice. 

overflowing. . 
Storage,  not much. 

Gl~iYElL\I, I)ESC‘RTPTlON. 

The Canatliar1 ditcllcs, :IS a rule, are new,  luost of theul kxving been coli- 
structecl in the 1:wt four ycwrs. They are  well huilt,  with  plenty of fall, antl, 

under them. 
as a rule, will carry much  more water  than is necessary to irrigate the land 

On Rattle <:reek the banks are  lorn and diversions  easy to make.  As a result 
most of the flow has been appropriated, and no more filings are  being allowed. 

A plan of diverting IZattle Creek  into  Cypress  Lake and storing  it  has been 
suggested. This mould probably affect  even the flootl f o w  of the  stream, as 
most o f  the flow comes from ahore  Battle  Creek post office. 

Titc flow at  Battle Creek post office for seven months of 1913 was 20,000 
acre-feet for a drainage  area of 200 square miles. At Nash’s ranch, 12 miles 
north of tlle  boundary,  it m-as 27,000 acre-feet for a drainage area of 500 square 
miles, a ~ ~ l  a t  Snedecor’s ranch, 4 miles  north of Chinook, it  was 30,000 acre- 
feet for n drainage Elre:? of 1,400 square miles. If we  leave  out of consideration 
the flood flow of April, ~ v e  find that pr:lcticillljr a11  of the  low-water flow comes 
fro111 :~l)ove Battle  Creek  post oflice, the  discharge a t  the three  points  mentioned 

ranch,  and 9,700 acre-feet  at Suedecor’s ranch. 
ahovc being 7,500 acre-feet at Rattle  Creek  post office, 7,100 acre-feet at Nash’s 

Lodge Creek is dry  during  the  irrigation  season  except for a small flow in 
Middle Fork. As a result most of the  irrigation is done by holding the flood 
water 011 the  land  in  the  $wing,  although  there  are  several  small  ditches  from a 

r 
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Mitltlle Vork. There are LI few s~nall rcservoirs.  but  the co1nl)inecl capacity will 
I~arr no appreciable et!’rcat on t-lw (load f low wlwn I n o s t  of the run-off in T’odge 
Creek occurs. 

IWEXf’HMAN CREEK. 

be some time before the lmd is su[licirntly valuable  to  justify the espense of any 
Ttre banks of this stre:lln are high :Inti cliversiolls are so difficult that  it will 

Inore diversion. These will necessizrily be on a  large  scale, Iiowever, in order 
to justify thc cxpvnsc. of :I tlam : I n 1 1  :;cdtin:LI the vxtc.1. n p  on the henc’ll. Cypress 
1,:rltc affords a n  itleal reservoir site. 

Mr. SAXDS. I wish to suggest  that  the  testimony has shown that 
the  United  States  produces or contributes 80 per  cent of the  waters 
that flow ncross the  international  boundary. By the  terms of this 
treaty n.e give to the Canadians 58 per  cent,  which  ought to be fair 
and  ought to be all  that they  could possibly ask. If you  give  them 
what  they  contend for, the  purpcse of the  treaty wonld be thwarted. 
I t  would be absurd to do anything of that kind.  You  might  just  as 
well say that you would limit  it  to  the flow of the  Milk  River. 

Mr. T A ~ X E S .  If we were t,o give  them  what  the  treaty or the  two 
(fovemments  have  agreed  they  should  have,  why  do you  say that is 
absurd 1 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir;  in view of the  terms of the  trcaty. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I say,  if we were  to  give  them  that  which  under  the 

terms of the  treaty  they  are  entitled to, would that be absurd? 
Mr. SANDS. No. 
Mr. TAWNEY. The commission  could not  do  anything else. 
Mr. SANDS. I do not  think so, but  here  is  my  contention: This 

treaty  was  for  the  purpose of determining  the  division of interna- 
tional  waters,  not  the  waters on  one side  exclusively, but all inter- 
national  waters.  That  is  the whole purpose of the  treaty. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Both  countries  are  entitled  under  this  treaty  to  an 
equal  division of the  waters,  whatever  they  are,  that  are  included  in 
the  treaty. 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir; that is true. 
Mr. TAWNEY. And  if  there is any  difference  as  to  what  waters  are 

included in  that  treaty, or are  to he included,  that  is a matter  for  the 
commission to  determine. 

Mr. SANDS. Yes,  sir. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I want to get  your view of the  legal  question  that 

was  involved. 
Mr. SANDS. Yes;  but  the  terms of the  treaty I think  must be read 

with  a view to  the  physical  facts  which  were  in  the  minds of the 
men  who drew  the  treaty,  and  at  the  time  the  treat was  made. 

Mr. GLENN. I n  construing  these words “ in   the  B tate of Montana 
and  the  Provinces of Alberta  and  Saskatchewan,”  your  contention 
is, that only  applies  to  international  waters  that  cross  the  boundary? 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. GI,ENN. And you say  that  their  contention  is  that  it  not  only 

applies  to  these  but to waters  that never  have  gone  into  Canada or 
that never  have come into  the  United  States. 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir; I have  ventured  the  opinion  that  the  treaty 
power of the  United States would  not have the right to come into 
our  State  and  take  away from us,  as you may  say,  rights  which  do 
not  affect  international  questions. I think  that  the  words used 

11398-15-15 



226 ST. MARY  AND MILK RIVERS. 

there,  “Montana,  Saskatchewan,  and  Alberta,”  meant  that  these 
branches or tributaries  in  Montana,  which flow north  into  Canada, 
or cross  the  line, were the  tributaries  in view of this  treaty-only  those 
which flow across from one country to the  other. 

Mr. POWELL. What  words  in  the  treaty  do  you  interpret as giving 
that  impression? 

Mr. SANDS. I take  the  preamble  first,  which  states  the scope and 
the purpose of the  treaty. 

Mr. POWELL. Tes,  but  quote  the  words,  what  part of the  preamble? 
Mr. SANDS. The  preamble  says: 

the  King of the  United Kingtloin of Great  Britain and Ireland  and of the 
Whereas, a treaty betweell the  United States of America and His Majesty 

British Dominions beyond the seas, Emperor of India,  to  prevent  disputes re- 
garding the use of boundary waters- 

Mr. POWELL. It says “ boundary  waters.” 
Mr. SANDS. Then  they  are  waters  which flow across  the  boundary. 
Mr. POWELL. That  is  not  a  boundary  water.  The St. Croix  River 

in New Brunswick  is a boundary  water,  the St. Lawrence  is a bound- 
ary  river,  clear  through  the  Lakes,  but  these  are  not  boundary  waters. 

Mr. SANDS. I would so construe it. 
Mr. GLENN.  Let me see if I understand your idea,  Mr.  Sands. 

Your  idea is that  any  water  rising  in  Canada  and  running  into  the 
United  States, or rising  in  the  United  States  and  running  into 
Canada,  can be  affected by a  treaty between Great  Britain  and  the 
United  States? 

Mr. SANDS. Yes. 
Mr. GLENN. And  that  any  water  rising  wholly  in  Canada or wholly 

in  the TJnited States,  and  remaining  in  either  country,  can  not be 
affected  by a  treaty between two  nations, because the  State of Mon- 
tana owns  and  controls; it has  a  State right in  the  water,  and  the 
Federal  Government  has  nothing  to  do  with it. 

Mr. SANDS. That is my  contention. 
Mr. GLENN. In  other  words,  you  say that  the  Federal Govern- 

ment of the  United  States  can  not  deprive  the  State of a  river  that 
rises  within  that  State  and flows through it and  has  nothing to  do 
with  the  boundary  line. 

Mr. SANDS. Yes. 
Mr. MIONAULT. Have you any  authority on that question,  which 

is a  very  important  one? You argue  that  the  United  States, so far  
as concerns that  river wholly  situated  in  Montana,  has  not  the  power 
to  make  this  treaty. 

Mr. SANDS. I have  not been  able to examine  thoroughly  into  the 
question,  as I live  in only  a  small  town and my  private  librar is 
limited,  and  that,  erhaps, would  be a matter  for Mr. Wyvel  to dp deal  with. I woul  also  suggest that  the  title of this commlssion is 

iven  as  the  International  Joint Commission ; in  other  words,  that it 
8as reference  only to  international  waters. 

I would  suggest  this,  further,  that it seems  absolutely  unfair  for 
the  Canadians  to  make  that claim,  when this  treaty  was  made  to 
hold  for only  five  years. I am  not  saying  that we could  set it aside 
or that we will, but I will sa that if the  construction  claimed by 
the  Canadians  is  admitted  an J should  be acceded to by  the commis- 
sion, I think it only fair for the  people of the  Milk  River  Valley  to 

s 
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insist  that it be abrogated  as soon as possible. I do  not  say we could 
do so, but I feel we mould try  to do so if that construction  were 
permitted. 

Mr. POWELL. There  is one point you ignore,  and  that  is  this,  that 
nations  at  different  times  have  put  forward  highly  inconsistent  and 
incompatible  contentions. 

Mr. SANDS. That  is  true. 
Mr. POWELL. For instance,  the  United  States  claimed to be the 

owner, to  have  certain-not territorial  rights-but  certain  rights of 
user of the  River St. Lawrence to  the ocean, and  they  put  that  for- 
ward,  and  also  that  they  had  the  right  to  navigate it. They  put  the 
same  thing  forward  in  the case of the St. John  River.  Both of 
these  rights  were  allowed, t o  a  certain  extent,  afterwards  by  treaty. 
The  English contention-and England  has  not  always been con- 
sistent-has been that  the two States  may be exactly in  the  position 
of two riparian  proprietors,  and  that  there  is  what you may  call  a 
national  easement  that  went as with  the  land of either,  and  what you 
call  United  States  waters  British  jurists would  say are  waters  which 
Canada  has  the  right  to have  passed  on to  her  undiminished in quan- 
tity  and  unpolluted  in  quality.  That  is  their  contention.  The 
United  States  has  put  forward  that  contention sometimes, and some- 
times it has  put  forward  the  other,  and  England’s  course  is  equally 
inconsistent. It is not conceded by Great  Britain  that  the  United 
States  is  giving  anything  to  Canada.  What  Great  Britain  says  is 
this:  Canada  is  entitled to have  the whole of the St. Marys  River 
flow into  Canada,  and,  inasnmch  as  that  river  enters  into  Canadian 
territory, it is  the  proprietor  and  owner of that  water. I n  respect 
t o  the  Milk  Itiver  the case is  somewhat  different.  Canada  can  not 
say  the  Milk  River  is  hers.  Why! Because its flow into  Canada is 
diverted; it runs  parallel  for  about 100 miles  and  then it crosses into 
the  United  States. It is a  poor  rule  that will not  work  both  ways. 
The  United  States can  say to  Great  Britain: You  must  allow  the 
Milk  River to  flow to  us, just the  same as we are willing to  allow the 
St. lvlarys  River to  how to vou. 

Mr. SANDS. I know of one instance  in  which  the  United  States  in  a 
treaty  with Mexico positively  insisted  they  were  entitled to  all of the 
waters  that rose on American soil. 

Mr. POWELL. DO not  understand me as  committing myself to  the 
principle I stated. I do  not  think  international  law  has  anything  to 
do  with  this. It is a  question of treaty,  and  the  question  as  to  what 
the two peoples  have  settled  between  them. 

Mr. SANDS. That concludes  my  statement, so far  as I remember. 
I would  ask that if this question of the  riparian  rights becomes im- 
portant,  that I should  have  an  opportunity of submitting  a  brief 
upon that question, in view of the  point  that  has been raised. 

Mr.  WYVELL.  You  recollect  the  testimony of Mr.  Dennis  about  the 
canal  built on the  Milk  River? 

Mr. SANDS. Yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. And  when  that was constructed you and  many  other 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. WYVELL. And  you  wrote  certain  letters  to  various  people? 
Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir. 

residents of the  valley  were  alarmed? 
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Mr. WYVELL. And you wrote  letters  to  Government officials? 
Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. WYVXLL. And in these letters yon state something  about  the 

Mr. SANDS. Yes. 
Mr. WYVELL. And you state  that 18 steam  shovels  were  working 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. WYVELL. That was a question, of coIIrse, of  friction  arising 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir. 
Mr. WITELL. At  which yonr people  were  alarmed! 
Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir;  but  after we went up there  and  examined  the 

canal we felt  that  it was not  feasible for them  to  take  water  through 
it,  that  they would haye to get it  from some other  source,  and  that  it 
was put  there for another  purpose. 

canal,  the size, and so forth? 

there ‘I 

about  that  situation? 

Mr. WYVICLL. You didn’t become so alarmed  after  that? 
Mr. SANDS. No, sir. 
Mr. WYVELL. Mr. Dennis  said  that  in  his  judgment  the  canal could 

Mr. SANDS. I believe he did. 
Mr. M A C ~ N E S .  Mr.  Sands,  do you suggest ‘that this  treaty  is  ‘not 

binding  upon  the  State of Montana or upon  its  inhabitants  as  to  this 
Article V I  ? 

Mr. SANDS. I do not say that. I mean  to sag that  the  treaty  power 
of the  United  States does not  extend  to  waters  that  rise  wholly  within 
the  State of Montana  and  remain  within  the  State. I n  other  words, 
that  they  are  not  interstate  waters  and,  therefore,  that  the  nation 
has  no  right  to  deal  with  them. 

Mr. MACINNEB. Are you  aware of the decision of the  Suprenle 
Court of the TJnited States  in  Howenstein 3. Lynham (100 U. S. 
Rep., p. 483) ? 

be put  in  operation. 

By  their autliority the  State constitutions were intrde and by their authority 
There can  be no l i ~ ~ ~ i t : ~ t i o ~ l  011 the power of the people of the  United  States. 

the  Constitution of the  Unitad  States  was  established,  and  authority or power 
to  change or abolish the State  constitutions or to make  them yield to  the  General 
Government  and  to  treaties  made by their authority. A treaty  can  not  be  the 
supreme  law of the  land,  that is, of all the  United  States if any  act of a State 
legislature can stand in its way. All treaties  made or which shall be  made 
under the authority of the  United  States shall be the  supreme  law of the land, 
and  the  judges in ererg  State  shall be bound thereby,  anything  in the Constitu- 
tion or laws of any State to  the  contrary  notwithsanding. 

Mr. SANDS. I have  not  examined  the  authorities,  but I believe there 
is room for a great  deal of controversy  over  that  question. I do  not 
say it is the  law,  but,  offhand, i t  is my conclusion that  my conten- 
tion is ri  ht. 

Mr. &~INNE~.  Then  there is the  express  language of the sixth 
article of your  Constitution,  which is referred  to  in  this decision, 
with  which you are  familiar and which  makes a declaration on the . 
authority of the  United  States  to make  treaties. I n  the  sixth  article 
of your  Constitution you have  exact  language  bearin  on  this  matt.er. 

Mr. BIEN. The  fundamental  question is whether t k le subject of the 
treaty is one that is committed  to  the  treaty power. That  is a ques- 
tion that is a little different. If it were  purely an  international ques- 
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ion  no  State  could  do  anything  to  interfere  with  the  operation of n 
treaty,  but  the  first  question  is  whether  the  treaty  is  constitutional; 
that is, whether it touches  questions that have  not been committed  to 
the  Federal Government  within  the  exercise of its powers. 

Mr. SANDS. My theory  is  not  that it is not  constitutional,  but if 
the  Federal  Government  hail no authority  to  treat  on  the  subject 
both  sides  mould be presumed to know, and would  be  presumed to 
know that in the  enactment of this  treaty  the  waters  which  were  not 
international  in  their  character were  not  included. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Has a  treaty of the  United  States ever  been set 
aside  on  the  ground  that it was unconstitutional 1 

Mr. BIEN. I believe that Mr. Wyvell  has  instances of that. 
Mr. WYVELL.  Treaties  are  the  law of the  land  and  are  subject  to 

interpretation  like  other  statutes,  and  they  may be declared  uncon- 
stitutional. A treaty  is  considered  by  the  United  States  Supreme 
Court  in  exactly  the  same  way as a statute  passed by Congress. 

Mr. ~\/IIGNAUI.T. I wish to know if a treaty  to  which  the  United 
States  was a party  has ever been declared  unconstitutional or ultra 
vires of the  United  States  by  the  courts. 

Mr. WYVELL. I am so familiar  with  the  doctrine I have just stated 
that I can  not  cite  any  particular  instance,  but  that  doctrine  that I 
have  just  stated  has been laid  down  in  several cases  by the  United 
States  Supreme  Court. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. I understand  that  this  contention  which  has been 
made  by Mr. Sands is exceedingly  important,  and we should  have 
some authority. 

Mr. WYVELL. We  are  here i n  response to  an  invitation  to  help you 
discharge  your  duties,  and I regard  the  point  Mr.  Sands  has  made 
as  worthy of consideration  when  the  proper  time for consideration 
of it has  arisen. 

Mr. POWELL. Is there a distinction  in  any of your  State  courts 
recognized  between  a  river that flows beyond  the  boundary  line  and 
a river  that  is  entirely  within  the  bounds of a State? Is one re- 
garded  to be under  Federal  jurisdiction  and  the  other  under  State 
Jurisdiction? 

Mr. WYVELL. A river  that flows from one State  to  another, if  it 
is  navigable,  has  certain  national  features  with  regard  to  navigation, 
and  the  courts  have been very  broad  in  saying  what  navigation 
means. 

Mr. POWELL. Rut 1 had reference to  the  taking of waters,  and  that 
kind of thing. 

Mr. WYVELL.  On  that I would  not at  the  present  moment  give  an 
opinion. 

Mr. POWELL. The  point  that Mr. Sands makes  might  have  a  good 
deal  in it in  this  way:  if  there was EL distinction between the  two  in 
interpreting  the  general  words of the  statute ; it might not, apply to 
any  river  that  is  exclusively  within  a  State. 

Mr.  WYVELL. A river  that  is exclusively  within  a  State  would  have 
no  feature  to  which  the  law of interstate commerce  could be applied. 
It might  be  well  to  follow  out  that  line of inquiry. 

Mr. SANDS. The law of 1866 granted  to  the  Pacific  Coast  States, 
or the  arid  States,  the  waters  not  navigable  within  the  boundaries 
of each State. 



230 ST. NARY AND MILK RIVERS. 

Mr. POWELL. That would  not  exclude, or has it ever been con- 
strued  as  excluding,  the  waters  that flow across  the  boundary  line of 
a  State. 

Mr. SANDS. The  Kansas v. Colorado  case  construed that  to  a  limited 
extent  at  least,  and  held  that  the  riparian  owner  in  Kansas  was  en- 
titled  to  a  part of the  waters  which flowed down  that  stream?  and 
that is,  as I take it, that  the  rights  existing between the  States of the ' 
United  States  are  very  different  from  rights  existing between  two 
different  n  a t' Ions. 

Mr. POWELL. Still, does not  your  constitution  look  upon  the  States 
as  being  separate,  independent  sovereignties, so to speak? 

Mr. SANDS. To st certain  extent,  hut  not  where it is interstate. 
Mr. MACINNES. Mr.  Bien  su  gested  that  there  might be limitation 

to  the  treaty-making  power o f the  United  States. I would  like to 
ask  where  any  such  limitation  might be found. I understand  that 
Article I1 of the  Constitution of the  United  States  says  that  the 
President  shall  have  the  power, by and  with  the  advice  and  consent 
of the  Senate,  to  make  treaties,  rovided  two-thirds of the  Senators 
present  concur.  There  is  also a f urther  provision  that  no  State  shall 
enter  into  any  treaty,  alliance or confederation.  Where,  if  at  all,  do 
you suggest, Mr. Bien,  that  the  limitation of the  treaty-making 
power  contained in  Article I1 is  to be found. 

Mr. SANDS. As I have  said, I have  not  gone  into  the  matter  as 
fully  as I would if the  matter were  before me to  make  a  brief on it. 
I stated  that  that was  my  opinion  and  not  that  that was the  law. 
A.11 that you have  read  from, Mr. MacInnes,  simply  deals  with  the 
general  treaty-making  power of the  United  States.  Whether  that 
treaty  power  extends  to  matters  not  international  in  character  is  a 
question in my  mind.  The second  section  says  simply that  the  State 
shall  not  make a treaty. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Would  an  extradition  treaty be an  example of a 
treaty  overriding  private  rights or State  rights? 

Mr. SANDS. I would  not think so, that would come within  the  police 
power of the  Federal  Government,  and  the  police  power is very 
different  from  civil  rights,  and it has been so held  in our courts. I 
would  say, in answer  to  your  question,  that  the  Federal  power  has  un- 
doubtedly  the  right  to  police  this  country,  and if it is going  to be an 
injury  to  the  morals of the  country  they  would  undoubtedly  have  the 
right  to exclude  anyone from coming  in,  and  they would have  the 
ri ht   to enact  such  a  treaty. 

%r. MIQXAULT. It is  very  important  that we should  have  authority. 
We  Canadians  are  under  a  disadvantage  without  having  authorities 
cited, because when you state  the  principle  and you  do not  refer us 
to  an  authority it is very difficult for  us  to  make  up our minds. The 
point  which you have  raised, Mr. Sands, is a very  important  point, 
and I think it should be supported  by  authorities, if there  should be 
any. 

Mr. SAXDS. You will  pardon me for  not  having come prepared 
with  authorities, because we did  not know what  the issues  would be, 
m d ,  in  fact, we do  not know  yet, what  they  are. 

Mr. POWELL. You have  plenty of time  to  submit R brief or st 
factum. 

Mr. MICNAOLT. You m a g  submit a brief  on  the  question, Mr. 
Sands. 
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Mr. POWELL. And when  you  are  making  one  copy you might  make 

Mr. TAWNEY. Is  that  all, Mr. Sands? 
Mr. SANDS. That is all I have  to offer at  the  present  time. 
Mr.  WYVELL. We  have responded  here,  on  the part of the  Gov- 

ernment of the  United  States,  to  furnish  such  information as may 
be possible to  enable  the  commission  to  carry  out  its  administrative 
duties of measuring  and  apportioning  the  waters  to he used by the 
two  countries  on  these  lands. I do  not know what you want  to 
hear  from me on  the subject. If there  is  anything  concerning t.he 
question of legal  authority, I would  want  to  submit :L statement  in 
writing. 

Mr. TAWNEY. If  there  is  anything yon  have  to o i?w now or in 
writina  in  reference  to  the  application of the  facts  hrooght  out, YOU 
can  sukmit it. 

Mr. WPVELL. The course of the commission appe:Il*s to  us  quite 
clear. The commission  is  granted  administr:\tion  dllties,  the com- 
mission  has  certain  administrative  duties; ant1 may I say  that,  in 
my  judgment,  to  the  credit of our  representatives, we  1!.r\-e presented 
certain  suggestions to  enable  the  commission  to  carry ollt its  adminis- 
trative  duties,  namely, of apportlonjng  the w:tter to htl med by  each 
country  from  time  to  time.  We  hare  supplied x11 the  information we 
could  and we have  made  the  suggestion as to what  the  commission 
should  do  to  apportion  the  waters from timc to  time.  The  words 
“ from  time  to  time”  are  important. It is  contemphted  t,hat t.he 
commission  would  direct  the  apportionment of thew  waters  and 
measurements  between  the  two,  not  that it would  indulge  in  certain 
discussions of theory,  but  would  actually  take  up  the nclministrative 
duties  and  apportion  the  water  to be used. I came  here,  having 
heard  informally  from  the  representatives of Canada,  that  there 
was a question of the  interpretation of the  treaty involved. At  the 
earliest  opportunity I had,  for  the  information of the  commission, I 
suggested the position of the  United States with  regard to the  inter- 
pretation  and  with  regard  to  the  treaty.  Up  to  date we hnve had  no 
reply. Of  course  if our interpretation  is  controverted, it will be 
the  beginning of the  controversy,  not  the  end,  and it will  be  taken up 
in  due  diplomatic  form  and  either  submitted  to  this  commission  for 
decision in  the  future or submitted  to  The  Hague  tribunal. 

I am willing  to  enter  into  a discussion of the  legal  features,  for 
the  information of the cornmission, of coarse, with  the reserv a t’ Ion 
contained  in  the  words  which I have  already  stated  and  with  the 
reservation  contained  in  any  further  statement  that I may  make  on 
behalf of the U n i t d  States  Government. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Mr.  Wyvell,  under  the  statement  which you submit- 
ted  the  day  before  yesterday,  you  raise  the  question  as  to  whether or 
not,  acting  under  this  treaty,  the  duty of the  commission  was  to  di- 
vide the  waters of the  Milk  and St. Marys  Rivers  and  their  tributaries 
in  Saskatchewan,  Alberta,  and  Montana,  including  all  the  tributaries 
in  these  Provinces  and  the  State of Montana; or  whether  the  duty 
of the  commission  was  limited  to  the  two  rivers  and  their  tributaries 
that  rise  either  in  the Provinces of Canada or the State of Montana, 
and  whose  waters cross the  boundary  in  their  natural course. The 
grounds  upon  which  that  statement  was  made  were  not  stated,  and 

six,  one  for  each of us. 



232 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS. 

I would be glad  to  hear  you  upon  the  grounds  upon  which  you  claim 
the  duty of the commission  is so restricted. 

Mr. WYVELL. Subject  to  the  reservation, so fa r  as committing  the 
Government is concerned,  which I have  made,  and  in a matter of 
such  importance  as  this,  as I may  make in  writing,  the  statement I 
now make  not  being  in  writing,  not  having  prepared  any, I shall 
very  cheerfully  and  delightfully  give to the  commission my own  con- 
struction of this  treaty. 
I wish  to  call  attent’ion  to  the  first  statement I made: 
Tile first t:vo senteucw of tlw article lay cio\rn ceutnin g ~ n w ~ t l  principlcs of 

equality and tlirision,  thv ol,jevt hclilrg to stl(w’t? n tnore I)f>lleA(aitl l  use of the 
internxtionxl waters. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Will you read these two sentences that you  refer to. 
Mr.  WYVELL.  The  first  two sentences of Article VI  read: 

their  tributirries  (in tl1e State of M o n t a n a  mlcl the I’rovillc:es of Alberta  and 
The high contwctiilg pilrties  nqree tlltlt the  St. Mxrys tl11t1 Mill; Rivers and 

Saskatchewt~n) are  to bv trwtetl ::s onc stuc!au] for the purpose of irrigation 
and power. 

For some unknown reason,  which I have  not been able to  ascertain, 
no  one seems to  have  brought  out  with  any  emphasis  that  the object 
of the  treaty was not the theoretical object of simply  looking  at these 
waters  and  saying so many  are on this side and so many  on  that, or 
dividing  any  waters  that  could  not be physically  divided,  but  they 
were  treated as one stream for the  purpose of irrigation  and  power 
only. When  you  read  that  part of the  treaty  in  connection  with  the 
waters  to be used  by  each  country,.you will see lainly  that  the  du- 
ties of this  commission  are of the  highest  order o F actually  providing 
for  practical  things  and  applying  the  water  which  each  country  says 
is to be used, to  the  land-I place emphasis on the  words-for  the 
purposes of irrigation  and  power: 
and the  waters  thereof  shall be apporti011~~11 tqually I)et\veeu the two  cuun- 
tries, but in  making  such equal apportionlncnt ~rlore t lml  half r~lay be taken 
from one river m d  I t w  tlmn  half  from the other, by either  wuntry, so as to 
afford more bmeficial use to ewh. It is further agreed  that ill the divisiou of 
such  waters  during  the  irrigation  season, between the 1st of April and 31st of 
October, inclusive,  annunlly,  the Unitccl States is tbntitled to :L prior appropria- 
tion of 500 cubic. feet per secontl of the  waters of the ilfilk River, or so much of 
such  amount :IS constitutes three-fourths of its natnr;Il flow, ant1 that Crumda 

of St. 3Iarys River, or so n1uc11 of su(:ll : I I I I O U U ~  11s constitutes  three-fourths of its 
is entitled  to :I prior  appropriation of 500 cubic feet per secoud of the flow 

natural flow. 
These  are  the  principles by which the  waters  to be used by each 

country  are  to  be diriclecl, when the  developments  by  each  country 
reach  that  stage of completion that  either  one  will  approach  the 
maximum  amount  to  which it is entitled. If you want  to  wander 
from  that  point  and  indulge  in  a discussion of how these  principles 
shall be applied, when perhaps 50 years,  or 100 years, or 200 years 
from now cach  country will be in a condition  to use the  maximum 
amount of waters  which  are to be applied, I shall be pleased to  go 
on  with  a discussion of that question. 

As to  the  fundamental  principle of international  law,  Chief Jus- 
tice  Marshall  laid  down the rule over 100 years  ago : 

That thc jurisdictiolk of 8 nation witllil! its o w 1  Icrritory is nec.essarily es-. 
c . ln s i I t ?  ;ill41 absolute: it is s;i!scq)til)le of no 1imit;ttion not imposed by itself. 
Any restriction upon it derivecl frcml x11 external s o u r c ~  would imply II dinlinu- 
I icxr of its sov(Srt3ignty to t l ~ v  c,stcmt of tho restrict-iou n ~ ~ t l  the i~~vc~stment  of the 
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sovereignty t o  the s ~ ~ l e  extent i n  that II(J\Ver which could inlpoee such restric- 

within  its own territory  must be traced up to the consell1 of the  uation  itself. 
tion. The  exceptions,  therefore.  to  the fu l l  a11d cwuplete power of 11 natioll 

That  principle of international  law  has  been  repeated  constantly 
by the  Supreme  Court of t8he  United  States,  and it is repeated in 
substance  in  this  very  treaty  itself. I cite  from  Art,icle 11: 

goverrlluents on the one side aud the Dolnirlion or  I'rorincial governnlelltS 011 
l h c h  of the  high  coutracting  parties reserves  to  itself, or to the  several  State 

the  other, ;is the case l m y  be, subject to any  tre;lty lwovisions now existing w-itll 
rosy]& thereto,  the  exclusive  juristliction ;iml c:olltrol o v ( T  the use i l l l d  diYerSioll. - 
kvhether tc:mporary pcrmanerrt. of all waters 0 1 1  its own side of the  line  which 
il l  their  uatlunl c:il;lllueis woult l  flow : I C ~ O S H  the. I)otul1tl:rrg or into bonlldary 
waters-" 

Mr. POWELL. The  sting  is  in  the  tail of it;  read on. 
Mr. WYVELL. I had  intended to do SO. 

but it  is ;igretvl t h l t  :my interferpwe  with or tli~:c.r.sioli IIWIII t h t s i ] *  n:ttur;ll c11a11- 
ne1 of such watrrs oi l  either si&> of tllo 1)orruti;lry. I w u l t i u i :  i l l  ally injury on 
the  other sitlc of th,. Imnudary. slulII  give riw to tile smue rights and entitle 
the  injured 1);lrties to the S:ilIIe Icgal remeitirs :LS i f  sncll injury took Il1;we in 
the  country  wlwre such UversioiI or int(>rferwt.<1 o c c ~ r s ,  but  this 1)rovision shall 

ngreenle~zt bet\veen the  parties  hereto. 
not  apl)ly to cases nlrently existing or t o  C V I S ~ S  csslmwly covered by special 

It is  true  that  in  this  treaty  the  parties  did  limit  their sovereignty. 
I want  to  emphasize  the  fundamental  principle of international  law, 
which has been  quoted  by Mr. Attorney  General  Harmon,  merely  to 
bring  out  the  other  important  rule of internatiorial  law,  which  all  the 
text  writers  have  adhered  to,  and  which  has likewise been affirmed re- 
peatedly  by  the  Supreme  Court of the  United  States-that  the  limita- 
tion  upon  the  authority of a  nation  must be construed  strictly,  and 
that  that  interpretation of a  treaty is preferred  which  imposes  the 
least  restriction  upon  the  sovereignty of a nation. So that  the  inter- 
pretation of this  treaty is to  be  preferred  which  Imposes  the  least 
restriction  upon  the  sovereignty of either  nation. 

Mr. POWELL. Referring  to  these  words: 
But i t  is ngrcetl thnt :rny intc.rfert~nct~  with or rlivclrsion frow their llatural 

ch:1111!!t1 of such wxters on rither sitlo of the I)ollntl;rry, resulting  in any injury 
on thc, other  side of the boundary. 

This clause has  always  bothered me a  good  deal, and  at first  readin 
the words seem to  point  against  your  argument.  Injury is a lega 7 
term.  We  know  what it means ; it means  damage, in  the eyes of the 
law. If the  United  States or if Canada  had  the  absolute  right  to  cut 
off and  divert,  for  its own  purposes,  a  stream  which crossed the 
boundary,  would it recognize that it was an  injury  and make  provi- 
sion, not  only  as  regards  the  injury  but  the  damnum,  and  make  pro- 
vision  how the  damnum  is  to  be based. The  treaty  recognizes  that 
that  is  a  legal wrong. 

Mr. WYVELL. The  treaty-making  powers  would  have  the  right t.0 
do  what  they  want  to  do  with  regard  to  that. 

Mr. POWELL. There is no  doubt  about  that,  but  while  they  have 
that  right  they  stipulate  there  that  they  must  pay  for  any  injury. 

Mr. WYVELL. Certainly ; it prescribes how the remedy is to be 
worked  out. 

Mr. POWELL. But it recognizes it as  a  legal  mong,  and  that  has 
always  bothered me. I can  not see how t'he  United  States  authority 
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ever  could get in there,  with respect to  a  matter  like  that,  but it is 
there. 

Mr. WYVELL. Great  Britain  has  asserted  the  same  rule  that we 
have  been  contending  for,  and  she  has  asserted  the  same  rule  in  this 
case. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I s  it not  a  fact  that in adopting  this section of 
Article 11, Great  Britain  and  the TJnited States  have  done  what  no 
t,wo other  nations  in  the  world  have  ever done before,  that  is,  to 
recognize  not  only  the  right  to  recover dama,gm from  the  citizens of 
the  other  country,  but also to  give  to  the cltlzen in  a  country  who 
has  sustained  the  damage  the  rlght  to sue in  the  jurisdiction of the 
*Ither country for the  purpose of recovering  compensation for  that 
damage ? 

Mr. WYVEIL. They  havc been very  honorable  about it. 
Mr. TAWNEI-. This  is  the first  time in  the  history of treaty-making 

where one nation  has  conceded t.o the  citizens of the  other  the  right 
of maintaining  action  in  the  courts of the  other  country  for  the 
purpose of recovering  damages  on  account of any  act  that  may be 
committed  in  the  other  country. 

Mr. WYVELL. I presume  that  may be so. 
Mr. S.~NDS. Was  there  not  a  consideration  passed  for  that  agree- 

Mr. TAWNEY. Nothing  except  amity  and  good  feeling. 
Mr. WYVELL. That was  tho  right  thing  to clo morally;  there  is  no 

question  about  that. 
It may be illuminative if I read  what  Mr.  Hall,  a  great  English 

writer on int,ernational  law,  has  said  on  this  subject  in  discussing  the 
question of rivers,  and  no  doubt Mr. Powell is very  familiar  with 
this  work.  On  pages 139 and 1400! W. E. Hall,  Sixth  Edition  Inter- 
national  Law,  he discusses with  a  good  deal of detail  all of these 
questions of rivers  flowing  from  one  country  to  another,  the  Elbe, 
the  Khine,  and  the St. Lawrence,  because it was  a  subject of dis- 
cussion  between the  Cjovernments  in 1824, and  he  says: 

A nmrked  tendeucy h:!s no tlou!)l- slmwn  itself during  the  present  century 
to do nrvay n-\-ith prohi1,il i o 1 1  0 1 ’  t t r  Iws(-Il restrictions of river  navigation by 
fortligners, 11s :L nef~llw!< ( J I I ~ ~ : ~ I . ~ ; I S S I I I ~ ~ I I ~  to  trade,  but  this has been the  result, 
not of o l ) c ~ t l i m ! c * c .  to  1 i 1 w .  I w  t of el~liglltc~llrvl pollry ; and it may be said without 

rivrrs :It w i l l  ; th:lt it ni:1y t n s  :Inti rt’gu1:lte transit over them as it chooses, and 
hesit:rtion tllnt so f : ~ r  a s  tlw 1;\~,. is concwned a State mag close or open its 

that tllough it woultl  l w  1vrn11g i l l  :I Inoral srnse, as it n o u l t l  gcnerally be foolish, 
to USP Il~csc ~,o~vc’rs I lc~cv1less l .v  or i n  nn :Irbitrary  n~:mner,  it is morally as well 

cise pressor(. 11.v t h d r  m w n s  (II‘ so as to havc, snmething  against concessions by 
its Icgt1lly p(~~~n~issil)le to rct;lin them. so R S  to he able when necessary  to  exer- 

zu~otller power. 
He is  t,here  discussing, of course, only  river  navigation,  but it is 

much  more  equitable that a navigable  river  should be kept  open  than 
one which is not  navigable. 

Mr. POWELL. Would you draw  a  distinction  between  continuing 
natural  conditions  and  imposing  artificial  burdens? For instance,  a 
ship  navigating a river  is  an  artificial  thing.  Would you draw a 
distinction  between  water  flowing  down  a  river  in  its  ordinary  course 
of nature  and a ship  navigating  that  river? 

Mr. WYVELL. 1f.a  State exercises  unreasonable  restriction  over a 
navigable  river to interfere  with  trade,  it v o d d  be  a  greater  wrong 

ment ? 
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in a  moral sense, as  he  says,  and  a  greater  injury  to  other  people,  than 
if the  river were not  navigable. 

3fr. GLENN. Speaking  for myself, I would  like you, Mr. Wyvell 
and Mr. MacInness, to discuss  this  matter  from  these  two  aspects: 
first,  as  a  matter of fact,  taking  the  treaty as it is, with  all  the  cir- 
cumstances  and  facts  surroundmg  this case, what  evidence  have you 
got  that  in  this  treaty  the  high  contracting  parties  agree  that  the 
St. Mary  and  the  Milk  River  and  their  tributaries  are  to be consid- 
ered;  what  facts bear oat  the contention that  it.was never  intended 
that n river  that  did  not go across  the  international  line  should be 
included in  that  treaty?  In  the second  place,  if the  Government of 
the  United  States  did  make  such  a  treaty  and  included  all  these 
rivers,  what  right  had it to do so8 

Mr.  WYVELL.  The  first  fact  is  that  there was a specjfic proposition 
that  the  United  States proposed to  divert  water  from  the St. Marys 
River  to  the  Milk  River,  and  Canada  objected  and filed a  protest, 
which  was  referred to  by  Mr.  MacInnes,  and  to  which  further  refer- 
ence  was made by myself.  We  asserted, we asserted to  the  credit 
of the  United  States,  that while we intended  to  divert some of the 
water we did  intend to  allow  enough  water  to  pass that  river  to  take 
care of all Canadian needs. That  is contained in one of the  letters 
of Secretary  Hay. 

Mr. SANDS. Which  was  then  appropriated. 
Mr. WYVELL. Yes ; that was set  out  plainly,  and  then you will  re- 

member  that  Mr.  Dennis,  the  virile  gentleman  from  Canada,  was 
not satisfied  with  that,  and,  as he frankly  stated,  he  proposed to  
show the  Americans  that  they could deal  with  the  water  the  United 
States was going to send  in  there,  and  then  he  built  that  ditch  for 
the  express  purpose of taking  out  the  water  which we put  in,  in  the 
head  waters of the  Milk  River.  Therefore,  he  had  the specific  object 
in  mind of diverting  the  water  from  the Mills River  at  that  spot,  and 
that was  all  the  water  he  could  divert. 

There was not  a  single  thing  in  issue  about  any  tributary of the 
St. Marys  R’iver, of which  there  are  only  two  that  contribute  any 
water  to  the St. Marys  Rirer, which  do  not flow across  the  line,  and 
the  subject was  never  discussed for one  moment, nor of any of the 
tributaries of the  Milk  River  south  in  Montana,  which  do  not  cross 
the  boundary.  They were trying  to  get a treaty  which  would C I I ~ E  ;I 
specific  thing,  and  apply  an  equitable  arrangement to the  division of 
waters,  and  the  southern  tributaries to  the  Milk  River was  never in 
their  heads,  and  if you want  any  further  evidence of it what  better 
evidence  is  there  than  the  significant  telegram  that  was  sent.  The 
United  States  never  discussed  any  such  thing  from 1902 until 1909, 
and  in 1909, on the  9th  day of January, when the  treaty  had been 
under  discussion for eight or nine  years,  the  Canadians  suddenly 
thought of the  word “ Saskatchewan.” The word ‘‘ Saskatchewan )’ 
was  not in  any of the  drafts or in  any of the  papers  which passed 
before  that. Yo11 had  the  Province of Alberta  and  the  State of 
Montana,  but  the  word  “Saskatchewan ” never  appeared. I f  Sas- 
katchewan  were  omitted,  would  any  of you gentlemen  even  dignify 
the  suggestion  with  a moment’s thought  that  the  streams  flowing 
from  southern  Montana  would be a  part of this  treaty?  Why, 
certainly  not.  But  Ca.nada sl1ggested t,he  word ‘‘ Saskatchewan 7 7  
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two  days  before  the  signing of the  treaty. Mr. Chandler  Anderson, 
seeing that  there were  a  few  northerly  tributaries of the  Milk,  with- 
out  knowin  their  importance,  thought  that  the  United  States  ought 
to accept  t a e  waters  which i t  receives from these tributaries  that 
come from Canada,  and  he  consented  to  the  word “ Saskatchewan.” 
Do you  mean to  think  for  a moment that  the  insertion of the  word ‘‘ Saskatchewan ” suddenly  brought  into  the  purview of the  treaty, 
without  previous discussion,  would include  tributaries  from  the 
southern  part of Montana? 

Mr. TAWNEY. Do you  mean to  say  that  the  representatives of the 
Government of the  United  States,  who  made  this  treaty,  did  not 
h o w  that these tributaries  were  in  the  south of Montana? 

Mr. WYVELL. Certainly  they  knew  they were. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I f  they  knew  they  were  there  why  did  they  not 

except them? 
Mr. WWELL. Let us go back  to th.at thought. You doubtless know 

that  the  original  plan of the  settlement of this difficulty  was a, sepa- 
rate  treaty. As time  wore  on  the  difficulties of getting  a  separate 
treaty  were increased. Other  features of the  international  situation 
were  coming  on,  and  it  was  decided  to  put  this  question  about  the 
Milk  and St. Mary  Rivers  in  the  waterways  treaty,  creating  the 
International  Joint Commission.  They  were  obliged to  make  the 
reference  to  this  matter  in  the  treaty  as brief as possible, and  you 
will see if you  examine  the  drafts  they  cover a matter of three or 
four  pages  in  the  drafts,  but  the  whole  thin  is  finally  condensed 
into a very  short  space in the  t.reaty  here,  an a many  things  are  left 
out which  eventually  might  need  additional  light.  There  is  this 
further  fact  that  in every  single  draft  the idea. of international  waters 
appears,  and  that  Secretary  Root’s  letter  says: “ The  waters which 
cross the  international  boundary.”  There is no uestion about  that. 
Even  the  drafts  submitted  by Mr. Campbell for I anada  and  by Mr. 
Kin  for  Canada  state  that it is a question of boundary  waters. 

&y, :IS you get  into this thing, am1 the Inore you think it over, 
yon will : ‘e there  are  circumstances  surrounding  it  which  prove  that 
I t  is absurd  to  t,hink of trying  to  divide  that which in  nature Tau 
can  not  divide.  This  is a practical proposition.  How are  you  ever 
goin  to  give  Cnnada nnp of the  mater  from  the  tributaries of south- 
ern gontann?  H O ~  are you going  to  give ~ m e r i c a  water  from 
two of the  tributaries  which flow into  the St. Mar  River  and  which 
contribute 6,000 acre-feet  to  the St. Mary  Rirerq  This  is  a  prac- 
tical  proposition:  it  is  not  a  question of indulging in theories; it is 
8 question of applying  that  water  to  the  land.  The  treaty  says  that 
you gentlemen  are  to do it from  time to time, to measure  and  appor- 
tion from time  to  time  the  maters  which  can be used, and  that is 
your  duty here. 

I have been studying  this  thing u long  time, and  you  gentlemen 
have been thinking  about  it,  but  the  more yon study it the  more 
clear will your view  become and  the  more you mill see the possibili- 
ties for assisting  the  two  Governments. 

Mr. POWELL. There is one feature t,o which I would  like  to  call 
your attention.  What you say  about  the  introduction of “ Saskatche- 
wan ” strikes me as  having  a  good deal  in it,  but how about  this 
feature:  These  early  drafts.  as you say! did  deal  with  dividing  the 
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waters  that  cross  the  boundary  line. Now, when that use of lan- 
guage  has been  followed in  all  the  drafts,  and we find it utterly 
abandoned in  the  final  draft  and  in  the  treaty, would that  not  rather 
indicate  that  the  treaty  makers  gave  up  the old idea  and  took some- 
thing different in its place? 

Mr. WYVELL. No indeed,  rather  would it indicate  that it was SO 
absurd to consider anything else that  in  the  interest of brevity it was 
left  out. 

Mr. POWELL. When  did  this  light  from  heaven  let  in on their 
minds, because they  must  have been very  obtuse in  the first place 
to  draft  such  language.  Mr.  Root is one of the  brightest  intellects 
in  the  world,  and he  used it in  the  treaty,  and  he usd it in  the  drafts, 
and it is  referred  to  again  and  again,  and  in  the  end  they  abandoned 
that  language  and  adopted  genera,l  language,  and  instead of having 
rivers  and  tributaries  that  cross  the  boundary  line  they  dealt  with 
another  thing. 

Mr. WWELL. The evidence is that  there never was any  thought 
in  their  minds  but of international  waters. Mr. Newell,  who, as 
you  know, is  an  excellent  citizen,  worked on the  draft of the  treaty 
all  this  time  with  Mr.  Anderson  and  other  gentlemen on  both  sides, 
and  they  never  in one single  instance  gave  the  other idea, a  thought, 
and  is it reasonable  to  suppose  they would change it without  dis- 
cussion ? 

Mr. POW’ELL. But  they  did  change  it.  Why  should  they  change 
thc  language  unless  they  changed  the  thought? If the old language 
expresses  definitely  and  clearly  the  idea  which you are  putting  for- 
ward,  and  which it certainly does, why  did  they  abandon  the  limita- 
tion  and use general  language? 

Mr. WYVEIL. I have  a  statement of Mr. Anderson  which I have 
not  read  into  the  record, because I thought if you  needed the  assist- 
ance of Mr.  Anderson or anyone  else  connected  with  the  making of 
the  treaty you could  call  them. You have been so good  as to  accept 
everything  that  either of us  thought  might  enlighten you that I 
though it hardly  proper to  read  thls  statement  from  Mr.  Anderson, 
as  he  was  not  here. I t  would  be perfectly  proper  for  the commis- 
sion, if they  think  that subject  will  be of assistance to  them,  to  call 
Mr.  Anderson  and  Mr. Newell and Mr. King  and  any of the  gentle- 
men connected  with  the  making of the  treaty  and  ask  them  what was 
in  their  minds  at  the  time  the  treaty  was  finally  settled.  There  is  no 
objection to  that. I do not. know anything about it personally. I 
know  that  Mr.  Anderson  says  in  his  statement,  which  is  not  in the 
record, that it was  never  even  suggested,  and that it was left  out  to 
make  the  treaty  as  brief  as possible. I f  you want further  informa- 
tion on that,  why  not  call  them? 

Mr. BIEN. I would  suggest  one  thing. It is  said  that  the  thought 
has been changed  and  the  language  in  the  treaty used. Without 
going  into  an  extended  discussion, I would like to  suggest that  there 
would have been a  different  thought if the  parenthetical  clause  had 
read “ in  the  State of Montana 01’ the  Province of Alberta or ‘ Sas- 
katchewan.’” The word “ o r ”  would have a very  important effect 
there,  and  in  considering  what  the  clause  means it is  necessary to  
consider  what  the  force of that word  is.  We  are  speakin of these 
two  river  systems5n  the  State of Montana  and  in  the  two  Frovinces, 
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:mtl it means  the watcrrs that lie on one side  and on the  other of the 
boundary;  whereas, if they  had  intended  to  include all the  tribu- 
taries of t l ~ e  Milk lZiver in Montana,  the  proper  word  to use would 
have been the  word “ or ” and  not  the  word “ and.” 

Mr. Wnw,I, .  However  that.  may be, I have  tried to cover  the 
ground presented in the discussion. Without  desiring  to  prolong 
the discussion I will go to another  part, because without  question  the 
treaty was made  to correct a certain evil. Again  do I want  to em- 
phasize  that these two  rivers  are  not  to be treated as two  rivers  and 
the  waters  divided  as a matter of theoretical discussion or as a 
matter of argument.  They  are  to be treated  as  one  stream  for  the 
purpose of irrigation  and  power,  and  the  waters  to be used are for  
the  purpose of irrigation  and  power.  These  words LL irrigation  and 
power ” stand  out  clearly  and  distinctly. 

Mr.  GLENN.  Would these streams  north of the  line  and  these 
streams  south of the  line be used for  that  purpose? 

Mr. WWELL. Mr.  Peters said-and I compliment  the  young man- 
that  they  had  no  plans  to  use  the  waters of the St. Mary  River below 
IZimball. 

Mr. GLENN. Could it not, be used for  power? 
Mr. WYVELL.  Mr.  Peters  stated  in  the  next  breath  that it could  be 

used for power in  the  summertime  when  they  did  not  need it for 
irrigation. H e  stated in his  verbal  statement-and I was  glad  to 
hear  him  make  the  frank  statement-that  conditions  were  such  that 
they  had  no  plans  to use the  water for power. 

Are you gentle me^^ going  to  at,tempt to  divide  waters below the 
Kimball  Canal,  which  can not, in  the  remote  future be used for  irri- 
gation  and  which can not be used for power, and  to  match  these 
waters  up  against  the  sudden flood waters  down  in  Montana  which 
can  not  be used for  irrigation  and  can  not be used for power  instead 
of turning  your  attent~on  to  the  administrative  features  here  and 
npportioning  the  waters  that  are  to be used upon  the  lands by ench 
country ? That is what your duties are, and they are most important. 

The  treaty  says  thdt you are  to  measure  and  apportion  the  waters 
from  time  to time. How are  you  going  to  measure  and  apportion 

’ waters  which  escape  to  the  Missouri or Belly  Rivers?  The  treaty 
says  you  are  to  measure  these  waters  which  are  to be used. How 
can  you  apportion  and  measure  waters  which  escape  and  can  not 
be used? 

Mr. TAWNEY. It is supposed that  the  waters to be used will in- 
crease from  year  to  year. 

Mr. WYVELL. That  is  what  the  treaty contemplates, and  your 
measurements  from  time  to  time  will  enlighten  you  as  to  what  you 
are  to do. The words “ from  time  to  time”  are  important.  This 
treaty is not  a  theory  for  yon  gentlemen  to  work  out; it is  a  rac- 
tical  thin  and  under it we want you to  help  the  two  countries.  %hat 
is  what t E e  United  States  wants  you  to do. We want  you  to  help 
the  two  countries.  We  have  suggested how  you  could do it. The 
words “ measure  and  apportion  the  waters  from  time  to  time ” stand 
out  clearly  in  the  treaty. 

It may be that I shall  ask  to  submit  remarks on these  different 
points  in  writing.  We  have  made  a  candid  statement  here  first  on 
the  rinci le of maximum  amount  to  which  each  country  may  be 
e n d e d .  b e  then  suggested  certain  things  which you might do a t  
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this time. So far  from  the  lips of the  other  side  there has been no 
discussion of the  treaty. 

I have  made a candid  statement of what  the TJnited States’  posi- 
tion  should be. I f  this  position  is  controverted,  then  the  discupion 
beains,  not  ends,  and it will come to  diplomatic  negotiations. kr. TAWNEY. Why do  you say  that it begins  and  not ends! 

Mr. WYVELL. As to  the  construction of the  treaty, it begins. 
Mr. TAWNEY. Has not  the commission  power to  determine  the 

controversy? If the  position of our  Government  is  controverted  on 
the  other  side, I understand you to say that would  be  the  beginning 
of diplomatic  negotiations between the two countries  for  the  pur- 
pose of interpreting  the  treaty.  Then,  that  would, of course,  pre- 
clude  from  this commission the, power to perform  its  duty  under 
this  treaty. Is that  your  contention? 

Mr. WYVELL. No; the  duty of the conlmission is clear,  to  appor- 
tion  the  waters  which  are to be used. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I s  it not  within  the power of the commission to  in- 
terpret  the  treaty  with  respect to  the  duty  which  the  two  Govern- 
ments  have  imposed  upon  the  commission? 

Mr. WYVELL. You are  aware, Mr. Chairman,  that  Article I of the 
treaty  with  Great  Britain  states  that  there  shall be referred  to  The 
Hague difficulties which  may  arise  relating to  the  interpretation of 
treaties  existing between the  contracting  parties  and  which it may 
not  have been found  possible,  etc. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I am aware o f  that,  but  this  is a subsequent,  treaty 
and  refers  to a specific thing. 

Mr. WYVELL. If it were referred  to  the commission, as would 
probably be done,  certainly;  but it would  have to be on  issues  pre- 
sented  and  not on an  informal  hearing  instituted  by  the commission 
itself. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Under  this  treaty  this commission may  determine 

dl erences  on  questions of law  and  questions of fact  would  have to 
go to  The  Hague? I do  not  wish to  interrupt  you,  but it seems to 
me as  testing  the  validity of your  conclusions in other  respects,  a 
very  remarkable  position for you to  take-that we would  not  have 
the  power to  determine  under  this  treaty  just  what our duty was m 
the remises. d. WYVELL. Would you suggest  how,  under  present  conditions, 
you  could  measure  and  apportion waters- 

Mr. TAWNEY. We  will  render our decision  as to how these  waters 
can  be  measured  and  apportioned,  as we have been given  power to  
do  by  both  countries. 

Mr. WYVELL. I would  say that  the decision of the  Solicitor  and 
every  legal officer in  the  State  Department is, that  under  Article IX 
or other  articles of the  treaty you have  the  power to  decide  things 
which are  referred  to you. 

a?$ question or difference  between  the  parties;  do you say  that 

Mr. TAWNEY. We  have  no  power  to  decide  under  Article IX. 
Mr. WYVELL. Well, I included the  other  articles. 
Mr. TAWNET. Under  Articles 111, IV,  VIII, and X we have  tho 

power. 
Mr. WYVELL. You  have  the  power  to  decide  anything  which may 

be  referred  for  decision  or  report  to  you,  but you can  read this 
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treaty  through  and you  can not find anything in Article VI  which 
gives you any  power  to  interpret. 

Mr.  GLENN. Do yo11 mean  to  say  that we have  not  the  power  under 
ArticJe V I   t o  say  whether  the  tributaries  south  and  north  which  do 
not cross the  line  are  intended  to be  included  in  this? 

Mr. WWELL. That  matter is so important  that I would  like to 
submit  in  writing my position. I think,  in  order  that  my  state- 
ment  may be accm-ate, that I mnst  have some time  to  put it in 
writing. 

Mr.  GLENN. I am frank to  tell yon that I think we have  all  the 
power we need to do t,hat.  We  hkve  power to decide. AS to  how 
we.will decide, that is another  thing. 

Mr. WYVELL. Well,  that, as I say, I wonld  prefer to place in  writ- 
ing. I assume that vou gentlemen  will  want  to  give it some  con- 
Fideration. 

Mr. FOWFLL. Although  the old treaty  is  antecedent  to  this  present 
treaty, you claim that  inasmuch  as  the  laws of both  countries will 
be taken as always  speaking,  the old treaty mill govern? 

Mr.  WYVELL. Of  course, it really is not  antecedent: it is subse- 
quent, because it was  reratified  and  revired  last  spring. It was  ex- 
tended far  a  period of five years  longer  which  made it a  new treaty 
for five years. 

Mr. POWELL. Then it was in  force  before  our  treaty. 
Mr. WYVELL. It was in  force  before  our  treaty,  and  then  estab- 

lished  again  by  the  exchange of ratifications. Rut  that  matter I 
would  prefer  to  submit  in  writing  in  order  that it may  be  clear. Of 
course, the  commission  could  hardly  question  the  plain  words of 
the  last  paragraph, where it refers  to  the  measurement  and  appor- 
tionment of the  water  to be used. We  would  contend  that  waters 
which  are  not  to be used  by  the t ~ 7 o  Governments  are  not  within 
the  intention of the  parties. You can  not  follow  the  waters  down 
the  Missouri  and be able to  apply  them to the benefit of Canada. It 
is  waters  which  the  Government  says it  intends  to use  and  apply  to 
the  lands.  These  are  the  waters  to  be  divided,  and  may I add  further 
that I hope  you  do  not  assume  that even if you had  the  power  to 
decide the  treaty yon  would  consider  this  hearing  as  a  framing of 
issues. If   this  is  a  matter  to  be  submitted, I shall  urge  that it be 
submitted  to  the  tribunal  regardless of The  Hague  tribunal,  but  then, 
of course, it should be limited  to  framed issues and  the  parties  out- 
side,  the  Canadian  Pacific  Railway  and  the  Great  Northern  R,ail- 
way, I suppose,  would  not  appear. It would be an issue  between the 
two  Governments respectively. 

Mr. SANDS. The  purpose of this  treaty was to  provide  for  a  divi- 
sion of the St. Mary  waters so that we Americans  could  bring  water 
across into  the  Milk  River.  The  testimony  here  shows  that  the flow 
of the  two  streams  are  practically  the same. Therefore,  the  purpose 
of the  treaty  was  wholly  subversive  and  there mould be no  use in 
building  a  canal  from  the St. Mary  River  into  the  Milk  River 
because we would  not  have  any  water to  put  into it. 

k Mr. TAWNEY. Mr. Wyvell,  have you  concluded your statement? 
Mr. WWELL.  Yes, sir ;  unless there  are some other questions that 

the  commissioners  wish  to ask. 
Mr. POWELL. There  are  three  or  four questions that  arise  there. 

For instance,  the C. P. R. have  a  contention  that  the 500 feet of prior 
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appropriation was the  minimum to which Canada was entitled,  that 
it  stored  that 500 feet and went up  as fnr its the  three-quarters 
would give  them,  and the sanw  thing vice ve:-sw as regartfs the 
TJnited States  and the Milk  liiver. 

Mr. WTVELL.  Did Mr. Dennis  testify  to  that? 
Mr. POWELL. No; but  that is one of the contentions. 
Mr. WALKEI:.  I think you have  misapprellerldrd the position of the 

company. No snch interpret:ttion was ever intended  to be placed 
on it. 

Mr. POWELL.  \Vas not  the  contention nlatle t)y the company that 
it was  entitled to 509 feet  absolutely? 

Mr. W A I X E I ~ .  IZut not that it consented. 
Mr. ~ w I ~ I , T , .  well,  take  thc (:ontention  with respeck to  the 500 

feet. Ii' you  will Ioolr again a n t 1  lwcp the  t lwty hefore your minds, 
you  will find that,  other  questions arise. For imtance,  in  the case 
of prior  appropriation, is t h t  prior  appropriation to be :l part of 
the  one-half, or hefore  they  divide into moieties tlces the  United 
States  take  its prior appropriation dnd then  divide  equally  the  bal- 
ance? Now, there  is a third  construction  \\hidl may arise. Is the 
dominating  language of the statnte th:lt sentence relating  to  prior 
appropriation? After you h v e  made i t  to e:wh have you got t o  
go to worlc ant1 marshal  the hl:mce so 21s to hing it out as nearly :IS 
possible to givin  one  a  moiety of the sum total ? 

Mr. WYVICILL. f hac1 not heard anyone  raise the  point  here. 
Mr. T.~WSEY. Those  are  (pestions  which sllggest  themselves in  the 

exercise of the  functions which the two Governments  require of the 
commission. If there  are  any  differences of opinion, I suppose  those 
differences  will  have to go to The  Hague  with  the others. 

Mr. WYVELL. The second  sentence of Article VI reads as follows: 
I t  is furtlictr ngrertl that  in tlrt: tlivisio~r of such waters during the  irrigation 

season,  between  the 1st of April ant1 the 3lst of October,  inclusive, annually, 
the  United  Stntcs  is entitlod to :L prior nppropriation of 500 cubic feet per 
secollcl of t h e  waters of the If i lk Itivcr, or so murh o €  such amount as consti- 

rtpproprintinlt of %!I) cwhic fcrt per semntl o f  the flow of St.  Mary River, or so 
tutrs  three-fourths of its  n:ltnml f l o w ,  and  that Cnrltltla is entitled  to a prior 

1 r u n c . l ~  o f  su(*11 : I I I I I ) I I I ~ ~  as c.onstitntc~s three-fourths of its  natural flow. 
For the  information of the c-ommission I will be pleased to state 

that  it  is the belief of the  United  State,s  that  this  reference  to  prior 
appropriations  means  that each country  is  entitled  to  first  call  on 
500 cnbic feet  per second, or so much of said  amount as constitutes 
three-fourths of the  natural flow of the  rivers,  respectively,  and  that 
the  amount  actually received  by  each country  shall be charged  against 
it, in  making  the final division. 

The first sentence of this  article clearly  states  that  the  waters of 
the two rivers shall be apportioned  eqnally.  This  equal  apportion- 
ment  is  controlling,  and  the  prior  appropriations  are  merely  certain 
fixed preferences to  be taken  out of each  country's  share  and  affords 
one illustration of how  more  than  one-half of the  water  may be 
taken  from  one  river  and  more  than  half  from  the  other. It first 
says that  they  shall be apportioned  equally.  Here is one  way in 
which that must be done. This question of whether  the appropri- 
ations  are to be taken  out  first  and  the  remainder  divided, or whether 
they are a part of the one-half  share of each  conntry,  can  not  arise 

11 398-1 5-1 6 
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until one of the  countries  is  reacy  to  apply  to beneficial use the 
maximum  one-half  share to  which it is  entitled. 

NOW, the  further  suggestion I will  anticipate. I h  was  made in 
your  report as to  what  the  throe-fourths  means.  There  is  still  an- 
other  t,hought in  there. That is, assuming  the flow to be 600 feet 
or less, what  part would each  country  get?  On  t,hat it is  our belief, 
a n d 2  believe that of the  gentlemen  from  Canada,  that  wheilcver  the 
flow is 500 feet  or less each  country  gets  three-fourths of i t ;   that  
whenever  the flow is 667 feet  or  more  each  country  gets  its 500 second- 
feet,  and, of course, the  remainder  is  to be distributed  under  the 
general  terms of the  treaty;  and  that whenever the flow is  between 
500 feet and the 667 feet each  country, rcspectively, continues  to  get 
its  three-fourths  share. 

Mr. POWELL. Your  memorandum  there sets the  two  forth,  but it 
does not  state  to  which  they  are  attached. 

Mr. WYVELJ,.  That  prior  appropriation  furnishes one may  of how 
more  than  one-half  may be taken  and  states  that it is  to be ultimately 
charged  against  the  maximum  one-half  share of the  comtry which 
receives it. 

Mr. POWELL. That is  to be taken  out of the  half  that  that  country 
receives 1 

Mr. WYWLL. It is to be a part of the  half. 
Mr. SANDS. Illustrate a thousand  feet,  and  suggest  what  your 

Mr. WYT’ELT,. No. Mr.  Powell  means :L half of the  larger. 
Mr. POWELL. Let 11s take  a  summer flow, which  would  tolerably 

approximate  the  average  state of affairs.  Let 11s suppose that  in  the 
St. Mary  River  there  is II flow  of 400 second-feet. Canada,  nnder  the 
terms of the  treaty,  would be entitled  to a prior  appropriation of 300 
feet.  There  is  100  feet  left of surplus.  The  Milk  River  about  that 
time,  under those  circumstances,  would  not  have  more than 100 feet. 
The  United  States would be entitled  to a prior  appropriation of 75 
feet,  and  there  would be a surplus  there of 25 feet. Now, if  Canada 
gets 300 feet  and  the  United  States  gets 75 feet  from  the  rivers 
respectively, there  is a surplus  in  the St. Mary  River of 100 feet  and 
a  surplus  in  the  other  river of 25 feet.  Are those two  surpluses  to  be 
added,  making 125 feet,  and  that  dividend,  givin  each 629 second- 
feet,  or  is  the  United  States to have  the  surplus o f 25 feet to  help it 
out  and  also  the 100 feet,  which  would  give it a total of 200 feet? 

Mr.  WYVELL.  Our  idea  is  that  that  surplus  should be put  together. 
Mr. POWELL. We  have  not  to  wait  indefinitely  in  the  future  for  that 

state of affairs,  because that  is  transpiring  there  to-day.  The flow is 
bigger  to-day,  but it was  there  when we were  there  in  July  last. So 
we have  to  deal  with  that  practical  question nom. 

Mr. WYVELL. Of  course, they  could  take  that if they  wanted  to 
take  water. 

Mr. POWELL. Well,  they  are  going  to be ready  this  next  year. 
Mr. WYVELL. My  belief is, If I understand  your figures, that  the 

300 feet  which  Canada  would  be  entitled  to  must  be  set  on  one  side 
of a  balance sheet. 

Mr. POWELL. I n  the case put of a flow of 100 feet  from  the  Milk 
and 400 feet from  the St. Mary,  Canada is entitled  to  have 300 feet 
set  aside  from  the St. Mary  River,  and  the  United  States  will be 
entitled  to  have 75 feet  set  aside  from  the  Milk  River. 

idea is. 
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Mr. WYVELL. If our  Government  should  take  the IO0 feet, we will 
say, that we will be entitled to  from  the St. Mary  and  then  Canada 
should  take  its 25 which it mould be entitled  to  from  the  Milk  River, 
we, will  have  on  the  balance sheet then 325 cubic feet  per second on 
the onc side  and 175 cubic feet  per  second  on  the  other.  Those  two 
figures  should be left  there  and  ultimately  each respectively should  be 
charged  against  the  total  one-half;  in  other  words,  a  part of the 
one-half. 

Mr. POWELL. Under those circumstances i t  is  absolutely  impossible 
to  give  the  prior  appropriations  as  you  have  stated  and  still  give  each 
one-half.  That  is beyond  the  capability of even the  Almighty. You 
hare  200 feet. You say we will  allow  Canada  to  have  a  prior  appro- 
priation of 300 feet.  What  is  the use of talking  about  the  final  dispo- 
sition of the  thing,  becanse  Canada  has  grabbed  the 300, which  is 
more  than  half  to  start  with. 

Mr. WYVELL. We  must  then  deal  with  the 125. If the  United 
States  demands it, give  her  the 100 out of the St. Mary. I f  Canada 
demands it, she  must  have  the 25 out of the  Milk. 

Mr. POWELL. I am against  you  on  that  in  favor of the  United 
States. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. That mould not be fair to the  United  States. 
Mr. W Y ~ E L L .  S s  I understand  your  illustration,  there  is  flowing 

100 feet down  the  Milk  River.  The  United  States  is  entitled  to 75 
feet. 

Mr. POWELL. Cimada  is  not  entitled  to  the  other 25. That is a 
matter 0 rn:lrshaling  and  division  aftcrwnrds.  Thcre  are  only  two 
views that  are bcfore us. According to one view you should  take 
these  prior  appropriations hefore you  begin  your  equitable  division 
at all, add the  two  surpluses  together,  which  make  125  feet,  and 
divide  that  amount.  The  other  way  is  to say that  while we must  set 
aside  the  prior  appropriations, yet the  dominating  principle is 
equality,  and we must  reach  that as closely as possible. The  nearest 
approach  that we can  make  to  that is to  throw to the  United  States 
the whole 125 of the  surplus,  which,  after  all, gives them 200 and 
gives Canada 300. 

Mr. WITELL. That  might be proper.  That  throws  in  an  additional 
thought.  That  further  illustrates how the  two  men  who  are  watch- 
5ng the  situation  would  throw  that  125  feet. 

Mr. Power,r>. We  want  to bnow  on what  principle  this  is  going 
to be done. 

Mr. WYVELL. I assume that  that would be a matter of discretion, 
because the commission  can  not be there  every  day,  and I assume that 
these  men are  going to do  whichever  is best for  each  country  under 
that  situation. 

Mr. POWELL. We  want you to  argue  that  before us. 
Mr. WYVELL. I would  have  to  take  more  time  on  a  subject of that 

kind. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. I would  suggest  to  you, Mr. Wyvell,  that your line 

of argument  should be this:  That  the  prior  appropriations  are  debts 
which  each  country owes to  its citizens. The  debts  which  each 
country  had  with  regard  to  its  own  citizens  were  recognized in the 
treaty,  the  division,  however,  to be equal to the  entire  quantity. 
However, I do  not  state  that  as  my view. 
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Mr. ~VYVEI~L.  Mr. Powell  put a case where, of course,  neither river. 
was flowing 500 secmcl-feet. 

Mr. POWELL. That would be; the case for  two or  three  months.  The 
St. Mary got  down as l o w  last  year  as 150 feet. 

Mr. WPVELL. It emphasizes the  importance of having  your  agents 
there  to  report back what mould be the ;)est thing  to be done. Of 
course, the  countries  would be glad to  do  whatever is equitable. 

Mr. PO\YF:I,I,. It is not ;L quef;tim of' h c t s  at :dl.  \Vhat we want  to 
know is  the !,rinciple to be :Ipplicd to the  facts. You had  better 
think  that o ~ ~ r  wnd pllt that ir! your  brief, bccause that is what we 

write  them  out, if y o u  like. 
Mr. W P V F W L .  I had considered only three. I will  appreciate it if 

you would write t~ brief sunlmxry of them  before I submit  my  argu- 
ment  in  writing. 

(The  comnksion  thereupon,. at 5.40 o'clock p. m., adjourned  until 
Friday morning, M:jy 28, 1915, at 10 o'clock a. m.) 

FRIDAY, MAY 28, 1915. 
Pursuant  to  the  adjournment  the commission met at  10. o'clock 

a. nl.. all  the  members  being  nresent. 
~~ Mr. TAWNEY. Have  you'hAything  further,  Mr.  Wyvell,  that you 
desire  to  offer? 

Mr. WYVELL. T think I have  said  all  that I care to say. 

STATEMENT OF MORRIS  BIEW, OF THE  UNITED  STATES  RECLA- 
MATION  SERVICE,  DEPARTMENT OF THE IINTERIOR, WASH- 
INGTON, D. C. 
Mr. RIEN. Mr. Chairman  and gentlemen,  there  has been consid- 

erable  discussion  by the  Canadian  representatives  as  to  the  meaning 
of Article VI, and it has been the  subject of  some comment in  the 
papers  that  have been presented  to  the commission. I would  like 
very  much to state  the views that occur to  me in regard  to  that  treaty. 

Article I1 is referred  to specifically in  Article V I  of the  treaty, 
and it is to be  observed that  the  reservation of the  rights of either 
party  to  the exclusive  jurisdiction and control over the use and  diver- 
sion,  whether  temporary  or  permanent, of all  waters on its own side 
of the  line  which  in  their  natural  channels  would flow across the 
boundary or into  boundary  streams is a very  important  limitation 
and is of general  application  to all articles  in  the  treaty.  The  juris- 
diction  and  control of waters  reserved in  this article in  regard to 
streams  crossing  the  boundary is so explicit  that it may  not  properly 
he  modified  unless the  treaty  contains elsewhere  definite language  to 
thRt effect, and  any  such  terms  must be construed so as to avoid  a 
modification of this reserved right beyond the definite  meaning ex- 
pressed. A modification hy implication would not be within  the.rules 
of construction  relating  either  to  statutes or to contracts.  Belng  a 
question of jurisdiction it is  naturally one to be strictly  construed, 
because under  ordinary  circumstances  jurisdiction is not  usually con- 
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ferred by  implication.  The  preliminary  article  and  Article IT ex- 
pressly  exclude from  consideration  the  waters  mentioned  in  Article 
VI, becanse they  are  not  bonndary  waters,  as  definitely defined. 
Therefore  Article VI must he construed  in  connection  with  the  lim- 
itations  expressed  in  the  preliminary  article  and  Article 11, and,  in 
m y  opinion,  Article VI should be construed  strictly  as  against-these 
lirnitntions. Its language  must  not,  therefore, he given a broader 
meaning  than is clearly  within  its scope. 

The first clause of Article VI  reads as -follows: 
Tl ie  high col~trnc~ting partica agree tlmt the St. Jlnrgs ancl Polilk Rivers and 

their tribut:rrirs (in  thc  State of Illont-ana and the Provinces of Alberta and 
Snskatc1lew:In) arc to be treated :IS one stream for the  purpose of irrigation 
t111tl power, and the waters thereof sh811 lw npportionc:l equally betweon the 
two countrim. 

The  words  in  parenthesis,  namely,  “in  the  State of Montana  and 
the  Provinces of Alberta  and Saslcatchewan,” arc not  only  intended 
to  give  the  location of the  rivers i n  question  and  their  tributaries, 
but,  in  my  opinion,  must also be constrned as n limiting clause to 
indicate  the  particular  waters  which  are  involved,  namely,  those of 
the St. Marys  and  Milk  Rivers  and  their  tributaries,  lying  both  in 
the  United  States  and  Canada.  If it was  intended  to  express defi- 
nitely a contrary  conception,  in  my  opinion,  the  word  following 
“ Mont,ana ” should  have been “ or ”. That is, if it read  the  waters of 
these  two  rivers  in  the  State of Montana or the  Provinces of Alberta 
and  Saskatchewan, we would  then  have  a  basis  for  construing  this 
:lrticle to  corer  all  the  waters of those  river  systems  in  both  coun- 
tries. But the  word ‘‘ ancl ”, in  my  opinion, is descriptive of the 
waters  that occw on  both  sides of the linc. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. I do  not  desire to interrupt,  Mr.  Bien,  and if  you 
refer I will  reserve my question,  but you will  notice  that  the  word 
and ’’ is used twice: “In  the  State of Montana  and  the  Provinces of 

Alberta ancl Saskatchewan.” Do you  suggest  that  a  river  must be in 
the State of Montana and in the P r o v i n c e  of Alberta and in the 
Province of Saslmtchewnn to  fall  under  ArticleVI? 

Mr. BIEN. No, sir. I construe  that  phrase as a very common  con- 
struction  in  the  English  language,  namely, it is a balanced  phrase : 
the  (‘and ” balances it. Of course, there  is  not  any  contrast or lack 
of connection  hetween  Alberta  and  Saskatchewan.  They  fall  in  one 
category,  naturally,  and  the  word ‘‘ and ” connects the  territory  on 
one side of the  line  with  the  other,  especially as the  treaty itself 
deals with  matters  along  the  boundary.  One  who is not  acquainted 
with  the  relative  locations of these States  and  Prorinces  might be 
confused in  that  way. 

Mr. M I G X A ~ L T .  As far as the  Milk  Rirer is concerned,  and the, 
St. Mary  River.  they wo~xld fall  under  the  description of the  treaty. 
The ~ o r d s  of the  treaty wonltl apply to  both  rivers,  and  unless  you 
can  suggest some limitation, my view would be that  no  part of either 
river is excluded. 

Mr. BIEN. The answer to t,hat,  in  my  mind, is this : As Mr.  Wyvell 
showed  yesterday,  the word ‘‘ Saskatchewan ” was  inserted a t  the 
last  moment. 

Mr. MIQNATJICT. That wonltl show  thRt  these words  were  inserted 
at   the last moment in  order to give a new meaning  to  the  article. 
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They  are  not  put  in  the  article  for  no  purpose,  and  the  fact  that 
they  were  not  in  the  draft  and  they  were  included  in  the article 
wodd  show that it was  intended  to  make some change  in  the  draft 
and  to  give some meaning to these  words.  You  can  not  read  them 
out of the clause. 

Mr. 1 3 1 ~ ~ .  Exactly. I think  that  the  only effect of inserting  the 
word “ Saskatchewan ” is to  include  what we speak of as  the  eastern 
tributaries of Milk  Rirer flowing from  Canada  into  the  United 
States.  Without  that  word  they  would  have been definitely  excluded. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. You  are  applying  that merely to  the  tributaries 
and  not  to  the  rivers  themselves? 

Mr. BIEN. The  main  rivers were not  in  Saskatchewan,  as I under- 
stand it, neither one of them. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Both of the  main  rivers  are  in  Alberta  and Mon- 
tana. 

Mr. Bms. Of course, apparently you do  not  follow  along  the same 
line  with me. . My  understanding of the  insertion of the  word 
“ Saskatchewan”  was  in  order  to  include  the  eastern  tributaries 
flowing from  Canada  into  Milk  River. It is evident  that  without 
that  word  they  must  have been excluded,  describing  only  Alberta 
on  one  side, just  the  same  as if some of the  tributaries of the  Milk 
that flowed across the  boundary were in  North  Dakota,  and  the 
omission of the  words  “North  Dakota”  might  raise a doubt  as  to 
whether  tributaries of that  kind sould  be  included. 

Mr. POWELL. What would  you  do  with  the  Swift  Current? 
Mr. MICNAULT. It is exclusively in  Montana.  That mater is a 

Mr. POWELL. As :L tributary does i t  cross the  boundary? 
Mr. BIEN. No. I understand  this  treaty  to  refer  to  the  main 

rivers  as  they  cross  the  boundary,  and  all  the  waters  that  they  carry 
that would  cross the  boundary,  and  then  their  tributaries  which 
also  would  cross the  boundary if not  interfered  with. In  other 
words,  the  treaty,  in  my  opinion,  refers  only  to  waters  that  would 
cross the  boundary  if  not  interfered  with. 

I f  we adopt a construction of this  treaty which  would take  in 
waters  that  arise  entirely  in  Montana or in  Canada  and  never flow 
out of those  countries  and  never COIIICI, we would, in  my  judgment, 
be indulging  in a restriction of the  express  limitation of the  prelimi- 
nary article, and  Article I1 bv mere  implication. That would  be 
enlarging  the  jurisdiction of this commission  because, as I claim, 
Article I1 defines the  jurisdiction of the commission. This view 
is  further  enforced  by  the last paragraph of the  article,  which  pro- 
vides for  measurements  to 1:e made  jointly by the  properly  consti- 
tuted officers on  either side. This  paragraph  provides  for  an official 
act  to be performed  jointly  by officers of the  two  countries,  and  if 
the  interpretation  which has been suggested  by the  Canadian  repre- 
sentatives  should  prevail,  this  would  mean  that  the officers  of each 
country mould act  in  their  official  capacities  within  the  territory of 
the  other  country  and  upon  waters  which, as we claim, are  not  inter- 
jlational  and  never  could be. 

I f  such  had been the  intent of the  treaty,  there  would  undoubtedly 
have been  some provision  recognizing  the  fact  thdt  an official of 
one government was to  perform  duties  having official sanction 
within  the  territory of the  other  as  to  waters  which by no  ordinary 

part of the  water  that crosses the  boundary. 
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course of nature could reach  the  other  country. I n  a  way, it strikes 
me  as  importing  into  this  treaty  extraterritorial  jurisdiction. 

While  this  matter of measurement is covered by  the  general 
powers  given  to  the commission by  Article XII, and  while I agree 
that the commission has  the power to  establish  joint  stations  that 
shall  be  entirely  within  any country-in fact, it would  be  physically 
impossible to measure  these  streams  satisfactorily otherwise--yet 
the  power of joint  action is confined, in  my  opinion, to international 
waters,  making  the  same  distinction between international  and  intra- 
national,  that we do in  the  matter of commerce  where i r e  ha\.e inter- 
state  transpc)rtation  and  intrastate  transportation. 

The  important  feature of this  Article V I  in  the last paragraph 
is the  statement  that  the ccmlmission is to  measure  and  apportion  the 
waters  to be used for  the  purposes  stated  .in  the  beginning of tha 
article,  namely,  irrigation  and power. The  waters  should,  there- 
fore, be  measured and  apportioned  by  the commission at such  points 
as to show the  amount used and  not elsewhere,  which might show 
nothing  regarding  the  amounts used, but  show  merely the amounts 
not used, the  amounts  which  have been wasted. 

If it were the  intent of the  treaty  to confer  what I have,  per- 
haps,  inaccurately  named  an  intra-national  jnrisdictiw. we \vould 
hardly  expect an omission of the  power  by  express  terms  to  make 
joint  measurement  for  other  purposes  than  the  apportionment  and 
use of the  maters  that  would cross the  bountlary if not interfered 
with. 

In the  laws of the  Daminion of Canada,  printed  in  the  rnles of 
procedure  which were  issued by  the commission, it is noted  that 
the  act of May 19,1911, relating  to  the  establishment of the commis- 
sion  confers  no  jurisdiction  on  the  courts of Canada  as t o  questions 
arising  on  streams whose waters  can  not  cross  the  bonndary.  Spe- 
cial  jlwisdiction  is  git-en RS to  waters  which  cross  the  boundary  and 
boundary  waters  which  are  within  the scope of the  treaty,  and  the 
intent of that act plainly is, in my judgment,  to.confer  jurisdiction 
on  the  Canadian  courts  in cases of damages or InJunes  cla~med as to 
streams  which cross the  boundary, so f a r  as Article VI is con- 
cerned. 

Mr. MIGNALLT. Mr.  Bieu, does it not seem to you that section 3 
of the  Dominion  statute  is  intended  to  confer on the  Canadiau 
courts  the  jurisdiction  required  by  Article I1 of the  treaty,  that is 
to say,  to  give  redress of wrongs suffered  by  citizens of the ITnited 
States  by  reason of an  interfermce  in  the  natural flow  of a  stream 
crossing the  boundary ? 

Mr. RIEN. Article 11, as I understand it, does not confine its opera- 
tion  and  the  conference of jurisdiction to  either  country. I n  fact, 
it speaks  always of the  injuries  on  the  other side. 

Mr. TATVNF:T. But is it not :I fact,  Mr.  Bien,  that  without  this 
express enactment of the Dominion  Parliament,  enacting  into  the 
laws of thc  Daminion  Article I1 of the  treaty  as is agreed to  be- 
tween  Great  Britain  and  the  United  States,  there  would  have been 
no  opportunity for the citizens of the  IJnited  States  suffering  injury 
in consequence of the  diversions oF streams  in  Canada  crossing  the 
boundary  into  the TTnited  St::tes without  that  enactment? Has 
that  enactment  any more significance than  the nrticle itself? 
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the  treaty. 
Mr. POWELL. That would  make  you give security for costs;  that 

is all. 
Mr. GLENN. Can  the  Vnited  States  Government go into yo~w 

courts  and  bring  suit  in its own  name  against  individuals? 
Mr. POWELL. Yes ; there  have been instances of that. 
Mr. RIEN. However  that  map be, i t  wo111,l not he reciprocal as to 

jurisdiction because of the difference in 1o(:a1 laws, and  t'hat,  in my 
opinion, ~voulcl be w r y  strong  ground  for holcling that  tho  treaty 
must be reciprocal,  and,  therefore,  could not. affect w-nters 011 one side 
which could not be equally affected  on the  other. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Mr. Bien,  suppose yo11 were t o  rend the first part 
of tho  first  sentence in  Article 1'1 and omit, entirely  the  parentheti- 
cal  phrase. 

Mr. &EN. I think  reading  it by itself  would  sustain the clainl that 
possibly intrastate  waters  were  affected,  unless  there is some other 
grot;tl(l on which  it mllst be esclutlo(l, as, for  instance, was suggested 
by Mr. Sands,  which  may or may  not be correct. 

Mr.. ' i ' a w l u ~ ~ .  Are  there :my tributaries  to these two  rivers  outside 
of tile two  Provinces and the State narnctl i n  that  parenthetical 
phrnse ? 

Mr. ISIEN. Yo, sir;   that  is 111y cwltention. I did not instance the 
case c ; f  t,he  omission of this  paragraph, bnt I (lid show that  in my 
opinion  there  was  a very w s t  tlitference between the use of the word 
" ant1 ?' and 1-he use of the word " or " in that  sentence.. The  word '' or" in that  sentenrc would be practically  the sanw R S  the  entire 
omission of t,he  paragraph. 

Mr. WYVELL. What you nlwn is t3hat :111 tho  tributaries  being  in 
the  State of Montana  and  the  Provinces of Albert's ancl Saskntche- 
wa.n anyway,  there w~oulrl he no use for  the  phrase if they  intended 
to include all t>hose tributariw. 1 s  not that the thought of the  chair- 
man 8 

Mr. TAWNEY. Yes. 
Mr. I~IEX.  I n  view of all  these  matters there sllould, in my opinion, 

be some  conclusive  evidence  presented to  support a claim that 
Article V I  of t"ne treat,y refers t o  other  t,han the maters which would 
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cross the btjundarg. Thus  far  nothing of that  kind  has been pre- 
sented, so fa r   as  I know. On  the  contrary,  an  examination of the 
files of the  Reclamation  Service ant1 the  State  Department of this 
country discloses the  fact  that  the  representatires of both  countries 
who  were  engaged in  negotiating  the  terms of this  treaty  in  regard 
to the St, Mary  and  Milk  Rivers  preliminary  to  the  formulation of 
the  treaty  have recorcied their  definite  understnnding of what  was 
the  subject of their negotiations, and  that was the  maters  which 
crossed the  boundary. It seems that  in  the correspondence  which was 
exchanged  between Mr. Newell, the  director of the  Reclamation 
Service at  that  time,  and Dr. W. F. King,  chief  astronomer of the 
Dominion of Canada,  the  understanding of each party  as  to the sub- 
ject of their  negotiations  was  very  definitely  expressed.  Beginning 
with  the  letter of Secretary  Root  on  January 15, 1907, forwarded  to 
the  ambassador  from  Great  Britain,  we find set forth  in  full  the 
stipulation  and  agreement  proposed  by  the  United  States nsing the 
following  language : 

With a view to  bringing to a determination  the  questions so long discussed 
relating t o  the waters of St. M ~ r y  River and the Milk River which flow across 
the  forty-ninth  parallel boundary between the United  Stxtes  and  Canada. 

Now, this  is precisely in  line  with  all  the  negotiations  which  had 
been in  progress for  five years,  more or less, unofficially. In   th i s  
letter  the  prmciples of division  set forth  in  Article VI  of the  treaty 
were  stated  in  considerable  detail. The  waters were to be measured 
where  they crossed the  boundary.  Each  stream  was specified and a 
provision  was  made for measuring  the  waters  where  they crossed the 
boundary,  and  for  providing also for  any  diversions of the  tribu- 
taries of that  stream on either  side of the  boundary  before it reached 
that  point.  Paragraph 5 of that  letter  makes a basis of division 
which the  representatives of the  United  States  have  not  substantially 
changed. Of course, there  might be  some  modifications  recorded,  but 
the  principles  in  paragraph 5 of Secretary Root’s letter of 1907 state 
substantially those which we think are now enacted into  the  treaty 
and  which were strictly  in  pursuance of the  negotiations  from  the 
very  beginning,  away  back  in 1902. 

This  draft of treaty  was c,ommunicated to the Privy Council of 
Canada  and x report  made  thereon. I n  this  report  there was a 
recommendation for  the  appointment of a representative  from  each 
conntry  to  consider  the  several  suggestions  made  therein.  After- 
wards Mr. Newell and Dr. King were appointed to represent  the  two 
countries.  On  April 27, 1908, Dr. King  presented  to  Mr. Newell 
a memorandum  discussing  the  letter of Secretary  Root  to His Maj- 
esty’s amhassador,  dated  June 15, 1907, and  referring  to  the  amend- 
ment of the  Privy Council of March 2, 1908. H e  makes  particular 
reference  to  paragraph 5 of the proposed draft  in  which  the  waters 
to be divided  are  described  in  detail  as  crossing  the  boundary or  which 
would  cross the  boundary. Mr. Nen7ell and Dr. King  had  quite x lit- 
tle  correspondence  on  various  matters.  None of the  letters  for  the 
next  few  months,  as I recall,  refer  to  this  question of the  description 
of the  waters  to be considered. 

Finally, on  October 15, 1908, Mr. Newell  addressed to Dr. King a 
rather  lengthy review of the  situation,  discussing  the  waters, but 
making  no specific reference t,o the  fact  that  he was considering 
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waters  which crossed t h e   h m d a r y .   I n  reply  to this Dr.  King, in 
a  memorandum  dated December 23, 1908, in  the  third  paragraph 
from  the  end,  suggests  the  following: 

A princ*il)le wliic.11 ix f1.t.t. t 'ro~lt ihis ol),jcc.tioll a n t 1  i s  moreover t~ simple  one  is 
that of equal division of water (111 the  bouudury  streams  (each  country pro- 
viding for its  esistiug  interests out of its share in the water.) 

Now,  note  here  that Dr. King uses the  term " boundary  waters " 
undoubtedly  in  a  different sense from  that which  was  afterwards 
brought  out  in  the  definition  in  the  treaty, because he was  not  ded- 
ing  with  any  boundary  waters.  There  was  nothing  before  him, and 
he could not  have  meant  boundary  waters  as defined in  the  prelim- 
inary  article of the  treaty. 

Mr. TAWNEY. The  preliminary  article of the  treaty expressly  ex- 
cludes  all  waters  that  cross  the  boundary. 

Mr. BIEN. Yes. I assume that  the  treaty  regarding  the  other  mat- 
ters  was  being  formulated  and  had  its  definition of boundary  waters, 
and  that Dr. King  was  familiar only  with  this  branch of it and per- 
haps was  not  aware of the definition. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Does not  Article VI  stand  by  itself? 
Mr. BIEN. I n  a  certain sense. I would  not  construe it out of the 

treaty  any more than I would  a  section of a  contract. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. The  point I would  like to  put  to you is this: Do 

you admit  that  the  entire St. Mary  River  falls  under  Article VI of 
'the treaty '2 

Mr. BIEN. Onlv  the  waters  that  would cross the  boundars.  That 
is my whole  contention. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. I would  like  you  to  explain  that. 
Mr. BIEN. Well,  there  are  two or three  tributaries  that  arise  north 

of the  line  which  carry  no  water  from  the  United  States. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. But  the  waters of the  tributaries  form a part 

eventually of the  main  river. 
Mr. BIEN. I have been trying to make that  distinction  all  along 

between the  internationd  maters  and  the  intrastate  waters. 
Mr. MTGSAULT. I f ,  according to your  construction of Article VI,  

it applies only lo rivers  which  cross  the  boundary,  then,  inasmuch 
as both  the  St.  Mary  and  the  Milk  Rivers  cross  the  boundary, it 
would  apply  to  these  rivers  and  would  necessarily  apply  to  the whole 
of the rivers.  Therefore, if the  waters of the  tributaries of each 
river  eventually  form n p:wt of these  rivers,  then  that  would be 
included  in  the  treaty! 

Mr. BIEN. I think you omit my point  that  the  tributaries  are  to 
be treated  also  in  regard to  the  waters  which cross the  boundary. I 
think  the  first  chuse of Article VI  speaks of the St'. Mary  and  its 
tributaries. 

Mr.  MIGBAULT.  Then you refer n1erely to such  waters as cross the 
boundary,  excluding  all the rest? 

Mr. BIES. Excluding  everything  that does not  cross  the  boundary 
or would  not  if  left  uninterfered  with. I am  trying  to show here  that 
Mr. Newell and 111.. King were  discussing  nothing else and,  as :I 
matter of fact, as I say,  there were some five years of negotiations 
before that  time,  and  they discussed nothing else. Dr. King,  in  this 
memorandum  that I spoke  of:  dated December 23, 1908, states  in  his 
last  paragraph  that  Mr. Newell seems to prefer this principle-that 
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is, equal  division of wntc.1. of the L)ormd:try streams-although  he 
does not  state  definitely  that he accepts i t  as :L guiding one. Dr. 
King. asks in  the final  p:~ra,qr;lph, " Will Mr.  Newell  stnte his assent 
to this  principle as a  basis for the  negotiations " ?  This was less than 
~Lrw n.eel;s 1;ei"we the signing of the  treaty, alnd no  fnrther come- 
spondence seems to h ~ \ r r  been exchwi~ged  betwesn Dr. King  and 
Mr. Newcll. However, Mr. Nevvell expressed his view upon this 
principle :I week 01' so later, :js we shall see. Soon  after  this memo- 
r:~ndum c;f Dr. King's. Mr. I<. H. Campljell,  forester of the,  (Ianadian 
C;o\-elmnent, as reprcsentative of that  cxuntry, canze to Washington, 
: ~ n t l  in t he   co~~rsc  oE his discussion v i t h  Mr. Sewell it appears  that 
Ilotb M r .  ('an1p1)dl :mil 311.. Ne.rvel1, (111 1)ecenzber 29, 1908, prepared 
h f t s  for. the p r u p ( ~ ~ l  twuty. Tl1c1.r swnt;  to be, perhilps, n doubt 
o f  tt d : ~ y  or so as to Xi.. C"'~r,q)bell's tlwft, litit they were practically 
within :I d:ty (11- two 1 : f  t~rc.11 (.tl,er. 111 b t  tll of these drafts the snh- 
ject of  the negotiwti:)~ls w:~s clcfinitely co1~filleLi to tlw waters of the 
streams  which  cross the intern:rtion:ll bollndar.y. Both  memoranda 
specify thnt the ~ ~ ~ ~ ; ~ s : ~ I , ~ ~ ~ ~ I ( ~ I ~ ~ ~  d ~ l l  1~ 1n:tde at tlw point, or points, 
whew st~ch . + t t w r w  cross the intcrnxtion:Il Lomdary.  I understand 
there were m e  or t K C J  other drafts prep:lred about  that  time,  but I 
l lar e n t v w  seen them :Ind so I :m not  able  to speak o-€ them. 

It appears,  therefore,  that on  December 29 or December 30, two 
weeks prior  to  the  signing of tho  treaty,  representatives of both 
parties were in accord upon  the  point  that  the  maters shall be meas- 
ured at  the crossings of the  boundary. It is  understood that when 
Article VI was finally drafted an  attempt was mtde  to condense it 
as rnuch :IS possible in deference to the desires of our State  Depart- 
ment  and also the anlbassador from  Great Bluitain, as the  treaty itself 
w a s  rather  long  in  regard  to  the  other  points discussed. It is,  there- 
fore,  not  to be wondered at  that in  condensing the  language  those 
matters which mere ob\.iolrsly within  the  contenqhtion of both 
parties  might  have been left nnexpresscd. That is my explanation 
of that  paint, becanse they had so fre uently, in the course of their 
negotiatio.ls in  the final draft, tliscusse% only  the  waters crossing the 
boundary. 

Mr. Powr:r,r~. That is the  inference yo11 dram 1 
Mr. BTEN. That is my inference; yes. sir.  Mr.  Sands  yesterday 

suggested a point  that is worthy of very  careful  consideration, al- 
though I am  not  prepared to discuss it now,  and that is  that when 
the TJnitrd States  makes :I treaty  it  must  act  within  its  treaty-makin 
powers. The question is one  of considerable  import:lnce, because if 
as we think-I simply  sag I think? as I 1lal.e not looked the question 
up-the treaty-making power can not  apply  to a pturely intrastate 
matter, a domestic  matter:  the  treaty  can  not hare any scope  beyond 
what is international. 

Now, a treaty,  in my judgrncnt,  and I think  it is  about  what  the 
books say, is an  agreement between nations  which, by their  indi- 
vidual laws, has the  sanction of law or is made  eqnivalent to a lam. 
The  funtlarnental  conception of 3 contract is that  it  is an  expression 
sf the  meeting of minds. Now, in  order  to  determine upon what 
points  the  minds of the  parties  met, if there is any  question as to 
what  the words of the  contracts  say,  it  is, of coursc, natural and it 
i s  enstonmrp to go to  the  prelirninary  negotiations. Of COIII'SP, 1 
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admit  that as to :my new conception  the  former  drafts  can  not be 
included:  the  treaty  speaks  for  itself.  Rut if what seems to  u s  the 
plain  language of! the treaty is not  considered as correct I think we 
would  have the  right, as you ~ ~ o c l d  in  any  court,  to  go back to find 
out  what  the  people were talking  about  when  they  made  that  con- 
tract. As I say, yo11 may  scarch throng11 the correspondence  and 
there  may be something  in  the  Canadian  records  that I have  not seen, 
but I think I have seen all  the  correspondence which  was  exchanged 
between the  representatiyes,  and  there is nothing at any  time whlch 
suggests  that  the  snbject of this  negotiation was snch ns to  include 
any  waters  which wodd  not cross the bounc1nr.p. Therefore,  in my 
opinion,  there  has been no  meeting of rninds in  regard to  waters 
which mould not cross the  boundary.  Accordingly, if this  treaty is 
to be enforced, or, 1 should say, your commission  should enforce  it m 
such a manner as to  carry  out  what was  in the  minds of the  parties 
and  what was very  plainly a matter of record. i t  is not a matter of 
hearsay at, all. 

Aside  from  any  question as to  what is the  meaning of the  treaty, 
the commission  has. a Yery difficult  question presented t,o it for action, 
and  that is to  divide  quantities  which :we very  uncertain.  We  talk 
about  the floods and we talk about the  average flow, but we ignore 
what,  in  my  opinion, is the  principal  thing,  and  that  is  the  low flow. 
A man  will  never bnild a reservoir  that  can be filled, to  his knowledge, . 
but once in 8 or 10 or 12 years. H e  would  be  spending money with 
very little  prospect of return.  There  may be exceptions to  that,  and 
there  are,  in  fact,  in  the  sonthern  part of the TJnited States,  where 
we have  orchard  lands,  and  where  the  lands  are  worth a thousand  to 
two  thousand  dollars  or  more  per  acre  purely  for  their  horticultura3 
value,  and  where  it would pay to put  in a large  investment  that 
would  be  used  once in 10 or 15 years ; but up in  Montana,  where it is 
conceded that  the  land values are  very  much less, the  highest  values 
that I have  heard of in  Montana  being between two  and  three  hun- 
dred  dollars an acre for  the  very best alfalfa land, an investment that 
would be  of real  value  but once in 10 years  would  hardly he  justified. 
So we must  consider  really as.& practical  matter  What is the  water 
that yon can  depend  upon  from  year  to  year? I t  might be well 
enough to  provide  for  hold-over  storage  for  one or two  years,  but 
the  point  that I make is we can  not  consider  these  high  records. 

So far  as I understand  from  our  conferences  with  our  Canadian 
friends:  there  are  certain  points  in  which we are  in  agreement  as  to 
what  should be  done. I make  this  statement  subject to correction. 
In  the first place, me are  in  agreement, I think,  that the commission 
should  appoint  the  agents  mentioned  in  A4rticle VI  and  should  ratify 
the  location of the  stations  which  have been in  an  informal  way es- 
tablished by joint  action of the  representatives of the  two countries. 
Then it should  establish  such  other  stations as are  jointly  agreed 
upon,  namely,  those  which  are necessary to  measure  the flow  of the 
streams across the  boundary  and nlso t o  measure  the  waters  which 
are  put  to use on either  side of the  boundary of the class of waters 
that m~ould flow across the  bonndnry. With these  stations  established 
and men  appointed to study  them t,here certainly would be no ques- 
tion  whatever  about it. I doubt  if  there  would be any  question on 
either  side of the line  under  precent  conditions for two  or  three years 
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at least,  and  maybe  nluch  longer.  These Inen might  proceed  with 
their  measurements  and  nlake  their  apportionments,  subject to the 
supervision of the  commission,  in an occasional week when  there  was 
a possible shortage  to be reckoned on. 

These  men, of course,  will report  to  the  commission.  They  would 
report  the difficulties that  they  meet, if any,  and  the  commission 
would  then  hare  authentic  records of its own as to  what these rivers 
have been doing  and  what  are  the  present  demands  on  either side. 
Then, if either  country  should  present  to  the  commission  a  showing 
that  there is  a  demand  for  more  water  on  either  side  than  is easily 
apportioned  by  the  agents of the  commission  and show that  this  thing 
is urgent, it would be up  to  the  commission  to see where  there  would 
be a  possibility of furnishing  more  water.  But  at  present,  in  my 
judgment,  the  commission  need  not  go  beyond  the  agreed  proposi- 
tion  that  at  least  the  waters  crossing  the  boundary  are  to be divided. 

If there  are  any  other  waters  to be divided, if this  intranational 
water is to be divided,  it will not become a matter of urgency or a 
matter of much  importance  on  either  side  for  several years.  Mean- 
while, the commission  will  have  perhaps  four  years for a thorough 
and  impartial  study  agreed  to by its  joint  agents  which it can  study 
and  upon  which it can  decide  as  to  the  apportionment  from  year  to 
year. As I understand it, the  commission  has  not  had  presented  to 
It  any  evidence of any  desire  on  the  part of either  party for a  more 
extensive  supply  than is now available  or  will be tjvnilable for  the 
next  few years. 

We all know that the possibilit,y of raising money for  irrigation 
development at  this tinw i n  either  colmtry is out> o - E  the question. 
There  is  no  possibility  for :my very  large  enterprise; a t  least, that 
is my  judgment. I k n o ~ .  it is dificult  here  and  outside of Govern- 
ment  bonds or those that  are  guaranteed  in some  way by the  Govern- 
ment.  An  irrigation bond would not be ol' much  value in  our  market, 
m d  while I do  not  profess  to  have  much  knowledge of the  conditions 
on the  other side, I think they must  be \cry similar. For  that reason 
the  commission has now before it an  ample  amount of information 
to proceed for  several  years,  and  it may be that  after  they  have 
studied  the  situation,  after  they  have been dividing  the  waters for 
four  or five years, these other  controversial  points  may  have  entirely 
disappeared;  that  is  to s t y ,  the  experience  that will have been gained 
by this  action of the commission  where it  has itself taken  hold of the 
project  may show what we claim,  that  tJhe  waters  which  pass  the  last 
points of diversion of the  main  streams  are  not  used;  they  are  not 
within  the  waters to he divided for use or power. It nmy be that 
after  all  this experience  the  commission will  find that  this IS a ques- 
tion  that  is  more  academic  than  real,  and  certainly it is  not a t  all a 
question that  is  urgent  for  action  at  this time. 

Mr. MAGRATH. Taking  the  interpretation  that  you  gave,  namely, 
the  division of the  waters  which flow from  one  country  into  the 
other,  and  the  other  interpretation  which  has been suggested  that 
this  article covers all  the  waters,  and  considering  the  averages of the 
two  catchment  areas  for a term of years, how much  water  is  involved 
in  the difference  between  these two  interpretations? 

Mr. BIEN. It varies a great deal. The  waters of the  Montana 
tributaries-by that I mean  those  which  could  not cross the  line 
coming into  Milk  River  from  the south-are such  that  can  not be 



ST. MARY A N D  MILK RIVERS. 255 

controlled.  Moreover, I think  to a considerable  extent  they hare 
been put  to use as far  as  they can be  used in  the  ordinary  year.  The 
run-off from those  southern  streams  during  the  irrigation season is 
very,  very  small  except when we have a rainfall.  Then  every  farmer 
fills his  reservoirs  and  his  canals  and  gets  all  the  water  he  can  on  the 
land,  but  in  two or three  days it is gone. 

Mr. SANDS. Do you  have  reference  to the  Bear  Paw  stream  now? 
1 would like to  correct  that  statement because that  is  not  true. 

Mr. MAGRATIT. YOU  put  it  to beneficial use? 
Mr. SAXDS. It is put to beneficial use before i t  arrives  at  Milk 

River. 
Mr. RIEN. It is used as  rapidly as possible. It may be that  there 

is so much  demand  on  the  Bear  Paw  that  the  rains  are  all used  be- 
fore  they  get  down  to  the  main  river,  but  that, as I understand it, is 
the case in only a few of those  tributaries.  Most of them flow for a 
few  days a comparatively  large  amount of water  when  there is a 
rainfall, which is absolutely  wasted  except  those  amounts  which  go 
into  the  Milk  River above our  diversions. 

Mr. TAWNEY. You are  excluding now the  tributaries of the  Milk 
River  that cross the  boundary  east of the  eastern  crossing,  are you 
not ? 

Mr. BIEN. No, sir; I am  speaking  only of those that  are  purely 
intranational,  that  never cross the  boundary  and  never could. Those 

eople are  using  that water, perhaps,  not  as efficiently as  they  might, 
{ut the question of reserrolrs is a very difficnlt matter  there.  There 
is no  opportunity  on  an of those  streams  for a very  large  reservoir. 
A desert-land  entry  un Cf er  our  laws is an  entry  for 320 acres or less, 
which a man  proposes  to  reclaim  either  by  his own' individual  efforts 
or by  means of some  combination or some large scheme. A man is 
required  to  present  to  the  Land Office of the  United  States  an  appli- 
cation for 320 acres, or whatever  he  desires,  with a general  plan. 
Of course, in those  individual cases it is not  expected to be  a regular 
engineering  plan  with  full  estimates,  and  the  Land Office of the 
United  States is now  very busil engaged  in  determining  in Mon- 
tana,  in  the  tributaries of the dlk, to  what  extent  there  has been 
a reasonable  showing as  to  water  supply  by  these  preliminary  plans 
in  regard  to  entries  involving  nearly 200,000 acres. That  is shown 
in  the  exhibits  that  Mr. Newell put  in  yesterday,  and  which is part 
of a report  which  has been rcently  made  upon  all  the  tributaries of 
the  Milk  on  both  the  north  and  south sides. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Have  not  the  citizens  on  our  side  the  right  to  enter 
320 acres of land  irrespective of any  water  supply  under  the  so-called 
dr -farming  act? hr. BIEN. Yes; I was  speaking  only of the  desert  entry. 

Mr. SANDS. Do you  mean to say that  the 200,000 acres that you 
speak of .in the  report of Mr. Newell had  no  reference  to  the  lands 
which  have been abandoned  in  years  past? 

Mr. BIEN. No. 
Mr. SANDS. Do not the lands  abandoned in years  past exceed by 

three or four  times  the  amount of land  that is in  consideration  in 
that  basin? 

Mr. BIEN. I think so. 
Mr. TAWNEY. The  land  in  eastern  Montana  has  not been surveyed 

for the last two or three years. 
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Mr. B I ~ .  The surveys  have been extended  in  the  ralley  lands 
pretty  thoroughly x good many  years  back,  hut  in  the  hills  where 
these  streams  havc become small,  and  where  the  effort is almost 
wholly  individual,  there  has heen no  survey because the  land  did 
not sem to have  any value. 

Mr. SANDS. The Inntls in the  Ikar  I’aw Range  have been surveyed 
in  at  least 15 years. I know, becnllse final proofs have been sub- 
mitted  before  me  for n thousand  acres of that  land. 

Mr. BIEX. I am  speaking of all  the  trihntaries of the  Milk,  par- 
ticularly  those on the  south  side,  and I know that a large  part of the 
desert-land  entries now pending  are  nnmrreyed  land. 

Mr. SANDS. Yes;  that is true. 
Bfr. BIEN. I was explaining  the  desert-land  law.  The  Land  OEce 

I may say, is now  doing  what i t  should  have  done a good many  years 
ago; that is, making a 11er.y careful  study of these  desert-land  entries 
and  insisting  that  there  shall be  a  reasonable  showing of water sup- 
ply. Some small  reservoirs on some of thesc  streams  and  ditches 
take  out  the  water  when  it is there.  Some of the  streams flow regu- 
larly  all  the  year,  but very, very  few. The  Bear  Paw is one of the 
longest  tributaries  and,  therefore,  has a greater  catchment  area. 
The  point  that I was trying  to make  when I was diyerted, was this, 
that  practically  all  the  water  that  is  tributary  to  the  streams  coming 
in on the  south  side of Milk  River  has heen claimed,  and  nearly  all 
that  can be put  to beneficial use has been so used. Of that  water 
the  amounts  getting  into  the  main  river  and  going  into  the  Mis- 
souri  River,  never  crossing  the  boundary,  are  usually  big floods and 
the floods that  constitute  the  greater  part of the flow of Milk  River 
proper  in  Montana. So that  that  water is such  as  has been appro- 
priated  either for  lands  that  have been abandoned, as Mr.  Sands says, 
for  many  years  or  for these  lands  which  are  now  settled  and  await- 
ing patents. A considerable  number  will  doubtless  be  issued in  the 
next  year or two,  because action  has been postponed  until  the  Land 
Office could  make a careful  study of the water supply, and  the report 
from  which  Mr. Newell has  made  extracts  for  the benefit of the 
commission  was made  by  that  committee  upon  the  basis of which  the 
Land Office will  unyuestionably  issue  patents for  many  thousands of 
acres of land. So that  water is taken  up. I t  is not  water  that  can 
be divided,  and it is not  water  that,  in  my  opinion,  gets  into a  place 
where it can be divided. 

Mr. G m s N .  Mr. T3ien, how many rivers of any  considerable  size 
south of the  line never flow into  Canada! 

Mr. B r m .  I would  like to have  Mr.  Sands  answer  that.  Outside of 
our project, I have.  never  been over  the  ground. 

Mr.. POWXLL. Your  contention  is  that  Article I1 of the treaty must 
be read  into  Article VI and as a part of it 1 

Mr. BIEN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. POWELL. Would  you  carry  into section 6 also the  provision 

there for I d a m a t i o n  by having  the decision of the  court  in  the 
opposite  country in  which  what yon might  call  the  ruin  or  trespass 
wa.s done? 

Mr. &EN. There is quite a question  there,  because  section 2 explains 
very  definitely  one  case xt least  where  Art,icle VI  applies. How far 
it would apply  otherwise I do  not  know. 
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311.. POWELL. Even those  n.:lters  which. are  cowxed  by  the  treaty, 
S I I C ~  as the St. Mary River, wonld afford an  opportunity to a, Cnna- 
dian  settler  who  is  deprived of his  water  to go into  the  courts of 
Montana  and  have  damages assesse,d him for the  very  things clone 
lmder  the  treaty. 

Mr. IIIEN. I think  Article VI,  so far  as it affects the  juris&ct,ion 
of hrticle IT, mllst  contr+ol, but it must be explicit. I t  is not proper, 
in nly opinion,  to do it by  implic:~.tion,  because  qnestions of jnrisdic- 
tion do not  readily  lend  themsclres  to  implication. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I understand  that  your  interpretation of Article V I  
in connection  with  Article TI is that  the first part of the  article  should 
re:td as follows: 

The high wutr:lcting parties agree that the St. hIery :~ntl h i i l k  Ilirers :111d 
their tri1)ut:lrles crossing the IwuuJ;tries in t l ~ e  Stx tc  of 31ont:lnn nntl the 
Provinces of .\lltertn : I n d  S:~skt~tc.llr~wnll are to be trc:itwI ;IS (me strw~n. 

Mr. I ~ N .  If the  treaty  had been dr‘awn to  follow  out  the  con- 

Mr. POWELL. That is, you want those words  inserted? 
Mr. BTEN. Yes. 
Mr. TAWSKY. Y o ~ i r  contention is that,  construing  Article I1 :IS a 

limitation  upon  the  interprct:ltiou of Article VI, it would mean that 
it  should  have  the effect of limjti!lg the  lnnguage of Article VI  to 
t,he tribntnrits  crossing  the borlndt~rp in  either  the  State or in  the 
Provj nces ? 

Mr. 1 3 1 ~ ~ .  Yes. T think 0111: reading  Article V I  without :L knowl- 
edge of the  history ancl the  surrounding  circumstances,  which  the 
courts  always consider, might be in  doubt;  but  taking  in  the  history 
and  the  surrounding  circnmstances,  together  with  the causes that  led 
to  the  enactment of tKis treaty, we have a definite  basis of determina- 
tion,  and,  in my opinion,  there  is  not  anything  in  that  Article VI 
contradictory  to  the  line of negotiations  that  was  pursued  from  the 
start. It was  merely  for  reasons of rhetorical elegance, perhaps,  that 
it  was not m:ttle more  explicit;  but,  in m9 opinion,  the  language  is 
susceptible of a .  ctonstrrwtion and shollld be.construed  entirely  in  line 
with  the  negotiations  that h a w  been going on for 10 years. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Mr.  Bien,  could  this be possible : That  the  negotiators 
framing  this  article,  not  being  fully  advised  as to the  location of all 
the  tributaries of the St. Mary  River  and especially of the  Milk 
Biver,  put  in  that  parenthetical  sentence for the  purpose of limiting 
territorially  the  tributaries  that  should  be  considered  in  the  division 
of these  waters? 

Mr. BIEN. It is pretty  hard  to  conjecture  what  was  in  their  minds. 
My  knowledge is derived  from  personal discussions with  Canadian 
representatives  in  the  earlier  part of the proceedings,  early  in 1908, 
but mostly in  later  times  from  Mr. Newell’s discussions with me after 
having  these  conferences  with  Dr.  Icing  or  with  the  State  Depart- 
ment,  and it is my  understanding,  which  he  can possibly  confirm, that 
after  he  had  submitted  his  draft of December 29, 1908, he  had  very 
little  to  do  with  the  language. I remember that  either  before or 
just  after  that  time we did  have  before  us  for discussion a  short  para- 
graph. It was  shorter  than  this  Article VI. I do not  recall  what  was 
In it and  a  hunt  through  our files has  failed  to disclose it,  but  appar- 
ently it was  a  mere  temporary  draft,  and possibly had  not been shown 

sistent  line of negotiation it mould have  read  that  way. 

11398-15”17 
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to  the  Canadian side. At  any  rate, it is  not  here. I know  that I went 
over  a  short  draft  just  about  that time, but  my  understanding  is  that 
after Mr. Newell's memorandum of December 29, 1908, he  had  very 
little  to  do  with  the  wording of that  law.  Of course, he  can  confirm 
that,  if  desired. I think  that,  at  least on the  side of the  United  States, 
those  who  actually  framed  this  language  were  not  thoroughly 
familiar  with  all  these  physical conditions. 
Mr. TAWNEY. I think so, too. 
Mr. WYVELL. I do  not  want  to keep  interrupting,  but if you will 

look a t  the  State of Montana  and  the  Provinces of Alberta  and 
Saskatchewan,  you  would  hardly  think  that  that  could  be possible, 
because  none of the  tributaries  reach  within, you might  say,  hundreds 
of miles of any  boundary. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. That  Idea might  help your argument, Mr. Wyvell, 
rather  than otherwise. 

Mr. WYVELL. I do  not  think it would  especially. I do  not  think it 
has  any  bearing.  But  whatever  the  facts  are  geographically  they 
can  not  be  changed. 

Mr. SANDS. I wish  to  lay  down  several  distinct  and decisive princi- 
ples. The first is, that  the  treaty power of the  United  States  can 
cot  reach  within  the  territory of Montana  upon  subjects  which  can 
not  be  the  subject of international controversy. I have  here  authori- 
ties  which I think  will absolut,ely sustain  that  point. I state  this first 
because it is  the most  important. 

I n  the second  place, I state  that  the  treaty is ambiguous. 
I n  this  third place, I state  that  the  treaty, by its preamble,  limits 

the  consideration of the  matters  taken  into  conslderation. 
I n  the  fourth place, I state  that  in view of the  fact  that  the  treaty 

is ambiguous, we then  have  the  right  to  resort  to  the  circumsances 
which  led up to  the  making of the  treaty. 

And  in  the  fifth place, I state  that it is apparent  from  the  testimony 
which  has been adduced  here  that  if  the  construction  contended for 
by the  Canadians is true, we will have to turn the  Milk  River  and run 
it u hill and  back  into  Canada. dr. MIGNAULT. I do  not  think  the commission  would  attempt,  to  do 
that. 

Mr. SA-NDB. And  yet  that seems to  be  the  contention of the  Cana- 
dians. I will  take  that  proposition first. 

The  testimony  here shows that  the Milk River and  the St. Mary 
deliver at  t.heir mouth  practically  the  same  amount of water,  with- 
out taking  into  consideration  the  streams which flow from  the  Bear 
Paw  Mountains,  the  Little Rockv Mountains,  and  all  that  territory 
south of the  Milk  River  in  the  United States. That was  the  testi- 
mony of Mr. Peters and of the witnesses, that  the two streams  were 
practically  the  same,  when  they  considered  the  amount  that  is  meas- 
ured at the  mouth  and  the  amount  that is taken  out  along  the  Milk 
River. I believe it includes a small  amount  taken  out by two  ditches 
in  Battle  Creek  which  deliver  water  on  the  Milk  River  lands.  Now, 
understand  me,  the  testimony  here shows that if there is a very  large 
area  south of the  Milk  River,  that  its  tributaries  have been appro- 
priated  years ago, and I want  to  say  that  this  is  the  most  highly 
developed  portion of northeastern  Montana  to-day ; that is, the  land 
that slopes from  the  Bear Paw Mountains to the  nort'h.  The  Bear 
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Paw  Mountains  is a string of mountains 60 miles  long,  and  from it 
flow streams  that  run  the  year  round in almost  every  season.  They 
are  big  streams,  and  by  reason of the  fact  that  the  rainfall  in  the 
mountain  regions is very  much  heavier  than  to  the  north,  where 
there  are  no  mountains,  the watcr that comes from  the  Bear  Paw 
Mountains is almost  one-half of the  water  that flows into  the  Milk 
River  in  its  natural condition. I have been there  and I know what 
I an1 talking about,. There  are  flowing  from  the  upper  Bear  Paw 
Mountains,  commencing  on  the  west,  the Bi  Sandy,  Box  Elder, 
which  is  a  branch of Big Sandy,  the  Beaver 8 reek,  which  alone, in 
my  estimation, flows as  much  water  as  either  Battle  Creek  or  French- 
man  in  its  natural  condition.  We  have  two  Box  Elders  flowing  into 
the  Bear Pam Mountains.  There  is  Clerk  Creek,  on  which  there  is 
a  high  state of development,  and  there  are  thousands of acres irri- 
gated  from  that  stream. It is so highly  developed by reservoirs  and 
irrigation  ditches  that  there is seldom at  present  any of the  waters 
of that  stream  that  reach  the  Milk  River,  but  in  its  natural  condition 
a  very  large  volume of water flowed into  the  Milk  River,  even  better 
than  Lodge  Creek  and  erhaps  equal  to  Battle  Creek, because it 
flowed a  steady  stream. b uch  being  the  condition, these waters  hav- 
ing been eliminated from the figures submitted by the  engineers  here 
it would  appear  that  Milk  R'iver is a  stream  at  least once and  a  hall 
as  large  as  the St. Mary,  and  that  in  order  to  make  an  equal  division 
of t,he waters we must  furnish  the  Canadians  with  large  volumes of 
water  from  the  Milk  River, a larger  volume  than  could possibly flow 
past  the  canals  in  Canada  from  the  Milk  River. I stated  the  fact 
that if a  division  must be made  on  the basis here  stated  the  Cana- 
dians  would  take  all of the  waters  that flow down  the  Milk  River, 
all of the  waters  that flow across the  international  boundary  line, as 
borne  out  by  the  paper  which  has been submitted  here  by  the  engi- 
neers. If you go over it you will see that we would  have  to  deliver 
back to  Canada  from  the  Milk  River a portion of the  waters of the 
Milk  River  and  have  none of the  waters of the  St.  Mary. 

The  treaty  provides  that  the XJnited States  shall  have  the right 
to flow the  waters of the St. Marys  through  the  Milk  River in 
Canada.  That  provision  would be absolutely  useless; it would  have 
been worthless,  absolutely worthless, if this  construction  contended 
for were  to be admitted. 

Mr.  MAGRATH. Are you  serious  in  making  the  statement  that  the 
Canadian cont,ention  would  mean that you  would  not  get  any of the 
waters of the St. Marys  River  at  all I' 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir; I mean to  say  that if the  waters of the St. 
Marys  and  Milk  Rivers  were  to  be  divided  equally,  the  Milk  River 
being  a  much  lar  er  stream, once and  a  half  the size of the St. Marys, 
then you would % e  entitled  to  a  portion of the  Milk  River, and we 
would not  be  entitled  to  any  portion of the St. Marys. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Why ? 
Mr. SANDS. Because  there is to be an equa,l  division. 
Mr. MIGNACLT. I do  not  follow you. 
Mr. SANDS. Let me  ut  it  this  way:  The  Milk  River is one and a 

half times  the size o P the St. Marys;  the St. Marys is a  smaller 
stream. 
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Mr. MAGRATH. I know the  situation  locally,  and it is something 
new to me that  the  Milk  River is a larger  producer of water than the 
St. Mar 7s River. 

Mr. ~ A N D S .  I have  Mr.  Peters’s  figures  here.  Mr.  Peters’s  state- 
ment was that  the  Milk  River f l o ~ ~ ~ d  735,000 acre-feet in  the  year,  on 
an average. 

Mr. M n c h m s .  I think you are  wrong  there. 
Mr. GLEXN. I always  understood  that  the St. Marys is the  larger 

river of the two. 
Mr. SQNDS. They  have so stated,  but  they  hare  not  taken  into con- 

sideration  the  waters of the  Bear  Paw  Range,  which  never  reached 
the  Milk  River t,o he measured. 

Mr. GLENN. You say they were not  taken i n ?  
Mr. SAXDS. They were not,  and  that is the reason I say  that  the 

Milk River,  in its natural  condition, is much  the  larger of the  two 
streams. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Are you taking  the  measurement at  the  mouth? 
Mr. SANDS. Mr.  Peters  says  that  the  average flow, taking  the  data 

the.y  have, of the  Milk  River, is 735,000 acre-feet  per  annum. The 
annual flow of the St. Marys  River is 807,000 acre-feet  per  annum in 
the average.  There is a slight difference in  favor of the St. Marys 
River there. C,oncede that much. This  takes  into  consideration 
38,000 acres of waters  which  had been diverted  prior  to  reaching  the 
mouth of the  Milk  River.  That is included  in  the 735,000, but  that 
is all  that  is  included.  They do not  include  the  waters of the  Bear 
Paw slope, which I say  to  you  will exceed a  good  deal  more  than one- 
quarter, or nearly  one-half, of the  waters  that would  naturally flow 
into  the  Milk  River,  and  which  hare  not been taken  into  considera- 
tion  at all’. Therefore, it is clearly  apparent-don’t  you ’catch’my 
point, Mr. Mi nault-it is clearly  apparent from the figures  taken 
that  the  Milk gR iver is much  the  larger  stream, I say  one  and a half 
times  and T think I say it advisedly, the size of the St. Marys. If 
that is the case, there would be no purpose in the United States 
uaking the  maters of the St. Marys  and  bringing  them  over  into  the 
Milk River, because  they.  would have  to be delivered  back in  order 
to make an equal  division. 

That provision of the  treaty is absolutely  nugatory  if  you  take 
into  consideration  the  physical  facts  which  have been presented to 
yon. If  my  point is not  absolutely  plain I would  like  you,  gentle- 
men, to ask me questions. 

Mr. POWELL. Your contention is plain  if  the  facts  bear it out. 
Mr. SANDS. The  hydrographs  and  the  testimony  here  bear  me  out. 
Mr. POWELL. That will be for 11s to look  into. 
Mr. MIGNAULT. So f a r  as  the  facts  are  concerned I am  not  yet 

convinced. 
Mr. GLENN. You say that  these  gentlemen did not  take  into con- 

sideration  the  water you are  speaking of south of the line, what you 
call  the  Bear  Paw  mater? 

Mr. SANDS. Yes;  the  rivers  from  the  Bear  Paw  Range. 
Mr. GLENN. And you say  if  you  take  these  waters.  which  they  did 

not take  into  consideration, p.lns the  waters  in  the  Milk  River  that 
they did take  into  consideration,  the  two combined  would be more 
than  the  amount of water  in  the St. Mary  River. 



ST. MARY AXD MILK RIVERS. 261 

Mr. SANDB. Yes, sir; by  nearly  one-half. If you  look at  the  map, 
that will  be  more  apparent. It was stated  by  Mr. Newell that  the 
basin of the  Milk  River is bounded  by the  Sweet  Grass Hills on the 
south,  then  by  the Bear Paw Range,  then  by  the  Little Rockies. It 
is bounded  on  the  north  only  by  the  Cypress  Hills.  The  Cypress 
Hills do  not  compare  in size with  the  Sweet  Grass  Hills, ,and mostly 
all of the flow from  the Sweet Grass Hills flows over into  the  Marias 
River  or  into  the  Milk  River,  exclusirely  upon  American soil.  Com- 
ing  next  to  the  Bear  Paw,  the  monntains  there  are  as  high  at 6,500 
feet. It is a large  mountain  range,  and  from  that  large  streams flow 
into  the  Milk  River  in  the TTnited States,  and  from  that  there is the 
highest  state of development in  that section of the  State.  These 
lands  have been developed  as  early as 1890. They  were  the  first 
lands developed. They were  developed  even before  those  in  the 
Milk  River  Valley,  and  all of these  streams hare ditches  and  nnmer- 
ous reservoirs  are  built  there. 

Mr. POWELL. What acreage is there ? 
Mr. % , i N m  1 should  say  it  far exceeds the  area  in  the  Milk  River 

Mr. POWELL. Fifty  thousand  acres? 
Mr. SANDS. It would exceed 100,000. I think  there  are 150,000 

acres of land  in  the  Bear Paw- and  Little Rockies, all  in  American 
territory  and  all  sonth of Milk  River. 

Neither did these  figures  take into consideration the flow of streams 
from  the  north,  other  than  the one  stream  mentioned,  namely,  the 
Battle  Creek.  They  did  not  take  into  consideration  the  irrigation 
from  the  West  Fork of Lodge  Creek,  as  you  call it. The  Lodge 
Creek  irrigation  in  the  United  States is very  large.  They did not 
take  into  consideration  the  irrigation  from  Parallel  Creek,  which is 
large ; they did not  take  into  consideration  large  streams  along  the 
way. So I tell  you  frankly, I do  not believe if you  measure the 
Milk  River  that  the figures there given are more than  two-thirds of 
the  entire flow. 

Mr. MAGRATII. What,  in  your  opinion,  is  the  acreage  that is irri- 
gated  on  these  streams  in  Montana  which flow from  the  north  into 
the  Milk  River? 

Mr. SANDS. The  North  Chinook  Irrigation  Association  is  probably 
one of the  largest,  and I think  they  have  approximately 6,000 acres. 
Then  there  are  numerous  small  irrigation  projects, 

Digressing  from  that  point, I now  wish to  deal  with  the  ambiguity 
of the  treaty.  While I may  possibly  repeat  something  that  has been 
said  by  Mr.  Bien  and  by  my  other colleagues, I do wish to emphasize 
my  point of view in  this  particular.  Reading  from  the  treaty,  the 
preamble,  which  is  the  controlling  language of this  treaty : 

and of tho  British Donlinions begontl the  Seas, Emperor of Indin, and the 
His Majesty the  King of tbe ‘CTlritetl king don^ of Great  Britain  and  Ireland 

United  Stntes of Americvx, being cqnallg desirous to prevent  disputes  regarding 

between  the  United  States  and the Dominion of Canada involving the  rights, 
the use of hountlnry waters ant1 to  settle  all  questions  which are now pending 

of the other along their conmon  frontier,  and to millre provision for the adjust- 
obligations, or interests of either in relation  to the other or to the  inhabitants 

mrnt ant1 s~ t t l t~~ncn t  of a11 such quttstions :IS m;ty hcrtxftel.  arise, have r~solvecl 
to conclude a trcnty in furtberance of these en&. 

The  point is this:  The  treaty  says  they  are  going  to  make a con- 
tract  in  relation  to all matters of controversy  then  pending or which 

Valley. 
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may arise. That  limits  it, you  can go  no  further,  that is a limitihg 
clause. It says:  “All  matters of controversy  then  pending or which 
may arise.” 

Mr. MIGNATJLT. That  is  pretty wide,  though. 
Mr. SAXDS. That  is  true,  but  let me  ask  you how can  any con- 

troversy  arise  respecting  the  waters  that flow from  the  Bear  Paw 
Mountains  into  the  Milk  River?  How  could  any  controversy  arise 
between  the  United  States  and  Canada  respecting  these  waters? 
That is an  utter  impossibility.  None  has  arisen ; none  can  arise. 
Therefore, I say  to  you, I firmly  believe that  the  provisions of this 
treaty  are  thoroughly  and fixedly limited  by  that  preamble. 

Mr. POWELL. It might  not be a subject  of.controversy,  but  might 
it not be one of the  elements  that  is  taken  into  account  to  settle a 
controversy a 

Mr. SANDS. I do  not  think it could be. This treaty  deals only 
with  such controversies  which have  arisen  or  may arise. 

Mr. TATVNEY. It says “ and  to  prevent  disputes.” 
Mr. SANDS. There  could be no  dispute  regarding  the  waters of 

Clear  Creek,  which flows into  the  Milk  River  from  the south. 
Mr. POWELL. That  might be a  quid pro for  giving  the  United 

States  the  right of transportation  through  the  Milk  River  in  Canada. 
Mr. SANDS. But  the  treaty power  can  not  reach  that,  and I shall 

deal  with  that  later.  That is  my  contention  when I say  there  is a 
limitation  in  the  treaty. As I say, it is a  limitation,  and I am  going 
to  say  further,  that  reading  this  preamble  with  Section VI  it consti- 
tutes  an  ambiguity. If yon do  not concede me that  principle, you 
must concede that  readin  Section V I  of the  treaty  and  the 
amble it constitutes an am a iguity. A principle of law is that  w r e -  ere 
there  is  ambiguity  you  have  to  read  into it the  antecedent  circum- 
stances  and  snrroundings of the  making of a  contract or a  treaty. 
That is a well-established principle of the  law  on  both  sides of the 
line. 

Mr. POWELL. You would have  the  right to do that  without  any 
ambiguity. 

Mr. SANDS. I f  you concede so much you certainly  can  go  to  the 
point  raised  by Mr. MacInnes. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I do  not  wish to restrict  you,  but it is  generally 
understood  that we will close to-day,  and  thus far the discussion 
on  the  construction of the  treaty  has been entirely  on  one side, and 
if we are  to  conclude  the  hearing  this  afternoon,  and  give  the  repre- 
sentatives of Canada  an  opportunity  to  reply, it will be  necessary 
to restrict  the discussion to some extent. 

Mr. GLENN. I think  there  will be time  enough, even if we have to 
stay  another  day. 

Mr. MIONAULT. I am  ready  to  stay  another  day if necessary, I 
want  all  sides  to be heard. 

Mr. TAWNEY. So do I, but I want  to call  attention  to  this  matter 
now so that  there  will  be  no  complaint  afterwards if the session of 
the  commission  has  to  be  extended. 

Mr.  GLENN.  The  gentlemen  can  restrict  their  remarks as  much as 
possible. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Mr. Sands  having discussed this  point  for some 
hours  yesterday, I thought  he  would be able  to  condense  his  present 
remarks  somewhat. 
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Mr. SANDS. The most important  point  is  the question  which I 
raised  yesterday. At that  time I simply  raised it as an expression 
of opinion,  but as some authorities  were  mentioned  last  night  which 
would seem to  imply  the  contrary, I have  this  morning  obtained  the 
latest  work  on  limitations  to  the  treaty-making  powers,  which  is 
by Henry St. George  Tucker,  and I should  like  to  plnce  this  work 
at  the  disposal of the commissioners,  because it treats  with  the  matter 
very  lucidly. 

Mr. GLENN. Henry St. George  Tucker  was a very nllle lawyer  in 
the  State of Virginia. 

Mr. SANDS. My  first  quotation  will be from page 380, entitled 
“ Japanese-California controversy.” The discussion ~ I I  this work is 
so pertinent  that I may  be  compelled to  read  somewhat  at  length, 
but I think you will see the  force of the  argument. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. The  point is  very important; it is the most  im- 
portant  point  raised a t  this  hearing. 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir;  and I think  this discussion  by the  author  dis- 
cusses it very  fairly. 

(Mr.  Sands  then  cited  from  page 380, HenrJ-  St. (iec~rge Tucker’s 
book, the  chapter ‘‘ Japanese-California controversy.,’) 

According  to  the views expressed  yesterday  by sonic' gentlemen 
hefore  this  commission,  the  Federal  Government wonltl .have the 
right  to  make a treaty  respecting  the  property of : r n y  State or 
within  any  State.  The  argument  went so fur as to  say, i n  fnct,  that 
the  Federal  Government of the ‘IJnitecl States  had  the  right to come 
into  the  city of St. Paul  and  say  that  the  treaty power  would  extend 
to  street car lines in  this city, if there mas any question of contro- 
Yersy between the  two  Governments  respecting  them. st:ttement, 
when I first  addressed  the Commission, was that  the t,:*eaty  power 
extends  only  to  those  matters  which  may be the  subject of controversy 
between  two  nations,  and the question of a  street  car  line  in a city 
could not possibly be the  question of controvers  between  two 
nations. I state  again  that  the  principle  here  invo P ved is that the 
Federal  Government  has  no  right  to  make  treaties  respecting mat- 
ters  which  can  not  be  matters of controversy  between  two  nations. 

Mr. GLENN. As I understand  it, you  mean to say that  Montana, 
having complete  control mer  these rivers  entirely  within  the 
State-“ 

Mr. SANDS. Given  by  Congress. 
Mr. GLENN. And  having  the  right  to  iwigate these lands, n.hich 

they  have  already  authorized  them  people  to  do,  that  the  Federal 
Government  can  not come ip and make n treaty  with  Great  Britain 
which  would in  any  way  ~nterfere  with  the  right  given  to  these 
people  by the  State  in  regard  to a matter  entirely  within  its  juris- 
diction. 

Mr. SAXIN. That  is  what T mcan. 
Mr. TAWNES. Would  not  the logic of that preclude  consideping 

the use  of any of the  w&rs of the  Milk  River,  or of its  tribu- 
taries,  flowing across the  boundary  in  the  State of Montana! 

Mr. SANDS. I do not think so. The  treaty  power of the  United 
States  has  no  authority  to  consider  matters  which  can  not  he  the 
subject of controversy  between  the two nations. 

Mr. TAWNEY. The  waters of the  Milk  River,  after  they cross the 
boundary,  then come back  into  Montana  and  never retnm:  are  they 
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not as Inuch the  property of the  State of Montana  as  the  rivers  that 
rise  in  Montana  and  remain  in  Montnna  and  empty  into  the  river 
below the  boundary? 

Mr. SANDS. Yes. 
Mr. TAWPI'EY. The logic of your  position would be to  cut  out all 

the  waters  that  are exclusively in  the  State of MontaIla. 
Mr.. SANIIS. Yes; it woltid cut  out  all  wrters  that do not flow H C ~ O Y S  

tlle boundary. 
Mr. ' I 'A~ .XEY.  When  they cross the  boundary  they  are as much the 

property of Montana ns any river  water. 
Mr. SAXUS. The  waters  that flow into  Canada  n~onld be the  sub- 

ject of controvcrsy, I m t  :t-fter. they come back into  the TJnitecl States 
we know that  there can be . n o  contro\.ersy  respecting  these  w:lters, 
because the ('nnadians  could  not use them. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I<xactly; yo11r position would go to  the  extent of 
excluding fl.on1 a n > -  t1.t.nty provisions  the a i ) i ' c ) ~ t i o l ~ n l t ? I l t  o f  the 
water of anv  river t h t  c~l~rssed  the Imlndar!r and came b:tck into 
the  State of Montana? 

Mr. S . \ X D S .  1 W, Y i r .  1 f : l y  T pi \ (1 :I c ~ , ~ r c . ~ ~ t c  illIIstt.:rtion'! The 
Chicago  Canal  is  an  artificial  waterway.  The  water  never flowed 
from  the  Chicago  l-tiver  into  the  hlississippi,  but  they  have con- 
stmcted  an artificial canal. That work  nay be the  subject of inter- 
national  controrersy t m r l  nlicllt be the  subject of treaty, txnd I be- 
lieve  is. n l l t  i f  the waters of the  Chicago  drainage  canal  origi- 
nated i n  and  only ran through tha t  canal T do not believe that  the 
United  States  cor~ld  consider  it :L subject of controrersy. nut that 
is a little  bit  different bccanse it connects  with the waters th:lt go into 
the St. Lawrence, and T may not have  given :1 very  happy  illustrn- 
tion.  The  waters th:tt: h : ~ \ . c  passed into Montann  can not be utilized 
and  tllere ran be no c0l:lirn in anv way hy the people of Canatla  on 
them  after  they come over to  this side of the  line  and  never  can 
return  in  their  natural course. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Your argument, I think, is stronger  when  you 
exclude the element of controversy. Your argument is that  the 
treaty-making  power of the  United  States does not  extend to a 
river  which is whollf situated  in  the  State of Montana? 

Mr. SANDS. Yes. 
Mr. M ~ ~ X A C L T .  And witllot1t bringing  in  the  matter of their being 

subject  to  controversy. I think  yo~w a1-gunlent  would be better. 
Mr. SAXDS. But I ;~dt l ,  in :rdtlition. if it ctln be the  subject of in- 

ternational  controversy. 
Mr. Mrcsar~rir.. On  the question of jurisdiction, to say that a  river 

wholly  situated  in  the  State of Montana  can  not be the  subject of 
a treaty-making power with  the  IJnited  States, so fa r  I follow you. 
But it is not necessary for your  argument to question  ivhether or 
not snch a riyer could form the  subject of a  controversy  between the 
United  States  and  another power. 

Mr. SAKDS. I think  this  authority  holds  both; it is continuous. 
But,  for  my view of it, I say that it would  need to  go  only  to  the 
one  point. I think  it  strengthens  the  proposition  to  say  that i t  must 
be shown,  before the, t l w t y  power  can havc  anything to do  with  it, 
that   i t  could be or is the subject of international  controversy. 

Mr. MIGXAIJLT. I think  your  strong  argument is this:  That  if 
such a river is subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the  State of 
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Montana,  then  the  United  States  can  not  dispose of it  in  any lvay 
by a treaty  with a foreign power. 

Mr. SANDS. Not  until  something  arises  which  can  make it the  sub- 
ject of controversy. 

Mr. MIGNAUI:~. Whether  it  is  the  subject of controversy  or  not. 
Mr. SAXDS. I can  not conceii  e of ally conditions  under  which  that 

would be the subject of international  controversy. It might be that 
the  river flowed to  within a couple of miles of the  international 
boundary  and  the  Governments of the two countries  might  deal  with 
it under  certain  conditions; one Government  might be establishing 
forts  across  the  boundary  that  might be the  subject of international 
control-emy, and  they  might  make a provision that  no  forts or no 
dams  for v a r  purposes should be establiPhed. 2nd pr.nhal)l~ they 
could  do  that,  while it  might be wholly  within  the  State. 

Mr .  blrc,sacm. T!lnt n .o~~l i i  be a  diRerent q1Ict;tion, because the 
TJnited States has nndoubtcdly jllrisclict.ion in  military  mnttcrs. . 

Mr. SAKIJY. I do  not  admit  thnt  any  further  than  the  rovlsions of 
the  Constitution go. \I7e do not use the  term '' military "at all. 

Mr. TAWNEY. The  Federal  Government has exclusive power  and 
control  over  all  matters aii'ecting the  national  defense,  and  for  thnt 
purpose  the  United  States  conld  take mettsures  anywhere. 

Mr. GLEXN. The  point  Mr.  Sands makes is that  this  river,  being 
entirely  within  the  State, it does not come under  treaty  provisions. 

Mr. SANDS. That is the  point. 
(Mr. Sands  further quoted from  Tucker.) 
Mr. SASL,S. This statement of the law applies to my argument by 

showing  that if you accept the  Canadian  construction of the  treaty, 
then  there  are  provisions  in  that  treaty  that  are  nugatory. 

Mr. M A c I ~ N E . ~ .  I think  Mr.  Sands's  ,urpose mould be attained  if 
he  gave  us  the  references  to  the  pages o I this  work  instead of reading 
them. 

Mr. TAWNEY. These cases to  which you are  referring,  Mr.  Sands, 
involw questions  under  the  Constitution. 

Mr. SANDS. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. They  are  not cases  which  involve the  construction of 

treaties for the  purpose of ascertaining  the  right of the  treaty-making 
power. 

Mr. SANDS. I think  they  are. 
Mr. TAWNEY. These  are cases in which I think  the  right of the 

State  is involved  under  the  Constitution of the  United  States.  The 
point  here is the exercise of thc  Federal power in  making a  treaty. 

Mr. SANDS. I do. not see your  point. 
Mr. TATVNEY. The questions  dealt  with  there are questions  involv- 

Mr. SAXIN. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. And  not  with  respect  to  the  treaty-making power. 
Mr. GLENN. The whole  question is whether  they  may  make  a  treaty 

to  abrogate  the  right of the  State. 
Mr. SANDS. Congress  gave  these  rights  to  the  State of Montana, 

and  the  State of Montana in turn  gave these rights  to  the people, and 
if the  treaty-making  power  can come in  and  set aside an act of Con- 

ress, then  it follows that  the  treaty-making  power  is  superior  to the 
Eongress. Further  on  this  work  illustrates  the  results  that  may fol- 
low. Would  the  gentlemen of the commission prefer to read  this 

ing  State  rights. 

,/ 



266 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS. 

for themselves  or  would  they  understand it better if I read  in  what I 
think  bears  on  the  case? 

Mr. MIGNAULT. Personally I would be better satisfied to  read  it 
myself;  however, you can  do so if you  want to. 

Mr. GLENN. Mr. Sands  has  the  right  to  read it if he wishes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. We  are  all  agreed  on  that. 
Mr. SANDS. Possibly  when  you  hear it read  you  will  get  a  better 

idea of my  meaning  than if  you  read  it yourselves. 
(Mr. Sands  continued  to  read  from  Tucker.) 
Mr. SANDS. I n  other  words,  the  Congress of the  United  States  gave 

these  waters  to  the  State of Montana,  and if the  treaty-making  power 
can set that  aside,  then it is superior  to  Congress. 

Mr. TAWNEY. How do you apply  this  argument  to  the  question 
before us? Do you  mean to  say  that  this commission  would have  the 
power to  declare that  this  treaty was  in  violation of the  Constitution 
of the  United  States,  and  therefore declined  to act.or declared that it 
was  nugatory  and of no effect as  applied  to  the  division of the  waters 
of the St. Mary  and  the  Milk  Rivers? Do you expect us to  hold  that 
this  treaty  is  unconstitutional ! 

Mr. SANDS. That reaches  a  very  delicate  question,  which my friend 
Mr.  Wyvell  did  not  wish  to  raise  at  the  present time. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Do you think  that  the commission has  that  power? 
I f  it has  not  that  power  the  argument  is of no  avail; we can  not con- 
sider  a  question of the  constitutionality of the  treaty. 

Mr. GLENN. I do not understand  the  argument  in  that way. Mr. 
Sands is taking  the  ground  that  the  treaty is unconstitutional,  and 
he is taking  the  ground  that  this  treaty  never  was  intended  to  cover 
a  right of the  State which  has  not been conceded to  the  General  Gov- 
ernment,  and  that  the  treaty  power  can  not  make  a  treaty  with  any 
other  Government  that will infringe  the  rights not given to  the 
Federal  Government. 

Mr. WYVELL. And  that knowledge, of course,  was in  the  minds of 
the  United  States officials in  framing  the  treaty. 

Mr. TAWNEY. In  the  interpretation of the  treaty,  should  the con- 
clusion  be  reached that  the  language of the  treaty itself includes 
tributaries,  as it says  tributaries of both  countries,  then if this 
provision is not  the  Constitution of the  United  States we can  not  act 
under  the  treaty  at  all, because the effect of our judgment  would  be 
that it was unconstitutional. 

Mr. GLENN. I do  not  think  the  question  bears  an  the  unconstitu- 
tionality of the  treaty  at all. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I wanted Mr.. Sands’s  idea as to whether  he  expected 
the commission to hold  on  the  constitutionality of the  treaty. 

Mr. SANDS. I must sag that I, for myself,  do  not  know  whether 
this  commission  is  a  judicial or a  purely  administrative body. I f  it 
is a judicial body it has  the  right to  construe  the  treaty  and  de- 
termine  all  these question. I f  it is simply  an  administrative  body, 
it has  not  that  authority. I do not know, but  there  is  the  situation. 
An  administrative  body  would  not  have  the  authority.  But I do 
go  this  far  to say  t,hat  it is a principle of law  that  where  the  agent 
of a  party  has  not  the  authority to  include  certain  elements  m  a 
contract,  both  parties  are  presumed  to know that  and  to  have con- 
tracted  with  that  in view, and,  therefore,  if  the  Federal power had 
not  the  right  to  make a treaty  respecting  the  waters  in  the  State of 
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Montana-wholly  within  the  State of Montana-then  both  parties  are 
presumed  to  have  known  that  and  to  have  made  the  contract  with 
that  in view. You do  not  have  to  construe  the  treat  unconstitu- 
tional;  you  have  to  construe it with  that  idea  in view. 1 corporation 
is organized  in  this  State for the  purpose of running  a  street  car  line, 
and a by-law  provides  that  the officers shall  have  the  right  to  make 
contracts  with respect to  that. If the officers  of that  company  should 
make  contracts  wholly  withcut  the scope of the business  of that 
corporation,  such  contracts  would  be  nugatory  and void, and  the 
courts  would  say so. The  courts  would  say  that  such  contracts  were 
void in whole  or in  part, void in respect to  that  part  as  to which the 
officials had  no  authority  to  enter  into  a  contract. 

Mr. TAWNEY. If  the  two  Governments  had  intended  to  include  all 
the  tributaries  in  these  streams  in  the  two  Canadian  Provinces  and 
in  the  State of Montana,  the  act  would be ultra  vires  and  that  pro- 
vision of the  treaty would be nugatory  and  have  no  edect? 

Mr. SANDS. Yes, sir;  and  both  parties  are supposed  to  know  that, 
and  you  would so construe  it,  and  that  is  why  what I am  reading 
from  this  authority is ver  pertinent. 

Mr. BIEN. I think  Mr. 8 ands's  point  simply is that  the  treaty  can 
not  extend  beyond  matters  which  are  subject  to  the  treaty-making 

ower,  and,  therefore,  can  not  extend  to  waters  that  lie solely within 
kontana  and  do  not cross tho  boundary,  hnt  it  wonld  apply  fully  to 
these waters  which cross the  boundary. 

Mr. POWELL. Or, in  other  words,  you say that  in  construing  the 
treaty we must  limit it to  the  matters as to  which  the  Federal  power 
of the  United  States  has  authority  to  treat 1 

Mr.  BIEN.  Exactly. 
Mr.  MIGNAULT. It is a fa i r  argument  to  say  that if there is any 

doubt  about  the  language we will  have  to  say  the  thing  must be 
restricted, because, in  our  opinion,  the  treaty  would  be  ultra  vires of 
the  United  States.  But  then we would be doing  something  which, 
I understand,  no  court  in  your  land  has ever done. 

Mr. SASDS. I take issue with you  on that. 
Mr.  MIGNAULT. I may be wrong,  bnt I would  like to be advised on 

the subject. 
- 

Mr. SANDS. Mv statement of the  law  would be that, even though 
the  language of" the  treaty or the  contract mere  very  definite, tlhe 
parties  would be presumed  to know the law. 

Mr.  MIGNAULT. If the  matter  were  clear, it would  not be a matter 
of construction,  but it would be a matter of setting  aside  a  part of 
the  treaty. 

Mr. SANDS. It would be a  matter of following  the  spirit of the 
treaty, because both  parties  are  supposed  to  know  what  they  did. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. I would not  say  that, because if an  illegal clause is 
put  in  a  contract you might  construe  the  contract  as  not  containing 
that clause. I would  say  it is not a matter of construction; it IS a 
matter of declaring  void  a  contract  which one or  both of the  parties 
had  not  the  right  to  enter into. 

Mr. POWELL. And  your  point,  Mr.  Sands, is that it is a matter of 
construction 8 

Mr. SANDS. That  is my point. It is a well-settled principle of law, 
that  no one mill refute,  that  all  parties  in  making a contract  are  sup- 
posed to know the law. 
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Mr. MIGNAULT. It is one of the most  gratuitous  assumptions of 

Mr. SANDS. It is often  fallacious. 
Mr. GLENN. You  might  cite  your  authorities, Mr. Sands,  and we 

Mr. TATVNEY. You or any  other  gentleman  interested  will  have  the 

%r. SANDS. I would  like to  read one point,  which I marked,  from 

the law. 

can  read  them. 

ri ht  to  submit a memorandum  or  a  brief. 

page 84 of the same  work. 
(Mr.  Sands  read  the  paragraphs  in question from  Tucker.) 
Mr. SANDS. I wish to say  that  last night an  authority was sub- 

mitted  to you here  from 100 United  States  reports  which  appears 
to  hold  contrary  to  my  contention. That case is very  carefully  dif- 
ferentiated  in  this work: and it is said  that  that case does not  sustain 
the  point  it was  quoted to sustain  before  this commission. I will not 
read it to you, but I hope ou will  make  note of i t  in chapter 6, and 
it is a branch of the case o P Hauenstein 'o. Lynham. 

I would say  further  that  this  author sunls up the  whole  thing,  and 
his conclusions are  at  page 428. In  his  summing  np  he  sustains  the 
point  that I make  very  positively,  and I may  say  that if the  authority, 
is good,  and  his  reasoning seems very  clear, I do  not see how it can 
be  otherwise than  that you must  sustain  the  point I make. 

Mr. POWELL. I would  like to  hear yo~u.  views  on the  actual clivi- 
sion of the  water. 

Mr. SANDS. My view of the  division of the  water is, that  under 
the  provisions of section 6 of the  treaty  the  waters of the  two 
streams  should be divided  as  follows: If there  is 500 second-feet 
or less in  the St. Mary,  then  the  Canadians  should  take  three-fourths 
of the  total  and  the  IJnited  States  one-fourth. If   there is over 500 
second-feet up to 1,000 second-feet,  the  people of the  United  States 
should  take  the second 500 feet. That is to say,  that  when it reaches 
1,000 cubic feet  per second, then  there  is  an  equal  division,  and  after 
that timr there is an eqnal  division. If there is BOO cnbic feet  in  the 
stream  the  people of Canada would take 375 and  the  United  States 
125, even going  further  than  that  np  to 667, Canada  gets its full 
500 second-feet. It has  no  further  priority  until  the  United  States 
shall  have  receired  its  one-half of the  water of the St. Mary. 

Mr. MAGRATH. And  if  there  are 800 feet 1 
Mr. SANDS. The Unite,d States  has 300 feet  and  Canada 500 feet. 
Mr. POWELL. How  about  adding  the  two  streams  together? 
Mr. SANDS. I would  prefer  that  construction I have  given. 
Mr. POWELL. 'we  hare  to consider the two streams  as one. 
Mr. SANDS. I do not see hardly how you are  going  to  do it, be- 

cause it looks to me as if it mas giving a priority  right of 500 feet 
on  each  stream  and I think  that was the  intention of the  treaty. 

Mr. POWELL. You mould  concede that  the  prior  apportionment 
in  each case came out of the one-half 1: 

Mr. SAXDS. Yes; I think  that  prior  apportionment only  means 
the  right  to  take it out first. 

Mr. POWELL. And  that  the  paramount  principle of the  two,  namely, 
equal  division  and  prior  apport,ionment, is prior  apportionment. 

Mr. SAND. Yes; I think so. 
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CONTINUATION OF THE ARGUXENT OF W. 3. SANDS. 

PARTICULARLY INCLI7I)ING CITATIONS FROM T H E  WORK OF HENRY RT. 
GEORGE TUCKER, ENTITLED “ LIMITATIONS ON THE TREATY-MAKINO 
POWER.” 

Restating  the  proposition  advanced  that  the  treaty  should  not be 
construed  to  include  waters  not  international  in  character  for  the 
reason that  the  treaty-making  power of the  United  States does not 
extend  to  the  right  to  interfere  with  the  private  property of the  citi- 
zens  within  the  State  where  such  property is and  could  not  be  a 
matter of international controversy. All persons  are  presumed  to 
know  the  law,  and  in  making  the  treaty  all  parties  were  presumed 
to know that it was  not  within  the  constitutlonal  authority of the 
treaty-making  power  to  include  waters  not  international  in  character 
in  the  provisions of the  treaty. It is  not  contended  that  the  treaty 
is unconstitutional,  but  this  point is urged  simply  to  establish  the 
proposition  that  the  treaty  should  not be construed  to  include  waters 
not  international  in  their  character. 

It can  not be disputed  that if the  provisions of Article VI  of the 
treaty were  construed  to  include  waters  not  international  in  charac- 
ter,  then it is  the  assumption of power  over  all  such  waters  and is, in 
a sense, the  taking of such  property. It is too well settled to admit 
of argument  that  when a State or nation  assumes  to exercise control 
of property it must  have  jurisdiction  over  it. I assume that  this is 
such  a  well-settled  proposition  that  the  citation of authorities is 
wholly  unneoessary. 

On  page 84 of the  work  cited above I find  the  following  statement: 
The supremacy of the judicial power, of the  legislative power, and of the 

executive  power  in the Federal  Government in their  respective  spheres was 
complete .and unchallengetl, wvltile the  powers  not de!Fgated but  which  were re- 
served “to  the  States,  respectively, or to  the people  mere left undisturbed by 
the  Constitution 21s not needed by the  Federal  Governnient;  and because the 
supremacy of the  Constitution  declared  in  Article V I  pervades  every part of it- 
and  the  tenth  ameudment is 11s much a part of it a s  Article V I  or any  other 

sphere equally supreme  and suhorclinate to no other power in the Constitution. 
section of that instrument-the  rcserved powers  contained therein are  in their 

And on page. 85 I find along  the  same  line: 
To ascertain  whether  any  power  assumed by the Government of the  United 

States is rightfully  assumed  the  Constitution is to be examined  in  order  to  see 

the  grant  does  not  appear  the  assumption  must be held unwarranted. To as- 
whether  expressly or by fair  implication  the  power has been granted; and if 

certain  whether a State  rightfully  esercises a power we  have only to  see 
whether by the  Constitution of the United  States it is conceded to  the Union 
or by that  Constitution or that of the State  prohihited  to  be  exercised at all. 
The  presumption  must  he  that  the  State  rightfully  does  what it assumes to do 
until it is made  to  appear how, by constitutional concessions, i t  has  divested 

cise unwarrantable. (Cooley’s Constitutional  Law, p. 31.) 
itself o f  the power or by its own  constitution has for the  time  rendered  the exer- 

75. But it is urged  that  the  language of the Constitution  placing the treaty- 
making power in the President  and  Senate,  with no limitations upon its scope, 

advice  and  consent of the Senate,  to n1:lke treaties,  provided  two-thirds of the 
but  merely  declaring  that  the  President  “shall  have  the power, by and  with  the 

which may be  incorporated  in a treaty; that had the  framers o f  the  Constitu- 
Senators  present concur,” shows  that  there is QO limit  to  the  subjects or rights 

tion  intended any limitations,  they would have heen made, just as the  subjects 
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upon  which  Congress (’an legislate  are specifically enumerated  in  the Constf- 
tntion. A moment’s consideration will show that  the  difference  hetween the two 
;s palpnble. A treaty,  generically, is a n  agreement or contrnct  between  two 
nations which may emhr:we any  subject or right  incident  to the citizenship of 
either  country. An enumeration of subjects  or  objects  which could ProPerlY 
t,e contained in a treaty would therefore  be  practically impossible. But  the 
legislative  powers of Congress being  few could be easily  enumerated. Mr. 
Rawle,  in  speaking of this  matter,  says:  “To define them (the subjects of a 
treaty)  in  the  Constitution  would  have been  impossible, and  therefore a general 
term could  only he macle use of,  which is, however, to  be  scrupulously confined 
to  its  legislative  interpretation.”  (Rnmle, View of the Constitutoin of the 
United  States, 2d ed., p. 64.) 

the  treaty-making power is vested exclusively  in  the Government of the United 
76. Mr. Calhoun says of this : ‘‘ The  reason is to be found in the  fact   that  

specify, as is done, the  portion  or  department of the Government  in  which it is 
States,  and  therefore  nothing  more was necessary in  delegating  it  than  to 

vested. It was  then  not only unnecessary,  but it would have been absurd  to 
enumerate specifically the  powers  embraced  in  the  grant. Very different is the 
case in  regard  to  legislative powers. The are divided  between  the  Federal 

order  to  draw the line  between the delegated  and  reserved powers, that  the one 
Government  and  State  governments,  which  made  it  absolutely  necessary, in 

was  intended  to  he  but  supplemental  to  the  latter  and  to  embrace  the  compura- 
or  the  other  should be carefully  enumerated  and  specified;  and as the  former 

tively  few  powers  which conld not  be  either  exercised at all or, if at all, could 
not be so well  and  safely  exercised by the  separate  governments of the  several 
States it was proper  that  the  former and not  the  latter  should  be  enumerated 
and specified. But,  although  the  treaty-making power is exclusively  vested,  and 
without  enumeration  or spccificntion, in  the  Government of the  United  States, 
it is  nevertheless  subject  to  several  important  limitations.”  (See chap. 1.) 

77. It would he to convict the  framers of the  Constitution of a lack of fore- 
sight,  which  can  not be properly  imputed  to  them,  to  suppose  they  intended 
to  give  this  treaty-making power unlimited scope to  absorb  every  right of the 
people of the  States  against which they had so carefully  guarded  in  the  enumera- 
tion of the  powers of Congress ant1 by the  reservations  in  the  tenth  amendment. 
The  powers of Congress, the  Executive,  and  the  judiciary  were  enumerated  in 
detail,  and  all  powers  not grztnted were, under  the  tenth  amendment,  reserved 
to the  States or  to  the people, respectively. Of what  avail  is  it  to  know  that the 
framers of the  Constitution  securely  preserved  to  the people their  sacred  local 

be  absorbed under  the treaty-making  power? If the  Federal  Government  can 
rights  from the  grasp of Congress, the  President, or  the  judiciary if they can 

take  them, it matters  little  what  department  may  claim  the right. A man  who 
is robbed of a precious  jewel of great  price,  dear  to  him by the ties of every 
sacred Rssociation, call not  be  comforted  in  his  loss by the knowledge that a 
different  person  from  the  one he snpposed to be the thief was really  his 
despoiler. 

Page 92 : 
85. If  we  are  to  accept,  therefore,  the  literal me:rning of tho  words  in  Article 

the  letter of the Constitution  accords  them,  what is the  result?  In the first place, 
VI, as applied to  treaties,  and give to  them  the  supremacy  which it is claimed 

every  power  delegated  to the Congress of the  United  States  for  its  execution 

the Constitution  had  that  the  imposition of taxes, the regulation of commerce, 
may  be  surrendered  to  the  treaty power. The purpose  which  the  framers of 

naturalization of foreigners,  and  the like should  be accomplished  only through 
the  establishment of post olfices and  post  roads,  the  coining of money, the 

the action of representatives  elected by the people of the  States,  and  the 
Senators  representing the States, is abandoned  and  the  powers are surrendered 
to the President  and the Senate  in the mnking of treaties with  foreign  countries ; 
in the second  place, after  providing, as was their intention,  for a republican 
form of Government, it must be presumed they deliberately  inserted  Article VI 
to change that form  to the government of an  oligarchy;  and,  thirdly,  that 
after  they  had  determined  in  their wisdom to concede to Congress powers of 
legislation  in  certain  particulars,  and that all else was  to  be  left  with the 

was  best  for  them in their  respective  localities,  they  deliberately  reversed  their 
States or the people, who  were supposed to know better  than  anyone else what 

action  and  inserted this article,  which  might  exclude their representatives  in 
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Congress  from a voice in  any  legislation,  and give to  the  President  and  Senate 
the power to  uproot  and  destroy  what  had  already been  conceded to Congress 
and  the  States. And all  this  results, it is claimed, because the word ” treaty ” 
may  embrace  any  subject  that  pertains  to  the people as citizens of the  State 
or Nation. 

86. St. George Tucker,  Story,  Rnwle, Willoughby, Pomeroy,  and Cooley, and 
every  reputable  writer  upon  the  Constitution  declare  that  the  treaty power can 
do nothing wllitrh tendo  to  destroy  the  Constitution  itself.  Can it be  doubted 
that  the power to  take  away  the  right of Congress to  legislate, or the  right of 
the people of the  States  to  regulate  their  own  local affairs is the power to 
destroy  the  basic  principles of the  Constitution of our country? 

Page 106 : 

in  the  parties  to  the  contract,  but  the  subjects of that  treaty  niay  he  personalty 
97. The power to  contract alld lnalre treaties may be  absolute  and  exclusive 

or propery  rights,  which  under  the  constitution of one of the  contracting  parties, 
may rest as  absolutely  in  the  control of the agency of the government  making 
the  treaty as does  the  right itself to  make  the treaty. On the  other  hand,  the 

other  contracting  party  in some department of the  government  to  which  the 
same  rights of person or of propcrty  may  be lodged by the  constitution of the 

of the  governmen  nor  any  other power can  control, concede, or contract  away 
constitution has confided its  exclusive  control,  and  neither  the  treaty power 

such  rights. 
I n  the  famous  controversy  over  the  enactment of a  law in  the 

State of California  to  place  Japanese  children  in  separate schools 
from  white  children,  Senator,  then  Secretary,  Elihu  Root,  presented 
the views of this  Government  in  an  elaborate  brief,  but  the  con- 
troversy  never  reached  the  courts. I n  the  discussion of that  subject 
in  the work of Limitations on the  Treaty-Mnking  Power, I find as 
follows,  commencing  on  page 381: 

Against  Senator Root’s exclusion of the  States  from  any  consideration, wlleI1 
the  treaty power enters  the  arena and seeks  subjects  for  its  exercise,  we  place 
the long  list of opinions  expressed on this  subject by statesmen,  writers,  and 
judges of the Supreme  Court  which arc collected in  Chapters I and 11, to 

statement : “ But though the pover  is thus  general  and  unrestricted, it is  not 
which  the render is referred. Among these  we  will  cite  again  Judge Story’s 

to  be so construed  as  to  destroy  the  fundamental  laws of the  State. A power 
given by the  Consitution  can  not be construed  to  authorize a clestruction of 
other  powers given in  the  same  instrument. It must be construed,  therefore,  in 
subordination  to i t ;   and  cnn  not  supersede or interfere  with  any  other of its 
fundamental  provisions.  Each is equally  obligatory,  and of paramount  author- 
ity  within its scope;  and no one  embraces a right  to  annihilate  any  other, A 
treaty  to  change  the  organization of the  government, or annihilate its sov- 
ereignty, to overturn its republican  form, or to  deprive it of its  constitutional 
powers, would be  void;  because  it would destroy  what  it  was designed merely 
to fulfil, the  will of the people.” (Story on the  Constitution, 15.08.) 

And also  Judge Cooley’s statement : “ The  Constitution imposes no  restriction 
upon  this  power,  but it is  subject  to  the implied restrictions  that  nothing 
can  be  done  under it which  changes the Constitution of the  country or robs 
R department of the  Government  or  any of the  States of its constitutional 
authority.” (Cooley’s Principles of Constitutional  Imv, p. 117.) 

U. S., 267) : “The  t reaty power, as expressed  in  the Constitution, is in terms 
And also a paragraph  from  Jndge Field’s opinion in Geofroy 2). Riggs (133 

unlimited,  except by those  restraints  which  are  found  in  that  instrument 
against the action of the  Government or of its departments,  and  those  arising 
from the nature of the  Government  itself  and of that of the States. It would 
not  be  contended that it extends so far as to  authorize  what  the  Constitution 
forbids, or a change  in  the  character of the Governnlent or in that of one of the 
States, or a cession of any  portion of the territqry of the latter  without its 
coyent.”  Why  should  Judge  Field  hesitate at a change  in  the  character 

carried on as if the States did  not exist. 
of a State in  the making of treaties if the making of treaties was to be 
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* * * 111 the  first I)lare it is nthnitted by all  that some of these  rights 
were  granted by the States  to the Fetlernl CTovernnlent in  the  Constitution. 

the  Fetlernl  Gorcrnnrent.  But  thnse not granted  remain  with  the  States or 
These  arc no longer sul)Jccat to  State ~ ~ m ~ e r  ; they  have been surrenderetl  to 

thr. people. Where  else could they  abide,  since  they  were  never  granted? 
Ant1 how can  powers  ~icvcr  grxntcd by the  States  be  under  the  control of the 
Fedwal  Government? T’lw nngr:tntetl p o ~ v w ~  of thcl Stntcs  can no more be 
S1lbjec.t to the l k l c w l l  Go\v?rnnit~rit th:ln were the  Statei  oP Rho& Islanrl 
and North (Iarolinn sul),jtlc3t to the Fedc~:ll O o v t ~ r n n ~ e ~ ~ t  for months  after  the 
adoption of the (.hstitution,  hec:\we  they hat1 not consented  to it or ratified 
it ; :Ind there v m  no ])o\ver to compel thdr   wsent .  And so these  ungranted 
~x)wc~rs  mllich belong to the Stxtes are no n ~ o r e  untler  the  control of the 
Fctlrrnl Crowrmmlt t 1 1 ~  tlwg are unt1t.r the control of the Government of 
Great BBritnin. Their serurity  rests,  first, in the  fact  that  they  are  original 
pon’t’rs never snrrt~ntlercvl 1)y the  States, ; m l  this fact is recosnizerl by the 
tenth  amendnwnt. \cllic.l1 rec-itw in wor(1s w 1 l : I t  is  stater1 above :IS to ;11] 
State ponws \vhirh are’ not gr:lntc~l  to  tllr 11’e(ler:t1 (hvernnlent or prohibited 
to  the Rtntes. This arnentlmcnt col~stitntcs no grant of power, but is merely 
the statement of an existing filct  which  vas put  in  Ivriting to :xvoid further 

principles of civil ant1 religious  liberty whitrh the people enjoyed as citizens 
rnislll1derst;llltlill~ : sccY)nd. some of thesc~ reswved rights involve the  essential 

from  them by the I I ~ I V  (:overnn~ent which n’:rs h i n g  forrnetl, many of then1 
in  their  respective  8tntes. :Inti to 1 n : 1 B c  sur(’ tlrxt tlwse should never be taken 

were  incorpratctl in tlw first 10 an~end~rtents, so that tllese 1:ttter have a 
double  security in thnt they are origin:ll 1 ) o i v t w  nevw g ra r~ t~ t l  to  the Fetler:ll 
Government by the Statcxs :111(l arc pl:~cec! i n  the  tunc~~tlmrt~ts  that  they rnny 
be secure :tgair)st loss Ero~t~ tile I+vlrr:11 (:ovemtnent. * *a * To this posi- 
tion  it rimy be ans\verecl that when  tlw  unlitnitetl :mt l  unrestrainetl  grant was 
made  to  the  President : t l ~ d  Scwlte  to Inttke trwties  i t  ctlrrietl  necessnry  impli- 
cation all State pnwers neccss:lIy to lualre such grant complete. If  this is 
trne  the  argument a n d  cntwlusion nlny be st:lted as  follows : 
1. The  grant of the treaty power is nrlrwtrilined and unlimited. 

pleteness  was by implication  carried  in the grant. 
2. The  nature of the gralit requires  that all that is necessary for its com- 

3. Th:lt n:ltion:ll powers ;Issigned to  diflc~eut br:ulches of the  Federal Gov- 
ernment  in  the  Constitution  may  be  needed by the  treaty power. If so, such 
national  powers  were by irnplication.carried  in  the  grant  to  the trea.ty power. 
4. The  reserved  powers of the  States  may  also be needed by the  treaty  power 

looking  to its complete derelopment, If so, all of them needed were by impli- 
cation  carried  in the grant. 

powers and all reserved  State  powers may be needed by the treaty  power  in 
The inevitable conclusion from this argument is that since all the  Federal 

order  to  its  complete tlnd symmetrical developnlent, they  were  necessarily im- 
plied in the  grant of that power, and this being  true,  the  government is 
changed from 21 governnrent  under  the Constitution-in accordance  with its 
distribution of powers-to x gorernnlent  under  the  treaty power. Or, if we 
exclude from consideration  the grant by  imp1ic:xtion to  the  treaty power of all 
national  powers  secured  in  the  Constitution,  and  only  consider  the  grant by 

lows: That the  States  granted  to  the  Federal Governrneut :x power, iu the  treaty 
implication of the  reserred  rights of the  States  to  that power, this result  fol- 

power, which by implicntion  carried  every  reserved  right of the  States. Is 
such a result  consistent  with the conditions upon which  the  Constitution  was 
originally  ratified by the  States? If such argument be rlcceptetl, why did the 
States  exhibit  such  uneasiness at the  time of the ratificution of the Constitu- 
tion :!bout the  atloption of :tn~enrln~ents to secure  these  very  rights,  which,  under 
the  urgument above, are  claimed  to  have been  given away?  Why  did Massn- 

looking to  the  preservation of these  very rights wws to be pr:wticully a condi- 
chusetts  declare that in order to  quiet  the  fears of her people nn amendment 

tion upon which  she  ratified  the  Constitution?  Why  did New Hampshire, 
Rho& Island, New York, Virginin,  and  South  Carolina  demand as :t condition 
of their  ratification  that an amendment  to  secure  these  very  rights  should  be 
adopted a t  once, if they  had by their  ratification  surrendered  them to the  treaty 

only  result, not only in the ciestrnction and annihilation of the  States,  but in 
power, as claimed? It is readily seen that the effect of such  argument could 

mode of construing  statutes (Constitutiorknl Limitations,  7th ed., p. 91), says: 
the  downfall of the  Federal  Government itself. Judge Cooley, in  speaking of the  
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‘‘ The  rule  applicable  here is that effect is   to  be given, if possible, to  the whole 

inftrument  and  to  every section and  clause. If different  portions seem to con- 

of a construction which  will render  every word operrtive  rather  thau  one  which 
flict, the  courts  must  harmonize  them, if practicable,  and  mnst lean in favor 

may  make son18 words  idle  and  nugatory.  This  rule is applicable  with  Special’ 
force to written  conFtitutions * * *. I t  is scarcely  conceivable  that a case 
can arise  where a court  would be justifled  in  declafng any portion of a written 
constitution nnigvtory because of nnihiguity. One p:irt nuly qualify  another RO 
as to restrict  its  operation, or apply  it  otherwise  than  the  natural  construction 
would require if it  stood by itself:  but  one  part is not  to he  allowed to defeat 
another. if by  any  reasonable  construction  the  two can be  made  to  stand  to- 
gether.” 

331. An exam’nntion of the first ten  amendments  to  the  Constitution  will 
add adrlition:tl strength  to  the views r7dv:lnced on this  subject  which  hear UpOD 

of a s  the bill of rights of the  Constitution. They represent  also  the redeemed 
the position tnken by Senntor Root. These  amendments  are commonly spoken 

promises of tbe  mnkers @f the CnnstitntiniI t o  the people of the  country. find 

adopte4 witbout th r  nroniise of P sneedy resr~oi~se to thr rlemnnds of  the people 
it mny he well doubted  whether  the Conut’tution  would ever  hare been finally 

as represented  in  these  nmendments. An examination of them  shows  thnt  they 
represent  the  grent  fundnnlentnl  principles of civil, political,  and  religious 

by  the  Feder-1 Government. nnd the  cnwts helve held from the enrliest  decisions 
liherty  th:,t  the people were unw:lliug should he left  to chtlnge or impairment 

down  that  these  amendments emhodied rights  and  principles  which  pertnin  to 

Ifniit the  powers of the  St-tes i n  reference  thereto. hut were  adopted O R  a re- 
the people of the  Strtes,  and  that  they  were  not  intended  to  circumscribe or 

or rhuse. 
strnining  force upon the  powers of the  Federal  Government a s  to  their  use 

J1’stic.e Hnrlnn,  in  his  dissontinc oninion in  Twining v. New Jersey (211 
U. 8.. 118. 53. ed., 97; 29 S. C., 14). said of these  amendments: 

“The oririnnl  amendments of the  Constitution h n d  their  origin, as all know,. 
in  the helief of many  patriotic  statesmen  in the States  then composing the 
Union. that  untlcr  the  Constitntion, as originally  suhmittrd  to the people for 
nrloption or  rejection,  the  National Clnvernment might  disregard  the  funda- 
mental  principles of Ando-American  liberty  for  the  maintenance of  which our 
fathers took up  nrms  aaninst  the  mother  country.” 

Chief .Tustice Wnite  has well stated  the  principle  in  Spies v. Illinois (123 U. S., 
166 : 31 I,. ed., 80; 8 S. C.. 211, when he said : 

“That   the  first 10 articles of amendment  were  not  intended  to  limit the 
powers of the  States  governments in respect  to  their own people, hut to  operate on 
the  Nntionnl  Government alone, was cle.ridet1 more  than half a century ago, and 
thnt decision has heen steadily  adhered to since.” 

He also qnotes  Ramon v. Baltimore (7  Pet., 247, 8 L .  ed., 672), and a large 
number of other cases. 

Page  387: 

ments  from 2 to 8. inclusive. contain  rights,  which  in  their  nntlire belong to  
333. The  Supreme  Court  hns  universally recognized the  fact   that   the amend- 

the people. under  the  control of the States,  and  that the adoption of these 
amendments was not for the purpose of cnrtnilinrr the power of the  States  in 
their application of the  principles  contained i n  them,  hnt  it  was for the pur- 
pose of rendering  certain  that  in  the  Government, which was then  being con- 
structed,  these  rirhts  should  remain unimpairotl in the States. and free  from  the 
touch of Fetlernl power  in their  ndministrntion. “ T h e  right of the people to 
keep ant1 hear  arms  shall  not  he  infringed ” (amendment 2 )  may be cllangect 
or modified by the  States,  hut  the Ferlernl Government is forhidden  to do 
either. “ N o  soldier  shall, in time of pence. he quartered  in any house  without 
the consent of the  owner,” etc. (amendment 3 ) .  Thc  State  may  quarter sol- 
diers  in  the  time of pence  in the  howes of its  citizens  without  their  consent, 
if  allowed by its own  constitution,  hut  the  Federal  Government  can not. “The 
right of the people to  he  secure  in their persons,  houses, papers,  and  effects 
against  unreasonable  searches rind seizures,  shall  not he violated ” (amendment 
4) .  The  State  may  esercise the right of search,  the  State may invade the 
home, seize  the  papers  and effects of its citizens. if  nllomerl by its own  constitit- 
tion to do so, hut  the  Federal  Government  must not. “No person  shall be held 
to answer for B capital or otherwise  infamous  crime, unless on a presentment or 

I 

1139&-15-18 
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indictment Of a grand  jury” (nmentlment 5).  The State  may  do  this, if agree- 
able  to its own constitution,  but the Fetlrr:ll Governluent can not. (Eilenbecker 
a. Plyn~outh  Connty, 134 U. S., 31; 33 I,. etl., 801 ; 30 S.  C., 424.) And so 
through all the  other nnlcmtlmerlts referrctl to, it is seen that  while  the rights 
secured in them, being rights which  belong to  the  States,  may  be  secured, 
changed,  or  altered as the Statcs ~uag tletcr~uine rmtler their own constitutions, 
they  are  free from the  touch of the li’etleral Governlnent except so far as Stnte 

sure that  the  rights secnretl in the :unentlnlents  \yere not all that  were intentled 
tlction Inn;\. be rcstrainetl by the fc.urtcrntlr  :unc~ntlnlent. Ant1 to ~r~alre it tloublp 

to he secured from  the intorfrrcncc~ of the F(!tlwaI Government,  the  ninth tllllc~ntl- 
merit was atloptetl. “ The  enumeration  in the Constitution of ct‘rtnin rights  shall 

follows  the  tenth  anlentlment. 
not be construetl  to deny o r  tlisparage  others  retained by the people,” nrlcl then 

Now, when Chief Justices nfarshall, Chastt, and Waite dcclnre that  these 
a~nenthuents were intt’ntlcvl only to operate on the XatimI:tl Government, in 
restrnining  it from invatling  these sncrc~l rights ant1 privilexes  therein sccurecl, 
by \\hat process of re:lsouing c:ln it be held that  the  treaty po\ver, oue of the 
branches of the  Fetleral Governmcwt, m:Iy be so used a s  to embrace :rnd inclutle 
in  its  exercise  those  rights ant1 privileges? Is not  the  treaty power,  when es- 
ercisecl, a part of the  Nationnl  Governnient? If the  National  Governnlent is 
denietl the  right, how can the  treaty power,  which is a part of it, claim to  be 
exempt from that prohibition? And how coultl surh n claim consist  with Jlltlge 
Story’s  statenlent  that. “A power  given by the  Constitution  can  not  be con- 
strued  to nuthoyize a clestruction of other  powers given in the  same  instnnnent? ” 
If the  treaty power mny eunbrace the  subject of these anleutlments,  which the 

Government can not  touch,  nay not such rights  and  privileges  secured  to the 
Supreme  Court has held wore the  subjects of State goner, which  the  National 

States be absolutely  destboycl? 
I t  ~vould seem, theretole,  that  the  reservcd  powers of the  States,  having 

never been  given up to  the D’etleral Goverllinent, or 110 more  subject  to that 
Governlrlent than  they are to  the Governnlcnt of Great  Britain.  While such 
of these  rights as are  secured against Ipetlcral interference by the  ainentlments 
a re  doubly secured  from  Federal  coutrol, ant1 these can never be  reached by 
the  treaty power until  it  has been jutliciallg cleterlniuetl that  that power is 
superior  to the Constitution  itself. Our conclusion, therefore, is that the 

with  it apparently a11 freeilom fronl  restraint  in the choice of suhjects for its 
treaty power, which has been granted  to  the  Fetleral  Government,  carrying 

exercise, is linlitetl by clear  implication ant1 a rensonal)le  construction of the 
Constitution, by the  provisions of the above :mentlments ant1 of the  Constitu- 
tion, as well ns by the reserved powers of the States. 

DID THE TREATY-RTAKLN‘C I’OWER OF G R E A T   B R I T A I N  EXTEND TO THE R I G H T  
TO MAKE A TREATY RI.:SPECTIXG moLmtTY RIGHTS n-01 A SUBJECT OF 
INTERNATIONAL CONTROVER*Y O F  I N1)IVIDUAL CITIZICN’FI O F  THE DO- 
W I N I O N  OF CANADA ! 

On  page 107 of the  author  quoted above we find this  language 
used : The sacred  rights of citizenship  secured  to  the  American  citizen 
in our Constitution  can  not be taken  from  him  under a treaty,  nor 
even  by  legislative  action, for  they are secured in  the  Constitution 
itself.  Like  examples could  be deduced from  the  constitutions of 
Great  Britain,  France.  Prussia,  Belgium, etc. The  rights secured to 
the people of America  in  the  fourth,  fifth;  and  sixth  amendments  to 
the  Constitution,  to be secure from  unreasonable  search ; immunity 
from  the  charge of a capital or infamous offense except  by  present- 
ment or indictment of a grand  jury;  the  security of life,  liberty,  or 
property  under  due process of law;  trial by an  impartial  jury;  the 
right of habeas  corpus  can  never  be modified or  taken  from the 
American  citizen  under  the  provlslons of a treaty  with  any  country. 
They  are beyond the reach of Government, because embedded in  the 
Constitution  and  can  only be taken  away  by  amendment  to  the Con- 
stitution.  Most of these rights above  enumerated  are  secured to the 



ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS. 275 

people of Germany,  France, or Japan  under  their constitutions. 
They  boast  their  muniments of  civil  liberty  for  their  citizens  equally 
with  those of the  United  States;  but how different  they  stand from 
each  other, for the  Constitution of each of those  countries  may be 
changed  by  legislative  enactment,  and  these  fundamental  rights m:lg 
be sn ept  out of their  constitutions  by  such  act.  Not SO wlth  these 
rights secured to  the  American  citizen.  Should a legislative act 
attempt  to  annihilate  any one of them, i t  would be declared a t  once 
null  and void,  and  the  cumbrous process of an  amendment  to  the 
Constitution would  successfully  check  any  effort  to  destroy  it. The 
Czar o-f Russia with  his  limitless  power  and  unrestrained  will  might 
destroy  all of the  rights of his  subjects  by  treaty  agreed  to between 
him  and sume other  high  contracting power. It is even  claimed that 
the  King of England  may  esercisc  this  power  without  restriction; 
that  the Emperor of Germany or of Japan  may  do  the same. This 
is not a just conclusion. The power of the  Czar of Russia and  the 
King of England  to  negoti:lk  treaties  is  not  the same. The one 
under  an  absolute  monarchy  and  the  other  under a constitutional 
monarchy  may each  exercise the  right  to  make  treaties  according to 
the  constitution of their own country. 

99. The Parkmcnt Belgo, an English  case decitletl March 15, 1879 (English 
Law  Reports,  Probate Division. Vol. IV, p. 1490). involved the  question of how 
f a r  a treaty between Great  Britain and Belgium, estending  immunities  to 
foreigners which  affected the  privxte  rights of British  citizens, was valid  with- 
out  an  act of 1'arli:lment. The  opinion in the  case w;ls tlelivered by Sir Robert 
Philliiuore, an  eminent  judge, and his  opinion  is  quite  pertiuent  to  this  discus- 
sion. He said  in  part: 

convention between Her Majesty ant1 the  King of the I3elgiums, ratified on the 
" I now approach the consicleration of the second question, viz, whether  the 

24th of RI:lrch, 187'3, cloes, so far  ;IS this  country  is concerned, place  the Pnrle- 
mc?zt IkZge, while  in  British  ports, in the  catepory of a public  ship of war  and 
exempt  her froln the process of an I~GngIish court. 

" I may  observe in passing that the  very  fact  that  this  packet is in terms 
given by the convention the  privileges of a ship of war  in  British  ports and 

tional l a w ,  antl  that n convention was tleemctl necessary  to  confer  them. 
there only tentls  to shov; tlmt slw had nct snch privileges by general interim- 

" It is atlmittetl  that  this convention hns not been confirmerl by any statute, 
but  it  has  hew contentled on the  part of the crown hoth that  it  was competent 
to  Her ItIajesty to malie tllis convention ant1 also to put  its  provisions  into 
operation  withont  the confirlntltion of them by 1'arli;unent. The plaintiffs ad- 
mit  the  former,  but  deny  the  latter of these  propositions. 

" The powc'r of the  Crown  to mnlte trei1tic.s with foreign states is indisputable. 
I'assing b5- other  authorities, I will cite  the  language of Blackstone,  who  was 
not tlisinclined to  maintain  the  preropative of the Crown. He says : 

" ' It is also t.he King's  prerogntive  to make treaties, leagues. and alliances 
with  foreign  states nntl princes,  for  it is by the  lnw of nations  essential  to  the 
goodness of n league that  it  bo mntle by the  sovereign  power; and then  it is 
binding upon the  whole  community ; nntl in  England  the  sovereign  power,  quoad 
hoc. is  vested in the  person of the  King. \Vhntever contracts,  therefore,  he 
engages  in, no other power  in the ltingtlom can legally delay,  resist, or annul. 
And yet,  lest  this  plenitude of authority shonltl he abused  to  the  detriment of 
the public, the Constitution, as was hinted before, hath  here  interposed a check, 
by the  means of Parliamentary  impeachment,  for  the  punishment of such 
ministers as from  criminal  motives  advise or conclude any  treaty  which  shall 
afterwartls be judged  to  derogate  from  the  honor ant1 interest of the nation.' 

sition m m t  receive  some modificntion antl  restraint  besides thnt  which he  has 
"The lenrned  writer, however, was certainly  aware  that this  general propo- 

mentioned. Blackstone  must  have known very well that  there  were a class of 
treaties  the  provisions of which  were  inoperative  without  the  confirmation of 
the legislature,  while  there  were  others which operated  without  such confirma- 
tion. The  strongest  instance oi the  latter,  perhaps,  which could be cited  is  the 
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Declnration of Paris  in 1856, by which  the  Crown  in  the  exercise of its pre- 
rogative  deprived  this  country of belligerent  rights,  which  very high authorities 
in the  state  and  in  the  law had considered  to be of vital  importance  to it. But 
this declaration  did  not  affect  the  private  rights of the  subject;  and the ques- 
tion  before  me is whether  this  treaty  does affect private  rights,  and  therefore r e  
quiretl  the  sanction of the  legislature. . 

p. 166, ecl. 1873.) That  learned  writer  observes: 
“ The  authority of Chancellor  Kent  was  relied on. (Rent‘s  Conm., vol. 1, 

whole  nation. If the  treaty  requires the payment of money to  carry it into 
“ ‘ Treaties of peace when  nlatle by competent power, are  obligatory upon the 

effect, ancl the money can  not be raised but by an  act of the  legislature, the 
treaty is morally  obligatory upon the  legislature  to pass the  law,  aud  to  refuse 
it would be a breach of public  faith.’ 

“And  he  further  observes: 
“ ‘ There cnn he no  tlonbt that  the power compentent  to  bind  the  nation by 

“He then  refers  to the case of the United  States o. The Schooner Peggv 
treaty may  alienate  the  public  domain  and  property by treaty.’ 

(1 Cranch, 103, pp. 149, 150). * * * * * * * 
“ T h e  judgment  in  the  case of The  United  States u. The Schooner Peggy 

does  not  establish the proposition  that  the Crown can  dispose of the rights of 
a subject  withont  the  sanction of Parliament.  The  treaty  may  contain pro- 
visions which are  ultra  vires of the  prerogative,  in  part  valid ant1 operative, 

by reason of the  infraction of some of its  conditions  though it may be  voitlable; 
antl  in  part invalid  and  inoperative. A treaty is,  indeed, not  necessarily void 

and  the  validity of it  can  not he challenged, spea1;ing generally, by any  private 
person;  but a court of justice  when  called upon to  execute  the  provisions of n 
treaty  may, at the  instance of the  subject,  who is afTectetl by them,  esamine 
whether  those  provisions are such as to  be  capable of legal enforcement,  just 
as it  may  inquire  into  the  validity of letters  patent  granted hy the  Crown 

of an  order  in council duly passed antl  gazetted (Attorney  General v. Bishop 
(Long v. Bishop of Capetown 1 Moo. P. C. n. 8. 411 ) ; and  also  the validity 
of Manchester  Law Rep. 3 Eq. 463). There  have been, not to go farther bnck, 
during  the reign of her  present  Majesty,  various  treaties confirmed by parlia- 
ment ; and by statute power has been given to  the  Crown by order  in council 
to  do  certain  things  which  it  must be presumed  without  such  power i t  coultl 
not  have (lone, for  instnnce,  the  merchant  shipping  act, 1862 (25 ant1 26 Vict. 
c. 63). empowers  the  Crown hy order  in council to  make  rules  and  regulntions 
respecting collisions antl salvage  services to be binding on the ships of foreign 

vention between Prance and Rngland as to sea fisheries and reciting ( in  s. 66) 
States; the sea fisheries act, 1868 (31 ancl 32 Vict., c. 45), relating to n con- 

that  doubts  had  arisen  whether  part of the convention between the United 
Kingdom  and  France of Janu:lrX, 1826, relating  to  exemption  from  dues  had 
been  confirmed by Parli:ment, proceeded to give such  confirmation;  and  to 
provide that where  similar convention should  thereafter bo concludetl with 

confer  exemption  from  dues on spa fishing  vessels  belonging to  such  foreign 
any  foreign  country  Her  Majesty  should  have power by order  in council to  

country;  the 35 antl 36 Vict. c. 45, A. D. 1872, confirms the  treaty of Wash- 
ington between the  United  Stntes  antl  England,  and as will presently be seen 
the very  treaty of which this  Belgian  treaty is a sequel  was confirmed by 
statute. Some of the  treaties confirmed relate  to the payment of antl exemp- 

be  added. I mention  thcm merely as illustrative of the  position  that  certain 
tion  from  dues  in  harbors ; one more, and  not  an  insignificant one, will  presently 

treaties  do  require  Parliaiuentnr~  confirmation  (pp. 152, 153). * * * * * * 1 

“ If the  Crown  had  power  without  the  nuthority of Pnrlisn~ent by this  tregty 
to order that  the Parliament Ilelge should  be  entitled to n l l  the pyivileges of 3 

on  tlcconnt of the collision can  not issue, and  the  right of the  subject,  hut  for 
ship of war,  then  the w:lrr:;nt  which is pr:lyed for  against  her a s  a wrongdoer 

her is extinguished. 
this order  unquestionable,  to recover damages  for  the  injuries  done  to  him’by 

“This  is a use of the  treaty-rnnlring  prerogntive of the Crown which I believe 
to he without  precedent, Rnd in  principle  contrary to the  laws of the  constitu- 

authority of Pnrlinment,  may by process of diplolnwy  shelter n foreigner  from 
tion. Let me  consider  to  what consequence it leads. If the Crown, withont  the 

the action of one of Her Majesty’s  subjects  who has suffered  injury a t  his hands, 
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I do  not see why i t  might  not  also give n like  privilege of immunity to a number 
of foreign  merchant vessels or to n number of foreign  individunls.  The law of 
this country  ha8 indeed incomorntd  those  portions of international  law  which 
give in~munity and privileges  to  foreign  ships of wnr nnd foreign nmbnssadors: 
but I do not think  th;lt i t  hns  therefore given the Crown authority  to  clothe 
with this  inmnnity  foreign vessels which are  really not vessels of war or foreign 
persons who are  not  really nmbnssndors. 

“ Let  me say one  more  word  in conclusion. Mr. Rowen,  in his  very  able 
speech, dwelt  forcible upon the  wrong  which nwuld he done  to this p~cl ie t  if, 
being invited  to  enter  the  ports of this  country  with  the p”ivi1eges of a ship of 
wnr. she  should tind them  denied  to  her. I acknowledge  the  hnrdship.  hut the 
remedy,  in nly opinion. is not to be found  in  rlepriring the  Rritish  subject  with- 
out his consent,  direct  or implied. of his ripht of action  8g;linst a wrongdoe:. but 
by the  agency of diplomncy  nnd proper mensnTes of compenwtion  and :rrrnnge- 
ment  hetwcen the Governments of Grwt  Rritain and Belgium. I must  allow 
the  wnrrnnt of arrest  to issue” (pp. 154. 15.5). 

partnlent of the  Government the suhjwts  which  are proposed in  the  trenty nre 
The constitntim of egch country  must  be  exnmined to nscertnin in whnt de- 

lodged. If they ?re rontrolled by another  hranch of t h e  Government  thnn that 
t o  which  the powe:‘ to  mnke  trentien is riven.  then n trenty  that  seeks  to incor- 

depprtnlent is given to  it. This princinlo  applies  to all Governments  and is rec- 
porate  such  subjects i n  its  provisions w i l l  not he  vnlid until the ,-went of thtt 

ognized by all  European  powers  (p. 113). 

I have  not  other  authorities  at  hand sufficient to  varrant  the asser- 
tion  that  the  construction of the  treatv which  included  waters  not 
international  in  character on the  Canadian  side  was  not  within  the 
treaty-making  power  that  executed  the  treatv  in  behalf of Great 
Britain,  but  it  is  safe  to  say  that,  the  subject  being so uncertain, it 
is onlv  fair  to use that  construction of the  treaty which  would  elimi- 
nate  those  uncertainties. ‘In other  words,  when  two  constructions 
are possible, and one of these  constrnctions m g h t  make  the  treaty . 
unconstitutional  in  part  only,  that  const.ruction  ought  to be adopted 
which  would eliminate  the  uncertainties  unless it clearly  appeared 
that  the  other  construction  was  adopted  after  due  deliberation  and 
consideration.  Testimonv  here does not show that  the question of 
the inclusion of maters  whollv  within  the  Canadian  boundary  was a 
matter of specific consideration  by  the  emissaries of the  British 
Government. 

I n  conclusion I respectfully  urge  upon  this commission that  this 
treaty was entered into  in  utmost  good  faith  bv  the  United  States, 
and,  as I believe, by  the  parties  in  interest  on  the  other  side of the 
line. The conduct of all  parties  would  indicate  that  thev  construed 
the  treaty  to  include  only  the  waters  that flow across the  interna- 
tional  boundarv. The  after conduct of the people of the  United 
States  in  spending $3.000.000 t o  bring  the  waters of the St,. Mary 
River  into  the  basin of thc  Milk  River is the  very  strongest  proof 
of their  construction of the  language of the  treaty.  We  have  already 
spent $5,000,000 in  preparing to  use the  waters of the St. Mary  River. 
If the  construction  maintained  by  the  Canadians is accepted by  this 
commission, that  expenditure would  be  almost  a total loss, as is shown 
by  the records,  and  by the proposed  method of division of the Ca- 
nadians we could  expect  very little  mater  from St. Mary  River, cer- 
tainly  not  enough  to  justrfy  the  expenditure of any  considerable 
sum of money. That  provisinn of the  treaty  which  provides  for  the 
use of the  channel of t,he  Milk  River  for  the convevance of waters 
from  the St. Mary  River  to  the  irrigable  lands  in  the Milk River Val- 
ley in  the United  States  might well be eliminated  from the treaty. 
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By  the  testimony  submitted  it is shown that  the  measurements of 
these  two  streams,  the St. Mary  and  Milk  Rivers,  are of almost 
equal flow, but  the  testimony  further  shows  that  they  do  not  include 
n very  large flow of water  diverted  from  the  tributary  streams on 
the  American  side  before  they  reach  the  main  stream, or other 

aces  where  measurements  were  made,  and  therefore that  the Milk 
irer is n much larger  stream  than  the St. Mary.  Such  being  the 

case, an  equal  division of the  mater mould not  authorize  the  diversion 
of  any  water  from  the St. Mary  Iiirer  on  the  American side. The 
construction of the  treaty as contended bg the  Canadians  must  do 
violence to  the  preamhle to Article I of the  treaty,  to  the  negotia- 
tions  which  preceded  the mak’ng of the  treaty,  to  the  Constitution of 
the  United  States  and pcrhaps that of Great  Britain, besides requir- 
ing a practical  impossibility  in  providing for an  equal  division of the 
waters,  since i t  would require  all  the  waters of the St. Mary  and  all 
the  waters of the  Milk  River,  international  in  their  character,  to  make 
up the one-half  provided for by the  treaty to be given to  Canada. 
I n  other  words,  the  treaty would mean in effect that a11 the  waters 
of the St. Mary,  and all  those of the  Milk  River  which  could  possibly 
be diverted  into  Canada,  should  belong  to  Canada,  and  there  would 
be  no need for a treaty or a commission to  divide  the  waters.  The 
treaty  might  as well have  read that  the  Canadians were entitled to  all 
of the St. Mary  waters  and  all of the  Milk  Hiver  waters  that  could 

” be diverted,  which  leads  to  an  absurdity,  and we therefore  again  insist 
that  the  only  proper  construction of the  treaty  is  to  limit  the  trihu- 
tary waters  to  include  only  those  that flow across the  international 
boundary. 

c 

AFTER RECESS. 

The commission  reconvened a t  the  expiration of the recess, 2 o’clock 

Mr. TAWNEY. Gentlemen, we will  proceed  now, 

ARGUMENT BY C. S. MACINNES, K. C., ON BEHALF OF THE 
DOMINION OF CANADA. 

p. m., all  the members  being  present. 

Mr. MACTNNES. May it please the commission, I am called  upon 
in behalf of the  Government of the Dominion of Canada to  deal 
with  certain  contentions which  have been raised  before you here  with 
reference  to  this  matter by my learned  friend,  Mr.  Wyvell,  during 
the cource of the proceedings  when  he has  laid  before you in  writ- 
ing certnin  contentions to the effect that  the  waters  to be dealt  with 
by you  under  Article VI were to be cut  short  at  the  boundary  line; 
also that  any  tributary  streams wholly  within  either  conntry  were 
not  to be considered  by you. A further  point was raised that  in con- 
nection  with  the  measurement  and  apportionment  by you you  were 
t o  consider  only  waters  that  are  being used from  time  to  time  and 
you  were not  to  regard or to consider, or to give  direction  now  with 
regnrd  to  waters  which  may be  used by either  country  and  which 
can be  used and  which  to.  my  mind  within  the  clear  language of 
the  article  are  to be  used by them  in accordance  with  the  rights  given 
to them by the article. 

I have  also to deal  with a very  lucid  presentation, if I may be 
allowed to say so, by  Mr.  Bien  to-day  along  the  same  lines,  placing 
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before you his view, or his official view  while  appearing  before you 
as counsel for  the  Reclamation  Service of the  United  States  Gov- . 
ernment. Mr. nien’s  contentions, as I understood  them,  were  very 
much  to  the  same  effect  as  those  stated  in  a  memorandnm  placed 
before yon by Mr.  Wyrell.  The  arguments  in  support of them  with 
which I shall  deal were, I may  state now, all  contained  in  material 
extraneous  to  the  langnage of the  article  itself,  with  the  single  ex- 
ception of the suggestion that  the words inclosed within  brackets 
had  the  effect of limitipg  the  Imguage  to  waters of streams  in  Mon- 
tana,  Albert,  and Saskatchewan. Therefore,  the  only  argument on 
the 1angu:Ige itself to he met there. .would be on that  point.  That, 
with  all  respect  to  my  learned  friend,  Mr.  Bien, is, I think,  self- 
answered  because  there are  and  can be, for geographical  reasons,  no 
waters  which flow through  Montana  and  Alberta  and  Saskatchewan. 

The contenticns,  therefore,  raised  both  by  Mr.  Wyvell  in that  
memorandmn  and  by  Mr. Newell are contended for by  material 
outside of the  language of the  treaty itself. 

I have also to deal  with  certain Observations presented  to you by 
Mr. Sands,  who  appears, I understand, for certain  water  wers of 
the lower Milk  River  Valley,  in  Montana. Mr. Sands  naturally 
covered the same  points,  to  a  certain  extent,  and he  also  raised a con- 
stitntinnnl  point  with  which  he  dealt  briefly  yesterday  and  in  full 
this  morning.  If  that were the whole  situation, Mr. Chairman, I 
would be able to deal  with  it  without  great difficulty, I think, or 
without  embarrassment. I have,  however. to deal  also  with  certain 
verbal  observations  which  fell  from  the  lips of my  learned  friend, 
Mr. Wyvell,  yesterday  afternoon,  and I am  bouna to state  to  the 
commission that some of those  statements  have caused me a great 
deal of embarrassment. I am,  however,  hopeful that  by reason of 

* the whollv  different  atmosphere  which  was  created  by  the  language 
of Mr. Bien,  who  appeared  for  the  Reclamation  Service of the 
United  States  Government  this  morning,  those difficulties may be 
and can be removed and  this  embarrassment  disappear. 

I would  like  to  make  a  general  statement  with  which I am  sure  my 
learned  friends  and  the officials and officers on  both  sides  will agree. 
We are  appearing  here  before you, sirs, as an  International  Joint 
Commission,  .as was pointed  out  by  the  chairman  in  his  onening 
remarks, ,a commission appointed  under  a  treaty between the  United 
States  and  Great  Britain,  acting  on behalf of the Dominion of Can- 
ada. The subject  .matter  with  which we have been dealing  has  been , 

one in  controversy or under discussion  between  those countries  and 
between the  United  States  and  Great  Britain  on behalf of Canada, 
and a t  times  Canada  itself,  from 1896 until  this  treaty  was  made, 
signed  in  Jannary, 1909, and ratified in  May, 1910. That  treaty, 
which  dealt  with  the  subject  matter,  was, of course, the  same  treaty 
under  which  this commission was  constituted.  During  the  course of 
those  discussions the  matter came under  the  hands of some of the 
most  distinguished  men in  all  three countries. Under  these  circum- 
stances I feel a very  grave  responsibility  in  dealing  with  this  matter, 
because I feel-and, as I say, I do  not  think  that I am  monopolizing 
the views of one  side, but  that  they  will be concurred  in  by  both 
sides-that this  matter  should  be  presented  before  this commission 
on a plane  worthy of the  dignity  and  importance of the commission 
and of the  matters  with  which  we  are  dealing. I therefore am 



280 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS, 

anxious,  and I think  my  learned  friends  will  be  anxious,  that  the 
matter  should  be  dealt  with  without  any  undue  partisan  spirit  and in 
a spirit of conciliation  rather  than  aggression,  and if  by any  chance 
I or any of us should  not be able  to  measure up to  this  grave responsi- 
bility,  that  it will not be R matter  for  return  in  kind  but  an  endeavor 
to  create  an  atmosphere  which will  enable  this  matter  to be dealt with. 

Now, as  to  the  sitmtion of Canada  in  this  matter.  We  are  here 
before you, and we are  content  to receive your  directions. I n  fact, we 
desire  those  directions,  and  desire  that it should  be  made  clear  that 
there  should  be  no  uncertainty  on  this subject. No westion of juris- 
diction is raised  in  any  way,  shape, or form  on  behalf of Canada. 

The  embarrassment  to  which I referred  is  this: My learned  friend 
during  the course of the  proceedings of the second day  raised  certain 
contentions  before  you. As I stated  before, those are  contentlons 
which,  while I do  not  agree  with  them  and  which I hope I can  answer 
to  your  satisfaction, I can  not  understand. I n  his  remarks  last  night 
he made-and this is where I sincerely hope  that  the  matter  can  he 
cleared  up-certain  statements  which  may  have been personal,  and 
which I feel that I am  bound  to  assume  were  personal,  not  to  myself, 
but  personal  to  himself  and  personal as contradistinguished  in  any 
way from official. That  is  to  say, I understood  my  learned  friend  to 
state  to  the commission that if the  contentions  put  forward by him 
were  not  acceded  to  by  this  commission  that  this  would  not  be  the  end 
of this  matter,  but it would  be the  beginning of a new controversy 
which  would be started  between  the  two  countries  and  which  would 
eventually  end  at  The  Hague  or  before some other  tribunal  and  create 
a condition of uncertainty  and of dispute  between  the  two countries. 

. Now, gentlemen of the  commission, I venture  to  say  that I am cor- 
rect  in  feeling  that  that  can  not be the official position of the  United 
States  Government, because if i t  were thought  that  there  were  any 
question of jurisdiction  involved in this  matter,  that  this  is  a  matter 
with  which  the  commission  should  not  deal,  that  would  have been 
presented  to you and  wculd  have been so stated  that-I  use  the Ian- 
p a g e  in  no offensive term-as a  threat,  but in a dignified manner, 
supported  by  grave  arguments,  to  show  that  while  this  cemmission 
has  certainly  on  the  appearance of it  and,  to  your  understanding,  the 
jurisdiction to  deal  with  this  matter,  that  there  is some  question be- 
tween  the  two  countries  which is not  and  will  not be allowed by the 
United  States  Government  to be solved  b~7  this  commission. I there- 
fore,  in  dealing  with these arguments,  felt  bound  to  assume  that  the 
United  States  Government  is  in  fact  and officially in  the position as 
indicated  by  the  written  memorandum of my  learned  friend Mr. 
Wyvell,  and  as  also  presented  to you by Mr. Bien. That is to  say 
that  the  matter is left  with  this commission and  that  the decision oh 
this commission  will be as binding  upon  one  country as  upon  the 
ether. I shall  therefore now take  up these different  contentions  and 
deal  with  them  as  briefly  as I can. 

First of all,  with  regard  to  the  contention  that  the  waters  dealt 
with by Article VI are  cut  short  at,  the  boundary, so that  the  portions 
below the  boundary  are  excluded ; and, secondly, that  the  tributaries 
arising  within  either  country  are  wholly  excluded. I repeat  here 
what I said before, that it must  be  common  ground  that  there is 
pothing  in  the  article itself to  justify  any  such  contention. You have, 
therefore,  with  you a situation  where you have  language  to  deal  with 
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which is perfectly  clear  in  itself,  and  which is contended  on  behalf 
of my  learned  friends  must be varied  on  account of extraneous  rea- 
sons. I think it will  shorten  the  argument i f  I explain-dthough I 
do  not  think  it  needs  argument-that  in  addition  to  the  language of 
the  article  as  to  the  waters  the  other  provisions of the  article  make it 
more  abundantly  clear,  if  that be necessary, that  the  explicit  language 
of the  article  as  to  the  waters  themselves is the  meaning  and  the  only 
meaning of that article. 

The  situation is this,  and I will paraphrase, because it is not neces- 
sary  to quote the  language of the  article:  These  two  rivers  and  their 
tributaries  were  to be dealt  with ,as one  river.  Each  country  was to  
have  a  share  not  in one or the  other,  except as to  the prior appro- 
priations,  but  there  was  to be a common  watershed  as  to  which  there 
was to be a joint  arrangement,  and  certain  prior  appropriations  were 
to be allowed  on that  watershed  treated  as one, some of those prior 
cppropriations  being  in  Canada,  north of the  boundary,  and  the 
others on the  United  States  side  in  Montana,  after  the  river  had 
crossed the  boundary.  Furthermore,  there  was  to  be  allowed  by 
Canada  to  the TJnited States  the use, subject to  the  provisions of 
Article I1 only, of the  channel of the  Milk  River  for 215 miles  in 
length  in  Canada  and  in  wholly  Canadian  territory, a use which 
under  any  interpretation  or  under  anv  international  law  applicable 
to  such  waters  could  not be claimed  either  cn  the  ground of inteyna- 
tional  law or comity,  except possibly extending  comity  to  grounds of 
agreement  as  may be the case, perhaps,  with  regard  to  waters  which 
flow from one  country  to  the  other. 

Let me repeat  that  apain, because it  has  not been referred  to  by 
my  learned  friend,  and it seems to me to be one of the  most  vital 
and  obvicus  points  if  additional  support  is necessary. You have 
here  the use granted  by  one  country  to  the  other of a canal  purely 
within  its own territory.  The  situation,  therefore,  in a word, is this: 
The express  international  waters  have been used. I do not  quite 
know what  my  learned  friend  means  by  this. I pather  that  he 
means  waters  which flow from one country  to  the  other.  bnt  as  to 
that I do  not  think  there  is  any  such  technical phrase. The  situa- 
tion  here  is  that  there  was  an  international  difficulty  with  reoard 
to  the  two  countries  and  with  regard  to  the use of the  waters  in 
both of those countries,  including some of the  tributaries  in  thcse 
countries,  and  that  that  was  dealt  with  as  the  solution of the  mqtter, 
not  on  an  international basis or with  the  application of international 
law,  but on a  national basis. In   c ther  words. that  a  national soh -  
tion  was  found,  not  with respect to  international  waters  but  with 
respect to  national difficulty. Prior aDpropriations  dealt  with it 
as  if it were  all on one  wutershed. so that one  country lcses to  the 
other  something  with  which  international  law  has  no concern. 

The  other  meaning of this  article as covering  all  the  water is this; 
that  the  tributaries of the Milk River  are  included  and  expressly 
included  in  Alberta  and  in  Saskatchewan.  My  learned  friend, Mr. 
Bien,  said  that  the  result of the inclusion of the  words " and  Saskat- 
chewan " is  that  it  includes  the  tributaries  flowing  frcm  Canada into 
the Milk River  and  those  are  spoken of as  tributaries of the Milk 
River. Now, mv learned  friends  at  the  same  time  contend  that  these 
rivers  are  cut  short for mrposes of this  article  at  the  boundary. 
But  if  the commission  will  only  look at  the  map  they  will see a t  a 
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glance  that  those  tributaries  in  Saskatchewan are only  tributaries 
of the  Milk  River, if the  Milk  River  is  considered as extending be- 
yond  the  boundary. All of these  tributaries  join  the  Milk  River  long 
after it has passed the  boundary line. So  that  to  give  effect  in  any 
way  to  the  language of the  contention of my  learned  friends  would 
be to  act  not  only  contrary  to  the  language  cf  the  treaty  with  regard 
to the inclusion of all  the  tributaries  and  all  the  rivers  and  not 
some of the  tributaries  and  a  part of the  rivers,  but it would also do 
violence to  the subsequent  language of the  treaty. 

Now, then,  let us see what  are  the  arguments  which  have been 
raised  to  the  contrary.  The  main  arguments  put  before  you  were 
based upon  not  the  historical  documents  which  were  put  in  in con- 
nection  with  the  history of this  matter,  but  with  regard  to  the nego- 
tiations  which passed  between the  two  countries  after  two officers of 
the  two  countries  had been appointed  to  deal  with  this  matter  and 
reach a conclusion with  the  assistance of the  diplomatic or State 
officers  of bcth  countries.  The commission  will  remember that my 
learned  friend  insisted  on  the  introduction of that  material  and 
that I objected  to  it. I might  say  perfectly  candidly  that I felt  in 
dnty  bound  to  object to that, because this is not  the only  matter  that 
will  came up before this commission, and  it seemed to me, from  what 
I know,  which I grant you may be  very  little, of dealing  with  such 
matters between two  countries,  that  there  ought  not  to  hare been 
imported  into  the  consideraticn of this  matter  what  passed between 
the  diplomats. Howe.i:er, my  learned  friend  put  it  in  after I warned 
him  that  he  put  it  in  at his peril. H e  is basing  his  argument  upon it. 
I am  prepared  to meet it, and I think  that, so far  as aiding  his con- 
tention is concerned, the  result is absolutely to  the  contrary. I do 
nct  intend  to  take  the commission through  all of the  diplomatic 
documents,  but  shall  deal  only  with  the  points  which  have been 
raked by  my  learned  friend. 

It was stated  that  what  was  called  the  Root  proposals of June, 
1907, supported  the  contention  that  this  Article VI was  limited. I 
think, however, that if  those  proposals are  read,  the  contrary conclu- 
sion is to be  reached,  because it will  be  found  that  while reference, 
it is true, is made to  the measurement of some of the  waters  at  the 
boundary,  the  provisions  with  respect  to those waters  are  not for the 
purpose of arriving  at a divisicn of the  total  waters between the  two 
countries,  but  with  reference  to  the  delivery of certain  parte of the 
share of the  two  countries,  which  is a wholly  different  matter, be- 
cause, so far  as delivery is concerned, it would  obviously  take  place 
at  the  boundary or within  the  territory of either  country. But where 
it is a measurement of the  total  waters  to be divided,  that is a dif- 
ferent  matter.  Under  the  Root  proposals  the  amount  which was to  
be taken  into  consideration for the  purposes of delivery  was  limited 
t o  the flow in each case, and  not  in excess of 2,000 cubic  feet  per 
second. The balance of the excess waters was to be divided  equally 
between the  two  countries,  but i t  was  decided that  no  more  should 
be  taken  into  account,  possibly  owing  to  the  situation at  the time, or 
possibly it was  considered that it was  unnecessary to do so. Further 
than  that,  the  Root proposals,  when  dealing  with  the  prior  appro- 
priatians,  dealt  explicitly  with  the  entire  Milk  River system and  the 
entire St. Mary  River  system.  That is the  language  which  was used. 
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The  next  paper  referred  to  was a memorandum  which, it was  said, 
was exchanged by.Mr. Campbell,  who  was an official of the  Depart- 
ment of the  Interior,  on  the  30th of December, 1908. I f   that  memo- 
randum is looked at, it will  be  found  that  the  proposal also SUP 
gested  is  one  entirely  different  from  Article VI. The suggestion 
there  was Chat the  two  rivers  should  not be dealt  with  jointly, but 
should be dealt  with  separately,  and  that  instead of having  any  prior 
appropriations  the  prior  appropriations  should be wiped  out  alto- 
gether,  and  that you  mould be simply  dealing  with  cert.ain  rivers 
and  would  divide  them at  the  boundary  line  and  divide  them  sepa- 
rately.  That,  however, mas not  accepted  by  the TJnited States, pos- 
sibly on  account of the  interests  in  Montana  that it was  desired to 
protect  more  clearly  and  absolutely  by a provision  as to prior  appro- 
priation.  Anyhow,  that  proposal is a  totally  distinct  suggestion to  
anything  that we find in  Article  VI. 

Then  my  learned  friend  put  in  “Exhibit B,” which is stated  by 
my  learned  friend  to be an original draft  by Mr. Chandler P. Ander- 
son, of the  State  Department.  My  learned  friend  has also stated 
here-I submit,  with  all  respect, that  it was  not  usual, to put it 
mildly,  to  do so-that Mr. Anderson’s view was that he had  in  mind 
measurement at  the  boundary.  If  my  learned  friend  had  not  said 
that, I should  not  have  said  anything. I suppose,  however, that I 
am  bound  to  state  that  the view held  by the  negotiator  on  the  other 
side, Mr. George  Gibbons,  as it then  was,  and Sir George  Gibbons 
now,  was  entirely  different,  and  that  the  other  negotiator, Dr. Icing, 
put himself  on  record in  an official publication  in  the  Dominion of 
Cannda,  after  the  treaty  was  signed,  it is true,  but  before it was rati- 
fied in  November, 1909, absolutely to  the  contrary  and  to  the  effect 
that  all  the  waters  had  to be included  and  measured for the purpose 
of the  treaty. 

Now,  nobody  will doubt-I certainly  have  no doubt-that anything 
that Mr. Chandler P. Anderson  may  say is true,  but I think  that 
my learned  friend  himself has supplied the solution. He h n s  put 
in  here  before you this  draft,  Exhlblt 16B, which  was  submit,ted by 
Mr. Anderson  and  which  contains  this  language: 

It is agreed that each  country shnll have the esclusive right to one-half 
of the  natural flow of the  St. Mary and Millr Rivers  and their tributaries,  the 
amount  thereof  to  be  determined at the points of storage and diversion and at 
the boundary by measurement,  etc. 

So it is clear that  measurement at  the  boundary  was  in Mr. Ander- 
son’s mind a t  one  time, at  the  end of 1908 or at  the  beginnig of 1909, 
and it is,also  shown  that when he  had  that idea in  his  mind  he  was 

+ able to express it in  very  clear  and  lucid  English,  and  that subse- 
quently,  when  the  article is prepared  and  agreed to-why the  change 
was made  we  do  not  know,  but it certainly  was made-those words 
are  left  out. So that  on  my  learned  friend’s  own  material i t  seems 
perfectly  clear  that it is not  open  to  him  to  found  any  argument on 
these  documents;  but,  quite to  the  contrary,  that  he is, so to  speak, 
hoisted  with  his  own  petard. 

Then it is  said-frankly I am  unable to follow it, and  do  not wish 
to labor the point-that there is something  in  Article I1 which is such 
as to  overrule  ArticIe VI. I presume,  to  put it at  the highest, the 
idea is this,  that  there is n statement  in  Article I1 as to  the views of 
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the  two  countries  as  to  rivers  which flow across the  boundnrv  and 
are  not  boundary  waters. But that  surely does  not  disturb  Article VI, 
which  specifically  deals  with a certain  subject  matter,  and  which 
deals  not  only  with  waters  flowing  across  the  boundary  but  with  all 
the  tributaries  and  with a canal  entirely  in  one  country. 

Then Mr. Bien  dealt  with  the  fact  that  there  was  no  provision 
as  to official sanction  with  regard  to  measurements  to be taken in 
either  country  and  that  that  ought  to  have  'been necessary: It is 
not necessary for me to labor that  point  before  the commisslon, be- 
cause it  is  known  that we have  had  this question of International 
boards  up  before  the commission  more than once. There  were  the 
So0 question  and  others. It was  intended  that  the commission should 
deal  with  these  things  by  joint  boards  wherever  may be necessary. al- 
though I do  not  think it is eqtablished in any  way  here that  joint 
boards  wil Ibe a necessity in  either  country. It is very possible that 
the two countries  will  accept  the  measurements  made  by  either com- 
try  nnder  their  Government officers, subject  to  inspection  and  veri- 
fication  whenever it is necessary,  but  the absence of any  provision of 
that  kind  surely is not one  which  has  any  bearing on the  subject or 
which  carries  the  matter any further. 

It is not  necessary, I think,  that I need deal at  any  length  with the 
contention  that  the commission is to  deal  only  with  waters  which :1r0 
being used as  distinguished  from  waters  which  may be used. It 
seems to me too  clear  for  argument.  The  very  purpose of this com- 
mission  was to  prevent  the  possibility of any  disputes  in  the  future, 
disputes  which  would be brought  up  more  than  in  any  other  way 
by  allowing  the  two  countries  to go ahead  with  uncertainty  as to 
their  rights  and  to develop  works for  taking  this  water,  and  that the 
commission  would not  deal  and  would  refuse to deal  with  the  situa- 
tion  until  the  water  was  being actual!y used. The  language of the 
treaty is certainly to  the contrary.  They  are  to  deal  with  the  water 
which is to be  used, and I think I may leave the  matter  there  with- 
out elaboration. 

That being  the  situation, I would find it  dificult  to  understand  how 
my  learned  friend could raise  any  question of jurisdiction,  although 
I do not  understand  that  he  has officially done so. So f a r  as  an 
interpretation of treaties is concerned, it  may be true  that  in certTin 
cases the  situation  will be such  that  the  two  Governments  will  refuse 
to be bound  by a treaty  until  it  has been interpreted  in some other 
manner;  but  any  such case  would be one  wholly  different to  any- 
thing  which  has been put  forward  by  my  learned  friend  here  or 
which  anpears  in  any  shape,  manner. or form  in  the  material. I do 
not  think  it is necessary to  cite  authorities. I n  a decision of the 
Supreme  Court of the  United  States  in  the case of the  Societv for 
the  Propagstion of the  Gospel  against  the  town of New Haven 
(8 Wheat., 464) the  court  said : 

we are  aware of no rule of interpretation applicable to treaties or to private 
The  terms in which this  article is expressed  are general and unqualified, and 

contract, which would authorize  the court to make exception by construction, 

Where the  language of the  parties is clear of ambiguity,  there is no  room for 
where the parties to the  contract  have not thought proper to make them. 

construction. 
That  is no new  statement of the law. We can find it as   far  back 

as  that of a recognized  writer of international  law  with  whom Mr. 
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Bdignault is doubtless f a r  more  familiar  than I am ; I refer to De 
Vattel’s  Law of Nations. I wish to quote an  extract  from  De  Vat- 
tel’s Law of Nations,  edition of Joseph  Chitty, 1834, chapter 17, on 
the  interpretaticn of treaties,  page 246: 

terpret  what  has no  need of interpretation.  When a deed is worded  in  clear 
The Arst general  maxim of interpretation is, that it is not  allowable to  in- 

antl  precise terms-when its meaning is evident  and  leads  to no absurd con- 

deed  naturally  presents. To go elsewhere  in  search of Conjecture, in  order  to 
elusion-there can be no reason  for  refusing to admit the meaning  which  such 

be once atllnittetl  there will he no dcetl which it  will not rencler useless.  How- 
restrict  or  extend  it, is but an  attempt to elude it. If this  dangerous  method 

which  the deed is couched, all this wi l l  be of no avail, if I t  be allowed to go in 
ever  luminous  each  clause  may be, however clear and  precise  the term:. in 

quest of extraneous  arguments,  to  prove  that  it is not  to  be  understood  in  the 
sense  which  it  naturally  presents. 

Now it seems to me that  that  characterizes  the  contention of my 
learned  friend  in  the  nature of extraneous  argument. I wish  also 
to quote  from  section 268 of the  same  edition: 

As these  rules a r e  founded on right  reason, ant1 are consequently  &pproved 
antl prescribed by the  law of nature, every man,  every sovereign, is obliged 
to  admit  and to follow  them. Unless  certain  rules  be  admitted  determining the 
sense  in  which  the  expressions  are to be taken,  treaties  will  only  be  made  words; 
nothing  can be agreed upon with  security,  and I t  will  be  almost  ridiculous  to 
place  any  dependence  on  the effect of conventions. 

Now, that  being  the  situaticn. an.d the  situation  beine well known, 
of course, to both  Governments, it is obvious that if it was  intended 
to seriously  present  any  question of interpretaticn of a treaty,  claim- 
ing  that  there was  ground  for  an  actual  interpretation  which  would 
dissolve the  jurisdiction of this commission regardless of the  terms 
of the  treaty,  that would not  have been and could not  have been pre- 
sented  before  the  court  except in a certain  manner,  that is by a 
statement  to  the commission that  they  had  no  jurisdiction,  and  that 
the  United  States  Government  would  refuse to be bound  by  any- 
thing that  they  did. I have  proceeded  on that assumption. I am 
proceeding on the  assumption  that  this commission  will  decide this 
matter  and  that  both  countries  will  act  upon such  decision. 

Now there  are  minor  questions  to be taken  up,  although  they  were 
not  dealt  with a t  any  length  by  my  learned  friends, Mr. Wyvell  and 
Mr. Bien,  and thoce are questions of measurement  and  apportion- 
ment  in  relation  to  the  prior  appropriation clause. My learned 
friend, Mr. Wyvell,  said  that  this  matter  was one to be  worked out  
in practice.  My  argument  practically is this,  that  although  it  may 
have  to be worked  out for the  purpose of beneficial use of those  coun- 
tries  in a general  rather  than  in a specific way,  there is an  existing 
lien  on  the  waters of these  rivers to be treated as joint  liens  to the 
extent of those prior  appropriaticns,  and  that  the  resulting balance, 
whatever it may be, is  to be divided between the  two  countries. 
That  is what seems to be in  accordance  with the  meaning of prior 
appropriations,  and  in  accordance  with  irrigation  practice. It would 
seem that  there  was  considered  to be a charge  on  the  waters of each 
of these  rivers for a specific amount,  that  this  charge is to be taken 
care of by  the  respective  Governments  in  interest  and  their cit.izens, 
and  that  what was left  to be divided  between  them  was the balance 
and  the  balance  only. 

Mr. POWELL. How  divided,  equally1 
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Mr. MACINNES. Divided  equally. The  prior  appropriations  are 
taken  care  of. As I say, i t  may be that beneficial use wlll show that 
it is unnecessary to  deal  with these prior  appropriations  specifically, 
but  that  they will be taken  care  of,  and  an  allowance  made  for  them in 
what  may be described as a territorial division  or a division m 
blocks of months  rather  than  at a number of different  places per 
day. 

I do  not  think it is  necessary,  perhaps,  to  enlarge on that  in words, 
because the  Canadian  engineers  have  prepared  certain  suggestions, 
which I will  put  in  shortly,  to  the commission indicating a manner 
in  which  that  can be done to  the satisfnclion of the  Canndian  inter- 
ests. It seems to  be better and  clearer to  do  that  than  to  argue  this 
thing  at  any  great  length,  but a brief  statement  can be made  to  the 
effect that  that is our view with  regxrd  to  the  prior  appropriation 
clause, and I do  nct  understand  that  there  is very  much  difference 
between  myself and my learned  friend on that  paint. 

With  regard  to  the lower  Milk  River  Valley,  my  argument is that 
t,he United St&s Government  certainly  intended  to  take  care of and 
did take  care of the  prior  appropriaticns  required to  cover the  inter- 
ests  in  that valley. With  regard  to  what was  said by Mr.  Sands as 
to  the  tributaries, it may be true  that  this  treaty  may affect the 
tributaries,  but  that  is  not  material, ii the  tributaries  are  brought  into 
a common arrangement  with  the  result  that  he gets as good or a 
better  arrangement  and  protection  than  he  would  have if there  were 
no treaty  or  arrangement, because without  any  arrangement  the  situ- 
ation  would be that if the  United  States were to contend that it 
would  divert  the  waters of the St. Mary  into  the  Milk  Rirer,  then 
the  natural  result would be-although it is inconceivable that it 
would  ever  reach that point-that  Canada  would  take  the  waters 
out  again,  and  there  would be nc  Milk  River  waters flowing down 
into  the  United  States. I n  the same  way, so far L:S the  tributaries are 
concerned, the  northern  tributaries  which  contribute  no less than 
200,000 acre-feet  at the  boundary  line  that  would be open  to  Cnnada 
if a high-handed  stand were talrew”  hate even to use this  language, 
hecause it is inconceivable that  such a thing could  happen-it could 
also be arranged  that even that  water would  never  reach the  United 
States,  and if the  two  conntries  should  behave  like  two  Killrenny  cats 
the  gentlemen  in  the  Milk  River  Valley  would be vastly  worse od 
than  if  their  rights were safeguarded  and  rendered  certain. Mr. 
Burlev  asked me to  state  with  regard to the figures put  in as to  the 
waters of the lower  Milk  River  Valley that instead of being  too  small, 
as Mr.  Sands seemed to  think,  there  was a lo t  more  water  there  than 
we had  allowed  for.  The  position was taken by the officials of the 
United  States  Geological  Survey,  who  dealt  with  stream  mensure- 
ments, that  those  figures  are  too  large. So I do  not  think  that  he  can 
anticipate  that  there is any  danger on that score. 

I made  reference  just now to  the  canal  on  the  Milk River-the 
so-called A. R. & I. lslillr River  Canal.  Mr.  Dennis  gave some  evi- 
dence on that,  to  which Mr. Wgvell  referred. As the documents 
hare been put in, I think I ought  to  refer  the commission to Dr. 
King’s  memorandum of the 23d of December, 1908, which  explains 
more fully than  the  statement of Mr. Dennis the reasons  why that 
was  constructed. It was  not  merely a canal  for  safe  protection in 
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case anything  was  done  by  the  United  States  on  the St. Mary  River, 
but it was also a canal  that coulcl  be utilized  and  can be still  utilized 
to  a good purpose. I assume that  the commissicn has  had  impressed 
upon it  t>he fact  that  the  waters,  either of the  Milk  River  or of the 
St. Mary River, diverted  into  the Millr River  passing  the A. R. & I. 
Canal  at  this  point,  can be taken  out  and  nct  necessarily used directly 
on the  land  from  there,  but  put  into  reservoirs  and  distributed  from 
there on  the  irrigable  land  shown  cn  the  map  in  the St. Mary River 
district. That is on  important  point  for  the commission to  bear  in 
mind, for this  reason,  that  there is nncther  linking up of these  two 
rivers, so that  at  this place the  waters uf either rlwr can be nsed. 
That  is  to say,  any  waters \yliich Cnnadn  gets at  that  point ci\n he 
waters  either of the  Milk  River  flowing  past  it or they  can be waters 
of the Et. Mary  River  diverted  by  'the  United  States  into  the Milk 
Ixiver and flowing past  it. So  there is a possibility of malting there 
an  optional  arrnnqement for  beneficial use. The  waters of either 
river  can be used at  that  point. 

Then  my  learned  friend Mr. Wyvell  put  in a memorandnm of 
Mr. NeITell, dated  the  29th of December, 1008. While I think  Mr. 
Newell  knows me too  well to  think  that I mould  challenge any 
statement  that  he  makes,  there is contained  in  that  memorandum a 
suggestion  not  possibly as to  an  actual  storage  agreement between 
the  two  countries,  but  that  an  arrangement  might be made  before 
letting  down  the  waters  stored by the  United  States  in  the  St. Mary 
River.  That  was  a  suggestion  that  was  mnde by Mr. Newell and 
was  contained  in  this  merno~~mdurn  which Mr. Fl'yvell has seen fit 
to  put  in. I have  no  doubt  that  the  explanation of that  is  that it is 
not  what would be called a storage  ngreement,  bllt i t  shows that 
there was a possibility of  some arrangement of that  kind  being 
made,  and, of course, I* presume  that some  such arrangement  may 
yet be made between the  two  countries  with  respect  to  the St. Mary 
kiver  and possibly also in  Cnnada  in  connection  with  the  eastern 
tributaries,  the  Frenchman River and  Battle  and  Lodge Creeks, 
etc. But while  there is nothing  jn  Article VI  under  which  this 
commission can  direct  anything of that  kind or impose  any  such 
conditions  on  either  country, it may be that when  they  get  the 
engineers  before  them  again, if it becomes necessary, they  may  be 
able  to  improve  on  the  situation  by  petting  the  two  countries  to- 
gether  and  making some arrangement between them, because we have 
not  only  the  fact  that  joint  storage is obviously  one of the clearest 
solutions of this  matter  in  the St. Mary, but we have  the same situa- 
tion on the  Canadian  side  with  regard  to  the  eastern  tributaries of 
the Milk. So there is a possibilitv  there of the commission being 
able  to  get  both  conntries to do a little more if it is found  that it is 
necessary for beneficial use. 

I have  not  yet  dealt  with  the  constitutional  point  raised  by Mr. 
Sands. I certainly  think  that  the  point  is a very  interesting  one 
academically,  but  the  facts  which  do seem to be clearly  established 
are  these:  That  there is a decision-at least  one  decision-of  the 
United  States  Supreme  Court  which is absolutely  contrary  to  the 
contention  which  he has raised. Mr. Sands  read some very  inter- 
esting  extracts  from a textbook  writer,  but I certainly  have not 
heard,  although I do not profess to be  qualified as a counsel in 
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United  States  law,  a decision to  the  contrary of the  one  that  has 
been referred  to.  There is a fact which is certainly  worth  bearing 
in  mind.  The textbook  which Mr. Sands  read  to you contains  the 
statement  that Mr. Root’s views are  entirely  to  the  contrary of the 
views  which  are  being  advocated  by  the  textbook  writer. That is  
perhaps of interest because my  learned  friend Mr. Wyvell  did  drop 
the  remark  that  it  might be in  the  minds of those  who  authorized 
the  treaty  that  the law  was as contended  by this textbook  writer. 
It so happens  that  the  Eecretary of State  at  the  time  he  dealt  with 
this  matter was Mr. Root,  and we know very  clearly  what  his views, 
at  any  rate, are. A point of that  kind is of colossal magnitude, be- 
cause i t  would  not  only  upset  this  treaty  with  regard  to  this  matter 
lout might  possibly  upset i t   a t  other  points,  and  no such contention 
has been raised to  my  knowledge  by  or  on  behalf of the  United 
States  at  any time,  nor  yet  do I understand  that  it is raised  before 
you officially here  by  my  learned  friend.  While it is a  very  inter- 
esting  point to discuss, I do  not  think  that I need worry  you  in  any 
way  with  any  more  authorities  than I have  pnt  before you. 

Mr. GLENN. This  Bear  Paw  River is wholly  within  the  State of 
Montana ? 

Mr. MACINNES. Yes, sir. 
Mr. GLENN. The  State of  Montan:, has  granted  certain  privileges 

Mr. MACINNER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. GLEXN. Do you tilink  the  United  States  Government,  in  mak- 

ing a treaty  with  Great  Britain  for  Canada, would  have the  right to 
make  a  treaty  that  would  interfere  with  the flow  of that  river,  which 
is entirely  within  the  boundaries of the  State of Montana  and  which 
it has assumed jnrisdiction  over  and  granted  such  privileges? 

Mr. MACINNIS. I should be bound to assume so for  this reason, 
that  it  is expressly LO stated as I read  it  in  the  Constitution of the 
United  States. 

Mr. GLENN. With  the decisions  construing  that  Constitution of 
the  United  Stat,es? 

Mr. RfAcIxNm. Quite so; and  the  only decision which I know of 
which is of reel  value  and  which  is  before  us  today is the  one to 
which I have  referred. 

Mr. GLENN. There are a great  many  others besides that,  and  you 
will find that  distinguished hy another case, which  states  that  the 
point  raised  in  there bv Judge  Swayne was  not  applicable, because , 

the  State of Virginia did not  have  any  such  law  as-that.  But  here 
in  this case that we have  before us the  State of Montana  has  taken 
jurisdiction  over  this  river  and  has  granted  privileges. Now, can 
the  United States Government come in  and  make  a  treaty  and  inter- 
fere  with  the  rights of the  State  with  regard  to  a  matter  entirely 
within its owl1 boundary 1 

Mr. MACINSES. If that  is  the  law,  it  is  the  law,  and  it would seem 
to me that  there  is  probably not the danger which is present  in our 
minds. I would  think  it  would be hard  to assume that  the  Federal 
Government 111 dealing  with a foreign  Government  would  overlook 
the  interests of any  portion of its citizens. When I say  the  Federal 
Government, I mean tho President and the Senate in whom the 
treaty-making  power resides. 

to  the  citizens  along  that  river  for  irrigation  and  power  purposes? 
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Mr. GLENN. I am  referring  to  this  point  not  with  the  purpose of 
ousting  the  Jurisdiction of this  court,  but  with  this  purpose,  that if 
the  contention were true as mnde  by Mr. Sandsthat  this is a matter 
entirely  within  the  jurisdiction of the  State of Montana  and  the 
United  States  could  not  do  anything  with  regard  to  it,  would  that 
not. be a tremendous  circunlstance to  tdre  into  consideration  that  they 
did  not  contemplate  at  the  time of making  this  treaty of doing  that 

* which  they  knew  they  had  no  right  to do under  the  lams of the 
United  States ;2 

Mr. &1scIn,ues M7ith the  result  t,hat  you  would  then  exclude a 
part  of the  waters? 

Mr. GLENN. Yes; on the  ground  that it was  never  contemplated 
that,  those  waters  sholild be in  there. 

Mr. MACINNEB. Then would  not  that  have  the effect of depriving 
Canada, or Cheat  Britain  acting  on loehalf of Canada, of a part  of 
the  consideration  which  she  was  to receive under  the  treaty? 

Mr. GLENN. No: not if we found as a matter of fact  that it was 
never conLemplated that those  waters  should be in there. 

Mr. MACINXES. Contemplated  by  whom? 
Mr. GLENN. By  both Governments,  Canada  and  the  United  States, 

at the  time  they  made  the  treaty. I n  other  words,  when  they 
made  this  treaty  they  only  intended  to  do  that  which  they legal1 
had a right  to do, and  therefore  all  streams  south of the  line  whic JI 
never  went  into  Canada  and  all  streams  north  which  never  went  into 
the  United  States  were  never  intended  by  the  United  States or Great 
Britain  to go into  this  treaty. 

Mr. MACINKES. The answer to  that is clear. We  happen  to know 
who  was  the  Secretary of State  dealing  with  the  matter  on  behalf 
of the  United  States.  We  also  have  before us a  record,  which I pre- 
sume is correct, of what  the views of that  Secretary of State were. 
Have I made myself clear? 

Mr. GLENN. Do you  mean Root’s letter? 
Mr. MACINNESS. No. It is stated  in  this book quoted by my  learned 

friend  that Mr. Root’s  views on  this  point  are  in  accordance  with 
the decision of the  Supreme  Court of the  United  States,  in  effect, 
namely,  with  the  President,  with  the  advice  and  consent of the  Sen- 
ate,  can  make a treaty  with a foreign  power  dealing  with a State 
property  and  State  rights. 

Mr. ( ~ L E X N .  That  would  throw some light  upon  the  subject of what 
was  in his mind  at  the time. 

Mr. MACINNES. If that be a correct  statement of what Mr. Root’s 
views  are,  that  would be an  answer  to  your question. 

Mr. GLENN. Still his views can not. contemplate  the  laws of the 
country. 

Mr. MACINNES. You  are  nuttine it UKI to me that if Mr.  Root  had 
thought  that those  waters  Gould  exchded, it would  be fair to ex- 
clude  them. 

Mr. GLENN. You  say  that  at  that  time  he could do it? 
Mr. MACINNESS. That  would be the case. 
Mr. GLENN. I am  frank  to  say  that we southern  folk  have  pretty 

strong  ideas of States  rights,  and we haven‘t  gotten  them  entirely 
out of us yet,  although  they  gave LIS a pretty  severe  jolt. If the  Fed- 
eral  Government  can come in and  take a river  that is absolutely, say, 

11398”15---19 
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in  the  State of Montana,  entirely  within its jurisdiction,  and  which 
they  had used and  given  to  their  citizens to use, and  make  a  deal  with 
a  foreign  country,  they  can go still further  and  take  anything else we 
have  in  the  State. 

Mr. MACINXES.  That would  be  reductio ad  absurdum. 
Mr. GLENN.  Then  would  the  treaty-making  power  on  both  sides 

finally come to  a conclusion that would be absolutely  absurd.  There- 
fore,  Itnowing  that,  would  not we have a right  to  let  them  throw  any 
light  upon  what was in  the  minds of the  two  parties when they  made 
this  contract  which  is  called a treaty between the  two  nations? 

Mr. MACINNES.  This is 1915, and since the  framing of the  Consti- 
tution of the  Government of the  United  States  there  have been a 

reat  many  treaties  which  have been passed. I am  not  aware of the 
nited  States  Government  having  put  forward  that view to a foreign 

country,  that we have  made a treaty  with  you  which  includes  the 
property of certain of our  States  and  that  under  your  constitution 
you are able to  deal  with  the  property of your  citizens,  but we under 
our Constitution  are  not,  and  you  are  under  a  mistaken view there- 
fore if ou relied  on  what we propose to  give  you as h consideration. 

Mr. JLENN. I think you will  find by looking at   the treaties of the 
United  States  that you  can  not  show an instance of where  they  have 
attempted  to  take  property  that belonged  absolutely to a State  and 
made  it a subject of treaty  with ti foreign  nation. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  Let us take  this  situation: You seem to be assum- 
ing, Governor-and this  is  only discussion, of course-that the Gov- 
ernment of the  United  States  has  willfully  here  taken  away  the  prop- 
erty of the citizens of Montana. 

E 

Mr.  GLENN. No. 
Mr. MACTNNES. Well,  that seems to  be  the  way  in  which  your posi- 

tion  is  working. 
Mr.  MACINNES.  You seem to be assuming  that  the  Government of 

the  United  States  is  unlawfully  taking  away  the  property of the 
citizens of Montana. 

Mr.  GLENN. No? sir;  my idea is that  the  argument  is used simply 
for the  purpose of showing  that  the  United  States  did  not  intend 
to take  away  the  property of Montana because it knew it had  not the 
right,  and  therefore  it did not  attempt  to  put  in  the  treaty  things 
it had  no  right  to  put in. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  On  what  do you base that?  
Mr. GLENN. On  this  fact,  here  is a treaty  which  puts  in  certain 

tributaries.  Taking  all of  the evidence that  has been put  in, it looks 
as if the object  was to  take  in  simply  those  tributaries  running  across 
the line. 

Mr.  MACINNES. With  all respect, I do  not  think so; it is back and 
forth. 

Mr. GLENN. IR addition  to  that comes the  further  fact  that I do 
not believe any  two  great  contracting  parties  would  attempt  by  any 

. treaty  to  take  away  from a State  that which  they  would  have  no  right 
to  take away. The  only  way  in  which  this  question of jurisdiction 
could  come in  for the  purpose of ousting  this commission a t  all 
would  be if we attempted  to  construe it in  that  way, and possibly, 
under  the  construction of that  contract, it would  be  competent for 
us to do so. If we do so, what  will be the result?  Montana  will 

. 
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step  in  and  say : " You have no  right  to  do it; we will  not  allow  this. 
Then  everything  that would be done  would fall  to  the  ground. 

Mr. MACIN NES. Why ? 
Mr. GLENN. Because the  Federal  Government  can  not  take  the 

property of a State  and  give it to  anyone  unless  the  State  agrees 
to it. 

Mr.  MACINNES. I f   i t  be the law that  the  United  States  Govern- 
ment is limited  in  making  its  treaties  to  that effect, then  certain 
results  would flow from  it,  but  the first step  surely is to  have it 
established that such is the law of the  United  States. 

Mr. GLENN. I ask you for your  authority. You seem to  think 
they  have  the  right  to  take  away  the  water of a river  in a State, 
and  if  they  have  the  right  to  take  away  the  water of a State  they 
have  the  right  to  take  away  the  land of a State  and  to  trade  away 
the  State  itself,  and  then  the  Republic  would be dissolved. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  That is your  personal view, Gov. Glenn,  and  for 
it I have  the  highest  respect,  but if the decisions of the  Supreme 
Court of the  United  States  are  to  the  contrary,  surely  they  would 
govern. 

Mr.  GLENN. Do you  mean to  tell me that  the  United  States Gov- 
ernment  and  the  British  Government  could  make a treaty  to abso- 
lutely do away  with  the  State  rights of the  State of  New York? 

Mr.  MACINNES. Your law is there, sir. I think  it is a somewhat 
unreasonable  proposition to cross-examine me on  United  States  law; 
I would  much rather  have  an  opportunity of cross-examining  you 
upon it. 

Mr.  GLENN. But we are  trying  to  get  light  on  the subject. 
Mr. POWELL. Unfortunately  for  the  Province  in  which I was  born, 

that was exactly  what  was done. By  the  treaty of Ashburton  them 
was  taken  away  from  the  State of Maine  the  Aristook  territory, 
which  was  recognized as a part of the  State of Maine, and  they  gave 
us a quid  pro quo. 

Mr. MACINNES. I f  Gov. Glenn  will  allow me, in response to your 
question,  Governor, as  to  whether  that is or is not  the  law of the 
United  States, I put  before you the decision of the  Supreme  Court 
of the  United  States. Have you got  any  authority to the  contrary 
that would  agree  with  your own  personal view Ir 

Mr. GLENN.  Yes, sir ;  you  will  find a good  many  authorities dis- 
tinguishing  that case from  other cases. 

Mr. MACINNES.  If  there  is  any conceivable real  doubt on this  point, 
however  undesirable  you  may  think  it  personally, Gov. Glenn, or 
however  undesirable  anyone  may  think  the  law  might be, the com- 
mission  should  have  information  from  briefs \or otherwise  before it 
on  the  oint. 

Mr. 8 LENN. I say  that  there  are  other cases distinguishing  that 
case from  this,  and I wished to  hear your view as  to how fa r  you 
go in  the  ar  ument  that a treaty between  two  countries  can  abrogate 
the  rights o f a State of the  Union  in  regard  to its own  territory, if 
the  State wishes to  take exception. I do  not  say  that  Montana  would 
make  that  point,  but  in case they  did,  what would come of it? 

Mr. MACINNEB. My answer to  that  is, that  under  the  law  ap- 
plicable to  the high contracting  parties  to this treaty,  there is no 
such  limitation,  and unless, therefore, it is absolutely  clear and an 
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accepted fact,  that there is such a limitation  on'the ptzrt of the 
United  States,  that  then  if  the  treaty were entered  into  between 
the  two  countries,  and  it  was  subsequently  suggested  by  anybody 
on  behalf of the  United  States  that  they were  not  under  obligation 
to give  part of the consideration to  Great  Britain  then, of course, 
that  would  result  in  putting  an  end to the whole contract. If, how- 
ever, the law of the United  States is absolutely  clear  on the  point, 
and  is accepted  and  acknowledged  by  Great  Britain  in  this  instance, 
then  a  different  situation arises. 

Mr. GLENN. I am  very  frank  to  tell you that I have  not  made  up 
my  mind  about it, but I want  to get your views. When you  read 
that case yesterday, it took  my  breath  away.  We  southern  people 
are very  much  inclined to believe in  State  rights,  and  while  we  have 
been reconstructed we have  not  given np our views on that line. I 
will be very  frank  with  you; I do not  think  any  United  States  Gov- 
ernment  would  have  the  right  to  take  away  from a State  that  which 
belongs to a State. 

Mr. MACIKNES. If   that   is  so, it seems to me it leads  to a f a r  more 
startling consequence  on the  other side. 

Mr. GLENN. I do  not  think so. I would  not  consider  that  argu- 
ment  only for the  purpose of throwing  light on what mas in  the 
minds of the  contracting  parties. I take  it  for  granted  that the 
Government of Great  Britain  and  the  Government of the  United 
States  did  not  intend  to do anything  which  was  illegal. 

Mr. MACINNES. I f  there  could be no  limitation on the  doctrine 
which you lay  down, Gov. Glenn,  it would put  an  end  to  the whole 
of this  treaty,  as  to  boundary  waters, because they  are  absolutely  the 
property of the TJnited States. 

Mr. GLENN. It has some analogy  to  interstate  and  intrastate  in our 
country.  Rivers  running  along  the  boundary  are  subject  to a treaty. 

Mr. TAWNEY. Would  it  not  follow  from  your  reasoning, Gov. 
Glenn,  that  in  agreeing  to  allow  Canada  the  one-half of the  water  of 
the Milk River and the St. Mary  River, it is taking  away  from  the 
State of Montana  that  much water which  otherwise  the  State of 
Montana  could  divert  into  its own territory  and use, if it saw fit? 

Mr. GLENN. I think when a river is once international  it  always 
is international; you can  not  make it international  part of the time 
and  State  property  the  other  part of the time. n u t  when it is State 
property  altogether i t  never  can become international. I think you 
will  find that  the decision of the  Supreme  Court  will  bear  that  theory 
out. 

Mr. E~~ACINNF~S. I am  not  pretending  in  any  way  to be qualified to 
express  an  opinion on the law of  your country,  but I may, of course, 
cite a11thoritv, and I am nble to  do so, thanks  to  the  kindness of my 
friend,  Mr.  Isaac  Campbell, K. C., who is present  and  who is well 
known  to  the  members of the commission. I cite  the case of Jeffrey 

v. ?if"" r MacInnes  cited  from  Mr.  Justice  Field's decision in  this case.) 
Mr. BIEP;. May I read  three or four  lines  from  Tucker's book, 

page 1432 I t  is the  title of chapter 6: 
The cnses of Chirnc v. Chirnc, Hnuenstein 9. Lynham,  Geofroy w. Riggs hold 

thnt the tre;?ty power  mny  remove the badge  of alienage from foreigners,  but 
do not hold that this power  may a m u l  the law of dissent of the  States. 
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They  are  drawing a  line  there between Federal  and  State questions. 
Mr. MACINNES. May I cite  a  most  illuminating  address  by  Mr. 

Frank 13. Kellogg, of this  city, who  was president of the  American 
Bar  Association in 19132 I remember  hearing  him  make  the  address 
a t  Montreal,  and  it  is  printed  here  and  contains  a discussion of all 
the cases, and  Mr. Kellogg’s view  is-his  view is the view of  an erni- 
nent  member of the  bar,  but I do  not  suppose it goes any  further 
than  the views of an eminent  test-writer-his view is  that  the  treaty- 
making  power is absolute,  although  no wise Federal  Government 
would  do  anything  which  would  deprive  a  State of its  property  with- 
out  proper  consideration. That  is  to be found in the  Reports of the 
American Bar ,Association,  volume 38, 1913. 

Mr. GLEXN. I wanted  to  get your view,  Mr. MacInnes,  and  you 
seem to be under  the  impression  that  they  can  do  this  with  regilrd  to 
a  river or the  property of a  State. I have  called your attention  to 
it, and I would  be  very  glad  if, at  any  time  after you go home, you 
would see what  the cases are  and  where you can  distinguish  them, 
and  send a memorandum. 

Mr. MACIXXES. I shall do that. 
Mr. POWEI.L. A very  interesting  point is raised  by  Mr.  Sands. 

Whatever  the  authorities  may say, under  the  Daniel  Webster  and 
Ashburton  treaty  they  handed  over  to  the  State of Maine  a  large 
portion of territory  previously  claimed  by New Brunswick,  and  they 
took  away from the  State of Maine  a  portion of territory claimed  by 
the  State of Maine. 

Mr.  MACINNES. That  is an exact  instance of the case in point. 
You sa that  was  done? 

treaty.  The  point  raised  by  Mr.  Sands is this:   He says  that  while 
the  United  St,ates  Government  might  take  the  power  to  alienate 
property  or affect property  where  that  was  a  direct  subject of inter- 
national  controversy  to be settled  by  treaty,  yet  they  would  not  be 
justified in going afield and  taking  the resources of the  State  as a 
quid  pro quo or a consideration in  making a  settlement. That is 
virtually  his  point. 

Mr.  MACINNES. I am  very glad you called  attention  to  that. because 
the  answer is clear. T h a t   m ~ g h t  be so if  property  in  the  lower  Milk 
River  Valley  was  being  given  away  in  consideration of an  arrange- 
ment  made  in some other  State  under  this  international  agreement, 
but  here we find that  what is suggested  as  being  given  away is  certain 
waters of the  lower  Milk  River  Valley,  and  these form part  and 
parcel of this whole  arrangement. 

Mr. POWELL. That is true,  but  take  these  waters  that come from 
the  Little Rockies  and  never  reach  Canadian  territory a t  all. They 
strike  the  Milk  River  and  then  run  down  the  Milk  River  channel  to 
join  the  Missouri;  they  never  enter  into  Canada  in  any way. Of 
these, the  United  States,  accordin  to  your  contention,  have  they  not 
gone to work  and  given  to  Cana B a a certain  interest  in  these  rivers 
that  are  not  subject  to  international  controversy m any  way In order 
to  adjust a  settlement of the  Milk  and  Mary  Rivers,  where  there  are 
what  you  call  international difficulties. 

Mr. MACINNES.  As  was  stated  by  the  engineer,  and i t  will  be  made 
more  clear if  necessary, that  what could be done  and is done  in irri- 
gation is an exchange of waters, so that these  lands  which  may be 

Mr. p. OWELL. Yes;  that was  done  under  the  Ashburton-Webster 
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watered  geogmphically  by  the  tributaries  could be watered,  and  wa- 
tered better, by  water  obtained elsewhere. 

Mr. POWELL. Suppose  the  State of Montana  should  prefer  to  look 
after  her own interests that  are not  the  subject of international con- 
troversy,  would you have  anything to do  with  that? 

Mr. MACINNES. There  never  has been the  slightest  objection  from 
the  State of Montana  since  the  date of the  treaty  up  to yesterday. 
You had  the  attorney  general of Montana  before  you,  and no such 
point  was  raised  by  him. 

Mr. POWELL. It is raised  on  behalf of the  appropriators. 
Mr. MACINNES. I an1 not  saying  that Mr. Sands is insisting  aca- 

demically. 
Mr. POWELL. If   there is anything  in  his  point, it is more  than 

academic. 
Mr. MACINNES. The reason I feel  confident that  there is nothing  in 

his  point is that we have  not  had it presented to  the commission by 
the  United  States  Government or by the  State of Montana,  nor  has 
any  authority been put before the commission,  except  a  textbook 
writer, on matters  in  reference to government  within  certain  States. 
There is nothing  before  the commission to  indicate  that  what Mr. 
Sands  contends  mny be the law. 

Mr. POWELL. This is a very  intricate  matter,  and I do  not  intend 
now to ire  any expression of opinion  upon it. 

Mr. 6 LENN. Some of the cases  cited by Mr.  Sands  this  morning 
were  not textboolrs, but  Supreme  Court decisions. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  And  no  doubt  the  United  States  Government also, 
or some representative of it, has a knowledge of the law of the 
United  States. 

Mr. GLENN. Please  do  not  misunderstand me. Where  the  Federal 
Government  has  the  right,  no  State  statute  and  nothing else  can 
interfere by  any  possibility  with its right  to  make a treaty, but 
where  the  Federal  Government is going  beyond  its power to  deal 
with  matters  in a State,  then  the  State  can be heard. That  is  the 
line of distinction  in our courts  from one end of the  country  to  the 
other. I f  you take  Article VI on  the  limitataion of the  treaty-making 
power, you will see that  every  one of these  things is distinguished. 

Mr. MCINNES. I suppose you will  agree  with me that it would 
have  to be very  clear  law to be binding  on  Great  Britain  under  such 
conditions. 

Mr. GLENN. I recognize that. I have  only  asked you mould it  not 
be a circumstance as throwing  light  upon  what  was  in  the  mind of 
Great  Britain a t  the  time  the  contract was made. Surely  the  eminent 
jurists of Great  Britain  and of the  United  States  who were malting 
that  treaty  would  not  want to do anything  that was illegal;  surely 
they would not  want  to  do  anythin illegal as  interfering  with  the 
right of a State. A treaty would gb e perfectly  legal  if it did  not 
interfere  with  the lam of the  State. 

Mr. MACINNES. We are  agreed  that it is either  the  law or not  the 
law. If i t  is merely a matter  which is disputed  among  textbook 
writers,  that  dispute  among  textbook  writers would nct  be  ground 
for depriving  Great  Britain of its right  under  the  treaty. 

discussing,  while  interesting, is not involved  here. We are called 
upon  to  give effect to  the  language of Article V I  of the  treaty. If 

Mr. MICNAITLT. My view on it is this:  This question we are now ' 
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this  language  goes  further  than  the  treaty  power of the  United 
States allowed the  United  States  to  go, we can  not,  and  have  no 
authority  to  declare  that  this  treaty,  in so far  as it trapscends  the 
power of the  United  States, is ultra vires. There  would be a prac- 
tical  competent  procedure  on  behalf of the  State of Montana or any 
authority  to  attack  this  treaty. No such  proceeding  has been taken, 
and  this ccmmission  would be absolutely without  jurisdiction  to  dis- 
regard  the  plain  meaning of the langua,pe of Article VI  because, 
in  the  opinion of this commission,  the  United  States  might  not  have 
the  power  to  make  the  bargain.  That is my view. I do  not  pur- 
pose deciding  whether  or  not  the  United  States  had  the  power to  
make  this  bargain,  but  what I do  purpose  is to  give effect to  the  plain 
mainin  in  English of the  language of Article V I  of the  treaty. 

Mr. 6 LENN. I would view it that way  and I would  only  consider 
the  argument as giving some indication of what  was  in  the  minds of 
the framers of the  treaty. 

Mr.  MIGNACLT. It would  be  great  presumption  on  our  part  to  say 
that  the  United  States  has  nct  the  power  to  make a treaty. 

Mr. GLENN.  We  have  two  contentions  before  us; one, that all the 
water  must be taken  in, and the  other,  that all the  water be taken  in 
except  certain  waters  which  are  in  Montana,  and as throwing  light 
on that  the  argument is valuable. 

Mr. MIGNAULT. All we have  to do is to construe  the  language of 
the  treatv.  and we are  not  concerned  with  what  the Dower  of the 
United  Stites is. 
. .~ . 

Mr.  MACINNES.  The view to  which you have  given  expression is 
entirely  in  accord  with  the case in 8 Wheat( )n; which-I  cited a 
moment ago. 

Mr. POWELL. There  is a similar decision in  the  Supreme Court Re- 
ports, 141, where  they  said  that if a  treaty  was  clear  they  had no 
right  to  interfere  with it. 

Mr. MACINNES. I feel that  this is the  only  point  with  which I 
need  deal in connection  with  the  contention raised by my learned 
friends  in  opposition  to  giving effect to  the clear language of the 
treaty. If there  is any matter  which  the  commission  thinks I have 
not  dealt  with I shall be glad  to  address  myself  to it, and  to  deal 
with  it now,  and if not, I shall proceed. 

Mr. POWELL. There is one thing which is nebulous in my mind 
and  that  is as to  the  meaning of “beneficial use.” Is the  ownership 
of the  water  in  any way qualified by beneficial use, except  those  two 
pur oses that  are spolcen of,  irrigation  and  power? d r .  MACINNEL I understand  by ‘‘ beneficial use”  that  the com- 
mission  would  seek  to  make  such an  arrangement  as  to  distribution 
of the  component parts in  such  way  as to be beneficial. 

Mr. POWELL. Your  idea is that it is a marshalling of the  waters 
of the  two  rivers. 

Mr. MACINNEB. It is a marshalling of the  waters  and  applicability 
to the  different  districts,  which may not  arise if there  is  no  dispute. 

Mr. POWELL. You think  absolutely  that  the  water  that  is  there or 
will  be  there,  taking  the two rivers  together. is one-half of the 
totality  in  Canada  and  one-half in the United  States. 

Mr. MACINNEB. A prior  appropriation  in  one  country  plus  one-half 
and on the  other  side  a  prior  appropriation  plus  one-half. 
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Mr. POWELL. You say  that  all  the  water  there is disposed of by the 

Mr. MA@NNES. Yes. 
Mr. POIWLI,. Whether one side  mould  let it go to waste or make use 

Mr. MACINNEB. You are  to  give  a  direction  as  to  the  right of each 

Mr. f'owmr,. For the  purpose of marshaling  the maters. 
Mr. MACINNES. And  for  the  purpose of giving  direction  to it. 
Mr. POWELL. That is  your view. 
Mr. MACINNEY.  Exactly;  and  the  only  limitations  on it that may 

be, as the  wording of tlle treaty is, irrigation  and  power. It appears 
from  the  evidence  here  that  there  is  at  present IL certain  amount  in 
both  countries  which  is  not  applicable  to  irrigation. That is to  say 
on  the  Canadian  side  an  amount between IGmball  and  the  mouth oi! 
the  United  States  side  between  Hinsdale or Vandalia,  which is the 
last  point of divergence  by  the  United  States  down  to  the  mouth. 
It so happens  that  the  amount of water  in  each case  is, according to  
the records, the  same, or approximately  the same. And  again,  that 
that  water,  probably  in  one  year or the  other,  could be  used for 
power, so that  from  the  principal  standpoint of considering  what is 
to be  used, I assume you can  deal  with  the  total. If you  give its 
share on tlle United  States  side  to  Hinsdale  and  on  the  Canadian  side 
to  Iiimball, you would be dealing  with  the  whole  subject  matter 
probably. 

The  general  recommendations  on  behalf of Canada for the assist- 
ance of the commission  in  giving its direction  for  the  apportionment 
and  the  measurement  hare, so far  as  additional  gauging  stations  are 
concerned,  already been put  before  the  commission  in  the  form of a 

treaty  in some  way or  other ? 

of'it, would you consider we should  inquire  into it ? 

countr  to  make use of it. 

draft or map. 
. These  stations,  in  addition  to  existing  stations.  would  be  used for 

the purpose of obtaining  correct  data  foFthe  measurement of the  total 
amount of the  waters  involved, so that you  may  arrive at  the  tots1 
and  for  the  measurement of the  component  parts of the  share to 
which  each  country is entitled,  and possibly  also, if it  becomes  ma- 
terial,  for  the  purpose of obtaining  such  data  as  may  be  necessary  in 
connection  with  the  measurement  and  delivery of the  prior  appro- 
priation  to  which  each  country is entitled  on  the  different  rivers, 
although,  as I pointed  out before, it is quite possible that  the  prior 
appropriation  will be worked out under a general scheme of distribu- 
tion  rather  than  under  a specific one. Then we suggest  that  the 
commission  should  give its direction  for  the  purpose of apportion- 
ment  between  the  two  countries,  in  accordance  with beneficial use, 
givin effect to  such  prior  appropriwtions,  as I have  mentioned,  either 
.speci P cally  or as part of the  shares. A t  some  subsequent  date  the 
commission  might  take up, not  as  part of its  absolute  duty,  the possi- 
bilities of arrangement for joint  storage  between  the  two conntries, 
although  that is not  one of the  matters as to  which  you  need  to  give 
directions. 

It was  said  during  the  procoedings  that  the  commission  have  not 
been aDplied to  to  deal  with  thls  mutter by either  country,  and  that, 
therefore, perhaps there was no necessity for  the commission  to  give 
direction as to what  the  share of each  country is. Our view is this, 
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and it seems  to  be  incontrovertible,  that  the  commission  has nom 
taken  this  matt.er  up  for  the  purpose of giving  such  direction,  and 
that while  the  interests of both  countries may not  have  found it 
necessary  to come before  the  commission  up  to  date, i t  would be detri- 
mental  in  the  extreme if it  should be conceded  by  the  commission  that 
while  the  provision  was  there,  and  they  had  taken it up  and  were 
dealing  with it, they  were  not  going  to  decide it but leave it vague 
m d  indefinite. 

The  situation  in  that respect  is perhaps a little  different  between 
the two countries. I n  the  United  States  there  is  this  large  project 
of the  Reclamation Service. Mr.  Newell has  stated  to YOU what is 
being  done  and  what is proposed  to be done,  and  it  was  shown  that 
the  maximum  contemplated  storage  and  requirements of the waters 
of the St. Mary  River  would be about 200,000 acre-feet  and  with 
that  and  the  waters  obtainable  in  the  lower  Milk  River  Valley 
through  their  natural flow, coupled  with  the  existing storage a t  the 
Nelson  Dam  and possibly  also other  dams  which  are  dealt  with  in  the 
Reclamation  Service  report,  the  Bowdoin,  the  Chain of Lakes, and 
so forth,  and  that  with  that  they  can  irrigate  alqmoxirnately 220,000 
acres, and  that  that is all  the  land  they  can find that  can be con- 
trolled  by  that  scheme,  therefore,  they  have a definite situation  on 
their  side  which  they do not want  to  extend.  Mr. Neve11 told 11s 
that  apart  from all that,  there are possibilities  of  similar schemes, 
but  not  Governmental.  On  our  side,  the  matter is  different.  There 
are possibilities  stated  to you by  the  engineers for large  irrigation 
works  and for large  products,  and  that  while  the  water is, so to 
speak,  controlled by the  department of irrigation, of which at  the 
present  time Mr. Drake  is  head  and  Mr.  Peters  commissioner, no 
extension of that work is  being  down  by  Dominion  Government 
money. It has been shown  to  you  that  the  peopIe  who  are  interested 
in these lands  are  the  citizens of Alberta,  who  have  acquired  these 
lands  and  who  would  need  to  get  private  capital  to  carry on these 
works,  with  the possible  assistance, by recent  legislation, o f  the 
Alberta  government. You have on the  Canadian  side n situation  in 
which it is essential  for  the  parties  to know what  their  rights  are 
if  they  are  to  get  to work to consider the  possibility of creating a 
new  project  on a large sc?le. I shall  read  to  the  commission  a  short 
memorandum of the possible division  which  would be satisfactory  to 
Canada.  This  suggestion, I may  say,  has  the  approval of Mr. Drake, 
Mr. Peters,  and Mr. Burley. I t  is put  forward for the assistance of 
the  commission,  as we have  a  desire  to  help  them  to  every possible 
extent,  and  it  is  not  assumed  to be anything  in  the  nature of a dicta- 
tion  to  the  commission,  but it is  a  tentative scheme and  proposed  and 
would be satisfactory,  and it contains  within itself various possi- 
bilities of optional  arrangement  if it were  decided  to  change  here or 
there  after  hearing  anything which  the  United  States  may  have  to 
sa on  the subject. 

t r .  GLENN. I will  be  glad  to  have  all  the  direction I can  get on 
the  subject. 

Mr. MACINNES. This  memorandum  has a schedule  attached  to it 
and also a ma  has been prepared,  and I would like to  put  the  map 
before you as f read  the  memorandum. 

(Map filed as Exihibit Q.) 
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(The  following is the  memorandum :) 
INTERNATIONAL WATERWAYS TREATY, ARTICLE VI. 

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, CANADA, 
IRRIGATION BRANCH. 

It is  suggested by Cnnnrla that  the divislon of the  waters of St.  Mary nnd 
Milk Rivers  and  their  tributaries mn.v he  made by t h e  International  Joint 
Commission, in accordance  with  the  provisions of the  trenty.  in  several mays. 
A division  which  appears  to fulfil these  requirements is appended  hereto  for 
the  consideration of the commission. 

W'hile such division mould he acceptnhle  to  Canada it is not  put  forward as 
the only  method of division  that woultl he acceptnhle. 

Thls method of clirislon  recognizes the  greater  Interest of the  United  States 
in the waters of Milk River. or in waters  that cnn be  diverted  Into Milk River, 
ant1 the similarly  greater  interest of C:lnndn in the  wnters of St. Mary River. 
It also recognizes the  Interests of hoth  countries  in  the  waters of the Sas- 
kntchcwan  tributnrfes of Milk River  and,  it  is believed, adequately fulfils all 
requirements  on  these  tributaries. 

Ruygested division of the waters  in accordance with the treaty. 

Csnsda. z$zd 
- " 

St. MRrp River up to a maximum flow of 2,OOO second-feet, May to  October, in- Aen-feet. Acre-feet. 
c h i v e . .  ...................................................................... 500,290 

172,000 St.M3rvRiverbelowA.R.&I.intake ......................................... ............ 
131.662 St. Mory River from Novemher  to April. inclnsire. ......................................... ............ 

Milk River a t  eastern crossing.. 100,000 
St Marv  River, peaks of over 2,000 second-feet Rood flow io summer.. 103.500 

Less delivered a t  A. R. & I. intake on Milk River.. 76:400 
335 162 

Equals.. * 258,762 
MilkRiveratA.R.&I.Co.'sintake durinnefloods ............................. a20,OM) ............ 
Milk River at  A R 41 I. Co 's intake' St. Mar or Milk River  waters.. ......... : 76,400 ............ 
Northern  trihutaries of Milk River: pawd bv Canada.. M.000 
Northern  trihutari& of Milk' River  stored or Jverted  by Canada.. 136,000 
Milk River and trihutaries helow eastern crissing up to  Hinsdele or Vandalia.. ............ 350,OOO 

804,890 734,762 

...................... ............................................................. "- ............ ......................................... 
" .............................................................................. 

............. ............ ..................................... 
Milk River  and  tributaries: below Vandalia.. ............................................... 1 72,000 ~- 

1 These  amqunts are n?t   a t  present considered availahle for irrinstion  but possihl for ower. 

a Estimated  capacity of A. R.  & I. Milk River Canal. 
* Mr. Newell  has state3  that  about 200,000 acre-feet will be required  by  the Unite$Btat%. 

appropriation on St. Mary River as compare3  with  the United  States  prior  appropriation on the Milk R?ver. 
Nom.-The difference  between the  total  uantities is a low estimate  of  the  value of the Canedian rlor 

Mr. MACINXES. I wish to  say  in  explanation of the  diagram  (Ex- 
hibit Q) that a simple  set of diagrams  has been prepared  to  illus- 
trate  graphically  the  apportionment  suggested  by  Canada, those 
figures  above  the  sketch map showing  the  share of Canada  in  red, 
and  the  lower figures that of the  United  States  in green. The 
horizontal  length  indicates  the  irrigable  area  in  each  country  and 
the vertical  height  represents  to scale the  duty of water possible 
under these conditions, or the  depth of water  to  which  the  irrigable 
areas  can be covered. 

Thus,  without  making  any  allowance for  absorption  and  other 
losses- 

Canada's  share  would  be: 
Feet. 

woultl cover 640,375 irrignble  acres  to n depth of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1.04 

which would  cover 88,388 irrigable  acres  to a depth of _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  2.00 

From the St. Mary  and Milk Rivers, 668,690 acre-feet of water which 

From  the Milk River  northern  trihutaries, 138,000 acre-feet of water 



ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS. 299 

Similarly  the  United  States  share  would  be: Feet. 

water which would cover 250,000 irrigable acres to a depth of--,----- 2.94 
Frcm these average  figures it will  be seen that  the  United  States 

would  receive nearly  three  times  the  quantity of water  per  acre of 
irrigable  land as compared  with  Canada. 

I also put  in as a further  exhibit  (marked  “Exhibit R ”) a dia- 
gram  showin  what  the  result  to  Canada  nnd  to  the  United  States 
would be if t a e  contention of the  United  States  were  sustained,  that 
you should  cut up  the  rivers at the  boundary  and  esclude  the  tribu- 
taries  in  either  country. 

This sheet  shows the  result of cutting  the  rivers  short  at  the 
boundary  and  excluding  tributaries  wholly  in  either  country, as 
contended  for by the  United  States. 

The  upper  diagrams,  bordered  in  red,  indicate  the Canadia.12 
shares  and  should be compared  with  the  corresponding  lower  dia- 
grams for the  United  States,  bordered  in  green,  thus: 

m o m  the  St. Mary and Milk Rivers and tributaries, 734,762 acre-feet Of 

Irrlpable area.. ..................................................... .acres.. 
Water su~iply for average pear.. .acre-feet.. I %% 1 944: 100 

260 OOO 

Water supply for 1912 ................................................. leet.. 673,300 1,511 IO 
Water snmlv for 1910.. ............................................. ..do.. . 426.700 618: 600 

................................ 
Equivalebt depths of water distributed over land: 

Average, year. ................................................... .do.. . a. xt 
1912.. ............................................................ .do.. . 6.04 
1910.. ............................................................. do.. . 2.07 

Mr. POWELL. That is taking  the  idea of what is so-called interna- 
tional  and confinin it to that. 

Mr.  MACINNES.  %es;  by  cutting  the  rivers  short  at  the  boundary, 
that  is one thing,  and  excluding  the  tributaries  which are solely in 
either  country. 

Mr. TAWNEY. The first map or diagram  which  you  submitted  shows 
the  result of the  division of the  waters  in  accordance  with  the  recom- 
mendation of the  Canadian  Government. 

Mr.  MACINNES. Yes. 
Mr. TAWNEY. And  the  other  is a map or diagram  showing  the 

result of the  division of the  waters  under  the  contention of the rep- 
resentatives of the  Government of the  United  States. 

Mr. MACINNES.  That  is correct. 
Mr. GLENN. Mr. Sands  made  the  statement  this  morning  that  the 

Milk  River  and  the  Bear  Paw  River  combined  would exceed all  the 
water  in  the St. Marys  River. 

Mr. MACINNES. I have been informed  by Mr. Burley  that  that is 
not  correct;  that, as a  matter of fact,  the figures  which the  Canadian 
engineers  present as being  the  lower Milk River  Valley  waters are 
larger,  according to  the  United  States  Reclamation Service. 

Mr. BIEN. I think  that could be made  clear by a  brief  statement. 
Mr. Sands  stated  that these tributaries  in  the  Bear  Paw  country  were 
not  measured,  and  that  very  little of that  water  ever  came  to  Milk 
River.  Consequently it does not  show  in  our  records  as  being meas- 
ured,  because  the  water  has  never been in  the  Milk  River  to be meas- 
ured. That  is where  he  took issue with me this  morning. I mas not 
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aware  that so much  water  had been  used  on  these tributaries. We 
have  in  the  record  the  statement of Mr. Newell,  which is the  result 
of an  examinaticn of each of these  tributaries,  examining  the  ditches 
now constructed  and  in use and  the  lands  which  are  under  irrigation. 
I have  here a summary of that, which  shows that  the  total  valid 
appropriation  from  the  streams  in  that  Bear  Paw  country:  very 
little  water of which  goes  into  the  Milk  River, is 797 second-feet. 
We  can  not  put  that  in as measurement,  but I simply  quote i t  in 
connection  with  Mr.  Sands’s  statement  that a very  large  proportion 
of the  water  falling  within  the  Milk  River  drainage  basin  in  the 
United  States,  and  south of the  main  river,  has  not been measured 
and  has  not been accounted for  in  any of the figures that  have been 
presented. 

Mr. POWELL. The  tctal you make  is  about one  million and a half. 
Mr. BIEN. I am  estimating  what  they  represent.  This is based on 

what  the  engineers  saw as to  the size of the  ditches  and  the  reservoirs, 
of which  there  are  many,  and  the  land  which is being  cultivated, so 
that   i t  is R pure  deducticn on their  part;  and  jnst  the  amount of 
error  there  may be in  that, I submit, we can  not  tell. 

Mr. POWELL. Mr. MacInnes,  there  is a point  raised  by  Mr. Bien- 
do  the  Canadian  engineers  propose  to  allot,  in  addition  to  the unmeas- 
ured  quantities  on  the  south  side of the  Milk  River;  altogether  you 
give  the  United  States  somewhere  about 740,000 acre-feet. It ap- 
pears  from  the  statement  here  that  the  total  amount of water  in  the 
Milk  River,  after  passing  the  boundary, is somewhere  about  one 
million  and a half  feet,  if  these  estimates are correct. 

Mr. BURLEY. Regarding  the inflow of the  Milk  River,  after it 
crosses the  eastern  crossing,  my  estimate  is 340,000 acre-feet. The 
United  States  Geological  Snrvey  disagree  with  me  on  the  ground  that 
I am  too  high  in  my  estimate. That would  reduce it to a total flow 
of 650,000 feet  as  compared  with 731.000 feet,  which  is a reduction of 
81,000 feet in flow into  the  Milk  River  after it passes the  eastern 
crossing. 

Mr. POWELL. How do you get  that.  measurement  unless  there  have 
been measurements 1 

Mr. BURLEY. That is an est;mate  based  on the run-off per  square 
mile for  the  stations  for  which we have  records. 

Mr. BIEN. The run-off per  square  mile  must be very  approximate. 
Mr. BURLEY. I admit  that. 
Mr. SANDS. The figures of the  United  States  were  lower in both 

streams. 
Mr. BURLEY. The figures  on the St. Mary were  lower  on theTTnited 

States  side  naturally,  through  their  wish  to  throw  out  part of their 
published  records,  and I had assumed that  their  published  records 
were  correct.  They  throw  those  out  completely, so that reduced their 
total some 15,000 acre-feet. 

Mr. SANDS. I n  arriving  at  the flow of the  Milk  River you took  the 
gauge  at  Hinsdale,  added  to it something for  the  water  that  would 
come in below Hinsdale, and the  waters  that were taken  out  along the 
Milk  River. 

Mr. BURLEY. And  its  tributaries. 
Mr. SANDS. And  the  tributaries. 
Mr. BURLEY. Battle  Creek  and  such  tributaries  as I could obtain 

records for. 
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Mr. MACINNES. I deaice a few  moments  more for the  purpose o€ 
dealing  with  the  recommendation  made  to  the commission by Mr. 
Newell. 

The commissioners  asked for the views of the  representatives of 
the  two  countries,  and  in  that  connection I would state  that  in  my 
opinion  the  action of the  International  Joint  Commission,should  be: 

First.  Under  the  last  clause of Article VI to  call upon the respective Qovern- 
ments  to  designate  their  properly  constituted officials. 

Second. That when those  properly  constituted officials have been designated, 
the  International  Joint Commission  recognize them us their executive officers. 

My  remark  on  that is, that  it  might be better, so f a r  as our  Gov- 
ernment  is  concerned,  to leave it  to  the  respective  Governments  to say 
they  would be represented  by  their  existing bureau or  department or 
by a particular officer or officers. 

quantities  already  measured  and ngreed upon, and  for  such  facts  concerning  the 
Third. That  these men be  called upon for a report on the  measurements  and 

use of the water as are matters of public  knowledge  and  record. 
That, of course, has been done at  this  hearing, so fa r   as   i t  was 

possible to  do so. But, of course, it would be qulte  satisfactory  and 
proper  that  this whole material  should be gone  over and checked and 
made  certain  of.  We  are  in  accord  with  that. 

Fourth. That when this has been determined upon, they also make recom- 
mentlntions  for  more  measurement  stations  and more data  which must be 
accumulated  in  the  near  future  in  order  to  enable  esecutive action. 

We have  put  in  our views  before  you as  to  the measurement sta- 
tions,  and if there are any  suggestions to  be made  by  the  United 
States we shall be glad  to  hear  them. 

Fifth. That  at  the  same  time  they  make  an  estimate  or  budget of the amount 
of money required  to  carry on this work of river  measurement,  which obviously 
!nus% be  somewhat  espensive" 

I presume that each  Government  would  do  that for itself;  that is 
a matter of detail,  there is no  real difference between us 0x1 that. 

boundar:es of irrigated  lands  and proposed canals. 
nntl for making any further  surveys  which  may  be  required  to  determine the 

N'e would say there  that we think  it.would  be  better for the com- 
mission to  make  any  suggestion.  Tnere  is a good  deal of evidence 
before you on the snblect.  We  have  endeavored  to be as  thorongh 
as we can,  but if the commission, after  goin  over  this  material,  finds 
that it wants  anything  more,  well  and goo$; they  can  make  the sug- 
gestion or direction. 

Sisth. That  they be Ruthorized by the International  Joint Commission as 
their reprewntatives  to  continue  measurements at the  points  which are agreed 
upon, ant1 that  they  then receive, consider,  and  act upon the instructions of the 
International  Joint Commission with  regard  to the apportionment of the water. 

Our view there is that  this  is  the  plan  and  the object of this pres- 
ent  meeting,  that  those  matters  have been gone  into,  and  that  the 
commission  will make  direction on the subject. 

I have  said  on  this  all  that I think it is  necessary to say, and I 
thank  the commission for  hearing me so patiently. 

Mr. WYVELL. I believe that  the  sitting of the commission n t  this 
hearing  has  accomplished a  good  purpose. Now that  all  the evi- 
dence is in,  and as i t  is the  desire  to  conclude  the  meeting  this even- 
ing, I have  no  desire  to  add  to  the  length of the  deliberations  by  say- 
ing more  than this: That  we  have in the  United  States a certain 
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practical wa of looking at  things  and  that we cannot  get out of 
our ideas. & is suggested that  all of our  estimates,  in  matters of 
irrigntion  and  extension of irrigation,  are  not based  0n.th.e average 
flow or on  high flows-in times of high flow we need no  Irrigation a t  
all, but on  a comparatively  low flow. We  felt  thnt  this  thought 
should be borne  in  mind  by you, and we even  took the  risk of repeat- 
ing  it  to you with  the idea that  it  might be  of some help to you, if 
yon do see fit to  take np this problem. We  are also practical  enough 
on  our  side to  think  that  the  work of the commission had, of course, 
a practical  object  in view, a beneficial work,  and a continning  work, 
and we believe that  the  outline of that  work  was  clearly  laid  down 
t h t  these  measurements  should be  made  from  time  to  time  with  the 
idea of increasing  both  the efficiency of the  works  now  in  force  and 
with a Yiew  of increasing  the  works on both  sides. With  regard  to 
the first part of Mr. illaclnnes’s talk  about  the  atmosphere  here,  may 
I say  that I have  not been offended  nor  have I placed any construc- 
tion  an  any  language which  he  may  have used or  upon  any  matter 
which  he  has  desired  to  present t o  you. I hope  that as I have  not 
placed  any  construction  upon Mr.  MacInnes’s purpose,  he  will  reserve 
to me my  right  to place  my own construction on such  matters as I 
may have  presented  to you. 

M r .  MacInnes  has  quoted from the case in 133 United States, page 
258. It is a case which I had  noted  and  read,  and  in  that case there 
was a treaty between the  United  States  and  France  by  which it was 
provided  that  Frenchmen  should be  able to hold  and  inherit  property 
the  same  as citizen of the  United  States,  as  to  States  which  already 
had  laws  permitting  aliens  to  inherit,  and  with  regard  to  States 
which  had  not  laws  permitting  aliens  to  inherit,  the  President 
agreed  to  recommend  the  passage of these laws. That case  will, I 
am sure, be interesting  to  Commissioner  Glenn, because. it plainly 
recognized the  right of the  State  to  pass  the  law,  and  the  only 
obligation  placed  upon  the  President  was  to  recommend  to  other 
Stntes who did nnt have such a law. 

Mr. POWELL. The  treaty did not  confer a status  on  the  aliens 
at   al l? 

Mr. WYVELL. Althongh  that  treaty  provided  that  an  alien  French- 
man  might  have  the  rights bo inherit  in a State of the  Union,  the 
United  States  Supreme  Court  said  that  that  should  also  include  the 
District of Columbia, and it read  the  District of Columbia into  the 
treaty.  Mr.  MacInnes  also  referred to  the  rules  laid  down  by  the 
learned  Vatell,  which  are  very  interesting,  and  are  the  foundation of 
all  rules,  but  in  other  respects  they  are  wholly  indefinite. 

I n  closing,  may I be  permitted  to  cite for your  gnidance  the  rule 
laid  down  bv  the  United  States  Supreme  Court  in  re  Ross (140 IT. S., 
p. 475), which is one of the  leading cases upon  construction,  and it is 
of great  importance because i t  involves the  construction of a treaty 
with  the  Empire  island of Japan. I n  this case it is stated : 

It  is a cnnon of interpretntlon to so construe n Inw or a  trenty ns to  give 
effert  to  the  ohiect  designed. nnA for thnt purpose all of its provisions  must be 
exnlnined in the  light of nttendnnt nnd snrrounding circumstnnces. To some 
terms nnd expressions a liternl meaning will he given, and to others n hrger 
and more extended one. The reports of the ndjndged cnses and  npproved  legnl 
trentises nre full of the  illustrntions of applfcatlons of this  rule  to  inquire in 
all such cnses,  flrst, ns to whnt was intended in the law by the legislature and 
In the treaty by the contracting  parties. 
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Mr. MACINNES. My  friend,  Mr.  Wyvell,  has  the  honor  to  appear 
for the  United  States  Government,  and  he  has associated with him 
Mr. Bien. I have a question to put to which I ask  an  answer,  and  to 
which I think this commissicn 1s entitled  to  an  answer,  and  that is 
as to whether  the  statement  made by  my learned  friend Mr. Wyvell, 
when  he put  forward  certain  contentions  before  this  International 
Joint Commission, and  then  said  that if those  views  were  not ac- 
cepted  that  this  would be not  the  end of this  matter  but  the  begin- 
ning of a new controversy. I think we ought  to know here  whether 
this is a personal view expressed  by  my  learned  friend  in  support of 
his  argument, or whether it is one which  he  has  authority  to  make 
on behalf of the  Government of the  United  States. 

here as the  representative of the  Government of the  Unlted E tates, 
as counsel for  the  Government of the  United  States,  and I presume 
that  the commission  will  have to assume, as courts assume, that a 
client  represented  by  counsel  has  authcrized  him to represent  him 
unqualifiedly. If so, I take  it  that  the Statement  made  by Mr. 
Wyvell  in respect to  the  contention  which  he  put  forth,  that if i t  
was  not  agreed  to it would be the  beginning  rather  than  the  end of 
this  controversy,  he is authorized  to  make  by  the  Government of the 
United  States,  for whom he  a.ppears as counsel. I think  the commis- 
sion has  the  right to assume that  he  has  made a statement of that 
importance  with  the  consent  and  advice of thc  Government  that  he 
represents .. - as counsel, and,  Mr.  MacInnes,  you  will  have  to  act ac- 

Mr. TAWNEP. I speak for  myself personally-Mr.  Wyyell  a  pears ' 

cordingly. 
If there is anv  aualification  that  Mr.  Wvvell  wishes  to  make to 

the  statement h<h& made he is  at  liberty t', make  it. But  withont 
any  qualification,  under  the  general  rule  as  to  which  parties are 
bound by  counsel  whom they have employed to  represent  them, I 
can  not see anything else for LIS to  but to accept the  statement  as  one 
authorized  to be made  here  by  the  Government of the  United  States. 

Mr. MACINNES. I had hoped to the  contrary,  and especially so as 
Mr. Bien  also is appearing  for  the  United  States  Government  and 
the  Reclamation  Service,  and no such  position  was  taken by him. 

Mr. GLENN. We  are  here to hear  the  representations  made  by  coun- 
sel for the  Unlted  States  and by  counsel for Canada,  but we are  here 
to  discharge  our  duties  impartially,  and  that we will do. 

Mr. 3LdNNEs. Quite so ; and I have  had  the  honor  to  appear be- 
fore this  commission in other cases than  this,  and I think I can  claim 
that I have  always  remembered  that I was  appearing  before an  inter- 
national body. 

Mr. GLENN. That is quite  right. 
Mr. SANDS. I would  like to make  a  statement  on  behalf of the 

people of the  Milk  River  country.  The  manner  in  which we  view 
this is: That  if this commission has jllrisdiction to construe  this 
treaty,  they of course  will  do it. But on the  other  hand, if they  have 
no jurisdiction  over  judicial  matters  and  they  are  limited  to  adminis- 
trative  matters  only,  then  they  have no jurisdiction  and  any  state- 
ments we may make on  that  point  are  wholly  immaterial. I f  vou 
have no jurisdiction to  construe  the  treaty,  then I have  nothing iur- 
ther  to say. 

Mr. TAWNEY. I f  there is nothing  further  to be said  on  either side 
I wish, on behalf of the  comisslon, to express  the  thanks of the 
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commission for and  our  appreciation of the  very  generous  response 
we  have received from  all  interests,  Federal,  Provincial,  State,  and 
private  interests, a t  this  hearing. It must be apparent  to  every 
one that  in  this  matter  the commission has  an exceedingly  delicate 
and  important problem to deal  with.  This commission has been 
created  not  only  for  the  purpose of settling  disputes  which  may 
arise between either  country or the people of either  country,  but  also 
€or the  purpose of preventing  disputes between  these countries  and 
these peoples, and so far  our efforts  have been attended  with  unusual 
and most gratifying success. There  has  hitherto been no  difference 
of opinion  among  the  members of the commission, and  there  has been 
no feeling of irritation between the people of the  two  countries  who 
have  appeared  before  the commission. I know that  it  will be the 
effort of the commission to consider the record  which  has been pre- 
sented  to  it  in  this case, regardless of whether we agree  with  this 
side or with  that,  and  to  work our the best  solution we possibly can. 
As Gov.  Glenn  has well said, we are  not  the  representatives of either 
Government; we are  constituted  judges for both  Governments,  and 
each of them  has  an  equal  right  to  expect  from us diligence  and  in- 
tegrity of purpose  in  reaching  the  very best judgment we can in 
respect to questions of differences that  may  divide  the  people on both 
sides of the  line  in respect to this or any  other  matter  within  our 
jnrisdiction. 

I wish  again  to  express  my  personal  thanks  and  the  thanks of the 
commission for the intereEt the  representatives  on  both  sides  have 
taken  in  giving  to  the commission the  data  and  information  bearing 
upon this question  which the commission must  determine.  When it 
will be determined is a matter  as  to which I can  not  speak at   the 
present  moment.  The first step will be to have  this  record  made 
out,  and  in  this  connection I wish to  express  the  desire  that  the  rep- 
resentatives of either  side  who  have  taken  away  documents or who 
are  to  prepare  documents  will  furnish  them  to  the officers at  Wash- 
ington or at  Ottawa as soon as possible. The commission  will  meet 
a t  Calais, Me.: on the 15th of June,  and it is expected that we  may 
hnve this record  complete so that we may  determine  what  part of i t  
shall be printed and what  part shall  not.  When  the  printed  record 
is ready  copies of it will  be  furnished to representatives  on  each side 
of the line. 

It is understood that  any  representatives of the Governments, or 
of private  interests,  or of anybody else, who  desire to  submit a brief 
on  the  facts, or the law, or both,  can  do so at  any  time  within  the 
nest  6c) days. 

I n  closing, I wish to say that  the commission intends  to  discharge 
its duty  as it sees it under  the  treaty,  irrespective of whether or not 
its judgment  may be the  beginning  or  the  end of this controversy. 

(The commission then  adjourned  to meet a t  Calais, Me., on June 
16, proximo.) 

(The  exhibits  herein  referred to  are on file in  the offices of the 
commission a t  Washington, D. C., and  Ottawa,  Canada.) 
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